
Santa Ana Unified School District 
Board of Education  

 

 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 

Tuesday, May 26, 2015 
6:00 p.m. 

 

Board Room 
1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 

Santa Ana 
 

 
        Cecilia “Ceci” Iglesias                          John Palacio                               Rick Miller, Ph.D. 

  Vice President                                  President                                     Secretary /  
                    Superintendent 
 
             Rob Richardson                            Valerie Amezcua     José Alfredo Hernández, J.D.  
                    Member          Clerk                 Member       
  

  
 

If special assistance is needed to participate in the Board meeting, please contact Board 
Recording Secretary, at (714) 558-5515.  Please call prior to the meeting to allow for 

reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting, per the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, Title II. 

 
 

Mission Statement 
 

We assure well-rounded learning experiences, which prepare our students for success in college and career. 
We engage, inspire, and challenge all of our students to become productive citizens, ethical leaders, and 

positive contributors to our community, country and a global society.  
 

 



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING INFORMATION 

 
 
Role of the Board 
 
The Governing Board is elected by the community to provide leadership and citizen oversight of the District’s 
schools.  The Board works with the Superintendent to fulfill its major role, including: 

1. Setting a direction for the District. 
2. Providing a basic organizational structure for the SAUSD by establishing policies. 
3. Ensuring accountability. 
4. Providing community leadership on behalf of the District and public education. 

 
Agenda Items provided to the Board of Education that include the description of items of business to be 
considered by the Board for approval at Board Meetings.  These items contain recommendations; the Board 
may exercise action they believe is best for the SAUSD. 
 
Board Meeting Documentation 
 
Any and all supporting materials are made available to the public by the Public Communication Office.  They 
may be reached from 8:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m. at (714) 558-5555. 
 
Public Comments at Board Meetings 
 
The agenda shall provide members of the public the opportunity to address the Board regarding agenda items 
before or during the Board’s consideration of the item.  The agenda also provides members of the public an 
opportunity to testify at regular meetings on matters which are not on the agenda but which are within the 
subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. 
 
Individual speakers are allowed three minutes to address the Board on agenda or nonagenda items.  The Board 
may limit the total time for public input on each item to 20 minutes.  With the Board’s consent, the Board 
President may increase or decrease the time allowed for public presentation, depending on the topic and the 
number of persons wishing to be heard.  The Board President may take a poll of speakers for or against a 
particular issue and may ask that additional persons speak only if they have something new to add. 
 
The Board urges that complaints and derogatory remarks against a District employee be made in writing on 
forms available in the Office of the Superintendent.  This allows the District and the Board to examine more 
carefully the complaint and to initiate the appropriate investigation. 
 
Persons wishing to address the Board on an item on the agenda or an item of business in the Board’s jurisdiction 
are requested to complete a card.  This card is to be submitted to the Recording Secretary.  The Request to 
Address the Board of Education cards are located on the table in the foyer. 
 
Televised Meeting Schedule 
 
The Regular Board of Education meetings are broadcast live on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each month 
on Channel 31.  The meeting is replayed on Tuesdays at 6:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 3:00 p.m., following the 
Board of Education meeting. 
 
Agenda and Minutes on District Website at http://www.sausd.us 
 
 

http://www.sausd.us/


BOARD OF EDUCATION SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT           TUESDAY 
REGULAR MEETING                         1601 EAST CHESTNUT AVENUE  MAY 26, 2015 
 SANTA ANA, CA  92701                         6:00 PM 

 
AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER  
 

5:00 P.M. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
• See Closed Session Agenda below for matters to be considered at this time. 

 
 
A. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in Closed Session pursuant to 

Government Code Section 54957: 
 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT: Assistant Superintendent, Facilities and 
Governmental Relations  

 
 
B. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in Closed Session pursuant to 

Government Code Section 54947.6: 
 
 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR:  SAEA, CSEA, SASPOA, CWA 
          Bargaining Units 

                            Mr. Mark A. McKinney, 
       District Negotiator 
 
 
The Board may exercise discretion to adjourn to Closed Session at any time during this meeting to 
instruct its representatives regarding negotiations with represented and unrepresented employees. 

 
 

RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING AND REPORT ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
THAT IS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED OUT AT THIS MEETING. 
 
 
RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING 
 
 
6:00 P.M. MEETING 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
 
 
 



RECOGNITION OF HIGH SCHOOL STUDENT AMBASSADORS 
• Century High School - Sofia Tam; César E. Chavez High School - Fallin Akbari; Godinez 

Fundamental High School - Paloma Dueñas; Lorin Griset Academy - Sindy Lopez; Middle 
College  High School - Pablo Daniel Jímenez; Saddleback High School - Giselle Cervantes; 
Santa Ana High School - Hanna Gálvan; Segerstrom  High School - Geovanna Medel; Valley 
High School - Cindy Cuevas 

 
 
RECOGNITIONS / ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

• Certificated Employee of the Month for May 2015, Carmen Irene Schuell 
 

• Classified Employee of the Month for May 2015, Caroline Rausch 
 

• Philharmonic Society of Orange County 
 

 
SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT 

 
 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS (Pursuant to Government Code 54954.3) 
• Individuals or groups may make presentations or bring matters to the Board's attention that is within the Board's 

subject matter jurisdiction.  Individual speakers are allowed three minutes to address the Board on agenda or 
non-agenda items. 

 
 
1.0 APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
1.1 Approval of Regular Board Minutes - May 12, 2015 

 
1.2 Orange County Department of Education Third Quarterly Report on School Accountability 

Report Card for Fiscal Year 2014-15 Pursuant to Williams Settlement Legislation 
 

1.3 Acceptance of Gifts in Accordance with Board Policy 3290 – Gifts, Grants, and Bequests 
 

1.4 Approval of Agreement between Jet Propulsion Laboratory, California Institute of 
Technology, and Santa Ana Unified School District for May 27, 2015 through September 1, 
2015 
 

1.5 Approval of Extended Field Trip(s) in Accordance with Board Policy (BP) 6153 – School-
Sponsored Trips and Administrative Regulation (AR) 6153.1 – Extended School-Sponsored 
Trips 
 

1.6 Approval of Exploring Computer Science Course for High School Students 
 

1.7 Approval of Master Contracts and/or Individual Service Agreements with Nonpublic Schools 
and Agencies for Students with Disabilities for 2014-15 School Year 
 



1.8 Approval of Submission of Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Improvement Act 
of 2006 Application for Funding for 2015-16 School Year 
 

1.9 Ratification of Purchase Order Summary and Listing of Orders $25,000 and Over for Period 
of April 29, 2015 through May 12, 2015 
 

1.10 Ratification of Expenditure Summary and Warrant Listing for Period of April 29, 2015 
through May 12, 2015 
 

1.11 Acknowledgement of Receipt of Orange County School of the Arts Charter School Charter 
Renewal Petition 
 

1.12 Adoption of Resolution No. 14/15-3059 – Authorization of Board Member’s Absence from 
Board Meeting 
 

1.13 Approval of Personnel Calendar Including the Transition of Specific Staff Members with such 
Topics as:  Hiring, Promotions, Transfers, Resignations, Retirements, and Leaves 
 
 

Items removed from Consent Calendar for discussion and separate action:  
___________________________________________ 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
• Material Revision of INDA Charter School Charter Petition 

 
• Charter Renewal Petition for Orange County School of the Arts Charter School 

 
• Charter Renewal Petition for Orange County Educational Arts Academy 

 
 

INFORMATION 
• ENCO Systems, Inc. for Closed Captioning of Board Meetings 

 
 

REGULAR AGENDA - ACTION ITEMS 
 

2.0 Adoption of Resolution No. 14/15-3060 – Establish a Special Reserve Fund for 
Postemployment Benefits 
 

3.0 Authorization to Reject and Rebid Bid Package 1001.1 at Fremont Elementary School Under 
Emergency Repair Program 
 

4.0 Authorization to Reject and Rebid Bid Package 1602 at Lathrop Intermediate School Under 
Emergency Repair Program 
 



5.0 Authorization to Award Contract for Concrete/Asphalt Project at Adams Elementary School 
Under Emergency Repair Program 
 

6.0 Authorization to Award Contracts for Roofing Projects at Lincoln, Martin, Remington, and 
Roosevelt Elementary Schools and Lathrop, Spurgeon, and Willard Intermediate Schools 
Under Emergency Repair Program 
 

7.0 Authorization to Award Contract for After-School Enrichment Program Provider Services for 
2015-18 School Years 
7.1 ACTIVE LEARNING 
7.2 BOYS & GIRLS CLUB OF SANTA ANA (FUTURE LEADERS) 
7.3 DISCOVERY CUBE 
7.4 BOYS & GIRLS CLUB OF SANTA ANA (ARTS & CULTURE) 
7.5 TOYAMA KARATE-DO 
7.6 JOSE HERNANDEZ MARIACHI ACADEMY 

 
8.0 Authorization to Extend Contracts Awarded through Request for Proposals or Bid for 2015-16 

Fiscal Year and Approval to Continue use of Previously Approved Piggyback Bids, California 
Multiple Award Schedule and Western States Contracting Alliance Agreements 
 

9.0 Authorization to Renew Annual Listing of Agreements/Contracts with Santa Ana Unified 
School District and Various Consultants Submitted for 2015-16 Fiscal Year 
 

10.0 Authorization to Renew Subscriptions with The Ware Group for 2015-16 School Year 
 

11.0 Authorization to Utilize Piggyback Contract for Purchase of Classroom and Office Furniture 
 

12.0 Approval of Head Start Budget Adjustment No. 1 for 2014-15 Program Year 
 

13.0 Approval of Agreement with Northwest Evaluation Association for 2014-15 School Year 
 

14.0 Approval of Data Sharing Agreement between Santa Ana Unified School District and WestEd 
for Period May 27, 2015 Through December 31, 2017 
 

15.0 Ratification of Personnel Agreement with Orange County Department of Education - Safe 
Schools Program for Services at Community Day School for April 27, 2015 through June 30, 
2015 
 

16.0 Approval of Partnership Proposal with Discovery Education Science Techbook for 2015-21 
School Years 
 

17.0 Approve Material Revision of INDA Charter School Charter Petition and Adopt Resolution 
No. 14/15-3061 
 

 
 



NEW AND REVISION OF EXISTING BOARD POLICIES  
The Board may direct the revision of any regulation which it finds inconsistent with Board policy.  (Board Bylaw 9312) 

• Board Policy (BP) 5125 – Student Records (Revised: First Reading) 
 

• Board Policy (BP) 5125.1 – Release of Directory Information (Revised: First Reading) 
 

• Board Policy (BP) 3312 – Contracts (Revised: Adoption) 
 
 

BOARD REPORTS 
 

  
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

FUTURE MEETING - The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Education will be held on Tuesday, 
June 9, 2015, at 6:00 p.m. 













AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 

May 26, 2015 

 
Board Meeting 

 

 
 

TITLE:   Philharmonic Society of Orange County 

 

ITEM:    Recognition 

SUBMITTED BY:  Rick Miller, Ph.D., Superintendent 

PREPARED BY: Rick Miller, Ph.D., Superintendent 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 
The purpose of this agenda item is to recognize the Philharmonic Society of Orange 

County for the many contributions they provide to SAUSD students. 

 
 

RATIONALE: 

 
The Philharmonic Society of Orange County provides a significant level of support for 

students in Santa Ana.  Members of the Philharmonic Society will be in attendance. 

 

 
FUNDING: 

 
Not Applicable 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Recognize the Philharmonic Society of Orange County. 

 
 
 

 
RM/cg 

















































































AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 

May 26, 2015 
 

Board Meeting 
 
TITLE: Orange County Department of Education Third Quarterly Report on 

School Accountability Report Card for Fiscal Year 2014-15 Pursuant 
to Williams Settlement Legislation 

  
ITEM: Consent 
SUBMITTED BY: David Haglund, Ed.D., Deputy Superintendent, Education Services  
PREPARED BY: David Haglund, Ed.D., Deputy Superintendent, Education Services 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to report to the Board the Orange County Department of 
Education (OCDE) third quarterly report on the School Accountability Report Card (SARC) 
verification pursuant to the Williams Settlement Legislation.  To ensure compliance, Orange 
County Department of Education (OCDE) is charged with the responsibility to conduct site 
reviews at decile 1-3 schools.  In addition, the County requires that school districts report the 
findings at a regularly scheduled meeting both quarterly and annual reports.   
 
The Orange County Department of Education has completed the 2014-15 Williams Settlement 
Legislation Third Quarterly Report as follows:  
 

• School Accountability Report Card (SARC) Verification:  The SARCs published in 
the 2014-15 school year were reviewed to determine the accuracy of the information 
reported for sufficiency of textbooks and instructional materials, and safety, cleanliness, 
and adequacy of school facilities.  No deficiencies were reported. 
 

• Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP) Verification:  No complaints were filed during 
the second quarter of 2014-15. 

 
 
RATIONALE: 
 
School districts are required to report the overall findings for decile 1-3 schools the findings at a 
regularly scheduled meeting both quarterly and annual reports pursuant to Williams Settlement 
Legislation.   
 
 
FUNDING: 
 
Not Applicable 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Presented for informational purposes. 
 
 
DH:lr 









 

AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 
May 26, 2015 

 
Board Meeting 

 
TITLE: Acceptance of Gifts in Accordance with Board Policy 3290 – Gifts, 

Grants, and Bequests 
 
ITEM: Consent 
SUBMITTED BY: David Haglund, Ed.D., Deputy Superintendent, Educational Services 
PREPARED BY: David Haglund, Ed.D., Deputy Superintendent, Educational Services 
   
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board acceptance of gifts, grants, and bequests on 
behalf of school sites and the District.  For purposes of determining the estimated value of a gift, 
the District does not perform an appraisal or other such valuation, rather simply reports the value 
of the gift as provided by the donor. 
 
 
RATIONALE: 
 
The Board may accept any bequest or gift of money or property on behalf of the District.  While 
greatly appreciating suitable donations, the Board discourages any gifts which may directly or 
indirectly impair its commitment to provide equal educational opportunities for all District 
students.  The Board shall carefully evaluate any conditions or restrictions imposed by the donor 
in light of District philosophy and operations.  If the Board believes the District will be unable to 
fully satisfy the donor’s conditions, the gift shall not be accepted.  Gift books and instructional 
materials shall be accepted only if they meet District criteria.  At the Superintendent or 
designee’s discretion, a gift may be used at a particular school. 
 
 
FUNDING: 
 
Not Applicable 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Accept gifts in accordance with Board Policy (BP) 3290 – Gifts, Grants, and Bequests. 
 
 
 
 
DH:lr 





 
 

SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
GIFTS RECOMMENDED FOR ACCEPTANCE – May 26, 2015 

 
 

 
For purposes of determining the estimated value of a gift, the District does not perform 
an appraisal or other such valuation, rather simply reports the value of the gift as 
provided by the donor. 
 
DH:lr 

School: Gift: Amount: Donor: Used for: 
 

     
Greenville 
Fundamental 
 

 $7,518 Greenville PFO 
Mr. John Palacio 
Santa Ana 

Field trip expenses 

Sepulveda 
Elementary 
 
 

 $2,500 Experian Affinity 
Ms. Courtney 
D’Alessandro 
Costa Mesa 

Health mural 

Wilson 
Elementary 

 $1,000 Century 21st J.R. 
Gibson 
Mr. John Coelho 
Santa Ana 

Soccer equipment 
and uniforms for 
student competition 
team 

     

MacArthur 
Fundamental 

 $500 MacArthur  
Parent Booster Club 
Santa Ana 

Field trip expenses 

     

Valley High 
School 

 $18,000 Crevier Family 
Foundation Fund 
Mr. Donnie Crevier 
Costa Mesa 

Tools for 
Automotive Academy 

Valley High 
School 

 $868 SOKA University of 
America 
Ms. Mary Kavanaugh 
Aliso Viejo 

Food, instructional 
supplies, gift 
incentives for 
staff and 
volunteers 

Valley High 
School 

 $3,350 Boys and Girls Club 
of Santa Ana 
Mr. Robert Santana 
Santa Ana 

Field trip expenses 

Valley High 
School 

 $1,500 CA Teachers 
Association 
Mr. Tony Orduño 
Burlingame 

End of the Year 
Banquet 

     
Santa Ana 
Unified School 
District 

 $4,000 Law Firm of 
Atkinson, Andelson, 
Loya, Ruud, & Romo 
Cerritos 

Scholarship program 

Santa Ana 
Unified School 
District 

Piano $500 Mr. and Mrs. Ken 
Erickson 
Irvine 

VAPA Department 

     
May 26,2015 
donations 

 $39,736   

2015 Total 
donations 

$185,570 $225,306   





 

AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 

May 26, 2015 

 

Board Meeting 
 

TITLE: Approval of Agreement between Jet Propulsion Laboratory, California 

Institute of Technology, and Santa Ana Unified School District for May 

27, 2015 through September 1, 2015 

 

ITEM: Consent 

SUBMITTED BY: Dawn Miller, Assistant Superintendent, Secondary Education 

PREPARED BY: Don Isbell, Director, Career Technical Education/ROP 
 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board approval of the agreement between the Jet 

Propulsion Laboratory (JPL), California Institute of Technology, and the Santa Ana Unified 

School District for May 27, 2015 through September 1, 2015.  This agreement will allow ten 

students to participate in a summer-high school internship program at JPL. 

 

 

RATIONALE:  
 

The internship program “JPL SpaceSHIP” will provide the ten students with an eight week, in-

depth experience in the world of high-tech engineering.  Jet Propulsion Laboratory has selected 

District students for an exclusive summer internship.   

 

This agreement supports LCAP goal 2.11 “Establish partnerships that ensure student success.”  

 

 

FUNDING: 

 

Not Applicable 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Approve the agreement between Jet Propulsion Laboratory, California Institute of Technology, 

and Santa Ana Unified School District for May 27, 2015 through September 1, 2015. 

 

 

 
DM:DI:sz 





 

005382.01001 

13034902.1 

SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is entered into as of May 27, 2015 by and between the California Institute of Technology 
(Caltech), a nonprofit educational institution incorporated in California, through its operating division, 
the Jet Propulsion Laboratory (JPL), and the Santa Ana Unified School District (SAUSD). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, JPL and SAUSD desire to provide career technical education and workplace skills to selected 
students of SAUSD (the "Students") in connection with this internship program (the "Program"). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual agreements contained herein, 
the parties hereto as follows: 

I. Costs and Resources: 

A. Each party shall bear all costs and expenses incurred by it in performing or in connection 
with this Partnership Agreement. There is no exchange of consideration.  Except where 
otherwise provided in this Partnership Agreement, each party shall provide its own 
equipment and facilities as necessary to implement the efforts described herein.  
Resources, including property, cannot be loaned or exchanged under this agreement. 
The activities of JPL under this agreement are funded and are to be performed under 
Caltech's prime contract with NASA, contract NNN12AA01C. The JPL Task Order which 
supports this effort is No. NNN13D205T, entitled "JPL Technical Support for the Planning 
and Implementation of NASA Headquarters' Education Portfolio." This Partnership 
Agreement does not constitute a binding or exclusive obligation on either party. Nothing 
in this Partnership Agreement shall be construed as consent by either party to enter into 
a contract, subcontract or other business relationship. 

II. Scope of Work: 

A. On an as-available, best-efforts basis, without warranties, without consideration and 
subject to the requirements of Prime Contract between Caltech and NASA, 
NNN12AA01C, and at no charge to SAUSD, JPL agrees to the following tasks: 

1. JPL shall designate and provide certain space (the "Premises") for the Program 
at facilities operated by JPL at no rent to SAUSD. The Premises shall be available 
for SAUSD's use for the Program at such times as shall be mutually agreed upon 
by the parties hereto. Students shall enter JPL's facilities only during the hours 
designated pursuant to this section and shall confine themselves to the 
Premises at all times unless specifically directed otherwise by JPL. 

2. JPL shall provide and maintain adequate workspace in the Premises for each 
Student, including the use of lavatories, as designated by JPL. JPL shall also 
provide all custodial services required in the Premises and all utilities required 
for the Program.  



 

005382.01001 

13034902.1 

 

3. JPL shall provide necessary supplies and materials for the Student's use in 
connection with the Program. JPL may, upon the request of SAUSD, provide 
additional equipment and procedures for the use of such equipment as is 
appropriate to the Program, provided JPL has agreed to provide such 
equipment. SAUSD shall be liable for any loss or theft or damage of any such 
materials, equipment or supplies. 

4. JPL shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless SAUSD, its officers, employees, 
and agents from and against any and all liability, loss, expenses (including 
reasonable attorneys' fees), or claims for injury or damages arising out of the 
performance of this Agreement, but only in proportion in and to the extent that 
such liability, loss, expense, attorneys' fees or claims for injury or damages are 
caused by or result from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of JPL, its 
officers, employee, and agents. 

B. On an as-available, best efforts basis, without warranties, without consideration and at 
no charge to JPL, SAUSD agrees to the following tasks: 

1. Students shall not displace any regular paid JPL employee. Students are not 
employees of JPL and shall not be employed, jointly employed or compensated 
by JPL to perform tasks which are included as part of the Program while the 
Students are enrolled in the Program. Students participating in the Program 
shall remain under the direction and control of SAUSD. 

2. SAUSD shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless JPL, its officers, employees, 
and agents from and against any and all liability, loss, expenses (including 
reasonable attorneys' fees), or claims for injury or damages arising out of the 
performance of this Agreement, but only in proportion in and to the extent that 
such liability, loss, expense, attorneys' fees or claims for injury or damages are 
caused by or result from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of 
SAUSD, its officers, employee, and agents.  

3. During the term of this Agreement, SAUSD shall maintain such public liability, 
property damage, workers' compensation and such other insurance as JPL may 
require from time to time in its sole discretion. (See Appendix A.) 

4. SAUSD shall provide qualified staff for the purpose of supervising instruction 
and monitoring progress of the Students and shall be responsible for the actions 
of Students participating in the Program while on any JPL premises. 

III. Term and Termination of the Partnership Agreement 

A. This Agreement shall be in effect for the period beginning May 27, 2015 to September 1, 
2015. This Agreement may be amended only by mutual written agreement of the 
parties hereto. If extended, the performance period of the Partnership Agreement may 
not exceed September 30, 2017, which is the expiration date of the JPL Task Order No. 
NNN13D205T, entitled "JPL Technical Support for the Planning and Implementation of 



 

005382.01001 

13034902.1 

NASA Headquarters' Education Portfolio." This Agreement is not a lease or a license, and 
may be terminated by either party for any reason upon receipt by either party or 
written notification (30) days prior to the date of such termination. 

IV. Education Code of California 

A. SAUSD represents and warrants that the Program shall be conducted pursuant to 
Section 51769 of the Education Code of California and Sections 10090 and 10107, as 
applicable, of the California Administrative Code, Title 5. 

V. Publicity/Publication 

A. SAUSD will not use the name or logos of the "California Institute of Technology," 
"Caltech," "Jet Propulsion Laboratory," "JPL," "National Aeronautics and Space 
Administration," or "NASA" in any advertising or publicity material, or make any form of 
representation or statement in relation to work performed under this Partnership 
Agreement that would constitute an express or implied endorsement by Caltech, JPL or 
NASA of any commercial product, without written approval. Requests for written 
approval to use Caltech or JPL's name(s) or logo(s) under this MOU should be directed to 
JPL Intellectual Property Office at JPL. Requests for written approval to use NASA's name 
or logo should be sent to NASA directly. 

VI. Signature Authority 

A. The individuals executing this Agreement on behalf of the parties hereto represent and 
warrant that they are duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf 
of such entities. 

VII. Governing Law 

A. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of California, exclusive of its choice of law provisions. Any dispute arising out of or 
in connection with this Agreement shall be resolved by the judicial reference proceeding 
pursuant to California CCP 638. The judicial referee shall be empowered to hear and 
resolve all legal and factual issues. 

VIII. Entire Agreement  

A. This Agreement constituted the entire agreement between the parties regarding the 
subject matter hereof, and supersedes any and all prior discussions, negotiations or 
agreements, whether written or oral. 

 

 

 



 

005382.01001 

13034902.1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first set forth 
above. 

SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT JET PROPULSION LABORATORY 

SIGNATURE:                                                     SIGNATURE:                                      
NAME:  Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., CBO      NAME:             Blaine Baggett    

TITLE: Deputy Superintendent, Operations TITLE: Director, Communications and Education 

DATE:                                                                  DATE:                                                        



 

AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 

May 26, 2015 

 

Board Meeting 
 

TITLE: Approval of Extended Field Trip(s) in Accordance with Board Policy 

(BP) 6153 – School-Sponsored Trips and Administrative Regulation 

(AR) 6153.1 – Extended School-Sponsored Trips 
 

ITEM:  Consent 

SUBMITTED BY:  Dawn Miller, Assistant Superintendent, Secondary Education 

PREPARED BY: Dawn Miller, Assistant Superintendent, Secondary Education 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 

The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board approval of extended field trip(s) for the 

school(s) listed. 
 

 

RATIONALE: 
 

The Board recognizes that school-sponsored trips are important components of student 

development.  In addition to supplementing and enriching classroom learning experiences, such 

trips encourage new interests among students, make them more aware of community resources, 

and help students relate school experiences to the outside world.  The Board believes that careful 

planning can greatly enhance the value and safety of such trips.  All trips involving out-of-state or 

overnight travel shall require prior approval of the Board.  Approval is contingent upon national 

and international safety and security at the time of the trip. 
 

Board Policy (BP) 6153 and Administrative Regulation (AR) 6153.1 require a parent waiver for 

school-sponsored trips.  Trained staff will be employed by the hosting organization and will 

provide 24-hour supervision to the students.  Parents have given permission for students to attend 

the trip under this provision.  No eligible student will be denied the opportunity to attend.   
 

 

FUNDING: 
 

Not Applicable 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Approve the extended field trip(s) in accordance with Board Policy (BP) 6153 – School-Sponsored 

Trips and Administrative Regulation (AR) 6153.1 – Extended School-Sponsored Trips. 
 

 

 

 

DM:sz 





Funding and costs for participation in educational activities related to 

field trips are in compliance with the ACLU settlement. 

 

 

SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT – EXTENDED FIELD TRIPS 

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL – May 26, 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: Schools/Location: 

 

Funding and 

Cost: 

Student(s): Staff and 

Chaperone: 

 

June 19-21, 2015 

(Friday - Sunday) 

 

Santa Ana High School 

NJROTC Sailing 

Academy 

Fiddlers Cove Mariner 

Coronado 

 

$180.00 per 

student (s) 

(cost paid by 

NJROTC) 

 

2 

 

1 

 

June 19-27, 2015 

(Friday - Saturday) 

 

 

 

 

 

Valley High School 

78th Annual Boys State 

Leadership Conference 

CSU 

Sacramento 

 

$420.00 per 

student (s) 

(cost paid by 

General 

funds) 

 

1 

 

1 

 

June 26-28, 2015 

(Friday - Sunday) 

 

Santa Ana High School 

Lake Arrowhead Dual 

Meet Wrestling Camp 

Rim of the World High 

School 

Lake Arrowhead 

 

 

$90.00 per 

student (s) 

(cost paid by 

ASB 

Wrestling) 

 

20 

 

6 

 

June 28-July 3, 2015 

(Sunday - Friday) 

 

Valley High School 

72nd Annual girls 

State Leadership 

Conference 

McKenna College 

Claremont 

 

 

$400.00 per 

student (s) 

(cost paid by 

General 

funds) 

 

1 

 

1 

 

July 24-27, 2015 

(Friday - Monday) 

 

Century High School 

Girls Volleyball 

Foothill Invitational 

Various High Schools 

Santa Clarita 

 

 

$105.56 per 

student (s) 

(cost paid by  

ASB 

Volleyball) 

 

12 

 

4 

 

August 11-14, 2015 

(Tuesday - Friday) 

 

 

 

 

Saddleback High 

School 

55
th
 Annual Orange 

County Leadership 

Conference 

UC Santa Barbara 

Santa Barbara 

 

 

$300.00 per 

student (s) 

(cost paid by 

fundraising) 

 

11 

 

2 



Funding and costs for participation in educational activities related to 

field trips are in compliance with the ACLU settlement. 

 

 

 

Date: Schools/Location: 

 

Funding and 

Cost: 

Student(s): Staff and 

Chaperone: 

 

August 12-14, 2015 

(Wednesday - Friday) 

 

 

 

 

Santa Ana High School 

55th Annual Orange 

County Leadership 

Conference 

UC Santa Barbara 

Santa Barbara 

 

 

$255.00 per 

student (s) 

(cost paid by 

General 

funds) 

 

27 

 

4 



Agenda Item Backup Sheet 
 

 

 

ITEM: Request of extended field trip for Santa Ana High School 

NJROTC cadets to participate in the NJROTC Sailing Academy 

at Fiddlers Cove Marina’s Navy Base in Coronado, CA.  The 

trip will be on June 19-21, 2015. 

 

 

OVERVIEW: Santa Ana High School is requesting their NJROTC cadets to 

participate in the NJROTC Sailing Academy in Coronado, CA. 

 

 

RATIONALE: This is our annual Area Eleven Sailing Academy, sponsored by 

the Chief of Naval Education and Training (CNET). 

Participating cadets will remain in a controlled atmosphere 

during their stay, although some limited free time may be 

available.  The purpose of the Sail Academy is to provide cadets 

with hands on training that will further prepare them for 

leadership roles in their respective units.  The Sail Academy 

experience will further their training in areas of leadership, team 

work, communications, decision making, critical thinking skills, 

and physical fitness.  Classroom training will include theory of 

sailing, parts of a sail boat, seamanship, nautical rules of the 

road, charting, sail boat racing, and written examinations.  On 

the water skills will include swim/drown-proofing, paddle boat 

handling (canoes, kayaks, and Rubber Hard Inflatable Boats), 

small sail boat handling (16’ sail boats), large sail boat handling 

(27’ fixed keel sail boats), and racing on the 27 foot Catalina 

sail boat. 

 

PARTICIPANTS: 2 students and 1 chaperone (1 certificated and numerous 

NJROTC instructors). 

 

 

COSTS: $180.00 per student – To include lodging, meals, and travel. 

 

 

*FUNDING: Cost paid by student & NJROTC. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the request for Santa Ana High School NJROTC 

cadets to participate in the NJROTC Sailing Academy at 

Fiddlers Cove Marina’s Navy Base in Coronado, CA on June 

19-21, 2015.  

 

 

 No student shall be prevented from making a trip because of a lack of sufficient funds.  No trip shall be authorized if 

any student would be excluded from participation because of a lack of sufficient funds.  (Education Code 35330) 

 



Agenda Item Backup Sheet 
 

 

 

ITEM: Request of extended field trip for a Valley High School student 

to attend the 78
th
 Annual Boys State Leadership Conference at 

California State University (CSU), Sacramento.  The trip will 

be on June 19-27, 2015. 

 

 

OVERVIEW: Valley High School is requesting approval for 1 student to go to 

the 78
th
 Annual Boys State Leadership Conference in 

Sacramento, California. 

 

 

RATIONALE: One exceptional male delegate is selected to attend the 

conference at the end of his junior year.  This is a nationally 

recognized program with a mission for participants to learn 

about city, county, and state government structure and 

responsibilities. 

 

 

PARTICIPANTS: 1 student and 1 chaperone (Jess Lawson, conference trip 

supervisor at Leadership Conference). 

 

 

COSTS: $420 per student - To include lodging, meals, and transportation. 

 

 

FUNDING: Cost paid by General funds. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the request of the extended field trip for a Valley High 

School student to attend the 78
th
 Annual Boys State Leadership 

Conference at California State University, Sacramento on June 

19-27, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 No student shall be prevented from making a trip because of a lack of sufficient funds.  No trip shall be authorized if 

any student would be excluded from participation because of a lack of sufficient funds.  (Education Code 35330) 

 



Agenda Item Backup Sheet 
 

 

 

ITEM: Request of extended field trip for Santa Ana High School 

wrestlers to participate in the Lake Arrowhead Dual Meet 

Wrestling Camp at the Rim of the World High School in Lake 

Arrowhead, CA and camp at Dogwood campgrounds in 

Rimforest, CA.  The trip will be on June 26-28, 2015. 

 

 

OVERVIEW: Santa Ana High School is requesting their wrestlers to 

participate in the Lake Arrowhead Dual Meet Wrestling Camp 

in Lake Arrowhead, CA and camp at Dogwood campgrounds in 

Rimforest, CA. 

 

 

RATIONALE: The camp is to help athletes improve and gain experience/skills 

in the art of wrestling.  Wrestlers will also be able to go hiking 

and swimming with their wrestling team mates. 

 

PARTICIPANTS: 20 students and 6 chaperones (2 certificated and 4 classified). 

 

 

COSTS: $90.00 per student – To include lodging, meals, and travel. 

 

 

*FUNDING: Cost paid by ASB Wrestling funds. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the request for Santa Ana High School wrestlers to 

participate in the Lake Arrowhead Dual Meet Wrestling Camp 

at the Rim of the World High School in Lake Arrowhead, CA 

and camp at Dogwood campgrounds in Rimforest, CA on June 

26-28, 2015.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 No student shall be prevented from making a trip because of a lack of sufficient funds.  No trip shall be authorized if 
any student would be excluded from participation because of a lack of sufficient funds.  (Education Code 35330) 

 



Agenda Item Backup Sheet 
 

 

 

ITEM: Request of extended field trip for a Valley High School student 

to attend the 72
nd

 Annual Girls State Leadership Conference at 

McKenna College in Claremont, California.  The trip will be on 

June 28-July 3, 2015. 

 

 

OVERVIEW: Valley High School is requesting approval for 1 student to 

attend to 72
nd

 Annual Girls State Leadership Conference at 

McKenna College in Claremont, California. 

 

 

RATIONALE: For 72 years, girls have traveled to the Girls State Leadership 

Conference, each summer in every state, to learn not only about 

the structure and responsibilities of state government, but also 

about themselves.  Delegates learn about the importance of 

meaningful participation on all levels: city, county, and state by 

living for a week as a self-governing citizen. 

 

 

PARTICIPANTS: 1 student and 1 chaperone (Valarie Hardy-program director at 

State Leadership Conference). 

 

 

COSTS: $400.00 per student - To include lodging, meals, and auto 

 

 

FUNDING: Cost paid by General funds. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the request of the extended field trip for a Valley High 

School student to attend the 72
nd

 Annual Girls State Leadership 

Conference at McKenna College in Claremont, California on 

June 28-July 3, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 No student shall be prevented from making a trip because of a lack of sufficient funds.  No trip shall be authorized if 

any student would be excluded from participation because of a lack of sufficient funds.  (Education Code 35330) 

 



Agenda Item Backup Sheet 
 

 

 

ITEM: Request of extended field trip for Century High School girls’ 

volleyball students to participate in the Girls Volleyball Foothill 

Invitational in Santa Clarita, CA.  The trip will be on July 24-

27, 2015. 

 

 

OVERVIEW: Century High School is requesting their girls’ volleyball 

students to participate in the Girls’ Volleyball Foothill 

Invitational in Santa Clarita, CA. 

 

 

RATIONALE: Century High School students will travel to Santa Clarita to 

represent their school and the District in the Foothill 

Invitational Volleyball Tournament.  The volleyball players will 

be competing against schools from all over California.  

Century’s other goal is that this experience for their players will 

instill a sense of team effort, sportsmanship, friendly 

competition, and camaraderie.  This trip will also provide the 

athletes the opportunity to be great representatives of Century 

High School in another city. 

 

 

PARTICIPANTS: 12 students and 4 chaperones (1 certificated and 3 classified). 

 

 

COSTS: $105.56 per student – To include lodging, meals, and travel. 

 

 

*FUNDING: Cost paid by ASB Volleyball funds. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the request for Century High School girls’ volleyball 

students to participate in the Girls Volleyball Foothill 

Invitational in Santa Clarita, CA in Santa Clarita, CA on July 

24-27, 2015.  

 

 

 No student shall be prevented from making a trip because of a lack of sufficient funds.  No trip shall be authorized if 
any student would be excluded from participation because of a lack of sufficient funds.  (Education Code 35330) 

 



Agenda Item Backup Sheet 
 

 

 

ITEM: Request of extended field trip for Saddleback High School 

students to participate in the ASB Leadership Conference at the 

University of California, Santa Barbara.  The trip will be on 

August 11-14, 2015. 

 

 

OVERVIEW: Saddleback High School is requesting their students to 

participate in the ASB Leadership Conference in Santa Barbara, 

CA. 

 

 

RATIONALE: The field trip will provide students the opportunity to attend 

teambuilding workshops and to learn the fundamentals of their 

ASB position that will enhance their leadership skills.  They 

will also be able to participate in activities with students from 

other schools.   

 

 

PARTICIPANTS: 11 students and 2 chaperones (2 certificated). 

 

 

COSTS: $300.00 per student – To include lodging, meals, and travel. 

 

 

*FUNDING: Cost paid by fundraising. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the request for Saddleback High School students to 

participate in the ASB Leadership Conference at the University 

of California, Santa Barbara on August 11-14, 2015.  

 

 

 No student shall be prevented from making a trip because of a lack of sufficient funds.  No trip shall be authorized if 

any student would be excluded from participation because of a lack of sufficient funds.  (Education Code 35330) 

 



Agenda Item Backup Sheet 
 

 

 

ITEM: Request of extended field trip for Santa Ana High School 

students to participate in the ASB Leadership Conference at the 

University of California, Santa Barbara.  The trip will be on 

August 12-14, 2015. 

 

 

OVERVIEW: Santa Ana High School is requesting their students to 

participate in the ASB Leadership Conference in Santa Barbara, 

CA. 

 

 

RATIONALE: The field trip will provide students the opportunity to attend 

teambuilding workshops and to learn the fundamentals of their 

ASB position that will enhance their leadership skills.  They 

will also be able to participate in activities with students from 

other schools.   

 

 

PARTICIPANTS: 27 students and 4 chaperones (2 certificated and 2 classified). 

 

 

COSTS: $255.00 per student – To include lodging, meals, and travel. 

 

 

*FUNDING: Cost paid by General funds. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the request for Santa Ana High School students to 

participate in the ASB Leadership Conference at the University 

of California, Santa Barbara on August 12-14, 2015.  

 

 

 No student shall be prevented from making a trip because of a lack of sufficient funds.  No trip shall be authorized if 

any student would be excluded from participation because of a lack of sufficient funds.  (Education Code 35330) 

 





 

AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 

May 26, 2015 

 

Board Meeting 
 

TITLE: Approval of Exploring Computer Science Course for High School 

Students 

 

ITEM: Consent 

SUBMITTED BY: Dawn Miller, Assistant Superintendent, Secondary Education 

PREPARED BY: Don Isbell, Director, Career Technical Education/ROP 
 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board approval for the Exploring Computer Science 

course for high school students. 

 

 

RATIONALE:  
 

This is the first course in the Information and Computer Technology (ICT) Sector Pathways.  

Students are introduced to the foundation of Computer Science using an inquiry-based, hands-on 

approach to understand and solving real-world computing problems.  Instruction includes the 

areas of human computer interaction, problem solving, web design, programming, data analysis, 

and robotics.   

 

This course supports LCAP goal 1.7 “Expand access to math and science programs” and goal 1.8 

“Increase availability of CTE and ROP courses and academies.”  

 

 

FUNDING: 

 

Not Applicable 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Approve the agreement the Exploring Computer Science course for high school students. 

 

 

 
DM:DI:sz 





 

Santa Ana Unified School District 

 

COURSE OUTLINE 

 

Course Title:  Exploring Computer Science   District Course #:     

Department:   CTE/ROP     Grade Level:  10-12 

Course Length:  180 hours      

Prerequisites:     Recommended Algebra I 

Course Description:   

This is the first course in the Information and Computer Technology (ICT) Sector Pathways. 

Students are introduced to the foundations of Computer Science using an inquiry-based, hands-

on approach to understand and solve real-world computing problems.  Instruction includes the 

areas of Human Computer Interaction, Problem Solving, Web Design, Programming, Data 

Analysis, and Robotics.  Emphasis is placed on the creative, collaborative, interdisciplinary, and 

problem-solving nature of computing.  Upon completing the course, students will be prepared to 

pursue more advanced courses in the Pathway and to further their exploration of college and 

careers in the ICT Industry.  NOTE: This course follows the national course outline developed 

by UCLA and LAUSD. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Santa Ana Unified School District 

 

EXPLORING COMPUTER SCIENCE 
 

SECTION 1 – INTRODUCTION AND ORIENTATION 

 

A. OBSERVE DISTRICT RULES, REGULATIONS, AND POLICIES.  

B. EXPLAIN CLASS REQUIREMENTS AND STUDENT EXPECTATIONS.  

C. DEMONSTRATE EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS.  

 

SECTION II – CONTENT AREA SKILLS  

A. COMPUTING AND SOCIETY  
 

1. Describe ways in which computing enables innovation.  

2.  Discuss the ways in which innovations, enabled by computing, affect communication and problem 

solving.  

3. Analyze how computing influences, and is influenced, by the cultures for which they are designed 

and the cultures in which they are used.  

4. Analyze how social and economic values influence the design and development of computing 

innovations.  

5. Discuss issues of equity, access, and power in the context of computing resources.  

6.  Communicate the legal and ethical concerns raised by computational innovations.  

7.  Discuss privacy and security concerns related to computational innovations.  

8.  Explain positive and negative effects of technological innovations on human culture. 

 

B. HUMAN COMPUTER INTERACTION  
 

1.  Analyze the characteristics of hardware components to determine the applications for which they 

can be used.  

2.  Use appropriate tools and methods to execute internet searches which yield requested data.  

3.  Evaluate the results of web searches and the reliability of information found on the Internet.  

4.  Explain the differences between tasks that can and cannot be accomplished with a computer.  

5.  Analyze the effects of computing on society within economic, social, and cultural contexts.  

6.  Communicate legal and ethical concerns raised by computing innovation.  

7.  Explain the implications of communication as data exchange.  

 

C. PROBLEM SOLVING ALGORITHMS AND ABSTRACTION  
 

1.  Name and explain the steps they use in solving a problem.  

2.  Solve a problem by applying appropriate problem-solving techniques.  

3.  Express a solution using standard design tools.  

4.  Determine if a given algorithm successfully solves a stated problem.  

5.  Create algorithms that meet specified objectives.  

6.  Explain the connections between binary numbers and computers.  

7.  Summarize the behavior of an algorithm.  

8.  Compare the tradeoffs between different algorithms for solving the same problem.  

9.  Explain the characteristics.  

 

 

 

 



 

Santa Ana Unified School District 

 

D. WEB DESIGN  
1.  Create web pages to address specified objectives.  

 

COMPETENCIES  

 
2.  Create web pages with a practical, personal, and/or societal purpose.  

3.  Select appropriate techniques when creating web pages.  

4.  Use abstraction to separate style from content in web page design and development.  

5.  Describe the use of a website with appropriate documentation.  

 

E. INTRODUCTION TO PROGRAMMING  
 

1.  Use appropriate algorithms to solve a problem.  

2.  Design, code, test, and execute a program that corresponds to a set of specifications.  

3.  Select appropriate programming structures.  

4.  Locate and correct errors in a program.  

5.  Explain how a particular program functions.  

6.  Justify the correctness of a program.  

7.  Create programs with practical, personal, and/or societal intent.  

 

F. COMPUTING AND DATA ANALYSIS  
 

1.  Describe the features of appropriate data sets for specific problems.  

2.  Apply a variety of analysis techniques to large data sets.  

3.  Use computers to find patterns in data and test hypotheses about data.  

4.  Compare different analysis techniques and discuss the tradeoffs among them.  

5.  Justify conclusions drawn from data analysis.  

 

G. ROBOTICS  
 

1.  Identify the criteria that describe a robot and determine if something is a robot.  

2.  Match the actions of the robot to the corresponding parts of the program.  

3.  Build, code, and test a robot that solves a stated problem.  

4.  Explain ways in which different hardware designs affect the function of a machine.  

5.  Describe the tradeoffs among multiple ways to program a robot to achieve a goal. 

 

 SECTION III – ACADEMICS & CAREER PREPARATION/ANCHOR STANDARDS  
 

ANCHOR STANDARD 1: ACADEMICS  

 

Analyze and apply appropriate academic standards required for successful industry sector pathway 

completion leading to postsecondary education and employment.  

Common Core State Standards  

ELA College and Career Readiness Anchor Standards CCRA  

 

READING  

 

R.1. Read closely to determine what the text says explicitly and to make logical inferences from it; 

cite specific textual evidence when writing or speaking to support conclusions drawn from the text.  



 

Santa Ana Unified School District 

 

R.2. Determine central ideas or themes of a text and analyze their development; summarize the key 

supporting details and ideas. 

 

WRITING  

 

W.4. Produce clear and coherent writing in which the development, organization, and style are 

appropriate to task, purpose, and audience.  

 

COMPETENCIES  

 
W.6. Use technology, including the Internet, to produce and publish writing and to interact and 

collaborate with others.  

W.7. Conduct short as well as more sustained research projects based on focused questions, 

demonstrating understanding of the subject under investigation.  

W.8. Gather relevant information from multiple print and digital sources, assess the credibility and 

accuracy of each source, and integrate the information while avoiding plagiarism.  

W.10. Write routinely over extended time frames (time for research, reflection, and revision) and 

shorter time frames (a single sitting or a day or two) for a range of tasks, purposes, and audiences.  

 

SPEAKING AND LISTENING  

 

SL.1. Prepare for and participate effectively in a range of conversations and collaborations with 

diverse partners, building on others’ ideas, and expressing their own clearly and persuasively.  

SL.2. Integrate and evaluate information presented in diverse media and formats, including visually, 

quantitatively, and orally.  

SL.3. Evaluate a speaker’s point of view, reasoning, and use of evidence and rhetoric.  

 

PRESENTATION OF KNOWLEDGE AND IDEAS  

 

SL.4. Present information, findings, and supporting evidence such that listeners can follow the line of 

reasoning and the organization, development, and style are appropriate to task, purpose, and 

audience.  

SL.5. Make strategic use of digital media and visual displays of data to express information and 

enhance understanding of presentations.  

 

LANGUAGE  

 

L.6. Acquire and use accurately a range of general academic and domain-specific words and phrases 

sufficient for reading, writing, speaking, and listening at the college and career readiness level.  

Demonstrate independence in gathering vocabulary knowledge when considering a word or phrase 

important to comprehension or expression.  

 

READING STANDARDS FOR INFORMATIONAL TEXT RI  

 

9-10.3 Analyze how the author unfolds an analysis or series of ideas or events, including the order in 

which the points are made, how they are introduced and developed, and the connections that are 

drawn between them.  

 

 



 

Santa Ana Unified School District 

 

STANDARDS FOR MATHEMATICAL PRACTICE  

 

MP.1. Make sense of problems and persevere in solving them.  

MP.2. Reason abstractly and quantitatively.  

MP.3. Construct viable arguments and critique the reasoning of others.  

MP.4. Model with mathematics.  

MP.5. Use appropriate tools strategically.  

 

CREATING EQUATIONS A-CED  

 

3. Represent constraints by equations or inequalities, and by systems of equations and/or inequalities, 

and interpret solutions as viable or nonviable options in a modeling context.  For example, represent 

inequalities describing nutritional and cost constraints on combinations of different foods.  

 

BUILDING FUNCTIONS F-BF  

 

1.  Write a function that describes a relationship between two quantities.  

a. Determine an explicit expression, a recursive process, or steps for calculation from a context.  

 

INTERPRETING CATEGORICAL AND QUANTITATIVE DATA S-ID 

  

1.  Represent data with plots on the real number line (dot plots, histograms, and box plots).  

3.  Interpret differences in shape, center, and spread in the context of the data sets, accounting for 

possible effects of extreme data points (outliers). 

 

COMPETENCIES 

 

CONDITIONAL PROBABILITY AND THE RULES OF PROBABILITY S-CP  
1. Describe events as subsets of a sample space (the set of outcomes) using characteristics (or 

categories) of the outcomes, or as unions, intersections, or complements of other events (“or,” 

“and,” “not”).  

 

MAKING INFERENCES AND JUSTIFYING CONCLUSIONS S-IC  

 

4.  Use data from a sample survey to estimate a population mean or proportion; develop a margin of 

error through the use of simulation models for random sampling.  

 

ANCHOR STANDARD 2: COMMUNICATIONS 

 

Language Standard: Acquire and use accurately general academic and domain-specific words and 

phrases, sufficient for reading, writing, speaking, and listening at the (career and college) readiness 

level.  Demonstrate independence in gathering vocabulary knowledge when considering a word or 

phrase important to comprehension or expression.  

 

ANCHOR STANDARD 3: CAREER PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT  

 

Speaking and Listening Standard: Integrate multiple sources of information presented in diverse 

formats and media (e.g., visually, quantitatively, orally) in order to make informed decisions and 



 

Santa Ana Unified School District 

 

solve problems, evaluating the credibility and accuracy of each source and noting any discrepancies 

among the data.  

 

ANCHOR STANDARD 4: TECHNOLOGY  

 

Writing Standard: Use technology, including the Internet, to produce, publish, and update individual 

or shared writing products in response to ongoing feedback – including new arguments and 

information.  

 

ANCHOR STANDARD 5: PROBLEM SOLVING AND CRITICAL THINKING  

 

Writing Standard: Conduct short, as well as, more sustained research projects to answer a question 

(including a self-generated question) or solve a problem, narrow or broaden the inquiry when 

appropriate, synthesize multiple sources on the subject demonstrating understanding of the subject 

under investigation.  

 

ANCHOR STANDARD 6: HEALTH AND SAFETY  

 

Reading Standards for Science and Technical Subjects: Determine the meaning of symbols, key 

words, and other domain-specific words and phrases as they are used in a specific scientific or 

technical context.  

 

ANCHOR STANDARD 7: RESPONSIBILITY AND FLEXIBILITY  

 

Speaking and Listening Standard: Initiate and participate effectively in a range of collaborative 

discussions (one-on-one, in groups, and teacher-led) with diverse partners, building on others ideas, 

and expressing their own clearly and persuasively.  

 

ANCHOR STANDARD 8: ETHICS AND LEGAL RESPONSIBILITIES  

 

Speaking and Listening Standard: Respond thoughtfully to diverse perspectives and synthesize 

comments, claims, and evidence made on all sides of an issue.  Resolve contradictions when possible 

and determine what additional information or research is required to deepen the investigation or 

complete the work.  

 

COMPETENCIES  
 

ANCHOR STANDARD 9: LEADERSHIP AND TEAMWORK  

 

Speaking and Listening Standard: Work with peers to promote civil, democratic discussions and 

decision-making, set clear goals and deadlines, and establish individual roles as needed.  

 

ANCHOR STANDARD 10: TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS  

 

Writing Standard: Use technology, including the Internet, to produce, publish, and update individual 

or shared writing products in response to ongoing feedback, including new arguments and 

information.  

 

 



 

Santa Ana Unified School District 

 

ANCHOR STANDARD 11: DEMONSTRATION AND APPLICATION  

 

Demonstrate and apply the knowledge and skills contained in the industry-sector anchor standards, 

pathway standards, and performance indicators in the classroom, laboratory, workplace setting, and 

the career-technical student organization. 

 





 

AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 
May 26, 2015 

 
Board Meeting 

 
TITLE: Approval of Master Contracts and/or Individual Service Agreements 

with Nonpublic Schools and Agencies for Students with Disabilities 
for 2014-15 School Year 

 
ITEM: Consent 
SUBMITTED BY: Doreen Lohnes, Assistant Superintendent, Support Services 
PREPARED BY: Doreen Lohnes, Assistant Superintendent, Support Services 
 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board approval of Individualized Education Programs 
(IEP) services for students with disabilities.  These students require services that address 
academic, social-emotional, and other unique needs as identified in their IEPs.  The IEP teams 
recommended placement at a nonpublic school and/or a nonpublic agency for services as 
necessary, pursuant to an IEP or settlement agreement. 
 
 
RATIONALE: 
 
The District is required to provide appropriate education, at no cost to parents, for all students 
with disabilities who reside within the District in accordance with their IEPs.  If a program is not 
available, necessary contract services are required through a private provider. 
 
 
FUNDING: 
 
Special Education:  Not to exceed $5,615 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approve the master contracts and/or individual service agreements with nonpublic schools and 
agencies for students with disabilities for the 2014-15 school year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DL:kq 





Master Contracts and/or Individual Service Agreements with Nonpublic Schools and 
Agencies for Students with Disabilities for 2014-15 School Year 

 
 

Board Meeting: May 26, 2015 
 
 
 
Student ID# Amount Master Contract and Individual Service 

Agreement for Nonpublic School/Agency 
367981 $4,715 Approach Learning and Assessment Center, 

Inc. dba Olive Crest 
324195 $900 Ocean View School 

 





 

AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 

May 26, 2015 

 

Board Meeting 
 

TITLE: Approval of Submission of Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical 

Education Improvement Act of 2006 Application for Funding for  

2015-16 School Year 

 

ITEM: Consent 

SUBMITTED BY: Dawn Miller, Assistant Superintendent, Secondary Education 

PREPARED BY: Don Isbell, Director, Career Technical Education/ROP 
 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board approval of the submission of the Carl D. 

Perkins Career and Technical Education Improvement Act of 2006 (Perkins IV) application for 

funding for the 2015-16 school year.   

 

 

RATIONALE:  
 

The District has been allocated $506,533 for Career Technical Education (CTE) through funding 

from Perkins IV.  The California Department of Education has granted authorization to expend 

the funds effective July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. 

 

The focus of the grant will be to expand and enhance Science, Technology, Engineering, and 

Math (STEM) related college and career pathways in the engineering/product development 

industry sector.  In addition, funds will be allocated to promote the continuous improvement of 

CTE programs and services through the alignment of Common Core Standards, curricula, 

assessments, articulation agreements, and professional development ensuring that all students 

have access to CTE courses and career pathways.    

 

This course supports LCAP goal 1.7 “Expand access to math and science programs” and goal 1.8 

“Increase availability of CTE and ROP courses and academies.”  

 

 

FUNDING: 

 

Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Improvement Act of 2006:  $506,533 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Approve the submission of the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Improvement 

Act of 2006 application for funding for the 2015-16 school year. 
 
 
DM:DI:sz 





GRANT SUMMARY 
 

 

 

Title: 

 

 

Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Improvement Act of 2006 

Application for Funding for 2015-16 School Year  

 

 

Funding Source: 

 

Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Improvement Act  of 2006 

 

Due Date: 

 

 

May 2015 

 

Contact Person: 

 

Don Isbell, Director, Career Technical Education/ROP 

 

 

Amount/Duration: 

 

CA Department of Education will expend funds of $506,533 from July 1, 2015 

through June 30, 2016 

 

 

Target Population (e.g., Grade Level/s): 

 

 

Grades 9-12 

 

 

Budget Impact: 

 

Perkins IV Grant Award: $506,533 

 

 

Indirect Rate: 

 

 

5.00% 

 

 

Personnel Impact: 

 

CTE administration, teachers, and classified staff are involved in the administration 

of the grant. 

 

 

Survey Questions: 

 

 

None without prior District approval and parent consent 

 

Grant Program Description 

Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Improvement Act of 2006 (Perkins IV) authorizes federal funding assistance to 

secondary career technical education (CTE) programs for nine fiscal years beginning on July 1, 2007, and ending on June 30, 

2016. As a condition of receiving these funds, eligible recipients must submit fiscal year plans that provide required 

descriptions and assurances related to the administration and use of the funds.  

 

Goals/Objectives: 

 

 

The main goals for the 2015-16 program year includes: 

 Continue to expand the CTE programs of study in Engineering at both our 

high schools and intermediate schools. 

 Update automotive labs to meet current industry expectations and to 

expand options for students to receive industry recognized certifications. 

 Incorporate secondary education and postsecondary education elements in 

staff and curriculum development. 

 Include academic and CTE content in a coordinated, non-duplicative 

progression of courses in all future course development. 

 Expand opportunities for students to earn industry-recognized credentials 

or certificates at the postsecondary level. 

 

Activities: 

 

 

Ensure that all students have access to CTE courses and career pathways through 

the alignment of Common Core State Standards, curricula, assessments, 

articulation agreements, and professional development. 

 





AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 

May 26, 2015 

 

Board Meeting 
 

TITLE: Ratification of Purchase Order Summary and Listing of Orders 

$25,000 and Over for Period of April 29, 2015 through May 12, 2015 

 

ITEM:  Consent 

SUBMITTED BY: Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

PREPARED BY: Jonathan Geiszler, Director, Purchasing and Stores 

 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board ratification of the Purchase Order Summary and 

Listing of Orders $25,000 and over for the period of April 29, 2015 through May 12, 2015. 

 

 

RATIONALE: 

 

The Purchase Order Summary consists of all orders created during the period of April 29, 2015 

through May 12, 2015. A detailed listing is also included for orders $25,000 and over for various 

items and services. These are new or revised purchase orders that have been previously approved 

on the contracts report. 

 

 

FUNDING: 

 

Not Applicable 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

   

Ratify Purchase Order Summary and Listing of Orders $25,000 and over for the period of April 

29, 2015 through May 12, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
SP:mm 





 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue, Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322, (714) 558-5501 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
John Palacio., President • Cecilia “Ceci” Iglesias, Member Vice President 

Valerie Amezcua, Clerk • José Alfredo Hernández, J.D., Member • Rob Richardson, Member 

 

 

Please include in your reply any information about any civil rights complaints. 

 

 

 

 
Date:     May 13, 2015 

 

To:       Richard L. Miller, Ph.D., Superintendent 

 

From:     Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., CBO, Deputy Superintendent, Operations 

 

Subject:  Purchase Order Summary: From 29-APR-2015 through 12-MAY-2015 

              

 

Fund 01 General Fund                                      $3,051,963.05 

 

Fund 12 Child Development                                    $70,764.46 

 

Fund 13 Cafeteria Fund                                      $223,224.29 

 

Fund 14 Deferred Maintenance Fund                            $35,130.08 

 

Fund 25 Capital Facilities Fund                              $64,796.94 

 

Fund 26 Measure G Bond                                        $3,661.48 

 

Fund 29 Measure G                                            $26,572.00 

 

Fund 35 County School Facilities Fund                       $134,663.17 

 

Fund 40 Special Reserve Fund                              $6,676,844.87 

 

Fund 68 Workers' Compensation                                 $5,420.00 

 

Fund 81 Property & Liability                                 $38,412.87 

 

 

                           Grand Total:                  $10,331,453.21 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared By:  Jonathan Geiszler, Director, Purchasing and Stores  

Santa Ana Unified School District 
Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.                                             Richard L. Miller, Ph.D., Superintendent                                   
Deputy Superintendent, Operations 

 
 



SAUSD Board of Education Purchase Order Listing $25,000 and Over 

                       From 29-APR-2015 Through 12-MAY-2015    Page: 01 of 04 

PO No.   Vendor                                                      BOA Date 

-------  --------------------------------                           --------- 

 Funding             Description        Location                       Amount 

 ------------------- ------------------ ------------------- ----------------- 

 

311110   PRIEST CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, INC. 

 Fund 40 QZAB Solar  Building           CENTURY HIGH SCHOOL         $1,024.00 

 Energy Savings 2012 Inspection 

  

 Fund 40 QZAB Solar  Building           CENTURY HIGH SCHOOL        $82,000.00 

 Energy Savings 2012 Inspection 

 

311116   NINYO & MOORE GEOTECHNICAL & ENVIROMENTAL SCIENCE 

 OPSC School         Building           WILSON ELEMENTARY          $79,818.50 

 Facilities Bond     Inspection         SCHOOL 

 

311122   BSN SPORTS 

 Unrestricted        Materials &        GODINEZ FUNDAMENTAL        $30,231.45 

 Discretionary       Supplies/Software  HIGH SCHOOL 

 Accounts 

 

311367   REFRIGERATION CONTROL CO., INC. 

 Child Nutrition:    Maintenance        NUTRITION SERVICES         $84,000.00 

 School Programs     Contracts Repairs 

 

311767   WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 

 Unrestricted        Custodial Supplies BUILDING SERVICES          $95,357.23 

 Discretionary 

 Accounts 

 

313299   PLAYWORKS EDUCATION ENERGIZED 

 IASA: Title I Basic Sub Agreements for DIAMOND ELEMENTARY          $5,000.00 

 Grants Low Income   Services           SCHOOL 

 

 IASA: Title I Basic Sub Agreements for JEFFERSON                   $5,000.00 

 Grants Low Income   Services           ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 

 IASA: Title I Basic Sub Agreements for MONTE VISTA                 $5,000.00 

 Grants Low Income   Services           ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

  

 IASA: Title I Basic Sub Agreements for KENNEDY ELEMENTARY          $5,000.00 

 Grants Low Income   Services           SCHOOL 

  

 IASA: Title I Basic Sub Agreements for CARVER ELEMENTARY           $5,000.00 

 Grants Low Income   Services           SCHOOL 

  

 IASA: Title I Basic Sub Agreements for HEROES ELEMENTARY           $5,000.00 

 Grants Low Income   Services           SCHOOL 

  

 IASA: Title I Basic Consultants        DIAMOND ELEMENTARY         $25,000.00 

 Grants Low Income   Instructional      SCHOOL 

 

 IASA: Title I Basic Consultants        JEFFERSON                  $25,000.00 

 Grants Low Income   Instructional      ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

  



SAUSD Board of Education Purchase Order Listing $25,000 and Over 

                       From 29-APR-2015 Through 12-MAY-2015    Page: 02 of 04 

PO No.   Vendor                                                      BOA Date 

-------  --------------------------------                           --------- 

 Funding             Description        Location                       Amount 

 ------------------- ------------------ ------------------- ----------------- 

 

313299   PLAYWORKS EDUCATION ENERGIZED 

 IASA: Title I Basic Consultants        CARVER ELEMENTARY          $25,000.00 

 Grants Low Income   Instructional      SCHOOL 

  

 IASA: Title I Basic Consultants        HEROES ELEMENTARY          $25,000.00 

 Grants Low Income   Instructional      SCHOOL 

  

 IASA: Title I Basic Consultant         MONTE VISTA                $25,000.00 

 Grants Low Income   Noninstructional   ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 

 IASA: Title I Basic Consultant         KENNEDY ELEMENTARY         $25,000.00 

 Grants Low Income   Noninstructional   SCHOOL 

  

316730   GOLD STAR FOODS 

 Child Nutrition:    Freight-In-Donated NUTRITION SERVICES         $25,000.00 

 School Programs     Food 

 

318155   THINK TOGETHER 

 Before and          Sub Agreements for EDUCATIONAL               $492,274.56 

 After School        Services           SERVICES DIVISION 

 Learning 

 

318300   SECURITY BANK OF CALIFORNIA 

 Emergency Repair    Building           SADDLEBACK HIGH           $323,550.00 

 Program Williams    Contractor         SCHOOL 

 

318301   R.C. CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, INC. 

 Emergency Repair    Building           SADDLEBACK HIGH         $6,147,450.00 

 Program Williams    Contractor         SCHOOL 

 

318366   AREY JONES EDUCATIONAL SOLUTIONS 

 Unrestricted        Materials &        THORPE FUNDAMENTAL          $4,872.10 

 Discretionary       Supplies/Software  ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 Accounts 

 

 IASA: Title I Basic Materials &        THORPE FUNDAMENTAL         $40,620.40 

 Grants Low Income   Supplies/Software  ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 

318377   AREY JONES EDUCATIONAL SOLUTIONS 

 IASA: Title I Basic Materials &        VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL          $7,594.54 

 Grants Low Income   Supplies/Software 

 

 IASA: Title I Basic Non Capitalized    VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL         $25,525.46 

 Grants Low Income   Equipment 

 

318386   APPLE, INC. 

 IASA: Title I Basic Non Capitalized    MACARTHUR                  $30,743.00 

 Grants Low Income   Equipment          FUNDAMENTAL 

                                        INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 



SAUSD Board of Education Purchase Order Listing $25,000 and Over 

                       From 29-APR-2015 Through 12-MAY-2015    Page: 03 of 04 

PO No.   Vendor                                                      BOA Date 

-------  --------------------------------                           --------- 

 Funding             Description        Location                       Amount 

 ------------------- ------------------ ------------------- ----------------- 

 

318532   ARROW RESTAURANT EQUIPMENT 

 Child Nutrition:    Non Capitalized    NUTRITION SERVICES         $16,934.00 

 School Programs     Equipment 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Other Equipment    NUTRITION SERVICES         $19,986.00 

 School Programs 

 

318555   APPLE, INC. 

 Unrestricted        Materials &        CARVER ELEMENTARY          $26,070.00 

 Discretionary       Supplies/Software  SCHOOL 

 Accounts 

 

318556   APPLE, INC. 

 Unrestricted        Non Capitalized    CENTURY HIGH SCHOOL        $66,239.85 

 Discretionary       Equipment 

 Accounts 

 

318597   AT&T DATACOMM, INC. dba AT&T DATACOMM 

 OPSC School                            MITCHELL CHILD             $50,938.53 

 Facilities Bond                        DEVELOPMENT CENTER 

 

318607   SILVER CREEK INDUSTRIES, INC. 

 Capital Facilities                     SEGERSTROM HIGH            $63,031.00 

 Fund                                   SCHOOL 

 

318613   AT&T DATACOMM, INC. dba AT&T DATACOMM 

 Fund 40 Valley                         VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL         $85,814.98 

 Sports Complex 

 

318646   AREY JONES EDUCATIONAL SOLUTIONS 

 IASA: Title I Basic Materials &        GODINEZ FUNDAMENTAL       $139,412.50 

 Grants Low Income   Supplies/Software  HIGH SCHOOL 

  

318650   AREY JONES EDUCATIONAL SOLUTIONS 

 NCLB: Title I,      Materials &        VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL         $44,025.00 

 School Improvement  Supplies/Software 

 Grant QEIA 

 

318656   AREY JONES EDUCATIONAL SOLUTIONS 

 Unrestricted        Materials &        CENTURY HIGH SCHOOL        $24,807.00 

 Discretionary       Supplies/Software 

 Accounts 

 

 Unrestricted        Non Capitalized    CENTURY HIGH SCHOOL        $57,063.30 

 Discretionary       Equipment 

 Accounts 

 

 

 

 



SAUSD Board of Education Purchase Order Listing $25,000 and Over 

                       From 29-APR-2015 Through 12-MAY-2015    Page: 04 of 04 

PO No.   Vendor                                                      BOA Date 

-------  --------------------------------                           --------- 

 Funding             Description        Location                       Amount 

 ------------------- ------------------ ------------------- ----------------- 

 

318744   AREY JONES EDUCATIONAL SOLUTIONS 

 Unrestricted        Non Capitalized    REGIONAL                   $33,709.00 

 Regional            Equipment          OCCUPATIONAL 

 Occupational                           PROGRAM 

 Centers 

 

 Carl D Perkins      Non Capitalized    VOCATIONAL                 $18,151.00 

 Section 131 Career  Equipment          EDUCATION 

 and Technical Ed. 

 

318767   AREY JONES EDUCATIONAL SOLUTIONS 

 Unrestricted        Materials &        FRANKLIN ELEMENTARY        $29,350.00 

 Discretionary       Supplies/Software  SCHOOL 

 Accounts 

 

 IASA: Title I Basic Materials &        FRANKLIN ELEMENTARY        $23,480.00 

 Grants Low Income   Supplies/Software  SCHOOL 

  

318778   AREY JONES EDUCATIONAL SOLUTIONS 

 LCFF                Materials &        TECHNOLOGY                 $41,090.00 

 Supplemental/       Supplies/Software 

 Concentration 

 

318910   E.A.P. TECHNOLOGY, INC. 

 Unrestricted        Replacement of     TECHNOLOGY                 $81,250.00 

 Discretionary       Equipment          INNOVATION SERVICES 

 Accounts 





AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 

May 26, 2015 

 

Board Meeting 
 

TITLE: Ratification of Expenditure Summary and Warrant Listing for Period 

of April 29, 2015 through May 12, 2015 

 

ITEM: Consent 

SUBMITTED BY: Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

PREPARED BY: Christeen Betz, Director, Accounting 

  
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board ratification of the Expenditure Summary and 

Warrant Listing for the expenditures $25,000 and over on a bi-monthly basis. 

 

 

RATIONALE: 

 

The Expenditure Summary consists of all warrants created during the period of April 29, 2015 

through May 12, 2015.  A detailed listing for expenditures $25,000 and over is also included.  

These items have already been submitted in the prior month’s Purchase Order report. 

 

 

FUNDING: 

 

Not Applicable  

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Ratify Expenditure Summary and Warrant Listing of expenditures over $25,000 for the period of 

April 29, 2015 through May 12, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
SP:mm 





1601 East Chestnut Avenue, Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322, (714) 558-5501 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
John Palacio, President • Cecilia “Ceci” Iglesias, Vice President 

Valerie Amezcua, Clerk • José Alfredo Hernández, J.D., Member • Rob Richardson, Member  

 

 

Please include in your reply any information about any civil rights complaints. 

 

 

 

 
Date: May 12, 2015 

 

To: Richard L. Miller, Ph.D., Superintendent 

 

From: Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., Deputy Superintendent, Operations 

 

Subject: Expenditures Summary: From 29-APR-2015 through 12-MAY-2015 

 

 

 Fund 01 General Fund                                             $5,840,882.51 

 

 Fund 12 Child Development                                            $3,385.70 

 

 Fund 13 Cafeteria Fund                                             $431,272.25 

 

 Fund 14 Deferred Maintenance Fund                                   $88,248.47 

 

 Fund 25 Capital Facilities Fund                                     $12,892.15 

 

 Fund 26 Measure G Bond                                                 $756.00 

 

 Fund 29 Measure G                                                  $299,557.17 

 

 Fund 35 County School Facilities Fund                              $893,872.91 

 

 Fund 40 Special Reserve Fund                                     $2,629,400.01 

 

 Fund 68 Workers' Compensation                                       $19,330.96 

 

 Fund 69 Health & Welfare                                         $1,887,242.06 

 

 Fund 81 Property & Liability                                        $48,484.03 

 

                             Total Expenditures:        $12,155,324.22 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared By: Christeen Betz, Director, Accounting 

Santa Ana Unified School District 
Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.                                             Richard L. Miller, Ph.D., Superintendent                                   
Deputy Superintendent, 

Operations, CBO 

  



 SAUSD Board of Education Warrant Listing 
 April 29, 2015 Page 1 of 5 

Check # Vendor Location Amount 
 Fund 01 General Fund 

84205833 ORANGE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION $86,588.23 
 Special Ed: Mental Health Services PUPIL SUPPORT SERVICES 

84205834 ORANGE COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL OF THE ARTS $96,216.92 
 Special Education SPECIAL EDUCATION 

84205841 THINK TOGETHER $492,274.56 
 30-R2002-653 Before and After School Learning & Safe Neighborhood  EDUCATIONAL SERVICES DIVISION 
 Partnerships 

84205843 UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA $39,219.71 
 ASCIP Risk Control STAT (Simulation for Threat Assessment Training) RISK MANAGEMENT 

84205850 APPLE, INC. $61,675.21 
 IASA: Title I Basic Grants Low-Income and Neglected, Part A CARVER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 CHAVEZ CONTINUATION HIGH SCHOOL 

 Special Education SPECIAL EDUCATION 

 Unrestricted Discretionary Accounts DIAMOND ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 THORPE FUNDAMENTAL ELEMENTARY  
 SCHOOL 

84205851 APPROACH LEARNING AND ASSESSMENT CENTER, INC. $27,401.00 
 Special Education SPECIAL EDUCATION 



 SAUSD Board of Education Warrant Listing 
 April 29, 2015 Page 2 of 5 

Check # Vendor Location Amount 
84205852 AREY JONES EDUCATIONAL SOLUTIONS $1,628,129.44 
 IASA: Title I Basic Grants Low-Income and Neglected, Part A ADAMS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 GODINEZ FUNDAMENTAL HIGH SCHOOL 

 VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL 

 Medi-Cal Billing Option PUPIL SUPPORT SERVICES 

 NCLB: Title I, School Improvement Grant QEIA VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL 

 Special Education SPECIAL EDUCATION 

 Unrestricted Discretionary Accounts PUPIL SUPPORT SERVICES 

 VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL 

 Unrestricted One-time Funds DISTRICT-WIDE 

 SECONDARY DIVISION 

84205858 GOVCONNECTION $42,484.13 
 Fund 01 General Fund PUBLICATIONS 

 IASA: Title I Basic Grants Low-Income and Neglected, Part A SADDLEBACK HIGH SCHOOL 

 Unrestricted Discretionary Accounts BUDGET 

 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS ADMINISTRATION 

 PUPIL SUPPORT SERVICES 

 PURCHASING DEPARTMENT 

 RESEARCH AND EVALUATION 

 SCHOOL POLICE SERVICES 

 VILLA FUNDAMENTAL INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 Unrestricted One-time Funds DISTRICTWIDE 

84205946 UNISOURCE WORLDWIDE, INC. $63,694.87 
 Fund 01 General Fund ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT 

 PUBLICATIONS 

 WAREHOUSE AND DELIVERY 



 SAUSD Board of Education Warrant Listing 
 April 29, 2015 Page 3 of 5 

Check # Vendor Location Amount 
84205962 DURHAM SCHOOL SERVICES, L.P. $872,123.78 
 IASA: Title I Basic Grants Low-Income and Neglected, Part A MENDEZ FUNDAMENTAL INTERMEDIATE  
 SCHOOL 
 Pupil Transportation (7230/7240) TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 

 Unrestricted Discretionary Accounts CARVER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 PUPIL SUPPORT SERVICES 

84205985 PARADIGM HEALTHCARE SERVICES $25,269.71 
 Medi-Cal Billing Option PUPIL SUPPORT SERVICES 

84205997 WARE DISPOSAL, INC. $28,725.03 
 Unrestricted Discretionary Accounts DISTRICTWIDE 

84205817 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON $28,444.09 
 Unrestricted Discretionary Accounts DISTRICTWIDE 

 Fund 13 Cafeteria Fund 

84206017 A & R WHOLESALE DISTRIBUTORS $41,748.99 
 Child Nutrition: School Programs NUTRITION SERVICES 

84206015 A & R WHOLESALE DISTRIBUTORS $76,224.02 
 Child Nutrition: School Programs NUTRITION SERVICES 

84206022 GOLD STAR FOODS $27,369.07 
 Child Nutrition: School Programs NUTRITION SERVICES 

84206024 GOLD STAR FOODS $28,776.46 
 Child Nutrition: School Programs MACARTHUR FUNDAMENTAL INTERMEDIATE  
 SCHOOL 
 NUTRITION SERVICES 

84206013 A & R WHOLESALE DISTRIBUTORS $45,361.11 
 Child Nutrition: School Programs NUTRITION SERVICES 

 Fund 14 Deferred Maintenance Fund 

84206046 WESTERN WATERPROOFING COMPANY, INC. $25,400.00 
 Fund 14 Deferred Maintenance Fund BUILDING SERVICES 



 SAUSD Board of Education Warrant Listing 
 April 29, 2015 Page 4 of 5 

Check # Vendor Location Amount 
 Fund 29 Measure G 

84206058 VIRCO, INC. $176,244.76 
 Fund 29 Measure G Series E FRANKLIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 KING ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 Fund 35 County School Facilities Fund 

84206060 COUTS HEATING & COOLING, INC. $171,663.00 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects MITCHELL CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER 

84206061 CUYAMACA CONST., INC. $53,529.65 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects MITCHELL CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER 

84206062 FREMONT MILLWORK COMPANY $41,417.72 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects MITCHELL CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER 

84206063 HORIZONS CONSTRUCTION CO. INT'L, INC. $114,230.25 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects WILSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

84206064 HORIZONS CONSTRUCTION CO. INT'L, INC. $307,303.14 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects WILSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

84206065 INLAND BUILDING CONTRUCTION $30,279.30 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects-Second Issuance WILSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 Fund 40 Special Reserve Fund 

84206071 KYA SERVICES, LLC $1,472,466.47 
 Fund 40 Valley Sports Complex VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL 



 SAUSD Board of Education Warrant Listing 
 April 29, 2015 Page 5 of 5 

Check # Vendor Location Amount 
 Fund 69 Health & Welfare 

84206080 VISION SERVICE PLAN $36,886.10 
 Health & Welfare - Active Employees DISTRICT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

 Health & Welfare - Retired Employees DISTRICT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

84206077 DELTA DENTAL INSURANCE COMPANY $46,815.80 
 Health & Welfare - Active Employees DISTRICT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

 Health & Welfare - Retired Employees DISTRICT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

84206078 KAISER FOUNDATION HEALTH PLAN $1,380,491.68 
 Health & Welfare - Active Employees DISTRICT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

 Health & Welfare - Retired Employees DISTRICT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

 Grand Total: $7,568,454.20 



 SAUSD Board of Education Warrant Listing 
 May 06, 2015 Page 1 of 4 

Check # Vendor Location Amount 
 Fund 01 General Fund 

84206124 AREY JONES EDUCATIONAL SOLUTIONS $38,277.74 
 Fund 01 General Fund ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT 

 IASA: Title I Basic Grants Low-Income and Neglected, Part A REMINGTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 Unrestricted Discretionary Accounts ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT 

 DAVIS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 PURCHASING DEPARTMENT 

 SEPULVEDA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

84206084 EL SOL SCIENCE AND ARTS ACADEMY $124,649.00 
 Fund 01 General Fund CASH ACCOUNT 

84206086 NOVA ACADEMY EARLY COLLEGE HIGH SCHOOL $41,833.00 
 Fund 01 General Fund CASH ACCOUNT 

84206087 ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY $70,766.00 
 Fund 01 General Fund CASH ACCOUNT 

84206088 ORANGE COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL OF THE ARTS $234,588.00 
 Fund 01 General Fund CASH ACCOUNT 

84206089 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON $389,817.13 
 Head Start CHILD DEVELOPMENT 

 Unrestricted Discretionary Accounts DISTRICTWIDE 

84206090 AMPE, INC. $28,400.00 
 California Clean Energy Jobs Act (Prop 39) SEPULVEDA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 WALKER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 WILSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

84206091 CAL PERS SAFETY $68,897.49 
 Fund 01 General Fund DISTRICT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 



 SAUSD Board of Education Warrant Listing 
 May 06, 2015 Page 2 of 4 

Check # Vendor Location Amount 
84206111 REVOLVING CASH FUND $42,926.78 
 Fund 01 General Fund CASH ACCOUNT 

 HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION 

 Fundraiser (Non ASB-PTA Deposits) WALKER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 Head Start CHILD DEVELOPMENT 

 S.D. Bechtel, Jr. Foundation STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

 Unrestricted Discretionary Accounts ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT 

 CENTURY HIGH SCHOOL 

 DISTRICTWIDE 

 GODINEZ FUNDAMENTAL HIGH SCHOOL 

 SADDLEBACK HIGH SCHOOL 

 SCHOOL POLICE SERVICES 

 SEGERSTROM HIGH SCHOOL 

 VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL 

 WAREHOUSE AND DELIVERY 

84206083 EDWARD B. COLE, SR. ACADEMY $53,133.00 
 Fund 01 General Fund CASH ACCOUNT 

84206123 APPLE, INC. $35,395.29 
 IASA: Title I Basic Grants Low-Income and Neglected, Part A HENINGER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 SUMMER SCHOOL 

 Medi-Cal Billing Option SPEECH & LANGUAGE 

 Special Ed: IDEA Early Intervention Grants MITCHELL CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER 

 Special Education SPECIAL EDUCATION 

 Unrestricted - Regional Occupational Centers/Program (ROC/P 6350) REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM 

 Unrestricted Discretionary Accounts DIAMOND ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 SANTA ANA HIGH SCHOOL 

 WAREHOUSE AND DELIVERY 



 SAUSD Board of Education Warrant Listing 
 May 06, 2015 Page 3 of 4 

Check # Vendor Location Amount 
84206125 AT&T DATACOMM, INC. dba AT&T DATACOMM $298,903.19 
 Common Core State Standards (CCSS) EDUCATIONAL SERVICES DIVISION 

 E-Rate DISTRICTWIDE 

84206121 XEROX CORPORATION $205,491.64 
 Unrestricted Discretionary Accounts DISTRICTWIDE 

 Fund 13 Cafeteria Fund 

84206280 GOLD STAR FOODS $42,099.72 
 Child Nutrition: School Programs NUTRITION SERVICES 

 Fund 29 Measure G 

84206311 PJHM ARCHITECTS, INC. $46,448.54 
 Fund 29 Measure G Series E FRANKLIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 KING ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 Fund 35 County School Facilities Fund 

84206314 BALFOUR BEATTY CONSTRUCTION $43,529.88 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects MITCHELL CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER 

84206316 NEXUS IS, INC. $78,953.70 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects KING ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 



 SAUSD Board of Education Warrant Listing 
 May 06, 2015 Page 4 of 4 

Check # Vendor Location Amount 
 Fund 40 Special Reserve Fund 

84206326 PCM3, INC. $115,763.37 
 Emergency Repair Program-Williams Case LATHROP INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 LINCOLN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 MARTIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 REMINGTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 ROOSEVELT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 SADDLEBACK HIGH SCHOOL 

 SPURGEON INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 WILLARD INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

84206321 GHATAODE BANNON ARCHITECTS, LLP $37,359.56 
 Emergency Repair Program-Williams Case SADDLEBACK HIGH SCHOOL 

 Fund 40 Valley Sports Complex VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL 

 Fund 40 Special Reserve Fund EDISON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 SADDLEBACK HIGH SCHOOL 

 VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL 

84206324 MUSCO SPORTS LIGHTING, LLC $934,761.60 
 Fund 40 Valley Sports Complex VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL 

 Fund 69 Health & Welfare 

84206331 ALAMEDA COUNTY SCHOOLS INSURANCE GROUP (ACSIG) $404,262.50 
 Health & Welfare - Active Employees DISTRICT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

 Health & Welfare - Retired Employees DISTRICT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

 Fund 81 Property & Liability 

84206334 SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT $38,984.03 
 Fund 81 Property & Liability RISK MANAGEMENT 

 Grand Total: $3,375,241.16 



 

 

AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 

May 26, 2015 

 

Board Meeting 
 

TITLE: Acknowledgement of Receipt of Orange County School of the Arts 

Charter School Charter Renewal Petition 

 

ITEM:  Consent 

SUBMITTED BY: Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed. D., Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

PREPARED BY: Mavis Mitchell, Charter Schools Financial Coordinator 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to acknowledge formal receipt of the Orange County School 

of the Arts (OCSA) Charter Renewal Petition delivered on Tuesday, May 5, 2015.  The five year 

term of the current charter petition expires June 30, 2015.         

 

 

RATIONALE: 

 

The District is required to comply with California Education Code Section 47605(b) to hold a 

public hearing on the provisions of a submitted charter petition within 30 days of receipt of the 

petition.  In order to facilitate the setting of the required public hearing and uniformly establish 

the parameters of the statutory timeline, submitted charter petitions are defined as and deemed 

received after action has been taken by the Board of Education to formally do so.    

 

Recorded action taken at a regular meeting of the Board of Education effectively acknowledges 

and documents the date of receipt as the date of the action and thereby establishes the parameters 

of the statutory timeline and facilitates the setting of the required public hearing date.   

 

 

FUNDING: 

 

Not Applicable 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

   

Acknowledge receipt of the Orange County School of the Arts Charter School Charter Renewal 

Petition as of the date of the regular meeting of the Board of Education on May 12, 2015.    

 

 

 
SP:mm 

 

 





AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 

May 26, 2015 

 
Board Meeting 

 

 
 

TITLE: Adoption of Resolution No. 14/15-3059 – Authorization of Board 

Member’s Absence from Board Meeting 

 
ITEM:  Consent 

SUBMITTED BY:  Rick Miller, Ph.D., Superintendent 

PREPARED BY: Rick Miller, Ph.D., Superintendent 
 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 
The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board adoption of Resolution No. 14/15-3059 

authorizing the absences of Board member Valerie Amezcua at Regular meeting of May 12, 

2015, from which she was absent. 

 
 
RATIONALE: 

 
Education Code Section 35120(c) provides that "a member may be paid for any meeting when 

absent if the Board, by resolution duly adopted and included in its minutes finds that at the time 

of the meeting he or she was absent deemed acceptable by the Board." 

 

 
FUNDING: 

 
Not Applicable 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Adopt Resolution No. 14/15-3059 – Authorizing the absence of Ms. Valerie Amezcua from the 

Regular Board Meeting of May 12, 2015. 

 
 
 

 
RM/cg 





 

1 RESOLUTION NO. 14/15-3059 

 
2 BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
3 SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
4 ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

 
5 Certification of a Board Member’s Absence from Board Meeting 

 
6       Valerie Amezcua 

 

7 WHEREAS, Education Code Section 35120(c) states that "a Board Member may be 
 

8 paid for any meeting when absent if the Board by resolution duly adopted and 
 

9 included in its minutes finds that at the time of the meeting he or she was 

 
10 absent as deemed acceptable by the Board;" and 

 
11 WHEREAS, The Board of Education does find that Board Member Valerie Amezcua 

 

12 was absent from Board meeting on May 12, 2015. 

 

13  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: That the Board of Education authorizes 

 

14 payments for Board Member Amezcua for the R e g u l a r  meeting of May 26, 2015, 

 
15 from which she was absent. 

 

16 Upon motion of   

 
17 was adopted by the following vote: 

 
18  AYES: 
 
19 NOES: 

and duly seconded, the foregoing Resolution 

 

20 ABSENT: 

 
21 ABSTAIN: 

 
22 STATE OF CALIFORNIA) 

 )SS: 

23 COUNTY OF ORANGE ) 
 

24 / / / 

 

25 



 

1 I, Richard L. Miller, Secretary to the Board of Education of the Santa Ana 

 
2 Unified School District of Orange County, California, hereby certify that the 

 
3 above and foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the said Board at a Regular 

 
4 meeting properly noticed and held on the 26

th 
day of May 2015 and passed by a 

 

5 vote of    of said Board. 

 

6 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this ______ day of May, 2015. 

 
7 

 
8 
9 Richard L. Miller, Ph.D. 

10 Secretary Board of Education of the 

11 Santa Ana Unified School District 

12 
 
13 

 
14 

 
15 

 
16 

 
17 

 
18 

 

19 
 
20 

 
21 

 
22 

 
23 

 
24 

 
25 

 
26 

 
27 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-2- 























































AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET  

May 26, 2015 

 

Board Meeting 
 

TITLE: Material Revision of INDA Charter School Charter Petition  

  

ITEM: Public Hearing 

SUBMITTED BY: Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  

PREPARED BY: Mavis Mitchell, Charter Schools Financial Coordinator   

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to conduct a public hearing for the material revision of the 

current INDA Charter School charter petition delivered to the Santa Ana Unified School District 

on Monday, May 18, 2015.  The charter petition was formally received by the SAUSD Board of 

Education at its Regular Meeting on Tuesday, May 26, 2015.     

 

In compliance with California Education Code, within 30 days of receipt of the charter petition, 

the governing board of the school district must hold a public hearing on the provisions of the 

charter petition in order to provide an opportunity for public comment and demonstration of 

support for the charter petition.   

 

 

RATIONALE: 

 

The relevant excerpt of California Education Code Section 47605 contains the specific 

requirements regarding the timely response of an authorizing agency to the submission of a 

charter petition:   

 

(b) No later than 30 days after receiving a petition, in accordance with subdivision (a), the 

governing board of the school district shall hold a public hearing on the provisions of the 

charter, at which time the governing board of the school district shall consider the level of 

support for the petition by teachers employed by the district, other employees of the district, and 

parents.   

 

 

FUNDING: 

 

Not Applicable 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Conduct a Public Hearing at the May 26, 2015 Regular Meeting of the Santa Ana Unified School 

District Board. 
 

SP:mm 





[Insert name of school] Charter Petition   Page 1 of 114 

  

 

 

 

 

  INDA Advanced 

Learning 

AcademyCharter 

School 
C h a r t e r  S c h o o l  P e t i t i o n  

 
P r e s e n t e d  t o :  

Santa Ana Unified School District 

Board of Education 
 

 

2015

3 

 
 
 

October  May  20132015 

Style Definition: Header1: Right:  -0.08"



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 2 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 

This page was intentionally left blank. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 3 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

TA B L E  O F  C O N T E N T S  

 

A F F I R M AT I O N S / A S S U R A N C E S │ 9  

 

I N T R O D U C T I O N │10 

 

A. The Need………………….………………….………………………………………..…..…..………....... 10 

B. Vision………………………………………..………………..………………….……..……..………....... 11 

C. Mission.………………………………………..…………….………………………….……..…….…….. 11 

 

ELEMENT ONE│ E D U C AT I O N A L P R O G R A M │ 1 3  

A. Mission……………………………………………………………………….……………………………  13 

B. Educational Philosophy…………………………………………………………….……….…….….……. 14 

 

An Educated Person in the 21
st
 Century  

How Learning Best Occurs 

STEM Emphasis in Curriculum 

Technology Integrated Education 

Field Trips and Guest Speakers  

Peer Assisted Reading (PALS) 

 

C. Students To Be Served…………………………………………………………..……….…………...…… 17 

 

Table 1: Sample Student Populations 

Priority Enrollment 

Student Projection 

Table 2: Conservative Enrollment Projections 

Table 3: Aggressive Enrollment Projections 

 
D. Curriculum and Instructional Design ……………………………………………………..………………. 20 

 

Exhibit 1: SAUSD’s Theoretical Framework for Common Core Implementation 

Literacy 

Mathematics  

Computer Science 

Textbooks & Instructional Materials 

Small School Environment 

Culture of High Expectations 

Sample Instructional Calendar and Bell Schedule 

Table 4: Sample Elementary Bell Schedule 

Table 5: Sample Intermediate Bell Schedule 

Exhibit 2: Sample Academic School Calendar 

 

E. Plan for Academically Low Achieving Students ………………………..………………………………… 30 

 

F. Plan for Academically High Achieving Students……………..………..………………….…...…………... 31 

 

G. Plan for English Learners.……….…………………………………………...………….……………….. 32 

 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 4 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

Home Language Survey 

CELDT Testing 

Reclassification Procedures 

Strategies for English Learners 

 

H. Plan for Socio-Economically Disadvantaged Students……………………………………..…………….. 33 

 

I. Plan for Special Education…………………………………………………………………………………  34 

 

Interim and Initial Placements of New Charter School Students 

Referral for Assessment 

Assessment 

Development and Implementation of IEP 

 

ELEMENT TWO & THREE│ M E A S U R A B L E  S T U D E N T  O U T C O M E S  &  

P U P I L  P R O G R E S S  M E A S U R E M E N T  M E T H O D  │ 4 1  

 

A. Approach to Assessment and Data……………………………………………………………………….. 41 

 

Data Analysis and Data-Driven Instruction 

Reporting of Data 

Communication of Data with Students and Families 

Student Achievement Goals 

Table 6: Measurable Student Outcome Goals and Assessment Tools 

Table 7: Representative Measurable Student Outcomes and Assessment Tools in Core Academic Areas 

Table 8: Representative Measurable Outcomes and Assessment Tools for Interpersonal Skills 

 

B. Statewide Assessments…………………………………………………………………..……...……….. 45 

C. Grading and Promotion…………………………………………………………………..….…………… 46 

 

Grading Policy 

Table 9: Grading Policy 

ELD Grades 

Report Cards 

Elementary School Grade Promotion 

Intermediate School Grade Promotion 

 

ELEMENT FOUR│ G O V E R N A N C E │ 4 9  

A. Governance of the School Structure………………………………………………………………………  49 

Exhibit 3: Organizational Chart 

B. School Leadership………………………………………………………………………………………… 50 

C. Parental Involvement………………………………………………………………….……………..……. 50 

D. Grievance Procedure for Parents & Students…………………………………………………….……….. 50 

 

ELEMENT FIVE│ E M P L O Y E E  Q U A L I F I C AT I O N S │ 5 2  

Equal Opportunity Employer 

A. Qualifications, Conditions & Benefits………………………………………………………………..……. 52 

 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 5 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

Credentials 

Employee Records & Background Checks 

Employee Welfare and Safety 

 

B. Recruitment & Selection………………………………………………………………………………… 53 

 

Teacher Recruitment 

Staff Selection 

General Qualifications 

Job Descriptions for Key Personnel 

Staff Compensation and Benefits  

Staff Evaluation 

 

ELEMENT SIX│ H E A LT H  A N D  S A F E T Y │ 6 1  

 
A. Site Safety……………………………………………………………………………………………….. 61 

 

Building Code  

Asbestos Management 

Drug Free ●  Alcohol Free ●  Smoke Free Environment 

Workplace Safety 

 

B. Staff & Student Safety Measures……………………………………………………..…………….……. 62 

 

Criminal Background Checks 

Comprehensive Sexual Harassment Policies and Procedures 

Child Abuse Reporting 

 

C. Medical Plans………………………………………………………………………………….………… 63 

 

Immunizations & Tuberculosis Testing 

Prescription Medications 

Vision, Hearing & Scoliosis Testing 

Diabetes 

Blood Borne Pathogens 

 

D. Emergency Plans………………………………………………………………………………………… 64 

 

Emergency Situations 

Fire Drills 

Earthquake and Other Disaster Drills 

Bomb Threats 

Evacuation Plan 

 

E. Additional………………………………………………………………………………….…………….. 66 

 

Indemnification 

Insurance 

Auxiliary Services 

 

ELEMENT SEVEN│ R A C I A L &  E T H N I C  B A L A N C E │ 6 8  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 6 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

  
ELEMENT EIGHT│ A D M I S S I O N  R E Q U I R E M E N T │ 6 9  

Legal Assurances  

McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 

Priority Enrollment 

 

ELEMENT NINE│ A N N U A L F I N A N C I A L A U D I T S │ 7 1  

Financial Reports  

 

ELEMENT TEN│ S U S P E N S I O N  &  E X P U L S I O N │ 7 3  

Progressive Positive Discipline 

Enumerated Offenses 

Suspension Procedure 

Expulsion Procedure 

Special Procedures for Expulsion & Hearings 

Records & Litigation 

Further Assurances 

 

ELEMENT ELEVEN│ R E T I R E M E N T  P R O G R A M S │ 8 3  

Mandatory Benefits 

Health Benefits 

Work Schedule 

Retirement 

 

ELEMENT TWELVE│ P U B L I C  S C H O O L AT T E N D A N C E  A LT E R N AT I V E S │ 8 5  

 

ELEMENT THIRTEEN│ E M P L O Y E E  R I G H T S  &  R E P O N S I B I L I T I E S │ 8 6  

 

ELEMENT FOURTEEN│ D I S P U T E  R E S O L U T I O N │ 8 7  

Dispute-Resolution 

Internal Disputes 

Disputes Between the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy and SAUSD 

 

ELEMENT FIFTEEN│ E X C L U S I V E  P U B L I C  S C H O O L E M P L O Y E R │ 9 0  

 

ELEMENT SIXTEEN│ S C H O O L C L O S U R E │ 9 1  

   
Charter Renewal 

Revocation 

Closure Action 

Closure Procedures 

 

ELEMENT SEVENTEEN│ P R O P O S E D  B U D G E T  &  C A S H  F L O W │ 9 6  

 

ELEMENT EIGHTEEN│ FA C I L I T I E S │ 9 9  

Site Description  

Design 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 7 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

Exhibit 4: Planned Development 

Exhibit 5: Regional Map 

Exhibit 6: Local Map 

Exhibit 7: Net Usable Acreage 

Exhibit 8: Site Photographs 

Exhibit 9: Site Plan 

Sustainability and Sensitivity to Adjacent Natural Habitat 

Charter Implementation  

Exhibit 10: Charter Implementation Timeline 

 

ELEMENT NINETEEN│ R E Q U I R E D  S I G N AT U R E S │ 1 0 7  

 

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 8 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 

A P P E N D I X  

 

APPENDIX A│ C O L L E C T I V E  B A R G A I N I N G  A G R E E M E N T │ 1 0 9  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 9 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 

A F F I R M A T I O N S / A S S U R A N C E S  

 

The Charter will comply with California Education Code § 47605(d) and all other applicable federal, state and 

local laws and regulations, including, but not limited to, ensuring that the school shall:  

 

• Be nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, employment practices and all other operations.  

• Not charge tuition.  

• Not discriminate against any student on the basis of disability, gender, nationality, race, color or ethnicity, 

religion, sexual orientation, home language or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of 

hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code.  

• Admit all pupils who wish to attend the school. Cal. Education Code § 47605(d)(2)(A).  

• Determine admission by a public random drawing, if the number of pupils who wish to attend the school 

exceeds the school capacity, with a lottery exemption for existing pupils of the charter schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy, siblings of enrolled students, and children of staff and founding parents (not to exceed 

10%). Cal. Education Code § 47605(d)(2)(B). Preference shall be given to pupils who reside in the Santa Ana 

Unified School District, or other preferences permitted by the charter authority that are consistent with the 

law.  

• In accordance with Education Code § 47605(d)(3), if a pupil is expelled or leaves the charter schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy without graduation or completing the school year for any reason, the school 

shall notify the superintendent of the school district of the pupil’s last known address within 30 days, and 

shall, upon request, provide that school district with a copy of the cumulative record of the pupil, including a 

transcript of grades or report card, and health information.  

• Be deemed the exclusive public employer of the employees of the school for purposes of the Educational 

Employment Relations Act.  

• Adhere to all provisions of federal law related to students with disabilities including, but not limited to, 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1974, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and the 

Individuals with Disabilities in Education Improvement Act of 2004. Meet all statewide standards and 

conduct the student assessments required, pursuant to Education Code §§ 60605 and 60851, and any other 

statewide standards authorized in statute, or assessments application to students in non-charter public schools. 

Comply in a timely fashion with all reporting requirements, including enrollment, attendance (ADA), 

standardized testing, and other data and information required.  

• Ensure that teachers at the school hold a Commission on Teacher Credentialing certificate, permit, or other 

document equivalent to that which a teacher in other public schools are required to hold under NCLB and 

other applicable laws. As allowed by statute, flexibility will be given to non-core, non-college preparatory 

teachers.  

• Comply with the terms of Education Code § 47611 (STRS).  

• Maintain all necessary and appropriate insurance coverage at all times.  

• Comply with all applicable laws and regulations relating to charter school facilities.  

• Agree to standard District requirements and processes regarding supervisorial oversight, funding and services 

for special education students, inspection and audit requirements as aligned to applicable laws.  

• Comply with the Brown Act, nonprofit integrity standards, and applicable federal and state laws regarding 

ethics and conflicts of interest.  

• Be solely responsible for the debts and obligations of the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy.  

 

 

 

Joe DixonDavid Haglund, Assistant Deputy Superintendent         October May 826, 20132015 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 10 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

I N T R O D U C T I O N  

 

The Santa Ana Unified School District (―SAUSD‖ and/or ―District‖) acting through its Governing Board and 

administration, together with it’s primary partner the University of California, Irvine, School of Education, 

desires to serve the students and parents of the District by providing the option of a dependent charter school and 

is pleased to submit this petition to establish and open the Irvine/Newport Development AreaAdvanced Learning 

Academy Charter School (―the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy‖) in the fall of 2017.  This 

Charter proposes the establishment of a dependent charter school with ian cooperational Advisory Board, which 

will make recommendations to the District Administration and District Governing Board. Because of the 

dependent nature of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy and the close operational and governing 

relationship between the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy and the District, including the District’s 

administration and Governing Board, this Charter does not require the same level of detail and specificity as the 

District would require of an independent charter school seeking District approval and oversight. 

 

The proposed Charter School will serve kindergarten through eighth grade (K-8) with a specialized educational 

program focused on engaging, challenging Common Core-based curriculum designed to improve students’ skills 

in science, technology, engineering, and mathematics (STEM). The educational program will be unique not only 

to the SAUSD, but to Orange County, in that it is based on a high-tech, project-based, STEM curriculum 

emphasizing college and career readiness at the elementary and intermediate level.  

 

In today’s ever-changing technological society, it is critical that students have the skills needed to compete in a 

global economy. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy believes it is not too early to reinforce the 

importance of science and career readiness at the elementary and intermediate school level. Without this 

preparation, by high school, students often lack the academic foundation and confidence in math and science and 

overlook the potential as an exciting, lucrative career. The K-8 Charter School is a natural progression to the high 

school level to graduate scientific thinkers with critical thinking skills who will be successful in their adult lives. 

In order to fulfill our mission, it is essential to start at the elementary level engaging students with hands-on, 

technology-based learning that will inspire students to pursue STEM-related careers. 

 

General Charter School Information  

The contact person for the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is Joe DixonDavid 

Haglund, Assistant SuperintendentDeputy Superintendent. 

The grade configuration is kindergarten through 8
th 

at full enrollment. 

The grade level(s) of the students the first year of the charter term will be kindergarten 4
th
 through 

6
th
. 

The number of students in the first year (20157/168) of the charter term will be 240. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will evolve into a K-8 school over three years. 

The scheduled opening date of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is August 

20172015. 

The enrollment capacity is 600 students. 

The instructional calendar will be traditional.  

 

A.  THE NEED 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy would fulfill two needs of the SAUSD: 1) the school would 

serve an area of the District that is not currently served by SAUSD facilities; and 2) the school would provide an 

educational program that is unique to SAUSD and Orange County. 

Fa ci l i t i e s  

Formatted: Superscript



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 11 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

The SAUSD’s boundary includes the area south of the John Wayne Airport within the cities of Irvine and 

Newport Beach (See Exhibit 5 in Element 18 - Facilities). This Irvine/Newport development area (INDA) has 

experienced rapid development in the last ten years, and is planned to continue to develop over the next ten years.  

 

The INDA, which was originally developed as a commercial and industrial center, has experienced market forces 

and development pressures encouraging a rapid transition into a more urban mixed-use center. In 2004, the 

number of building permits for residential units increased dramatically in the INDA. Based on past and planned 

development, residential development could reach 10,000 units within SAUSD boundaries in the next five to ten 

years. This increase in residential units and evolution to a mixed-use environment warrants the need for school 

facilities in the area. The closest existing non-fundamental SAUSD schools (Taft Elementary, McFadden 

Intermediate, and Saddleback High) are approximately 3, 6, and 4 driving miles from the INDA, respectively. 

 

While the school is proposed to open in a temporary location at the Grant School site, the school will ultimately 

relocate into the INDA. Our school will be strategically located in the INDA and be more accessible for students 

to reach compared to any existing public schools nearby. In addition, there is a strong demand in the SAUSD for 

schools with advanced curriculum options. The District’s fundamental schools have a waiting list to enroll. Our 

charter will provide youths in Santa Ana another viable option to experience a rigorous and demanding education. 

 

S TEM  Cu rr i cu lum  

The commercial/industrial component of the INDA provides a unique opportunity and atmosphere to place a 

high-tech, STEM-focused school. A specialty school in the INDA has the potential to partner with the local 

science and technology-based businesses to immerse students in high-quality science instruction based on the 

Next Generation Science Standards, provide project-based learning, and incorporate internship and leadership 

programs, in order to prepare students with the kinds of skills needed to compete in a global economy.  

 

As the nation’s economy base has shifted from industry to technology, the future will require a highly adaptable 

and technologically-competent workforce. With increasing global competition, Orange County and SAUSD must 

keep a competitive edge in the STEM disciplines. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy aligns 

with this concept, and the District’s goal to prepare students for success in college, career, and society. 

 

The number of Latino students pursuing STEM careers has historically been low. A notable cause of this is that 

Latino students have inadequate exposure to STEM curriculum. In California, where Latinos represent the fastest 

growing and soon to be the largest segment of the population, it is important to provide educational programs that 

engage and prepare Santa Ana students to choose career paths in STEM. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced 

Learning Academy plans to offer the District a unique educational program that accomplishes this goal.  
 

B. VISION 
 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy has the same vision as the SAUSD: We will work 

collaboratively and comprehensively with staff, parents, and the community to strengthen a learning environment 

focused on raising the achievement of all students and preparing them for success in college and career. 

 

C. MISSION 
 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy has the same mission as the SAUSD: We assure well-

rounded learning experiences, which prepare our students for success in college and career. We engage, inspire, 

and challenge all of our students to become productive citizens, ethical leaders, and positive contributors to our 

community, country, and a global society. 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 12 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s main objective is to provide a unique STEM-focused 

educational program to an under-served geographical area of the District. The educational program goals are as 

follows: 

 Provide a safe, nurturing, small-school academic environment that cultivates respect for oneself and 

others 

 Offer engaging, challenging curriculum designed to improve students’ skills in STEM areas that will be 

based on Common Core State Standards and Next Generation Science Standards 

 Provide a college and career preparatory program that inspires students to pursue STEM-related careers 

 Provide high-tech, project-based curriculum that will engage and inspire students, thereby achieving 

optimal attendance rates and reducing dropout rates  

 Sharpen students’ critical thinking skills by providing hands-on, inquiry-based activities 

 Infuse goal-oriented collaboration with daily instruction to optimize learning and support English 

Learners 

 Expose students to engaging STEM curriculum and close the gap on the number of Latino students that 

pursue careers in STEM areas 

 Retain strong staff that are role models and inspire students to achieve personal academic and career 

goals 

 Encourage parent involvement and ensure students have academic, social, and emotional support to 

reach their highest potential 

 Offer parent technology classes to allow parents to actively participate in their student’s education and 

provide optimal student support 

In alignment with the SAUSD’s mission statement, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy aims to 

graduate students with the following characteristics and values:   

 Socially-responsible global citizens who embrace and value cultural diversity and contribute to the 

improvement of their community 

 Critical thinkers that effectively utilize technology in their daily lives 

 Motivated and follow an academic plan with an aspiration to follow a STEM career path 

 Health conscious and understand the importance of nutrition and physical health on daily life 

 Environmentally conscious and understand the importance of sustainability for the global future 

 Great communicators who are skilled in sharing their thoughts, questions, ideas and solutions 

 Creative problems solvers who try and develop new approaches to get things done 

 

 

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 13 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

ELEMENT ONE│ E D U C AT I O N A L P R O G R A M  
 

Governing Law: A description of the educational program of the school, designed, among other things, to 

identify pupils whom the school is attempting to educate, what it means to be an "educated person" in the 21st 

century, and how learning best occurs. The goals identified in that program shall include the objective of enabling 

pupils to become self-motivated, competent, and lifelong learners. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(A)(i). 

 

A. MISSION 

Our K-8 grade school will give students a world class education that will prepare them for success in high school, 

college, life, and a future career involving science, technology, engineering, and mathematics (STEM). To 

achieve this ambitious goal, all leadership decisions are executed to best support the mission and school staff with 

an unwavering commitment to the mission’s success. Furthermore, we will work with students and their families 

to develop a community that fully supports every child’s desire to attend and prepare for high school and college 

graduation. To lead students to reach their full academic potential, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy will provide a unique, engaging STEM-focused curriculum with specific educational program goals as 

follows: 

 

 Provide a safe, nurturing, small-school academic environment that cultivates respect for oneself and 

others 

 Offer engaging, challenging Common Core-based curriculum designed to improve students’ skills in 

STEM areas 

 Provide a college and career preparatory program that inspires students to pursue STEM-related careers 

 Provide high-tech, project-based curriculum that will engage and inspire students, thereby achieving 

optimal attendance rates and reducing dropout rates  

 Sharpen students’ critical thinking skills by providing hands-on, inquiry-based activities 

 Expose students to engaging STEM curriculum and close the gap on the number of Latino students that 

pursue careers in STEM areas 

 Retain strong staff that are role models and inspire students to achieve personal academic and career 

goals 

 Encourage parent involvement and ensure students have academic, social, and emotional support to 

reach their highest potential 

 Offer parent technology classes to allow parents to actively participate in their student’s education and 

provide optimal student support 

 

As the nation’s economy base has shifted from industry to technology, the future will require a highly adaptable 

and technologically-competent workforce. It is critical that the student population is science and technology 

literate. An education with a focus in STEM will help students acquire scientific and critical thinking habits. With 

increasing global competition, a successful, educated person in the 21
st
 century must keep a competitive edge in 

the STEM disciplines.  

 

Individual and societal decisions increasingly require some understanding of STEM, from comprehending 

medical diagnoses to managing daily activities with a wide variety of computer-based application. While there 

has been a rise in the number of STEM learning programs in the United States, the state of STEM learning still 

requires leaps and bounds before it can reach adequacy. Research suggests that many students are currently not 

prepared for the demands of the present and future economy. As measured by the National Assessment of 

Educational Progress, roughly 75 percent of U.S. 8
th
 graders are not proficient in mathematics when they 

complete 8
th
 grade. Furthermore, there are significant gaps in achievement between the following student 

population groups: black/white, Hispanic/white, and high-poverty/low-poverty gaps. U.S. students also lag behind 

the highest performing nations on international assessments. For example, only 10 percent of U.S. 8
th
 graders met 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 14 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

the Trends in International Mathematics and Science Study advanced international benchmark in science, 

compared with 32 percent in Singapore and 25 percent in China. 

 

For the advancement of STEM learning in the U.S., the National Research Council has established three U.S. 

STEM education goals, which our Charter School fully supports:  

 

1. Expand the number of students who ultimately pursue advanced degrees and careers in STEM fields 

and broaden the participation of women and minorities in those fields. 

2. Expand the STEM-capable workforce and broaden the participation of women and minorities in that 

workforce.  

3. Increase STEM literacy for all students, including those who do not pursue STEM-related careers or 

additional study in the STEM disciplines.  

 

To support our rigorous STEM curriculum, our school has incorporated five key elements from the National 

Research Council into our school’s design that will help ensure the effectiveness of our STEM instruction.  

 

1. A coherent set of standards and curriculum found in Next Generation Science Standards 

2. Teachers with a high capacity to teach in their discipline 

3. A supportive system of assessment and accountability aligned with Smarter Balanced literacy claims  

4. Adequate instructional time to promote deep learning 

5. Equal access to high-quality STEM learning opportunities 

 

B. EDUCATIONAL PHILOSOPHY  

The Charter will meet the unique needs of students (K-8
th
 grades) and families in the SAUSD, and will serve a 

student body that is reflective of the ethnic and socioeconomic diversity of the community. Students will be 

encouraged and nurtured by engaged parents, dedicated staff, and community partners. The Charter SchoolThe 

Advanced Learning Academy will develop public-private partnerships with the surrounding higher education 

institutions and business community. By utilizing the local university and professional resources, we will link 

technology with academics and prepare students for higher education and professional opportunities. 

 

An  Ed u ca ted  P er son  in  th e  2 1
s t

 Cen tur y  
 

Our goal is to ensure that all of our students develop the skills and behaviors necessary for academic, personal, 

and professional success in the 21
st
 century. As the nation’s economy base has shifted from industry to 

technology, the future will require a highly adaptable and technologically-competent workforce. It is critical that 

the student population is science and technology literate. An education with a focus in STEM will help students 

acquire scientific and critical thinking habits. With increasing global competition, a successful, educated person in 

the 21
st
 century must keep a competitive edge in the STEM disciplines. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced 

Learning Academy will provide opportunities that engage and challenge students and allow them to demonstrate 

their learning and thinking process. Teachers will strive to integrate innovative technologies and research-based 

instructional strategies throughout the curriculum to prepare students to be confident critical thinkers and self-

learners. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy aims to graduate 21
st
 century scholars who: 

 

 Put their talent, expertise, and smarts to work with others to reach a goal 

 Develop and utilize new and creative approaches to get things done 

 Use technology effectively in their daily lives to access, organize, research and present information 

 Are critical thinkers that connect the skills and content learned across the curriculum and evaluate multiple 

points of view 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 15 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 Are motivated and follow an academic plan with an aspiration to follow a STEM career path 

 Are effective communicators that collaborate, work effectively, and manage interpersonal relationships 

within diverse groups and settings 

 Demonstrate content area and grade level achievement in reading, writing, mathematics, history and science 

 Are socially responsible global citizens that embrace and respect cultural diversity 

 Contribute to the improvement of life in their school and local community through leadership skills and 

participation in community projects 

 Understand the importance of proper nutrition and physical health in daily life 

 

Ho w  L ea rn ing  B es t  O ccu rs  

Learning best occurs when students are actively involved in the learning process, have direct experiences with the 

physical world, and relate these experiences to what they are learning in school. This process deepens students’ 

knowledge and stimulates their curiosity and passion for learning. Students will discover how to learn, and 

develop the skills to become self-empowered learners. Experiential methods will engage each student and 

facilitate understanding of core concepts.  

 

A high quality learning environment must be one that is highly structured and generously flexible, allowing 

students to explore and discover, and operates with high standards that challenge students. The ideal learning 

environment is one where teachers and students learn together through the open exchange of ideas and 

information. 

 

Parent participation is an important element in the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s educational 

philosophy and is consistent with SAUSD’s Parent Involvement Framework. Students whose parents are involved 

in their education generally have higher grades, better attendance, higher homework submission rates, higher 

graduation rates and a better chance of continuing with their education after graduation. This is especially true for 

predominantly minority and/or lower income communities. 

 

Guest speakers and field trips from local higher education institutions and STEM-focused companies will 

emphasize the links between instruction and practical application. Teacher-designed units will emphasize the 

main tenets of Common Core and Next Generation Science Standards. This design will allow students to make 

necessary school-to-life correlations. In order to be responsible members of society, students need to provide 

service to the community. Engaging in ―real life‖ projects that are related to the curriculum will help students 

move from adolescence and school to adulthood and society.  

 

By traveling through our Charter School’s varied learning avenues and by experiencing our education program 

that is guided by rigorous common core state standards, students will be thoroughly prepared for success in their 

academic and professional careers.   

 

S TEM  Em p ha s i s  i n  Cur r i cu lum  

In agreement with the National Governors Association Center for Best Practices (NGA Center) and the Council 

of Chief State School Officers (CCSSO), the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy believes that an 

educated citizen in the 21
st
 century must have the skills and understanding to participate and work productively in 

a technologically oriented and global environment. A significant step toward helping students achieve their 

maximum potential involves providing a rigorous, relevant and college preparatory curriculum. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s educational program specifically emphasizes science, technology, 

engineering and math (STEM) education. While the curriculum concentrates on STEM, it also provides a solid 

instruction in humanities and social sciences to educate the whole child. 

 

Math courses will be based on the Common Core integrated course sequencing, which will provide a 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 16 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

comprehensive scope and sequence in an effort to address the diverse skills, interests and backgrounds of all 

learners. Students are assessed for their current knowledge and skill level and placed in the most appropriate 

class. Those with little math background are supported with remediation and intervention. Students with a strong 

background are provided with enrichment opportunities.  

 

Science courses immerse students in the scientific method and encourage them to use the applicable technology to 

plan and organize projects, hypothesize, analyze data, and draw conclusions from tests they create. Students who 

have experience applying scientific inquiry and reasoning to real-world problems in the classroom will have a 

clear advantage when they are exposed to the types of questions that require similar thought and reasoning 

process as adults. Additionally, the site’s connection to the existing natural habitat offers a unique opportunity to 

design a curriculum that has a prominent environmental science component. 

 

In keeping with the STEM emphasis, advanced courses are offered to spur interest and prepare students for 

STEM-related careers. Science classes employ technology in laboratory explorations and experimentation. The 

use of technology as an educational tool will motivate and engage students in their learning, accelerate their 

academic achievement, and equip them with the functional and critical thinking skills needed to succeed in a 

technology and media-driven environment. Computer simulations will assist in expanding the number of lab 

opportunities in all grade levels. Teachers effectively use the inquiry-based approach to engage students in the 

learning process while encouraging high levels of interest. Students’ observations and reflections are the key 

factors for maximum learning results through hands-on instruction.  

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy implements collaborative conversations to challenge both 

high and low achieving students. To enhance critical-thinking skills, students work on inquiry-based activities and 

projects outside of the classroom throughout the school year. Each year the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy organizes a school-wide science fair, in which all students participate. The Charter SchoolThe 

Advanced Learning Academy students then move on to participate in the regional and statewide science fairs. 

T ech no log y  In t eg ra t ed  Ed uca t io n  

Our curriculum integrates Math, Science, Social Science and Language Arts classes with technology education in 

a fun and comprehensive way. Different learning theories and practices such as project-based learning, student-

centered learning, and differentiated instruction are incorporated into our technology integrated approach. The 

following are the ways by which we integrate technology into education:  

1. All students complete a multi-year, comprehensive, and detailed technology curriculum 

2. Teaching materials and assessment tools 

3. Professional training for computer and core class teachers 

The elementary component of the charter’s computer science curriculum focuses on the technology literacy skills 

requirement as identified in the Common Core State Standards as well as problem solving and creative thinking. 

The intermediate school component aims to provide strong skills in computer literacy and fundamentals of 

computational thinking in 6
th
 and 7

th
 grades and transitions into conceptual understanding of high school electives 

in 8
th
 grade.  

 

By the completion of their elementary school education, students will obtain fluency in computers and learn 

introductory level computer literacy. Their classes will be supported with problem solving and creative thinking 

skills. In grades 6 through 8, students will be offered computer and technology courses as electives. These 

electives include, but are not limited to, Computer Literacy, Computer Programming, Digital Art, and Robotics.  

 

Academic interventions at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy are targeted and the staff use data 

to closely monitor our students’ academic progress. Furthermore, these interventions focus on three levels of data: 

formative, interim, and summative. Discussion of each student’s progress or lack thereof takes place during 

department and grade level team meetings. In additional, adult technology courses will be offered to parents to 

allow parents to actively participate in their student’s education and ensure optimal student support at home. 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 17 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 18 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

Fi e ld  T r ip s  a nd  Gues t  Sp ea k ers  

Field trips will allow students to gain insight, information, or knowledge that cannot be adequately developed 

through regular classroom instruction. Field trips, therefore, are an integral part of the curriculum and are as 

essential to the instructional process as textbooks, equipment, and other instructional devices and 

teaching/learning strategies. Since not all children learn in the same way, field trips will support the application of 

learning by giving students the opportunity to expand their intelligence in ways different from those typically 

available inside the classroom. Visiting a research laboratory, a university campuses (e.g., UCI), and meeting with 

scientists during these field trips or through guest speakers on campus will motivates students. Especially when 

some of these guest speakers or people they meet during field trips share the same culture with students, students 

will find new role models. 

 

While most field trips are directly related to specific academic curricula, they also may address the need for intra- 

and inter- personal growth in children, and thus may be designed to promote social and emotional development 

and to provide for the development of the "whole" child.  

 

P eer  A ss i s t ed  R ea d ing  ( PA LS )  

Student and staff will participate in Peer Assisted Reading (PALS) that will occur three to four days a week for a 

minimum of 20 minutes per session. The classrooms will be equipped with libraries to provide access to a wide 

variety of books at appropriate reading levels. Students will be trained on PALS protocols and procedures. 

Students who are struggling academically will participate in additional English enrichment/intervention programs 

during the day and after school. 

 

In order to determine the student’s reading level, a computerized reading assessment that utilizes computer-

adaptive technology is administered. Depending on the assessment results, students will receive a range of book 

recommendations that will challenge the student without causing frustration. Students' reading comprehension 

skills will be monitored. If a student continually obtains low scores while reading at his or her level, intervention 

will be immediately implemented. Assessment results will be used by teachers to inform their literacy strategies 

for individual students.  

 

C. STUDENTS TO BE SERVED 

Students from all areas of SAUSD and the INDA will be recruited with a goal of creating an economically and 

ethnically diverse student population. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will advertise to the 

entire SAUSD community and draw students that are attracted to the unique K-8 STEM program. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy aims to attract students from all cultural backgrounds within SAUSD, 

especially the Latino ethnicity. Historically, the number of Latino students pursuing careers in STEM areas has 

been low. A notable cause of these low numbers is that Latino students have inadequate exposure to STEM 

curriculum. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will provide a unique program to a largely-

Latino student population of SAUSD in the hopes of educating and inspiring students to pursue STEM-related 

careers in today’s technology-driven economy. 

 

As a sample student population, we have used the following SAUSD schools that have similarities in their 

educational programs to project the demographics of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy. The 

SAUSD fundamental schools have similar ―magnet‖ educational programs that draw students from throughout 

the District. These schools would be expected to have student populations similar to the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy that has a ―magnet‖ STEM program. Sepulveda Elementary has a science-focused 

curriculum, and would also be expected to have similar demographics to the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy. In addition, Taft Elementary and McFadden Intermediate schools are the SAUSD schools in 

closest proximity to the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy and would be anticipated to have the 

most comparable demographics to the INDA (See Table 1 on the following page). 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 19 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 20 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

TABLE 1: Sample Student Populations  

 
S C H O O L  

P R O F I L E  
A P I  A Y P  

S C H O O L S  

E
n

g
li

sh
 

L
ea

rn
er

s 
(%

) 

F
re

e-
R

ed
u

ce
d

 

M
ea

ls
 (

%
) 

S
ta

te
w

id
e 

S
ch

o
o

l 
 

R
an

k
in

g
 

S
im

il
ar

  

S
ch

o
o

l 
 

R
an

k
in

g
 

P
I 

S
ta

tu
s 

 

 A
P

I 

G
ro

w
th

 f
ro

m
 

P
ri

o
r 

Y
ea

r 

M
et

 E
n

g
li

sh
 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e?

 

M
et

 M
at

h
 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e?

 

Similar Area Schools          

Taft Elementary 41.1 70.9 4 6 
Year 

3 
794 +8 No No 

McFadden Intermediate 33.4 78.7 2 5 
Year 

5 
739 +28 No Yes 

Similar Program Schools          

Greenville Fundamental  

Elementary 
28.9 57.0 9 10 n/a 886 -1 No No 

MacArthur Fundamental 

Intermediate 
6.6 68.0 8 9 

Year 

4 
858 +9 Yes No 

Mendez Fundamental 

Intermediate 
20.7 79.6 7 9 

Year 

3 
829 +16 No No 

Muir Fundamental Elementary 34.2 57.6 9 10 n/a 904 +11 Yes Yes 

Sepulveda Elementary 61.7 83.1 5 10 n/a 770 -29 No No 

Thorpe Fundamental 

Elementary 
30.9 62.6 9 10 n/a 901 -1 Yes Yes 

 

TABLE 1 (Continued): Sample Student Populations  

 E T H N I C I T Y  P E R C E N T A G E S  ( % )  

S C H O O L  

A
m

er
ic

an
 

In
d

ia
n
 

A
si

an
 

P
ac

if
ic

 

Is
la

n
d

er
 

F
il

ip
in

o
  

A
fr

ic
an

 

A
m

er
ic

an
 

W
h

it
e
 

2
 o

r 
M

o
re

 

R
ac

es
 

N
o

n
e 

 

R
ep

o
rt

ed
 

H
is

p
an

ic
 

Similar Area Schools          

Taft Elementary 0.2 6.6 0.4 0.7 3.1 6.1 2.4 0 80.5 

McFadden Intermediate 0 4.0 0.3 0.5 0.9 1.6 0.4 0 92.3 

Similar Program Schools          

Greenville Fundamental  

Elementary 
0.2 11.5 0.2 0.8 0.9 4.3 2.1 0.1 79.9 

MacArthur Fundamental 

Intermediate 
0 9.3 0.1 0.8 0.8 2.0 1.0 0 86.0 

Mendez Fundamental Intermediate 0.1 0.6 0.1 0 0.3 0.6 0.3 0 98.0 

Muir Fundamental Elementary 0.5 2.2 0.2 0.5 0.6 3.6 0.7 0 91.7 

Sepulveda Elementary 0.2 0.5 0 0.2 0.5 0.2 0.2 0 98.2 

Thorpe Fundamental Elementary 0 7.9 0.5 0.7 0.7 2.6 0.8 0 86.8 

 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 21 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

P r io r i t y  E nro l lm en t  
 

The main objective of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is to house students generated from 

the INDA. Priority enrollment will be given to students that reside in this area. Second enrollment priority will be 

given to SAUSD students attending other SAUSD impacted (overcrowded) schools. Third enrollment priority 

will be given to SAUSD students attending any other SAUSD schools. Any other students that choose to attend 

the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will be admitted as facility capacity allows. If Irvine Unified 

School District (IUSD) students in the vicinity wish to enroll, they will first be required to obtain an inter-district 

transfer release from IUSD. At full capacity, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will serve 600 

students in grades K-8. If the number of students who wish to attend the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy exceeds the school’s capacity, enrollment preferences will be given as explained in Element 8. 

 

St ud en t  P ro j ec t io n  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy site is located within an area of the SAUSD that has 

experienced significant development, and is planned to continue developing with residential and retail mixed-

uses. Residential development projects totaling 4,658 units are planned to be developed in the next 2-5 years. An 

additional 902 units were previously submitted to the City of Irvine, but since withdrawn or expired as a result of 

the economic depression. This residentially-designated land has the potential to become future residential projects 

again as the market returns, and should be considered in the enrollment projection for the INDA build-out (see 

Exhibit 4 in Element 18). Together these total 5,560 planned units planned within SAUSD. When added to the 

existing 4,755 units, the INDA would contain a total of more than 10,000 residential units within SAUSD 

boundaries. Based on various student generation rates (SGR) obtained from gathered data, the INDA residential 

units have the potential to generate 300-600 students within SAUSD, as detailed in Tables 2 and 3.  

 

A conservative SGR was obtained using the number of students currently residing in the area. As the INDA 

continues to grow and evolve into a mixed-use community, it will become more attractive to families and is 

anticipated to generate additional students. Therefore, an additional enrollment projection was prepared to project 

the number of students at build-out of the approximately 10,000 residential units. Since the type of residential 

development within the INDA is consistent with the residential development within the IUSD, the build-out 

projection utilizes the IUSD’s SGR for higher-density attached units. In addition to INDA units with SAUSD, the 

Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy has the potential to draw students from the residential 

development just outside the SAUSD boundaries in the vicinity of the school site, as shown in Exhibit 4 (See 

Element 18), and the potential to draw students from other areas of the SAUSD that are drawn to the specialized 

STEM instructional program. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

TABLE 2: Conservative Enrollment Projection  
School Level SGR # of Units Students Generated 

Elementary  0.040 4,658 186 

Intermediate  0.012 4,658 56 

Total 0.052 4,658 242 

NOTE: Based on the current number of students in the INDA. 

TABLE 3: Enrollment Projection  at Build-out 
School Level SGR # of Units Students Generated 

Elementary  0.0500 10,000 500 

Intermediate  0.0100 10,000 100 

Total 0.0600 10,000 600 

NOTE: Based on the IUSD’s student generation rate. 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 22 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy believes the conservative projection best constitutes the 

anticipated enrollment for its opening year (August 2017). The build-out projection is used for the charter’s full-

enrollment projection. In consideration that this area is not currently served by a school facility, and the school is 

likely to draw ―magnet‖ enrollment from outside the INDA, we believe this enrollment is feasible, is backed by 

development research, and is reasonably achievable. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will open as an elementary school serving 240 students 

from grades K4-6, and over a 3-year period, it will expand into a K-8 school with 600 students. As the residential 

development continues within the INDA, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will build its 

enrollment until it reaches full-enrollment at 600 students.   

 

D. CURRICULUM & INSTRUCTIONAL DESIGN  

Our goal is to provide students a world class education that will prepare them for success in high school, college, 

life, and a future STEM career. To achieve this ambitious goal, we will employ research-based strategies proven 

to increase student achievement, provide an engaging STEM-focused educational program that is based on 

Common Core State Standards and Next Generation Science Standards, and work with students and families to 

develop an environment that fully supports students and their needs. 

 

The program at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will combine the following instructional 

strategies for a balanced approach to instruction:  

• Develop positive attitudes toward science  

• Increase students’ interest in STEM and reading 

• Provide an innovative, engaging Common Core standards-based curriculum 

• Sharpen students’ critical thinking skills by providing hands-on inquiry activities 

• Increase vocabulary knowledge and conceptual understanding 

 Provide field trips, internship opportunities, and guest motivational speakers 

 Engage students with independent and group projects 

 Conduct ongoing assessment and intervention 

 Provide ample access to technology and incorporate technology into the daily instruction  

 Provide differentiated curriculum and scaffolding supports 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s instructional program is based around providing hands-

onproject-based, inquiry-based oriented instruction. Significant research has been conducted about the benefits of 

an inquiry-based science program for special populations. Inquiry-oriented teaching may be especially valuable 

for many underserved and underrepresented populations. As noted by the North Central Regional Education 

Laboratory, ―All students—especially those at risk—need to be engaged in interesting and challenging learning 

that goes beyond basic proficiencies.‖  

 

The more interested and engaged students are by a subject or project, the easier it will be for them to construct in-

depth knowledge of it. Learning becomes almost effortless when something reflects their own interests. 

According to the Center for Inquiry, inquiry-based learning provides advantages for all students: 

 An inquiry-based learning approach is flexible and works well for projects that range from the extensive 

to the bounded, from the research-oriented to the creative, from the laboratory to the Internet. It is 

essential, however, that you plan ahead so you can guide kids to suitable learning opportunities. 

 Students who have trouble in school because they do not respond well to lectures and memorization will 

blossom in an inquiry-based learning setting, awakening their confidence, interest, and self-esteem. 

 The traditional approach tends to be very vertical: the class studies science for a while, for example, then 

language arts, then math, then geography. In contrast, the inquiry-based approach is at its best when 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 23 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

working on interdisciplinary projects that reinforce multiple skills or knowledge areas in different facets 

of the same project. The traditional approach is sharply weighted toward the cognitive domain of growth, 

whereas inquiry-based learning projects positively reinforce skills in all three domains—physical, 

emotional, and cognitive. 

 Inquiry-based learning is particularly well-suited to collaborative learning environments and team 

projects. Activities can be created in which the entire class works on a single question as a group (the 

whole group must truly care about the question) or in teams working on the same or different questions. 

Inquiry-based learning also works well when each student develops an individual project if some 

elements of collaboration or sharing are required. 

 An inquiry-based approach can work with any age group. Even though older students will be able to 

pursue much more sophisticated questioning and research projects, a spirit of inquiry can be cultivated 

even with the youngest student, in an age-appropriate manner. 

 

EXHIBIT 1 :  SAUSD’s Theoretical Framework for Common Core Implementation  

 

L i t e r a c y  

 
Although the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy specializes in STEM curriculum, it also is 

committed to enhancing the literacy and language skills of all students, and especially literacy development of 

Latino students. From kindergarten through fifth grade, students benefit from two and a half hours a day of 

literacy instruction and practice—mastering foundational skills in phonemic awareness, phonics, fluency, 

comprehension, vocabulary, writing, grammar, spelling, research, listening, and oral presentation skills necessary 

to be effective communicators in English.  The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy uses a literature-



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 24 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

based literacy program, to help students master all of the Common Core State Standards and become habitual, 

critical readers.  

 

Key elements of the school’s literacy program include: 

 

 Phonics. Kindergarten and first grade literacy focuses on the development of foundational skills. Each day 

students receive 45 minutes of direct phonics instruction during literacy rotations. This instruction occurs in small 

groups to allow teachers to differentiate instruction in order to meet the needs of all of the students in the 

classroom.  

 

 Fluency and Decoding. Students are placed in small groups based on initial diagnostic assessments that follow 

PALS protocols and procedures. This allows teachers to meet students at their current level, remediate specific 

deficits, and accelerate them to grade-level standards of proficiency. Teachers running these small groups are 

trained in early literacy and English language development in order to provide students with the phonemic 

awareness and phonics skills necessary for reading success. Several research-based programs have proven 

effective with similar populations of students. Students receive additional reading instruction until their 

assessment results indicate that fluency and decoding remediation is no longer needed.  

 

 Comprehension and the Use of Literature. Understanding the written word is likely a student’s best indicator of 

future school success. In order to ensure that all students develop proficient comprehension of all types of text, 

the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy provides multiple opportunities for skill development with a 

variety of texts with a focus on informational text. We believe strongly in the use of full pieces of literature, rather 

than the excerpts commonly used in the traditional basal reader. However, both the far reading and close reading 

strategies will be deployed to support deep analyses of text. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s reading classes are grounded in the use of grade-level and 

above grade-level books and use an additional decoding and comprehension phonics program to support students 

who are struggling. Most of the novels selected for use in our reading classes were chosen from the Common 

Core State Standards.  

 

Teachers read aloud short stories, novels, poems, and nonfiction to model fluent, expressive reading of texts at 

and above the students’ grade level. Through the deliberate ―think aloud of metacognitive strategies, teachers 

help students develop the habits of effective readers. Teachers also provide direct instruction about these 

metacognitive strategies, give students opportunities to practice and share their own thought processes, and offer 

constructive feedback that pushes students to deeper understanding, both in whole-class demonstrations and one-

on-one reading conferences.  

 

In kindergarten through grade five, students also practice these reading strategies in their core reading classes and 

in leveled, guided reading groups. These guided reading classes support the work of the core reading classes and 

are based on the same units of study and content standards as the core reading course. All teachers in the school 

(not simply English-Language Arts teachers) are assigned a group of students based on reading fluency, 

decoding, and comprehension assessment data. These groups are smaller in size than other core classes in order to 

provide increased opportunities for each student to read and receive specific feedback from their teacher. 

Teachers lead students through shared texts, with a level of support appropriate to the group’s reading level.. 

 

A textual analysis component provides students the opportunity to apply specific reading skills to shorter pieces 

of texts that, through repeated practice, help students develop their ability to decipher questions and use evidence 

from the text to support their answers. These passages and questions are carefully selected to prepare students for 

mastery of the reading standards at each grade level.  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 25 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

Students read independently for at least 30 minutes a day in grades K-3 and an hour a day in grades 4-8, including 

supervised reading time at school and assigned reading at home. 

 

 Vocabulary. The development of academic vocabulary is a school-wide focus. Teachers in all content areas use 

research-based best practices for explicitly teaching new words, providing opportunities to learn words in context, 

and providing students with the necessary opportunities to practice these words repeatedly across content areas in 

collaborative conversations and writing. In addition, teachers provide students with instruction about word parts 

(prefixes, suffixes, and Latin and Greek roots) and strategies for learning new words so that students increase 

their vocabularies as they encounter unfamiliar words in their daily reading.  

 

 Writing and Grammar Students in kindergarten through sixth grade also have opportunities to write for multiple 

purposes to improve their writing skills. They will write arguments to support claims in an analysis of substantive 

topics and off selected texts. In addition, students will write informative and explanatory texts to examine and 

convey complex ideas and information as well as narratives to develop read or imagined experiences or events.  

In addition, through the explicit teaching and practice of grammar and spelling rules, students master conventions 

of the English language and will be held accountable for these conventions in the writing they complete at 

school—not just in writing, but in all of their classes. Students are expected to write every day, in every class and 

for a variety of purposes.  
 

M a t h e m a t i c s  
 

All students need a high-quality mathematics program designed to prepare them to graduate from high school 

ready for college and careers. In support of this goal, SAUSD adopted the Common Core State Standards in 

mathematics. The following is a brief summary of the standards by grade: 

 

K i n d e r g a r t e n :   

1. Counting and Cardinality  

 Know number names and the count sequence  

 Count to tell the number of objects 

 Compare numbers 

2. Operations and Algebraic Thinking  

 Understand addition as putting together and adding to, and understand subtraction as taking apart and 

taking from 

3. Number and Operations in Base Ten  

 Work with numbers 11–19 to gain foundations for place value 

4. Measurement and Data  

 Describe and compare measurable attributes  

 Classify objects and count the number of objects in categories 

5. Geometry  

 Identify and describe shapes 

 Analyze, compare, create, and compose shapes 

 

F i r s t  G r a d e :   

1. Operations and Algebraic Thinking  

 Represent and solve problems involving addition and subtraction.  

 Understand and apply properties of operations and the relationship between addition and subtraction. 

 Add and subtract within 20. 

 Work with addition and subtraction equations.  

2. Number and Operations in Base Ten  

 Extend the counting sequence.  

 Understand place value.  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 26 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 Use place value understanding and properties of operations to add and subtract.  

3. Measurement and Data  

 Measure lengths indirectly and by iterating length units.  

 Tell and write time.  

 Represent and interpret data.  

4. Geometry  

 Reason with shapes and their attributes. 

 

S e c o n d  G r a d e :   

1. Operations and Algebraic Thinking  

 Represent and solve problems involving addition and subtraction.  

 Add and subtract within 20. 

 Work with equal groups of objects to gain foundations for multiplication.  

2. Number and Operations in Base Ten  

 Understand place value.  

 Use place value understanding and properties of operations to add and subtract.  

3. Measurement and Data  

 Measure and estimate lengths in standard units.  

 Relate addition and subtraction to length.  

 Work with time and money.  

 Represent and interpret data.  

4. Geometry  

 Reason with shapes and their attributes.  

 

T h i r d  G r a d e :   

1. Operations and Algebraic Thinking  

 Represent and solve problems involving multiplication and division.  

 Understand properties of multiplication and the relationship between multiplication and division. 

 Multiply and divide within 100.  

 Solve problems involving the four operations, and identify and explain patterns in arithmetic. 

2. Number and Operations in Base Ten  

 Use place value understanding and properties of operations to perform multi-digit arithmetic. 

3. Number and Operations—Fractions  

 Develop understanding of fractions as numbers.  

4. Measurement and Data  

 Solve problems involving measurement and estimation of intervals of time, liquid volumes, and 

masses of objects 

 Represent and interpret data.   

 Geometric measurement: understand concepts of area and relate area to multiplication and to 

addition.  

 Geometric measurement: recognize perimeter as an attribute of plane figures and distinguish between 

linear and area measures.  

5. Geometry 

 Reason with shapes and their attributes. 

 

F o u r t h  G r a d e :   

1. Operations and Algebraic Thinking  

 Use the four operations with whole numbers to solve problems.  

 Gain familiarity with factors and multiples.  

 Generate and analyze patterns.  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 27 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

2. Number and Operations in Base Ten  

 Generalize place value understanding for multi-digit whole numbers.  

 Use place value understanding and properties of operations to perform multi-digit arithmetic.  

3. Number and Operations—Fractions  

 Extend understanding of fraction equivalence and ordering.  

 Build fractions from unit fractions by applying and extending previous understandings of operations 

on whole numbers.  

 Understand decimal notation for fractions, and compare decimal fractions.  

4. Measurement and Data 

 Solve problems involving measurement and conversion of measurements from a larger unit to a 

smaller unit.  

 Represent and interpret data.  

 Geometric measurement: understand concepts of angle and measure angles.  

5. Geometry 

 Draw and identify lines and angles, and classify shapes by properties of their lines and angles. 

 

F i f t h  G r a d e :   

1. Operations and Algebraic Thinking  

 Write and interpret numerical expressions.  

 Analyze patterns and relationships.  

2. Number and Operations in Base Ten  

 Understand the place value system.  

 Perform operations with multi-digit whole numbers and with decimals to hundredths.  

3. Number and Operations—Fractions  

 Use equivalent fractions as a strategy to add and subtract fractions.  

 Apply and extend previous understandings of multiplication and division to multiply and divide 

fractions.  

4. Measurement and Data  

 Convert like measurement units within a given measurement system.  

 Represent and interpret data.  

 Geometric measurement: understand concepts of volume and relate volume to multiplication and to 

addition.  

5. Geometry 

 Graph points on the coordinate plane to solve real-world and mathematical problems.  

 Classify two-dimensional figures into categories based on their properties.  

 

S i x t h  G r a d e :  

1. Ratios and Proportional Relationships  

 Understand ratio concepts and use ratio reasoning to solve problems.  

2. The Number System  

 Apply and extend previous understandings of multiplication and division to divide fractions by 

fractions.  

 Compute fluently with multi-digit numbers and find common factors and multiples.  

 Apply and extend previous understandings of numbers to the system of rational numbers. 

3. Expressions and Equations  

 Apply and extend previous understandings of arithmetic to algebraic expressions.  

 Reason about and solve one-variable equations and inequalities.  

 Represent and analyze quantitative relationships between dependent and independent variables.  

4. Geometry  

 Solve real-world and mathematical problems involving area, surface area, and volume.  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 28 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

5. Statistics and Probability  

 Develop understanding of statistical variability.  

 Summarize and describe distributions. 

 
 
S e v e n t h  G r a d e :   

1. Ratios and Proportional Relationships  

 Analyze proportional relationships and use them to solve real-world and mathematical problems.  

2. The Number System  

 Apply and extend previous understandings of operations with fractions to add, subtract, multiply, and 

divide rational numbers.  

3. Expressions and Equations  

 Use properties of operations to generate equivalent expressions.  

 Solve real-life and mathematical problems using numerical and algebraic expressions and equations. 

4. Geometry  

 Draw, construct and describe geometrical figures and describe the relationships between them.  

 Solve real-life and mathematical problems involving angle measure, area, surface area, and volume. 

5. Statistics and Probability  

 Use random sampling to draw inferences about a population.  

 Draw informal comparative inferences about two populations.  

 Investigate chance processes and develop, use, and evaluate probability models. 

 

E i g h t h  G r a d e :  

1. The Number System  
 Know that there are numbers that are not rational, and approximate them by rational numbers. 

2. Expressions and Equations  
 Work with radicals and integer exponents.  
 Understand the connection between proportional relationships, lines, and linear equations.  
 Analyze and solve linear equations and pairs of simultaneous linear equations.  

3. Functions  
 Define, evaluate, and compare functions.  
 Use functions to model relationships between quantities.  

4. Geometry  
 Understand congruence and similarity using physical models, transparencies, or geometry software. 
 Understand and apply the Pythagorean Theorem.  
 Solve real-world and mathematical problems involving volume of cylinders, cones, and spheres. 

5. Statistics and Probability 
 Investigate patterns of association in bivariate data. 

 

Com p uter  S c i e n c e  

At the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, every teacher will have access to dedicated computers in 

their classrooms to prepare and present teaching activities such as class documentary movies, presentations, etc. 

Wireless network access will be available at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy. Teachers will 

use various types of technology during classroom instruction, including computer and projector, interactive 

technology tools, and access to educational websites. Furthermore, the school will utilize computers to support 

the instructional and managerial needs, such as online grades and attendance information, online homework, and 

student progress reports for parents using the school information system. 

 

During intervention, teachers use educational materials that provide review, re-teach and enrichment programs. 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 29 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy would utilize the same computer software programs and 

other resources as SAUSD that allow teachers to monitor the progress of students who are achieving below grade 

level, and provide software generated tests and personalized instructional materials based on common core and 

California content standards/framework which have not been achieved. 

 

Students at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will develop their ability to use technology as a 

tool for learning, research, observation, and communication. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning 

Academy encourages parents’ active use of school’s technology resources by offering free tutorial sessions on 

how to track student’s performance using School information system and providing computer access to all 

parents. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy is aware of the fact that, given its target 

population, a high percentage of students may have either limited or no access to any computer outside the 

school. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s computer science curriculum is designed for 

students with limited computer experience. Students requiring extra time with a computer will have the 

opportunity to visit the computer lab after school. 

 

T ex tb o ok s  &  I ns t ru c t io na l  Ma t er ia l s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy, as a District-dependent charter, will adopt instructional 

materials that are aligned with Common Core State Standard instructional materials. The Charter SchoolThe 

Advanced Learning Academy’s Co-Director will work with the District’s Chief Academic OfficerEducational 

Services Division and teacher leaders to identify, evaluate, and select appropriate materials and to make 

modifications to core and additional instructional resources.  

 

Sm a l l  S cho o l  En vi ro nm en t  
 

Research has repeatedly indicated that small schools are highly effective in ensuring that urban students reach 

proficiency. Among the benefits of smaller schools are: 

 

 Lower dropout rates  

 More course completion  

 Higher grades and improvements in standardized test scores  

 Better attendance  

 Less exposure to violence  

 Increased student engagement and achievement  

 Better communication among the staff  

 Increased parent involvement  

 Greater accountability  

At full enrollment the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will serve 600 students kindergarten 

through eighth grade. This small size and strategic growth plan allows us to create an environment where every 

staff member knows each student by name, individual supports are a vital component of the daily schedule, and a 

strong, orderly, academic culture is consistently maintained. This small school size provides the structure 

necessary for student success while at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy and also allows the 

students to develop the character and discipline necessary for future success.  

 

Cu l tur e  o f  Hig h  Ex p ec ta t io ns  
 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy has created a structured learning environment where 

everyone is held to high behavioral and academic expectations at all times. Leaders, teachers, and staff are 

expected to be professionals who work to the absolute best of their ability to ensure each student’s success. Every 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 30 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

staff member must be organized, meticulous, and passionate in the school-wide pursuit of excellence. Each is be a 

model of the lifelong learner we challenge our students to become.  

 

The leadership, teachers, and staff work together to create and support the high level of structure necessary for 

students to succeed academically and behaviorally. A clearly defined Code of Conduct outlines the behaviors 

expected from each student and the consequences for both positive and negative choices. Seemingly small details 

are given careful attention at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy. From strict enforcement of the 

uniform policy, to standards for binder organization, to rules for behavior in the hallway, every detail is planned 

to ensure a safe, orderly, respectful school community.  

 

In addition to this highly structured approach to management and discipline, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy also works to create a caring, joyful community in which positive reinforcement and explicit 

character development efforts help students to build intrinsic motivation. Based on the success of this approach as 

used at the highest-performing urban charter schools serving a similar population, consistent enforcement of 

consequences for small infractions prevents larger infractions from occurring. 

 

 

Sam p l e  Ins t ru c t io na l  Ca l end a r  &  B el l  S ch ed u le  

 

TABLE 4: Sample Elementary Bell Schedule 

Lower Elementary      (TK-2) 

Breakfast 8:15 AM 8:30 AM 

Reading/Writing/ELA  8:30 AM 10:20 AM 

Recess 10:20 AM 10:40 AM 

Math 10:40 AM 12:05 PM 

Lunch 12:05 PM 12:30 PM 

PALS (READING) 12:30 PM 12:55 PM 

Specials 12:55 PM 1:40 PM 

Science/Social Studies 1:40 PM 2:25 PM 

Dismissal 2:25 PM 2:40 PM 

Tutoring / Clubs 2:40 PM 3:30 PM 

 

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 31 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

TABLE 5: Sample Intermediate Bell Schedule  

 
6 7 8 

1st Period 8:00 AM 8:56 AM ENGLISH ENGLISH ENGLISH 

2nd Period 9:00 AM 9:56 AM MATH MATH MATH 

3rd Period 10:00 AM 10:56 AM SOCIAL STUDIES SOCIAL STUDIES SOCIAL STUDIES 

LUNCH 11:00 AM 11:28 AM LUNCH LUNCH LUNCH 

Reading 11:32 AM 12:00 PM PALS PALS PALS 

4th Period 12:04 PM 1:00 PM SCIENCE SCIENCE SCIENCE 

5th Period 1:04 PM 2:00 PM 

ELECTIVE/  

ELA-MATH 

ENRICHMENT 

ELECTIVE/  

ELA-MATH 

ENRICHMENT 

ELECTIVE/  

ELA-MATH 

ENRICHMENT 

6th Period 2:04 PM 3:00 PM 

ELECTIVE/ 

ELA-MATH 

ENRICHMENT 

ELECTIVE/  

ELA-MATH 

ENRICHMENT 

ELECTIVE/  

ELA-MATH 

ENRICHMENT 

After School 3:10 PM 4:00 PM TUTORING/CLUBS TUTORING/CLUBS TUTORING/CLUBS 

 

EXHIBIT 2: Sample Academic School Calendar



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 32 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

E. PLAN FOR ACADEMICALLY LOW ACHIEVING STUDENTS  

California’s high stakes standardized testing program provides results too late for meaningful academic 

adjustments. Therefore, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy students will be tested in the 

beginning of the school year and several times during the year with standards-based and large-scaled tests, and 

necessary adjustments to the instruction are made based upon the data.  

 

Campus-wide tests will be used to measure individual levels of student performance reflected in state adopted 

content standards. The tests will measure various skills, such as analytic ability, critical thinking, and synthesis. 

While the testing is not used as a basis for student promotion, it will provide a valuable resource to identify 

students in need of remediation and intervention. The tests will be administered three times every academic year. 

They adapt to the student's ability, measuring what a child knows and needs to learn. They also measure academic 

growth over time, independent of grade level or age.  

 

Students are tested in four main subject areas: Reading, Language Usage, Mathematics, and Science. Based on 

results, student performances will be identified as one of the following: 

 Proficient and growing 

 Proficient and not growing 

 Growing but not proficient 

 Not growing and not proficient 

 

While we believe that most students’ needs will be met by the wide variety of school-wide supports in place, the 

Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is committed to working with students who are achieving below 

grade level in order to help them achieve at expected levels.  

 

A student at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is considered low-achieving if they meet the 

following criteria: 

1. Performing more than one level below his/her actual grade level based on class assignments and 

assessments, including a proficient score of Below Basic or Far Below Basic on the California 

Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CST CAASPP) and equivalent scores on Measures of 

Academic Performance (nationally-normedMAP) assessments  

2. Earning below 70% in one or more core subjects and therefore in danger of failing the grade  

3. Not on track to make at least one grade level of growth in reading, writing, and math  

Students with below-grade-level skills benefit from the following components of our school’s design: 

 Highly skilled teachers who use a variety of effective teaching strategies and techniques  

 Supportive culture of high expectations and discipline  

 Predictable class structure in all content areas  

 Extended time for literacy (reading and writing) instruction in grades kindergarten through six  

 Small, leveled guided reading groups in grades kindergarten through five  

 Systematic, explicit instruction in phonics and phonemic awareness in kindergarten through first grade  

 Systematic reading strategy and textual analysis instruction  

 Extensive independent reading at each student’s level  

 Small group math instruction in grades kindergarten through three  

 Systematic writing and grammar instruction  

 Word Walls to reinforce academic vocabulary  

 Frequent use of ―think-pair-share‖ and other cooperative learning strategies  

 Use of graphic organizers to represent ideas  

 Reinforcement of ELA standards in all content areas  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 33 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 Explicit vocabulary instruction in all content areas  

 Group work and oral presentations in all content areas  

 Frequent use of assessments and specific feedback from teachers  

 Frequent communication with and engagement of parents in supporting academic and behavioral 

expectations  

 

In upper grades, students identified as low achieving will also attend intensive obligatory after school programs 

tailored towards each student’s needs. This specialized strategy provides the opportunity for struggling students to 

master the relevant subject’s content standards.  

 

Students demonstrating adequate improvement can advance to a satisfactory level where they are provided 

moderate tutoring sessions and various fun opportunities, such as recreational clubs, and community trips. For 

those low-achieving students who do not positively respond to intervention/instruction, the homeroom teachers 

may decide to include them in different recreational activities to promote students’ interest in learning. The 

teacher will regularly monitor academic improvement for these low achieving students through in-class 

assessment and monitoring tools. Parents will remain informed of their student’s academic progress during this 

process via parent-student-teacher meetings and parent access to student grades and progress reports. 

 

F. PLAN FOR ACADEMICALLY HIGH ACHIEVING STUDENTS  
 

We are committed in engaging in comprehensive strategies for all students enrolled at the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy. While we believe that most students are appropriately challenged by our rigorous 

academic program, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is committed to working with students 

who are performing above grade level to provide additional challenge.  

 

Students earning advanced scores on the CSTCAASPP or MAP, or otherwise identified by the staff as high-

achieving, benefit from the following components of our school’s design:  

 

• Highly skilled teachers who use a variety of effective teaching strategies and techniques that challenge each 

student  

• Small school size and safe environment, where academic achievement is cool  

• Small, leveled guided reading groups that allow high-achieving students to access challenging literature  

• Extensive independent reading at each student’s level that allows each child to excel at his or her own pace  

• Frequent use of ―think-pair-share‖ and other cooperative learning strategies  

• Opportunities to further develop literacy skills in all content areas  

• Group work and oral presentations in all content areas  

• Frequent use of assessments and specific feedback from teachers  

• Frequent communication with and engagement of parents in supporting our college preparatory mission  

• Opportunities to build leadership skills through peer tutoring  

 

Classroom teachers are trained to differentiate lessons to meet the needs of advanced learners, and provide 

learning experiences that meet the special needs of these students with regard to the pace of lessons, the depth of 

content presented, and variety of processes used and products created.  

 

High-achieving students will also be offered opportunities to study a variety of advanced concepts in core 

academic subjects and enrichment topics. Additional opportunities for high-achieving students include advanced 

book clubs, poetry readings, math Olympics, journalism, robotics, speech and debate. These students are also 

challenged through preparation for and participation in a variety of school-based, local and/or national academic 

competitions, like spelling bees, science fairs, and Science Olympiad.  

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 34 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

G. PLAN FOR ENGLISH LEARNERS 
 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will meet all applicable legal requirements for English 

Learners (―EL‖) as it pertains to annual notification to parents, student identification, placement, program options, 

EL and core content instruction, teacher qualifications and training, re-classification to fluent English proficient 

status, monitoring and evaluating program effectiveness, and standardized testing requirement. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will implement policies to assure proper placement, evaluation, and 

communication regarding ELs and the rights of students and parents.  

 

Hom e La ng uag e  Su rvey  
 
The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will administer the home language survey upon a student’s 

initial enrollment into the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy.  

 

CE L DT  T es t ing  
 

All students who indicate that their home language is other than English will be a California English Language 

Development Test (―CELDT‖) tested within thirty days of initial enrollment and at least annually thereafter 

between July 1
st
 and October 31

st
 until re-designated as fluent English proficient.  

 

R ecla s s i f i ca t io n  Pro ced ur es  
 

Reclassification procedures utilize multiple criteria in determining whether to classify a pupil as proficient in 

English including, but not limited to, all of the following:  

 

 Assessment of language proficiency using an objective assessment instrument including,  but not limited 

to, the CELDT.  

 Participation of the pupil’s classroom teachers and any other certificated staff with direct responsibility 

for teaching or placement decisions of the pupil to evaluate the pupil’s curriculum mastery.  

 Parental opinion and consultation, achieved through notice to parents or guardians of the language 

reclassification and placement including a description of the reclassification process and the parents’ 

opportunity to participate, and encouragement of the participation of parents or guardians in the 

reclassification procedure including seeking their opinion and consultation during the reclassification 

process.  

 Comparison of the pupil’s performance in basic skills against an empirically established range of 

performance and basic skills based upon the performance of English proficient pupils of the same age that 

demonstrate to others that the pupil is sufficiently proficient in English to participate effectively in a 

curriculum designed for pupils of the same age whose native language is English.  

 The Student Oral Language Observation Matrix may be used by teachers to measure progress regarding 

comprehension, fluency, vocabulary, pronunciation, and grammar usage.  

 

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 35 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

St ra t eg ie s  fo r  Eng l i sh  L ea rn er s  
 

The programs, materials and strategies to be developed, implemented and administered may include:  

 

 Parents will be informed of how the program will specifically help their students learn English taught by 

qualified teachers who are providing research based instruction.  

 Parents will be encouraged to be involved in the academic achievement of their student through written 

and oral communications which have been translated into the Spanish language Translation into other 

languages can be accomplished through the use of Santa Ana Unified School District personnel when 

necessary.  

 Parent meetings and conferences regarding their student’s identification, placement, progress, and exit 

criteria will have translators available.  

 Parents will receive support strategies to assist their student at home 

 Spanish speaking individuals will make phone calls to parents and translate at meetings 

 

 

H. PLAN FOR SOCIO-ECONOMICALLY DISADVANTAGED STUDENTS  

A goal of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is to expose students to STEM curriculum and 

inspire students to pursue STEM-related careers that might not have otherwise been exposed to STEM 

curriculum. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy plans to offer the District a unique educational 

program that accomplishes this goal. 

 

We believe that poverty alone does not indicate the need for specific instructional techniques. Our instructional 

approaches are based on each student’s instructional needs, not their income level. Our school design is based on 

highly successful urban schools that serve a similar population of low-income students and offers a multitude of 

supports that meet the needs of potentially ―at-risk students, including:  

 

• Highly skilled teachers who use a variety of effective teaching strategies and techniques  

• Small school size and safe environment  

• Supportive culture of high expectations and discipline  

• Predictable class structure in all content areas  

• Extended time for literacy (reading and writing) instruction  

• Small, leveled guided reading groups  

• Systematic, explicit instruction in phonics and phonemic awareness in kindergarten through first grade  

• Systematic reading strategy and textual analysis instruction  

• Extensive independent reading at each student’s level  

• Phonics, decoding, and fluency groups  

• Systematic writing and grammar instruction  

• Small group math instruction in grades kindergarten through three  

• Frequent use of ―think-pair-share‖ and other cooperative learning strategies  

• Use of graphic organizers to represent ideas  

• Reinforcement of ELA standards in all content areas  

• Explicit vocabulary instruction in all content areas  

• Group work and oral presentations in all content areas  

• Frequent use of assessments and specific feedback from teachers  

• Frequent communication with and engagement of parents in supporting academic and behavioral 

expectations. 

 

California Department of Education defines socio-economically disadvantaged student as a student neither of 

whose parents have received a high school diploma or as a student who is eligible for the free or reduced-price 

lunch program, also known as the National School Lunch Program (NSLP).  The Charter SchoolThe Advanced 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 36 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

Learning Academy will also use registration records, home visits and parent surveys to identify the socio-

economically disadvantaged students.  

 

Being socio-economically disadvantaged means that the parents would likely not be able to provide sufficient 

help with topics taught in class or homework assigned to the student. Every student has a potential to learn and 

excel. However, not all students have the motivation to excel, or the means to do so. Socio-economically 

disadvantaged students are prone to fail because of lack of high expectation, or they do not have necessary 

assistance and guidance required of their families. 

 

The instructional design of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy addresses the needs of low-

income and socio-economically disadvantaged students. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy 

will identify the socio-economically disadvantaged and low-achieving students in the first weeks of the academic 

year, and implement early intervention where indicated.  

 

While tutoring, additional resources given by teachers and available at the library, and after school programs will 

enhance the academic progress of the students; motivational guest speaker programs, parent meetings, university 

and college visits,  and field trips are planned to shape the educational vision of the student and the family. Socio-

economically disadvantaged students will have role models around them who will inspire motivation to focus on 

lessons and self-confidence with the discovery of their potential. 

 

I. PLAN FOR SPECIAL EDUCATION 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy recognizes its responsibility to enroll and support students 

with disabilities who can benefit from its programs and who otherwise qualify for enrollment and pledges to work 

in cooperation with SAUSD to ensure that a free and appropriate education is provided to all students with 

exceptional needs. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will comply with all applicable state and 

federal laws in serving students with disabilities, including, but not limited to the Individuals with Disabilities 

Education Act of 2004 (IDEA), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title II of the Americans with 

Disabilities Act, and any other civil rights enforced by the U.S. Department of Education Office of Civil Rights 

(OCR). Furthermore, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will comply with AB 602, SAUSD 

guidelines, and all California laws pertaining to special education students.  

 

Initially and by default, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall be considered a ―school of the 

District‖ for purposes of Special Education purposes pursuant to Education Code Section 47641(b).  However, 

the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy reserves the right to make written verifiable assurances that 

it may become an independent local educational agency (LEA) and join a SELPA pursuant to Education Code 

Section 47641(a) either on its own or with a grouping of charter school LEAs as a consortium. A change in LEA 

status or SELPA membership shall not constitute a material revision of this charter.  

 

So long as the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy operates as a public school of the District, solely 

for purposes of providing special education and related services under the IDEA pursuant to Education Code 

Section 47641(b) and in accordance with Education Code Section 47646 and 20 U.S.C. 1413, the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy seeks services from the District for special education students enrolled in 

the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy in the same manner as is provided to students in other 

District schools.   

 

Per Federal Law, all students with disabilities will be fully integrated into the programs of the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy, with the necessary materials, services, and equipment to support their learning. 

The school will ensure that any student with a disability attending the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy is properly identified, assessed and provided with necessary services and supports. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will meet all the requirements mandated within a student’s 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 37 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

Individualized Education Program (IEP). The school will seek to include all special needs students with non-

disabled peers to the maximum extent appropriate according to their IEP. However, if the student's needs as 

documented on the IEP require a program other than inclusion, the school will work with the District and/or 

SELPA to provide an appropriate placement and services. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will work with the District to make time and facilities 

available to meet the needs of the student’s IEP. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will 

actively participate in all aspects of the IEP to enable the student to be successful, including the appropriate 

individual tutoring schedule and classroom modifications, strategies, and techniques. The school will make 

available student’s work products for analysis and evaluation of progress and will participate in the IEP reviews 

conducted by the District.  

 

If a parent or faculty member feels the student’s educational needs are not being met, they may request a 

reassessment or a review of the IEP by the IEP team at any time during the year via written notice to the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, which will then forward such written notice to SAUSD within two 

school days. The school will encourage open communication between the parents and the district for any items 

related to the special education services. Students at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy who 

have IEP’s will continue to attend the school, unless the IEP recommends otherwise and states why. 

 

In order to comply with Child Find requirements as specified by law, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy will establish a referral and assessment process that brings together the parent/guardian, student, and 

school personnel to address any problems that interfere with a student’s success at the school. This process will 

entail search and serve, a Student Study Team, referral, assessment and IEP review.  

 

I n t er im  & I n i t i a l  P la cem en t s  o f  N ew Cha r te r  S cho o l  S tud en t s  

If a student enrolls at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy with an existing IEP, the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will notify SAUSD within 5 days. An IEP meeting will be convened 

within 30 days to review the existing IEP, discuss the students’ present levels of performance and needs, and offer 

an appropriate placement and services. Prior to such meeting and pending agreement on a new IEP, the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall work with the District or SELPA to implement the existing IEP at 

the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy or as otherwise agreed by the parent/guardian.   

 

R ef er ra l  fo r  A ss e ssm en t  

The referral process is a formal, ongoing review of information related to students who are suspected of showing 

potential signs of needing special education and related services. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning 

Academy’s internal method of referral for assessment will be the Student Study Team.  The parent of any student 

suspected of needing or qualifying for special education services may also make a referral for an evaluation. Any 

such referrals will be responded to in writing by the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy within 15 

days, either granting the request or denying the request pursuant to CFR 300.503 prior written notice 

requirements. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will notify SAUSD of the assessment request 

on the receipt of the request.  Parents will be informed via the Special Education Administrator that special 

education and related services are provided at no cost to them.  

 

The Assessment Plan along with the Parental Safeguards document is adequate notice of granting the request for 

assessment. The parent will be given at least 15 days to provide written consent to the Assessment Plan. 

Assessments will be done only upon receipt of written parent permission. The assessment will be completed and 

an Individualized Education Program (IEP) meeting held within 60 days of receipt of the parent’s written consent 

for assessment. 

 

A ss es sm en t  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 38 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

The Principal will be responsible for gathering all pertinent information and sharing such information with the 

District. Information gathered will be used as tools to determine the student’s disability, eligibility for services, 

and determining the nature and extent of required services.  Assessment procedures will be conducted in the 

student’s primary language unless to do so is clearly not feasible, and an interpreter will be provided if needed. 

The types of assessments that may be used for determining eligibility for specialized instruction and services will 

include, but are not limited to: 

 Individual testing; 

 Teacher observations; 

 Interviews; 

 Review of school records, reports, and work samples; and 

 Parent input. 

Unless conflicting with District or SELPA policies and procedures, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy will follow the following assessment guidelines. If a conflict with District policies and procedures 

exists, then District policies and procedures will govern.  

   

 Parents or guardians of any student referred for assessment must give their written consent for the school 

to administer the assessment; 

 The assessment will be completed and an IEP meeting held within 60 days of receipt of the parent’s 

written consent for assessment;  

 The student must be evaluated in all areas related to his/her suspected disability; 

 Assessments must be conducted by a person with knowledge of the student’s suspected disability and 

administered by trained and knowledgeable personnel in accordance with any instructions provided by 

the producer of the assessments. Individually administered tests of intellectual or emotional functioning 

must be administered by a credentialed school psychologist; 

 Assessments must be selected and administered so as not to be racially, culturally, or sexually 

discriminatory; 

 Assessments will be delivered in the student’s primary language unless to do so is clearly not feasible, 

and a qualified interpreter will be provided if needed; 

 Assessment tools must be used for purposes for which the assessments or measures are valid and reliable; 

and 

 Assessments will be adapted as necessary for students with impaired sensory, physical or speaking skills; 

and 

 A multidisciplinary team will be assembled to assess the student, including a teacher knowledgeable in 

the disability. 

Upon completion of the assessment, an IEP team will be assembled to review the results of the assessment and 

determine the student’s need for special education. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy, in 

coordination with SAUSD will be responsible for scheduling, coordinating and facilitating the IEP meeting.  

Educators qualified to interpret test results will present the assessment data at the IEP meeting. Parents will be 

provided with written notice of the IEP meeting, and the meeting will be held at a mutually agreeable time and 

place.  

 

D eve lo pm en t  &  Im p l em en ta t io n  o f  IEP  

Every student who is assessed by the school will have an IEP that documents assessment results and eligibility 

determination for special education services.   

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy, in collaboration with SAUSD, will ensure that all aspects 

of the IEP are implemented at the school site. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will provide 

accommodations (outlined within each individual’s IEP) in the general education environment taught by the 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 39 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

general education teacher. Students at the school who have IEP’s will be served in the Least Restrictive 

Environment (LRE). 

 

Each student’s IEP team oversees the IEP development and implementation and documentation of progress of the 

student. All decisions concerning the special education programs and services to be provided to a student with a 

disability are to be made by the IEP team. The IEP team must include all of the following members:  

 

 The parent or guardian of the student for whom the IEP was developed 

 The Student, if appropriate 

 The Principal or designee 

 At least one special education teacher  of the student 

 A General Education teacher who is familiar with the curriculum appropriate to that student, if the student 

is, or may be, participating in the general education environment; 

 A District Special Education Representative 

 If the child was recently assessed, the individual who conducted the assessment or who is qualified to 

interpret the assessment results; 

Others familiar with the student may be invited as needed. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy 

views the parent as a key stakeholder in these meetings and will make every effort to accommodate parents’ 

schedules and needs so that they will be able to participate effectively on the IEP team. The school will provide 

an interpreter if necessary to ensure that all parents and/or guardians understand and can participate in the IEP 

process. If a parent cannot attend the IEP meeting, the school will ensure his/her participation using other 

methods, such as conferencing by telephone.  

 

A copy of the IEP will be given to the parent in accordance with federal and state laws and SAUSD policies. 

Upon the parent or guardian’s written consent, the IEP will be implemented by the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy, in cooperation with the District or SELPA in which the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy is a member. The IEP will include all required components and be written on District forms.  

 

 The student’s IEP will include the following: 

 

 A statement of the student’s present levels of academic achievement and functional performance 

 The rationale for placement decisions 

 The services the student will receive and the means for delivering those services 

 A description of when services will begin, how often the student will receive them, who will provide 

them, and where they will be delivered 

 Measurable annual goals and short-term objectives focusing on the student’s current level of performance 

 A description of how the student’s progress toward meeting the annual goals will be measured and 

monitored and when reports will be provided  

 Accommodations necessary to measure the academic achievement and functional performance of the 

student on state and district assessments 

 For students 16 years of age and older or younger than 16 years of age, if the IEP team deems 

appropriate, measurable postsecondary goals related to training, education, employment and independent 

living skills, along with transition services needed to assist the student in reaching those goals.  

 

IEP meetings will be held according to the following schedule: 

 

 Yearly to review the student’s progress and make any necessary changes to conduct student’s Annual 

Review IEP 

 Every three years to review the results of a mandatory comprehensive reevaluation of the student’s 

eligibility and unique needs progress 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 40 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 After the student has received a formal assessment or reassessment 

 When a parent, teacher or other team member requests an IEP review for a student, consistent with state 

and federal law, IEP meetings will be held within 30 days of a parent’s request during the school year 

 When an Individual Transition Plan is (ITP) required at the appropriate age 

 When the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy seeks to suspend or remove the student for a 

period of 10 days or more for the same behavior, in order to determine if the student’s misconduct was a 

manifestation of his/her disability. 

 

1. IEP Review 

The IEP team will formally review the student’s IEP at least once a year to determine how the IEP is meeting 

his/her needs. In accordance with IDEA regulations, the IEP team will also conduct a formal review of the IEP 

once every three years, in which the student is reassessed to determine if the student remains eligible for special 

education and, if so, the student’s unique needs and goals.  

 

If a parent or faculty member believes the student’s educational needs are not being met, they may request a 

reassessment or a review of the IEP by the IEP team at any time during the school year via written notice to the 

school. Once the request is received, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will have thirty days to 

hold the IEP meeting. 

 

Parents will be informed of student progress as specified on the students’ IEP. The District’s electronic IEP and 

progress report shall be utilized by the Charter.  

2. Staffing 

Although SAUSD will hold ultimate responsibility for providing Special Education services (so long as the 

Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy operates as a school of the District for purposes of special 

education), the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is committed to assuring all IEPs are properly 

implemented. 

 

It is the goal of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy to employ at least one full time teacher who, 

in addition to having the proper credentials to teach a general education subject, will also possess a Special 

Education Credential.   This teacher, along with the principal Co-Director of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy, will be the primary Charter School representative tasked with assuring that all aspects of the 

IEPs and 504 plans are implemented.   All teaching staff at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy 

will implement all IEPs and 504 plans appropriately for students at the Charter.    

3. Reporting 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy, in collaboration with SAUSD, will collect and maintain all 

information on disabled students as required by the CDE, utilizing the District’s electronic IEP. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will utilize the Notice of Procedure Safeguards used by the District in 

which it is a member and pursuant to procedures established by the District.  

4. Complaint Resolution 

Parents or guardians also have the right to file a complaint with SAUSD and/or California State Department of 

Education if they believe that the school or SELPA has violated federal or state laws or regulations governing 

special education. 

5. Special Education Strategies for Instruction & Services 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will comply with the federal mandate of the ―least 

restrictive environment,‖ meaning that the school will make every attempt to educate special education students 

along with their non-disabled peers. the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will mainstream all of 

its students as much as is appropriate according to each individual IEP, offering a comprehensive inclusion 

program that includes specialized individual tutoring through the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 41 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

Academy’s extended day and year. Each student’s IEP requires differentiation for instruction and services, 

therefore the educational strategies of the IEP will be built around the student’s needs and how these fit within the 

general educational program of the school. The instruction outlined in each student’s IEP will be delivered by 

personnel qualified to do so.  

6. Professional Development for the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy Staff 

The School Director, Principal, regular and special education teaching staff, as well as other appropriate faculty 

and staff members will attend professional development and/or training meetings necessary to comply with state 

and federal special education laws, including those sponsored by the District or SELPA. 

So long as the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy operates as a ―school of the District‖ for special 

education purposes, DISTRICT agrees to allow the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy staff access 

to all Special Education related professional development opportunities that are available to district employees.   

 

7. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy shall be solely responsible for its compliance with Section 

504 of the Rehabilitation Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act.  All facilities of the School shall be 

accessible for all students with disabilities in accordance with the ADA.  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy recognizes its legal responsibility to ensure that no 

qualified person with a disability shall, on the basis of disability, be excluded from participation, be denied the 

benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy. Any student, who has an objectively identified disability which substantially limits a major 

life activity including but not limited to learning, is eligible for accommodation by the school. 

 

A 504 team will be assembled by the Principal Co-Director and shall include a SAUSD representative, the 

parent/guardian, the student, a qualified faculty member, and other qualified persons knowledgeable about the 

student, the meaning of the evaluation data, placement options, and accommodations. The 504 team will review 

the student’s existing records; including academic, social and behavioral records, and is responsible for making a 

determination as to whether an evaluation for 504 services is appropriate. If the student has already been 

evaluated under the IDEA but found ineligible for special education instruction or related services under the 

IDEA, those evaluations may be used to help determine eligibility under Section 504. The student evaluation shall 

be carried out by the 504 team who will evaluate the nature of the student’s disability and the impact upon the 

student’s education. This evaluation will include consideration of any behaviors that interfere with regular 

participation in the educational program and/or activities. The 504 team may also consider the following 

information in its evaluation: 

 

• Tests and other evaluation materials that have been validated for the specific purpose for which they are 

used and are administered by trained personnel. 

• Tests and other evaluation materials include those tailored to assess specific areas of educational need, 

and not merely those which are designed to provide a single general intelligent quotient. 

• Tests are selected and administered to ensure that when a test is administered to a student with impaired 

sensory, manual or speaking skills, the test results accurately reflect the student’s aptitude or achievement 

level, or whatever factor the test purports to measure, rather than reflecting the student’s impaired 

sensory, manual or speaking skills. 

 

The final determination of whether the student will or will not be identified as a person with a disability is made 

by the 504 team in writing and notice is given in writing to the parent or guardian of the student in their primary 

language along with the procedural safeguards available to them. If during the evaluation, the 504 team obtains 

information indicating possible eligibility of the student for special education per the IDEA, a referral for 

assessment under the IDEA will be made by the 504 team. 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 42 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 

If the student is found by the 504 team to have a disability under Section 504, the 504 team shall be responsible 

for determining what, if any, accommodations or services are needed to ensure that the student receives the free 

and appropriate public education (―FAPE‖). In developing the 504 Plan, the 504 team shall consider all relevant 

information utilized during the evaluation of the student, drawing upon a variety of sources, including, but not 

limited to, assessments conducted by the School’s professional staff. 

 

The 504 Plan shall describe the Section 504 disability and any program accommodations, modifications or 

services that may be necessary. All 504 team participants, parents, guardians, teachers and any other participants 

in the student’s education, including substitutes and tutors, must have access to each student’s 504 Plan. The 

Principal Co-Director will ensure that teachers include 504 Plans with lesson plans for short-term substitutes and 

that he/she review the 504 Plan with a long-term substitute. A copy of the 504 Plan shall be maintained in the 

student’s file. Each student’s 504 Plan will be reviewed at least once per year to determine the appropriateness of 

the Plan, needed modifications to the plan, and continued eligibility. 

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 43 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

ELEMENT TWO & THREE│ M E AS UR ABL E ST U DE NT OU T C OM ES  &   

P U PI L P R OGRESS  M EA SU REM E NT M ET HOD   

 
Governing Law: The measurable pupil outcomes identified for use by the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy. "Pupil outcomes," for purposes of this part, means the extent to which all pupils of the school 

demonstrate that they have attained the skills, knowledge, and attitudes specified as goals in the school's 

educational program. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(B). 

Governing Law: The method by which pupil progress in meeting those pupil outcomes is to be measured.  

Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(C). 

 

A. APPROACH TO ASSESSMENT & DATA 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s mission is to prepare students with the academic skills, 

character traits, and intellectual discipline necessary to excel in high school, college, and life. This includes 

providing at-risk elementary and intermediate school students with a college-preparatory instructional program 

that equips them for success in high school Honors and Advanced Placement courses. While we recognize that 

such growth is achieved in gradual, incremental steps, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy 

regularly assesses the effectiveness of our programs using a variety of assessment tools. These frequent and 

systematic assessments provide the school leadership and teachers with valuable data that allow us to critique our 

academic program, adapt instructional approaches, and establish new goals to best serve our student population. 

Should any changes to the measurable pupil outcomes be made, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy will submit those changes to the SAUSD as an update to the charter.   

 

We believe in the value of standardized test data and also recognize that no single assessment provides a 

comprehensive picture of student progress. As a result, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy uses 

a combination of assessments to gather valuable data about our students’ strengths and weaknesses and allow us 

to make informed instructional decisions. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy has created 

interim benchmark tests using a thorough understanding of grade-level standards and the school’s scope and 

sequence, an intense look at California’s released test questions and other relevant assessments, and will use the 

CDE’s blueprints as models for each benchmark test. Teachers receive professional development and on-going 

feedback to improve quality of their informal and formal assessments and push them to consistently analyze and 

use data in ways that drive student achievement.  

 

Da ta  Ana l ys i s  &  Da ta - Dr iven  In s t ru c t io n  

Management and teachers use test data to analyze areas of strength and weakness and to set priorities for each 

school year. Diagnostic assessments are administered at the start of each year to determine a baseline for students 

in English language arts and math. This data, along with classroom observation and other assessments, provides 

valuable details about students’ needs in each content area, and results are used to help teachers plan lessons, 

effectively differentiate, and participate in academic support groups during tutoring. 

 

Teachers meet with the management team after each round of interim assessments to closely inspect the data, 

look for patterns, and create an action plan for both the class and individual students based on the results. These 

action plans identify:  

 Skills/concepts to be retaught to the entire class  

 Skills/concepts to be retaught to small groups during class  

 Skills/concepts to be retaught to individual students with one-on-one teacher instruction or with the 

assistance of a peer or volunteer tutor  

 Adjustments to existing small groups for reading and math instruction  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 44 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 Weaknesses in the curriculum to be revised for subsequent years  

 Support and professional development for the teacher to strengthen areas of instructional weakness  

 

Action plans are revisited frequently in grade-level and content-area team meetings to ensure that students are 

making adequate progress toward mastery. At least one teacher professional development meeting each month 

will include the analysis of student assessment data.  

 

R ep o r t ing  o f  Da ta  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy creates a School Accountability Report Card (SARC) for 

submission to the CDE, including the following components. The SARC will be updated annually by the 

Operations Manager under the supervision of the Co-Director of Finance and Operations.  

• Demographic data  

• School safety and climate for learning information  

• Academic data  

• School completion rates  

• Class sizes  

• Teacher and staff information  

• Curriculum and instruction descriptions  

• Postsecondary preparation information  

• Fiscal and expenditure data  

• Adequate yearly progress data  

 

Com m uni ca t io n  o f  Da ta  w i th  S tud en t s  &  Fam i l i es  

Students and their families deserve to be consistently and proactively informed about student performance. The 

Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy involves students and their parents in the analysis of student 

work, noting progress, areas of strength, and plans to remediate any deficits.  

 

After each round of interim assessments, teachers share results with students during class and short individual 

conferences with each student. At these mini-conferences, teachers work with each student to set goals for the 

upcoming assessment and personalize an individual action plan, including small group instruction or tutoring, as 

needed.  

 

Teachers also use interim assessment results to create and maintain mastery charts for each student that show 

progress toward mastery for each content standard taught each year. These mastery charts are shared with 

students after each round of assessments and reviewed with parents at each report card conference. Interim 

assessment results, chapter and unit tests, and midterm and final exams are sent home for parents to review and 

sign.  

 

State testing results are also sent to families and the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy hosts an 

annual parent meeting each summer to share the school’s progress toward school-wide goals and also explain 

individual score reports to students and their families. The SARC will also be made available to the public 

through the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy website.  

 

St ud en t  A ch i evem en t  Go a l s  

The principal, staff, and teachers of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will be held accountable 

by the SAUSD for meeting the following student outcome goals, in addition to Common Core goals.  
  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 45 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

TABLE 6: Measurable Student Outcome Goals and Assessment T ools 

Outcome Goal Assessments  

Academic 

Performance 

Index (―API‖) 

growth 

For the first year of operation, met or exceed the API 

meet or exceed the API of comparable SAUSD schools 

identified in Table 1 in Element 1. For subsequent 

years, meet or exceed API growth target in the year 

prior. 

API reports (annual) 

Benchmark Map assessments 

(quarterly) 

Adequate Yearly 

Progress (―AYP‖) 

For the first year of operation, met or exceed the API 

meet or exceed the API of comparable SAUSD schools 

identified in Table 1 in Element 1. For subsequent 

years, meet or exceed API growth target in the year 

prior. 

AYP reports (annual) 

Benchmark MAP assessments 

(quarterly) 

Grade-level 

proficiency 

At least 80% of the students demonstrate grade-level 

proficiency on standards in Reading/Language Arts, 

Math, Science, and Social Studies. 

OR 5-10% increase in proficiency each yeara minimum 

of 1.5 years growth on the MAP 

CST CAASPP reports (annual) 

Benchmark MAP assessments 

(quarterly) 

End-of-year student report cards 

(annual) 

Student 

attendance rate 

Average daily attendance rate of at least 95% 

 

Daily attendance reporting via Aeries 

(daily) 

ADA rate report (monthly) 

Student 

suspension rate 

Suspension rate lower than the SAUSD average 

 

CDE records (annual) 

Suspension reporting via Aeries (daily) 

English Learner 

(EL) performance 

50% of ELs will advance one overall performance 

level on the CELDT each year. 

50% of ELs at overall Early Advanced performance 

level on the CELDT who are enrolled no less than one 

year will be reclassified to fluent English proficient 

(RFEP) each year. 

CELDT reports (annual) 

CDE records (annual) 

School records (annual) 

Graduation rate Graduation rate higher than the SAUSD average  

 

CDE records 

Enrollment and graduation records 

Dropout rate Dropout rate lower than the SAUSD average 

 

CDE records 

Enrollment and graduation records 

CAHSEE passing 

rate 

10th grade CAHSEE passing rate of more than 70% 

during the first test administration of the year 

CAHSEE reports  

 

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 46 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

TABLE 7: Representative Measurable Student Outcomes and Assessment Tools in Core Academic areas 

Curricular Focus Measurable Outcomes Assessment Tools 

Core Academic 

Skills (Mathematics) 

Ability to solve text-based as well as real-world 

problems using a variety of mathematics tools 

and procedures 

Implement a variety of problem-solving 

strategies. 

Develop fluency in basic 

computational/procedural skills. 

Communicate precisely about quantities and 

logical relationships.  

Make connections among mathematical ideas 

and between mathematics and other disciplines. 

Be aware of the range of careers available in 

mathematics. 

Assignments, tests and activities designed 

by the teacher or using published materials 

and sometimes scored using rubrics. 

(weekly, monthly, each semester)  

State-mandated tests aligned to standards 

(e.g., CSTCAASPP) (annual) 

Portfolios of student work, reports and/or 

presentations scored by the teacher using 

rubrics. (monthly) 

MAP Testing (quarterly) 

Core Academic 

Skills (Science) 

Work individually and on a team, using 

scientific inquiry and skills and the scientific 

method to ask and answer questions about the 

physical world. 

Use critical thinking skills to analyze scientific 

problems and reach conclusions. 

Effectively communicate results verbally and in 

writing. 

Be aware of the range of careers available in 

science. 

Assignments, tests and activities designed 

by the teacher or using published materials 

and sometimes scored using rubrics. 

(weekly, monthly, each semester) 

State-mandated tests aligned to standards 

(e.g., CSTCAASPP) (grades 6 – 8) 

(annual) 

Portfolios of student work, reports and/or 

exhibits scored by the teacher using 

rubrics. (monthly) 

MAP Testing (quarterly) 

Core Academic 

Skills (Language 

Arts) 

Grade-level and critical reading skills. 

Knowledge of a coherent body of literature from 

the traditional canon. 

Effective and accurate writing skills. 

Effective verbal communication skills.  

Critical-thinking skills. 

Assignments, tests and activities designed 

by the teacher or using published materials 

and sometimes scored using rubrics. 

(weekly, monthly, each semester)  

State-mandated tests aligned to standards 

(e.g., CSTCAASPP) (annual) 

Portfolios of student work, reports and/or 

presentations scored by the teacher using 

rubrics.  (monthly) 

MAP Testing (quarterly) 

Core Academic 

Skills  

(History - Social 

Science) 

Ability to analyze, explain, and evaluate world, 

US and world history. 

Ability to link events in one historical period to 

another. 

Effective writing and verbal communication 

skills. 

Critical-thinking skills. 

Critical-reading skills. 

Understanding of cause and effect. 

Understanding the importance of belief systems. 

Assignments, tests and activities designed 

by the teacher or using published materials 

and sometimes scored using rubrics. 

(weekly, monthly, each semester) 

State-mandated tests aligned to standards 

(e.g., CSTCAASPP) (annual) 

Portfolios of student work, reports and/or 

presentations scored by the teacher using 

rubrics. (monthly) 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 47 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

TABLE 8: Representative Measurable Outcomes and Assessment Tools for Interpersonal Skills 
 

Skills Measurable Outcomes Assessment Tools 

Leadership, 

Collaboration 

and Cooperation 

Incorporate personal management skills on a 

daily basis. 

Effective participation in group decision-

making processes. 

Work cooperatively with others and be a team 

player in achieving group goals. 

Be able to assume leadership in group tasks. 

End of semester teacher evaluations on student 

behaviors. 

Teachers’ comments entered into the Student 

Information System. 

Portfolios of student work, reports and/or 

exhibits including group assignments. 

Self-assessment 

and Reflection 

 

Describe, analyze and prioritize personal skills 

and interests that they want to develop. 

Describe and effectively use the personal 

qualities they possess that make them 

successful members of their school and 

community. 

Recognize their intelligence types and personal 

learning styles and employ those styles in their 

learning and personal development. 

End of semester teacher evaluations on student 

behaviors. 

Teachers’ comments entered into the Student 

Information System. 

Portfolios of student work, reports and/or 

presentations scored by the teacher using 

rubrics.  

Goal Setting  

 

Set positive academic and non-academic goals. 

Apply goal-setting skills to promote academic 

success. 

Set post-secondary goals with action steps, 

timeframes, and evaluation criteria.  

Identify the skills and credentials required for a 

particular profession and prepare accordingly. 

End of semester teacher evaluations on student 

behaviors. 

Teachers’ comments entered into the Student 

Information System. 

Portfolios of student work, reports and/or 

presentations scored using rubrics. 

Critical 

Thinking and 

Problem 

Solving  

 

Implement stop, think, and act strategies in 

solving daily life problems. 

Generate alternative solutions to problems and 

predict possible outcomes. 

Apply the steps of systematic decision-making 

in school and life. 

End of semester teacher evaluations on student 

behaviors. 

Portfolios of student work, reports and/or 

presentations scored using rubrics.  

Self-discipline 

 

Implement a plan to meet a need or address a 

challenge based on personal strengths and 

available support from others. 

Explore career opportunities based on their 

identified interests and strengths. 

Show self-esteem based on accurate assessment 

of self. 

End of semester teacher evaluations on student 

behaviors. 

Portfolios, presentations and/or exhibits of 

student work 

Citizenship 

 

Personal honesty and integrity. 

Courage to express their views. 

Love, respect and loyalty to the United States of 

America. 

Understanding and tolerance towards other 

societies in the world. 

Participate in multicultural and cross-cultural 

activities. 

End of semester teacher evaluations on student 

behaviors. 

Teachers’ comments entered into the Student 

Information System. 

Portfolios, presentations and/or exhibits of 

student work, peer competitions 

 

B. STATEWIDE ASSESSMENTS 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy agrees to comply with and adhere to the State requirements 

for participation and administration of all state mandated tests and Common Core tests. Test results will be 

provided directly to the District. 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 48 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 

C. GRADING & PROMOTION 

The primary purpose for grading is to provide feedback to students and parents on the achievement of learning 

goals. At the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, course report card grades are to be represented in 

letter-grade equivalent to the percentage earned in each course. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s grading policy will be consistent with the SAUSD’s 

policy. If a conflict with District policies and procedures exists, then District policies and procedures will govern. 

 

G ra d ing  Po l i c y  

Students at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy earn grades based on their demonstration of 

mastery of the California Content Standards. Grades include student performance on in-class work, homework, 

assessments, and other components as applicable to each content area. Each department will work with the 

Department Chair in conjunction with the School’s Co-Director to develop specific and consistent weights for 

each component to ensure that grades are calibrated and assigned in a fair and consistent manner that corresponds 

with student mastery of State Content Standards. The grading standards are school-wide and will be shared with 

parents and students. Exceptions to this grading policy for students with special needs are based on each student’s 

IEP. 

 

Table 9 indicates the ways in which letter, percentage, and rubric grades are used at the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy and what these grades mean in terms of a student’s level of mastery of the State 

Content Standards: 

 

TABLE 9: Grading Policy  

Letter Grade  

(grades 2-8)  

Percentage  

 

Rubric Score  

(grades TK-1)  

Meaning  

 

A+ 98-100%  4 A student earning an A in a course is consistently 

demonstrating advanced levels of mastery with the content 

standards.  
A 93-97%  

A- 90-92%  

B+ 88-89%  3 A student earning a B in a course is consistently 

demonstrating proficiency with the content standards.  B 83-87%  

B- 80-82%  

C+ 78-79%  2 A student earning a C in a course is consistently 

demonstrating basic competency with the content standards. C 73-77%  

C- 70-72%  

NY80NYP Below 

70%  

 

0 or 1 A student earning less than 70% in a course is not yet 

demonstrating a basic level of mastery with the content 

standards and needs to demonstrate mastery of the standards 

before credit will be earned.  

 

E L D Gra d es  

1 = Beginning, 

2 = Early Intermediate,  

3 = Intermediate,  

4 = Early Advanced, 

5= Advanced 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 49 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 

The following is the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s policy regarding the retention of pupils in 

grades K–5: 

 

Grades K–2: Any student who is not at benchmark based on (1) reading benchmark assessments or (2) math 

benchmark assessments or (3) report card grades; Grades 3–5: Students who fail to achieve the minimal level of 

proficiency (BASIC) in accordance with SBE Section 60648 on MAP tests and/or CST CAASPP(California 

Standards Test) in Mathematics or Reading and Language Arts; Grades K-5: Any student who is more than one 

year behind grade level in mathematics or reading and language arts as determined by the MAP assessments. 

Kindergarten students will be retained only if the teacher and parent are in agreement that retention is the best 

intervention to ensure student success. 

 

An identified student who is performing below the minimum standard for promotion shall be recommended by 

the student’s teacher for retention in the current grade unless the student’s teacher determines in writing that 

retention is not the appropriate intervention for the student’s academic deficiencies. The teacher’s 

recommendation to promote is contingent upon a detailed plan to correct deficiencies. At the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy, the following steps will be taken prior to a student being retained: 

• A letter shall be sent to the student’s parent(s) or guardian(s) by May 1st of each school year informing them 

that their child is at risk of retention. 

• The teacher’s evaluation shall be provided to and discussed with the student’s parent(s) or guardian(s) and the 

principal before any final determination of pupil retention. The parent(s)/guardian(s) are informed at that 

meeting that their child is recommended for retention. This meeting is documented with an academic support 

plan signed by both the teacher and parent/guardian. 

• The principal shall make a decision regarding the recommended retention. Upon the acceptance or rejection 

of the above stated reports by the principal, a letter shall be sent within five school days to formally inform 

the student’s parent(s) or guardian(s) of the principal’s decision regarding the retention. 

• The parent(s) or guardian(s) shall have the right to appeal the decision to the Deputy SuperintendentChief 

Academic Officer of the District. 

• The program design of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is to ensure that all children 

succeed. Students who are in jeopardy of retention are individually counseled and given extra help in their 

specific areas of concern, both in class and through intervention offerings.  

 

R ep o r t  Ca rd s  

Student report cards create a succinct written record of student performance by compiling data from multiple 

assessments both formal and informal. Report cards are one of several ways to keep parents informed about 

student performance and to ensure that data collection is regular and consistent. Report cards reflect student 

achievement toward state standards, and summarize narratives, anecdotal records, attendance data, and 

information about student participation in class and school life. Results of standardized tests are mailed separately 

as well as included in the student grade report with explanations designed to help students and parents interpret 

their relationship to other assessments. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will use a standards-based report card that is aligned with 

the California State StandardsNew State Standards. For each academic content area, students are scored on a 1–5 

scale, which mirrors the CST CAASPP scores. ELD also uses the 1–5 scale, but the scores mirror the CELDT 

scores. The guidelines for all content areas indicate the Proficient Level. Proficient is considered at grade level. 

To receive a Proficient (4), the expectation is that the student has mastered all the standards indicated in the 

guidelines for that marking term.  

 

Students will receive a report card three times a year. At the end of the first and second trimester, teachers will 

arrange a conference to discuss the report card with every parent/guardian. End-of-the-year conferences are 

prioritized for parents/guardians of students not making progress, low-achieving students, and those being 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 50 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

retained. Other parents/guardians are encouraged to attend teacher conferences at the end of the year as well. 

 

Ongoing communication between teachers, parents, and students is an essential component of the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy. In addition to progress reports, report cards, and assessment reports, 

newsletters are distributed monthly and grade-level meetings occur monthly. Parents can conference with teachers 

on an informal basis weekly or monthly, and on a formal basis three times per year, to discuss students’ progress 

reports and proficiency levels. Back to School Nights and Open House also take place each year. 

 

El em en ta r y  S cho o l  G ra d e  Prom o t io n  

In grades K through 5, students will receive one of the following marks for their grade level performance on each 

component or standard in Language Arts, Math, Science, and Social Science. 

 

I n t erm ed ia t e  S cho o l  Gra d e  P rom o t ion  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will follow a standard scale to assign letter grades for 

semester work. Grading is based on a 4.0 (unweighted) scale for regular courses. In grades 6 through 8, for year-

long courses, the numerical grades of two semesters will be averaged to determine an end-of-the-year grade. The 

average numerical grade will then be converted to a letter-grade and grade-point equivalent for GPA calculations. 

To earn credit, the end-of-the-year grade for the class must be at least a ―C‖ (2.0) or the second semester grade 

should be at least a ―B-‖ (2.7). 

 

To be promoted to the next grade, an intermediate school student must have a 2.0 grade point average (GPA) and 

passing end-of-the-year grades in all core courses before the start of the next school year. Core courses are Math, 

Science, English Language Arts, and History/Social Science.  

 

Students who fail three or more core courses at the end of the year will not be promoted to the next grade. Eighth 

graders who are not being promoted will not be able to participate in eighth grade promotion activities. Students 

who fail one or two core courses can attend summer school to make up failed courses during summer. Student 

transcripts will be updated to include summer grades and GPA will be recalculated. 

 

 

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 51 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

ELEMENT FOUR│ G O V E R N A N C E  

Governing Law: The governance structure of the school, including, but not limited to, the process to be followed 

to ensure parental involvement.  Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(D). 

 

A. GOVERNANCE OF THE SCHOOL STRUCTURE  

 
The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will be governed by the SAUSD Board of 

EducationAdvisory Board, in cooperation with the SAUSD Board of Education, will govern the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy Co-Directors will 

be evaluated by the SAUSD Superintendent. In an effort to additional oversight, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy will create a five-member Advisory Board that will aide in the supervision of the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy policies, programs, evaluations, and finances. The Advisory Board 

members will be determined at least one year prior to the opening of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy, and will be comprised of respected educational professionals and/or business partners, and at least two 

parents of Charter School studentsthree members representing SAUSD and two members selected by the Dean of 

the UCI School of Education.  

 

 

EXHIBIT 3: Organizational Chart:  
 

 

   

Teachers 

Co-Director 

of Academics & Culture 

Psychologist 

Special Education (Special Ed) 

Teaching Assistants 

Custodian 

SAUSD 

Board of Education 

Co-Director  

of Finance & Operations 

Charter Advisory Board 

Office Manager 

Office Assistants 

Superintendent 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 52 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

B. SCHOOL LEADERSHIP 

Refer to the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the SAUSD and Santa Ana Educators’ Association in 

Appendix A.  

C. PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy strongly encourages parents to participate in and share the 

responsibility for their children’s educational process and educational. Studies have shown that students whose 

parents are involved in their education generally have higher grades, better attendance, higher homework 

submission rates, higher graduation rates, and a better chance of continuing with their education after graduation. 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will work with parents to make them aware of the 

importance of their involvement in their children’s education through some combination of the following 

activities: 

 

• By having representatives on the Charter School Advisory Board, pParents will play an active role in 

developing local school policies, leading efforts to engage the support of the community, making 

recommendations about issues related to the school, and reviewing parental and community concerns. 

• Parents complete a survey each year evaluating the strengths and weakness they identify with the 

program. 

• There will be various opportunities for parents to volunteer.  For example, they may help in classrooms, 

lead extra-curricular activities, assist in event planning, tutor, assist with lunch distribution, and attend 

field trips.  It is not required, but expected, that parents will contribute a minimum of 10 hours per year to 

the school. 

• Teachers will meet one-on-one with parents of low-achieving students on an as needed basis to ensure the 

proper supports are in place for the student. 

• Communications with parents, whether about school policies and programs or about their own children, 

will be frequent, clear, and two-way. This will include community outreach meetings in native languages. 

Students will assist staff with helping parents understand the link between education and career 

opportunities.  

• Individualized student and parent advisory sessions: Each of our teachers and mentors will be assigned to 

a small group of students. They will arrange two to four meetings at school during the school year to 

discuss their students’ academic achievements. 

• Parents will also be collaborators in the educational process. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning 

Academy will provide an opportunity for parents to participate in their child's education, receive 

technology training, enroll in empowerment classes and provide input into school operations.  

• Parents of participating students will also be involved as: project team members, guest lecturers, content 

evaluators and peer leaders in community outreach/recruitment activities.  

• Each trimester, parent workshops on improving student study skills and college preparation will be 

offered. Also, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will encourage parents to form a 

parent committee. The school will also work with parents to develop and adopt a set of parent 

involvement policies and strategies. 

 

D. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE FOR PARENTS & STUDENTS  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will designate at least one employee at each site to 

coordinate its efforts to comply with and carry out its responsibilities under Title IX of the Education 

Amendments of 1972 (Title IX) and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504) including any 

investigation of any complaint filed with Charter School alleging its noncompliance with these laws or alleging 

any actions which would be prohibited by these laws. Charter School will notify all its students and employees of 

the name, office address, and telephone number of the designated employee or employees. 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 53 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will adopt and publish grievance procedures providing for 

prompt and equitable resolution of student and employee complaints alleging any action, which would be 

prohibited by Title IX, or Section 504. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will implement specific and continuing steps to notify 

applicants for admission and employment, students and parents, employees, sources of referral of applicants for 

admission and employment, and all unions or professional organizations holding collective bargaining or 

professional agreements with the recipient, that it does not discriminate on the basis of sex or mental or physical 

disability in the educational program or activity which it operates, and that it is required by Title IX and Section 

504 not to discriminate in such a manner. 

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 54 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

ELEMENT FIVE│ E M P L O Y E E  Q U A L I F I C AT I O N S  

Governing Law: The qualifications to be met by individuals to be employed by the school.  Education Code 

Section 47605(b)(5)(E). 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy is a dependent charter of the SAUSD and works within 

existing hiring policies and practices. SAUSD employs a group of professionals passionate about educating all 

students and dedicated to fulfilling our college preparatory mission. Education research consistently demonstrates 

that teacher quality has the most significant impact on student achievement. As a result, it is a top priority to 

recruit, select, hire, train, support, and retain the best teachers, administrators, and support staff available.  

 

Eq ua l  Op po r tun i t y  Em p lo yer  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy and the SAUSD believes that all persons are entitled to 

equal employment opportunity. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy shall not discriminate 

against qualified applicants or employees on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, gender identity, sexual 

orientation, pregnancy, national origin, ancestry, citizenship, age, marital status, physical disability, mental 

disability, medical condition, or any other characteristic protected by California or federal law. Equal employment 

opportunity shall be extended to all aspects of the employer-employee relationship, including recruitment, hiring, 

upgrading, training, promotion, transfer, discipline, layoff, recall, and dismissal from employment.  

 

A. QUALIFICATIONS, CONDITIONS & BENEFITS  

 

C r ed en t ia l s  

All teachers at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy and in SAUSD will follow credentialing 

requirements described in the California Education Code and policies established by the SAUSD Board of 

Education. Teachers of core content areas (English Language Arts, Math, Science, and Social Studies) are 

required to hold a Commission on Teacher Credentialing certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that 

which a teacher in other public schools would be required to hold. All teachers working with ELs must possess an 

EL authorization from the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) or authorization allowed 

under California Education Code such as an Emergency CLAD/BCLAD Permit from the CTC. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will seek to minimize ourlimit the use of Emergency Credentialed 

Teachers.  

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy and SAUSD may employ or retain non-certificated 

instructional support staff in any case where a prospective staff member has an appropriate mix of subject matter 

expertise, professional experience, and the demonstrated capacity to work successfully in an instructional support 

capacity. Instruction support staff will not assign grades or approve student work assignments without the 

approval of a teacher except in non-core courses and activities. All non-instructional staff will possess experience 

and expertise appropriate for the position within the school. 

 

Em p lo yee  R eco rd s  &  Ba ck g ro und  Ch eck s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy and SAUSD will comply with all State and Federal laws 

concerning the maintenance and disclosure of employee records. Copies of each teacher’s credentials are kept on 

file in the main office and are readily available for inspection. School administration will review teacher 

credentials annually.  

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy and SAUSD complyies with California Education Code 

44237 and 45125.1 regarding the requirement to fingerprint and obtain background clearance of employees. Prior 

to the first day of work with students, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will process all 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 55 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

background checks through LiveScan, administered by the United States Department of Justice.  

 

In addition, all employees must provide:  

 Up-to-date medical clearance of communicable disease and a negative Mantoux Tuberculosis (TB) test.  

 A full disclosure statement regarding a prior criminal record  

 Documents establishing legal employment status  

 Contact information for at least two (2) professional and one (1) personal reference  

 

Em p lo yee  W e l fa r e  &  Sa f e t y  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy and SAUSD complyies with all Local, State, Federal, and 

relevant District policies concerning employee welfare, health, and safety issues. These include, but are not 

limited to, the requirement for a drug- and tobacco-free workplace and child abuse awareness and reporting.  

 

B. THE RECRUITMENT & SELECTION  

T ea ch er  R ecru i tm en t   

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy and SAUSD recruits qualified teachers to successfully 

implement the school’s mission. Teacher recruitment includes job listings posted on a variety of teacher recruiting 

sites, including the California Charter School Association, Teach For America, Ed-Join, and the Association for 

Supervision and Curriculum Development.  

 

Sta f f  S e l ec t io n  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy and SAUSD utilizes a strenuous screening process to 

ensure selection of the highest quality staff. The SAUSD hires the school’s Co-Directors. All other staffing 

decisions will be made by the Co-Directors in collaboration with SAUSD staff.  

 

Our selection process includes:  

 

1. Development of job qualifications and a thorough job description  

2. Posting of job openings and participation in career fairs  

3. Request of a resume, cover letter, and short essay responses  

4. Short introductory interview (in-person or by phone)  

5. Sample teaching lesson followed by debrief  

6. Extensive interview with multiple members of the school’s existing staff  

7.  Verification of credential and previous employment, State and Federal background checks, and    

    professional and personal reference checks of strong candidates  

8. Offers of employment to the strongest candidates  

 

The selection procedures shall not discriminate on the basis of race, sex, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, 

physical or mental disability, medical condition, statues as Vietnam-era veteran or special disabled veteran, 

marital status, age (40 and above), sexual orientation or any other basis protected by federal, state, or local law or 

ordinance or regulation.  

 

G en era l  Qua l i f i ca t io ns  

All faculty and staff must possess a firm belief in our mission and core instructional beliefs, exemplary personal 

character, and critical professional qualifications. Ideal candidates for employment at the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy, regardless of their position, must consistently demonstrate the following:  

 Unwavering belief in and commitment to fulfill the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s mission  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 56 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 Embodiment of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s PRIDE values—preparation, respect, 

integrity, determination, and enthusiasm  

 In-depth knowledge of and enthusiasm for classroom technology and STEM areas 

 Eagerness to use hands-on, project-based instructional methods utilizing technology on a daily basis 

 Ability to prioritize and manage multiple tasks  

 Ability to effectively handle challenging situations with students, parents, and faculty  

 Desire to work as a member of a collaborative team  

 Willingness to have frequent and honest dialogue about job performance  

 Modeling lifelong learning by engaging in individual professional development  

 Demonstrated commitment to academic excellence and high standards—for themselves, their students, and their 

colleagues  

 Experience working with urban student populations (preferred)  

 Strong oral and written communication skills  

 Use of data to inform decisions and drive continuous improvement  

 Comfort with basic Microsoft Office applications  

 Regular, punctual attendance and professional appearance  

 Appropriate California credentials and qualifications required by No Child Left Behind  

 

J o b  D es cr ip t io ns  fo r  K ey  Perso nn el  

The staff of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will include the following key personnel:  

 Co-Director for Academics and Culture (Principal) 

 Co-Director for Finance and Operations  

 Office Manager and office assistants  

 Teachers  

 Psychologist 

 

The following job descriptions outline the key positions at the school, including their qualifications and 

responsibilities. Job descriptions will be revised as necessary to reflect the needs of the school. 

 

1. Co-Director for Academics and Culture (Principal) 

 
The Co-Director of Academics and Culture will be the candidate with the most expertise in quality curriculum, 

non-traditional instruction, administration, working with historically underserved populations and motivating 

parents. Further, the Principal will have extensive classroom experience and a respect for quality, innovative 

teachers with high-tech and STEM specialties. The Principal will also be instrumental in developing partnerships 

with local businesses and higher education partners as part of the school’s unique program offering opportunities 

for internships, leadership, public speaking, and college and career pathways. By hiring adequate support staff 

and through the support services of the district, the Principal will have more time to serve as a mentor teacher, 

interact with students and parents and effectively deal with and follow-up on academic and disciplinary problems. 

 
The Co-Director of Academics and Culture will work in with the Co-Director of Operations and Finance to 

advance the school’s mission. He/she will be directly accountable to the Superintendent for the school’s rigorous 

culture and academic success.  

 

As the instructional leader of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, the individual who assumes 

the position of Co-Director for Academics and Culture must be prepared to successfully carry out many different 

tasks, including, but not limited to the following:  

 Providing day-to-day leadership of the school  

 Recruitment, hiring, assignment, evaluation, and firing of all instructional staff  

 Providing high quality professional development for teachers and support staff  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 57 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 Developing and managing the school’s instructional leadership team (Assistant Directors, Dean, Special 

Education Coordinator, and Teacher Leaders)  

 Overseeing school-wide transition to the Common Core State Standards  

 Overseeing standardized testing coordination  

 Utilizing student assessment data to maximize student achievement  

 Building and maintaining a school culture based on the school’s values—preparation, respect, integrity, 

determination, and enthusiasm  

 Enforcing student discipline policies  

 Managing the school’s special education program  

 Developing internal and external academic goals, evaluating school performance on multiple measures, and 

adjusting program elements accordingly  

 Evaluating, selecting, and/or overseeing creation of high-quality curricula  

 Preparing and presenting thorough and accurate monthly academic reports to the Board, including student 

progress toward specific benchmarks identified by the Board  

 Ensuring the physical and emotional safety of all students and employees  

 

In addition to the general expectations of all school employees, this Co-Director should possess:  

 At least three years teaching experience and two years leadership experience, ideally in urban and/or charter 

schools  

 Demonstrated classroom success  

 Demonstrated experience managing and leading adults toward increased student achievement  

 Knowledge of applicable education laws and regulatory compliance  

 Knowledge of school finance, budgetary planning, and accounting principles preferred  

 Understanding of statistical data and analysis, particularly with student achievement data  

 Master’s Degree in Education or related field  

 Administrative credential or comparable school leadership training preferred  

 

2. Co-Director for Finance & Operations 
 
The Co-Director of Operations and Finance at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will work 

with the Co-Director of Academics and Culture to advance the school’s mission. He/she will be directly 

accountable to the Superintendent for the school’s financial stability and organizational viability.  

 

As the operational leader of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, the individual who assumes the 

position of Co-Director for Finance and Operations must be prepared to successfully carry out many different 

tasks, including, but not limited to the following:  

 Recruitment, hiring, assignment, evaluation, and firing of all non-instructional support staff  

 Recruitment of students, including coordinating a random public lottery, when needed  

 Implementing effective communication processes with all stakeholders  

 Creating structures for meaningful parental involvement  

 Overseeing the annual budget and monthly cash flow, and ensuring sound financial conditions  

 Overseeing acquisition and maintenance of the school site 

 Managing relationships and overseeing the work of contracted service providers  

 Advocating on the school’s behalf and serving as the school’s primary spokesperson to all external audiences, 

including investors, media, community partners, local leaders, elected officials, and the Santa Ana Unified School 

District 

 Work with the Advisory Board to develop and implement a fundraising strategy and plan  

 Ensuring the school follows all applicable District policies and State and Federal laws  

 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 58 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

In addition to the general expectations of all school employees, this Co-Director should possess:  

 least two years teaching experience and two years leadership experience, ideally in urban and/or charter schools  

 Demonstrated classroom success 

 Demonstrated experience managing and leading adults toward increased student achievement  

 Knowledge of applicable education laws and regulatory compliance  

 Knowledge of school finance, budgetary planning, and accounting principles  

 Understanding of statistical data and analysis, particularly with student achievement data  

 Master’s Degree in Education or related field  

 Administrative credential or comparable school leadership training preferred  

 

3. School Psychologist 
 
The School Psychologist will maintain compliance will guidelines regarding the assessment, reporting, and 

services provided to students with Individualized Education Programs (IEPs). He/she will also use therapeutic 

skills to help students understand and deal with social, behavioral and personal problems that may be affecting 

particular students in the classroom. The psychologist will work with individual students, families and groups, 

and he/she will also function as an integral part of the special education department and the larger school team. 

This role is integral in supporting students toward better coping with their daily stresses while functioning in an 

academically rigorous environment. The Psychologist reports to the District Special Education Administrator. 

 

The School Psychologist will:  

 Guide students to develop problem solving and coping skills. Help student/family gain insight into their issue of 

concern and create an action plan 

 Create new or use existing paperwork (Consent form, Release of Information, Intake Questionnaire, Basic 

Information Sheet, Student File Checklist) needed to obtain parental/client consent for treatment  

 Collect information through interviews (initial intake, collaboration with outside professionals working with the 

student, etc.) and observations  

 Assess safety and follow protocol in crisis situations  

 Evaluate the effectiveness of counseling and client progress in resolving identified problems and moving toward 

identified objectives  

 Maintain confidentiality, unless there are special circumstances to break confidentiality, as in the case of danger 

to self or others  

 

Specialized Qualifications –  

 

Required:  

 Candidate must possess a graduate degree in school psychology  

 Candidate must also possess a valid school psychological services credential  

 Experience working with urban middle school students and their families  

 Knowledge of applicable special education laws and regulations  

 Experience conducting psychological assessments, writing comprehensive reports, participating in IEP meetings, 

and providing individual and group counseling  

Preferred:  

 Fluency in Spanish  

 Experience working with families, doing family counseling, leading parent workshops, etc.  

 Knowledge of external resources to support students and families outside of the school day/structure  

 Experience as a classroom teacher in an urban setting  

 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 59 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

4. Special Education Teacher 
 

The special education teacher will work with and report to the District Special Education Administrator to 

operationalize the mission of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy and ensure high-quality special 

education services for students.  

 

The special education teacher’s primary duties include:  

 

 Providing pull-out and push-in Special Ed services for students with Individualized Education Plans (IEPs)  

 Drafting IEPS and ensuring compliance with all components of the IEP  

 Ensuring that all service minutes are provided and appropriately documented through meticulous special 

education records  

 Monitoring progress toward IEP goals and providing parents with frequent progress reports  

 Scheduling, preparing for, and facilitating IEP meetings  

 Meeting regularly with other members of the special education to collaborate and share best practices  

 Collaborating with general education teachers to ensure academic success of special education students within the 

classroom  

 Coordinating with the general education team to ensure students are provided an effective Student Success Team 

(SST) process  

 Completing other tasks as directed by the Special Education Coordinator or Co-Director for Academics and 

Culture  

 
In addition to the general expectations of all school employees, the special education teacher should possess:  

 

 Valid Resource Specialist Program credential through the CA Commission on Teacher Credentialing, including 

authorization to work with English language learners  

 Working knowledge of special education law, documentation, and best practices  

 Effective communication with parents, especially conflict resolution  

 Successful teaching and/or special education experience, ideally with urban youth, as evidenced by strong 

achievement data and strong classroom relationships, preferred  

 Working knowledge of content standards and curricular materials for the grade span for which he/she will be 

responsible, preferred  

 Master’s degree in special education or related field, preferred  

 
 

5. Teachers 
 
Teachers at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy perform the most critical work of our school—

the daily instruction, evaluation, and support of our students. Teachers will report to the Co-Director for 

Academics and Culture or Assistant Director.  

 

A Charter School teacher’s primary duties include:  

 Planning and delivering thorough, challenging, standards-based lesson that ensure all students master required 

content  

 Assessing students daily through informal measures and at least one formal test or quiz each week  

 Creating comprehensive chapter and/or unit tests, as well as cumulative final exams  

 Reinforcing school-wide rules and expectations in classrooms and elsewhere on campus  

 Providing supervision before- and after-school and at lunch and/or recess as assigned in order to maintain student 

safety  

 Reflecting continually in order to ensure a culture of high academic and behavioral standards  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 60 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 Communicating effectively with students, parents, and colleagues  

 Using detailed data analysis of student performance to inform best practices  

 Identifying students who are academically at risk and initiating effective intervention strategies  

 Completing other tasks as directed by the Co-Directors  

 

In addition to the general expectations of all school employees, the teachers should possess:  

 

 Bachelor’s degree (advanced degree preferred)  

 Appropriate California teaching credential, including English Learner Authorization  

 Fulfillment of all criteria set forth to be considered Highly Qualified under NCLB  

 Evidence of successful management of an urban classroom using structure and high expectations to drive student 

success  

 Experience as a classroom teacher with demonstrated quantifiable and objective student performance gains that 

surpass state or local averages  

 Ability to work with a variety of learning abilities, including those with special needs and low skill level in a 

heterogeneously grouped classroom setting  

 Demonstrated ability to work well in a team, especially with parents and community members  

 

6. Teaching Assistant 
 

A Teaching Assistant at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy supports the teachers in the daily 

instruction, evaluation, and supervision of our students. Teaching Assistants report to the Teacher to whom they 

are assigned.  

 
A Teaching Assistant at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s primary duties include:  

 Collaborating with teachers to plan and delivering small group lessons and activities that ensure all students 

master required content  

 Assessing students and tracking results to inform lessons  

 Reinforcing school-wide rules and expectations in classrooms and elsewhere on campus  

 Providing supervision before- and after-school and at lunch and/or recess as assigned in order to maintain student 

safety  

 Reflecting continually in order to ensure a culture of high academic and behavioral standards  

 Communicating effectively with students, parents, and colleagues  

 Using detailed data analysis of student performance to inform best practices  

 Identifying students who are academically at risk and initiating effective intervention strategies  

 Translating for parent meetings, conferences, and events as needed  

 Completing other tasks as directed by the Co-Directors, including administrative office tasks  

 

In addition to the general expectations of all school employees, the teachers should possess:  

 Associate’s Degree  

 Evidence of successful management of an urban classroom using structure and high expectations to drive student 

success  

 Ability to work with a variety of learning abilities, including those with special needs and low skill level in a 

heterogeneously grouped classroom setting  

 Demonstrated ability to work well in a team, especially with parents and community members  

 

7. Office Manager 
 

The Office Manager of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will ensure the efficient operation of 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 61 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

the school’s main office and work with members of the administrative team to ensure the success of the school. 

The Office Manager will report to the Co-Director for Finance and Operations. 

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 62 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

The Office Manager’s primary duties include:  

 Performing the duties of the Office Assistant in his/her absence, including reception, clerical, and student 

supervision duties.  

 Implementing systems to support the work of teachers and administrative staff  

 Working with the Operations Managers and back office support provider to prepare various district, state, and 

federal reports  

 Independently, or in accordance with administrative instructions, developing school communications in English 

and Spanish based on a thorough knowledge of school policies, regulations, and operational procedures  

 Translating for parent meetings and school events  

 Preparing and maintaining a variety of student and school records  

 Maintaining and operating a variety of office equipment, such as the copy machine, printers, fax machine, and 

scanners with speed and accuracy  

 Maintaining a neat, organized office environment  

 Assisting in the coordination of special events  

 Overseeing and evaluating the Office Assistant  

 Assisting the Co-Directors and members of the administrative team, as directed  

 

In addition to the general expectations of all school employees, the Office Manager should possess:  

 

 A minimum of an Associate’s Degree or two years of college  

 A minimum of two years’ experience in a similar position  

 Demonstrated proficiency with letter and report writing, accurate mathematical calculations, word processing, 

record keeping, and data collection systems  

 Exemplary communication skills in English and Spanish, including impeccable grammar and fluency  

 Strong public relations skills with a variety of constituencies  

 Ability to quickly and accurately perform clerical duties such as data entry, filing, maintaining systems, 

proofreading, and operating office equipment  

 Experience in an educational setting preferred  

 

8. Office Assistant 
 

The Office Assistants at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will be the school’s front desk 

receptionist and will support members of the administrative team to ensure the success of the school. The Office 

Assistant will report to the Office Manager.  

 
The Office Manager’s primary duties include:  

 Monitoring the school’s entryway, greeting parents and visitors, and ensuring school safety  

 Performing clerical duties, including data entry, mail correspondence, office supply inventory, and answering 

phones  

 Attending to students who are ill or injured  

 Student supervision during arrival, recess, lunch, dismissal, etc., as directed by Co-Director  

 Maintaining attendance records, including monitoring and following up with families about excessive absences 

and/or tardies  

 Maintaining a neat, organized office environment  

 Translating for parent meetings and school events  

 Processing student enrollment paperwork  

 Preparing and maintaining a variety of student records  

 Maintaining and operating a variety of office equipment, such as the copy machine, printers, fax machine, and 

scanners with speed and accuracy  

 Overseeing parent volunteers and other school guests  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 63 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 Assisting in the coordination of special events  

 Assisting the School Directors and members of the administrative team, as directed  

 
In addition to the general expectations of all school employees, the Office Manager should possess:  

 Exemplary communication skills in English and Spanish, including impeccable grammar and fluency  

 Strong public relations skills with a variety of constituencies  

 Demonstrated proficiency with letter and report writing, accurate mathematical calculations, word processing, 

record keeping, and data collection systems  

 Ability to quickly and accurately perform clerical duties such as data entry, filing, maintaining systems, 

proofreading, and operating office equipment  

 A minimum of an Associate’s Degree or two years of college  

 Experience in an educational setting preferred  

 

Sta f f  Com p en sa t io n  & B en ef i t s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s salary schedule is the salary scale of the SAUSD. A 

comprehensive benefits package (medical, dental, and retirement), consistent with the SAUSD’s, is included as 

part of each full-time employee’s compensation.  

 

Sta f f  E va lua t io ns  

The purpose of evaluation is to improve instruction. The SAUSD Superintendent would conduct an annual 

performance review of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy Co-Directors. The Co-Directors are 

responsible for completing all other annual staff evaluations, based on an evaluation process outlined in SAUSD 

collective bargaining agreements that includes multiple measures of performance, including annual formal 

observations, monthly informal observations, staff self-reflection, and student achievement data (for teachers). 

Site administration will assist teachers in meeting the California Standards for the Teaching Profession.  

 

 

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 64 of 114 

  

ELEMENT SIX│ H E A LT H  &  S A F E T Y  

Governing Law: The procedures that the school will follow to ensure the health and safety of pupils and 

staff.  These procedures shall include the requirement that each employee of the school furnish the school 

with a criminal record summary as described in Section 44237.  Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(F). 

 

The health and safety of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy staff and pupils is a high 

priority for the school. The school will follow all required safety regulations including emergency policies 

and procedures. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will comply with all applicable health 

and safety laws and regulations. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will operate as a 

drug, alcohol, and tobacco free workplace. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy has 

adopted and implemented a comprehensive health and safety plan to create a safe and secure learning 

environment, keep it on file for review and train its staff annually on the safety procedures outlined in the 

plan. It will be the task of the school administration to monitor all activities consistently to provide safety 

and security for the students.  For this purpose, a ―team-on-duty‖ will be created among teachers and 

assistant teachers to supervise students at all times.  

 

The school will comply with the Healthy Schools Act, California Education Code Section 17608, which 

details pest management requirements for schools.   

 

The health and safety policies include, but are not be limited to, the following topics: 

A. SITE SAFETY   

 

Bu i ld in g  Co d e  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy facility will comply with all applicable building codes, 

standards and regulations adopted by the city and/or county agencies responsible for building and safety 

standards for the city in which the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is to be located, and the 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Applicable codes and ADA requirements shall also apply to the 

construction, reconstruction, alteration of or addition to the proposed Charter School facility. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will implement any corrective actions, orders to comply, or notices 

issued by the authorized building and safety agency. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy 

cannot exempt itself from applicable building and zoning codes, ordinances, and ADA requirements.  The 

Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will adhere to the program accessibility requirements of 

Federal law (Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 504). See Element 18 for additional information 

on the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy facilities. 

 

A sb es to s  Ma n ag em e n t  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will comply with the asbestos requirement as cited in 

the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (AHERA), 40CFR part 763.  AHERA requires that any 

building leased or acquired that is to be used as a school or administrative building shall maintain an asbestos 

management plan. 

 

D ru g  F r e e  ●  A l co h o l  F r e e  ●  Sm ok e  Fr e e  En v i ro nm en t  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will function as a drug, alcohol and tobacco free 

workplace. 

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 65 of 114 

  

Wo rk p la c e  S a f e t y  

All employees are responsible for their own safety, as well as that of others in the workplace. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will rely upon its employees to ensure that work areas are kept safe 

and free of hazardous conditions. Employees will report any unsafe conditions or potential hazards to their 

supervisor immediately. If an employee suspects a concealed danger is present on the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy’s premises, or in a product, facility, piece of equipment, process, or business 

practice for which the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is responsible, the employee will 

bring it to the attention of their supervisor or Principal immediately. Supervisors will arrange for the 

correction of any unsafe condition or concealed danger immediately and will contact the Principal the 

problem. 

 

Employees will be encouraged to report any workplace injury, accident, to their supervisor as soon as 

possible, regardless of the severity of the injury or accident. If medical attention is required immediately, 

supervisors will assist employees in obtaining medical care, after which the details of the injury or accident 

must be reported. 

 

On a periodic basis the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will issue rules and guidelines 

governing workplace safety and health in its employee handbook. All employees will familiarize themselves 

with the rules and guidelines, as strict compliance will be expected. Failure to comply with rules and 

guidelines regarding health and safety or work performance as described in the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy’s employee handbook will not be tolerated. 

 

 

B. STAFF & STUDENT SAFETY MEASURES 
 

C rim in a l  Ba ck g ro u n d  Ch e ck s  

Each employee and contractor of the school will submit to a criminal background check and furnish a 

criminal record summary as required by Education Code Section 44237 and 45125.1. Employees and 

contractors will submit fingerprints to the Department of Justice via LiveScan processing. Employees will 

not start working until results are received from the Department of Justice and they are cleared to begin 

work. The Principal of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall monitor compliance with 

this policy. Volunteers who will volunteer outside of the direct supervision of a credentialed employee shall 

be fingerprinted and receive background clearance prior to volunteering without the direct supervision of a 

credentialed employee. 

 

Com p reh en s i ve  S ex u a l  Ha ra ssm en t  Po l i c i e s  &  P ro c ed u re s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy is committed to providing a school that is free from 

sexual harassment, as well as any harassment based upon such factors as race, religion, creed, color, national 

origin, ancestry, age, medical condition, marital status, sexual orientation, or disability. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy has developed a comprehensive policy to prevent and immediately 

remediate any concerns about sexual discrimination or harassment at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy (including employee to employee, employee to student, and student to employee 

misconduct). 

 

Ch i ld  Ab u s e  R ep o r t in g  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy employees are mandated reporters and will adhere to 

the requirements of California Penal Code Section 11166 regarding child abuse reporting. The Charter 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 66 of 114 

  

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy staff must report to the proper authorities if they suspect the 

following occurring to a student: 

 Sexual assault 

 Neglect 

 Willful cruelty or unjustifiable punishment 

 Cruel or inhuman corporal punishment or injury 

 Abuse in out-of-home care 

The reporting person need only to ―reasonably suspect‖ that abuse or neglect has occurred. The reporting 

person does not have to prove abuse. The Principal will work will all faculty and staff members to make sure 

all appropriate steps are taken if a child abuse situation occurs. All faculty and staff will understand that it is 

their duty and responsibility to report any suspicions of child abuse. Staff will understand that under 

California law, failure to report an incident of known or reasonably suspected child abuse or neglect is guilty 

of a misdemeanor punishable by up to six months confinement in a county jail or by a fine of one thousand 

dollars ($1,000) or by both. Staff will not be made to investigate any incident, only report to the Principal 

and proper law enforcement of child protective services.   

 

All suspected cases of child abuse will be brought to the Principal and proper law enforcement of child 

protective services. A written report of the situation will be completed and either the Department of Child 

Support Services or the Police Department will be immediately notified. The reporting person will be 

responsible for providing all the necessary information and child abuse reports to the Department of Children 

Services and/or the Police Department since he/she will be most knowledgeable of the situation.   

 

Should it be necessary to remove the child from school, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy 

staff will obtain the contact information of the agency person removing the child. This information will be 

placed in the student’s record and be available to the parent/guardian. 

 

C. MEDICAL PLANS 
 

Im m u n iza t io n s  & T u b e rc u lo s i s  Te s t in g  

All enrolling students and staff will provide records documenting immunizations to the extent required for 

enrollment in non-charter public schools pursuant to Health and Safety Code Sections 120325-120375 and 

Title 17, California Regulations Section 6000-6075. Records of student immunizations shall be maintained. 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will comply with education Code Section 49406 with 

regard to tuberculosis testing.  

 

P r es c r ip t io n  Med i ca t io n s  

Students requiring prescription medications and other medicines during school hours will be accommodated 

as per Education Code Section 49423.  Parents must bring medication to the office in the original containers, 

with the name of the prescribing physician, the name of the student, and dispensing instructions. Parents will 

complete the appropriate form authorizing school staff to administer medication. Designated staff will put 

medications in a locked cabinet or refrigerate as needed for medications requiring refrigeration. Designated 

staff will log times for administering medications for each student and will establish a tickler system to 

ensure that medications are dispensed at the appropriate times. Designated staff will call students to receive 

medications at the appropriate times. In cases where medications are long-term prescriptions, designated 

staff will provide parents with one week’s notice to alert them that additional medication is needed.  

 

Vi s io n ,  Hea r in g  & S co l io s i s  T es t in g  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 67 of 114 

  

Students will be screened for vision, hearing and scoliosis to the same extent as would be required if the 

pupils attended a non-charter public school.  The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will 

adhere to Education Code Section 49450, et seq., as applicable to the grade levels served by the school.  

 

D ia b e t e s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will provide an information sheet regarding type 2 

diabetes to the parent or guardian of incoming 7th grade students.  The information sheet shall include, but 

shall not be limited to, all of the following: 

 A description of the risk factors and warning signs associated with type 2 diabetes. 

 A recommendation that students displaying or possibly suffering from risk factors or warning signs 

associated with type 2 diabetes should be screened for type 2 diabetes.  

 A description of treatments and prevention of methods of type 2 diabetes. 

 A description of the different types of diabetes screening tests available.  

 

Blo o d  Bo rn e  Pa th og e n s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will meet state and federal standards for dealing with 

blood borne pathogens and other potentially infectious materials in the work place. The Board will establish 

a written infectious control plan designed to protect employees and students from possible infection due to 

contact with blood borne viruses, including human immunodeficiency virus (―HIV‖) and hepatitis B virus 

(―HBV‖). Whenever exposed to blood or other bodily fluids through injury or accident, staff and students 

will follow the latest medical protocol for disinfecting procedures. 

 

D. EMERGENCY PLANS 
 

Em e rg en c y  S i tu a t io n s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will utilize its School Safety Plan in responding to 

emergency situations. The plan will be reviewed each year and updated as necessary. The Charter SchoolThe 

Advanced Learning Academy will ensure that the staff has been trained in health, safety, and emergency 

procedures. Staff will receive internal memos regarding relevant health and safety issues. Schoolwide drills 

in preparation for fires, earthquakes, intruders on campus, or other emergency/disaster situations will be 

conducted at regular intervals throughout the year. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy 

will create and maintain a record of each drill. Additionally, important safety and health topics will  be 

addressed in the School’s newsletter. 

 

Fi r e  Dr i l l s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will comply with the Education Code Section 32001 

in regards to conducting fire drills not less than once every calendar month at the elementary level, at least 

four times every school year at the intermediate levels, and not less than twice every school year at the 

secondary level. The Office will maintain a record of each drill conducted with the amount of time it  takes 

for complete evacuation. 

 

Whenever the alarm is given, all students, teachers and other employees shall quickly leave the building in 

an orderly manner. Teachers shall ascertain that no student remains in the building. Designated evacuation 

routes shall be posted in each room. Teachers shall be prepared to select alternate exits and direct their 

classes to these exits in the event the designated evacuation route is blocked. 

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 68 of 114 

  

Students are to remain with their teacher in the evacuation area. Teachers shall take their roll to ensure that 

all students are accounted for and be prepared to identify missing students to the office staff and the 

administrators. Students will remain with their teachers at the designated evacuation area until the 

administrative staff gives the ―all clear‖ signal. In a successful fire drill, orderly evacuation begins 

immediately and is completed within five minutes of the initial alarm. The students and staff will then return 

to their appropriate classrooms and the teachers will take roll once more. Missing students will be reported to 

the attendance office. 

 

Ea r t h q u ak e  & Oth e r  Di sa s t e r  Dr i l l s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will comply with the Education Code Section 35297 

in regards to holding a ―drop procedure‖ practice at least once each school quarter in elementary schools and 

at least once a semester in secondary schools. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy shall 

conduct disaster drills to prepare students and staff for any seismic activity and other disasters. The practice 

drills include the ―duck, hold, cover‖ procedure. A disaster drill commencing with the ―duck, hold, cover‖ 

procedure will be initiated by an announcement over the intercom. Students and staff will hear, ―This is an 

emergency drill. Duck, hold, and cover.‖ Teachers will then turn off the lights and have students get under a 

desk/table or against the wall away from the windows. Students are to remain quiet and orderly so they will 

be able to hear additional instructions when given. All drills will be concluded with an ―all clear‖ 

announcement on the intercom, or a visible signal from the administrative staff.  

 

In the case of a real earthquake, everyone must engage in the ―duck, hold, cover‖ procedure immediately and 

remain in position until the teacher determines that it is safe to leave the building. If remaining in the room 

becomes dangerous, or when the shaking stops, teachers will proceed with their students to the evacuation 

site or another safety zone. If students are on the playground or other outdoor area when a disaster drill is 

called or during an actual earthquake, students are to drop immediately to the ground, away from trees and 

power lines, and cover their heads with their hands. They are to remain in that position until given additional 

instructions.  

 

In the case of disasters other than earthquakes, the administrative staff will contact each room, advice staff  of 

potential dangers, and give further directions or orders. Teachers and students will remain in their classrooms 

until instructions are received for an ―all clear‖ or an evacuation. For safety purposes, no one is to leave the 

rooms. If there has been a chemical spill, the teacher must make sure that all doors, windows, and vents 

remain closed. The school site maintenance staff will turn off the gas. All unassigned staff will report to the 

office for assignments such as searching offices, bathrooms, and all other common areas, including outdoor 

facilities. 

Teachers will stay with their classes for the duration of the emergency. In the event of an earthquake or other 

natural disaster, all school employees are immediately designated ―Civil Defense Workers‖ and are not 

allowed to leave school until they are given official clearance to do so by the administrative staff.  

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy has prepared general classroom safety rules to help 

make classrooms safer in the event of serious seismic activity. This list of rules advises teachers, for 

example, to have their emergency clipboards readily available near the entrance/exit to their classrooms, 

instructs teachers-and staff-not to store heavy objects on top of cabinets, exits and ways of travel are to be 

kept free of obstructions and have their earthquake buckets at a visible location in the classroom. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy also participates in the Great California ShakeOut, a statewide 

program that helps people and organizations prepare for major earthquakes, and also practice how to respond 

when they happen. 

 

Bom b  Th r ea t s  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 69 of 114 

  

Every person receiving the call must understand the importance of a calm and reasonable action when a 

bomb threat is received. Information obtained by that person might be of great importance. Therefore, the 

person receiving the threat will get as much information as possible from the caller. This includes the time of 

the day, wording of the message, background noises, quality of the voice and information about where the 

bomb is, what time it will go off, etc. The person receiving the threat should delay the caller as long as 

possible while s/he alerts another adult to the crisis. That adult will immediately notify the telephone 

company to trace the call and immediately thereafter notify the police via 911. 

 

Based on the information at hand, the administrative staff will make a decision whether an immediate 

evacuation is warranted. If so, the evacuation code word ―safe school drill‖ will be given over the intercom 

and evacuation procedures will be followed. The office staff will coordinate information requests from/to 

law enforcement, the telephone company, and the parents/guardians. If an immediate evacuation is not 

warranted, the administrative staff will notify teachers to inspect their room for any suspicious materials or 

unknown packages without alarming students. All unassigned staff will report to the office for assignments 

such as searching offices, bathrooms, and all other common areas including outdoor facilities. 

 

E va c u a t io n  P la n  

A disaster of a significant nature may require the evacuation of the school. Immediately upon notification by 

outside authorities that the school must be evacuated, the administrative staff will verify the name and 

position of the person placing the alert. Once the source is confirmed, the administrative staff will give the 

evacuation code word ―safe school drill‖ over the intercom. Teachers will proceed with their students to the 

nearest school exit indicated on the evacuation map posted for this purpose. Before leaving the room, 

teachers will make sure they have their emergency clipboards that include class attendance rosters with them. 

Students who are not in a classroom at the time the intercom signal is given will attach themselves to the 

nearest teacher exiting the building for purposes of getting to the designated evacuation site. Prior to 

evacuation, offices, bathrooms, and all other common areas, including outdoor facilities, will be searched by 

unassigned staff members designated by the administrative staff. 

 

Once at the designated evacuation site, teachers and other staff will ensure that all students find their 

respective teachers. Teachers will then take roll to ensure that all students are accounted for. The names of 

any missing students will be given to the office personnel and an individual will be assigned the task of 

finding any missing students. Teachers will work together to take care of students with injuries, respiratory 

problems, or other medical conditions. 

 

Teachers will stay with their classes for the duration of the emergency. In the event of an evacuation, all 

school employees are immediately designated ―Civil Defense Workers‖ and are not allowed to leave school 

until they are given official clearance to do so by the administrative staff.  

 

Students will remain with their teachers at the designated evacuation site until the administrative staff gives 

the ―all clear‖ signal. In the event students cannot return to the school site, the administrative staff will notify 

parents and/or the media as to where students can be picked up. The office personnel will sign out students 

as they are being picked up by a parent or other adult listed on the emergency information card. Parents will 

be asked to remain in a designated area, and students will be escorted to the designated area for release.  

 

 

E. ADDITIONAL 
 

I n d em n i f i ca t io n  

With the exception of the District’s indemnification obligations related to the District’s provision of special 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 70 of 114 

  

education services as specifically described in the charter thus far, and with the exception of any liability, 

claims or damages caused solely by the active negligence or willful misconduct of the District, the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the District and its 

Board, Board members, officers, administrators, employees, agents, representatives, volunteers, successors, 

and assigns (collectively hereinafter ―District and District Personnel‖) against any and all claims, demands, 

actions, causes of action, suits, losses, expenses, costs, penalties, obligations, errors, omissions, or liabilities, 

including legal costs, attorney’s fees, and expert witness fees, whether or not suit is actually filed, and/o r any 

judgment rendered against District and/or District Personnel that may be asserted or claimed by any person, 

firm, or entity which may in any way arise out of or in connection with performance under the Charter by the 

Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, their advisory board, administrators, employees, agents, 

representatives, volunteers, subcontractors, invitees, successors, and/or assigns. The Charter SchoolThe 

Advanced Learning Academy and its Board’s obligation to defend the District and the other indemnities 

identified herein is not contingent upon there being an acknowledgement or determination of the merit of any 

claim, demand, action, cause of action, or suit.    

 

I n su ra n c e  

 

As a District-sponsored charter, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will be insured under 

SAUSD’s insurance policy. The proposed Charter development will add property and buildings under the 

District’s ownership, and would be added to the District’s insurance policy. The District is insured under the 

Alliance of Schools for Cooperative Insurance Programs for property coverage. Should the District have a 

loss with a $25,000 Self-Insured Retention on an occurrence, the coverage limit will be the replacement cost. 

The District’s premium is based on a property appraisal that is done every five years and on annual trending. 

 

Au x i l ia r y  S er v i ce s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy administrative staff will conduct annual reviews to 

ensure all applicable auxiliary services are safe (food services, custodial services).  

  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 71 of 114 

  

ELEMENT SEVEN│ R A C I A L &  E T H N I C  B A L A N C E  

Governing Law: The means by which the school will achieve a racial and ethnic balance among its pupils 

that is reflective of the general population residing within the territorial jurisdiction of the school district to 

which the charter petition is submitted.  Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(G). 

 

Students from all areas of SAUSD and the INDA will be recruited, with a goal of creating an economically 

and ethnically diverse student population. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will 

advertise to the entire SAUSD community and draw students that are attracted to the unique K-8 STEM 

program. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy aims to attract students from all cultural 

backgrounds within SAUSD, especially the Latino ethnicity. Historically, the number of Latino students 

pursuing careers in STEM areas has been low. A notable cause of these low numbers is that Latino students 

have inadequate exposure to STEM curriculum. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will 

provide a unique program to a largely-Latino student population of SAUSD in the hopes of educating and 

inspiring students to pursue STEM-related careers in today’s technology-driven economy. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will implement a special recruitment process to 

achieve racial and ethnic balance among its students that reflects the general population residing in the 

geographic boundaries of the District. This process involves the following: 

 

 Hold discussions and distribute application materials at places where diverse populations may be reached in 

the target area, including community centers, neighborhood meeting areas, and existing schools 

 Distribute materials in English and Spanish to reach the limited English proficient populations that exist in 

the target area; 

 Employ bilingual individuals who specialize in public relations with underrepresented communities and 

neighborhoods 

 Host Open Houses and provide tours of the school 

 Monthly or biweekly public presentations; 

 All means of advertising will be used, such as electronic media, flyers, and direct mail 

 Distributing flyers at playgrounds, recreation centers and/or sports clubs in our neighborhood 

 Direct mailing to the parents/guardians who have children in targeted age groups 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will maintain an accurate accounting of the ethnic and 

racial balance of students enrolled in the school.  Such data may drive additional recruitment measures 

should the data indicate that the racial and ethnic distribution is not reflective of the surrounding 

communities. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will also document the efforts made to 

achieve racial and ethnic balance in accordance with the charter petition and standards of charter legislation. 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 72 of 114 

  

ELEMENT EIGHT│ A D M I S S I O N  R E Q U I R E M E N T  

Governing Law: Admission requirements, of the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, if 

applicable. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(H). 

 

L eg a l  A ssu ra n c e s  

Charter schools are schools of choice and admissions policies will reflect this compliance with state and 

federal requirements. In accordance with Education Code Section 47605(d)(2)(A), the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy will admit all students who wish to attend, up to the school’s enrollment 

capacity.  

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will:  

 Be non-sectarian in all areas of operations, including student admission  

 Not discriminate on the basis of the characteristics listed in Education Code Section 220 (actual or perceived 

disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual 

orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 

422.55 of the Penal Code or association with an individual who has any of the aforementioned 

characteristics).  

 Not charge tuition  

 Accept all students who are California residents that wish to attend the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy, regardless of their place of residence within the state  

 Not require any pupil to attend the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy  

 Not require any test or assessment prior to acceptance and enrollment in the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy  

 Not enroll pupils over 19 years of age unless continuously enrolled in public school and making satisfactory 

progress toward high school diploma requirements  

 Comply with all laws establishing minimum age for public school attendance  

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will adhere to all provisions of No Child Left Behind 

regarding:  

 Receiving students from Program Improvement schools as part of Public School Choice.  

 Providing the Co-Directors' attestation of highly qualified teachers and paraprofessionals.  

 Meeting the needs of "at-risk" students if the school is designated a targeted assistance school.  

 

M c Kin n e y - Ve n to  Hom el es s  A ss i s ta n c e  A c t  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will adhere to the provisions of the McKinney-Vento 

Homeless Assistance Act and ensure that each child of a homeless individual and each homeless youth has 

equal access to the same free, appropriate public education as provided to other children and youth s. The 

Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will include specific information in their outreach 

materials, websites, at community meetings, open forums, and regional center meetings notifying parents 

that the school is open to enroll and provide services for all students which shall include a District standard 

contact number to access additional information regarding enrollment. A student’s IEP will never be 

required prior to participation in any attendance lottery or as a condition for enrollment.  

 

P r io r i t y  E n ro l lm en t  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 73 of 114 

  

The main objective of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is to house students generated 

from the INDA. Priority enrollment will be given to students that reside in this area. Second enrollment 

priority will be given to SAUSD students attending other SAUSD impacted (overcrowded) schools. Third 

enrollment priority will be given to SAUSD students attending any other SAUSD schools. Any other 

students that choose to attend the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will be admitted as 

facility capacity allows. If Irvine Unified School District (IUSD) students in the vicinity wish to enroll, they 

will first be required to obtain an inter-district transfer release from IUSD.  

 

At full capacity, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will serve 600 students in grades K-8. 

If the number of students who wish to attend the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy exceeds 

the school’s capacity, enrollment preferences will be given as on a lottery basis.  

 

The following is a description of the random enrollment lottery process, if needed: 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will inform parents of all applicants and all interested 

parties of the rules to be followed during the lottery process, location, date and time of the lottery through 

mail, e-mail, school website, phone, and other available outlets prior to the lottery date.  

 

Enrollment preferences in the case of a lottery will be given in the following order:  

 Siblings of existing students 

 Children of Board members or children of employees of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy 

 Students who reside within SAUSD attendance boundaries 

 All other students permitted by law 

 

In the lottery, all names are drawn and listed in order, separately, for each grade level. Once the school 

capacity is met, the remaining students’ names will continue to be drawn randomly and p laced in the order 

they are drawn on the waiting list. The students who do not apply in the open enrollment period are added to 

the end of the waiting list in the order they applied. All waiting lists expire annually at the end of the formal 

academic year. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will maintain auditable records of the 

above activities. 

 

Notifications of admission status will be communicated through mail and phone calls to all applicants. 

Enrollment packets will be sent to admitted students; students not admitted will be informed of their waiting 

list priority number as determined by the admissions lottery or application order.  

 

If the enrollment packets are not returned within 10 business days from the date of postage, then admission 

for that student is forfeited, and an admission notice will be mailed to the next student on the waiting list. In 

addition, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall attempt on at least two separate 

occasions to contact the parents/guardians of promoted students by telephone. Those families not returning 

the enrollment packets within the 10-day period forfeit their right to enroll their student in the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy for that school year, and an admission notice will be mailed to the 

next student on the waiting list. 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 74 of 114 

  

ELEMENT NINE│ A N N U A L F I N A N C I A L A U D I T S  

 

Governing Law: The manner in which annual, independent financial audits shall be conducted, which shall 

employ generally accepted accounting principles, and the manner in which audit exceptions and deficiencies 

shall be resolved to the satisfaction of the chartering authority. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(I). 

 

Annually, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will use the District's state-approved 

independent financial auditor and a Certified Public Accountant to produce an annual financial statement and 

audit. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will maintain auditable records and other 

evidence pertaining to costs incurred throughout the charter period for at least seven years. These audits will 

be conducted pursuant to State Superintendent of Schools and federal regulations. The audit will verify the 

accuracy of the school's financial statements, attendance and enrollment accounting practices, and review the 

school's internal controls.  

 

To the extent required under applicable federal law, the audit scope will be expanded to include items and 

processes specified in any applicable Office of Management and Budget Circulars. It is anticipated that the 

annual audit will be completed within six months of the close of the fiscal year. Upon completion, a copy of 

the auditor's findings will be forwarded to the SAUSD Deputy Superintendent of Business and Board of 

Education. The Deputy Superintendent will review any audit exceptions or deficiencies, then recommend 

ways for the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s Co-Directors to resolve them. The Co-

Directors will then report back to the Board how the exceptions and deficiencies have been or will be 

resolved.  

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will utilize the district's written contract 

administration system that ensures that all contractors, including consultants, perform in accordance with 

terms, condition and specifications of all state contract procurement regulations.  

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will compile and provide to the Board an annual 

performance report. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy staff and the Board will jointly 

develop the content, evaluation criteria, timelines, and process for the annual performance reports. This 

report will, at a minimum, include the following data:  

 Summary data showing student progress toward the goals and outcomes from assessment instruments and 

techniques specified herein. This data will be displayed on both a school-wide basis and disaggregated by 

major racial and ethnic categories to the extent feasible without compromising student confidentiality.  

 A summary of major decisions and policies established by the school during the year.  

 Data on the level of parent involvement in the school's governance and summary data from an annual parent 

and student satisfaction survey.  

 Data regarding the number of staff working at the school and their qualifications.  

 A copy of the school's health and safety policies and/or a summary of any major changes to those policies 

during the year.  

 Information demonstrating whether the school achieved its goal of recruiting a racially and ethnica lly 

balanced student population.  

 An overview of the school's admissions practices during the year and data specifying the numbers of 

students enrolled, the number on waiting lists, and the numbers of students expelled and/or suspended.  

 Analyses of the effectiveness of the school's internal and external dispute mechanisms and data on the 

number and resolution of disputes and complaints.  

 Other information regarding the educational program and the administrative, legal, and governance 

operations of the school relative to compliance with the terms of the charter.  

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 75 of 114 

  

  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 76 of 114 

  

In Element 17, ―Proposed Budget and Cash Flow,‖ please find the following: 

 Projected operational budgets for five years of operation 

 Cash flow projections for five years of operation  

These documents are based upon the best data available to the Petitioners at this time. 

 

Fi n a n c ia l  R ep o r t s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy guarantees to provide reports required by the SAUSD 

as outlined below:  

 CBEDS (California Basic Educational Data System) 

 ADA (Average Daily Attendance) reports J18/19 

 SARC (School Accountability Report Card) 

 Each fiscal year an independent audit will be conducted of the financial affairs of the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy to verify the accuracy of the school's financial statements, attendance and 

enrollment accounting practices, and internal controls.  

 Pursuant to AB 1137, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will provide any necessary 

financial statements to SAUSD, the Orange County Department of Education (OCDE), and California 

Department of Education. Additionally, the following reports will be submitted to SAUSD, in the required 

format and within timelines to be specified by SAUSD each year: 

 Final Budget – Spring prior to operating fiscal year 

 First Interim Projections – November of operating fiscal year  

 Second Interim Projections – February of operating fiscal year  

 Unaudited Actuals – July following the end of the fiscal year 

 Audited Actuals – December 15 following the end of the fiscal year 

 Classification Report – monthly according to the School’s calendar 

 Statistical Report – monthly according to the School’s calendar of reports 

   

 

  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 77 of 114 

  

ELEMENT TEN│ S U S P E N S I O N  &  E X P U L S I O N  

 

Governing Law: The procedures by which pupils can be suspended or expelled.  Education Code Section 

47605(b)(5)(J). 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s policy will be consistent with the SAUSD’s policy. 

If a conflict with District policies and procedures exists, then District policies and procedures will govern. 

 

This Student Suspension and Expulsion Policy has been established in order to promote learning and protect 

the safety and well-being of all students at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy. When the 

policy is violated, it may be necessary to suspend or expel a student from regular classroom instruction. This 

policy shall serve as the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s policy and procedures for student 

suspension and expulsion, and it may be amended from time to time without the need to amend the charter so 

long as the amendments comport with legal requirements stipulated within Education Code and Penal Code. 

 

Staff shall enforce disciplinary rules and procedures fairly and consistently among all students.  This Policy 

and its Procedures will clearly describe discipline expectations, and it will be printed and distributed as part 

of the Student Handbook which is sent to each student at the beginning of the school year. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy administration shall ensure that students and their 

parents/guardians are notified as part of the Student Handbook of all discipline policies and procedures.  

Discipline includes but is not limited to advising and counseling students, conferring with parents/guardians, 

detention during and after school hours, use of alternative educational environments, suspension and 

expulsion.  

 

Corporal punishment shall not be used as a disciplinary measure against any student.  Corporal punishment 

includes the willful infliction of or willfully causing the infliction of physical pain on a student. For purposes 

of the Policy, corporal punishment does not include an employee’s use of force that is reasonable and 

necessary to protect the employee, students, staff or other persons or to prevent damage to school property.  

Suspended or expelled students shall be excluded from all school and school-related activities unless 

otherwise agreed during the period of suspension or expulsion. 

 

A student identified as an individual with disabilities or for whom The Charter SchoolThe Advanced 

Learning Academy has a basis of knowledge of a suspected disability pursuant to the Individuals with 

Disabilities Education Act of 2004 (―IDEA‖) or who is qualified for services under Section 504 of the 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (―Section 504‖) is subject to the same grounds for suspension and expulsion and 

is accorded the same due process procedures applicable to regular education students except when federal 

and state law mandates additional or different procedures.  The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning 

Academy will follow all applicable federal and state laws when imposing any form of discipline on a student 

identified as an individual with disabilities or for whom The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning 

Academy has a basis of knowledge of a suspected disability or who is otherwise qualified for such services 

or protections in according due process to such students. 

 

P ro g re ss i v e  Po s i t i ve  Di s c ip l in e  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will act in accordance with the District’s Positive 

Behavioral Interventions and Supports (PBIS) program that acknowledges and encourages positive student 

behavior and improvements. Parents will be informed of positive behavior and improvements via phone, 

email, and home visits. Students will receive certificates and/or rewards for outstanding performance and 

behaviors.  

  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 78 of 114 

  

En u m era t ed  O f f en s e s  

Students may be suspended or expelled for any of the following acts when it is determined the student: 

 Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another person. 

 Willfully used force of violence upon the person of another, except self-defense. 

 Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, knife, explosive, or other dangerous object unless, in the 

case of possession of any object of this type, the students had obtained written permission to possess the item 

from a certificated school employee, with the Principal or designee’s concurrence. 

 Unlawfully possessed, used, sold or otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of any controlled 

substance, as defined in Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of 

any kind. 

 Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined in Health and Safety 

Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant of any kind, and then sold, delivered or 

otherwise furnished to any person another liquid substance or material and represented same as controlled 

substance, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant. 

 Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion. 

 Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property. 

 Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property. 

 Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products, including but not limited to 

cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets and betel. This 

section does not prohibit the use of his or her own prescription products by a student. 

 Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity. 

 Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug paraphernalia, as 

defined in Health and Safety Code Section 11014.5. 

 Disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of supervisors, teachers, 

administrators, other school officials, or other school personnel engaged in the performance of their duties. 

 Knowingly received stolen school property or private property. 

 Possessed an imitation firearm, i.e.: a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar in physical 

properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude that the replica is a firearm. 

 Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code Sections 261, 266c, 286, 288, 

288a or 289, or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code Section 243.4. 

 Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness in a school 

disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from being a witness and/or retaliating 

against that student for being a witness. 

 Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug Soma. 

 Engaged in, or attempted to engage in hazing.  For the purposes of this subdivision, ―hazing‖ means a 

method of initiation or pre-initiation into a student organization or body, whether or not the organization or 

body is officially recognized by an educational institution, which is likely to cause serious bodily injury or 

personal degradation or disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a former, current, or prospective 

student.  For purposes of this section, ―hazing‖ does not include athletic events or school-sanctioned events. 

 Engaged in an act of bullying, including bullying by means of electronic act, as defined in Education Code 

Section 48900. 

 Made terrorist threats against school officials and/or school property.  For purposes of this section, 

"terroristic threat" shall include any statement, whether written or oral, by a person who willfully threatens to 

commit a crime which will result in death, great bodily injury to another person, or property damage in 

excess of one thousand dollars ($1,000), with the specific intent that the statement is to be taken as a threat, 

even if there is no intent of actually carrying it out, which, on its face and under the circumstances in which 

it is made, is so unequivocal, unconditional, immediate, and specific as to convey to the person threatened, a 

gravity of purpose and an immediate prospect of execution of the threat, and thereby causes that person 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 79 of 114 

  

reasonably to be in sustained fear for his or her own safety or for his or her immediate family's safety, or for 

the protection of school property, or the personal property of the person threatened or his or her immediate 

family. 

 Committed sexual harassment, as defined in Education Code Section 212.5.  For the purposes of this section, 

the conduct described in Section 212.5 must be considered by a reasonable person of the same gender as the 

victim to be sufficiently severe or pervasive to have a negative impact upon the individual's academic 

performance or to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment. This section shall 

apply to students in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive. 

 Caused, attempted to cause, threaten to cause or participated in an act of hate violence, as defined in 

subdivision (e) of Section 233 of the Education Code.  This section shall apply to students in any of grades 4 

to 12, inclusive. 

 Intentionally harassed, threatened or intimidated a student or group of students to the extent of having the 

actual and reasonably expected effect of materially disrupting class work, creating substantial disorder and 

invading student rights by creating an intimidating or hostile educational environment. This section shall 

apply to students in any of grades 6 to 12, inclusive. 

 

Alternatives to suspension or expulsion will first be attempted with students who are truant, tardy, or 

otherwise absent from assigned school activities.  

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy principal or the superintendent of schools shall 

recommend the expulsion of a pupil pursuant to Education Code 48915: 

 

(a) (1) Except as provided in subdivisions (c) and (e), the principal or the superintendent of schools shall 

recommend the expulsion of a pupil for any of the following acts committed at school or at a school activity 

off school grounds, unless the principal or superintendent determines that expulsion should not be 

recommended under the circumstances or that an alternative means of correction would address the conduct:  

(A) Causing serious physical injury to another person, except in self-defense. 

(B) Possession of any knife or other dangerous object of no reasonable use to the pupil.  

(C) Unlawful possession of any controlled substance listed in Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 11053) 

of Division 10 of the Health and Safety Code, except for either of the following: 

(i) The first offense for the possession of not more than one avoirdupois ounce of marijuana, other than 

concentrated cannabis. 

(ii) The possession of over-the-counter medication for use by the pupil for medical purposes or medication 

prescribed for the pupil by a physician. 

(D) Robbery or extortion. 

(E) Assault or battery, as defined in Sections 240 and 242 of the Penal Code, upon any school employee.  

(2) If the principal or the superintendent of schools makes a determination as described in paragraph (1), he 

or she is encouraged to do so as quickly as possible to ensure that the pupil does not lose instructional time.  

(b) Upon recommendation by the principal or the superintendent of schools, or by a hearing officer or 

administrative panel appointed pursuant to subdivision (d) of Section 48918, the governing board of a school 

district may order a pupil expelled upon finding that the pupil committed an act listed in paragraph (1) of 

subdivision (a) or in subdivision (a), (b), (c), (d), or (e) of Section 48900. A decision to expel a pupil for any 

of those acts shall be based on a finding of one or both of the following: 

(1) Other means of correction are not feasible or have repeatedly failed to bring about proper conduct. 

(2) Due to the nature of the act, the presence of the pupil causes a continuing danger to the physical safety of 

the pupil or others. 

 (c) The principal or superintendent of schools shall immediately suspend, pursuant to Section 48911, and 

shall recommend expulsion of a pupil that he or she determines has committed any of the following acts at 

school or at a school activity off school grounds: 

(1) Possessing, selling, or otherwise furnishing a firearm. This subdivision does not apply to an act of 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 80 of 114 

  

possessing a firearm if the pupil had obtained prior written permission to possess the firearm from a 

certificated school employee, which is concurred in by the principal or the designee of the principal. This 

subdivision applies to an act of possessing a firearm only if the possession is verified by an employee of a 

school district. The act of possessing an imitation firearm, as defined in subdivision (m) of Section 48900, is 

not an offense for which suspension or expulsion is mandatory pursuant to this subdivision and subdivision 

(d), but it is an offense for which suspension, or expulsion pursuant to subdivision (e), may be imposed.  

(2) Brandishing a knife at another person. 

(3) Unlawfully selling a controlled substance listed in Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 11053) of 

Division 10 of the Health and Safety Code. 

(4) Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault as defined in subdivision (n) of Section 48900 or 

committing a sexual battery as defined in subdivision (n) of Section 48900. 

(5) Possession of an explosive. 

S u sp en s io n  Pro c ed u re  

Suspensions shall be initiated according to the following procedures: 

1. Conference 

Suspension shall be preceded, if possible, by a conference conducted by the Principal or the Principal’s 

designee with the student and his or her parent and, whenever practical, the teacher, supervisor or school 

employee who referred the student to the Principal.  The conference may be omitted if the Principal or 

designee determines that an emergency situation exists.  An ―emergency situation‖ involves a clear and 

present danger to the lives, safety or health of students or school personnel.  If a student is suspended without 

this conference, both the parent/guardian and student shall be notified of the studen t’s right to return to 

school for the purpose of a conference. 

 

At the conference, the student shall be informed of the reason for the disciplinary action and the evidence 

against him or her and shall be given the opportunity to present his or her version and evidence in his or her 

defense. 

 

This conference shall be held within two school days, unless the student waives this right or is physically 

unable to attend for any reason including, but not limited to, incarceration or hospitalization. 

 

No penalties may be imposed on a student for failure of the student’s parent or guardian to attend a 

conference with school officials.  Reinstatement of the suspended student shall not be contingent upon 

attendance by the student’s parent or guardian at the conference.  

 

2. Notice to Parents/Guardians 

At the time of suspension, the Principal or designee shall make a reasonable effort to contact the 

parent/guardian by telephone or in person.  Whenever a student is suspended, the parent/guardian shall be 

notified in writing of the suspension and the date of return following suspension.  This notice shall state the 

specific offense committed by the student.  In addition, the notice may also state the date and time when the 

student may return to school.  If school officials wish to ask the parent/guardian to confer regarding matters 

pertinent to the suspension, the notice may request that the parent/guardian respond to such requests without 

delay. 

 

1) Suspension Time Limits/Recommendation for Placement/Expulsion 

Suspensions, when not including a recommendation for expulsion, shall not exceed five (5) consecutive 

school days per suspension. Notice of suspension and the reasons for the suspension will be given to the 

student and the parent in writing. If a student is suspended, s/he will not have any opportunity to make up 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 81 of 114 

  

work that s/he misses during the suspension. If a student receives two (2) suspensions; third disciplinary 

action that requires another suspension may automatically start the expulsion process. Students and 

parent/guardian may appeal a suspension within one (1) school day of the suspension. This appeal will be 

made to the Principal and heard by a discipline committee. 

 

The student may not attend classes until the appeal is heard, but they will be able to turn in work for the 

classes they miss while waiting for the appeal and receive credit for that work. All discipline committee 

hearings on suspensions will be held within two (2) school days of the appeal being made. The decision of 

the discipline committee is final. 

 

Upon a recommendation of Placement/Expulsion by the Principal or Principal’s designee, the student and the 

student’s guardian or representative will be invited to a conference to determine if the suspension for the 

student should be extended pending an expulsion hearing.  This determination will be made by the Principal 

or designee upon either of the following determinations: (1) the student’s presence will be disruptive to the 

education process; or (2) the student poses a threat or danger to others.  Upon either determination, the 

student’s suspension will be extended pending the results of an expulsion hearing.  

 

Ex p u l s io n  Pro c ed ur e  

A student may be expelled either by the Santa Ana Board of Education following a hearing before it or by 

the Santa Ana Board of Education upon the recommendation of an Administrative Panel to be assigned by 

the Santa Ana Board of Education as needed. The Administrative Panel should consist of at least three 

members who are certificated and neither a teacher of the student or a Board member of the Santa Ana Board 

of Education. The Administrative Panel may recommend expulsion of any student found to have committed 

an expellable offense. 

 

Students recommended for expulsion are entitled to a hearing to determine whether the student should be 

expelled. Unless postponed for good cause, the hearing shall be held within thirty (30) school days after the 

Principal or designee determines that the Student has committed an expellable offense. 

 

In the event an administrative panel hears the case, it will make a recommendation to the Santa Ana Board of 

Education for a final decision whether to expel.  The hearing shall be held in closed session unless the 

student makes a written request for a public hearing three (3) days prior to the hearing. 

 

Written notice of the hearing shall be forwarded to the student and the student’s parent/guardian at least ten 

(10) calendar days before the date of the hearing.  Upon mailing the notice, it shall be deemed served upon 

the student.  The notice shall include: 

 The date and place of the expulsion hearing; 

 A statement of specific facts, charges and offenses upon which the proposed expulsion is based;  

 A copy of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s disciplinary rules which relate to the 

alleged violation; 

 Notification of the student’s or parent/guardian’s obligation to provide information about the student’s status 

at the school to any other school district or school to which the student seeks enrollment; 

 The opportunity for the student or the student’s parent/guardian to appear in person or to employ and be 

represented by counsel or a non-attorney advisor; 

 The right to inspect and obtain copies of all documents to be used at the hearing; 

 The opportunity to confront and question all witnesses who testify at the hearing; 

 The opportunity to question all evidence presented and to present oral and documentary evidence on the 

student’s behalf including witnesses. 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 82 of 114 

  

 

S p ec ia l  Pro c ed u r e s  fo r  Ex p u l s io n  & He a r i n g s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy may, upon finding a good cause, determine that the 

disclosure of either the identity of the witness or the testimony of that witness at the hearing, or both, would 

subject the witness to an unreasonable risk of psychological or physical harm.  Upon this determination, the 

testimony of the witness may be presented at the hearing in the form of sworn declarations which shall be 

examined only by the Board, administrative panel, or the hearing officer.  Copies of these sworn 

declarations, edited to delete the name and identity of the witness, shall be made available to the student.  

 

 The complaining witness in any sexual assault or battery case must be provided with a copy of the applicable 

disciplinary rules and advised of his/her right to (a) receive five days notice of his/her scheduled testimony, 

(b) have up to two (2) adult support persons of his/her choosing present in the hearing at the time he/she 

testifies, which may include a parent, guardian, or legal counsel, and (c) elect to have the hearing closed 

while testifying. 

 The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy must also provide the victim a room separate from the 

hearing room for the complaining witness’ use prior to and during breaks in testimony. 

 At the discretion of the person or panel conducting the hearing, the complaining witness shall be allowed 

periods of relief from examination and cross-examination during which he or she may leave the hearing 

room. 

 The person conducting the expulsion hearing may also arrange the seating within the hearing room to 

facilitate a less intimidating environment for the complaining witness. 

 The person conducting the expulsion hearing may also limit time for taking the testimony of the complaining 

witness to the hours he/she is normally in school, if there is no good cause to take the testimony during other 

hours. 

 Prior to a complaining witness testifying, the support persons must be admonished that the hearing is 

confidential.  Nothing in the law precludes the person presiding over the hearing from removing a support 

person whom the presiding person finds is disrupting the hearing.  The person conducting the hearing may 

permit any one of the support persons for the complaining witness to accompany him or her to  the witness 

stand. 

 If one or both of the support persons is also a witness, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy 

must present evidence that the witness’ presence is both desired by the witness and will be helpful to the 

Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy.  The person presiding over the hearing shall permit the 

witness to stay unless it is established that there is a substantial risk that the testimony of the complaining 

witness would be influenced by the support person, in which case the presiding official shall admonish the 

support person or persons not to prompt, sway, or influence the witness in any way.  Nothing shall preclude 

the presiding officer from exercising his or her discretion to remove a person from the hearing whom h e or 

she believes is prompting, swaying, or influencing the witness. 

 The testimony of the support person shall be presented before the testimony of the complaining witness and 

the complaining witness shall be excluded from the courtroom during that testimony. 

 Especially for charges involving sexual assault or battery, if the hearing is to be conducted in the public at 

the request of the student being expelled, the complaining witness shall have the right to have his/her 

testimony heard in a closed session when testifying at a public meeting would threaten serious psychological 

harm to the complaining witness and there are not alternative procedures to avoid the threatened harm.  The 

alternative procedures may include videotaped depositions or contemporaneous examination in another place 

communicated to the hearing by means of closed-circuit television. 

 Evidence of specific instances of a complaining witness’ prior sexual conduct is presumed inadmissible and 

shall not be heard absent a determination by the person conducting the hearing that extraordinary 

circumstances exist requiring the evidence be heard.  Before such a determination regarding extraordinary 

circumstances can be made, the witness shall be provided notice and an opportunity to present opposition  to 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 83 of 114 

  

the introduction of the evidence.  In the hearing on the admissibility of the evidence, the complaining witness 

shall be entitled to be represented by a parent, legal counsel, or other support person.  Reputation or opinion 

evidence regarding the sexual behavior of the complaining witness is not admissible for any purpose. 

 

R e co rd s  &  L i t ig a t io n s  

1. Record of Hearing 

A record of the hearing shall be made and may be maintained by any means, including electronic recording, 

as long as a reasonably accurate and complete written transcription of the proceedings can be made. 

 

2. Presentation of Evidence 

While technical rules of evidence do not apply to expulsion hearings, evidence may be admitted and used as 

proof only if it is the kind of evidence on which reasonable persons can rely in the conduct of serious affairs.  

A recommendation by the Administrative Panel to expel must be supported by substantial evidence that the 

student committed an expellable offense. 

 

Findings of fact shall be based solely on the evidence at the hearing.  While hearsay evidence is admissible, 

no decision to expel shall be based solely on hearsay and sworn declarations may be admitted as testimony 

from witnesses of whom the Board, Panel or designee determines that disclosure of their identity or 

testimony at the hearing may subject them to an unreasonable risk of physical or psychological harm.  

 

If, due to a written request by the accused student, the hearing is held at a public meeting, and the charge is 

committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault or committing a sexual battery as defined in Education 

Code Section 48900, a complaining witness shall have the right to have his or her testimony heard in a 

session closed to the public. 

 

The decision of the Administrative Panel shall be in the form of written findings of fact and a written 

recommendation to the Santa Ana Board of Education who will make a final determination regarding the 

expulsion.  The final decision by the Board shall be made within ten (10) school days following the 

conclusion of the hearing.  The decision of the Board is final.  

If the expulsion hearing panel decides not to recommend expulsion, the student shall immediately be 

returned to his/her educational program. 

 

3.  Written Notice to Expel 

The Principal or designee following a decision of the Board to expel shall send written notice of the decision 

to expel, including the Board’s adopted findings of fact, to the student or parent/guardian.  This notice shall 

also include the following: 

 

 Notice of the specific offense committed by the student 

 Notice of the student’s or parent/guardian’s obligation to inform any new district in which the student seeks 

to enroll of the student’s status with the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy 

 The reinstatement eligibility review date; a copy of the rehabilitation plan; the type of educational placement 

during the period of expulsion, and notice of appeal rights/procedures 

 The Principal or designee shall send a copy of the written notice of the decision to expel to the student’s 

district of residence.  This notice shall include the following: 

 The student’s name 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 84 of 114 

  

 The specific expellable offense committed by the student 

 

4.  Disciplinary Records 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy shall maintain records of all student suspensions and 

expulsions at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy.  Such records shall be made available to 

the District upon request. 

 

5.  No Right to Appeal 

The student shall have no right of appeal from expulsion from the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy as the Board decision to expel shall be final. 

 

Fu r th er  A ssu ra n c es  

 

1. Expelled Students/Alternative Education 

Students who are expelled shall be responsible for seeking alternative education programs including, but not 

limited to, programs within the County or their school district of residence. 

Charter School shall provide due process for all students, including adequate notice to parents/guardians and 

students regarding the grounds for suspension and expulsion and their due process rights regarding 

suspension and expulsion, including rights to appeal. 

 

Charter School shall ensure that its policies and procedures regarding suspension and expulsion will be 

periodically reviewed, and modified as necessary, including, for example, any modification of the lists of 

offenses for which students are subject to suspension or expulsion. Charter School shall be responsible for 

the appropriate interim placement of students during and pending the completion of the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy’s student expulsion process.   

 

Charter Schools will implement operational and procedural guidelines ensuring federal and state laws and 

regulations regarding the discipline of students with disabilities are met. Charter Schools will also ensure 

staff is knowledgeable about and complies with the District’s Policies. If the student receives or is eligible 

for special education, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall identify and provide special 

education programs and services at the appropriate interim educational placement, pending the completion of 

the expulsion process, to be coordinated with the SAUSD. 

 

Charter School shall document the alternatives to suspension and expulsion the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy utilizes with students who are truant, tardy, or otherwise absent from compulsory school 

activities. 

 

If a student is expelled from the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy shall forward student records upon request of the receiving school district in a 

timely fashion. Charter School shall also submit an expulsion packet to the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academys Division immediately or as soon as practically possible, containing:  

 pupil’s last known address 

 a copy of the cumulative record  

 transcript of grades or report card 

 health information 

 documentation of the expulsion proceeding, including specific facts supporting the expulsion and 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 85 of 114 

  

documentation that the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s policies and procedures were 

followed 

 student’s current educational placement 

 copy of parental notice of expulsion 

 copy of documentation of expulsion provided to parent stating reason for expulsion, term of expulsion, 

rehabilitation plan, reinstatement notice with eligibility date and instructions for providing proof of student’s 

compliance for reinstatement, appeal process and options for enrollment; and 

 if the Student is eligible for Special Education, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy must 

provide documentation related to expulsion pursuant to IDEA including conducting a manifestation 

determination  IEP prior to expulsion. If the student is eligible for Section 504 Accommodations, the  

Charter School must provide evidence that it convened a Link Determination meeting to address two 

questions:  

 

1. Was the misconduct caused by, or directly and substantially related to the student’s disability? 

2. Was the misconduct a direct result of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s failure to 

implement 504 Plan? 

 

2. Outcome Data 

Charter School shall maintain all data involving placement, tracking, and monitoring of student suspensions, 

expulsions, and reinstatements, and make such outcome data readily available to the District upon request.  

 

3. Rehabilitation Plans 

Pupils who are expelled from the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall be given a 

rehabilitation plan upon expulsion as developed by the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s 

governing board at the time of the expulsion order, which may include, but is not limited to, periodic review 

as well as assessment at the time of review for readmission.  Terms of expulsion should be reasonable and 

fair with the weight of the expelling offense taken into consideration when determining the length of 

expulsion.  Therefore, the rehabilitation plan should include a date not later than one (1) year from the date 

of expulsion when the pupil may reapply to the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy for 

readmission.  

4. Readmission 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s governing board shall adopt rules establishing a 

procedure for the filing and processing of requests for readmission and the process for the required review of 

all expelled pupils for readmission. Upon completion of the readmission process, the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy’s governing board shall readmit the pupil, unless the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy’s governing board makes a finding that the pupil has not met the conditions of 

the rehabilitation plan or continues to pose a danger to campus safety. A description of the procedure shall be 

made available to the pupil and the pupil’s parent or guardian at the time the expulsion order is entered and 

the decision of the governing board, including any related findings, must be provided to the pupil and the 

pupil’s parent/guardian within a reasonable time.  

 

5. Reinstatement 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s governing board shall adopt rules establishing a 

procedure for processing reinstatements, including the review of documents regarding the rehabilitation plan. 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy is responsible for reinstating the student upon the 

conclusion of the expulsion period in a timely manner. 

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 86 of 114 

  

6. Special Education Students 

In the case of a student who has an Individualized Education Program (―IEP‖), or a student who has a 504 

Plan, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will ensure that it follows the correct disciplinary 

procedures to comply with the mandates of state and federal laws, including IDEA and Section 504 of the 

Rehabilitation Plan of 1973. As set forth in the MOU regarding special education between the District and 

the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy an IEP team, including a District representative, will 

meet to conduct a manifestation determination and to discuss alternative placement utilizing the District’s 

Policies and Procedures Manual. Prior to recommending expulsion for a student with a 504 Plan, the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s administrator will convene a Link Determination meeting to ask 

the following two questions: 

 

 Was the misconduct caused by, or directly and substantially related to the student’s disability?  

 Was the misconduct a direct result of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s failure to 

implement 504? 

 Gun Free Schools Act 

 The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy shall comply with the federal Gun Free Schools Act.



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 87 of 114 

  

ELEMENT ELEVEN│ R E T I R E M E N T P R O G R A M S  
  

Governing Law: The manner by which staff members of the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academys will be covered by the State Teachers’ Retirement System, the Public Employees’ Retirement 

System, or federal social security.  Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(K). 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy staff will participate in the federal social security 

system and will have the option to elect to participate in the State Teachers Retirement System and/or Public 

Employees Retirement System and coordinate such participation, as appropriate, with the social security 

system or other reciprocal systems in the future. If the school should opt to participate in the STRS or PERS 

systems, the district shall cooperate as necessary to forward any required payroll deductions and related data. 

If any of the school's teachers participate in the STRS system, then all must do so.  The Charter SchoolThe 

Advanced Learning Academy’s retirement program policy will be consistent with the SAUSD’s policy. If a 

conflict with District policies and procedures exists, then District policies and procedures will govern. 

 

Mandatory Benefits 

Mandatory contributions such as workers compensation, unemployment insurance, Medicare and social 

security (for non-STRS employees) will be paid by the employer.  

 

Health Benefits 

 
Health, dental, vision and related benefits as part of the total compensation package for each employee will 

be determined as part of the individual employment agreement.  

 

Work Schedule 

Work calendars, hours per week, and vacation time will be determined by individual employment 

agreements consistent with the applicable calendar of workdays for each position. The principal will work 

for the school year with appropriate vacation time as specified in the employment agreement. Teachers and 

teachers' assistants will work a school year comprised of 11 months, which will include professional training 

beyond the regular teaching schedule. The teaching staff may also be required to attend weekly staff and 

several parent-community meetings each school term. Office and maintenance staff will work a calendar 

year of 12 months with appropriate vacation time. The standard day for the non-teaching staff is 8.0 working 

hours.  

Retirement 

All full-time teaching employees who are eligible will participate in the State Teachers’ Retirement System 

(STRS). All full-time non-teaching employees who are eligible will participate in the Public Employees 

Retirement System (PERS). The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will make any 

contribution that is legally required of the employer, including STRS, PERS, social security, and 

unemployment insurance. All withholdings from employees and the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy will be forwarded to the STRS and PERS funds as required. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced 

Learning Academy will submit all retirement data and will comply with all policies and procedures for 

payroll reporting. Employees will accumulate service credit years in the same manner as all other members 

of STRS. The HR Dept. will be responsible for ensuring that appropriate arrangements are made for 

retirement and other benefits. 

 

The School may establish other retirement plans for employees that include, but shall not be limited to, 

establishment of section 403(b), 457 or 401(k) plans. 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 88 of 114 

  

 

 Process for Resolving Complaints/Grievances 

All staff members will follow state and federal laws for reporting alleged improprieties as well as adhere to  

the Employee Handbook. 

 

The following process will apply to staff members filing a complaint /grievance: 

 When a problem first arises, the grievant should discuss the matter with the School principal rather than 

fellow employees. 

 The principal will review the problem and any relating policies. If the problem cannot be resolved informally 

through discussion or meeting, the grievance shall be reduced to writing by the grievant and submitted to the 

principal. The grievant should specify the problem to the fullest extent possible and any remedies sought.  

 Following any necessary investigation, the principal shall prepare a written response to the grievant no later 

than ten (10) working days from the date of receipt of the grievance, unless for good cause, additional time is 

required for the response. 

 If no satisfactory solution can be reached, the grievant may request to meet with the Chief Executive Officer 

or his/her designee and the Principal. The request for this meeting will be written and will include any and all 

documentation related to the grievance along with any solutions that have been proposed by either the 

grievant or the principal. Any decision by the Chief Executive Officer or his/her designee shall be final.  

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 89 of 114 

  

ELEMENT TWELVE│ PUBLIC SCHOOL ATTENDANCE ALTERNATIVES 

 

Governing Law: The public school attendance alternatives for pupils residing within the school district who 

choose not to attend the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy. Education Code Section 

47605(b)(5)(L). 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy is a school of choice and no students shall be required 

to attend. Pupils who choose not to attend the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy may choose 

to attend other public schools in their district of residence or pursue an intra- or inter-district transfer in 

accordance with existing enrollment and transfer policies of the District.  

 

Parents and guardians of each student enrolled in the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will 

be informed on admissions forms that the students have no right to admission in a particular school of an 

local education agency as a consequence of enrollment in the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy, except to the extent that such a right is extended by the local education agency.  

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 90 of 114 

  

ELEMENT THIRTEEN│ EMPLOYEE RIGHTS & RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

Governing Law: A description of the rights of any employee of the school district upon leaving the 

employment of the school district to work in a charter school, and of any rights of return to the school district 

after employment at a charter school. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(M). 

 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s employee policies will be consistent with the 

SAUSD’s policy. If a conflict with District policies and procedures exists, then District policies and 

procedures will govern. Any employee of the district who works at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy will be covered by existing district policies for inter-district transfers and the terms of 

existing labor contracts. Charter School staff who leave a permanent job in the district to work at the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will have the right to return to a comparable position in the district 

during their tenure at the school, subject to layoff provisions in the Education Code.  

 

Staff of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy recognize the uniqueness of Charter Schools 

and will work to establish a positive culture that fulfills the mission of the school 

 

All school personnel will abide and commit to the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s 

mission and vision.  All job descriptions and work schedules will be reviewed and modified as necessary to 

meet the needs of the school and its students. The school expects a high level of professionalism from its 

staff including self-monitoring of higher education development. All staff members will follow state and 

federal laws for reporting alleged improprieties as well as adhere to the SAUSD Employee Contract. All 

school personnel will be evaluated at least once annually.  

 

Job applicants for positions at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will be considered 

through an open process, and if hired, will enter into an at-will agreement with the school. Unless the 

employees elect to be represented by an organization for bargaining purposes, all employees will be recruited 

individually and receive at-will agreements. The individual agreements will address, among other issues, 

salary, health and welfare benefits, work schedules and responsibilities, accountability measurements, and 

standards for performance evaluations. 

 

Employees will not be allowed to carry over their sick/vacation rights from their previous employment to the 

Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy.  

 

Leave and return rights for union-represented employees who accept employment with the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy will be administered in accordance with applicable collective bargaining 

agreements between the employee’s union and the District and also in accordance with any applicable 

judicial rulings. 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 91 of 114 

  

ELEMENT FOURTEEN│ D I S P U T E  R E S O L U T I O N  

 

Governing Law: The procedures to be followed by the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy and 

the entity granting the charter to resolve disputes relating to the provisions of the charter.  Education Code 

Section 47605(b)(5)(N). 

 

In the case of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, the District is both the charter agency and 

charter-granting entity.  

 

D isp u t e  R eso lu t io n  

The following section of this charter provides the standardized language that the SAUSD is adopting for all 

charter schools in the district. The transition to the standardized language is being facilitated during a charter 

renewal and/or when revision/modification of a MOU or other contractual agreement between the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy and the district takes place. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced 

Learning Academy’s dispute resolution policy will be consistent with the SAUSD’s policy. If a conflict with 

District policies and procedures exists, then District policies and procedures will govern. 

 

This language is being incorporated into the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy application 

petition and subject to change depending on and including but not limited to, discussion and negotiations, 

individual school circumstance and the specific document being renewed/revised/modified and applicable 

law.  

 

If the District determines that a violation of the Charter, MOU or law may have occurred or a problem has 

arisen to the operation of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy or the District’s oversight 

obligations, or a dispute otherwise arises between the District and the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy the following procedures shall be followed to resolve the dispute.  

 

1. Should the District determine in writing that the violation or issue in question constitutes a severe 

and imminent threat to the health or safety of the pupils, it shall not be bound by any portion of this 

dispute resolution process and may commence revocation proceedings immediately or take action as 

it deems necessary.  

2. If the violation or issue in question does not constitute a severe and imminent threat to the health 

and safety of pupils, District will provide written notification of the violation or issue. The date that 

this notice is sent shall be the ―Notice Date.‖ Upon issuance of this notice, a meeting will be 

scheduled to discuss and possibly resolve the dispute. Both parties must have representatives present 

at this meeting and under no circumstances will the meeting be held more than ten (10) calendar 

days after the Notice Date. The District representative at the meeting will be the Superintendent or 

the Superintendent’s designee, and the INDA Charter School representative will be a Co-Director or 

the Advisory Board. If the dispute is not resolved at this meeting or in strict accordance with any 

plan for resolution agreed upon at this meeting, the parties will proceed to Step 3.  

3. The District may commence revocation of the Charter and/or other appropriate action in accordance 

with Education Code 47607 or applicable law.  

The parties shall exchange information as necessary to avoid disputes and assist in curing disputes and shall 

use their best efforts to resolve disputes between them at the earliest possible time.  

In the event of a dispute raised by the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy against the District 

over the terms of the charter, the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall put the dispute in 

writing to the Superintendent or designees, and the District Superintendent, or Designee shall meet with the 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 92 of 114 

  

Principal and President of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy to seek resolution within two 

weeks of receiving the written complaint. After this meeting if resolution is not reached, both parties are free 

to pursue any other legal remedy available. However, mediation may be commenced with the agreement of 

both the District and the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, with the costs of the mediator to 

be split by both parties.  

 

I n t ern a l  D i sp u t es  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy shall have an internal dispute resolution process to be 

used for all internal disputes related to the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s operations. 

Parents, students, board members, volunteers, and staff at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy will be provided with a copy of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s policies and 

dispute resolution process. The District will refer all disputes not related to a possible violation of the Charter 

or law or to the operation of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy or District’s oversight 

obligations to the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy for resolution according to tis internal 

dispute resolution process.  

 

D isp u t e s  B e tw e en  th e  Ch a r t er  S ch o o l th e  Ad va n c ed  L ea rn in g  A ca d em y  & 

S A US D 

The staff and governing board members of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy agree to 

resolve any claim, controversy or dispute arising out of or relating to the Charter agreement between the 

District and the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy. Any dispute between the District and the 

Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures set 

forth below: 

 

Any dispute shall be made in writing (―Written Notification‖).  The Written Notification must identify the 

nature of the Dispute and any supporting facts.  The Written Notification shall be tendered to the other party 

by personal delivery, by facsimile, or by certified mail.  The Written Notification shall be deemed received 

(a) if personally delivered, upon date of delivery to the address of the person to receive such notice if 

delivered by 5:00 PM or other-wise on the business day following personal delivery; (b) if by facsimile, 

upon electronic confirmation of receipt; or (c) if by mail, two (2) business days after deposit in the U.S. 

Mail.  All Written Notifications shall be addressed as follows: 

 

 

To Charter School, c/o: 

(To Be Determined) 

 

To District, c/o Superintendent: 

Santa Ana Unified School District 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 

 

A written response (―Written Response‖) shall be tendered to the other party within twenty (20) business 

days from the date of receipt of the Written Notification.  The parties agree to schedule a conference to 

discuss the Dispute identified in the Written Notice (―Issue Conference‖).  The Issue Conference shall take 

place within fifteen (15) business days from the date the Written Response is received by the other party.  

The Written Response may be tendered by personal delivery, by facsimile, or by certif ied mail.  The Written 

Response shall be deemed received (a) if personally delivered, upon date of delivery to the address of the 

person to receive such notice if delivered by 5:00p.m., or otherwise on the business day following personal 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 93 of 114 

  

delivery; (b) if by facsimile, upon electronic confirmation of receipt; or (c) if by mail, two (2) business days 

after deposit in the U.S. Mail.   

 

If the Dispute cannot be resolved by mutual agreement at the Issue Conference, either party may then request 

that the Dispute be resolved by mediation.  Each party shall bear its own attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses 

associated with the mediation.  The mediator’s fees and the administrative fees of the mediation shall be 

shared equally among the parties. The parties shall mutually agree upon the selection of a mediator to resolve 

the Dispute.  The mediator may be selected from the approved list of mediators prepared by the American 

Arbitration Association.  Unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, mediation proceedings shall  be 

administered in accordance with the commercial mediation procedures of the American Arbitration 

Association. 

 

If the mediation is not successful, then the parties agree to resolve the Dispute by pursuing other options as 

provided by the law.  

 

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 94 of 114 

  

ELEMENT FIFTEEN│ EXCLUSIVE PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYER 

 

Governing Law: A declaration whether or not the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall be 

deemed the exclusive public school employer of the employees of the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy for the purposes of the Educational Employment Relations Act (Chapter 10.7 (commencing with 

Section 3540) of Division 4 of Title 1 of the Government Code). Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(O). 

 

 

For the purposes of the education employment relations act (EERA), the Santa Ana Unified School District 

will be the exclusive public school employer of the employees of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy.  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 95 of 114 

  

ELEMENT SIXTEEN│ S C H O O L C L O S U R E  

 

Governing Law: A description of the procedures to be used if the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy closes. The procedures shall ensure a final audit of the school to determine the disposition of all 

assets and liabilities of the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, including plans for disposing of 

any net assets and for the maintenance and transfer of public records. Education Code Section 

47605(b)(5)(P). 

 

Ch a r te r  Re n e wa l  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy must submit its renewal petition to the District’s 

Charter Schools Division no earlier than September of the year before the charter expires.  

 

R e vo ca t io n  

The District may revoke the Charter if the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy commits a 

breach of any provision set forth in a policy related to Charter Schools adopted by the District Board of 

Education and/or any provisions set forth in the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy Act of 

1992.  The District may revoke the charter of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy if the 

District finds, through a showing of substantial evidence, that the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy did any of the following:  

 The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy committed a material violation of any of the 

conditions, standards, or procedures set forth in the charter. 

 The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy failed to meet or pursue any of the pupil outcomes 

identified in the charter. 

 The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy failed to meet generally accepted accounting 

principles, or engaged in fiscal mismanagement. 

 The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy violated any provision of law. 

 Prior to revocation, and in accordance with Cal. Educ. Code section 47607(d) and State regulations, the 

SAUSD Board of Education will notify the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy in writing of the 

specific violation, and give The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy a reasonable opportunity 

to cure the violation, unless the SAUSD Board of Education determines, in writing, that the violation 

constitutes a severe and imminent threat to the health or safety of the pupils.  Revocation proceedings are not 

subject to the dispute resolution clause set forth in this Charter. 

 

Clo s u r e  Ac t io n  

The decision to close the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, either by the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy Advisory Board or by the SAUSD Board of Education, will be documented in 

a Closure Action. The Closure Action shall be deemed to have been automatically made when any of the 

following occur:  the charter is revoked or non-renewed by the SAUSD Board of Education; the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy board votes to close the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy; or the Charter lapses.  

 

Clo s u r e  Pro c ed u r es  

The procedures for the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s closure are guided by California 

Education Code sections 47604.32, 47605, 47605.6, and 47607 as well as California Code of Regulations, 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 96 of 114 

  

Title 5 (5 CCR), sections 11962 and 11962.1. A closed charter school must designate a responsible entity to 

conduct closure activities and identify how these activities will be funded. The procedures out-lined below 

are based on ―Charter School Closure Requirements and Recommendations (Revised 08/2009)‖ as posted on 

the California Department of Education website. References to ―Charter School‖ applies to the charter 

schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s nonprofit corporation and/or governing board. 

 

 

 

1. Documentation of Closure Action 

The revocation or non-renewal of a charter school must be documented by an official action of the 

authorizing entity. Notice of a charter school’s closure for any reason must be provided by the authorizing 

entity to the California Department of Education (CDE). In addition, the charter schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy must send notice of its closure to:  

1. Parents or guardians of students. Written notification to parents/guardians/caregivers of the enrolled students 

of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will be issued by the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy within 72 hours after the determination of a Closure Action and the effective date of 

closure.  A copy of the written notifications to parents is also to be sent to SAUSD within the same time 

frames. 

2. The authorizing entity  

3. The county department of education. Written notification to the Orange County Department of Education of 

the Closure Action shall be made by the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy by registered mail 

within 72 hours of the decision to Closure Action.  Charter School shall provide a copy of this 

correspondence to the SAUSD. 

4. The special education local plan area in which the school participates. Written notification to the Special 

Education Local Planning Area (SELPA) in which the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy 

participates of the Closure Action shall be made by the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy by 

registered mail within 72 hours of the decision to Closure Action.  Charter School shall provide a copy of 

this correspondence to the SAUSD.   

5. The retirement systems in which the school’s employees participate. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced 

Learning Academy will within fourteen (14) calendar days of closure action contact the State Teachers 

Retirement System (STRS), Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), and the Orange County 

Department of Education and follow their procedures for dissolving contracts and reporting. Charter School 

shall provide a copy of this correspondence to the SAUSD. 

6. The CDE. Written notification to the California Department of Education of the Closure Action shall be 

made by the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy by registered mail within 72 hours of the 

decision to Closure Action.  Charter School shall provide a copy of this correspondence to the SAUSD. 

 

Notice must be received by the CDE within ten calendar days of any official action taken by the chartering 

authority. Notification of all the parties above must include at least the following: 

1. The effective date of the closure  

2. The name(s) of and contact information for the person(s) handling inquiries regarding the closure  

3. The students’ school districts of residence  

4. How parents or guardians may obtain copies of student records, including specific information on completed 

courses and credits that meet graduation requirements  

5. In addition to the four required items above, notification to the CDE must also include: 

6. A description of the circumstances of the closure  

7. The location of student and personnel records  

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 97 of 114 

  

In addition to the four required items above, notification to parents, guardians, and students should also 

include:  

1. Information on how to transfer the student to an appropriate school  

2. A certified packet of student information that includes closure notice, a copy of their child’s cumulative 

record which will include grade reports, discipline records, immunization records, completed coursework, 

credits that meet graduation requirements, a transcript, and State testing results 

3. Information on student completion of college entrance requirements for all high school students affected by 

the closure  

4. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy shall announce the closure to any school districts that 

may be responsible for providing education services to the former students of the charter schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy within 72 hours of the decision to Closure Action. This notice will include a 

list of returning students and their home schools. Charter school closures should occur at the end of an 

academic year if it is feasible to maintain a legally compliant program until then. If a conversion charter 

school is reverting to non-charter status, notification of this change should be made to all parties listed in this 

section.  

5. School and Student Records Retention and Transfer 

6. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will provide the District with original cumulative files 

and behavior records pursuant to District policy and applicable handbook(s) regarding cumulative records 

for secondary and elementary schools for all students both active and inactive at the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy.  Transfer of the complete and organized original student records to the 

District will occur within seven calendar days of the effective date of closure.   

7. The process for transferring student records to the receiving schools shall be in accordance with SAUSD 

procedures for students moving from one school to another.  

8. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will prepare an electronic master list of all students to 

the SAUSD.  This list will include the student’s identification number, Statewide Student Identifier  (SSID), 

birthdate, grade, full name, address, home school, enrollment date, exit code, exit date, parent/guardian 

name(s), and phone number(s).  If the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy closure occurs before 

the end of the school year, the list should also indicate the name of the school that each student is 

transferring to, if known.  This electronic master list will be delivered in the form of a CD. 

9. The original cumulative files should be organized for delivery to the District in two categories : active 

students and inactive students.  The CSD will coordinate with the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy for the delivery and/or pickup of the student records.   

10. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy must update all student records in the California 

Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System (CALPADS) prior to closing.    

11. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will provide to the CSD a copy of student attendance 

records, teacher grade books, school payroll records, and Title I records (if applicable). Submission of 

personnel records must include any employee records the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy 

has. These include, but are not limited to, records related to performance and grievance.  

12. All records are to be boxed and labeled by classification of documents and the required duration of storage.  

 

2. Financial Close-Out 

After receiving notification of closure, the CDE will notify the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy and the authorizing entity if it is aware of any liabilities the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy owes the state. These may include over-payment of apportionments, unpaid revolving fund loans 

or grants, or other liabilities. The CDE may ask the county office of education to conduct an audit of the 

charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy if it has reason to believe that the school received state 

funding for which it was not eligible.  

 

The Charter shall ensure completion of an independent final audit within six months after the closure of the 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 98 of 114 

  

school that includes: 

1. An accounting of all financial assets. These may include cash and accounts receivable and an inventory of 

property, equipment, and other items of material value.  

2. An accounting of all liabilities. These may include accounts payable or reduction in apportionments due to 

loans, unpaid staff compensation, audit findings, or other investigations.  

3. An assessment of the disposition of any restricted funds received by or due to the charter schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy.  

4. This audit may serve as the school’s annual audit.  

5. The financial closeout audit of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will be paid for by the 

Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy.  This audit will be conducted by a neutral, independent 

licensed CPA who will employ generally accepted accounting principles. Any liability or debt incurred by 

the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will be the responsibility of the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy and not SAUSD.  The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy 

understands and acknowledges that the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will cover the 

outstanding debts or liabilities of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy. Any unused monies 

at the time of the audit will be returned to the appropriate funding source.  The Charter SchoolThe Advanced 

Learning Academy understands and acknowledges that only unrestricted funds will be used to pay creditors. 

Any unused AB 602 funds will be returned to the District SELPA or the SELPA in which the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy participates, and other categorical funds will be returned to the 

source of funds. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy shall ensure the completion and filing of any annual 

reports required. This includes: 

 Preliminary budgets  

 Interim financial reports  

 Second interim financial reports  

 Final unaudited reports  

 These reports must be submitted to the CDE and the authorizing entity in the form required. If the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy chooses to submit this information before the forms and software 

are available for the fiscal year, alternative forms can be used if they are approved in advance b y the CDE. 

These reports should be submitted as soon as possible after the closure action, but no later than the required 

deadline for reporting for the fiscal year. 

 For apportionment of categorical programs, the CDE will count the prior year average daily attendance 

(ADA) or enrollment data of the closed charter school with the data of the authorizing entity. This practice 

will occur in the first year after the closure and will continue until CDE data collection processes reflect 

ADA or enrollment adjustments for all affected LEAs due to the charter closure.  

 

3. Disposition of Liabilities and Assets 

The closeout audit must determine the disposition of all liabilities of the charter schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy. Charter school closure procedures must also ensure disposal of any net assets remaining 

after all liabilities of the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy have been paid or otherwise 

addressed. Such disposal includes, but is not limited to: 

 The return of any donated materials and property according to any conditions set when the donations were 

accepted.  

 The return of any grant and restricted categorical funds to their source according to the terms of the grant or 

state and federal law.  

 The submission of final expenditure reports for any entitlement grants and the filing of Final Expenditure 

Reports and Final Performance Reports, as appropriate.  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 99 of 114 

  

 Net assets of the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy may be transferred to another charter 

school. If the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is operated by a nonprofit corporation, and if 

the corporation does not have any other functions than operation of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy, the corporation will be dissolved according to its bylaws.   

 The corporation’s bylaws will address how assets are to be distributed at the closure of the corporation.  

 A copy of the corporations bylaws containing the information on how assets are to be distributed at the 

closure of the corporation, are to be provided to SAUSD prior to approval of this Charter. 

 For six (6) calendar months from the Closure Action or until budget allows, whichever comes first, sufficient 

staff as deemed appropriate by the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy Board, will maintain 

employment to take care of all necessary tasks and procedures required for a smooth closing of the school 

and student transfers.  

 The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy Board shall adopt a plan for wind-up of the school 

and, if necessary, the corporation, in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Code.  

 The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy shall provide SAUSD within fourteen (14) calendar 

days of closure action prior written notice of any outstanding payments to staff and the method by which the 

school will make the payments. 

 Prior to final closure, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall do all of the following on 

behalf of the school's employees, and anything else required by applicable law: 

 File all final federal, state, and local employer payroll tax returns and issue final W-2s and Form 1099s by 

the statutory deadlines. 

 File the Federal Notice of Discontinuance with the Department of Treasury (Treasury Form 63). 

 Make final federal tax payments (employee taxes, etc.) 

 File the final withholding tax return (Treasury Form 165). 

 File the final return with the IRS (Form 990 and Schedule). 

 

This Element 16 shall survive the revocation, expiration, termination, cancellation of this charter or any other 

act or event that would end the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s right to operate as a 

Charter School or cause the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy to cease operation.  The 

Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy and District agree that, due to the nature of the property 

and activities that are the subject of this petition, the District and public shall suffer irreparable harm should 

Charter School breach any obligation under this Element 16.  The District, therefore, shall have the right to 

seek equitable relief to enforce any right arising under this Element 16 or any provision of this Element 16 or 

to prevent or cure any breach of any obligation undertaken, without in any way prejudicing any other legal 

remedy available to the District. Such legal relief shall include, without limitation, the seeking of a 

temporary or permanent injunction, restraining order, or order for specific performance, and may be sought 

in any appropriate court. 

 

 

  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 100 of 114 

  

ELEMENT SEVENTEEN│ P R O P O S E D  B U D G E T &  C A S H  F L O W  
 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy is established as a dependent charter and shall be 

budgeted in accordance to practices used at all other SAUSD schools.  The Charter SchoolThe Advanced 

Learning Academy’s financial reports will be contained in the SAUSD fiscal reports, as is the case with all 

other SAUSD schools. The Advisor Board, once convened, in cooperation with the School Site Council once 

elected, shall determine the school’s discretionary spending budget.  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 101 of 114 

  

 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11
pt, Font color: Auto



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 102 of 114 

  

 

 
Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11
pt, Font color: Auto



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 103 of 114 

  

 

  
Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11
pt, Font color: Auto



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 104 of 114 

  

ELEMENT EIGHTEEN│ FA C I L I T I E S  

Site Description  

The initial location for the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall be at the Grant School Site 

(333 East Walnut Avenue, Santa Ana). Once identified, a new campus location will be determined within the 

INDA. A vacant site located at the southwest corner of Michelson Drive and Carlson Avenue in the City of 

Irvine has been identified for acquisition and construction of the K-8 school. The Charter SchoolThe 

Advanced Learning Academy has attempted to locate a single site or facility to house its entire program, but 

no such site is available within the boundaries of the SAUSD in the Irvine/Newport development area 

(INDA) in which the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy has chosen to locate. The location of 

the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is specifically designed to provide educational 

opportunities to students residing in the INDA of the SAUSD and surrounding communities. SAUSD and 

Irvine Unified School District are in general agreement about the location of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy and are in the process of a boundary change by which it is hoped that the identified site 

will eventually come within the boundaries of the SAUSD. 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy site is located within an area of the SAUSD that has 

experienced significant development and is planned to continue developing with residential and retail mixed-

uses (See Exhibit 4 on the following page). The site’s regional location and local vicinity may be viewed in 

Exhibit 5 and 6. The site is 15 gross acres in size; however, given the surrounding natural habitat, a nature 

buffer was incorporated into the site design, resulting in approximately 10.5 net usable acres th at will be 

developed for the K-8 school, as shown in Exhibit 7.  

The site has been vacant for at least since the 1930’s and currently contains wood chips, as shown in 

Exhibit 8, Site Photographs. The south perimeter of the site consists of natural habitat that extends from the 

San Joaquin Marsh. The surrounding land uses include residential units to the west, commercial uses to the 

north, and natural habitat to the east and south.  

 

Design 

Innovative design with flexible teaching areas and the ability to adapt to different learning models will be 

incorporated in the classroom design. Proven design models for improved student performance, such as 

natural lighting, thermal displacement ventilation, acoustical applications, interactive classroom technology, 

and spatial flexibility will be included in the design.  

The facilities will support the key program elements of project-based learning, community-based internships, 

frequent student presentations, and integrated curriculum. The design principles include: 

• Personalization – Facilities are tailored to individual and small-group learning, including project 

rooms for hands-on activities and exhibition spaces for individual work, which promotes a high 

degree of student ownership.  

• Flexibility - Holistic designs enable new ways of teaching and learning.  

• Adult World Connection – In addition to the required community internship component, the facility 

itself will have a workplace look and feel, with windowed conference and seminar rooms, small-

group project areas, high-tech laboratories, and common areas where projects can be displayed. 

Specialty labs and project rooms with allow access to technology and equipment for learning in 

specialized areas such as biotechnology, mechanical engineering, and graphic design. 

  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 105 of 114 

  

Exhibit 4:  Planned Development  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 106 of 114 

  

Exhibit 5:  Regional Map  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 107 of 114 

  

Exhibit 6: Local Map  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 7:  Net Usable Acreage  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 108 of 114 

  

Exhibit 8:  Site Photographs  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy proposes to develop the vacant site into a school 

campus that will initially house kindergarten through sixth grade, and in subsequent years, will expand to 

include seventh and eighth grade. In the Charter’s first year, 240 students will be enrolled, but in the years 

following, the student enrollment will reach a maximum of 600 students. As shown in Exhibit 9, Site Plan, 

the proposed campus would contain two (2) two-story classroom buildings with capacity for 600 students. 

The proposed classroom size will be compliant with the District’s standard for classroom loading. One 

classroom building would house the primary grade complex, and the other classroom building would house 

the upper grade/intermediate complex. The two complexes would be kept separate but share the 

administration, multipurpose room, and kitchen facilities. The administration building would be located at 

the front of the campus and would house the school’s Co-Directors, office manager, office assistants, nurse, 

psychologist, conference room, staff lounge, and kitchen.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 109 of 114 

  

Exhibit 9:  Site Plan 

 

 

1. Primary grade complex  

One classroom building would contain kindergarten through 4
th
 grade, with kindergarten through 1

st
 grade on 

the first floor, and 2
nd

 – 4
th
 grade on the second floor. The kindergarten classrooms would be 1,350 square 

feet, and the 1
st
-4

th
 grade classrooms would be 960 square feet, in compliance with the CDE’s recommended 

classroom size. The classrooms would each have appropriate-height sink and two exits, one to the interior 

hallway and one to the exterior hallway, to comply with fire code for primary grades. The building would 

also contain student and staff restrooms, a computer lab, and teacher’s workroom. Outside the classroom 

building would be a shade structure for lunch tables and a play area containing hard courts, turf play area, 

and playground equipment.  

 

2. Upper grade complex  

The upper grade building would contain grades 5
th
 – 8

th
, with 5

th
 – 6

th
 on the first floor and 7

th
 – 8

th
 on the 

second floor. The classrooms would be 960 square feet in compliance with the CDE’s recommended 

classroom size. The building would also contain student and staff restrooms, a teacher’s workroom, computer 

labs, small group workrooms, and a project workroom. Outside the building would be a shade structure for 

lunch tables and a play area containing hard courts and turf playfield. Additionally, a separate building would 

provide the setting for innovative environmental teaching opportunities, which will include science programs 

and will take advantage of the adjacent natural habitat.  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 110 of 114 

  

3. Multipurpose room  

The school campus will include a multipurpose room that will be used to house the school’s assemblies, 

indoor physical activities, annual science fair, and other school events.  

4. Recreational facilities – 

As shown in Exhibit 9, Site Plan, approximately half of the site is planned to be used for joint-recreational 

use. District staff is currently negotiating the terms of a Joint-use Agreement with the City of Irvine and 

Irvine Ranch Water District. The park will be used and operated by the City of Irvine and open to the public 

during the day. The multipurpose room and turf field will be open to the City during after-school hours when 

not utilized by the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy programs. Strategic fencing will allow 

the park and joint-use facilities to be used by the public without jeopardizing the security of the school 

campus. 

 

Sustainability and Sensitivity to the Adjacent Natural Habitat 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy recognizes the asset and responsibility of being 

located adjacent to the existing natural habitat. As shown in the Site Plan, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy has incorporated a ―nature buffer‖ into the design of the campus to ensure that 

construction and operation of the school does not negatively impact the natural habitat. In addition, the 

Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy and City of Irvine will not place any nighttime lighting on 

the recreational facilities that will disturb the adjacent area. The only exterior lighting will include low -level 

security lighting in the parking lot, walkways, and on the exterior of building doorways. This will also ensure 

that nighttime noise levels remain consistent with existing site levels. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will comply with the California Environmental 

Quality Act and hire an environmental expert to analyze the impact of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy on the surrounding habitat. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will 

comply with any mitigation measures required during construction and operation of the facility.  

 

The site’s connection to the existing natural habitat offers a unique opportunity to design a school campus 

that has a prominent environmental component. The buildings and grounds will include sustainable building 

elements and will afford students with a sustainable educational component. The building that will house 

innovative environmental teaching opportunities will be truly sustainable and operate off the electrical grid. 

Furthermore, it will be used for the school’s unique science curriculum, including environmental science, 

engineering, and biology. The campus’ recreational features will connect with the existing trail system that 

weaves through the habitat area. Thus, the environmental science program will have easy access to explore 

the natural habitat, truly engaging students and providing interactive and inspiring curriculum. 

  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 111 of 114 

  

 

Charter Implementation 

 

While this chart below indicates one potential timeline; however, a streamlined approach may be used 

involving the new building at the Grant School Site. The availability of that school building would allow the 

Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy to begin operations during the 2015-2016. The planning for 

the new, permanent location in the INDA would begin immediately thereafter. 

 

Exhibit 10:  Charter Implementation Timeline  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Not Bold



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 112 of 114 

  

ELEMENT NINETEEN│ R E Q U I R E D  S I G N AT U R E S  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 113 of 114 

  

 

This page was intentionally left blank. 

 

 

 

 

  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 114 of 114 

  

 
 

APPENDIX A│ C O L L E C T I V E  B A R G A I N I N G  A G R E E M E N T  

 

 

 

 

 
 



AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET                                      

May 26, 2015 

 

Board Meeting 
 

TITLE: Charter Renewal Petition for Orange County School of the Arts 

Charter School  

 

ITEM: Public Hearing 

SUBMITTED BY: Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  

PREPARED BY: Mavis Mitchell, Coordinator, Charter Schools 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to conduct a public hearing for the charter renewal petition 

submitted by the Orange County School of the Arts (OCSA).  The five year term of the current 

charter petition expires June 30, 2015.  The charter renewal petition was formally received by the 

SAUSD Board of Education at its regular Board meeting on Tuesday, May 26, 2015.   

 

In compliance with California Education Code, within 30 days of receipt of the charter renewal 

petition, the governing board of the school district must hold a public hearing on the provisions 

of the charter renewal petition in order to provide an opportunity for public comment and 

demonstration of support for the charter renewal petition.   

 

 

RATIONALE: 

 

The relevant excerpt of California Education Code Section 47605 contains the specific 

requirements regarding the timely response of an authorizing agency to the submission of a 

charter renewal petition:   

 

(b) No later than 30 days after receiving a petition, in accordance with subdivision (a), the 

governing board of the school district shall hold a public hearing on the provisions of the 

charter, at which time the governing board of the school district shall consider the level of 

support for the petition by teachers employed by the district, other employees of the district, and 

parents.   

 

 

FUNDING: 

 

Not Applicable 

 

 

 

 

 



 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Conduct a Public Hearing at the May 26, 2015 Regular meeting of the Santa Ana Unified School 

District Board which may include a brief oral presentation by representatives of the Orange 

County School of the Arts (OCSA).     

 
SP:mm 



































































































































































































AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET                                      

May 26, 2015 

 

Board Meeting 
 

TITLE: Charter Renewal Petition for Orange County Educational Arts 

Academy  

 

ITEM: Public Hearing 

SUBMITTED BY: Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  

PREPARED BY: Mavis Mitchell, Coordinator, Charter Schools 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to conduct a public hearing for the charter renewal petition 

submitted by the Orange County Educational Arts Academy (OCEAA).  The five year term of 

the current charter petition expires June 30, 2015.  The charter renewal petition was formally 

received by the SAUSD Board of Education at its regular Board meeting on Tuesday,            

May 12, 2015.   

 

In compliance with California Education Code, within 30 days of receipt of the charter renewal 

petition, the governing board of the school district must hold a public hearing on the provisions 

of the charter renewal petition in order to provide an opportunity for public comment and 

demonstration of support for the charter renewal petition.   

 

 

RATIONALE: 

 

The relevant excerpt of California Education Code Section 47605 contains the specific 

requirements regarding the timely response of an authorizing agency to the submission of a 

charter renewal petition:   

 

(b) No later than 30 days after receiving a petition, in accordance with subdivision (a), the 

governing board of the school district shall hold a public hearing on the provisions of the 

charter, at which time the governing board of the school district shall consider the level of 

support for the petition by teachers employed by the district, other employees of the district, and 

parents.   

 

 

FUNDING: 

 

Not Applicable 

 

 

 

 



 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Conduct a Public Hearing at the May 26, 2015 Regular meeting of the Santa Ana Unified School 

District Board which may include a brief oral presentation by representatives of the Orange 

County Educational Arts Academy (OCEAA).   

 

 

 
SP:mm 



	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  

Charter Renewal Petition for the 
Orange County Educational Arts Academy 

: A California Public Charter School 
July 1, 2015 0-– June 30, 2020 

15 
	  
	  

 
 
 
 

Submitted to 
Santa Ana Unified School District 

 
March 8April 14, 20150 



2 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 2 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Table of Contents 
	  

Affirmations and AssurancesIntroduction .....................................................................................34 
Executive Summary of Changes ....................................................................................................15 
IntroductionAffirmations and Assurances ...................................................................................177 
Element 1 ...................................................................................................................................2010 
Element 2 ...................................................................................................................................5276 
Element 3 ...................................................................................................................................6590 
Element 4 ...................................................................................................................................6992 
Element 5 ...................................................................................................................................7597 
Element 6 .................................................................................................................................77101 
Element 7 .................................................................................................................................80104 
Element 8 .................................................................................................................................82105 
Element 9 .................................................................................................................................84107 
Element 10 ...............................................................................................................................85108 
Element 11 ...............................................................................................................................93127 
Element 12 ...............................................................................................................................94128 
Element 13 ...............................................................................................................................95129 
Element 14 ...............................................................................................................................96130 
Element 15 ...............................................................................................................................97132 
Element 16 ...............................................................................................................................98133 
Miscellaneous Provisions .........................................................................................................10036 
Conclusion ...................................................................................................................................109 
 
 
Exhibits 
 
Exhibit A: CDE DataQuest Reports 
Exhibit B: Sample Pacing Guides  
Exhibit C: Guiding Principles for Dual Language Immersion 
Exhibit D: Professional Development Plan 
Exhibit E: National Core Arts Standards Framework 
Exhibit F: LCAP 
Exhibit G: RTI 
Exhibit H: 504 Policy 
Exhibit I: Academic School Calendar and Bell Schedule 
Exhibit J: Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws 
Exhibit K: Board of Directors 
Exhibit L: Organizational Chart 
Exhibit M: Financial Information 
  



3 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 3 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Page 

	  
Table of Contents of Legal Requirements 4 
	  

Affirmations/Assurances 5 
	  

I. Introduction/Our Story 8 
	  

II. Educational Philosophy and Program (Element 1) 14 
	  

III. Measurable Student Outcomes and Other Uses of Data (Elements 2, 3) 38 
	  

IV. Governance Structure (Element 4) 48 
	  

V. Human Resources (Elements 5, 6, 11, 13, 15) 55 
	  

VI. Dispute Resolution (Elements 11, 14) 60 
	  

VII. Student Admissions, Attendance and Suspension/Expulsion Policies 61 
(Elements 7, 8, 10, 12) 
	  
VIII. Reporting and Accountability (Element 9, 16) 72 
	  

IX. Impact on the District 81 
	  

X. Conclusion 82 
	  

Exhibit A: Letters of Support 
	  

Exhibit B: Strategic Plan for Academic Achievement (SPAA), Professional Development 
	  

Plan 
	  

Exhibit C: RTI Intervention Overview of Tiers I, II and III, Student Identification Criteria 
	  

Exhibit D: Student Goal Setting Form 
	  

Exhibit E: Reclassification Criteria 
	  

Exhibit F: Special Education Survey Results 
	  

Exhibit G: Memorandum of Understanding: Special Education 
	  

Exhibit H: 504 Policy 
	  

Exhibit I: OCEAA’s Curriculum Policy, Curriculum Statement and Instructional Minutes 
	  

Exhibit J: Summary of Third Party Review Findings 
	  

Exhibit K: Sample Pacing Guide Exhibit L: Longitudinal Data Report Exhibit M: School-Family 
Handbook 
Exhibit N: 2009/10 Academic School Calendar and Bell Schedule 



4 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 4 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Exhibit O: Bylaws 
	  

Exhibit P: Board of Directors 
	  

Exhibit Q: Organizational Chart 
	  

Exhibit R: Faculty: Credential Status and NCLB Compliance 
	  

Exhibit S: Job Descriptions 
	  

Exhibit T: Performance Review Forms 
	  

Exhibit U: 2009/10 Wait List 
	  

Exhibit V: Financials: Statement, January 2010 Budget to Actual, Projected 5-year 
	  

Budget and 3-year Cash Flow 
	  

Exhibit W: Articles of Incorporation and Amendments 



5 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 5 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

“Table of Contents of Legal Requirements”: 
	  
This charter has been created in the format encouraged by the California State Board of 
Education in its adopted “Model Application for Charter Schools” and goes beyond the legal 
requirements of Education Code Section 47605.  According to the State Board of Education, 
the Model Application format ensures that charter petitioners cover all of the minimum elements 
required by law in a systematic way.   However, as the Model Application format requires that 
statutory provisions in the Charter Schools Act be addressed out of the order presented in the 
Education Code, this “Table of Contents of Legal Requirements” is presented to assist the 
Reviewer in establishing that all requirements of law have been met. 
	  
1.   Affirmations/Assurances page 5 
	  
2.   The Educational Program page 
14 
3.   Measurable Pupil Outcomes page 
38 
4.   Methods to Assess Pupil Progress towards Meeting Outcomes page 
46 
5.   Governance Structure of School page 
48 
6.   Employee Qualifications page 
55 
7.   Health and Safety Procedures page 
58 
8.   Means to Achieve Racial/Ethnic Balance Reflective of District page 
62 
9.   Admissions Requirements page 
61 
10. Independent Financial Audit page 
78 
11. Pupil Suspension and Expulsion page 
63 
12. Retirement System page 
56 
13. Attendance Alternatives page 
63 
14. Employee Rights to Return page 
57 
15. Dispute Resolution page 
60 
16. Labor Relations page 
57 
17. School Closure page 
79 



6 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 6 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

18. Impact Statement page 
81 



7 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 7 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

AFFIRMATIONS/ASSURANCES 
	  
As the authorized representatives of the applicant, we, the Board of Directors, hereby 
certify that the information submitted in this application for a charter renewal for the Orange 
County Educational Arts Academy to be located within the boundaries of the Santa Ana 
Unified School District is true to the best of our knowledge and belief; we also certify that this 
application does not constitute the conversion of a private school to the status of a public 
charter school; and further, we understand that if awarded the charter renewal, OCEAA: 
	  

• Will meet all statewide standards and conduct the student assessments required, 
pursuant to Education Code Section 60605, and any other statewide standards 
authorized in statute, or student assessments applicable to students in non-charter 
public schools. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(c)(1)] 

	  
• Will be deemed the exclusive public school employer of the employees of the 

Charter School for purposes of the Educational Employment Relations Act.  [Ref. 
Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(O)] 

	  
• Will be non-sectarian in its programs, admissions policies, employment practices, and 

all other operations. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(1)] 
	  

• Will not charge tuition. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(e)(1)] 
	  

• Will admit all students who wish to attend OCEAA, and who submit a timely 
application, unless OCEAA receives a greater number of applications than there are 
spaces for students, in which case each application will be given equal chance of 
admission through a random lottery process. Admission to the Charter School shall not 
be determined according to the place of residence of the student or his or her parents 
within the State. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(2)(A) - (B)] 

	  
• Will not discriminate against any pupil on the basis of the characteristics listed in 

Section 220 (actual or perceived disability, gender, nationality, race or ethnicity, 
religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the 
definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code or association 
with an individual who has any of the aforementioned characteristics). [Ref. Education 
Code Section 47605(d)(1)] 

	  
• Will adhere to all provisions of federal law related to students with disabilities 

including, but not limited to, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1974, Title II of 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and the Individuals with Disabilities in 
Education Improvement Act of 2004. 

	  
• Will meet all requirements for employment set forth in applicable provisions of law,  

including,  but  not  limited  to  credentials,  as  necessary.    [Ref.  Title  5 
California Code of Regulations Section 11967.5.1(f)(5)] 



8 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 8 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

	  
• Will   ensure   that   teachers   in   OCEAA   hold   a   Commission   on   Teacher 

Credentialing certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which a teacher 
in other public schools are required to hold.  As allowed by statute, flexibility will be 
given to non-core, non-college preparatory teachers.  [Ref. California Education Code 
Section 47605(l)] 

	  
• Will at all times maintain all necessary and appropriate insurance coverage. 

	  
• Will  notify  the  superintendent of  OCEAA  district of  the  pupil’s  last  known 

address within 30 days, and will, upon request, provide that school district with a copy 
of the cumulative record of the pupil, including a transcript of grades or report card 
and health information if a pupil is expelled or leaves the charter school without 
graduating or completing OCEAA year for any reason, the charter school. [Ref. 
California Education Code Section 47605(d)(3)] 

	  
• Will follow any and all other federal, state, and local laws and regulations that apply 

to the Charter School including but not limited to: 
	  

• 
Ø  The Orange County Educational Arts Academy shall comply with the 

Brown Act. 
	  

Ø  The Orange County Educational Arts Academy shall offer at a minimum, the 
same number of minutes of instruction set forth in subdivision (a) of Education 
Code Section 47612.5 for the appropriate grade levels; and shall operate for 
at least the minimum required instructional days. 

	  
Ø  The Orange County Educational Arts Academy shall maintain accurate and 

contemporaneous written records that document all pupil attendance and make 
these records available for audit and inspection. 

	  
Ø  The Orange County Educational Arts Academy shall on a regular basis 

consult with its parents and teachers regarding the Charter School's education 
programs. 

	  
Ø The Orange County Educational Arts Academy shall comply with applicable 

jurisdictional limitations to locations of its facilities. 
	  

Ø  The Orange County Educational Arts Academy shall comply with all laws 
establishing the minimum and maximum age for public school enrollment. 

	  
Ø The Orange County Educational Arts Academy shall comply with all applicable 

portions of the No Child Left Behind Act. 



9 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 9 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Ø  The Orange County Educational Arts Academy shall comply with the 
Political Reform Act. 

	  
Ø  The Orange County Educational Arts Academy shall comply with the 

Public Records Act. 
	  

Ø  The Orange County Educational Arts Academy shall comply with the 
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act. 

	  
	  
	  
	  

	  
Lead Petitioner 

	  
	  
	  
	  
Date 



10 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 10 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

	  

I. INTRODUCTION 
 

/OUR STORY 
	  

 
This Renewal Petition presented to the Santa Ana Unified School District (SAUSD) represents 
the belief that charter schools provide an opportunity for students to develop talents that may not 
be accessed in a traditional school setting. Charter schools, in an effort to continue the 
improvement of the public educational system, provide creative and individualized educational 
programs that address the unique needs of the students they serve. 
 
California Education Code 47601 provides opportunities for educators, parents, learners and 
community members to establish and maintain schools that operate independently from the 
existing school district structure, as a method to accomplish all of the following: 
 

 • Improve pupil learning 
•  
 • Increase learning opportunities for all learners, with special emphasis on expanded 

learning experiences for learners who are identified as academically low achieving. 
•  
 • Encourage the use of different and innovative teaching methods. 
•  
 • Create new professional opportunities for educators, including the opportunity to be 

responsible for the learning program at the school site. 
•  
 • Provide parents and pupils with expanded choices in the types of educational 

opportunities that are available within the public school system. 
•  
• Hold school established under the Charter Schools Act of 1992 accountable for meeting 

measurable learner outcomes, and provide schools with a method to change from rule-
based to performance-based accountability systems.   

• Provide vigorous competition within the public school system to stimulate continual 
improvements in all public schools. 

 • Hold schools established under the Charter Schools Act of 1992 accountable for 
meeting 

 measurable learner outcomes, and provide schools with a method to change from rule-
based to performance-based accountability systems. 

• Provide vigorous competition within the public school system to stimulate 
continual improvements in all public schools. 

	  
	  

	  
47601 

California Education Code 

	  
The Orange County Educational Arts Academy (OCEAA) was founded in 2005 as a grass-root 



11 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 11 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

endeavor undertaken by parents, committed educators, and community members who envisioned 
an instructional program that is committed to student academic achievement through the 
development of the arts, technology, language, and culture.   
 
 
OCEAA is entering its 10th year and doing an amazing job preparing students to be global 
citizens through the arts, technology and world languages and cultures. 
 
Our vision is for all students to show continuous improvement toward meeting or exceeding 
grade-level standards. We believe OCEAA offers a unique educational opportunity that infuses 
art, technology, language and culture into the curriculum to prepare our children to be the future 
leaders of our society. We work diligently to provide a safe and positive learning environment in 
which our students participate in enriching experiences designed to help them grow and develop 
academically, socially, and emotionally before, during and after school. We model and require 
all students to demonstrate behavior that is Organized, Respectful, Careful and Accepts 
Responsibility – following the O.R.C.A. Way! 
 
Through collaboration of staff, parents, and the community, we are fostering strong foundations 
that empower our students to become responsible and productive citizens. Education is most 
successful when families and schools work together.  Our parents and guardians take an active 
role as educational partners by joining the OCEAA FSO, volunteering at school, checking 
PowerSchool regularly, attending all conferences and meetings, supporting school policies and 
participating in our family events.  Robust and enduring stakeholder engagement has been a 
critical asset to OCEAA’s success and is now embedded in our school culture. 
 
We believe the OCEAA community is strengthened by diversity. Our families come from a 
variety of heritage groups that tie their lineage to countries throughout the world. As such we 
value the many languages that are spoken in our homes and our experience with cultures is an 
invaluable benefit. Cultural diversity just scratches the surface. Our learning styles, interests, 
passions and aptitudes are equally diverse and enriching to our school. We strive to value all 
types of diversity and utilize our diverse experiences and interests to prepare students to live, 
study and work in an interconnected, globally integrated society. 
 
OCEAA is pleased with its journey thus far, but also embraces change.  A constantly evolving 
educational program is an inherent part of being effective in the 21st century.  In our next renewal 
term we will focus on: 
 

• Continuing to develop rigorous curriculum aligned to the Common Core Standards that 
integrates art, technology, language and culture. 

• Continuing to increase the use of technology as an instructional tool. 
• Continuing to provide our students with opportunities to collaborate and express 

themselves through the fine arts. 
• Refining our ORCA SPLASH, which promotes positive discipline and re-teaching of 

negative behaviors. 
  
OCEAA Accomplishments 



12 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 12 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
At OCEAA we have much to be proud of.  First and foremost, we have demonstrated significant 
student achievement gains (detailed below). This is, of course, the most important metric in 
determining our success as an educational institution and OCEAA takes this obligation very 
seriously. We have been proactively refining our program to make sure students become 
proficient in the new Common Core Standards and expect to see continued growth in our next 
term. Our focus on biliteracy and global citizenship is stronger than ever with incredible results 
from our immersion program.  ORANGE COUNTY EDUCAITONAL ARTS ACADEMY 
ACCOMPLISHMENTS 
 
Over the past five years, OCEAA has experienced change in leadership, staff and student 
population. We have spent the last year and a half refining our educational program to better meet 
the needs of the students we serve. We have analyzed what is working for our students and 
modified what was not working. There have been challenges, as with all 
new schools. OCEAA has chosen to see those challenges as opportunities for growth and 
our community has learned to beWe are confident that we will continue to provide our students 
with a 21st century education through the arts, technology, language, and culture. 
 
OCEAA has also fostered a powerful school culture that is exciting and effective, but not only in 
terms of academic achievement.  resilient and problem solve each new opportunity. We are 
confident that over the next five years our educational program will continue to 



13 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 13 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
demonstrate gains and provide our students with a 21st Century education through the arts, 
technology, language and culture. 
 
We would like to highlight our success in maintaining and growing professional partnerships as well as 
bolstering our arts and technology programs as these truly round out our school and provide for the 
engaging and unique “glue” that makes OCEAA strong.   We have had great successour 
accomplishments over the last five years ; below are some highlights:and the amazing 
partnerships we have formed to support our students’ unique educational experience at OCEAA. 
 
Ongoing Partnerships 
 

• Arts Advantage 
• The California Arts Project  
• Orange County Performing Arts Center  
• Orange County Museum of Art  
• Orange County High School of the Arts  
• Ocean Institute 
• Discovery Science Center 
• Bower’s Museum 
• House of Blues, Anaheim 
• International House of Blues Foundation Action for the Arts 
• Broadway on Tour 
• The Wooden Floor 
• Barnes & Noble Arts Yearly Fundraiser 
• Orange County Department of Education’s Outdoor Science School 
• Apple Valley Collaboration 
• Tanaka Farms Community Supported Agriculture Project 
• Canned Food Drives - Second Harvest Food Bank 
• Giving Trees - Western Youth Services 
• Brownies 
• Girl Scouts 
• TEAMS AmeriCorps 
• Friday Night Live 
• GIRLS, Inc. 
• Santa Ana College 
• University of California, Irvine Credential Program 
• The California Reading and Literature Project 
• Orange County Music and Arts Administrators 
• Los Angeles Times 
• Lesley University 
• Downtown Inc. 
• UCI Creative Connections 
• Give Art with your Heart Drive 



14 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 14 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
Technology Achievements 
 

• Installed new business class wireless network to support 1-1 student to device initiatives 
• Opened OCEAA computer labs 
• Implemented EasyTech and TechSteps student technology skills program 
• Implemented Type-to-Learn keyboarding skills program 
• Started fireworks fundraiser for technology 
• Implemented student electronic registration system 
• Implemented iPad use for instruction in Grades 8, 6, and 5 
• Upgraded computer lab with 32 new computers with funding from the Disney Grant 
• Awarded BIIG Grant for Internet Connectivity upgrades. Connection to the Internet will 

be upgraded to 1 Gbps. 
• Implemented Google Apps for Education 
• Implemented Standards Based Report Card for Transitional Kinder 
• Implemented use of Chrome books for instruction Grade 7 
• Upgraded Electronic Registration System 

 
Arts Achievements 
 

• End of Year Extravaganza/ Holiday Extravaganza 
• OCMA Family Day  
• Noche de Altares 2012, 2013, 2014 
• Middle school art specialists hired  
• New mariachi program  
• Donors choose ukeleles donated  
• Approximately $4,000 in instruments donated from House of Blues 
• Student Sound Crew  
• Chapman Holocaust Contest Students acknowledged and one student finalist.  
• Grammy Award winning Quetzal concert 
• Student service learning project in 7/8th grade  
• Pacific Symphony Class Act program  
• Disney Arts Grant $30,000  
• Orange County Dance Educator of the Year Elementary Alondra Diaz 2014  
• Orange County Dance Educator of the Year Secondary Erica Vicario 2014 
• Orange County Arts Administrator of the Year Linda Hardman Greene 2014 
• Bowers Field trip grants for all students 
• Bowers docent program (docents bring the museum to the classroom) 
• El Centro (son jarocho music partnership)  
• Creative Connections Artwalk Presentation 

 
OCEAA is excited for the next chapter of our charter.  We know that we have strong systems in 
place, quality people dedicated to our work, and a clear vision for what comes next.  Our 2015-
2020 term will be the best yet. 



15 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 15 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
Charter Renewal Criteria 
 
Evidence of Meeting Charter Renewal Standards Pursuant to Education Code Section 
47607(b) and the California Code of Regulations, Title 5, Section 11966.4(b)(1) 
 
Education Code Section 47607(b) requires that a charter school must meet at least one of the 
following renewal criteria prior to receiving a charter renewal:  
 

(1) Attained its Academic Performance Index (API) growth target in the prior year or in two 
of the last three years, both school wide and for all groups of pupils served by the charter 
school. 

 
(2) Ranked in deciles 4 to 10, inclusive, on the API in the prior year or in two of the last 

three years. 
 
(3) Ranked in deciles 4 to 10 inclusive, in the API for a demographically comparable school 

in the prior year or in two of the last three years. 
 
(4) The entity that granted the charter determines that the academic performance of the 

charter school is at least equal to the academic performance of the public schools that the 
charter school pupils would otherwise have been required to attend, as well as the 
academic performance of the schools in the school district in which the charter school is 
located, taking into account the composition of the pupil population that is served at the 
charter school. 

 
Analysis of Charter Renewal Criteria 
 
OCEAA has attained its API growth target in two of the last three years that the API was 
calculated, both school wide and for all groups of pupils served by the charter school, meeting 
the requirement of Education Code Section 47607(b)(1). OCEAA’s API growth score in 2011 
and 2012 exceeds the growth targets established for those years with a 17 point jump and a 26 
point jump respectively.  Furthermore, OCEAA was ranked a “4” on the statewide API the last 
two years that the API was calculated, meeting the requirement of Education Code Section 
47606(b)(2).  The following shall serve as documentation confirming that OCEAA meets the 
statutory criteria required for renewal as set forth in Education Code Section 47607(b) (Also see 
Exhibit “A”: CDE DataQuest Reports, 2011-2014): 
 
In the 2010-11 school year, OCEAA had three numerically significant student subgroups: 
Hispanic/Latino, Socioeconomically Disadvantaged, and English Learners.  School wide and 
numerically significant student subgroup API performance data is demonstrated in the table 
below: 
 

2010-11 API Growth Scores: School Wide and Significant Student Subgroups 



16 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 16 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Groups API Growth 
API Growth 

Target (Actual 
Growth) 

Met Group’s 
Growth 
Target? 

School Wide 768 5 (+17) Yes 

Hispanic or Latino 755 5 (+17) Yes 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 751 5 (+25) Yes 

English Learners 720 5 (+16) Yes 
Source: CDE DataQuest, accessed March 2015 

 
In the 2011-12 school year, OCEAA had the same three numerically significant student 
subgroups: Hispanic/Latino, Socioeconomically Disadvantaged, and English Learners.  School 
wide and numerically significant student subgroup API performance data is demonstrated in the 
table below: 
 

2011-12 API Growth Scores: School Wide and Significant Student Subgroups 

Groups API Growth 
API Growth 

Target (Actual 
Growth) 

Met Group’s 
Growth 
Target? 

School Wide 794 5 (+26) Yes 

Hispanic or Latino 784 5 (+29) Yes 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 769 5 (+18) Yes 

English Learners 748 5 (+28) Yes 
Source: CDE DataQuest, accessed March 2015 

 
As demonstrated above, OCEAA’s school wide and numerically significant student subgroups 
demonstrated significant growth in their 2011 and 2012 API scores, with all groups surpassing 
the established targets.  
 
Assembly Bill 484 amended Education Code sections 52052(e)(2)(F) and 52052(e)(4) to allow 
schools that do not have an API calculated in 2013–14 and 2014–15 to use one of the following 
criteria to meet legislative and/or programmatic requirements: 

• The most recent API calculation; 
• An average of the three most recent annual API calculations; or 
• Alternative measures that show increases in pupil academic achievement for all groups of 

pupils schoolwide and among significant groups. 
 
The decision to use one of the above criteria may be made on a program by program basis and is 
a local decision.  (Source: CDE Information Guide, Status of the Academic Performance Index 
and 3-Year Average, available at: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ap/.)  
 
During the current charter term and prior to the suspension of the California Standards Test 



17 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 17 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

(CST) in 2013, OCEAA students have demonstrated strong positive growth, particularly in 2012, 
as measured by state standardized testing.  OCEAA’s API score increased 26 points that year to 
794 while the median increase in District schools was approximately 2 points.  Only 3 of 39 
(7.6%) District elementary schools had a greater increase in their API that year.   OCEAA’s 2012 
school-wide API of 794 exceeded the school-wide API scores of almost 60% of District 
elementary schools. During the same period of time, OCEAA successfully met all subgroup 
growth targets, while more than one third District elementary schools were not able to achieve 
this challenging goal.     
 
A cohort analysis of how second graders performed on the 2010 CST in English Language Arts 
compared to how they performed as fifth graders in 2013 reveals the following overall growth: 
The percentage of students scoring Below Basic and Far Below Basic decreased from 32% in 
2010 to 3 % in 2013 - a reduction of 29%.   During the same period of time the percentage of 
cohort students scoring Proficient and Advanced almost doubled, increasing from 36% to 67%.  
A similar cohort analysis for how fifth graders performed in 2010 compared to how they 
performed in 2013 reveals that the number of students scoring Below Basic and Far Below Basic 
decreased by 14% from 22% in 2010 to 8% in 2013.  
 
An analysis of OCEAA’s English Learner and Hispanic/Latino student subgroup performance 
during the current term of the charter also reflects positive growth.  From 2011 to 2013 
OCEAA’s English Learners’ API increased nineteen (19) points to 739 while Hispanic/Latino 
students’ API increased fourteen (14) points to 769.  OCEAA’s Socioeconomic Disadvantaged 
subgroup’s API increased by 100 points, to 702 during the same period of time.  When compared 
to the District’s subgroup APIs in 2013, OCEAA’s English Learners and Hispanic/Latino 
students outperformed their District counterparts (ELs 739 compared to 706; Hispanic/Latino 
769 compared to 737.) When we go back a bit farther to 2010 and look at OCEAA’s aggregate 
subgroup growth and annual average growth we see strong and positive trends.  English 
Learners’ subgroup growth has been 129 points averaging 43 points annually; Hispanic/Latino 
subgroup growth has been 120 points averaging 40 points annually; and, Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged subgroup growth has been 63 points averaging 21 points annually.    
While some standardized indicators of student achievement for both OCEAA and the District 
schools decreased in 2013, partly due to the initial implementation of the Common Core 
curriculum and gradual phase-out of the California Content Standards and CST testing, it is 
worthy to note that OCEAA’s subgroup performance led to even higher scores in the prior year 
(2012.)  OCEAA’s English Learner API increased to 748 and their Hispanic/Latino API 
increased to 784 in 2012. OCEAA’s instructional team believes that their students are well 
positioned and prepared to continue to demonstrate their growth in proficiency when measured 
by the new California Assessment of Student Performance (CAASP) process.  
 
OCEAA’s Two- Way Immersion program (TWI) continues to support the growth and increased 
proficiency of all students. 
 
When measured by the CELDT (California English Language Development Test) student 
proficiency in English reflects the following:  (see graph below) 
 

• By grades 5-8, 44-87% of TWI students scored Early Advanced or Advanced  



18 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 18 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

  
• At 5th and 7th- 8th grades, more students enrolled in the TWI program demonstrated 

proficiency  in English compared  to the English Mainstream (EM) comparison group 
  

 
 
When measured by the California Standards Test (CST) student proficiency in English Language 
Arts reflects the following:  (see graph below) 
 

• At grades 4-7, there were more TWI students who scored Proficient/Advanced compared 
to the English Mainstream students and State average (at 7th grade). 
  



19 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 19 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
 
OCEAA’s Hispanic/Latino subgroup students enrolled in the TWI program outperform their 
peers. (see graph below) 

 
• At grades 4-7, there were more TWI students who scored Proficient/Advanced compared 

to English Mainstream students.  
  

• Most students enrolled in upper grades scored Basic or higher, exceeding the statewide 
average. 

 



20 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 20 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TWI students have shown excellent growth over time, and more growth than English 
Mainstream students.  (see graph below) 

 
 



21 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 21 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OCEAA’s students enrolled in the TWI program also outperformed their English Mainstream 
(EM) peers in mathematics. (see graph below) 



22 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 22 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
• At grades 3-8, there were (far) more TWI students who scored Proficient/Advanced on 

CST mathematics compared to English Mainstream. 
  

• At 8th grade, there was a much higher percentage of TWI students scoring Proficient 
/Advanced and Basic and above when compared to All students in Calif. 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Again, when looking at the performance of the Hispanic/Latino subgroup in mathematics, the 
TWI students outperform their peers. (see graph below) 
 

• At grades 3-8, a higher percentage of TWI students scored Proficient/Advanced 
compared to English Mainstream.   
  



23 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 23 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

• 8th grade Hispanic TWI students scored higher than state average for Hispanic 8th graders 
in general math. 
 

 
 

 
The data shared above indicates that OCEAA’s TWI program continues to show considerable 
promise in student achievement and English proficiency for all students.   
 
This pattern of growth enumerated in the sections above serves as evidence of meeting the 
expectation set forth in Education Code Section 47607(a)(3) which states:  
 

The authority that granted the charter shall consider increases in pupil academic 
achievement for all groups of pupils served by the charter school (defined as “a 
numerically significant pupil subgroup, as defined by paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(a) of Section 52052.” EC §47607(a)(3)(B)) as the most important factor in 
determining whether to grant a charter renewal. 

 
Therefore, OCEAA has met the charter renewal standards and should be granted a five-year 
charter renewal term pursuant to Education Code Section 47607(a)(1). 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
 
Governing Law: Renewals […] are governed by the standards and criteria in Section 47605, and 
shall include, but not be limited to, a reasonably comprehensive description of any new 
requirement of charter schools enacted into law after the charter was originally granted or last 
renewed.   



24 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 24 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
California Education Code Section 47607(a)(2) 
 
 
The following list enumerates substantive changes in the petition due to programmatic updates 
and compliance with newly enacted, applicable law. 
 

• The charter was completely reorganized, placing the sixteen requisite elements in 
Education Code 47605 in numerical order to present a more thorough and accessible 
document. 
 

• Other requirements are provided for in the final section entitled “Miscellaneous 
Provisions” including financials, potential civil liability impact, facilities, administrative 
services, and related information.   

 
• The number of exhibits has been decreased due to incorporation into the charter (e.g. 

curriculum statement, special education language, etc.) or because the content was 
deemed duplicative, outdated, or superfluous.  

 
• The introduction includes an analysis of charter renewal criteria, which details student 

achievement data from the last term. 
 

• Compliance language has been added throughout the charter to reflect new legal 
requirements including, but not limited to: 

 
o Charter must contain a description of annual goals to be achieved in the state 

priorities, and specific annual actions to achieve those goals [EC 
47605.6(b)(5)(A)]. 

o Pupil outcomes must align with the state priorities that apply for the grade levels 
served or the nature of the program [EC 47605.6(b)(5)(B)] 

o The method for measuring pupil outcomes for state priorities shall be consistent 
with the way information is reported in the SARC [EC 47605.6(b)(5)(C)] 

o Nondiscrimination on the bass of gender identity and gender expression [EC 200]. 
o Diabetes information for parents [EC 49452.7] 

 
• Measurable outcomes and assessments previously interwoven into the educational 

program have been moved to Element 2 and 3 respectively. 
 

• The Instructional Program Description section includes OCEAA’s plan to phase out 
English Only instruction over the course of the next term in favor of program wide Two 
Way Immersion. 

 
• Supplemental information on the “Understanding by Design” curriculum model was 

added. 
 



25 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 25 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

• OCEAA has adopted the National Core Arts Standards to guide their arts-integrated 
program.  The standards have been included along with an Exhibit that details the 
framework. 

 
• The National Educational Technology Standards have been updated to reflect the new 

title of International Standards for Technology in Education (ITSE).  The new standards 
and corresponding information has been included. 

 
• OCEAA has created charts aligned with the eight State priorities and local priorities for 

both Element 1 and 2.  These articulate goals, actions, measurable outcomes, and 
methods of measurements.  These charts will be married to the previous LCAP (included 
as an Exhibit) and inform the LCAP annual update process. 

 
• The new State accountability and assessment system is referenced throughout the charter 

petition.  OCEAA also delineates shifts in their internal assessment plans. 
 

• Authorizer required language regarding indemnification and insurance ahs been added to 
the “Miscellaneous Provisions” section. 

 
As requested, OCEAA will submit both clean and redline version of the charter petition.  All 
changes to the document have been tracked for authorizer oversight purposes.  OCEAA will 
work with SAUSD to satisfy any requests for further information or clarification. 

  



26 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 26 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

AFFIRMATIONS AND ASSURANCES 
 
 
As the authorized representative of OCEAA, we, the Board of Directors, hereby certify that the 
information submitted in this petition for a charter renewal of the Orange County Educational 
Arts Academy (“OCEAA” or “the Charter School”), and to be located within the boundaries of 
the Santa Ana Unified School District (“SDUSD” or the “District”) is true to the best of our 
knowledge and belief; we also certify that this petition does not constitute the conversion of a 
private school to the status of a public charter school; and further, we understand that if awarded 
a charter, the Charter School will follow any and all federal, state, and local laws and regulations 
that apply to the Charter School, including but not limited to: 
 

• The Charter School will meet all statewide standards and conduct the student assessments 
required, pursuant to Education Code Sections 60605 and 60851, and any other statewide 
standards authorized in statute, or student assessments applicable to students in non-
charter public schools.  [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(c)(1)]  

 
• The Charter School will be deemed the exclusive public school employer of the 

employees of the Charter School for the purposes of the Educational Employment 
Relations Act.  [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(O)] 

 
• The Charter School will be nonsectarian in its programs, admissions policies, 

employment practices, and all other operations. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605 
(d)(1)] 

 
• The Charter School will not charge tuition.  [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(1)] 

 
• The Charter School shall admit all students who wish to attend the Charter School, and 

who submit a timely application, unless the Charter School receives a greater number of 
applications than there are spaces for students, in which case each application will be 
given equal chance of admission through a public random drawing process. Except as 
required by Education Code Section 47605(d)(2), admission to the Charter School shall 
not be determined according to the place of residence of the student or his or her parents 
within the State. Preference in the public random drawing shall be given as required by 
Education Code Section 47605(d)(2)(B). In the event of a drawing, the chartering 
authority shall make reasonable efforts to accommodate the growth of the Charter School 
in accordance with Education Code Section 47605(d)(2)(C).  [Ref. Education Code 
Section 47605(d)(2)(A)-(C)] 

 
• The Charter School shall not discriminate on the basis of the characteristics listed in 

Section 220 (actual or perceived disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, 
nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that 
is contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code 
or association with an individual who has any of the aforementioned characteristics). 
[Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(1)] 



27 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 27 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
• The Charter School will adhere to all applicable provisions of federal law relating to 

students with disabilities, including, but not limited to, the Individuals with Disabilities in 
Education Improvement Act of 2004, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and 
Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. 

 
• The Charter School will meet all requirements for employment set forth in applicable 

provisions of law, including, but not limited to credentials, as necessary. [Ref. Title 5 
California Code of Regulations Section 11967.5.1(f)(5)(C)] 

 
• The Charter School will ensure that teachers in the Charter School hold a Commission on 

Teacher Credentialing certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which a 
teacher in other public schools are required to hold. As allowed by statute, flexibility will 
be given to noncore, noncollege preparatory teachers.  [Ref. Education Code Section 
47605(l)] 

 
• The Charter School will at all times maintain all necessary and appropriate insurance 

coverage. 
 

• The Charter School shall, for each fiscal year, offer at a minimum, the number of minutes 
of instruction per grade level as required by Education Code Section 47612.5(a)(1)(A)-
(D). 

 
• If a pupil is expelled or leaves the Charter School without graduating or completing the 

school year for any reason, the Charter School shall notify the superintendent of the 
school district of the pupil’s last known address within 30 days, and shall, upon request, 
provide that school district with a copy of the cumulative record of the pupil, including a 
transcript of grades or report card and health information. [Ref. Education Code Section 
47605(d)(3)] 

 
• The Charter School shall maintain accurate and contemporaneous written records that 

document all pupil attendance and make these records available for audit and inspection.  
[Ref. Education Code Section 47612.5(a)] 

 
• The Charter School shall on a regular basis consult with its parents and teachers 

regarding the Charter School’s education programs. [Ref. Education Code Section 
47605(c)] 

 
• The Charter School shall comply with any jurisdictional limitations to locations of its 

facilities.  [Ref. Education Code Sections 47605 and 47605.1] 
 

• The Charter School shall comply with all laws establishing the minimum and maximum 
age for public school enrollment. [Ref. Education Code Sections 47612(b), 47610] 

 
• The Charter School shall comply with all applicable portions of the Elementary and 



28 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 28 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Secondary Education Act (“ESEA”). 
 

• The Charter School shall comply with the Public Records Act.  
 

• The Charter School shall comply with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act.  
 

• The Charter School shall comply with the Ralph M. Brown Act. 
 

• The Charter School shall meet or exceed the legally required minimum of school days.  
[Ref. Title 5 California Code of Regulations Section 11960] 

 
 
 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
Board President Signature     Date 
 
Ongoing Partnerships with: 

 v  Arts Advantage 
 v  The California Arts Project (see Exhibit A for letter of support) 
 v  Orange County Performing Arts Center (see Exhibit A for letter of support) 
 v  Orange County Museum of Art (see Exhibit A for letter of support) 
 v  Orange County High School of the Arts (see Exhibit A for letter of support) 
 v  South Coast Repertory 
 v  Ocean Institute 
 v  Discovery Science Center 
 v  Bower’s Museum 
 v  Cerritos Center for the Performing Arts 
 v  House of Blues, Anaheim 
 v  Broadway on Tour 
 v  The Wooden Floor (formerly known as Saint Joseph's Ballet) 
 v  Barnes & Noble Arts Yearly Fundraiser 
 v  Orange County Department of Education’s Outdoor Science School 
 v  Apple Valley Collaboration 
 v  Tanaka Farms Community Supported Agriculture Project 
 v  Canned Food Drives - Second Harvest Food Bank 
 v  Giving Trees - Western Youth Services 
 v  Brownies 
 v  Girl Scouts 
 v  TEAMS AmeriCorps 
 v  Friday Night Live 
 v  GIRLS, Inc. 
 v  Santa Ana College 
 v  University of California, Irvine Credential Program (see Exhibit A for letter of support) 
 v  The California Reading and Literature Project 
 v  East Los Angeles Theatre 



29 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 29 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 v  Orange County Music and Arts Administrators 
 v  Los Angeles Times 
 v  Lesley University 

 
2005-06 
v  Opened with Kindergarten through 8th grade in August, 2005 
v  475 students 
v  Wait list of 70 students 
v  Nutrition Services Department opens with home cooked meals for lunch 
v  Produced all reports by hand 



30 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 30 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

v  All teachers received laptops to facilitate curriculum building and collaboration 
v  First computer cart purchased to allow for student technology access within our 
building confines 
v  Staff trained in Monart, a visual arts methodology 
v  Development of Families Supporting OCEAA (FSO-parent organization) 
v  After School Arts Enrichment Activities initiated 
v  Lowe’s Grant to support outdoor science activities 
v  First Annual Talent Show, Family Dinner, and Silent Auction 
v  4 students accepted to Orange County High School of the Arts (OCHSA) 
v  3 students accepted to Middle College 
 
2006-07 
v  Earth Day Tree Planting at Santiago Creek 
v  Chef Sean, the school chef, catered the Santa Ana Health Expo 
v  PowerSchool Student Information System squired 
v  Attendance on-line 
v  Reports to district, county, state via PowerSchool 
v  Electronic Middle School Report Cards 
v  Wait list of 113 students 
v  Staff trained in Schools Attuned (All Kinds of Minds) 
v  Staff attended California Charter School Association (CCSA) Conference 
v  Student Leadership Team began 
v  ASES Grant awarded 
v  FSO raised funds to purchase playground equipment 
v  Staff, Students and Parents Participated in Santa Ana’s Black History Parade 
v  Second Annual Talent Show, Family Dinner, and Silent Auction 
v  First Annual Fall Festival 
v  Students participated in Young Author’s Faire 
v  9 students accepted to OCHSA 
v  2 students accepted to Middle College 
 
2007-08 
v  4 teachers are certified as Thinking Maps trainers 
v  The entire staff becomes certified in teaching Thinking Maps 
v  8 Week Artist Residency – Orange County Performing Arts Center (OCPAC) 

v  10,000 books donated from Tarbut V'Torah Community Day School for our library 
v  Hosted Imagination Celebration 
v  Students participated in Young Authors’ Faire 
v  Readers’ & Writers’ Summer Camp 
v  Barnes & Noble Fundraiser – over $1,000 raised to support arts education 
v  California Association for Bilingual Education (CABE) 2-Way Student 
Performance in Newport Beach 
v  Staff, Students and Parents Participated in Santa Ana’s Black History Parade 
v  Por el amor del los libros: A Day of Celebration at Librería Martínez 
v  First Annual Mexican Independence Celebration with Mexican Consul 
v  Staff, Students and Parents Participated in Santa Ana Community Event –  Noche 



31 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 31 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

de altares 
v  Wellness Program adopted by OCEAA Board 
v  Family Cooking Day hosted by Chef Sean 
v  Chef Sean catered the Santa Ana Health Expo 
v  Principal Linda Hardman Greene presented at the California Association for 
Bilingual Education’s 2-Way Conference, Newport Beach 
v  Full-time Technology Coordinator hired 

v  2nd computer cart purchased to allow for greater student access to technology within classrooms 
v  Wait list of 158 students 

v  Middle School Parent Portal opened to allow parents access to student grades, assignments and 
attendance 
v  First Annual Jog-a-thon K-8 
v  Received two-year Charter extension from SAUSD 
v  Staff attended CABE, San Jose 
v  Staff attended California Charter School Association (CCSA) Conference, 
Sacramento 
v  Student Safety Monitor program initiated 
v  Second Annual Fall Festival 
v  First Annual International Festival 
v  Third Annual Talent Show, Family Dinner, and Silent Auction 
v  The following teachers received AmeriCorps grants: Krista Abramson, Natalia 
Martínez, Jacquie Reyes, Gisela Valencia, and Julie Woo 
v  Family Literacy Night 
v  9 students accepted to OCHSA 
v  1 student accepted to Middle College 
 
2008-09 
v  All teachers trained in RESULTS Reading Assessments 
v  Two Reading Assessments given school-wide 
v  4 teachers are certified as Write From the Beginning trainers 
v  All teachers trained in Write From the Beginning 
v  Two Writing Assessments given school-wide 
v  Essential Standards identified K-8 with support from Orange County Department 
of Education specialists 
v  1st Grade Service Learning Project - Books Published and assistance given to 
Orange County Rescue Mission Shelter. 
v  The following teachers received AmeriCorps grants: Natalia Martínez, Krista 
Ratnaweera, Jacquie Reyes, Gisela Valencia, and Julie Woo 
v  Target Grant - 1st Grade teachers - $700 
v  Boeing grant awarded thru Arts Advantage - $20,000 
v  8 Week Artist Residency – OCPAC 
v  Krista Ratnaweera and Meg Terán selected to write the California Arts Project 
(TCAP) Dance and Theatre Curriculum 
v  Winter Recital 
v  CABE Student Performance, Long Beach 



32 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 32 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

v  Orange County Dance Educator of the Year Award - Krista Ratnaweera 
v  Orange County Music Educator of the Year Nominee - Tania Hernandez 
v  Middle School Teacher of the Year Nominee-Tania Hernandez 
v  Official recognition of first Charter school in Arts Advantage 
v  Barnes & Noble Fundraiser – over $700 raised to support arts education 
v  Second Annual Mexican Independence Celebration with Mexican Consul 
v  Staff, Students and Parents Participated in Santa Ana’s Mexican Independence 
Parade 
 

v  Staff, Students and Parents Participated in Santa Ana Community Event – Noche de altares 
v  Orange County Environmental Health Division Award of Excellence 
v  Insight Educational Group Third Party Review 
v  Strategic Plan for Academic Achievement (SPAA) created and implemented 
v  Tania Hernandez and Krista Ratnaweera Presented at the CCSA’s Annual 
Conference with OCPAC, Long Beach 
v  Staff attended CCSA Conference 
v  Wait list of 212 students 
v  Wireless Internet throughout school 
v  Participated in California Department of Education Best Practices Cohort to be 

ready for CALPADS reporting 
v  Zoom Data Director project piloted via CCSA 
v  Family Math Night 
v  United States and Mexican Education Parent Education Night 
v  CELDT Parent Education Class 
v  Parenting Classes offered on campus 
v  Second Annual International Festival 
v  Second Annual Jog-a-thon 
v  Third Annual Fall Festival 
v  Fourth Annual Talent Show, Family Dinner, and Silent Auction 
v  5 students accepted to OCHSA 
v  2 students accepted to Middle College 
 
2009-10 
v  Data Director implemented school-wide 
v  Essential Standards Pacing Guides created school-wide 
v  Comprehensive Assessment Calendar created 
o Math Benchmarks (4X/year) 
o Reading Assessments (4X/year) 

o Writing Assessments (4X/year with pre and post) 
o English Language Arts Benchmarks piloted with upper elementary and 

middle school for school-wide implementation 2010/11 
v  8 Week Artist Residency – OCPAC 
v  Natalia Martinez – awarded 6 grants worth approximately $2,265 
v  Doraima Gomez - awarded 1 grant worth approximately $400 
v  Julie Woo – awarded 1 grant worth approximately $585 



33 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 33 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

v  Third Annual Hispanic Heritage Celebration with the Mexican Consul 
v  Staff, Students and Parents Participated in Santa Ana Community Event –  Noche 
de altares 
v  Natalia Martinez received the Reading Educators Guild Award and Scholarship 

v  3rd computer cart purchased to increase access to students 
v  TCAP Dance and Theatre Curriculum piloted K-8 

v  Tania Hernandez and Hester Petropoulos selected to write TCAP music curriculum 
v  CST and APRENDA Parent Education Session 
v  Family Math Night 
v  CST Release Questions and Testing Strategies Parent Education Sessions 
v  $25,000 Grant awarded for the implementation of the MIND Research Institute 
v  Submitted Race to the Top Memorandum of Understanding to the California 
Department of Education 
v  Awarded East Los Angles Theatre Grant 
v  Awarded Inside the Outdoors Project Zero Waste Grant 
v  Awarded Waste Management Grant 
v  Wait list of 255 students 
 
The systems that have been put in place at OCEAA over these past five years will lead to further 
growth and strengthen our educational program. 



34 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 34 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
  



35 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 35 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

ELEMENT 1 
 
Governing Law: A description of the educational program of the school, designed, among other 
things, to identify those whom the school is attempting to educate, what it means to be an 
“educated person” in the 21st century, and how learning best occurs. The goals identified in that 
program shall include the objective of enabling students to become self-motivated, competent, 
and lifelong learners. 
 
A description, for the charter school, of annual goals, for all pupils and for each subgroup of 
pupils identified pursuant to Section 52052, to be achieved in the state priorities, as described in 
subdivision (d) of Section 52060, that apply for the grade levels served, or the nature of the 
program operated, by the charter school, and specific annual actions to achieve those goals. A 
charter petition may identify additional school priorities, the goals for the school priorities, and 
the specific annual actions to achieve those goals. 
 
California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(A) 
	  
II. EDUCATIONAL PHILOSOPHY AND PROGRAM (ELEMENT 1) 
	  

Governing Law:  A description of the educational program of OCEAA, designed, among 
other things, to identify those whom OCEAA is attempting to educate, what it means to be 

an “educated person” in the 21st century, and how learning best occurs. The goals 
identified in that program shall include the objective of enabling pupils to become self- 

motivated, competent, and lifelong learners. --California Education Code Section 
47605(b)(5)(A)(i) 

	  
MISSIONMission 

	  
The mission of the OCEAA community is to nurture all learners to become creative, critical 
thinkers by providing high quality standards-based instruction through the arts, technology, 
language and culture. 
	  
OCEAA offers students a small-school environment with individualized attention. This is 
especially beneficial to many of our students who may not otherwise be able to succeed  
in a  traditional public school. This educational setting promotes self-motivated,  
competent, life-long learning. 
 
Educational Philosophy 
 
EDUCATIONAL  PHILOSOPHY 

	  
Whom OCEAA is attempting to educate 
	  
OCEAA targets students in grades TK-8 who have an interest in attending a school with a 



36 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 36 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

commitment to academic excellence and a specialization in arts, technology, language and 
culture.   The OCEAA community values the maintenance and acquisition of both primary 
and secondary language through culturally relevant curriculum that integrates arts and 
technology. Located in the heart of Santa Ana, OCEAA seeks to cultivate biliterate and 
bicultural citizens who will contribute positively to their communities. We value the arts and 
technology as tools for reaching academic achievement goals and preparing all students for 
higher education. 
	  
What does it mean to be an educated person in the 21st 1st Century? 
	  
OCEAA believes that an educated person in the 21st C21st Century is a life-long learner who is 
able to think critically and problem solve, who seeks to use their strengths to serve their 
community and reach their personal goals. Core subjects are taught through the lens of 
21st 21st C Century themes including global awareness and civic literacy.  In addition, we believe 
students should be fluent in English, if not proficient in more than one language, and be  
comfortable with technology as a tool to enhance opportunities. An educated person in the 21st 

21st CCentury understands the role of art in society and appreciates art both by others and as a 
means of personal expression. Through the arts, we believe it is important for students to 
develop creativity and innovation, critical thinking and problem solving skills.  
Ultimately, these skills  will develop individuals who are flexible, self-directed, socially aware 
and responsible. 



37 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 37 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
 
How does learning best occur? 
 
 
How Does Learning Best Occur? 
 
OCEAA believes that learning best occurs when the following objectives are accomplished: 
 

• • A relentless focus on student learning, and continuous assessment of 
student learning to inform planning, instruction, intervention and enrichment by staff 
and community. 

• • A negotiated, articulated and refined TK-8, standards-based core curriculum 
that reflects the unique mission of OCEAA. 

• • Literacy  and  numeracy  skills  are  taught  through  meaningful  student   
work  products and performance tasks. 

• A  commitment  to  a  collegial  teaching  environment  characterized  by  high  
expectations for personal professional growth as well as high student achievement b 

 by school staff. 
•  
• An enhanced support network for each child through an after-school homework help 

program and other intervention programs and a strong and structured Response to 
Intervention (RTI) process. 

 • An enhanced support network for each child through an after-school homework 
help	  program	  and	  other	  intervention	  programs	  and	  a	  strong	  and	  structured	  Student	  

Success	  Team	  (SST)	  process.	  

•	   Multiple	  opportunities	  for	  parent	  involvement	  are	  provided	  that	  are	  linguistically	  appropriate	  
and	  include	  parent	  communication	  initiatives,	  parent	  volunteer	  programs,	  parent	  leadership	  
programs,	  and	  parent	  education	  programs.	  

• Multiple opportunities for parent involvement are provided that are linguistically 
appropriate and include parent communication initiatives, parent volunteer programs, 
parent leadership programs, and parent education programs. 

• Education,  business,  and  community  partnerships  are  utilized  effectively  to  
• support the school’s educational program goals. 
  

	  
PROGRAM GOALSProgram Objectives 

	  
Since the writing of its original charter, OCEAA has gone through several leadership changes. 
Under the direction of our current Principal, the school opened its doors to a third  party  
review.    The  results  of  this  review  showed  that  despite  high-levels  of dedication to the 
students, staff was not as effectively focused on academic achievement as needed to reach our 
goals.  The school followed up on the recommendations of the review by clarifying program 



38 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 38 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

goals and developing a Strategic Plan for Academic Achievement (SPAA) (see Exhibit B for the 
entire plan).  The strategic plan supports the following academic goals for students: 
	  
OCEAA is a charter school where all stakeholders share a common mission and shared 
accountability to provide high quality, standards-based instruction that  integrates arts, 
technology, language and culture. OCEAA’s goalobjective  is to motivate and assist all students 
in achieving academicg  proficiencysuccess on state academic standards and attaining life-
long skills that will  
prepare them for the 21st e 21st  Century. OCEAA aligns the curriculum in order to ensure  
success for all students in meeting the requirements of site, state, and tate standardized 
testsfederal testing.  When making decisions affecting curriculum, materials resources, 
professional development, programs or policies, OCEAA refers to this common mission. 
	  
OCEAA’s fundamental goalaim is to achieve academic excellence (proficient and above) in all 
core content areas:  - language arts, science and mathematics, and social studies,  - through a 
well-articulated TK-8 standards based curriculum, thus preparing students for a  
21st 1st Century global society. In order to reach our goal of student achievement, we believe  
students also need to be well versed in the arts, fluent in the use and language of technology, 
and have the ability to negotiate their use and understanding of multiple languages and cultures. 
Through the arts, technology, language and culture, we support our  students  in  achieving  
academic  excellence.  Success  at  OCEAA  is  defined  as academic, social, emotional, 
physical, artistic, technological and linguistic success, and is measured using multiple means 
including, but not limited to, standardized tests. 
	  
OCEAA follows the School’s Policies and Procedures  (see Exhibit I for Curriculum Policy) 
when developing and selecting curriculum, materials and instructional activities. These are 
selected through a collaborative process that uses research-based best practices to support our 
academic goals. (see Exhibit I for Curriculum Statement). 
 
Core Academicss 
 

 • Students will demonstrate proficient or advanced achievement on the California 
 StandardsCalifornia Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP). Tests 

(CSTs) per No Child Left Behind (NCLB) requirements. 
• 	  
 • Students will master computational skills and become effective problem solvers. 
•  
 • Students will read fluently and comprehend a variety of grade-level texts. 
•  
 • Students will write effectively for various purposes and audiences. 
•  
• Students will demonstrate understanding of essential concepts and issues in science and 

social studies, which are necessary for local, national and global citizenship. 
• As a graduation requirement, students will complete an exit project in which they will 

demonstrate the ability to select a community issue of genuine interest, make and follow 



39 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 39 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

a plan for investigating the topic, synthesize multiple sources of information in an 
original written composition, implement  a  communi ty  se rv ice  ac t ion  p lan ,  
and present their findings before an audience of peers, staff, parents and community 
members. This exit project integrates core competencies in reading, writing, listening 
and speaking as outlined in the English/Spanish Language Arts Standards. 

As a graduation requirement, students will complete an exit project in which they will 
demonstrate the ability to select a science or social science research topic of genuine interest, 
make and follow a plan for investigating the topic, synthesize multiple sources of 
information in an original written composition, and present their findings before an audience of 
peers, staff, parents and community members. This exit project integrates core competencies in 
reading, writing, listening and speaking as outlined in the English Language Arts Standards 
with core competencies in historical analysis and scientific thinking outlined in the 
History/Social Science and Science Standards.• Students  will  demonstrate  understanding  
of  essential  concepts  and  issues  in 

science	   and	   social	   studies,	   which	   are	   necessary	   for	   local,	   national	   and	   global	  citizenship.	  



40 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 40 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

•	   As	   a	   graduation	   requirement,	   students	   will	   complete	   an	   exit	   project	   in	   which	   they	   will	  
demonstrate	   the	   ability	   to	   select	   a	   science	  or	   social	   science	   research	   topic	  of	  genuine	   interest,	   make	  
and	   follow	   a	   plan	   for	   investigating	   the	   topic,	   synthesize	   multiple	   sources	   of	   information	   in	   an	  
original	   written	   composition,	   and	   present	  their	  findings	  before	  an	  audience	  of	  peers,	  staff,	  parents	  and	  
community	  members.	  This	   exit	   project	   integrates	   core	   competencies	   in	   reading,	  writing,	   listening	   and	  
speaking	   as	   outlined	   in	   the	   English	   Language	   Arts	   Standards	   with	   core	   competencies	   in	   historical	  
analysis	  and	  scientific	  thinking	  outlined	  in	  the	  History/Social	  Science	  and	  Science	  Standards.	  
 
Arts 
 
The first arts objective is to teach arts education with arts based outcomes so students learn the 
technique and content academic language of that specific discipline.  The second objective is 
teaching for ancillary outcomes so students transfer skills from the art concepts to non-art tasks.  
The third objective of the arts at OCEAA is to give students the tools necessary to input, process, 
and output information learned from other subject areas by integrating the arts. 
 
Technology 
 
OCEAA’s technology objective is for our students to access, process and communicate 
information through the use of various technological media. 
 
Language and Culture 
 
Students will demonstrate academic excellence in both English and Spanish and develop 
multicultural competencies including bilingualism, biliteracy, and a rich understanding of and 
appreciation for global citizenship. 
 
Curriculum Statement 
 
The OCEAA mission is realized through the implementation of research-based best practices. 
The school targets standards-based instruction and assessment with professional development 
focusing on reading, language acquisition, math, learning differences, the arts and technology. 
Data from local and standardized assessments, in addition to research-based best practices, drive 
instruction. Teachers are continuously trained to implement a balanced instructional model that 
provides students with direct instruction, practical application and ongoing inquiry-based 
assessments. These assessments measure student progress as they develop skills and master 
essential standards.  
 
All students at OCEAA complete a rigorous academic curriculum that focuses on integrating the 
arts, technology, language, and culture development. Students learn critical thinking skills in an 
environment where students create, problem solve, and make connections across the content area 
disciplines and in two languages. Curriculum and instruction is interactive and students engage 
in learning through a variety of flexible groupings. Students draw, perform and present orally as 
a means of assessment, as well as participate in interactive class discussions, debates, group 
presentations, simulations, and experience-based projects to learn content. Integration of 
computer technology, including the Internet, provides students with immediate access to 
worldwide resources. Visual and performing arts content are integrated across all core content 



41 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 41 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

areas in order to provide instruction in a modality appropriate for the talented OCEAA students. 
Additional arts experiences are incorporated through the following arts program components: 
Partnerships with local arts institutions (including but not limited to the Orange County 
Performing Arts Center), artist-teachers, guest teachers, professional arts partnerships, 
professional performance/exhibition opportunities and integrated, interrelated arts experiences.  
 
Building on our success with vertically aligning instruction based on “Essential Standards,” 
(Marzano and Reeves), OCEAA has partnered with WestEd to create a coherent scope and 
sequence of core unit instruction TK-8 that aligns with the California Common Core State 
Standards and the principles of Understanding by Design (Wiggins and McTighe).   
 
Vertical articulation of these units will allow us to continue to fine-tune our standards-based 
instruction so that skills spiral TK-8 and students graduate from OCEAA with the skills and 
knowledge necessary to be successful in a global society. Pacing guides will be utilized to ensure 
students are prepared to demonstrate mastery of essential CCSS on the Smarter Balanced 
Assessments in Math and English Language Arts (see Exhibit “B” for 7th and 8th grade Math 
example pacing guides). Regular benchmark assessments will provide teachers with data to drive 
their instruction and meet each individual student’s needs. This data will be shared at least twice 
annually with students and parents.  
 
Reading Instruction 
 
OCEAA teachers shall be trained in research-based strategies to effectively teach reading, 
ensuring that all students master reading at developmental benchmarks in the early grades. In 
addition, an early intervention process will be provided for students who need extra reading 
support. The reading program consists of a balanced literacy approach to include intensive 
phonemic awareness development, phonics instruction, guided reading practice and 
comprehension development. Students are assessed four times a year in reading to closely 
monitor their progress in phonics, phonemic awareness, accuracy, fluency and comprehension.  
 
Math Instruction 
 
A systematic math program is designed to allow children to master the essential math standards 
and provide an early intervention process. The math program focuses on basic mathematical 
computational skills as well as critical thinking application activities that will prepare students 
for real life application. OCEAA teachers incorporate benchmark assessments four times a year 
that facilitate flexible groupings to allow for both extension activities and re-teaching as needed.  
 
Language Acquisition 
 
Research-based language acquisition strategies are implemented to ensure second language 
acquisition.  OCEAA teachers will continue to be trained in Guided Language Acquisition 
Design (GLAD), RESULTS for English Learners, and the ELA/ELD framework, and will 
participate in on-going professional development in effective second language acquisition 
strategies.  
 



42 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 42 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Middle School 
 
Sixth through eighth grade students will serve the school community through a strong leadership 
role. Students in the middle school serve on student council, as safety monitors and participate in 
peer mentorship opportunities. Middle school students are paired with younger students to serve 
as positive peer role models. In addition, middle school students work on long-term research-
based projects following the “I-Search” model to measure and demonstrate high levels of 
academic performance. The I-Search project is scaffolded throughout 6th – 8th grades allowing 
students to build on their prior knowledge. In eighth grade, students complete an I-Search project 
as part of their exit requirements. The project includes an oral presentation or defense of the 
student’s research to a group of their peers, adults and teachers. Technology is an integral 
component of the final I-Search project through the development of PowerPoint/multimedia 
presentations and the use of web-based research tools. 
 
Enrichment 
 
OCEAA has several community partnerships that allow students to extend learning beyond the 
four walls of their classroom. Some examples include: 
 

• The Orange County Museum of Art 
• The Orange County Performing Arts Center 
• The Cerritos Performing Arts Center 
• The House of Blues 
• The Discovery Science Center 
• Outdoor Science School 
• The Riley Farm 

 
INSTRUCTIONAL  PROGRAM DESCRIPTIONInstructional Program Description 
 
OCEAA believes strongly in the myriad benefits of a Spanish dual emersion program.  Previously, 
offers families had a choice of two program options: an English Only/Structured  
English Immersion Program (EO/SEI) and a Two-Way Immersion Program (TWI).  Based on 
analysis of both quantitative and qualitative data over the course of the last renewal term, 
OCEAA has decided to slowly and responsibly phase out the EO/SEI program.  This process has 
already begun and next year all students in fourth grade and below will be exclusively in TWI 
while the choice of the two programs will still be offered to fifth graders and up.  For the next 
four years we will phase out one successive grade level at a time until all students at all grade 
levels are in a TWI program.  Our program is informed by the “Guiding Principles for Dual 
Language Education,” which is the nationally recognized tool for planning dual language 
programs; endorsed by the Center for Applied Linguistics (see Exhibit “C”). 
	  
Two-Way Immersion Program 
 

OCEAA follows one of the most effective models for second-language acquisition (Collier & 
Thomas; Lindholm-Leary), which is the 90:10 two-way model. Initially, 90% of the day is 
Spanish. As students progress through the program, the instructional day balances to 50% 



43 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 43 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

English and 50% Spanish by the time students reach 5th th grade. All students are initially taught 
literacy in Spanish with English literacy being added on in 3rd rd grade. Academic content is 
divided equally between the two languages as well. 
	  

 Two Way Program Goals:Bilingualism and BiliteracyPositive Cross-Cultural 
Competencies 

1.   Bilingualism and Biliteracy 
2.   Academic Excellence in Spanish and English 
3.   Positive Cross-Cultural Competencies 
	  
English Only/Structured English Program 
 
Students in the EO/SEI program receive all of their instruction in English. Teachers use  
research-based instructional strategies for their English learners to facilitate language acquisition. 
These include visuals, multi-sensory activities and incorporating students’ prior knowledge in 
their primary language. 
	  
English Program Goals: 
Positive Cross-Cultural Competencies1.   Academic Excellence in English 

2.   Positive Cross-Cultural Competencies 
	  
Arts Goals 
The first arts goal is to teach arts education with arts based outcomes so students learn the 
technique and content academic language of that specific discipline, as outlined by the 
California State Standards.  The second arts goal is teaching for ancillary outcomes so 
students transfer skills from the art concepts to non-art tasks.  The third goal of the arts at 
OCEAA is to give students the tools necessary to input, process, and output information learned 
from other subject areas by integrating the arts. 
Rigorous Standards-Based Curriculum 
RIGOROUS STANDARDS-BASED CURRICULUM 
	  
OCEAA strives to prepare students for success in a college-preparatory high school program. 
All core content instruction and materials are aligned with the state content standards; state-
adopted textbooks have been a primary resource for core curriculum development.   To enhance 
the structure and e rigor of the school’s  curriculum, the staff  underwent training in the 
Understanding by Design (“UbD”) model and implements this with fidelity.  The following 
graphic shows the stages of this model: 



44 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 44 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
 
is presently being trained in using a research-based model of unit design (i.e. Understanding 
by Design).   Professional development is currently focused on increasing rigor and 
instructional effectiveness. Professional development on this strategy as well as others occurs 
weekly and staff  receive ongoing support by instructional coaches (see Exhibit “D” for the 
2015-16 draft Professional Development Plan). In addition, this year staff receive multipleed 
fourteen full-day professional development sessions as well as release days throughout the year 
to ensure that a rigorous standards-based curriculum is provided to students. The use of essential 
questions and performance assessments in the unit design model will assist teachers in 
designing intellectually challenging, standards-based learning experiences for all students. 
 
In order to meet the needs of our English Learners, English Language Development is taught on 
a daily basis. Specially Designed Academic Instruction in English (SDAIE) and Guided 
Language Acquisition Design (GLAD) strategies are used to ensure access to both language 
and content goals. Students are assessed continuously for language skills in order to assist in 
flexible grouping.  This spring s Staff has also been trained by the California Reading and 
Literacy Project (CRLP) in structured language practice, multiple measures of reading 
assessment, and oral language assessment to assist them in further supporting their English 
Learners. English Learners in the Two-Way Immersion program have ongoing opportunities to 
practice speaking English with native English speakers who serve as language “experts” 
throughout the school day.taff will be trained by the California Reading and Literacy Program 



45 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 45 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

(CRLP) in using an English Language Development assessment that can be administered by 
teachers to assist them in further supporting their English Learners. English Learners in the 
Two-Way Immersion program have ongoing opportunities to practice speaking English with 
native English speakers who serve as language “experts” throughout the school day. 
 
 
TIn the arts, including , music, drama, visual arts, and dance, are significant parts of student 
life at OCEAA. Students are encouraged to nourish their interest and talent through exposure to 
a broad array of learning experiences both during and after school. A comprehensive, 
standards-based format is followed, emphasizing artistic perception, creative expression, cultural 
heritage, and aesthetic valuing. This comprehensive program is composed of three modes of 
instruction: a) instruction connecting the arts and other core subjects; b) b) 



46 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 46 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

instruction linking the arts disciplines; and c) subject-centered arts instruction in dance, music, 
theater, and visual arts.   In addition, the arts curriculum is supported by partnerships with  
local  community artistic organizations, artist-in residence  teachers,  guest   teachers,   
professional   arts  partnerships,   college/university  partnerships, professional 
performance/exhibition opportunities and an integrated, interrelated arts experience.	  In this term, 
OCEAA seeks to continue to improve its arts integrated program by aligning instruction to both 
the Common Core State Standards and the National Core Arts Standards, which have been 
provided below (see Exhibit “E” for more information). 
 

 
 
	  
 
In technology, we strive to create an environment where the innovative use of technology 
enhances learning and improves student achievement for all students, including those with 

13 
National Core Arts Standards 

Artistic Processes and Anchor Standards 
Artistic Processes 

Creating 
Definition: 
Conceiving and 
developing new 
artistic ideas and 
work. 

 

Performing/Presenting/
Producing 
Definitions: 
Performing:  Realizing 
artistic ideas and work 
through interpretation 
and presentation. 
Presenting: Interpreting 
and sharing artistic 
work. 
Producing: Realizing 
and presenting artistic 
ideas and work. 

Responding 
Definition: 
Understanding and 
evaluating how the arts 
convey meaning. 
 

Connecting 
Definition:  
Relating artistic 
ideas and work with 
personal meaning 
and external context. 

Anchor Standards 
Students will: 
 
1. Generate and 
conceptualize 
artistic ideas 
and work. 
 
2. Organize and 
develop artistic 
ideas and work.  
 
3. Refine and 
complete artistic 
work. 

Students will: 
 
4. Select, analyze, and 
interpret artistic work for 
presentation. 
 
5. Develop and refine 
artistic techniques and 
work for presentation. 
 
6. Convey meaning 
through the presentation 
of artistic work. 

Students will: 
 
7. Perceive and analyze 
artistic work. 
 
8. Interpret intent and 
meaning in artistic 
work. 
 
9. Apply criteria to 
evaluate artistic work. 

Students will: 
 
10. Synthesize and 
relate knowledge 
and personal 
experiences to make 
art. 
 
11. Relate artistic 
ideas and works 
with societal, 
cultural and 
historical context to 
deepen 
understanding. 

 
 
Performance standards 
Performance standards are discipline-specific (dance, media arts, music, visual arts, theatre), 
grade-by-grade articulations of student achievement in the arts PK-8 and at three proficiency 
levels in high school (proficient, accomplished and advanced). As such, the performance 
standards translate the anchor standards into specific, measurable learning goals. 
 
 
Instructional resources 
Completing the design features of the model, instructional resources are provided to support 
teachers as they build understanding about the new standards and consider multiple ways to 
implement the standards in their classrooms. The instructional resources include: enduring 
understandings and essential questions; process components; glossaries; and model 
cornerstone assessment with key traits. Instructional resources receive different emphasis 
based on various approaches to teaching and learning in individual disciplines. The web 
application of each discipline’s resources reflects these differences. 
 



47 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 47 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

physical or learning disabilities. Our goal is to empower all instructional staff to enhance 
classroom instruction by integrating technology into their lesson plans in alignment with 
California Content StandardsCCSS and the National Educational TechnologyInternational 
Society for Technology in Education Standards for Students as articulated below: 
 

 ISTE Standards for Students 

1. Creativity and innovation 

Students demonstrate creative 
thinking, construct knowledge, and 
develop innovative products and 
processes using technology. 

 

a. Apply existing knowledge to generate new 
ideas, products, or processes 

b. Create original works as a means of personal 
or group expression 

c. Use models and simulations to explore 
complex systems and issues 

d. Identify trends and forecast possibilities 

2. Communication and 
collaboration 

Students use digital media and 
environments to communicate and 
work collaboratively, including at 
a distance, to support individual 
learning and contribute to the 
learning of others. 

 

a. Interact, collaborate, and publish with peers, 
experts, or others employing a variety of 
digital environments and media 

b. Communicate information and ideas 
effectively to multiple audiences using a 
variety of media and formats 

c. Develop cultural understanding and global 
awareness by engaging with learners of other 
cultures 

d. Contribute to project teams to produce original 
works or solve problems 

3. Research and information 
fluency 

Students apply digital tools to 
gather, evaluate, and use 
information. 

 

a. Plan strategies to guide inquiry 
b. Locate, organize, analyze, evaluate, synthesize, 

and ethically use information from a variety of 
sources and media 

c. Evaluate and select information sources and 
digital tools based on the appropriateness to 
specific tasks 

d. Process data and report results 

4. Critical thinking, problem 
solving, and decision making 

Students use critical thinking skills 
to plan and conduct research, 
manage projects, solve problems, 

a. Identify and define authentic problems and 
significant questions for investigation 

b. Plan and manage activities to develop a 
solution or complete a project 

c. Collect and analyze data to identify solutions 
and/or make informed decisions 



48 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 48 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

and make informed decisions using 
appropriate digital tools and 
resources. 

d. Use multiple processes and diverse 
perspectives to explore alternative solutions 

5. Digital citizenship 

Students understand human, 
cultural, and societal issues related 
to technology and practice legal 
and ethical behavior. 

 

a. Advocate and practice safe, legal, and 
responsible use of information and technology 

b. Exhibit a positive attitude toward using 
technology that supports collaboration, 
learning, and productivity 

c. Demonstrate personal responsibility for 
lifelong learning 

d. Exhibit leadership for digital citizenship 

6. Technology operations and 
concepts 

Students demonstrate a sound 
understanding of technology 
concepts, systems, and operations. 

a. Understand and use technology systems 
b. Select and use applications effectively and 

productively 
c. Troubleshoot systems and applications 
d. Transfer current knowledge to learning of new 

technologies 

���������s. 

	  
 
We have purchased learning software and publishing programs for the various grade levels, as 
well as rights to use an online professional development tutorial that will allow instructors and 
staff members to build new technology skills according to their individual needs. In addition, we 
have three mobile computer carts with over 75 laptopschrome books and iPads accessible to all 
TK-8 students. By learning to effectively integrate technology into day-to-day classroom 
activities, instructors improve student achievement, develop students’ technology skills, and 
prepare them to function more effectively in the global economy. In February, first through 
sixth grade tTeachers will will receive ongoing professional development in the ITSE 
standards and supportive technology and a computer programs to support mathematics 
instruction that incorporates visualization and spatial processes to help conceptual development. 
 
Students to be Served 
 
STUDENTS TO BE SERVED 
 
OCEAA educates up to 600 students from Orange and the surrounding counties in grades 
Transitional-Kindergarten through Eighth. Currently, these students come from diverse 
backgrounds that include a wide variety of socio-economic status, race and ethnicities, 
language, and disabilities (see tables below taken from the latest SARC and CDE DataQuest)..  
Table 2.4 shows the total enrollment by program, language status and Title I status. 



49 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 49 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
 
 
Table 2.4 Total EnrollmentStudent Enrollment by Student Group (School Year 2013-14) 

	  
Student Enrollment by Grade Level (School Year 2013-14) 

 
 
Student Enrollment Trend Data 

$�����������*��<+C+<A�C

$�����������*��<+;+<A�C

��
�������	����������(�����&�7���0���		��#������� !�"1��
�������	����������(�����&�7���0���		��#������� !�"1

(�����&�7�� -
�����	����
�����

G����%���� @?

9������ EA

9�����< =@

9�����B =E

9�����C E<

9�����= E�

9�����E E�

9�����@ =C

9�����; @C

!
������
��"�� =EC

G����%����9������ 9�����< 9�����B 9�����C 9�����= 9�����E 9�����@ 9�����;

A

�A

<A

BA

CA

=A

EA

@A

;A

?A

��
�������	������������
�����(�	
��0���		��#������� !�"1��
�������	������������
�����(�	
��0���		��#������� !�"1

(�	
� $�������	��*	������	������

>���/�
����������"����� � <

�"������6����
������/��7����� A <

���� A @

������
 A A

8�������
��$�� �
 ;= E

7������8�������
��&�������6������ A A

)	��� = A

!�
�
��:
�������� A A

�
��
��

"�������(��������%�� @@ ;

�%���	�$������ CC �

��������� ��	�(�������� ��� E @

>���/�
����������"�����

�"������6����
������/��7�����

����

������


8�������
��$���


7������8�������
��&�������6������

)	���

!�
�
��:
��������

�J

;=J

=J

���������	
�����������������������������	���	������

�����!������

$�����������*��<+C+<A�C

$�����������*��<+;+<A�C

��
�������	����������(�����&�7���0���		��#������� !�"1��
�������	����������(�����&�7���0���		��#������� !�"1

(�����&�7�� -
�����	����
�����

G����%���� @?

9������ EA

9�����< =@

9�����B =E

9�����C E<

9�����= E�

9�����E E�

9�����@ =C

9�����; @C

!
������
��"�� =EC

G����%����9������ 9�����< 9�����B 9�����C 9�����= 9�����E 9�����@ 9�����;

A

�A

<A

BA

CA

=A

EA

@A

;A

?A

��
�������	������������
�����(�	
��0���		��#������� !�"1��
�������	������������
�����(�	
��0���		��#������� !�"1

(�	
� $�������	��*	������	������

>���/�
����������"����� � <

�"������6����
������/��7����� A <

���� A @

������
 A A

8�������
��$�� �
 ;= E

7������8�������
��&�������6������ A A

)	��� = A

!�
�
��:
�������� A A

�
��
��

"�������(��������%�� @@ ;

�%���	�$������ CC �

��������� ��	�(�������� ��� E @

>���/�
����������"�����

�"������6����
������/��7�����

����

������


8�������
��$���


7������8�������
��&�������6������

)	���

!�
�
��:
��������

�J

;=J

=J

���������	
�����������������������������	���	������

�����!������



50 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 50 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
Charter School Goals and Actions to Achieve the Eight State Priorities 
 

CHARTER SCHOOL GOALS AND ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE THE STATE PRIORITIES  

Pursuant to Education Code Section 47605.6(b)(5)(A)(ii), following is a table describing the Charter 
School’s annual goals to be achieved in the state priorities schoolwide and for all pupil subgroups, as 
described in Education Code Section 52060(d), and specific annual actions to achieve those goals. 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan (“LCAP”) 
The Charter School will produce a Local Control and Accountability Plan (“LCAP”) using the LCAP 
template adopted by the State Board of Education. Pursuant to Education Code Section 47606.5, on or 
before July 1, 2015, and each year thereafter, the Charter School shall update the LCAP, including the 
goals and annual actions identified below. The Charter School shall submit the LCAP to SAUSD as 
well as the Orange County Superintendent of Schools annually on or before July 1, as required by 
Education Code Section 47604.33. A copy of the initial LCAP submitted in 2014 is attached for 
reference as Exhibit “F” and will be married with the goals and outcomes included in this chart and the 
version in Element 2 as part of the LCAP annual update pursuant to the process outlined in Education 
Code. 

 
The LCAP and any revisions necessary to implement the LCAP shall not be considered a material 
revision to the charter, and shall be maintained by the Charter School at the school site.  

 
Because each state priority has multiple parts, in order to align with the goals and annual actions to 
these multiple parts of each state priority, the Charter School has separated out the state priorities into 
“subpriorities.” 
 
STATE PRIORITY #1— BASIC SERVICES 

The degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned (E.C. §44258.9) and fully credentialed, and 
every pupil has sufficient access to standards-aligned instructional materials (E.C. § 60119), and 
school facilities are maintained in good repair (E.C. §17002(d)) 

SUBPRIORITY A – TEACHERS 



51 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 51 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 

100% of core teachers will hold a valid CA Teaching Credential with appropriate 
English learner authorization as defined by the CA Commission on Teaching 
Credentialing, and 100% of credentialed teachers will be appropriately assigned 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

All core teacher candidates screened for employment will hold valid CA 
Teaching Credential with appropriate English learner and bilingual instruction 
authorizations; Human Resources Manager will annually review credential status 

SUBPRIORITY B – INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 

Students will have access to high quality instructional materials that support 
mastery of CA Common Core State Standards and 21st century skills as outlined 
in our charter petition 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

All instructional materials purchased will be aligned to CA Common Core State 
Standards and 21st century skills as outlined in our charter petition 

SUBPRIORITY C – FACILITIES  

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 

All students and staff will work in a healthy, safe and secure environment that 
supports achievement 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Daily general cleaning by custodial staff will maintain campus cleanliness using 
only “green” products; Annual and monthly facility inspections will screen for 
safety hazards 

STATE PRIORITY #2— IMPLEMENTATION OF COMMON CORE STATE STANDARDS  

Implementation of Common Core State Standards, including how EL students will be enabled to gain 
academic content knowledge and English language proficiency 

SUBPRIORITY A – CCSS IMPLEMENTATION 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 

All core teachers will participate in annual professional development on the 
implementation of Common Core State Standards and Smarter Balanced Interim 
Assessments 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Train teachers in recently adopted Go Math! materials, Cognitively Guided 
Instruction and close reading; train teachers in administering and scoring Smarter 
Balanced Interim Assessments twice annually to measure progress  

SUBPRIORITY B – EL STUDENTS & ACADEMIC CONTENT KNOWLEDGE 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 

EL students will gain academic content knowledge through the implementation 
of CCSS aligned instruction and assessment 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

ELs participate in CCSS-aligned instruction with language support from the 
integration of the ELA/ELD framework in all content areas; ELs receive 
interventions as indicated by analysis of assessment data 

SUBPRIORITY C – EL STUDENTS & ENGLISH LANGUAGE PROFICIENCY 



52 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 52 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 

EL students will gain English language proficiency through instruction that aligns 
the CA ELD Standards with the CCSS for English Language Arts and literacy in 
History/Social Studies and Science  

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Teachers of ELs participate in at least 10 hours of professional development 
activities to align the ELA/ELD framework with CCSS ELA/Literacy standards. 

STATE PRIORITY #3— PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT 

Parental involvement, including efforts to seek parent input for making decisions for schools, and how 
the school will promote parent participation 

SUBPRIORITY A – ACHIEVING/MAINTAINING PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 
Maintain parent representation and leadership 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

OCEAA will promote and work with parent leadership organizations including 
but not limited to Families Supporting OCEAA (FSO), English Learner Advisory 
Council (ELAC), and a School Site Council 

SUBPRIORITY B – PROMOTING PARENT PARTICIPATION 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 
Promote parent volunteer opportunities through a Parent Volunteer Coordinator 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

School administration will work with the Parent Volunteer Coordinator to solicit 
a volunteer list that the coordinator will organize based on expertise and 
availability. 

SUBPRIORITY C –  SURVEYS 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 
Solicit parent feedback via annual satisfaction surveys 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Annually, OCEAA school administration will conduct school satisfaction 
assessments to generate strategies for improvement. Results of parent satisfaction 
surveys will be presented to the OCEAA Board of Directors for discussion and 
follow-up. 

STATE PRIORITY #4— STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT 
Pupil achievement, as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

A. CA Measurement of Academic Progress and Performance statewide assessment 
B. The Academic Performance Index (API) 
C. Percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy UC/CSU entrance 

requirements, or career technical education 
D. Percentage of ELs who make progress toward English language proficiency as measured by 

the California English Language Development Test (CELDT) and/or English Language 



53 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 53 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Proficiency Assessment for California (ELPAC) 
E. EL reclassification rate 
F. Percentage of pupils who have passed an AP exam with a score of 3 or higher 
G. Percentage of pupils who participate in and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to the 

Early Assessment Program (E.C. §99300 et seq.) or any subsequent assessment of college 
preparedness 

SUBPRIORITY A – CCSS SBA: ELA/LITERACY AND MATHEMATICS 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 

Students at every applicable grade level, including all student subgroups, score 
proficient or higher on the CCSS Smarter Balanced Assessment (SBA) in the 
area of English Language Arts/Literacy and Mathematics 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Positive school climate, classroom instruction that integrates the arts and 
technology; appropriate CCSS aligned instructional materials; implementation of 
intervention programs to assist at-risk students  

SUBPRIORITY B – API 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 

OCEAA, including all student subgroups, will meet the annual API Growth 
Target, or equivalent, as mandated by the CA State Board of Education 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Classroom instruction will align to CCSS, students will receive targeted 
interventions through the RtI process, teachers will receive PD in prioritized 
areas to facilitate ongoing program inprovement 

SUBPRIORITY C – UC/CSU COURSE GRADE REQUIREMENTS (OR CTE) 

GRADE LEVELS NOT APPLICABLE TO CHARTER SCHOOL 

SUBPRIORITY D – EL PROFICIENCY RATES 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 

ELs will become English Proficient within 5 years of entering language 
instruction educational programs 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Carefully grouping primary grade ELs for ELD instruction, carefully integrating 
ELA/ELD framework into secondary instruction, identifying specific targets for 
language learning, assessing learning through standards-referenced assessments 

SUBPRIORITY E – EL RECLASSIFICATION RATES 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 
OCEAA will maintain a 20% reclassification rate annually 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Close monitoring and support for students who achieved language proficiency on 
the CELDT but did not meet additional requirements for reclassification 

SUBPRIORITY F – AP EXAM PASSAGE RATE 

GRADE LEVELS NOT APPLICABLE TO CHARTER SCHOOL 



54 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 54 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

SUBPRIORITY G – COLLEGE PREPAREDNESS/EAP 

GRADE LEVELS NOT APPLICABLE TO CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATE PRIORITY #5— STUDENT ENGAGEMENT 

 Pupil engagement, as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 
A. School attendance rates 
B. Chronic absenteeism rates 
C. Middle school dropout rates (EC §52052.1(a)(3)) 
D. High school dropout rates 
E. High school graduation rates 

SUBPRIORITY A – STUDENT ATTENDANCE RATES 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 
OCEAA will maintain a 95% ADA rate 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

OCEAA will provide a safe and engaging learning environment for all its 
students and families, including those of the various subgroups enrolled 

SUBPRIORITY B – STUDENT ABSENTEEISM RATES 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 
Students will not have more than five absences in any school year 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Parents will be informed of chronic absences as specified in school-family 
handbook 

SUBPRIORITY C – MIDDLE SCHOOL DROPOUT RATE 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 
OCEAA students will not dropout. 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

OCEAA’s Registrar will maintain communication with families of students who 
dis-enroll, and email/phone records with new institutions, until transfer of official 
documents has occurred. 

SUBPRIORITY D – HIGH SCHOOL DROPOUT RATES 

 GRADE LEVELS NOT APPLICABLE TO CHARTER SCHOOL 

SUBPRIORITY E – HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION RATES 

GRADE LEVELS NOT APPLICABLE TO CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATE PRIORITY #6— SCHOOL CLIMATE 

School climate, as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

A. Pupil suspension rates 



55 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 55 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

B. Pupil expulsion rates 
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety 

and school connectedness 
SUBPRIORITY A – PUPIL SUSPENSION RATES 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 
OCEAA will maintain an annual suspension rate of less than 5% 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

OCEAA staff will implement a strong Tier 1 discipline plan using the Positive 
Behavior Interventions and Supports (PBIS) approach; when Tier 1 interventions 
are not successful, individualized intervention plans are created with students and 
parents to manage behavior issues and concerns 

SUBPRIORITY B – PUPIL EXPULSION RATES 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 
OCEAA will maintain an annual expulsion rate of less than 1% 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

OCEAA staff will implement a strong Tier 1 discipline plan using the Positive 
Behavior Interventions and Supports approach; when Tier 1 interventions are not 
successful, individualized intervention plans are created with students and parents 
to manage behavior issues and concerns 

SUBPRIORITY C – OTHER SCHOOL SAFETY AND SCHOOL CONNECTEDNESS MEASURES 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 
OCEAA students and staff will adhere to the School Emergency Response Plan 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Annually, all school employees will be trained on the elements of the School 
Emergency Response Plan. Students and staff will participate in Fire, 
Earthquake, and other safety drills. 

SUBPRIORITY D - SURVEYS 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 

Students, parents and teachers will feel a sense of community and safety on 
campus 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Administration will devise and administer satisfaction surveys to parents, 
students, and teachers annually. A variety of engaging co-curricular opportunities 
will further enhance students’ sense of belonging and community. 

STATE PRIORITY #7— COURSE ACCESS 
The extent to which pupils have access to, and are enrolled in, a broad course of study, including 
programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated students (classified as EL, FRPM-
eligible, or foster youth; E.C. §42238.02) and students with exceptional needs.  
“Broad course of study” includes the following, as applicable: 



56 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 56 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Grades 1-6: English, mathematics, social sciences, science, visual and performing arts, health, physical 
education, and other as prescribed by the governing board. (E.C. §51210) 
Grades 7-12: English, social sciences, foreign language(s), physical education, science, mathematics, 
visual and performing arts, applied arts, and career technical education. (E.C. §51220(a)-(i)) 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 

OCEAA students, including all student subgroups, will have access to and enroll 
in our academic and educational program as outlined in the OCEAA’s Charter 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

All academic content areas will be available to all students, including student 
subgroups, at all grade levels 

STATE PRIORITY #8— PUPIL OUTCOMES- ACADEMIC EXCELLENCE DOMAIN: ENGLISH 
LANGUAGE ARTS 
From the subject areas described above in #7, as applicable. 

SUBPRIORITY A - ENGLISH 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 

All students, including all student subgroups, unduplicated students, and students 
with exceptional needs, will demonstrate grade level proficiency in English 
Language Arts/Literacy. 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Common Core aligned instructional guides and benchmarks, training in close 
reading strategies, integration and application of instructional technology, and 
goal setting based on data for all students. 

SUBPRIORITY B - MATHEMATICS 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 

All students, including all student subgroups, unduplicated students, and students 
with exceptional needs, will demonstrate grade level proficiency in Mathematics. 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Common Core aligned instructional guides and benchmarks, training in Go 
Math! materials and Cognitively Guided Instruction, integration and application 
of instructional technology, and goal setting based on data for all students. 

SUBPRIORITY C – SOCIAL SCIENCES 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 

All students, including all student subgroups, unduplicated students, and students 
with exceptional needs, will demonstrate grade level skills and content 
knowledge in the social sciences. 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Training in Common Core History/Social Science Literacy Standards, ELA/ELD 
framework, close reading strategies and Document Based Questions, and 
integration and application of instructional technology to enhance content 
knowledge 

SUBPRIORITY D – SCIENCE 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

All students, including all student subgroups, will demonstrate grade level skills 
and content knowledge in the sciences. 



57 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 57 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

SUBPRIORITY 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Training in Next Generation Science Standards, Common Core Science Literacy 
Standards, ELA/ELD framework, close reading strategies, and integration and 
application of instructional technology to enhance content knowledge 

SUBPRIORITY E – PHYSICAL EDUCATION 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 
All students, including all student subgroups, will demonstrate physical fitness. 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

The playground team will implement an “Active play” recess program TK-8, and 
develop a standards–based PE scope a sequence for TK-6 that scaffolds physical 
fitness and development. 

SUBPRIORITY F – FOREIGN LANGUAGES 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 

All students in the Two-Way Immersion Program, including all student 
subgroups, will demonstrate grade level skills and content in Spanish. 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Dual Immersion Committee and DI Coordinator will conduct training in Dual 
Language Guiding Principles and 90:10 model, DI Coordinator will provide 
ongoing support through co-planning, demonstration, observation and coaching 

SUBPRIORITY G – VISUAL AND PERFORMING ARTS 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 

All students, including all student subgroups, will demonstrate grade level skills 
and content knowledge in the arts. 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

OCEAA’s Arts Coordinator will: 1) coordinate professional development and 
instruction in the arts TK-8; 2) secure access to programs and resources (such as 
Artists–in-Residence) that support access to high quality art experiences, and 3) 
provide support to teachers through demonstrations, modeling, and co-planning  

SUBPRIORITY G – OTHER SUBJECTS – SOCIAL AND CIVIC RESPONSIBILITY 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE 

SUBPRIORITY 

All students will demonstrate social and civic responsibility based on the ORCA 
way: Organization, Respect, Careful, Accepting Responsibility 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

OCEAA staff will model, teach and recognize ORCA behaviors daily and over 
time to build a safe and caring community; PBIS committee will develop and 
publicize a citizenship rubric aligned to ORCA behaviors; Peer Conflict Mediator 
Coordinators will train a cadre of students to be conflict managers through the 
Peer Assistance Leadership program (PAL)  

SCHOOL PRIORITY #1— ACHIEVEMENT OF TWO WAY IMMERSION PROGRAM VISION TO CREATE 
BILITERATE, BILINGUAL AND BICULTURAL STUDENTS 



58 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 58 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

The extent to which pupils have opportunities to develop biliteracy, bilingualism and biculturalisn  

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE  
SCHOOL 

PRIORITY  

Transform school culture to increase Spanish as the preferred language of 
communication during non-instructional interactions, and infuse core units with 
wide exposure to Spanish and Latin American-themed content 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

OCEAA’s Dual Immersion Committee will: 1) study current use of English as 
default language and plan positive reinforcement to increase the use of Spanish; 
and 2) create a professional development plan to increase the integration of 
authentic Spanish/Latin American literature, history, arts and culture content into 
core units of instruction 

SCHOOL PRIORITY #2— STANDARDS BASED REPORT CARDS 

The extent to which the information shared in report cards provides students and parents with 
meaningful information about current levels of student achievement as defined by standards 

GOAL TO 
ACHIEVE SCHOOL 

PRIORITY  

OCEAA’s report cards and gradebook practices communicate student 
achievement in ways that are consistent, meaningful, accurate, and supportive of 
learning 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

The Instructional Leadership Team will develop a grading policy and make a 
plan to phase in adjustments to grading and evaluation practices to ensure report 
card grades communicate student achievement in ways that are consistent, 
meaningful, accurate, and supportive of learning; teachers will implement first 
round changes to grading and assessment practices 

 
Plan For Students Who Are Academically Low-Achieving 
 
Academically low achieving students 



59 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 59 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
 
PLAN FOR STUDENTS WHO ARE ACADEMICALLY LOW-ACHIEVING 
 
Academically low achieving students are identified using multiple data sources. Multiple 
measures include, but are not limited to, standardized test scores (STAR, APRENDA, and 
CELDT), in-house benchmark assessments in reading, writing, and math, and teacher created 
assessments. Specific benchmarks are established in each core academic area (see Exhibit C for 
Response to Intervention (RTI) Student Identification Criteria) in order to facilitate 
identification of students who need additional support. Other methods of identification include, 
but are not limited to, teacher referral, incomplete class work or homework, grades on report 
cards and progress reports, truancies, and lack of parental support in the home.   Students are 
further identified for non-academic factors such as social-emotional difficulties that cause them 
to perform below expected level. 
 
Over the next five years OCEAA will fully implements the RTI model (see Exhibit “G” for 
more information),, whichthat stresses the importance of prevention and early intervention. 
OCEAA has aggressively worked this year onfocuses on Tier I, powerful first-time instruction, 
to proactively prevent student failure. First, we have a focus on appropriate instructional 
scaffolding in a rigorous standards-based curriculum,  is implemented to support success for all 
students. In addition, teachers use both formal and informal assessments to differentiate 
instruction based on  students’ needs. OCEAA’s assessments plan, discussed in more detail in 
Element III, provide fors regular monitoring of students’ mastery of grade level standards. These 
results are shared with students and parents twice annually during student-led 
conferencesin September at our Goal Setting Conferences (see Exhibit D for an example of 
what is shared with parents).    An additional  conferences may takes place at the end of the 
first trimester to document progress and set additional goalsfor goal setting to close the 
achievement gap. Another important factor to support prevention of academic gaps is 
parental support and education. OCEAA offers parent support and education through regular 
communication and family education sessions. These sessions include, but are not limited to, 
topics such as how to understand state assessment data, math and literacy education, culturally 
relevant topics identified by parents, supporting test preparation strategies, and the importance 
of attendance. Parents have access to students’ grades, assignments,  attendance  records  and  
academic  support  resources  through  OCEAA’s  online portal (PowerSchool) which helps 
facilitate continuous communication between the home and school. 
	  
Early intervention is key to preventing and closing the achievement gap once students begin 
to struggle. Currently, Sstudents’ reading progress is monitored on a weekly basis. Some of our 
early interventions in kinder and first grade include weekly progress monitoring of phonemic 
awareness, phonics, decoding, and comprehension (DIBELS). Other interventions used in 
kinder through eighth grade include, but are not limited to, auditory, visual, kinesthetic and 
tactile instructional strategies, tutoring before and after school, highly extensive professional 
development for staff on effective instructional practices, and intervention groups during 
OCEAA day. Tier II school-wide interventions include: computer programs that incorporate 
visual and spatial processes that enable students to master mathematical concepts (i.e. MIND 
Research Institute), increased intervention opportunities after school to target identified students 



60 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 60 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

in reading and math, continued coaching to increase the effectiveness of first round 
instruction and rigor, continued parent education and involvement, and increased access to 
community resources.  OCEAA is in the process of identifying has a list of additional Tier I, 
II, and III level interventions (see Exhibit C) and will continue to refine the list over the next 
five years. This year we formed an here is also an RTI committee and they willthat facilitates  



61 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 61 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

engage in professional development to aide the school in preventing students from falling behind. 
We have already seen a decrease in the number of students in the RTI process this year 
because of the Tier I interventions implemented and use of data. We also look forward to 
continuing toOngoing collaboratione with the SAUSD Special Education staff will to further 
develop effective interventions and practices.. 
	  
Next year our focus will be on Tier II school-wide interventions which include: computer 
programs that incorporate visual and spatial processes that enable students to master 
mathematical concepts (i.e. MIND Research Institute), increased intervention opportunities after 
school to target identified students in reading and math, continued coaching to increase the 
effectiveness of first round instruction and rigor, continued parent education and 
involvement, and increased access to community resources. 
	  
Students with identified special needs take advantage of resource classes for assistance with test 
taking and difficult class assignments, and learning strategies. These students also are given an 
appropriate testing environment and time to maximize their potential for success. 
	  
OCEAA’s goal is to promote success for all students and this effort is validated by we have 
noticed an increase in the number of families interested in OCEAA.  These are families who 
have attended our informational tours with and have students who are not succeeding in 
traditional school settingss. They seek a smaller school community, which OCEAA is able to 
offer. 
	  
Students are not excluded for academic underperformance. 
 
Plan For Students Who Are Academically High-Achieving 
	  
	  
PLAN FOR STUDENTS WHO ARE ACADEMICALLY HIGH-ACHIEVING 
	  
OCEAA OCEAA meets the needs of students who are academically high achieving in a variety 
of ways. Teachers plan differentiated lessons to challenge students. Critical thinking skills are 
embedded in daily art and technology lessons to encourage students to go beyond basic 
understandings. In addition, students participating in the Two-Way Immersion Program are 
challenged on a daily basis by learning in two languages. This creates a GATE-like learning 
environment, although no official GATE program is offered. The staff is currently engaged in 
developing units around essentialhas also developed questions that culminate in multi-
dimensional projects and performance tasks  which will further challenge high achievers. 
 
Plan For English Learners 
	  
PLAN FOR ENGLISH LEARNERS 
	  
OOCEAA meets all applicable legal requirements for English Learners (EL) relative to 
annual notification to parents, student identification, placement, program options, English 



62 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 62 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Language Development (ELD) and core content instruction, teacher qualifications and 
training, reclassification to Fluent English Proficient (FEP) status, monitoring and evaluation of 
program effectiveness, and standardized testing requirement.    OCEAA implements  policies  
to   ensure  proper  placement,  evaluation,  and  communication regarding ELs and the rights 
of parents and pupils. 
 



63 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 63 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

	  
Home  
Home Language Survey 
	  
The Home Language Survey (HLS) is administered upon a student’s initial enrollment into a 
California public school.   If OCEAA is not a student’s first California public school, then 
OCEAA will attempt to retrieve a copy of the student’s HLS from the prior school(s) of 
attendance.  Nonetheless, all students are asked of their primary language with the OCEAA 
enrollment paperwork to ensure an HLS is completed. All students who indicate that their home 
language is other than English are CELDT tested within thirty  
days of initial enrollment11.. 
	  
Annual Assessments 
	  
OCEAA follows all CELDT testing timelines to ensure students receive proper instruction.  
OCEAA notifies all parents of its responsibility for CELDT testing and of CELDT results 
within thirty days of receiving results from publisher.  OCEAA complies with the applicable 
requirements of the No Child Left Behind Act with regards to EL pupils. In addition, 
informal assessments are performed on a regular basis. 
	  
In addition, all students will be assessed in their primary language upon entering OCEAA to 
identify students’ level of proficiency in their native language. students in the two-way 
bilingual immersion program receive a primary language assessment to identify students’ level 
of proficiency in their native language. The progress is monitored yearly to ensure adequate 
growth in the primary language as well. Research supports that the stronger a child’s primary 
language is, the stronger the second language will be. In the 2010/11 school year, all students 
will be assessed in their primary language upon entering OCEAA and progress will be 
monitored in two-year intervals. 
	  
English Learners and Core Instruction 
	  
ELs have daily access to the core curriculum and are taught according to the program, which 
parents choose: 
	  

• • English Mainstream/Structured English Immersion (only as applicable according to 
the phase out plan mentioned above) 

• • Two-way Immersion (Federally recognized best practice) 
	  
Instruction techniques, assessments, materials and approaches are focused on communicative 
competence and academic achievement covering listening, speaking, reading, and writing 
skills (aligned with California ELD and Content Standards) in all areas  of  the  curriculum.    
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
1	  The thirty-day requirement applies to students who are entering a California public school for the first time or 
for students who have not yet been CELDT tested.  All other students who have indicated a home language other 
than English will continue with annual CELDT testing based upon the date last tested at the prior school of 
enrollment.	  



64 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 64 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

EL  students  receive  ELD  and  core  content  instruction appropriate for  their English 
proficiency and  grade levels. All  teachers are CLAD/BCLAD certified and NCLB compliant 
and use SDAIE and GLAD instructional strategies. 
 
In addition, strategies. 
	  
	  
1 The thirty-day  requirement  applies to students who are entering a California  public school for the first time or 
for students who have not yet been CELDT tested.  All other students who have indicated a home language other 
than English will continue with annual CELDT testing based upon the date last tested at the prior school of 
enrollment. 
	  
	  
In addition, the instructional program for OCEAA is designed to promote language acquisition 
and proficiency, oral language development, and enriched learning opportunities for all ELs in 
the following ways: 
	  

• • Students interact through cooperative learning activities 
• • Students make oral presentations in all content areas 
• • Students collaborate for group performance and reports 
• • Students are provided cultural learning opportunities in technology and the arts 
• • Students are provided academic tutoring 

 
 
 
Teacher Qualifications and Training 
 
Core classes are taught by highly qualified teachers who hold a CLAD and/or BCLAD and 
meet the requirements of No Child Left Behind regulations and the California State Board of 
Education. Students are supported by bilingual assistants, part-time specialists, or trained 
volunteers per program designs.   Teachers of ELs are trained and use appropriate differentiated 
instruction to reach all levels of English proficiency and in the case of two-way immersion, 
primary language proficiency. Additional on-site training in GLAD strategies, Thinking Maps, 
California Reading and Literature Project RESULTS for English Learners, SDAIE and Write 
from the Beginning have enhanced our literacy instruction for ELs. 
	  
Professional development during the 2009/10 school-year has specifically focusesd on meeting 
the needs of ELs. Research indicates that many students easily reach the intermediate level of 
second language acquisition and struggle to move on to advanced levels. OCEAA’s data 
mirrors these results and our professional development plan (Exhibit B) will provide teachers 
with the necessary instructional strategies and assessment tools to address that gap and move 
students to higher levels of proficiency in English. 
	  
Reclassification to Fluent English Proficient (FEP) Status 
	  
OCEAA has developed criteria (see Exhibit E) to determine fluent English proficiency for 
ELs consistent with legal requirements regarding standardized testing and other required  



65 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 65 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

assessments.      In  addition,  OCEAA  monitors  to  ensure  on-going  academic  success  for 
reclassified students for at least three years from their reclassification date. Reclassification 
procedures utilize multiple criteria in determining whether to classify a pupil as proficient in 
English including but not limited to all of the following: 
 

• • Proficient or advanced score in overall language proficiency using an 
objective assessment instrument including, but not limited to, the California English 
Language Development Test (CELDT), 
 

 Participation, 



66 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 66 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

• • Participation of the pupil’s classroom teacher and any other certificated staff 
with direct responsibility for teaching or placement decisions of the pupil to evaluate 
the pupil’s curriculum mastery, 

 
• • Parental opinion and consultation, achieved through notice to parents or guardians 

of the language reclassification and placement including a description of the 
reclassification process and the parent’s opportunity to participate, and encouragement of 
the participation of parents or guardians in OCEAA’s reclassification procedure, 

 
• • Comparison of the pupil’s performance in basic skills against an empirically 

established range of performance and basic skills based upon the performance of English 
proficient pupils of the same age that demonstrate to others that the pupil is sufficiently 
proficient in English to participate effectively in a curriculum designed for pupils of the 
same age whose native language is English. 

 
Monitoring and Evaluation of Program Effectiveness 
 
An area of growth we identified for the 2009/10 school-year is the progress of our ELs. Our 
standardized test score data clearly indicate that changes need to be made to ensure that all 
second language learners meet expected growth benchmarks. In evaluating the program 
effectiveness for ELs, OCEAA will continue to use the following methods: 
	  

• • Adherence to OCEAA’s academic benchmarks by language proficiency level and 
years in program to determine adequate yearly progress 

 • Monitoring of teacher qualifications and the use of appropriate instructional  
• strategies based on program design 
• • Monitoring of student identification and placement 
• • Monitoring of parental program choice options 
• • Monitoring of availability of adequate resources 
• • Increased professional development focused specifically on effective second 

language acquisition strategies 
	  
In addition to the aforementioned methods, in the 2008/09 school year OCEAA piloted a 
student data management system to allow for immediate access to students’ language status 
as well as the ability to monitor academic progress by language status. In the 
2009/10 school year, OCEAA has proceeded with theimplemented a school-wide implementation 
of this data management system (Data Director). This system allows teachers and 
administrators to monitor the individual progress of our ELs and make adjustments to the 
instructional program based on the data. Data is analyzed on a regular basis through release days 
for teachers in conjunction with our assessment plan. Teachers share this data with the students, 
parents and Board. 
	  
A key factor in student progress is parent involvement and understanding of how to work 
collaboratively with OCEAA to support the child’s educational goals. OCEAA has held and 
continues to offer regular parent education seminars to empower parents with the tools 



67 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 67 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

tools necessary to understand data, second language acquisition, and practical strategies to 
apply at home. 
	  
In the 2009/10 school year OCEAA will form itsOCEAA has formed an English Learner 
Advisor Committee (ELAC) to disseminate information pertinent to parents of ELs, to empower 
parents to take on advocacy roles in OCEAA and collaborate with other parents, teachers, 
support staff and the administration to ensure success for our ELs. 
	  
This year, OCEAA exceeded the state’s Annual Measurable Achievement Objectives 
(AMAO). 
	  

Table 2.5 
2009/10 Target Percentage Achieved Met 

AMAO 1 53.1 55.6 YES 
AMAO 2 32.2 38.6 YES 

	  
Adequate Basic Resources 
	  
OCEAA provides adequate personnel, textbooks, materials, and instructional supplies for the full 
implementation of all program options. 
 
Plan For Special Education 
 
Overview 
	  

PLAN FOR SPECIAL EDUCATION 
	  

Overview 
	  
OCEAA adheres to all laws affecting individuals with exceptional needs, including all 
provisions of the Individuals with Disabilities in Education Improvement Act (IDEIA), its  
amendments,  Section  504  of  the  Rehabilitation  Act  and  the  Americans  with 
Disabilities Act (ADA).    All students are given equal access to OCEAA, regardless of 
disabilities, and OCEAA does not discriminate against any student based on his or her 
disabilities.  OCEAA does not require the modification of an individualized educational 
program (IEP) or 504 plan as a condition of acceptance at the Charter School. 
	  
OCEAA recognizes the importance of providing education opportunities to all students 
regardless of physical challenges or special needs. To that end, OCEAA attempts to work in 
cooperation with the District and all other applicable LEAs, to ensure that the students enrolled 
in OCEAA are served in accordance with applicable federal and state law.  The OCEAA 
Specialists, which includes the Mild-Moderate Teachers, Speech Pathologist, Psychologist and 
Counselor, meet weekly to discuss and monitor the progress of our students with IEPs. Thehis 
year, the Mild-Moderate Teachers progress monitor using DIBELS and share this information 
with both parents and general education teachers in order to better track student growth. We 



68 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 68 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

recently created a survey for parents with students in our special education program to seek 
feedback on how we can increase satisfaction with the services we provide (see Exhibit F for 
survey results). Based on their feedback,  we  have  modified  how  Pprogress  specific to IEP 
goals is  shared  with  families  during  reporting periods  so  it  is  more  specific  to  IEP  goals.  
OCEAA’s  special  education  staff   also regularly also 



69 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 69 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

regularly attends the district’s special education parent meetings and brings  this information 
back on site to share with other parents who could not attend. We are also planning to hold 
special education parent meetings on site at OCEAA in order to increase communication and 
collaboration. We will annually survey the parents to monitor the effectiveness of the services 
we provide. 
 
IDEIA 
	  
IDEIA 
	  
Currently, OCEAA has been deemed to be a public school of the District for purposes of special 
education pursuant to Education Code Section 47641(b) and reserves the right to become its 
own LEA for the purpose of providing special education services to our students in the future.  
A child with disabilities attending the School receives special education instruction and 
designated instruction and services, provided by District personnel either in-house or by 
contract with a qualified third-party in accordance with the IEP in the same manner as a child 
with disabilities who attends another public school within the District. 
 
Section 504/ADA 
	  
Section 504/ADA 
	  
OCEAA is solely responsible for its compliance with Section 504 and the ADA.     All 
facilities of OCEAA are accessible for all students with disabilities in accordance with the 
ADA. 
	  
Further, OCEAA has adopted and implements a policy which outlines the requirements for 
identifying and serving students with a 504 accommodation plan (OCEAA’s 504 policy is 
attached as Exhibit “H”H).   OCEAA recognizes its legal responsibility to ensure that no 
qualified person with a disability shall, on the basis of disability, be excluded from 
participation, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any 
program of the School.   Any student, who has an objectively identified disability, which 
substantially limits a major life activity such as learning, is eligible for accommodation by 
OCEAA and is accommodated. 
	  
We have many families who attend our Informational Tours and with their IEPs in hand. This 
has increased the numbers of families in our special education program. We see this as a positive 
sign that parents find OCEAA’s smaller school setting an optimal learning environment for 
students who might not succeed in traditional school settings. 
 
Special Education Services 
	  
SPECIAL EDUCATION SERVICES/504 
	  
The following provisions govern the application of special education to Charter School students: 



70 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 70 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
 

A. It is understood that all children will have access to the Charter School and no student 
shall be denied admission based solely on disability status. 
 

B. Pursuant to Education Code Section 47641, the Charter School has elected to be deemed a 
public school of the District for special education purposes. Nothing in this petition shall 
be construed to waive the Charter School’s rights under Education Code Section 47641, 
including its right to provide assurances that the Charter School will participate as a local 
educational agency in an alternative special education plan. 

 
C. In accordance with Education Code Section 47646, a Charter School that is deemed to be 

a public school of the local educational agency that granted the charter shall participate in 
state and federal funding in the same manner as any other public school of the granting 
agency. Further, a child with disabilities attending the Charter School shall receive 
special education instruction or designated instruction and services, or both, in the same 
manner as a child with disabilities who attends another public school of that district. The 
agency that granted the charter shall ensure that all children with disabilities enrolled in 
the Charter School receive special education and designated instruction and services in a 
manner that is consistent with their individualized education program and in compliance 
with the IDEA. 

 
D. Absent agreement of the parties to the contrary, the Charter School shall be solely 

responsible, at its own expense, for compliance with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation 
Act (“Section 504”) and the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) with respect to 
eligible students.  Should the Charter School be unable to provide the services necessary 
to comply with the requirements of Section 504, the Charter School may request that the 
District provide the necessary services at a cost to be negotiated between the District and 
the Charter School separate from the terms of this MOU and/or the Charter School may 
contract with outside service providers at the Charter School’s sole expense. 

  
E. Services 

  
a. The Charter School and the District intend that the Charter School will be treated 

by the District as any other public school in the District with respect to the 
provision of special education services, including the allocation of duties between 
Charter School staff and resources and District staff and resources. 
  

b. Division and Coordination of Responsibilities 
  

District and the Charter School agree to allocate responsibility for the provision 
of services [including but not limited to identification, evaluation, Individualized 
Education Plan (“IEP”) development and modification, and educational services] 
in a manner consistent with their allocation between the District and its local 
public school sites.  All special education services to be provided to Charter 
School students beyond the services to be performed by general education 



71 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 71 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

personnel and/or the type provided by general school site administrators at 
District schools, will be performed by employees, consultants, or other 
representatives of the District.  The District, in consultation with the Charter 
School, shall be responsible for hiring and directing the individuals or entities to 
provide  such  special  education  services  to  Charter School students.   The 
Charter School shall be involved with the selection of staff who serve Charter 
School students to ensure that services are delivered in a manner which is 
consistent with the charter.  If a problem arises with any of the District 
personnel providing services on the Charter School site, the Charter School and 
District shall meet within five (5) days to address the concern and re-assign 
personnel when the District deems appropriate.   If the District takes or refuses 
to take personnel action with regard to its special education providers on the 
Charter School’s site, over the objection of the Charter School, the District shall 
take full responsibility for any actions, causes of action, suits, losses, expenses, 
costs, penalties, obligations, errors, omissions, or liabilities, including legal costs, 
attorney’s fees, and expert witness fees, whether or not suit is actually filed, 
and/or any judgment rendered that results from its actions or inactions related to 
the placement of District personnel on the Charter School’s campus. 

	  
The District and the Charter School shall meet no later than April 15 of each 
year to ensure a mutual understanding of the allocation of duties between the 
Charter School and the District for the following year. 

  
c. Identification and Referral 

  
The Charter School shall have the same responsibility as any other public school 
in the District to work cooperatively with the District in identifying and referring 
students who have or may have exceptional needs that qualify them to receive 
special education services.    The Charter School will develop, maintain, and 
implement policies and procedures to ensure identification and referral of students 
who have, or may have, such exceptional needs.  These policies and procedures 
will be in accordance with California law and District policy.   The Charter 
School is solely responsible for obtaining the cumulative files, prior and/or 
current Individualized Education Plan (“IEP”) and other special education 
information on any student enrolling from a non-District school. A pupil shall be 
referred for special education instruction and services only after the resources of 
the regular education program have been considered and utilized, where 
appropriate. 
  
The District shall provide the Charter School with the technical and consultative 
services that it generally provides its other public schools in the identification and 
referral processes.   The District will ensure that the Charter School is provided 
with notification and relevant files of all students transferring to the Charter 
School from a District school, who have an existing IEP, in the same manner that 
it ensures the forwarding of such information between District schools.  All 
records and files will be released with the signed permission of the 



72 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 72 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

parent/guardian. 
  

d. Assessment 
  
 The District shall make the determination as to what assessments are 
necessary, including assessments for all referred students, annual assessments and 
tri-annual assessments, in accordance with the District’s general practice and 
procedure and applicable law. The Charter School shall not conduct assessments 
or recommend independent assessments without prior written approval of the 
District. 

  
e. Individualized Education Plan 

  
 Responsibility for arranging necessary IEP meetings shall be conducted in 
accordance with the District’s general practice and procedure and applicable law. 
The Charter School shall ensure the attendance of all necessary Charter School 
employees at the IEP meetings in addition to representatives who are 
knowledgeable about the regular education program at the Charter School. 
  

f. Eligibility and Placement 
  

 Decisions regarding eligibility, goals/objectives, program, placement and 
exit from special education shall be the decision of the IEP team.  Team 
membership shall be in compliance with state and federal law and shall include all 
required representatives of the Charter School (or designees when necessary) and 
representatives of the District (or designees when necessary).   Services and 
placements shall be provided to all eligible Charter School students in accordance 
with the policies, procedures and requirements of the District and of the Local 
Plan for Special Education. 
  

g. Educational Services and Programs 
  

 To the extent that the agreed upon IEP requires special education or 
related services, the District shall provide and/or arrange for such services in the 
same manner that it would be legally obligated to provide to the students at its 
other District schools.  District services shall include technical and consultative 
services by District staff to Charter School staff in the same manner that District 
staff consults with staff at other District schools. 
  

h. Parent Concerns 
  

 The Charter School shall inform parents/guardians of their rights to raise 
concerns regarding special education needs or services to the Charter School 
and/or District staff.  The Charter School staff shall inform the designated 
representative of the District of any such concerns.  The District, in consultation 
with the Charter School’s staff as necessary, shall respond to and address the 



73 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 73 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

parent/guardian concerns. 
  

i. Complaints 
  

 In consultation with the Charter School, the District shall address/respond 
to/investigate all complaints regarding special education services at the Charter 
School.  The Charter School’s Uniform Complaint Procedure shall designate the 
District’s Uniform Complaint Procedure officer as the designated official for 
complaints regarding special education services. 
  

j. Due Process Hearing 
  

In consultation with the Charter School, the District may initiate a due process 
hearing on behalf of a student enrolled in the Charter School as the District 
determines is legally necessary to meet a school agency’s responsibilities under 
federal and state law.  The District, with the cooperation of the Charter School 
shall defend any due process hearing brought by a student enrolled in the Charter 
School.  In the event that the District determines that legal representation is 
needed, the District/Charter School shall be jointly represented by District legal 
counsel.  If the Charter School or the District determines that there is a conflict of 
interest in joint representation, the Charter School may retain separate legal 
counsel, at its own cost, the cost of which will be considered an offset to the 
Charter School’s payment of a share of district-wide encroachment as discussed 
below. 
 
The District agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Charter School 
and its Board, Board members, officers, administrators, employees, agents, 
representatives, volunteers, successors, and assigns (collectively hereinafter 
“Charter School and Charter School personnel”) against any and all actions, 
causes of action, suits, losses, expenses, costs, penalties, obligations, errors, 
omissions, or liabilities, including legal costs, attorney’s fees, and expert witness 
fees, whether or not suit is actually filed, and/or any judgment rendered against 
Charter School (including but not limited to due process complaints and/or 
compliance complaints with the California Department of Education and the 
Office of Civil Rights) and/or Charter School Personnel that may be asserted or 
claimed by any person, firm, or entity which may in any way arise out of or in 
connection with performance under the MOU by the District, its board of 
directors, administrators, employees, agents, representatives, volunteers, 
subcontractors, invitees, successors, and/or assigns 
  

k. SELPA Activities and Meetings 
  

 The District Superintendent or designee shall represent the Charter School 
at all SELPA meetings as it represents the needs of all schools in the District. 
Reports to the Charter School regarding SELPA decisions, policies, etc. shall be 
communicated to the Charter School as they are to all other schools within the 



74 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 74 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

District. To the extent that the District and/or SELPA provide training 
opportunities and/or information regarding special education to site staff, such 
opportunities/information shall be made available to Charter School staff.  To the 
extent that District site staff have the opportunity to participate in committee 
meetings of the SELPA as representatives of their district, such opportunities shall 
be made available to Charter School staff. 
  

l. School District of Residence 
  

 The District shall be responsible for providing all special education 
services to all students of the Charter School regardless of their school district of 
residence. 
  

m. SELPA Requirements 
  

 The Charter School agrees to adhere to the policies and requirements of 
the Local Plan for Special Education and to all District policies, procedures, and 
practices regarding identification, referral, and provision of services to special 
education students provided they do not conflict with OCEAA’s mission/vision 
and policies and procedures and OCEAA School-Family Handbook, and are not 
unduly burdensome to the Charter School, as determined by the Charter School. 
  

n. Contracted Services 
  

If needed due to a shortage in special education staff, it is the responsibility of the 
District to seek out contracts with other school districts, companies, or 
organizations to serve Charter School students.  The Charter School may assist 
the District in procuring such services. 
  

F. Funding 
  

a. Retention of Special Education Funds by District 
  
 The parties agree that, pursuant to the division of responsibilities set forth 
in this MOU, the Charter School has elected the status of any other public school 
in the District for the purposes of special education services and funding.  The 
District has agreed to provide special education services for the Charter School, 
consistent with the services it provides at its public schools.  Consistent with this 
division of responsibility, the District shall retain all state and federal special 
education funding allocated for Charter School students through the SELPA. 
  

b. School Contribution of Equitable Share of Charter School Funding 
  
Additionally, the Charter School shall contribute a pro-rata share of its Charter 
School funding to support the District’s unfunded special education costs 
(“general fund support”). 



75 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 75 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
At the end of each fiscal year, the District shall calculate the Charter School’s 
pro-rata share of the District-wide general fund support for that year as calculated 
by the total unfunded special education costs of the District (including those costs 
attributable to the Charter School) divided by the total number of District ADA 
(including Charter School students) and multiplied by the total number of Charter 
School ADA (ADA calculation from P2). Charter School ADA shall include all 
students, regardless of home district. 
 
The District shall calculate the amount of the Charter School’s share of the 
general fund support at the P2 reporting date.  The District shall provide the 
Charter School with documentation as to the calculation of the Charter School’s 
share of general fund support and allow the Charter School an opportunity to 
provide input and respond to the calculation prior to invoicing the Charter School 
for the prior year.  The District shall then invoice the Charter School for its share 
of the general fund support. 
  
Payment shall be due and payable within 30 days of invoice. If not fully paid, the 
remaining amount of the Charter School’s share of the general fund support shall 
be offset against the District’s next succeeding in-lieu property tax 
apportionments until paid in full. 
 
The District shall provide an estimate of the Charter School’s share of the general 
fund support for the following year by June 30 of each year for budgeting 
purposes. 
  

c. The District shall be responsible for all costs related to the special education 
service needs of Charter School students in the same manner, as it is responsible 
for the cost of serving any other students of the District in accordance with 
Education Code Section 47646. 

  
d. In the event of a dispute regarding the special education provisions described 

above, the dispute resolution provisions agreed upon in the charter shall be 
utilized to resolve the dispute. 

  
A.  It is understood that all children will have access to the Charter School and no 

student shall be denied admission based solely on disability status. 



76 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 76 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

B.  Pursuant to Education Code Section 47641, the Charter School has elected to be 
deemed a public school of the District for special education purposes. Nothing in this 
petition shall be construed to waive the Charter School’s rights under Education Code 
Section 47641, including its right to provide assurances that the Charter School will 
participate as a local educational agency in an alternative special education plan. 

 
C.  In accordance with Education Code Section 47646, a Charter School that is deemed to 

be a public school of the local educational agency that granted the charter shall 
participate in state and federal funding in the same manner as any other public school 
of the granting agency. Further, a child with disabilities attending the Charter School 
shall receive special education instruction or designated instruction and services, or 
both, in the same manner as a child with disabilities who attends another public school 
of that district. The agency that granted the charter shall ensure that all children with 
disabilities enrolled in the Charter School receive special education and designated 
instruction and services in a manner that is consistent with their individualized 
education program and in compliance with the IDEA. 

 
D.  Section 504 and the ADA 

 
Absent agreement of the parties to the contrary, the Charter School shall be 
solely responsible, at its own expense, for compliance with Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act (“Section 504”) and the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(“ADA”) with respect to eligible students.  Should the Charter School be unable 
to provide the services necessary to comply with the requirements of Section 
504, the Charter School may request that the District provide the necessary 
services at a cost to be negotiated between the District and the Charter School 
separate from the terms of this MOU and/or the Charter School may contract 
with outside service providers at the Charter School’s sole expense. 

 
E.  Services 

 
1.   The Charter School and the District intend that the Charter School will be treated by the 

District as any other public school in the District with respect to the provision of special 
education services, including the allocation of duties between Charter School staff and 
resources and District staff and resources. 

 
2.   Division and Coordination of Responsibility: 

 
The District and the Charter School agree to allocate responsibility for 
the provision of services [including but not limited to identification, 
evaluation, Individualized Education Plan (“IEP”) development and 
modification, and educational services] in a manner consistent with their 
allocation between the District and its local public school sites.   All 
special education services to  be 



77 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 77 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

provided to Charter School students beyond the services to be performed 
by general education personnel and/or the type provided by general 
school site administrators at District schools, will be performed by 
employees, consultants, or other representatives of the District.  The 
District, in consultation with the Charter School, shall be responsible for 
hiring and directing the individuals or entities  to  provide  such  special  
education  services  to  Charter School students.   The Charter School 
shall be involved with the selection of staff who serve Charter School 
students to ensure that services are delivered in a manner which is 
consistent with the charter.  If a problem arises with any of the District 
personnel providing services on the Charter School site, the Charter 
School and District shall meet within five (5) days to address the 
concern and re-assign personnel when the District deems appropriate.   
If the District takes or refuses to take personnel action with regard to its 
special education providers on the Charter School’s site, over the 
objection of the Charter School, the District shall take full responsibility 
for any actions, causes of action, suits, losses, expenses, costs, penalties, 
obligations, errors, omissions, or liabilities, including legal costs, 
attorney’s fees, and expert witness fees, whether or not suit is actually 
filed, and/or any judgment rendered that results from its actions or 
inactions related to the placement of District personnel on the Charter 
School’s campus. 
 
The District and the Charter School shall meet no later than April 
15 of each year to ensure a mutual understanding of the allocation of 
duties between the Charter School and the District for the following 
year. 

 
3. Identification and Referral: 

 
The Charter School shall have the same responsibility as any other 
public school in the District to work cooperatively with the District in 
identifying and referring students who have or may have exceptional 
needs that qualify them to receive special education services.    The 
Charter School will develop, maintain, and implement policies and 
procedures to ensure identification and referral  of  students  who  have,  
or  may  have,  such  exceptional needs.  These policies and procedures 
will be in accordance with California law and District policy.   The 
Charter School is solely responsible for obtaining the cumulative files, 
prior and/or current Individualized Education Plan (“IEP”) and other 
special education information on any student enrolling from a non-
District school. A pupil  shall  be  referred  for  special  education  
instruction  and services only after the resources of the regular education 
program have been considered and utilized, where appropriate. 



78 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 78 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

The District shall provide the Charter School with the technical and 
consultative services that it generally provides its other public schools in 
the identification and referral processes.   The District will ensure that 
the Charter School is provided with notification and relevant files of 
all students transferring to the Charter School from a District school, 
who have an existing IEP, in the same manner that it ensures the 
forwarding of such information between District schools.  All records 
and files will be released with the signed permission of the 
parent/guardian. 

 
4. Assessment: 

 
The District shall make the determination as to what assessments are 
necessary, including assessments for all referred students, annual 
assessments and tri-annual assessments, in accordance with the 
District’s general practice and procedure and applicable law. The 
Charter School shall not conduct assessments or recommend 
independent assessments without prior written approval of the District. 

 
5. Individualized Education Plan: 

 
Responsibility for arranging necessary IEP meetings shall be conducted 
in accordance with the District’s general practice and procedure and 
applicable law. The Charter School shall ensure the attendance of all 
necessary Charter School employees at the IEP meetings in addition to 
representatives who are knowledgeable about the regular education 
program at the Charter School. 

 
6. Eligibility and Placement: 

 
Decisions regarding eligibility, goals/objectives, program, placement and 
exit from special education shall be the decision of the IEP team.  Team 
membership shall be in compliance with state and federal law and shall 
include all required representatives of the Charter School (or designees 
when necessary) and representatives of the District (or designees when 
necessary).   Services and placements shall be provided to all eligible 
Charter School students in accordance with the policies, procedures and 
requirements of the District and of the Local Plan for Special Education. 

 
7. Educational Services and Programs: 

 
To the extent that the agreed upon IEP requires special education or 
related services, the District shall provide and/or arrange for such 
services in the same manner that it would be legally obligated to provide 
to the students at its other District schools.  District services  shall  
include  technical  and  consultative  services  by 



79 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 79 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

District  staff  to  Charter  School  staff  in  the  same  manner  that 
District staff consults with staff at other District schools. 

 
 
 
 

8. Parent Concerns: 
 

The Charter School shall inform parents/guardians of their rights to raise 
concerns regarding special education needs or services to the Charter 
School and/or District staff.  The Charter School staff shall inform the 
designated representative of the District of any such concerns.  The 
District, in consultation with the Charter School’s staff as necessary, 
shall respond to and address the parent/guardian concerns. 

 
9. Complaints: 

 
In consultation with the Charter School, the District shall 
address/respond to/investigate all complaints regarding special education 
services at the Charter School.  The Charter School’s Uniform 
Complaint Procedure shall designate the District’s Uniform Complaint 
Procedure officer as the designated official for complaints regarding 
special education services. 

 
10. Due Process Hearings: 

 
In consultation with the Charter School, the District may initiate a due 
process hearing on behalf of a student enrolled in the Charter School as 
the District determines is legally necessary to meet a school agency’s 
responsibilities under federal and state law.  The District, with the 
cooperation of the Charter School shall defend any  due  process  
hearing  brought  by  a  student  enrolled  in  the Charter School.  In the 
event that the District determines that legal representation  is  needed,  
the  District/Charter  School  shall  be jointly represented by District 
legal counsel.  If the Charter School or the District determines that there 
is a conflict of interest in joint representation, the Charter School may 
retain separate legal counsel, at its own cost, the cost of which will be 
considered an offset to the Charter School’s payment of a share of 
district-wide encroachment as discussed below. 

 
The District agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Charter 
School and its Board, Board members, officers, administrators, 
employees, agents, representatives, volunteers, successors, and assigns 
(collectively hereinafter “Charter School and Charter School personnel”) 
against any and all actions, causes of action, suits, losses, expenses, 
costs,   penalties, obligations, errors, omissions, or liabilities, including 



80 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 80 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

legal costs, attorney’s 



81 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 81 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

fees, and expert witness fees, whether or not suit is actually filed, and/or 
any judgment rendered against Charter School (including but not 
limited to due process complaints and/or compliance complaints with 
the California Department of Education and the Office of Civil 
Rights) and/or Charter School Personnel that may be asserted or 
claimed by any person, firm, or entity which may in any way arise out 
of or in connection with performance under the MOU by the District, its 
board of directors, administrators, employees, agents, representatives, 
volunteers, subcontractors, invitees, successors, and/or assigns 

 
11. SELPA Activities and Meetings: 

 
The District Superintendent or designee shall represent the Charter 
School at all SELPA meetings as it represents the needs of all schools in 
the District. Reports to the Charter School regarding SELPA decisions, 
policies, etc. shall be communicated to the Charter School as they are to 
all other schools within the District. To the extent that the District and/or 
SELPA provide training opportunities and/or information regarding 
special education to site staff, such opportunities/information shall be 
made available to Charter School staff.  To the extent that District site 
staff have the opportunity to participate in committee meetings of the 
SELPA as representatives of their district, such opportunities shall be 
made available to Charter School staff. 

 
12. School District of Residence: 

 
The District shall be responsible for providing all special education 
services to all students of the Charter School regardless of their school 
district of residence. 

 
13. SELPA Requirements: 

 
The Charter School agrees to adhere to the policies and requirements of 
the Local Plan for Special Education and to all District policies, 
procedures, and practices regarding identification, referral, and provision 
of services to special education students provided they do not conflict 
with OCEAA’s mission/vision and policies and procedures and 
OCEAA School-Family Handbook, and are not unduly burdensome to 
the Charter School, as determined by the Charter School. 

 
14. Contracted Services: 

 
If needed due to a shortage in special education staff, it is the 
responsibility of the District to seek out contracts with other school 



82 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 82 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

districts, companies, or organizations to serve Charter School students.  
The Charter School may assist the District in procuring such services. 

 
 
 
 
 

Funding 
 

1. Retention of Special Education Funds by District: 
 

The parties agree that, pursuant to the division of responsibilities set 
forth in this MOU, the Charter School has elected the status of any other 
public school in the District for the purposes of special education 
services and funding.  The District has agreed to provide special 
education services for the Charter School, consistent with the services it 
provides at its public schools.  Consistent with this division of 
responsibility, the District shall retain all state and federal special 
education funding allocated for Charter School students through the 
SELPA. 

 
2. School Contribution of Equitable Share of Charter School 

 
Funding: 

 
 
 

Additionally, the Charter School shall contribute a pro-rata share of its 
Charter School funding to support the District’s unfunded special 
education costs (“general fund support”). 

 
At  the  end  of  each fiscal year, the  District shall calculate the 
Charter School’s pro-rata share of the District-wide general fund 
support for that year as calculated by the total unfunded special 
education costs of the District (including those costs attributable to the 
Charter School) divided by the total number of District ADA (including 
Charter School students) and multiplied by the total number of Charter 
School ADA (ADA calculation from P2). Charter School ADA shall 
include all students, regardless of home district. 

 
The District shall calculate the amount of the Charter School’s share 
of the general fund support at the P2 reporting date.  The District shall 
provide the Charter School with documentation as to the  calculation  of  
the  Charter  School’s  share  of  general  fund support and allow the 
Charter School an opportunity to provide input and respond to the 
calculation prior to invoicing the Charter School for  the prior year.    



83 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 83 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

The District shall then invoice the Charter School for its share of the 
general fund support. 



84 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 84 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Payment shall be due and payable within 30 days of invoice. If not fully 
paid, the remaining amount of the Charter School’s share of the general 
fund support shall be offset against the District’s next succeeding in-lieu 
property tax apportionments until paid in full. 

 
The District shall provide an estimate of the Charter School’s share of 
the general fund support for the following year by June 30 of each 
year for budgeting purposes. 

 
3.  The District shall be responsible for all costs related to the special education  

service  needs  of  Charter  School  students  in  the  same manner, as it is 
responsible for the cost of serving any other students of the District in 
accordance with Education Code Section 47646 . 

 
 
 

4.  In the event of a dispute regarding the special education provisions 
described above, the dispute resolution provisions agreed upon in the charter 
shall be utilized to resolve the dispute. 

 
 
 
 
PAYMENT 
SCHEDULEPayment Schedule 
 
Unless specified otherwise, the District shall invoice the Charter School for fees due not less 
than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the date payment is due.  In the event payment is not 
received within five (5) business days following the payment due date for any monies due from 
the Charter School to the District, the Charter School hereby authorizes the District to deduct 
any such fees from the funds deposited in the account for the Charter School with the 
Orange county Department of Education.  Alternatively, the District may elect to offset and 
deduct any such fees from the District in-lieu property tax revenues next payable to the Charter 
School, in which case the District shall provide the Charter School with a detailed statement 
showing the amount of any such offset. 
 
 
 
 
 



85 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 85 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

ELEMENT 2 
 
Governing Law: The measurable pupil outcomes identified for use by the charter school. “Pupil 
outcomes,” for purposes of this part, means the extent to which all pupils of the school 
demonstrate that they have attained the skills, knowledge, and aptitudes specified as goals in the 
school’s educational program.  Pupil outcomes shall include outcomes that address increases in 
pupil academic achievement both schoolwide and for all groups of pupils served by the charter 
school, as that term is defined in subparagraph (B) of paragraph (3) of subdivision (a) of Section 
47607. The pupil outcomes shall align with the state priorities, as described in subdivision (d) of 
Section 52060, that apply for the grade levels served, or the nature of the program operated, by 
the charter school. 
 
California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(B) 
 
 
As a public charter school, we recognize and accept a heightened accountability for reaching 
ambitious standards for student achievement.  
 
The Charter School has clearly defined schoolwide and student outcome goals in compliance 
with California Education Code sections 47605(b)(5)(B) and 52060(d).  
 
Accomplishments in each of the goals and outcomes directly support our mission to nurture all 
learners to become creative, critical thinkers by providing high quality standards-based 
instruction through the arts, technology, language and culture.  OCEAA aims to meet or exceed 
targets for all applicable state and federal school performance measures including but not limited 
to API (when/if reestablished or redefined), AYP, and Title III Accountability (AMAOs). 
 
The Charter School will continue to examine and refine details of student outcomes to reflect any 
changes to state or local standards and better serve our school mission, students, and community. 
 

CHARTER SCHOOL OUTCOMES THAT ALIGN WITH THE STATE PRIORITIES  

Pursuant to Education Code Section 47605.6(b)(5)(B), following is a table describing the Charter 
School’s outcomes that align with the state priorities and the Charter School’s goals and actions to 
achieve the state priorities, as identified in Element 1 of the charter. 

 
The LCAP and any revisions necessary to implement the LCAP, including outcomes and methods of 
measurement listed below, shall not be considered a material revision to the charter, and shall be 
maintained by the Charter School at the school site.  

 



86 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 86 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

The arts goals will be measured using a variety of 
assessments, such as: 
•holistic rubrics                                  
•analytical rubrics 
•performance tasks                             •criterion 
checklists 
•fill-in-the-blank responses                •written 
responses 
•multiple 
choice 
responses 

 
Students  should  earn  85%  or  higher  on  the  assessments  mentioned  
above  to  be considered proficient in that art discipline.  The method of 
assessment OCEAA uses to determine if students met an objective is written in 
red below. 

 
Table 2.1 Arts 
Goals by 
discipline: 
Arts Program 
Area 

Artistic 
Perception 
Component 

Creative 
Expressio
n 
Compone
nt 

Historical 
and Cultural 
Context 
Component 

Aesthetic Valuing 
Component 

Dance -Students learn 
how to control 
their bodies 
while dancing 
-Students use 
their bodies to 
respond to 
literature, an 
emotion, and/or 
movement 
problem 

 
 
 
 
 
 
checklist, 
performance 
rubric 

-Students learn 
how to express 
themselves 
through 
movement 
-Students learn 
how to dance to 
inform, or 
entertain an 
audience 
-Students 
create dance 
sequences 
emphasizing 
the elements 
of dance 
-Students 
perform 
dances 
holistic rubric, 
analytical 
rubric, 
criterion 
checklist 

-Students learn 
and perform 
dances from 
around the world 
-Students 
understand 
the historical 
and cultural 
significance of 
these dances 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
fill-in-the-
blank, 
multiple 
choice, 
analytical 
rubric 

-Students are able to 
analyze their own 
dances and dances 
done by others using 
dance vocabulary 
-Students are able to 
derive the meaning of 
a dance by watching it 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
analytical rubric, 
written response 

 
Arts Program 
Area 

Artistic 
Perception 
Component 

Creative 
Expressio
n 
Compone
nt 

Historical 
and Cultural 
Context 
Component 

Aesthetic Valuing 
Component 



87 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 87 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Drama -Students observe 
the environment 
and respond, 
using movement 
and voice 
-Students 
observe 
informal 
productions, 
theatrical 
productions, 
films, 
and electronic 
media and 
respond to them, 
using the 
vocabulary and 
language of the 
theater 

-Students 
develop 
knowledge and 
skills in acting 
and directing 
through their 
own experience 
and imagination 
as well as 
through their 
research of 
literature and 
history 
-Students 
explore the 
elements and 
technology of 
theatrical 
production 
through varied 
media 
-Students write 
scripts based on 
experience, 
heritage, 

-Students 
research 
relationships 
between 
theatre, history, 
and culture 
-Students 
investigate major 
themes and 
historical 
periods 
and styles of 
theatre in 
different 
cultures 

-Students develop 
and use criteria for 
judging and 
evaluating informal 
productions, formal 
productions, films, 
and electronic media 



88 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 88 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
  

 
 
short answer, 
written 
response, 
criterion 
checklist, 

imaginatio
n, 
literature, 
and history 
holistic rubric, 
performance 
task, analytical 
rubric, 
criterion 
checklist, 
written 
response 

 
 
 
fill-in-the-
blank, 
analytical 
rubric, short 
answer, 
performance 
task 

 
 
 
holistic rubric, 
analytical rubric, 
criterion checklist 

 
Arts Program 
Area 

Artistic 
Perception 
Component 

Creative 
Expression 
Component 

Historical 
and Cultural 
Context 
Component 

Aesthetic Valuing 
Component 

Music -Students listen 
to and analyze 
music critically, 
using the 
vocabulary and 
language of 
music 
-Students read 
and notate 
music 

 
holistic rubric, 
fill-in- the-blank, 
multiple choice, 
analytical rubric, 
criterion 
checklist, written 
response, 
performance task 

-Students sing 
or perform on 
instruments a 
varied repertoire 
of music 
-Students 
improvise 
melodies, 
variations and 
accompaniments 
-Students sing 
or perform on 
instruments a 
varied repertoire 
of music 

-Students 
develop 
knowledge and 
skills necessary 
to understand 
and perform 
music from all 
parts of the 
world 
-Students develop 
knowledge and 
understanding of 
the relationships 
of music to 
history and 
culture 

-Students apply 
knowledge, skills, 
and understandings 
to make critical 
judgment about and 
determine the 
quality of music 
experiences and 
performances 

 
Arts Program 
Area 

Artistic 
Perception 
Component 

Creative 
Expression 
Component 

Historical 
and Cultural 
Context 
Component 

Aesthetic Valuing 
Component 



89 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 89 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Visual Arts -Students use 
their senses to 
perceive works 
of art, objects in 
nature, events, 
and the 
environment 
-Students identify 
visual structures 
and functions of 
art, using the 
language of the 
visual arts 
-Students 
develop 
knowledge of 
and artistic skills 
in a variety of 
visual arts media 
and technical 
processes 
-Students 
create original 
artworks 
based on 
personal 
experiences or 
responses 

 
analytical 
rubric, 
criterion 
checklist, 

-Students 
develop skills in 
the visual arts 
and appreciation 
for using the 
visual arts in 
lifelong learning 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
analytical 
rubric, written 
response, 

-Students explore 
the role of the 
visual arts in 
culture and 
human history 
-Students 
investigate major 
themes in 
historical and 
contemporary 
periods and styles 
of the 
visual arts 
throughout the 
world 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
fill-in-the-
blank, 
multiple 
choice, 

-Students derive 
meaning from 
artworks through 
analysis, 
interpretation, and 
judgment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
criterion checklist, 
written response, 
performance task 



90 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 90 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Technology Standards Goals 
Basic operations and concepts Students demonstrate a sound understanding of the 

nature and operation of technology systems. 
Students are proficient in the use of technology. 

Social, ethical, and human issues Students understand the ethical, cultural, and societal 
issues related to technology. 
Students  practice  responsible  use   of   technology 
systems, information, and software. 
Students develop positive attitudes toward 
technology uses that support lifelong learning, 
collaboration, personal pursuits, and productivity. 

Technology productivity tools Students use technology tools to enhance learning, 
increase productivity, and promote creativity. 
Students  use  productivity  tools  to  collaborate  in 
constructing  technology-enhanced  models,  prepare 
publications, and produce other creative works. 

Technology communications tools Students   use   telecommunications   to   collaborate, 
publish, and interact with peers, experts, and other 
audiences. 
Students  use  a  variety  of  media  and  formats  to 
communicate  information  and  ideas  effectively  to 
multiple audiences. 

Technology research tools Students  use  technology  to  locate,  evaluate,  and 
collect information from a variety of sources. 

	   Students use  technology tools to  process data and 
report results. 

	   Students evaluate and select new information 
	  

 
 written 

response, 
performance 
task 

performance task, written 
response, 
performance 
task 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Technology Goal 
OCEAA’s  technology goal  is  for  our  students  to  access,  process  and  communicate 
information through the use of various technological media as measured by mastery of 
Essential California Content Standards (Table 2.2). 

 
The technology goals will be measured using a variety of assessments, such as: 
•holistic rubrics •analytical rubrics 
•performance tasks •criterion 
checklists Students should earn 85% or higher to be 
considered proficient. Table 2.2 Technology 
Goals: 



91 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 91 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
 resources and technological innovations based on the 

appropriateness for specific tasks. 
Technology problem-solving and decision- 
making tools 

Students use technology resources for solving 
problems and making informed decisions. 
Students employ technology in the development of 
strategies for solving problems in the real world. 

Based on National Educational Technology Standards for 
Students 

Language and Cultural Goal: 
Students in the English only program will demonstrate academic proficiency in English 
(with exposure to Spanish) as measured by their performance on California 
Content Standards and develop multi-cultural competencies as measured by an 
in-house cross- cultural assessment. 

 
Students in the two-way bilingual immersion program will demonstrate academic 
excellence in both English and Spanish as measured by their performance in both 
English and Spanish on California Content Standards and develop multi-cultural 
competencies as measured by an in-house cross-cultural assessment. This includes 
bilingualism and biliteracy. Table 2.3 details the goals using the National Dual 
Language Guiding Principles. OCEAA will work towards scoring Full 
Implementation on the Guiding Principles Rubric. 

 
The language and culture goals will be measured using a variety of assessments, such as: 
•standardized testing •teacher-created assessments 
•benchmark assessments •running records 
•holistic rubrics •analytical rubrics 
•performance tasks •criterion checklists 
•fill-in-the-blank responses •written responses 
•multiple choice responses •questionnaires/surveys 

 
For assessments administered to students, the expectation is that they should earn 
85% or higher to be considered proficient. 

 
Table 2.3 Language and Cultural Goals: 
Guiding Principles Goals 
Assessment and 
Accountability 

The program creates and maintains an infrastructure that 
supports an accountability process. 
Student  assessment  is  aligned  with  state  content  and 
language standards as well as program goals, and is used 
for evaluation of the program and instruction. 
The program collects a variety of data using multiple 
measures that are used for program accountability and 
evaluation. 



92 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 92 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

The data are analyzed and interpreted in 
methodologically appropriate ways for program 
accountability and improvement. 
Student progress toward NCLB achievement objectives 



93 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 93 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
 and  program  goals  is  systematically  measured  and 

reported. 
The program communicates with appropriate 
stakeholders about program outcomes. 

Curriculum The  curriculum  is  standards-based  and  promotes  the 
development of  bilingual,  biliterate,  and  multicultural 
competencies for all students. 
The program has a process of developing and revising a 
high- quality curriculum. 
The curriculum is fully articulated for all students. 

Instruction Instructional methods are derived from research-based 
principles of dual language education and the 
development of bilingualism and biliteracy in children. 
Instructional  strategies  enhance  the  development  of 
bilingualism, biliteracy, and academic achievement. 
Instruction is student-centered. 
Teachers create a multilingual and multicultural learning 
environment. 

Staff Quality and Professional 
Development 

The  program  recruits  and  retains  high  quality  dual 
language staff. 
The  program  has  a  quality  professional  development 
plan. 
The  program  provides  adequate  resource  support  for 
professional development. 
The program collaborates with other groups and 
institutions to ensure staff quality. 

Program Structure All aspects of the program work together to achieve the 
TWI-specific goals of additive bilingualism, biliteracy 
and cross-cultural competence, in addition to the general 
education goal of grade-level expectations. 
The program ensures equity for all groups. 
The program has strong, effective, and knowledgeable 
leadership. 
The  program has  used  a  well-defined,  inclusive,  and 
defensible process to select and refine a model design. 
An  effective  process  exists  for  continuous  program 
planning, implementation and evaluation. 

Family and Community The program has a responsive infrastructure for positive, 
active, and ongoing relations with students’ families and 
the community. 
The  program  has   parent  education  and   supportive 
services  reflective  of  the  bilingual  and  multicultural 
goals of the program. 



94 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 94 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

The program views and involves parents and community 
members as strategic partners. 



95 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 95 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
Support and Resources The program is supported by all program and school 

staff. 
The program is supported by families and the 
community. 
The program is adequately funded. 
The program advocates for support. 
Resources are distributed equitably within the program, 
school, and district. 

National Guiding Principles for Dual Language Education, OELA, 2005 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RIGOROUS STANDARDS-BASED CURRICULUM 
 
OCEAA strives to prepare students for success in a college-preparatory high school 
program. All core content instruction and materials are aligned with the state content 
standards; state-adopted textbooks have been a primary resource for core curriculum 
development.   To enhance the rigor of the school’s curriculum, the staff is 
presently being trained in using a research-based model of unit design (i.e. 
Understanding by Design).   Professional development is currently focused on 
increasing rigor and instructional effectiveness. Professional development occurs 
weekly and staff receive ongoing support by instructional coaches. In addition, this 
year staff received fourteen full-day professional development sessions as well as 
release days throughout the year to ensure that a rigorous standards-based curriculum 
is provided to students. The use of essential questions and performance assessments 
in the unit design model will assist teachers in designing intellectually challenging, 
standards-based learning experiences for all students. 
 
In order to meet the needs of our English Learners, English Language Development 
is taught on a daily basis. Specially Designed Academic Instruction in English 
(SDAIE) and Guided Language Acquisition Design (GLAD) strategies are used to 
ensure access to both language and content goals. Students are assessed 
continuously for language skills in order to assist in flexible grouping. This spring 
staff will be trained by the California Reading and Literacy Program (CRLP) in using 
an English Language Development assessment that can be administered by teachers 
to assist them in further supporting their English Learners. English Learners in the 
Two-Way Immersion program have ongoing opportunities to practice speaking 
English with native English speakers who serve as language “experts” throughout the 
school day. 
 
In the arts, music, drama, visual arts, and dance, are significant parts of student life 
at OCEAA. Students are encouraged to nourish their interest and talent through 



96 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 96 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

exposure to a broad array of learning experiences both during and after school. A 
comprehensive, standards-based format is followed, emphasizing artistic perception, 
creative expression, cultural heritage, and aesthetic valuing. This comprehensive 
program is composed of three modes of instruction: a) instruction connecting the 
arts and other core subjects; b) 



97 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 97 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

instruction linking the arts disciplines; and c) subject-centered arts instruction in 
dance, music, theater, and visual arts.   In addition, the arts curriculum is supported 
by partnerships with  local community artistic organizations, artist-in residence 
teachers, guest  teachers,  professional  arts  partnerships,  college/university  
partnerships, professional performance/exhibition opportunities and an integrated 
interrelated arts experience. 
 
In technology, we strive to create an environment where the innovative use of 
technology enhances learning and improves student achievement for all students, 
including those with physical or learning disabilities. Our goal is to empower all 
instructional staff to enhance classroom instruction by integrating technology into 
their lesson plans in alignment with California Content Standards and the National 
Educational Technology Standards for Students. 
 
We have purchased learning software and publishing programs for the various grade 
levels, as well as rights to use an online professional development tutorial that will 
allow instructors and staff members to build new technology skills according to their 
individual needs. In addition, we have three mobile computer carts with over 75 
laptops accessible to all K-8 students. By learning to effectively integrate technology 
into day-to-day classroom activities, instructors improve student achievement, 
develop students’ technology skills, and prepare them to function more effectively in 
the global economy. In February, first through sixth grade teachers will receive 
professional development in a computer program to support mathematics instruction 
that incorporates visualization and spatial processes to help conceptual development. 
 
STUDENTS TO BE SERVED 
 
OCEAA educates up to 600 students from Orange and the surrounding counties in 
grades Kindergarten through Eighth. Currently, these students come from diverse 
backgrounds that include a wide variety of socio-economic status, race and 
ethnicities, language, and disabilities.  Table 2.4 shows the total enrollment by 
program, language status and Title I status. 
 
Table 2.4 Total Enrollment 
G
r
a
d
e 

Tot
al 
Stu
dent
s 

Tot
al 
TW
I 

Tot
al 
Eng
lish 

ELs Titl
e I 

K 60 40 20 32 44 
1
s
t 

60 40 20 28 44 
2
n
d 

55 35 20 18 36 
3
r
d 

50 30 20 25 36 
4
t
h 

82 36 46 37 56 
5
t
h 

51 24 30 21 39 
6
t
h 

49 20 29 20 31 
7
t
h 

65 10 55 20 50 
8
t
h 

52 9 43 13 39 
T
o
t
a
l 

524 244 283 214 375 



98 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 98 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
 
PLAN FOR STUDENTS WHO ARE ACADEMICALLY LOW-ACHIEVING 
 
Academically low achieving students are identified using multiple data sources. 
Multiple measures include, but are not limited to, standardized test scores (STAR, 
APRENDA, and CELDT), in-house benchmark assessments in reading, writing, and 
math, and teacher created assessments. Specific benchmarks are established in each 
core academic area (see Exhibit C for Response to Intervention (RTI) Student 
Identification Criteria) in order to facilitate identification of students who need 
additional support. Other methods of identification include, but are not limited to, 
teacher referral, incomplete class work or homework, grades on report cards and 
progress reports, truancies, and lack of parental support in the home.   Students are 
further identified for non-academic factors such as social-emotional difficulties that 
cause them to perform below expected level. 
 
Over the next five years OCEAA will fully implement the RTI model, that stresses 
the importance of prevention and early intervention. OCEAA has aggressively 
worked this year on Tier I, powerful first-time instruction, to proactively prevent 
student failure. First, we have a focus on appropriate instructional scaffolding in a 
rigorous standards-based curriculum is implemented to support success for all 
students. In addition, teachers use both formal and informal assessments to 
differentiate instruction based on  students’ needs. OCEAA’s assessment plan, 
discussed in more detail in Element III, provides regular monitoring of students’ 
mastery of grade level standards. These results are shared with students and parents 
in September at our Goal Setting Conferences (see Exhibit D for an example of what 
is shared with parents).  An additional conference takes place at the end of the first 
trimester to document progress and set additional goals to close the achievement gap. 
Another important factor to support prevention of academic gaps is parental 
support and education. OCEAA offers parent support and education through regular 
communication and family education sessions. These sessions include, but are not 
limited to, topics such as how to understand state assessment data, math and literacy 
education, culturally relevant topics identified by parents, supporting test preparation 
strategies, and the importance of attendance. Parents have access to students’ grades, 
assignments,  attendance  records  and  academic  support  resources  through  
OCEAA’s online portal (PowerSchool) which helps facilitate continuous 
communication between the home and school. 
 
Early intervention is key to preventing and closing the achievement gap once 
students begin to struggle. Currently, students’ reading progress is monitored on a 
weekly basis. Some of our early interventions in kinder and first grade include 
weekly progress monitoring of phonemic awareness, phonics, decoding, and 
comprehension (DIBELS). Other interventions used in kinder through eighth grade 
include, but are not limited to, auditory, visual, kinesthetic and tactile instructional 
strategies, tutoring before and after school, extensive professional development for 
staff on effective instructional practices, and intervention groups during OCEAA 



99 
ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 99 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

day. OCEAA is in the process of identifying additional Tier I, II and III level 
interventions (see Exhibit C) and will continue to refine the list over the next five 
years. This year we formed an RTI committee and they will 



10
0 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 100 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

engage in professional development to aide the school in preventing students from 
falling behind. We have already seen a decrease in the number of students in the 
RTI process this year because of the Tier I interventions implemented and use of 
data. We also look forward to continuing to collaborate with the SAUSD Special 
Education staff to further develop effective interventions. 
 
Next year our focus will be on Tier II school-wide interventions which include: 
computer programs that incorporate visual and spatial processes that enable students 
to master mathematical concepts (i.e. MIND Research Institute), increased 
intervention opportunities after school to target identified students in reading and 
math, continued coaching to increase the effectiveness of first round instruction 
and rigor, continued parent education and involvement, and increased access to 
community resources. 
 
Students with identified special needs take advantage of resource classes for 
assistance with test taking and difficult class assignments, and learning strategies. 
These students also are given an appropriate testing environment and time to 
maximize their potential for success. 
 
OCEAA’s goal is to promote success for all students and we have noticed an increase 
in the number of families interested in OCEAA who have attend our informational 
tours with students who are not succeeding in traditional schools. They seek a smaller 
school community, which OCEAA is able to offer. 
 
Students are not excluded for academic underperformance. 
 
PLAN FOR STUDENTS WHO ARE ACADEMICALLY HIGH-ACHIEVING 
 
OCEAA meets the needs of students who are academically high achieving in a variety 
of ways. Teachers plan differentiated lessons to challenge students. Critical thinking 
skills are embedded in daily art and technology lessons to encourage students to 
go beyond basic understandings. In addition, students participating in the Two-Way 
Immersion Program are challenged on a daily basis by learning in two languages. 
This creates a GATE-like learning environment, although no official GATE 
program is offered. The staff is currently engaged in developing units around 
essential questions that culminate in multi-dimensional projects and performance 
tasks which will further challenge high achievers. 
 
PLAN FOR ENGLISH LEARNERS 
 
OCEAA meets all applicable legal requirements for English Learners (EL) relative 
to annual notification to parents, student identification, placement, program options, 
English Language Development (ELD) and core content instruction, teacher 
qualifications and training, reclassification to Fluent English Proficient (FEP) status, 
monitoring and evaluation of program effectiveness, and standardized testing 
requirement.  OCEAA implements  policies  to  ensure  proper  placement,  



10
1 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 101 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

evaluation,  and  communication regarding ELs and the rights of parents and pupils. 



10
2 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 102 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
Home Language Survey 
 
The Home Language Survey (HLS) is administered upon a student’s initial 
enrollment into a California public school.   If OCEAA is not a student’s first 
California public school, then OCEAA will attempt to retrieve a copy of the student’s 
HLS from the prior school(s) of attendance.  Nonetheless, all students are asked of 
their primary language with the OCEAA enrollment paperwork to ensure an HLS is 
completed. All students who indicate that their home language is other than English 
are CELDT tested within thirty 
days of initial enrollment1. 
 
Annual Assessments 
 
OCEAA follows all CELDT testing timelines to ensure students receive proper 
instruction.  OCEAA notifies all parents of its responsibility for CELDT testing and 
of CELDT results within thirty days of receiving results from publisher.  OCEAA 
complies with the applicable requirements of the No Child Left Behind Act with 
regards to EL pupils. In addition, informal assessments are performed on a regular 
basis. 
 
In addition, students in the two-way bilingual immersion program receive a primary 
language assessment to identify students’ level of proficiency in their native 
language. The progress is monitored yearly to ensure adequate growth in the primary 
language as well. Research supports that the stronger a child’s primary language is, 
the stronger the second language will be. In the 2010/11 school year, all students will 
be assessed in their primary language upon entering OCEAA and progress will be 
monitored in two-year intervals. 
 
English Learners and Core Instruction 
 
ELs have daily access to the core curriculum and are taught according to the 
program, which parents choose: 
 
• English Mainstream/Structured English Immersion 
• Two-way Immersion (Federally recognized best practice) 
 
Instruction techniques, assessments, materials and approaches are focused on 
communicative competence and academic achievement covering listening, speaking, 
reading, and writing skills (aligned with California ELD and Content Standards) in 
all areas  of  the  curriculum.    EL  students  receive  ELD  and  core  content  
instruction appropriate for  their English proficiency and  grade levels. All  
teachers are CLAD/BCLAD certified and NCLB compliant and use SDAIE and 
GLAD instructional strategies. 
 
 



10
3 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 103 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

1 The thirty-day  requirement  applies to students who are entering a California  
public school for the first time or for students who have not yet been CELDT 
tested.  All other students who have indicated a home language other than English 
will continue with annual CELDT testing based upon the date last tested at the 
prior school of enrollment. 



10
4 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 104 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
In addition, the instructional program for OCEAA is designed to promote language 
acquisition and proficiency, oral language development, and enriched learning 
opportunities for all ELs in the following ways: 
 
• Students interact through cooperative learning activities 
• Students make oral presentations in all content areas 
• Students collaborate for group performance and reports 
• Students are provided cultural learning opportunities in technology and the arts 
• Students are provided academic tutoring 
 
 
 
Teacher Qualifications and Training 
 
Core classes are taught by highly qualified teachers who hold a CLAD and/or 
BCLAD and meet the requirements of No Child Left Behind regulations and the 
California State Board of Education. Students are supported by bilingual assistants, 
part-time specialists, or trained volunteers per program designs.   Teachers of ELs are 
trained and use appropriate differentiated instruction to reach all levels of English 
proficiency and in the case of two-way immersion, primary language proficiency. 
Additional on-site training in GLAD strategies, Thinking Maps, California Reading 
and Literature Project RESULTS for English Learners, SDAIE and Write from the 
Beginning have enhanced our literacy instruction for ELs. 
 
Professional development during the 2009/10 school-year has specifically focused on 
meeting the needs of ELs. Research indicates that many students easily reach the 
intermediate level of second language acquisition and struggle to move on to 
advanced levels. OCEAA’s data mirrors these results and our professional 
development plan (Exhibit B) will provide teachers with the necessary instructional 
strategies and assessment tools to address that gap and move students to higher levels 
of proficiency in English. 
 
Reclassification to Fluent English Proficient (FEP) Status 
 
OCEAA has developed criteria (see Exhibit E) to determine fluent English 
proficiency for ELs consistent with legal requirements regarding standardized testing 
and other required  assessments.    In  addition,  OCEAA  monitors  to  ensure  on-
going  academic success for reclassified students for at least three years from their 
reclassification date. Reclassification procedures utilize multiple criteria in 
determining whether to classify a pupil as proficient in English including but not 
limited to all of the following: 
 
• Proficient or advanced score in overall language proficiency using an objective 
assessment instrument including, but not limited to, the California English Language 
Development Test (CELDT), 



10
5 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 105 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

• Participation of the pupil’s classroom teacher and any other certificated staff with 
direct responsibility for teaching or placement decisions of the pupil to evaluate the 
pupil’s curriculum mastery, 
 
• Parental opinion and consultation, achieved through notice to parents or guardians 
of the language reclassification and placement including a description of the 
reclassification process and the parent’s opportunity to participate, and 
encouragement of the participation of parents or guardians in OCEAA’s 
reclassification procedure, 
 
• Comparison of the pupil’s performance in basic skills against an empirically 
established range of performance and basic skills based upon the performance of 
English proficient pupils of the same age that demonstrate to others that the pupil is 
sufficiently proficient in English to participate effectively in a curriculum designed 
for pupils of the same age whose native language is English. 
 
Monitoring and Evaluation of Program Effectiveness 
 
An area of growth we identified for the 2009/10 school-year is the progress of our 
ELs. Our standardized test score data clearly indicate that changes need to be made to 
ensure that all second language learners meet expected growth benchmarks. In 
evaluating the program effectiveness for ELs, OCEAA will continue to use the 
following methods: 
 
• Adherence to OCEAA’s academic benchmarks by language proficiency level and 
years in program to determine adequate yearly progress 
• Monitoring of teacher qualifications and the use of appropriate instructional 
strategies based on program design 
• Monitoring of student identification and placement 
• Monitoring of parental program choice options 
• Monitoring of availability of adequate resources 
• Increased professional development focused specifically on effective second 
language acquisition strategies 
 
In addition to the aforementioned methods, in the 2008/09 school year OCEAA 
piloted a student data management system to allow for immediate access to 
students’ language status as well as the ability to monitor academic progress by 
language status. In the 
2009/10 school year, OCEAA has proceeded with the school-wide implementation of 
this data management system. This system allows teachers and administrators to 
monitor the individual progress of our ELs and make adjustments to the instructional 
program based on the data. Data is analyzed on a regular basis through release days 
for teachers in conjunction with our assessment plan. Teachers share this data with 
the students, parents and Board. 
 
A key factor in student progress is parent involvement and understanding of how to 



10
6 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 106 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

work collaboratively with OCEAA to support the child’s educational goals. OCEAA 
has held and continues to offer regular parent education seminars to empower 
parents with the 



10
7 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 107 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

tools necessary to understand data, second language acquisition, and practical 
strategies to apply at home. 
 
In the 2009/10 school year OCEAA will form its English Learner Advisor 
Committee (ELAC) to disseminate information pertinent to parents of ELs, to 
empower parents to take on advocacy roles in OCEAA and collaborate with other 
parents, teachers, support staff and the administration to ensure success for our ELs. 
 
This year, OCEAA exceeded the state’s Annual Measurable Achievement 
Objectives 
(AMAO). 
 
Table 2.5 
2009/10 Target 

Percentage 
Achieved Met 

AMAO 1 53.1 55.6 YES 
AMAO 2 32.2 38.6 YES 

 
Adequate Basic Resources 
 
OCEAA provides adequate personnel, textbooks, materials, and instructional supplies 
for the full implementation of all program options. 
 
PLAN FOR SPECIAL EDUCATION 
 
Overview 
 
OCEAA adheres to all laws affecting individuals with exceptional needs, including 
all provisions of the Individuals with Disabilities in Education Improvement Act 
(IDEIA), its  amendments,  Section  504  of  the  Rehabilitation  Act  and  the  
Americans  with Disabilities Act (ADA).  All students are given equal access to 
OCEAA, regardless of disabilities, and OCEAA does not discriminate against any 
student based on his or her disabilities.  OCEAA does not require the modification of 
an individualized educational program (IEP) or 504 plan as a condition of acceptance 
at the Charter School. 
 
OCEAA recognizes the importance of providing education opportunities to all 
students regardless of physical challenges or special needs. To that end, OCEAA 
attempts to work in cooperation with the District and all other applicable LEAs, to 
ensure that the students enrolled in OCEAA are served in accordance with applicable 
federal and state law.  The OCEAA Specialists, which includes the Mild-Moderate 
Teachers, Speech Pathologist, Psychologist and Counselor, meet weekly to discuss 
and monitor the progress of our students with IEPs. This year, the Mild-Moderate 
Teachers progress monitor using DIBELS and share this information with both 
parents and general education teachers in order to better track student growth. We 
recently created a survey for parents with students in our special education 
program to seek feedback on how we can increase satisfaction with the services we 



10
8 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 108 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

provide (see Exhibit F for survey results). Based on their feedback,  we  have  
modified  how  progress  is  shared  with  families  during  reporting periods  so  it  is  
more  specific  to  IEP  goals.  OCEAA’s  special  education  staff  also 



10
9 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 109 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

regularly attends the district’s special education parent meetings and brings this 
information back on site to share with other parents who could not attend. We are also 
planning to hold special education parent meetings on site at OCEAA in order to 
increase communication and collaboration. We will annually survey the parents to 
monitor the effectiveness of the services we provide. 
 
IDEIA 
 
Currently, OCEAA has been deemed to be a public school of the District for purposes 
of special education pursuant to Education Code Section 47641(b) and reserves the 
right to become its own LEA for the purpose of providing special education services 
to our students in the future.  A child with disabilities attending the School receives 
special education instruction and designated instruction and services, provided by 
District personnel either in-house or by contract with a qualified third-party in 
accordance with the IEP in the same manner as a child with disabilities who attends 
another public school within the District. 
 
Section 504/ADA 
 
OCEAA is solely responsible for its compliance with Section 504 and the ADA.   
All facilities of OCEAA are accessible for all students with disabilities in 
accordance with the ADA. 
 
Further, OCEAA has adopted and implements a policy which outlines the 
requirements for identifying and serving students with a 504 accommodation plan 
(OCEAA’s 504 policy is attached as Exhibit H).   OCEAA recognizes its legal 
responsibility to ensure that no qualified person with a disability shall, on the basis 
of disability, be excluded from participation, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise 
be subjected to discrimination under any program of the School.   Any student, who 
has an objectively identified disability, which substantially limits a major life activity 
such as learning, is eligible for accommodation by OCEAA and is accommodated. 
 
We have many families who attend our Informational Tours and with their IEPs in 
hand. This has increased the numbers of families in our special education program. 
We see this as a positive sign that parents find OCEAA’s smaller school setting an 
optimal learning environment for students who might not succeed in traditional school 
settings. 
 
SPECIAL EDUCATION SERVICES/504 
 
The following provisions govern the application of special education to Charter School 
students: 
 
 
A.  It is understood that all children will have access to the Charter School and no 
student shall be denied admission based solely on disability status. 



11
0 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 110 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

B.  Pursuant to Education Code Section 47641, the Charter School has elected to be 
deemed a public school of the District for special education purposes. Nothing in this 
petition shall be construed to waive the Charter School’s rights under Education Code 
Section 47641, including its right to provide assurances that the Charter School will 
participate as a local educational agency in an alternative special education plan. 
 
C.  In accordance with Education Code Section 47646, a Charter School that is 
deemed to be a public school of the local educational agency that granted the charter 
shall participate in state and federal funding in the same manner as any other public 
school of the granting agency. Further, a child with disabilities attending the Charter 
School shall receive special education instruction or designated instruction and 
services, or both, in the same manner as a child with disabilities who attends another 
public school of that district. The agency that granted the charter shall ensure that all 
children with disabilities enrolled in the Charter School receive special education and 
designated instruction and services in a manner that is consistent with their 
individualized education program and in compliance with the IDEA. 
 
D.  Section 504 and the ADA 
 
Absent agreement of the parties to the contrary, the Charter School shall be solely 
responsible, at its own expense, for compliance with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation 
Act (“Section 504”) and the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) with respect to 
eligible students.  Should the Charter School be unable to provide the services 
necessary to comply with the requirements of Section 504, the Charter School may 
request that the District provide the necessary services at a cost to be negotiated 
between the District and the Charter School separate from the terms of this MOU 
and/or the Charter School may contract with outside service providers at the Charter 
School’s sole expense. 
 
E.  Services 
 
1.   The Charter School and the District intend that the Charter School will be treated 
by the District as any other public school in the District with respect to the provision of 
special education services, including the allocation of duties between Charter School 
staff and resources and District staff and resources. 
 
2.   Division and Coordination of Responsibility: 
 
The District and the Charter School agree to allocate responsibility for the provision 
of services [including but not limited to identification, evaluation, Individualized 
Education Plan (“IEP”) development and modification, and educational services] in a 
manner consistent with their allocation between the District and its local public 
school sites.   All special education services to  be 



11
1 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 111 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

provided to Charter School students beyond the services to be performed by general 
education personnel and/or the type provided by general school site administrators at 
District schools, will be performed by employees, consultants, or other 
representatives of the District.  The District, in consultation with the Charter School, 
shall be responsible for hiring and directing the individuals or entities  to  provide  
such  special  education  services  to  Charter School students.   The Charter School 
shall be involved with the selection of staff who serve Charter School students to 
ensure that services are delivered in a manner which is consistent with the charter.  If 
a problem arises with any of the District personnel providing services on the Charter 
School site, the Charter School and District shall meet within five (5) days to address 
the concern and re-assign personnel when the District deems appropriate.   If the 
District takes or refuses to take personnel action with regard to its special education 
providers on the Charter School’s site, over the objection of the Charter School, the 
District shall take full responsibility for any actions, causes of action, suits, losses, 
expenses, costs, penalties, obligations, errors, omissions, or liabilities, including legal 
costs, attorney’s fees, and expert witness fees, whether or not suit is actually filed, 
and/or any judgment rendered that results from its actions or inactions related to the 
placement of District personnel on the Charter School’s campus. 
 
The District and the Charter School shall meet no later than April 
15 of each year to ensure a mutual understanding of the allocation of duties between 
the Charter School and the District for the following year. 
 
3. Identification and Referral: 
 
The Charter School shall have the same responsibility as any other public school in 
the District to work cooperatively with the District in identifying and referring 
students who have or may have exceptional needs that qualify them to receive special 
education services.    The Charter School will develop, maintain, and implement 
policies and procedures to ensure identification and referral  of  students  who  have,  
or  may  have,  such  exceptional needs.  These policies and procedures will be in 
accordance with California law and District policy.   The Charter School is solely 
responsible for obtaining the cumulative files, prior and/or current Individualized 
Education Plan (“IEP”) and other special education information on any student 
enrolling from a non-District school. A pupil  shall  be  referred  for  special  
education  instruction  and services only after the resources of the regular education 
program have been considered and utilized, where appropriate. 



11
2 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 112 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

The District shall provide the Charter School with the technical and consultative 
services that it generally provides its other public schools in the identification and 
referral processes.   The District will ensure that the Charter School is provided 
with notification and relevant files of all students transferring to the Charter School 
from a District school, who have an existing IEP, in the same manner that it ensures 
the forwarding of such information between District schools.  All records and files 
will be released with the signed permission of the parent/guardian. 
 
4. Assessment: 
 
The District shall make the determination as to what assessments are necessary, 
including assessments for all referred students, annual assessments and tri-annual 
assessments, in accordance with the District’s general practice and procedure and 
applicable law. The Charter School shall not conduct assessments or recommend 
independent assessments without prior written approval of the District. 
 
5. Individualized Education Plan: 
 
Responsibility for arranging necessary IEP meetings shall be conducted in 
accordance with the District’s general practice and procedure and applicable law. 
The Charter School shall ensure the attendance of all necessary Charter School 
employees at the IEP meetings in addition to representatives who are knowledgeable 
about the regular education program at the Charter School. 
 
6. Eligibility and Placement: 
 
Decisions regarding eligibility, goals/objectives, program, placement and exit from 
special education shall be the decision of the IEP team.  Team membership shall be in 
compliance with state and federal law and shall include all required representatives of 
the Charter School (or designees when necessary) and representatives of the District 
(or designees when necessary).   Services and placements shall be provided to all 
eligible Charter School students in accordance with the policies, procedures and 
requirements of the District and of the Local Plan for Special Education. 
 
7. Educational Services and Programs: 
 
To the extent that the agreed upon IEP requires special education or related 
services, the District shall provide and/or arrange for such services in the same 
manner that it would be legally obligated to provide to the students at its other District 
schools.  District services  shall  include  technical  and  consultative  services  by 



11
3 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 113 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

District  staff  to  Charter  School  staff  in  the  same  manner  that 
District staff consults with staff at other District schools. 
 
 
 
 
8. Parent Concerns: 
 
The Charter School shall inform parents/guardians of their rights to raise concerns 
regarding special education needs or services to the Charter School and/or District 
staff.  The Charter School staff shall inform the designated representative of the 
District of any such concerns.  The District, in consultation with the Charter 
School’s staff as necessary, shall respond to and address the parent/guardian concerns. 
 
9. Complaints: 
 
In consultation with the Charter School, the District shall address/respond 
to/investigate all complaints regarding special education services at the Charter 
School.  The Charter School’s Uniform Complaint Procedure shall designate the 
District’s Uniform Complaint Procedure officer as the designated official for 
complaints regarding special education services. 
 
10. Due Process Hearings: 
 
In consultation with the Charter School, the District may initiate a due process hearing 
on behalf of a student enrolled in the Charter School as the District determines is 
legally necessary to meet a school agency’s responsibilities under federal and state 
law.  The District, with the cooperation of the Charter School shall defend any  due  
process  hearing  brought  by  a  student  enrolled  in  the Charter School.  In the event 
that the District determines that legal representation  is  needed,  the  District/Charter  
School  shall  be jointly represented by District legal counsel.  If the Charter School 
or the District determines that there is a conflict of interest in joint representation, the 
Charter School may retain separate legal counsel, at its own cost, the cost of which 
will be considered an offset to the Charter School’s payment of a share of district-
wide encroachment as discussed below. 
 
The District agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Charter School and 
its Board, Board members, officers, administrators, employees, agents, 
representatives, volunteers, successors, and assigns (collectively hereinafter “Charter 
School and Charter School personnel”) against any and all actions, causes of action, 
suits, losses, expenses, costs,   penalties, obligations, errors, omissions, or liabilities, 
including legal costs, attorney’s 



11
4 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 114 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

fees, and expert witness fees, whether or not suit is actually filed, and/or any 
judgment rendered against Charter School (including but not limited to due process 
complaints and/or compliance complaints with the California Department of 
Education and the Office of Civil Rights) and/or Charter School Personnel that may 
be asserted or claimed by any person, firm, or entity which may in any way arise out 
of or in connection with performance under the MOU by the District, its board of 
directors, administrators, employees, agents, representatives, volunteers, 
subcontractors, invitees, successors, and/or assigns 
 
11. SELPA Activities and Meetings: 
 
The District Superintendent or designee shall represent the Charter School at all 
SELPA meetings as it represents the needs of all schools in the District. Reports to 
the Charter School regarding SELPA decisions, policies, etc. shall be communicated 
to the Charter School as they are to all other schools within the District. To the extent 
that the District and/or SELPA provide training opportunities and/or information 
regarding special education to site staff, such opportunities/information shall be made 
available to Charter School staff.  To the extent that District site staff have the 
opportunity to participate in committee meetings of the SELPA as representatives of 
their district, such opportunities shall be made available to Charter School staff. 
 
12. School District of Residence: 
 
The District shall be responsible for providing all special education services to all 
students of the Charter School regardless of their school district of residence. 
 
13. SELPA Requirements: 
 
The Charter School agrees to adhere to the policies and requirements of the Local 
Plan for Special Education and to all District policies, procedures, and practices 
regarding identification, referral, and provision of services to special education 
students provided they do not conflict with OCEAA’s mission/vision and policies 
and procedures and OCEAA School-Family Handbook, and are not unduly 
burdensome to the Charter School, as determined by the Charter School. 
 
14. Contracted Services: 
 
If needed due to a shortage in special education staff, it is the responsibility of the 
District to seek out contracts with other school 



11
5 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 115 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

districts, companies, or organizations to serve Charter School students.  The Charter 
School may assist the District in procuring such services. 
 
 
 
 
 
Funding 
 
1. Retention of Special Education Funds by District: 
 
The parties agree that, pursuant to the division of responsibilities set forth in this 
MOU, the Charter School has elected the status of any other public school in the 
District for the purposes of special education services and funding.  The District has 
agreed to provide special education services for the Charter School, consistent with 
the services it provides at its public schools.  Consistent with this division of 
responsibility, the District shall retain all state and federal special education funding 
allocated for Charter School students through the SELPA. 
 
2. School Contribution of Equitable Share of Charter School 
 
Funding: 
 
 
 
Additionally, the Charter School shall contribute a pro-rata share of its Charter 
School funding to support the District’s unfunded special education costs (“general 
fund support”). 
 
At  the  end  of  each fiscal year, the  District shall calculate the Charter School’s 
pro-rata share of the District-wide general fund support for that year as calculated 
by the total unfunded special education costs of the District (including those costs 
attributable to the Charter School) divided by the total number of District ADA 
(including Charter School students) and multiplied by the total number of Charter 
School ADA (ADA calculation from P2). Charter School ADA shall include all 
students, regardless of home district. 
 
The District shall calculate the amount of the Charter School’s share of the 
general fund support at the P2 reporting date.  The District shall provide the Charter 
School with documentation as to the  calculation  of  the  Charter  School’s  share  of  
general  fund support and allow the Charter School an opportunity to provide input 
and respond to the calculation prior to invoicing the Charter School for  the prior 
year.    The District shall then invoice the Charter School for its share of the general 
fund support. 



11
6 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 116 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Payment shall be due and payable within 30 days of invoice. If not fully paid, the 
remaining amount of the Charter School’s share of the general fund support shall be 
offset against the District’s next succeeding in-lieu property tax apportionments until 
paid in full. 
 
The District shall provide an estimate of the Charter School’s share of the general 
fund support for the following year by June 30 of each year for budgeting purposes. 
 
3.  The District shall be responsible for all costs related to the special education  
service  needs  of  Charter  School  students  in  the  same manner, as it is responsible 
for the cost of serving any other students of the District in accordance with Education 
Code Section 47646 . 
 
 
 
4.  In the event of a dispute regarding the special education provisions described 
above, the dispute resolution provisions agreed upon in the charter shall be utilized to 
resolve the dispute. 
 
 
 
 
PAYMENT SCHEDULE 
 
Unless specified otherwise, the District shall invoice the Charter School for fees due 
not less than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the date payment is due.  In the event 
payment is not received within five (5) business days following the payment due date 
for any monies due from the Charter School to the District, the Charter School hereby 
authorizes the District to deduct any such fees from the funds deposited in the 
account for the Charter School with the Orange county Department of Education.  
Alternatively, the District may elect to offset and deduct any such fees from the 
District in-lieu property tax revenues next payable to the Charter School, in which 
case the District shall provide the Charter School with a detailed statement showing 
the amount of any such offset. 



11
7 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 117 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

III. MEASURABLE STUDENT OUTCOMES AND OTHER USES OF DATA 
(ELEMENTS 2, 3) 

 
Governing Law:  The measurable pupil outcomes identified for use by the Charter School. 
“Pupil outcomes,” for purpose of this part, means the extent to which all pupils of OCEAA 
demonstrate that they have attained the skills, knowledge, and attitudes specified as goals in 

OCEAA’s educational program. --California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(B) 
 
OCEAA is a charter school where all stakeholders share a common mission and shared 
accountability to provide high quality, standards-based instruction that integrates arts, 
technology, language and culture. OCEAA’s goal is to motivate and assist all students in 
achieving proficiency on state academic standards and attain life-long skills that will 
prepare them for the 21st  Century. OCEAA aligns the curriculum in order to ensure 
success for all students in meeting the requirements of state standardized tests.  When 
making decisions affecting curriculum, materials resources, professional development, 
programs or policies, OCEAA refers to this common mission. 

 
OCEAA’s fundamental goal is to achieve academic excellence (proficient and above) in all 
core content areas - language arts, science and mathematics, and social studies - through a 
well-articulated K-8 standards based curriculum, thus preparing students for a 
21st Century global society. In order to reach our goal of student achievement, we believe 
students also need to be well versed in the arts, fluent in the use and language of technology, 
and have the ability to negotiate their use and understanding of multiple languages and 
cultures. Through the arts, technology, language and culture, we support our  students  in  
achieving  academic  excellence.  Success  at  OCEAA  is  defined  as academic, social, 
emotional, physical, artistic, technological and linguistic success, and is measured using 
multiple means including, but not limited to, standardized tests. 

 
OCEAA follows the School’s Policies and Procedures (see Exhibit I for Curriculum Policy) 
when developing and selecting curriculum, materials and instructional activities. These are 
selected through a collaborative process that uses research-based best practices to support our 
academic goals (see Exhibit I for Curriculum Statement). 

 
Beginning in the 2008/09 school year, OCEAA sought out a third-party review of our school 
with Insight Education Group, Inc. The goal of the third party review was to identify 
OCEAA’s strengths and areas for improvement in the following five areas: student 
achievement, ethical leadership, continuous focus on increasing quality, responsible 
governance, and fiscal accountability. These areas of inquiry are taken from the Quality 
Standards for Charter Schools (QSCS) developed by the California Charter Schools 
Association (CCSA).  Members of Insight Education Group, Inc. gathered information from 
teachers, students, parents, administrators, and board members. Their methods of inquiry 
included classroom observations, gathering school documentation, convening teacher, student 
and parent focus groups, conducting administrator and board member interviews, and 
conducting an online teacher survey. All questions were developed to draw-out data targeted to 
the five areas of inquiry and the QSCS. Responses 



11
8 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 118 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

to the student achievement findings are discussed below; further discussion of these and 
other findings can be found in Exhibit J and within subsequent Elements of this petition. 

 
SCHOOL WIDE MEASURABLE OUTCOMES 

 
In response to the review’s findings related to student achievement, OCEAA created a 
Strategic Plan for Academic Achievement (SPAA) (see Exhibit B). The goals of this plan are 
detailed in Table 3.1 of outcomes and corresponding methods of measurement: 

 
Table 3.1 Measureable Student Outcomes 
Student Outcome Methods of 

Measurement 
Parties Accountable 

Students will demonstrate proficient or 
advanced achievement on the CSTs. 

STAR Data 
35% of the students 
will score Proficient 
or Advanced on the 
Math portion of the 
CST for the 
2009-2010 school 
year 

 
40% of the students 
will score Proficient 
or Advanced on the 
ELA portion of the 
CST for the 
2009-2010 school 
year 

Parents, Students, 
Teachers, Support 
Staff, Administration 
and Board 

Students in Two-Way Program will 
demonstrate academic achievement in 
Spanish. 

APRENDA 
75% of students in 
the Two-Way 
program will score 
at or above the 50th 
percentile on the 
APRENDA in 
Reading 
and Mathematics 

 
Students in the TWI 
program will make a 
minimum of 5 NCE 
point gains on the 
APRENDA Reading 
and Mathematics 
Test each year until 
they reach the 50th 
percentile 

 
FLOSEM 
90% of students who 
have been enrolled in 
the Two- Way 
program will 
demonstrate 
proficiency 
on the FLOSEM by 
the 8th 
grade 

Parents, Students, 
Teachers, Support 
Staff, Administration 
and Board 

Students  will  read  fluently  and  
comprehend  a variety of grade-level 
texts. 

RESULTS 
75% of students will 
make gains each 
trimester on the 
RESULTS reading 
assessments 

 
Benchmark 
Assessments 
75% of students will 
make 

Parents, Students, 
Teachers, Support 
Staff, Administration 
and Board 



11
9 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 119 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
 gains each trimester 

on the 
ELA benchmarks (6-8 
in 
2009/10 and 2-8 in 
2010/11) 

 

Students    will   write   effectively    for   
various purposes and audiences. 

Benchmark Writing 
Assessments 
75% of students 
will demonstrate 
grade level 
proficiency on the 
T3 writing 
assessment 

 
STAR Data grade 7 
75% of students will 
score proficient or 
advanced on the 7th 
grade writing 
assessment 

Parents, Students, 
Teachers, Support 
Staff, Administration 
and Board 

Students will master computational 
skills and become effective problem 
solvers. 

Benchmark 
Assessments 
75% of students will 
make gains each 
trimester on the math 
benchmarks 

Parents, Students, 
Teachers, Support 
Staff, Administration 
and Board 

Students will demonstrate understanding 
of essential   concepts   and  issues  in  
science   and social  studies  that  are  
necessary  for  engaged local, national 
and global citizenship. 

Unit exams 
and 
performance 
tasks 

75% of students will 
score 
80% or higher 

Teachers, Support 
Staff and 
Administration 

As a graduation requirement, students 
will demonstrate  the  ability  to  select  
a  science  or social science research 
topic of genuine interest, make  and  
follow  a  plan  for  investigating  the 
topic, synthesize multiple sources of 
information in an original  written  
composition,  and present their findings 
before an audience of peers, staff, 
parents  and  community   members.     
This  exit project integrates core 
competencies in reading, writing, 
listening and speaking as outlined in 
the English Language Arts Standards 
with core competencies in historical 
analysis and scientific thinking  
outlined  in the  History/Social  Science 
and Science Standards. 

8th grade 
exhibitions, work 
process folder and 
final composition 
will be assessed 
using rubric criteria 
75 % of students 
will score a 3 
(proficient) or 4 
(advanced) on the 
rubric 

Teachers, Support 
Staff and 
Administration 



12
0 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 120 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

All English learners, and Spanish 
learners in the Two-Way Program, will 
demonstrate proficiency in their 
second language (listening, speaking, 
reading and writing). 

CELDT 
Students will gain 
one level on 
CELDT test and 
sub-tests every 1-2 
years 

 
90% of students who 
have been enrolled at 
OCEAA since 
kindergarten will be 
reclassified fluent 
English proficient by 
the 8th grade 

 
FLOSEM 
90% of students who 
have been enrolled in 
the Two- 

Parents, Students, 
Teachers, Support 
Staff, Administration 
and Board 



12
1 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 121 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
 Way program will 

demonstrate 
proficiency 
on the FLOSEM by 
the 8th 
grade 

 

Students will demonstrate cross-
cultural competencies by respecting, 
appreciating and understanding 
diverse cultures and individuals. 

Cross-cultural 
Assessment 
Survey 
75% of students 
will demonstrate 
proficiency on the 
cross-cultural 
competency 
assessment 

Teachers, Support 
Staff and 
Administration 

Students will demonstrate proficiency 
in all four art disciplines (music, 
theatre, dance and visual arts). 

Visual and 
Performing Arts 
Standards-based 
Assessments 
75% of students will 
demonstrate 
proficiency in 
designated grade 
level arts benchmarks 

Teachers, Support 
Staff and 
Administration 

Students will use technology as a 
tool that facilitates learning and 
creativity in order to access 
information, apply research skills, 
and solve problems in preparation 
for higher education and the world 
of work. 

National 
Educational 
Technology 
Standards- based 
Assessments 
75% of students will 
demonstrate 
proficiency in 
designated grade 
level technology 
benchmarks 

Teachers, Support 
Staff and 
Administration 

Students will meet or exceed 95% 
average student attendance rate. 

Attendance Data Parents, Students, 
Teachers, Support 
Staff, Administration 
and Board OCEAA will meet its Academic 

Performance Index (API) growth 
targets school-wide and for each sub-
group on an annual basis. 

API Scores 
Each year we will 
meet our API 
(overall and sub- 
groups) 

Parents, Students, 
Teachers, Support 
Staff, Administration 
and Board OCEAA will make Adequate Yearly 

Progress (AYP) as defined by the No 
Child Left Behind (NCLB) Act. 

AYP Reports 
Each there will be a 
15% gain in the 
number of students 
(overall and sub- 
groups) scoring 
Proficient or 
Advanced each year 
until we meet the 
AYP target 

Parents, Students, 
Teachers, Support 
Staff, Administration 
and Board 

 
Academic Performance Index 

 
It is the goal of OCEAA to meet its Academic Performance Index (API) growth targets on 
an annual basis. Our API is a reflection of students’ performance on the Standardized 
Testing and Reporting (STAR) program assessments in the subject areas of English 
Language Arts, Mathematics, Science and History. Our participation rate over the past 
three years on the STAR has remained steady at an average of 99.4%. 

 
Our scores reflect the tremendous effort over the past three years that our staff, students and 
community has made to first stabilize and subsequently increase API scores over that time 
span (see Chart 3.1).  As a result of our strategic planning with a third party review 



12
2 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 122 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

(Insight), in the 2008-2009 school year, we immediately began implementing the plan of 



12
3 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 123 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  

action to improve the academic performance of our students.  In September of 2009 we 
received our 2009 score of 660, which was an 18-point improvement and exceeded our 
growth target by 10 points, as set by the California Department of Education (CDE). 

	  
	  
	  
	  

Chart 3.1 OCEAA’s API  
	  

	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  

A common trend in charter schools is to see an initial high turnover of staff and students 
as parents and staff are trying to discover if OCEAA is the right fit for them.  OCEAA is 
no exception to this well-known trend. The first few years at OCEAA experienced a high 
rate of turn over of students, staff, and administration.  OCEAA’s data directly mirrored 
this instability as well as its current transition into a more stable and upward trend.  Our 
student population, staff and instructional program have stabilized and we are currently 
on a trajectory of increased academic gains because of our SPAA.  Our data reflects how 
resilient we are as a school in our ability to surpass the state target and stabilize. 

	  
In 2007 our API scores reflected a 45-point decrease.  In July 2007, the groundwork was 
laid for the current upward trajectory we are now experiencing.  In 2008 our API scores 
stabilized, reflecting the unwavering focus of OCEAA staff, students and community on 
student achievement (Chart 3.2). 

	  
Chart 3.2 API  

 



12
4 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 124 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

As a result of this relentless and continued effort, focus and commitment to implement the 
SPAA, OCEAA surpassed the 2009 growth target of 8 points by 10 points, reflecting an 
overall 18-point gain. This 18-point gain exceeds the state average of 14 points and is 
comparable to the district’s average of 21 points for the 2008/09 school year as seen in Chart 
3.3. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chart 3.3 Comparable API 
Scores 

 
 
 
In 2009, OCEAA met its school-wide API target and two of its three sub-group targets: 
Hispanic/Latino and Socio-economically Disadvantaged (SES) students.  In the past two 
years, all three of OCEAA’s sub-groups have made gains in their API scores.  As Chart 
3.4  demonstrates,  the  Hispanic/Latino  subgroup  has  shown  a  23-point  gain,  the 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged subgroup has made 52-point gains and our English 
Learner (EL) subgroup has made 14-point gains over the past two years. 

 
Chart 3.4 Sub-Group 
Growth 

 



12
5 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 125 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
As we analyze our longitudinal data, we have seen positive gains over the past three 
years. In 2007, OCEAA did not make its school-wide API or any of the sub-group API 
targets. As Table 3.2 shows, in 2008, OCEAA did not meet its school-wide API, but did meet 
two of the three sub-group targets (Socioeconomically Disadvantaged and English 



12
6 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 126 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Learners). In 2009, OCEAA met its school-wide API and two of the three sub-group API 
targets (Hispanic/Latino and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged). We anticipate that due to 
our focused efforts on our SPAA, in 2010 we will make our school-wide API as well as the 
targets for all three of our sub-groups. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 3.2 API Targets 
Met 

API School-wide Hispanic/Latino SES EL 
2007 NO NO NO NO 
2008 NO NO YES YES 
2009 YES YES YES NO 

Projected 2010 YES YES YES YES 
 

In order to ensure our 2010 projection of all sub-groups meeting API targets, we will 
continue to implement our SPAA with a particular focus on our ELs. Teachers have 
participated in professional development targeted at supporting effective second language 
instruction. They have also identified all ELs in their classrooms and differentiate instruction 
according to their CELDT and CST levels. In addition, teachers have created pacing guides 
to map out when essential standards will be taught. Our benchmark assessments help 
teachers identify which students have mastered those standards (see sample pacing guide in 
Exhibit K). 

 
Adequate Yearly Progress 

 
OCEAA strives to make adequate yearly progress (AYP as defined by the No Child Left 
Behind Act (NCLB). Tables 3.3 and 3.4 represent the growth that OCEAA has made over the 
past three years toward meeting its AYP. Over time, we are showing gains and our focus 
over the next five years will be on continuing to implement our SPAA and monitoring 
student growth at the individual level. 

 
Table 3.3 English Language Arts Annual Yearly Progress 
Targets Met 

AYP-ELA School-wide Hispanic/Latino SES EL 
2007 YES NO NO NO 
2008 NO NO NO NO 
2009 NO NO YES* NO 

Projected 2010 YES YES YES YES 
 

Table 3.4 Mathematics Annual Yearly Progress Targets Met 
AYP-Math School-wide Hispanic/Latino SES EL 

2007 YES** NO NO NO 



12
7 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 127 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

2008 NO NO NO NO 
2009 YES* YES* YES* NO 

Projected 2010 YES YES YES YES 
STATE PRIORITY #1— BASIC SERVICES 

The degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned (E.C. §44258.9) and fully credentialed, and 
every pupil has sufficient access to standards-aligned instructional materials (E.C. § 60119), and 
school facilities are maintained in good repair (E.C. §17002(d)) 

SUBPRIORITY A – TEACHERS 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

100% of core teachers will hold a valid CA Teaching Credential with 
appropriate English learner authorization as defined by the CA Commission on 
Teaching Credentialing, and 100% of credentialed teachers will be appropriately 
assigned 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

All core teacher candidates screened for employment will hold valid CA 
Teaching Credential with appropriate English learner and bilingual instruction 
authorizations; Human Resources Manager will annually review credential 
status 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Core teachers will hold a valid CA Teaching Credential with appropriate 
English learner authorization and bilingual instruction authorizations as defined 
by the CA Commission on Teaching Credentialing 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Initial and annual verification of core teacher credential as reported by the CA 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing; CALPADS Report 3.5 NCLB Core 
Course Section Compliance; Annual publication of School Accountability 
Report Card 

SUBPRIORITY B – INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

Students will have access to high quality instructional materials that support 
mastery of CA Common Core State Standards and 21st century skills as outlined 
in our charter petition 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

All instructional materials purchased will be aligned to CA Common Core State 
Standards and 21st century skills as outlined in our charter petition 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

100% of pupils will have access to standards-aligned materials and additional 
instructional materials as outlined in OCEAA’s charter petition 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Principal and staff review all instructional materials before purchase pursuant to 
E.C. § 60119 

SUBPRIORITY C – FACILITIES  

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

All students and staff will work in a healthy, safe and secure environment that 
supports achievement 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Daily general cleaning by custodial staff will maintain campus cleanliness using 
only “green” products; Annual and monthly facility inspections will screen for 



12
8 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 128 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

safety hazards 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Annually, 90% of all items on Monthly site inspection checklists and 90% of 
Facility Inspection checklists will be in compliance/good standing and 100% of 
identified Required Corrections will be corrected within three months. Daily 
cleanliness spot checks will also be performed. 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Monthly site inspection documents prepared by Director of Operations; Annual 
Facility Inspection Reports 

STATE PRIORITY #2— IMPLEMENTATION OF COMMON CORE STATE STANDARDS  

Implementation of Common Core State Standards, including how EL students will be enabled to gain 
academic content knowledge and English language proficiency 

SUBPRIORITY A – CCSS IMPLEMENTATION 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

All core teachers will participate in annual professional development on the 
implementation of Common Core State Standards and Smarter Balanced Interim 
Assessments 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Train teachers in recently adopted Go Math! materials, Cognitively Guided 
Instruction and close reading; train teachers in administering and scoring 
Smarter Balanced Interim Assessments twice annually to measure progress  

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Annually, core teachers will participate in at least 10 hours of Professional 
Development (PD) and trainings in CCSS. 
Annually, students in grades 3-8 will participate in two Smarter Balanced 
Interim Assessment administrations 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

PD calendar, sign in sheets and classroom walkthroughs will demonstrate 
participation and application of PD activities. 
Assessment calendar, Smarter Balanced Interim Assessment data  

SUBPRIORITY B – EL STUDENTS & ACADEMIC CONTENT KNOWLEDGE 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

EL students will gain academic content knowledge through the implementation 
of CCSS aligned instruction and assessment 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

ELs participate in CCSS-aligned instruction with language support from the 
integration of the ELA/ELD framework in all content areas; ELs receive 
interventions as indicated by analysis of assessment data 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Annually, an increasing percentage of ELs will gain academic content 
knowledge in math, English language arts, science, and history/social science 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

EL student performance on the CCSS Smarter Balanced Assessments (SBA), 
teacher designed assessments, annual report cards 

SUBPRIORITY C – EL STUDENTS & ENGLISH LANGUAGE PROFICIENCY 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
EL students will gain English language proficiency through instruction that 
aligns the CA ELD Standards with the CCSS for English Language Arts and 



12
9 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 129 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

SUBPRIORITY literacy in History/Social Studies and Science  

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Teachers of ELs participate in at least 10 hours of professional development 
activities to align the ELA/ELD framework with CCSS ELA/Literacy standards. 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Annually, an increasing percentage of EL students will reach English language 
proficiency within five years of initial classification as English Learner  

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Student performance on CELDT, internal assessment data, EL Reclassification 
and RFEP monitoring by Title III Coordinator; PD calendar, sign in sheets and 
classroom walkthroughs will demonstrate participation and application of PD 
activities. 

STATE PRIORITY #3— PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT 
Parental involvement, including efforts to seek parent input for making decisions for schools, and how 
the school will promote parent participation 

SUBPRIORITY A – ACHIEVING/MAINTAINING PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

Maintain parent representation and leadership 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

OCEAA will promote and work with parent leadership organizations including 
but not limited to Families Supporting OCEAA (FSO), English Learner 
Advisory Council (ELAC), and a School Site Council 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Annually, OCEAA will maintain parent representation and leadership  

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

FSO, ELAC and School Site Council agendas and minutes  

SUBPRIORITY B – PROMOTING PARENT PARTICIPATION 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

Promote parent volunteer opportunities through a Parent Volunteer Coordinator 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

School administration will work with the Parent Volunteer Coordinator to solicit 
a volunteer list that the coordinator will organize based on expertise and 
availability. 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Annually, at least 50% of parents will volunteer at OCEAA at least once 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

The Parent Volunteer Coordinator will create an annual report that will 
document all volunteer hours spent at the charter school 

SUBPRIORITY C - SURVEYS 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

Solicit parent feedback via annual satisfaction surveys 

ACTIONS TO Annually, OCEAA school administration will conduct school satisfaction 



13
0 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 130 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

ACHIEVE GOAL assessments to generate strategies for improvement. Results of parent 
satisfaction surveys will be presented to the OCEAA Board of Directors for 
discussion and follow-up. 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Community results for the survey will indicate at least 75% overall satisfaction 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Results and reports of community satisfaction surveys will be shared with 
parents, OCEAA Board members, and staff upon completion of analysis 

STATE PRIORITY #4— STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT 

Pupil achievement, as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 
H. CA Measurement of Academic Progress and Performance statewide assessment 
I. The Academic Performance Index (API) 
J. Percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy UC/CSU entrance 

requirements, or career technical education 
K. Percentage of ELs who make progress toward English language proficiency as measured by 

the California English Language Development Test (CELDT) and/or English Language 
Proficiency Assessment for California (ELPAC) 

L. EL reclassification rate 
M. Percentage of pupils who have passed an AP exam with a score of 3 or higher 
N. Percentage of pupils who participate in and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to the 

Early Assessment Program (E.C. §99300 et seq.) or any subsequent assessment of college 
preparedness 

SUBPRIORITY A – CCSS SBA: ELA/LITERACY AND MATHEMATICS 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

Students at every applicable grade level, including all student subgroups, score 
proficient or higher on the CCSS Smarter Balanced Assessment (SBA) in the 
area of English Language Arts/Literacy and Mathematics 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Positive school climate, classroom instruction that integrates the arts and 
technology; appropriate CCSS aligned instructional materials; implementation 
of intervention programs to assist at-risk students  

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Annually, OCEAA will receive a five (5) or better score in the similar schools 
band. 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

CCSS SBA reports 

SUBPRIORITY B – API 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

OCEAA, including all student subgroups, will meet the annual API Growth 
Target, or equivalent, as mandated by the CA State Board of Education 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Classroom instruction will align to CCSS, students will receive targeted 
interventions through the RtI process, teachers will receive PD in prioritized 
areas to facilitate ongoing program inprovement 

MEASURABLE OCEAA, including all student subgroups, will meet the annual API Growth 



13
1 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 131 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

OUTCOME Target or equivalent as mandated by the CA State Board of Education 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

API Reports or equivalent as determined by the CA Department of Education 

SUBPRIORITY C – UC/CSU COURSE GRADE REQUIREMENTS (OR CTE) 

GRADE LEVELS NOT APPLICABLE TO CHARTER SCHOOL 

SUBPRIORITY D – EL PROFICIENCY RATES 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

ELs will become English Proficient within 5 years of entering language 
instruction educational programs 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Carefully grouping primary grade ELs for ELD instruction, carefully integrating 
ELA/ELD framework into secondary instruction, identifying specific targets for 
language learning, assessing learning through standards-referenced assessments 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Annually, an increasing percentage of EL students will reach English language 
proficiency within 5 years of initial classification as English Learner  

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Student performance on CELDT, internal assessment data, EL Reclassification 
and RFEP monitoring by Title III Coordinator 

SUBPRIORITY E – EL RECLASSIFICATION RATES 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

OCEAA will maintain a 20% reclassification rate annually 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Close monitoring and support for students who achieved language proficiency 
on the CELDT but did not meet additional requirements for reclassification 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Reclassification rate will be at or above 20% annually 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Bi-annual review of student eligibility to reclassify based on state and OCEAA 
criteria (CELDT, report card grades, SBA scores, etc.) conducted by Title III 
Coordinator 

SUBPRIORITY F – AP EXAM PASSAGE RATE 

GRADE LEVELS NOT APPLICABLE TO CHARTER SCHOOL 

SUBPRIORITY G – COLLEGE PREPAREDNESS/EAP 

GRADE LEVELS NOT APPLICABLE TO CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATE PRIORITY #5— STUDENT ENGAGEMENT 
 Pupil engagement, as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

F. School attendance rates 
G. Chronic absenteeism rates 
H. Middle school dropout rates (EC §52052.1(a)(3)) 
I. High school dropout rates 



13
2 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 132 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

J. High school graduation rates 

SUBPRIORITY A – STUDENT ATTENDANCE RATES 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

OCEAA will maintain a 95% ADA rate 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

OCEAA will provide a safe and engaging learning environment for all its 
students and families, including those of the various subgroups enrolled 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Annual Average Daily Attendance will be at least 95% 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Monthly, quarterly, and annual ADA reports; periodic attendance updates to 
families reminding them of the importance of in-school attendance as the 
primary way of learning and success. 

SUBPRIORITY B – STUDENT ABSENTEEISM RATES 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

Students will not have more than five absences in any school year 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Parents will be informed of chronic absences as specified in school-family 
handbook 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

80% of enrolled students will have fewer than five absences during any one 
school year 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

End of term absence and tardy reports from our student information system. 
Periodic attendance updates to families reminding them of the importance of in-
school attendance as the primary way of learning and success. Evidence of 
success, is determined by monthly, quarterly, and annual attendance reports 

SUBPRIORITY C – MIDDLE SCHOOL DROPOUT RATE 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

OCEAA students will not dropout. 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

OCEAA’s Registrar will maintain communication with families of students who 
dis-enroll, and email/phone records with new institutions, until transfer of 
official documents has occurred. 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

OCEAA will maintain middle school dropout rates at or below the district 
average. 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Records maintained in PowerSchool, OCEAA’s school information system, 
phone/email records that confirm receipt of documents at new institutions for 
transfer students.  

SUBPRIORITY D – HIGH SCHOOL DROPOUT RATES 

 GRADE LEVELS NOT APPLICABLE TO CHARTER SCHOOL 

SUBPRIORITY E – HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION RATES 



13
3 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 133 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

GRADE LEVELS NOT APPLICABLE TO CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATE PRIORITY #6— SCHOOL CLIMATE 
School climate, as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

D. Pupil suspension rates 
E. Pupil expulsion rates 
F. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety 

and school connectedness 
SUBPRIORITY A – PUPIL SUSPENSION RATES 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

OCEAA will maintain an annual suspension rate of less than 5% 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

OCEAA staff will implement a strong Tier 1 discipline plan using the Positive 
Behavior Interventions and Supports (PBIS) approach; when Tier 1 
interventions are not successful, individualized intervention plans are created 
with students and parents to manage behavior issues and concerns 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Annually, 5% or fewer of all enrolled students will be suspended 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Annual School Accountability Report Card & Annual Report and CALPADS 
Report 7.1; PowerSchool and Office Referral/SWIS data  

SUBPRIORITY B – PUPIL EXPULSION RATES 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

OCEAA will maintain an annual expulsion rate of less than 1% 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

OCEAA staff will implement a strong Tier 1 discipline plan using the Positive 
Behavior Interventions and Supports approach; when Tier 1 interventions are 
not successful, individualized intervention plans are created with students and 
parents to manage behavior issues and concerns 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Annually, 1% or fewer of enrolled students will be expelled 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Annual School Accountability Report Card & Annual Report and CALPADS 
Report 7.1; PowerSchool and Office Referral /SWIS data 

SUBPRIORITY C – OTHER SCHOOL SAFETY AND SCHOOL CONNECTEDNESS MEASURES 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

OCEAA students and staff will adhere to the School Emergency Response Plan 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Annually, all school employees will be trained on the elements of the School 
Emergency Response Plan. Students and staff will participate in Fire, 
Earthquake, and other safety drills. 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

100% of staff will participate in at least four hours of Emergency Response 
training; Students will participate in at least four fire, earthquake or safety drills 



13
4 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 134 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

annually 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Professional Development agenda and annual drill calendars 

SUBPRIORITY D - SURVEYS 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

Students, parents and teachers will feel a sense of community and safety on 
campus 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Administration will devise and administer satisfaction surveys to parents, 
students, and teachers annually. A variety of engaging co-curricular 
opportunities will further enhance students’ sense of belonging and community. 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Annually, at least 80% of students and families will be satisfied with the safety 
and school climate on surveys and the retention rate will be 90% or higher 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Parent, student and teacher satisfaction surveys will provide information 
regarding their sense of connectedness and community 
Attendance and participation by students in campus events will evidence their 
sense of belonging and engagement 
Annual reenrollment documentation and class lists will reflect a return rate of at 
least 90% 

STATE PRIORITY #7— COURSE ACCESS 
The extent to which pupils have access to, and are enrolled in, a broad course of study, including 
programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated students (classified as EL, FRPM-
eligible, or foster youth; E.C. §42238.02) and students with exceptional needs.  
“Broad course of study” includes the following, as applicable: 
Grades 1-6: English, mathematics, social sciences, science, visual and performing arts, health, physical 
education, and other as prescribed by the governing board. (E.C. §51210) 
Grades 7-12: English, social sciences, foreign language(s), physical education, science, mathematics, 
visual and performing arts, applied arts, and career technical education. (E.C. §51220(a)-(i)) 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

OCEAA students, including all student subgroups, will have access to and enroll 
in our academic and educational program as outlined in the OCEAA’s Charter 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

All academic content areas will be available to all students, including student 
subgroups, at all grade levels 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Annually, 100% of students, including all student subgroups, unduplicated 
students, and students with exceptional needs, will have access to and enroll in 
all core and non-core subjects content areas available 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Student, teacher, course, and grade level schedules 

STATE PRIORITY #8— PUPIL OUTCOMES- ACADEMIC EXCELLENCE DOMAIN: ENGLISH 
LANGUAGE ARTS 



13
5 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 135 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

From the subject areas described above in #7, as applicable. 

SUBPRIORITY A - ENGLISH 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

All students, including all student subgroups, unduplicated students, and 
students with exceptional needs, will demonstrate grade level proficiency in 
English Language Arts/Literacy. 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Common Core aligned instructional guides and benchmarks, training in close 
reading strategies, integration and application of instructional technology, and 
goal setting based on data for all students. 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Annually, OCEAA’s average will be at or above the district average for 
performance in the area of English Language Arts/Literacy. 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

CCSS SBA results, API or equivalent 

SUBPRIORITY B - MATHEMATICS 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

All students, including all student subgroups, unduplicated students, and 
students with exceptional needs, will demonstrate grade level proficiency in 
Mathematics. 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Common Core aligned instructional guides and benchmarks, training in Go 
Math! materials and Cognitively Guided Instruction, integration and application 
of instructional technology, and goal setting based on data for all students. 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Annually, OCEAA’s average will be at or above the district average for 
performance in the area of Mathematics. 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

CCSS SBA results, API or equivalent 

SUBPRIORITY C – SOCIAL SCIENCES 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

All students, including all student subgroups, unduplicated students, and 
students with exceptional needs, will demonstrate grade level skills and content 
knowledge in the social sciences. 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Training in Common Core History/Social Science Literacy Standards, 
ELA/ELD framework, close reading strategies and Document Based Questions, 
and integration and application of instructional technology to enhance content 
knowledge 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Annually, 70% of all students, including all student subgroups, will demonstrate 
satisfactory performance through internal summative assessments (until such 
time that State assessments are made available) 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Formal summative assessments include: benchmarks, essay exams, 
presentations, projects, and student report cards 

SUBPRIORITY D – SCIENCE 



13
6 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 136 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

All students, including all student subgroups, will demonstrate grade level skills 
and content knowledge in the sciences. 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Training in Next Generation Science Standards, Common Core Science Literacy 
Standards, ELA/ELD framework, close reading strategies, and integration and 
application of instructional technology to enhance content knowledge 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Annually, an increasing percentage of students in grades 5 and 8, including all 
student subgroups, will attain proficiency on the Science CST  

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Science CST reports 

SUBPRIORITY E – PHYSICAL EDUCATION 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

All students, including all student subgroups, will demonstrate physical fitness. 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

The playground team will implement an “Active play” recess program TK-8, 
and develop a standards–based PE scope a sequence for TK-6 that scaffolds 
physical fitness and development. 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

50% of all students, including all student subgroups, will pass the State Physical 
Fitness Test  

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Physical Fitness Test results  

SUBPRIORITY F – FOREIGN LANGUAGES 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

All students in the Two-Way Immersion Program, including all student 
subgroups, will demonstrate grade level skills and content in Spanish. 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

Dual Immersion Committee and DI Coordinator will conduct training in Dual 
Language Guiding Principles and 90:10 model, DI Coordinator will provide 
ongoing support through co-planning, demonstration, observation and coaching 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Annually, 70% of all students, including all student subgroups, will demonstrate 
satisfactory performance through formal assessments in Spanish 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Formal assessments include: Aprenda/Standards Tests in Spanish exams, AR 
STAR results, DRA, essay exams, presentations, projects, and student report 
cards 

SUBPRIORITY G – VISUAL AND PERFORMING ARTS 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

All students, including all student subgroups, will demonstrate grade level skills 
and content knowledge in the arts. 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

OCEAA’s Arts Coordinator will: 1) coordinate professional development and 
instruction in the arts TK-8; 2) secure access to programs and resources (such as 
Artists–in-Residence) that support access to high quality art experiences, and 3) 



13
7 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 137 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

provide support to teachers through demonstrations, modeling, and co-planning  

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

100% of students will participate in a high-quality performance or presentation 
of their artwork to the OCEAA community and/or general public at least once 
annually 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Master calendar of art events (school assemblies, class productions, Holiday and 
End of Year Extravaganzas, OCMA Family day, etc.) maintained by Arts 
Coordinator 

SUBPRIORITY G – OTHER SUBJECTS – SOCIAL AND CIVIC RESPONSIBILITY 

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SUBPRIORITY 

All students will demonstrate social and civic responsibility based on the ORCA 
way: Organization, Respect, Careful, Accepting Responsibility 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

OCEAA staff will model, teach and recognize ORCA behaviors daily and over 
time to build a safe and caring community; PBIS committee will develop and 
publicize a citizenship rubric aligned to ORCA behaviors; Peer Conflict 
Mediator Coordinators will train a cadre of students to be conflict managers 
through the Peer Assistance Leadership program (PAL)  

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Annually, 85% of students will earn Satisfactory or Excellent citizenship grades 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Citizenship report card page aligned to citizenship rubric 

SCHOOL PRIORITY #1— ACHIEVEMENT OF TWO WAY IMMERSION PROGRAM VISION TO CREATE 
BILITERATE, BILINGUAL AND BICULTURAL STUDENTS 
The extent to which pupils have opportunities to develop biliteracy, bilingualism and biculturalisn  

GOAL TO ACHIEVE  
SCHOOL PRIORITY  

Transform school culture to increase Spanish as the preferred language of 
communication during non-instructional interactions, and infuse core units with 
wide exposure to Spanish and Latin American-themed content 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

OCEAA’s Dual Immersion Committee will: 1) study current use of English as 
default language and plan positive reinforcement to increase the use of Spanish; 
and 2) create a professional development plan to increase the integration of 
authentic Spanish/Latin American literature, history, arts and culture content 
into core units of instruction 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Articulated professional development plans for increasing the use of Spanish 
and the integrating authentic Spanish/Latin American literature, history, arts and 
culture content into core units of instruction  

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Dual immersion committee agendas, sign in, minutes and work products 

SCHOOL PRIORITY #2— STANDARDS BASED REPORT CARDS 
The extent to which the information shared in report cards provides students and parents with 
meaningful information about current levels of student achievement as defined by standards 



13
8 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 138 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

GOAL TO ACHIEVE 
SCHOOL PRIORITY  

OCEAA’s report cards and gradebook practices communicate student 
achievement in ways that are consistent, meaningful, accurate, and supportive of 
learning 

ACTIONS TO 
ACHIEVE GOAL 

The Instructional Leadership Team will develop a grading policy and make a 
plan to phase in adjustments to grading and evaluation practices to ensure report 
card grades communicate student achievement in ways that are consistent, 
meaningful, accurate, and supportive of learning; teachers will implement first 
round changes to grading and assessment practices 

MEASURABLE 
OUTCOME 

Board adoption of grading policy and consistent implementation of first round 
adjustments by teachers 

METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENT 

Board agenda and minutes, PD agendas and minutes, review of PowerTeacher 
Gradebooks and report cards by administrative team and ILT, comparison of 
report card data to Smarter Balanced Assessment reports and other quality 
internal assessment data. 

 

 

 

 

*=MET BY SAFE HARBOR 



13
9 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 139 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

**=MET BY TWO-YEAR AVERAGE 
 
One of the key components to the NCLB act is the ability to follow student progress over time. 
The primary advantage of longitudinal data is to be able to measure change and identify trends 
that impact student achievement and to use this information to make adjustments to the 
educational program provided to each individual student. By analyzing longitudinal data, 
OCEAA monitors the effect of various factors on individual student achievement. We also gage 
the overall effectiveness of individual teachers and grade 
level instructional programs by disaggregating the data. In addition, we monitor the 
progress of cohorts of students as they move through our K-8 program to ensure 
preparedness for higher education. 

 
Our longitudinal data (see report in Exhibit L) serves as a window into the past as well as the 
future. Our current outlook shows a positive trend towards meeting and exceeding state-
identified targets. 

 

  



14
0 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 140 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

ELEMENT 3 
 
Governing Law: The method by which pupil progress in meeting those pupil outcomes is to be 
measured. To the extent practicable, the method for measuring pupil outcomes for state 
priorities shall be consistent with the way information is reported on a school accountability 
report card. 
 
California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(C) 
 
 
 
METHODS OF ASSESSMENT 
 

Governing Law:  The method by which pupil progress in meeting those pupil outcomes is 
measured. --California Education Code Section 47605(b) (5) (C) 

 
To meet the needs for evaluation and accountability and to provide information to teachers, 
students, parents, community and Board, OCEAA has established a standards- based evaluation 
and accountability system pursuant to EC60602.5 consisting of the following components: 
 

a. Content and Performance Standards  
b. Assessments 
c. Data Collection 
d. Data Management 
e. Reporting and Analyses 
f. Utilization of Student and Program Data 

 
a.   Content and Performance Standards b.   
Assessment 

c.   Data Collection 
d.   Data Management 
e.   Reporting and Analyses 
f. Utilization of Student and Program Data 

 
OCEAA participates in the standards-based California Academic Performance Index (API) 
Accountability System and will continue to comply with all present and future state assessment 
requirements. All students are assessed with the state designated standardized test according to 
the Standardized Testing and Report Program (STAR)California Assessment of Student 
Performance and Progress (CAASPP)..   ELs  will be assessed annually with the CELDT test.  
 
Assessment methods described in this Element as well as included in the chart in Element 2 are 
aligned to the Eight State Priorities and demonstrate multiple measures for each subject area. The 
Charter School affirms that its methods for measuring pupil outcomes for the Eight State 
Priorities, as described in Element 2, shall be consistent with the way information is reported on 
a School Accountability Report Card as required by Education Code Section 47605.6(b)(5)(C). 
 



14
1 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 141 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

In addition, other measures of student achievement are used as an ongoing part of the quality 
instructional program at OCEAA.  Multiple measures are used for each subject area of the 
core curriculum including ELD. Types of measures used include: 
 

a. Criterion-referenced tests 
b. Holistic and analytical rubrics 
c. Checklists 
d. Questionnaires and surveys 
e. Written, fill in the blank, and multiple choice responses 
f. Diagnostic and benchmark assessments 
g. Grade point average 
h. Teacher observation measures 
i. Performance-based assessments in core content areas 
j. Ratings of work in student portfolios 
k. Grade-level promotional rates, including reclassification rates 
l. Rates of referrals to special programs and services 
 Rates of attendance, participation, completion, and suspension 
m.  

a.   Criterion-referenced tests 
b.   Grade  point  average (GPA)  (see  Exhibit M,  page  12  for  OCEAA’s  grading 
policy) 
c.   Teacher observation measures/checklists using rubrics or other scoring schemes 



14
2 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 142 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

d.   Performance-based assessments in core content areas e.   
Ratings of work in student portfolios 
f. Grade-level promotional rates, including reclassification rates g.   
Rates of referrals to special programs and services 
h.   Rates of attendance, participation, completion, and suspension 

	  
A system of classroom assessment portfolios maintained for each student provides an accessible 
record of student data in reading, writing, math, art and technology.  Regular review of these 
classroom portfolios provides students with an opportunity for self- assessment and goal setting 
in conjunction with our assessment calendar. (see Table 3.5). 
	  
	  
	  
Multiple Measures of Assessment 
	  
K-2nd 
 
Spanish Language Arts/ELD  Writing Math 
o Spanish High Frequency 

Words (RESULTS) 
o DRA Spanish 
o BPST Spanish  
o Spanish STAR Reading 

Assessment (Accelerated 
Reader) 

o ADEPT 
o FLOSOM 

o Beginning, middle and end 
of year Writing Prompt in 
Spanish scored using 
CCSS aligned 6 Traits 
rubric  

 

o Quarterly CCSS aligned 
benchmark assessments 
on standards taught  

 

 
3rd-5th 
 
SLA/ELA/ELD Writing Math 
o Spanish and English High 

Frequency Words 
(RESULTS) 

o DRA Spanish & English 
o BPST Spanish & English 
o Spanish & English STAR 

Reading Assessment 
(Accelerated Reader) 

o ADEPT 
o FLOSOM 
o SBAC Interim 

Assessments (proposed 
for 2015) 

o Beginning, middle and end 
of year Writing Prompts in 
Spanish and English 
scored using CCSS 
aligned 6 Traits rubric  

o SBAC Interim 
Assessments (proposed for 
2015-16) 
 

 

o Quarterly CCSS aligned 
benchmark assessments 
on standards taught  

o SBAC Interim 
Assessments (proposed 
for 2015-16) 

 

 
6th-8th 
 



14
3 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 143 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

SLA/ELA/ELD Writing Math 
o Spanish & English STAR 

Reading Assessment 
(Accelerated Reader) 

o ADEPT 
o FLOSOM 
o Mid-year integrated 

reading and writing 
Performance Task  

o SBAC Interim 
Assessments (proposed 
for 2015) 

o Beginning and end of year 
Writing Prompts in 
Spanish and English 
scored using CCSS 
aligned 6 Traits rubric 

o Mid-year integrated 
reading and writing 
Performance Task  

o SBAC Interim 
Assessments (proposed for 
2015) 

o Quarterly CCSS aligned 
benchmark assessments 
on standards taught  

o SBAC Interim 
Assessments (proposed 
for 2015-16) 

o  
 

Table 3.5 OCEAA’s Assessment Calendar 
Beginning of Year End of Trimester 1 End of Trimester 2 End of Trimester 3 
Math Benchmark Math Benchmark Math Benchmark Math Benchmark 
Writing Benchmark Writing Benchmark Writing Benchmark Writing Benchmark 
Reading 
Assessments 

Reading 
Assessments 

Reading 
Assessments 

Reading 
Assessments 

Goal setting 
conferences 

Data Conference Data Conference for 
students in RTI 
process 

Final report card 

ADEPT** ADEPT** ADEPT** ADEPT** 
FLOSEM for ELs 
and Spanish 
Learners in Two- 
Way Program 

ELA Benchmark* ELA Benchmark* ELA Benchmark* ELA Benchmark* 
Art Assessment Art Assessment Art Assessment Art Assessment 
N/A N/A N/A Technology 

Benchmark 
N/A N/A N/A Cultural 

Competency 
Assessment** 

*=2009/10 Middle School Only, for 2010/11 All Students 
**=Implementation scheduled for 2009/10 

	  
In core academic classes and including the arts and technology, scoring guides are provided to 
students as a scoring measure that is used to assess what students know and can do.  The scoring 
guides define what students are expected to achieve and have a scale of degrees of 
accomplishment built into it.  In addition, criterion-referenced tests, end-of- unit tests, 
performance-based assessments, homework completion and class participation form the basis of 
evaluating student performance and determining student grades. 
	  
In the arts, assessment of student work consists of portfolios, curriculum-embedded assessments, 
student performances (group or individual), and formal assessments (such as open-ended 
problems). 



14
4 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 144 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

). 



14
5 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 145 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

	  
Assessments of subject matter areas such as mathematics, science, social science, language arts 
and other courses required for grade-level promotion are administered, whenever possible, to 
ELs in the language in which they are best able to demonstrate their knowledge of the subject 
matter. 
	  
Teachers review assessment data on an ongoing basis to identify general areas of needed 
improvement, modify curriculum and course content to meet those needs, gather new or 
additional instructional resources, and create new assessments to measure continued progress.. 
The primary advantage of this longitudinal data is to be able to measure change and identify 
trends that impact student achievement and to use this information to make adjustments to the 
educational program provided to each individual student. By analyzing longitudinal data, 
OCEAA monitors the effect of various factors on individual student achievement. We also gage 
the overall effectiveness of individual teachers and grade level instructional programs by 
disaggregating the data. In addition, we monitor the progress of cohorts of students as they move 
through our TK-8 program to ensure preparedness for higher education. 
 
Use and Reporting of Data 
 
USE AND REPORTING OF DATA 
 
OCEAA will compile and provide to the OCEAA Community, OCEAA Board and Santa Ana 
Unified School District Board of Education an annual performance report. This report will, 
at a minimum, include the following data: student achievement, governance and finances. 
 
OCEAA  and  OCEAA’s  Board  of  Directors  jointly  develop  the  content,  evaluation  
criteria, timelines and process for the annual performance report. OCEAA uses the information 
compiled in the performance audit to evaluate and improve upon its educational programming as 
necessary, including the School Accountability Report Card (SARC). 
 
OCEAA and the District Board of Education will also jointly develop a site visitation process 
and protocol to enable the grantor to gather information needed to confirm OCEAA's 
performance and compliance with the terms of this charter. Pursuant to Education Code Section 
47604.3 the Charter School promptly responds to all reasonable inquiries, including, but not 
limited to inquiries regarding its financial records from the District. OCEAA automatically 
submits all financial reports required under Education Code Section 47604.33 and 47605(m). 
 
Attendance 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
OCEAA strives, on average, to achieve at least 95% student attendance and will meet or exceed 
the minimum number of days and minutes required by the state (see Exhibit “I” for the 
Academic School Calendar and Bell Schedule) (see Exhibit N for 
2009/10 school calendar and bell schedule and Exhibit I for the 2009/10 instructional 
minutes). Over the past four yearsterm, OCEAA’s average attendance rate has consistently  



14
6 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 146 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

exceeded the 95% target. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



14
7 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 147 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

ELEMENT 4 
 
Governing Law: The governance structure of the school, including, but not limited to, the 
process to be followed by the school to ensure parental involvement. 
 
California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(D) 
 
 
 
While 



14
8 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 148 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
IV.     GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE (ELEMENT 4) 
 
Governing Law: The governance structure of OCEAA, including, but not limited to, the process 
to be followed by OCEAA to ensure parental involvement— 
California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(D) 
 
While OCEAA intends to collaborate with the District, the school operates as a separate legal 
entity, independent of the District. OCEAA is being operated as a duly constituted California 
nonprofit public benefit corporation, and is governed in accordance with applicable California 
Corporations Code Sections and its adopted bylaws which are consistent with the terms of this 
charter (attached as Exhibit “J”O). As provided for in the California Corporations Code, 
OCEAA is governed by its board of directors, whose members have a legal fiduciary 
responsibility for the well being of OCEAA. 
	  
Pursuant to Education Code Section 47604(c), the District in performing its oversight of the 
Charter School as required by Education Code Section 47604.32, is not liable for the debts and 
obligations of OCEAA or for claims arising from the performance of acts, errors, or omissions 
by the charter school or its employees, representatives, board members, officers, or agents. 
 
Non-Profit Board of Directors 
	  
NON-PROFIT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
	  
OCEAA is governed by a Board of Directors,  made up of between seven (7) and nine (9) 
members, including any District appointee(s).  The names and bios of the current Board 
members  are  attached  as  Exhibit  “K”P.    Future  Board  members  shall  be  selected  in 
accordance with the corporate bylaws to represent parents, the arts community, educators, and the 
District. All Board members are selected with skills and experience to match their board 
responsibilities.  The District Board of Education may also appoint up to two Board appointees 
to serve on OCEAA’s Board of Directors. 
	  
The OCEAA Board meets on a regular basis, at least every other month, to advise OCEAA on 
the operations of OCEAA, staff, teachers, and students. Similarly, it advises on  curriculum,  
instruction,  fundraising,  and  governance,  all  with  the  purpose   of increasing student 
academic and artistic achievement. 
	  
The Board of Directors has a responsibility to solicit input from, and opinions of, the parents 
of OCEAA’s students regarding issues of significance and to weigh the input and opinions 
carefully before taking action. The primary method for executing their responsibility is the 
adoption of policies that offer guidance and interpretation of the charter and  procedures  to  
assist  the  staff  in  facilitating  the  implementation  of  such policies (see Exhibit “L”Q for 
OCEAA’s organizational chart). At the end of last year, through our family survey, we noticed 
that communication between families and the Board was an area of growth. This year, Tthe 
Board has workedcontinues to work on to soliciting parent engagementbridge this 
communication gap in a variety of ways including, but not limited to: attending school events, 



14
9 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 149 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

participating in open communication forums, regular updates through the through the school 
newsletter school 



15
0 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 150 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

newsletter (The OCEAA Times), and being on campus to be available to parents. We have 
noticed, though Tthese efforts have increased communication and dialogue within our 
community. 
 
The Directors meet regularly and as needed and will be responsible for carrying out  
Board responsibilities including but not limited to the following: 
 

• Hiring and evaluating the principal of OCEAA. 
• Approving and monitoring the implementation of general policies of OCEAA.  These   

include   effective   human   resource   policies   for   career   growth   and compensation 
of the staff. 

• Developing and monitoring an operational business plan that focuses on student 
achievement and artistic development. 

• Approving and monitoring OCEAA’s annual budget. 
• Acting as fiscal agent. This includes the receipt of funds for the operation of 

OCEAA in accordance with charter school laws and the receipt of grants and donations 
consistent with the mission of OCEAA. 

• Contracting and external auditor to produce an annual financial audit according to 
generally accepted accounting practices. 

• Establishing operational steering committees of parents, educators, and art professionals. 
• Regularly measuring progress of both student and staff performance. 
• Involving parents and the community in the support of School programs. 
• Executing all other responsibilities provided for in the California Corporations Code. 
• Developing, reviewing, or revising OCEAA's accountability and mission. 
• Developing OCEAA’s calendar and schedule of Board meetings. 
• Developing Board policies and procedures. 
• Reviewing requests for out of state or overnight field trips. 
• Participating in dispute resolution procedures and complaint procedures when 

necessary. 
• Approving charter amendments. 
• Approving annual fiscal and performance audits. 
• Approving personnel discipline (suspensions or dismissals) as needed. 
• Appointing an administrative panel to act as a hearing body and take action on 

recommended student expulsions. 
• Hiring, supervising, evaluating and if necessary, terminating of OCEAA Officers and 

administration. 
• Creating external or sub-committees as needed, including but not limited to, 

compensation committee and an audit committee. 
 
• Hiring and evaluating the principal of OCEAA. 
• Approving and monitoring the implementation of general policies of OCEAA. 
These   include   effective   human   resource   policies   for   career   growth   and 
compensation of the staff. 

• Developing and monitoring an operational business plan that focuses on student 
achievement and artistic development. 



15
1 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 151 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

• Approving and monitoring OCEAA’s annual budget. 
• Acting as fiscal agent. This includes the receipt of funds for the operation of 

OCEAA in accordance with charter school laws and the receipt of grants and donations 
consistent with the mission of OCEAA. 

• Contracting an external auditor to produce an annual financial audit according to 
generally accepted accounting practices. 
• Establishing  operational  steering  committees  of  parents,  educators,  and  art 
professionals. 
• Regularly measuring progress of both student and staff performance. 
• Involving parents and the community in the support of School programs. 
• Executing all other responsibilities provided for in the California Corporations 
Code. 
• Developing, reviewing, or revising OCEAA's accountability and mission. 
• Developing OCEAA’s calendar and schedule of Board meetings. 
• Developing Board policies and procedures. 
• Reviewing requests for out of state or overnight field trips. 
• Participating in dispute resolution procedures and complaint procedures when 
necessary. 
• Approving charter amendments. 
• Approving annual fiscal and performance audits. 
• Approving personnel discipline (suspensions or dismissals) as needed. 
• Appointing an administrative panel to act as a hearing body and take action on 
recommended student expulsions. 
• Hiring, supervising, evaluating and if necessary, terminating of OCEAA Officers and 
administration. 
• Creating external or  sub-committees as  needed, including but not limited to, 
compensation committee and an audit committee. 
 

 
 
The Board may execute any powers delegated by law to it and shall discharge any duty imposed 
by law upon it and may delegate to an employee of OCEAA any of those duties. The Board 
however, retains ultimate responsibility over the performance of those powers or duties so 
delegated. Such delegation will: 
 

• Be in writing 
 Specify the 



15
2 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 152 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 	  
 • Be in writing; 
• • Specify the entity designated; 
• Describe in specific terms the authority of the Board being delegated, any conditions on 

the delegated authority or its exercise and the beginning and ending dates of the 
delegation; and 

• Require an affirmative vote of a majority of Board members. 
 
 
Principal 

• Describe  in  specific  terms  the  authority  of  the  Board  being  delegated,  any 
conditions on the delegated authority or its exercise and the beginning and ending dates of 
the delegation; and 
• Require an affirmative vote of a majority of Board members. 

	  
PRINCIPAL 
	  
TheThe  Principal of the Charter School is to the Board what the Superintendent is to the  
District Board of Education. 
	  
The responsibilities of the Principal include but are not limited to the following: 
 

• Attend District Administrative meetings as necessary and stay in direct contact with 
District regarding changes, progress, etc. 

• Develop Board meeting agenda in conjunction with the Board secretary in compliance 
with the Brown act. 

• Supervise, either directly or through subordinates, all employees of OCEAA. 
• Provide timely performance evaluations of all school employees at least annually. 
• Propose policies for adoption by the Board. 
• Provide comments and recommendations regarding policies presented by others to the 

board. 
• Communicate with School legal counsel. 
• Stay abreast of school laws and regulations. 
• Approve all purchase orders, pay warrants, and requisitions and, upon approval, 

forward on for processing. 
• Participate in the dispute resolution procedure and the complaint procedure when 

necessary. 
• Oversee Grant writing. 
• Establish and execute enrollment procedures. 
• Attend meetings with the Chief Financial Officer of the District on fiscal oversight issues 

as necessary. 
• Provide all necessary financial reports as required for proper ADA reporting. 
• Make budget line item revisions when necessary and report changes regularly to the 

Board. 
• Develop and administer the budget in accordance with generally accepted accounting 



15
3 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 153 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

principles. 
• Present a quarterly financial report to the Board. 
• Present regular student achievement updates to the Board. 
• Provide assistance and coordination to the Faculty in the development of curriculum. 
• Oversee parent/student/teacher relations. 
• Attend or send designee to IEP meetings when necessary. 
• Supervise student disciplinary matters. 
 Coordinate  
 	  
 • Attend District Administrative meetings as necessary and stay in direct contact 

with District regarding changes, progress, etc. 
 • Develop  Board  meeting  agenda  in  conjunction  with  the  Board  secretary  in 
 compliance with the Brown act. 
 • Supervise, either directly or through subordinates, all employees of OCEAA. 
 • Provide timely performance evaluations of all school employees at least annually. 
 • Propose policies for adoption by the Board. 
 • Provide comments and recommendations regarding policies presented by others 

to the board. 
 • Communicate with School legal counsel. 
 • Stay abreast of school laws and regulations. 
 • Approve all purchase orders, pay warrants, and requisitions and, upon approval, 

forward on for processing. 
 • Participate in the dispute resolution procedure and the complaint procedure when 

necessary. 
 • Oversee Grant writing. 
 • Establish and execute enrollment procedures. 
 • Attend  meetings  with  the  Chief  Financial  Officer  of  the  District  on  fiscal 

oversight issues as necessary. 
 • Provide all necessary financial reports as required for proper ADA reporting. 
 • Make budget line item revisions when necessary and report changes regularly to 
 the Board. 
 • Develop  and  administer  the  budget  in  accordance  with  generally  accepted 
 accounting principles. 
 • Present a quarterly financial report to the Board. 
 • Present regular student achievement updates to the Board. 
 • Provide  assistance  and  coordination  to  the  Faculty  in  the  development  of 
 curriculum. 
 • Oversee parent/student/teacher relations. 
 • Attend or send designee to IEP meetings when necessary. 
 • Supervise student disciplinary matters. 



15
4 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 154 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

• • Coordinate the administration of Standardized Testing. 
• Plan and coordinate student orientation. 
• Attend all Board meetings and attendance as necessary at District Board of Education 

meetings as the charter representative. 
• Oversee site safety. 
• Foster an amicable relationship between the District and School and facilitate a 

sharing of resources between both entities. 
• Establish a Communication Model to facilitate communication among all the groups 

within OCEAA, between OCEAA and the District, and between OCEAA and the 
community at large. 

• Establish procedures designed to carry out Board policies. 
• Create and appoint committees to assist in the execution of certain planning and 

administrative functions (known as Officer appointed committees). 
• Oversee Master Calendar. 
• Manage communications between the District Board and the Board of the Charter 

School. 
• Develop OCEAA annual performance audit. 
• Present performance audit to the Board of the Charter School and after review by 

OCEAA Board present audit to the District Board of Education and the County 
Superintendent of Schools, the State Controller and the California Department of 
Education. 

 Facilitate open house events. 
•  
 • Plan and coordinate student orientation. 
 • Attend  all  Board  meetings  and  attendance as  necessary  at  District  Board  of 
 Education meetings as the charter representative. 
 • Oversee site safety. 
• Foster an amicable relationship between the District and School and facilitate a 
sharing of resources between both entities. 
• Establish a Communication Model to facilitate communication among all the 
groups within OCEAA, between OCEAA and the District, and between OCEAA 
and the community at large. 
• Establish procedures designed to carry out Board policies. 
• Create and appoint committees to assist in the execution of certain planning and 
administrative functions (known as Officer appointed committees). 
• Oversee Master Calendar. 
• Manage communications between the District Board and the Board of the Charter 
School. 
• Develop OCEAA annual performance audit. 
• Present performance audit to the Board of the Charter School and after review by 
OCEAA Board present audit to the District Board of Education and the County 
Superintendent of Schools, the State Controller and the California Department of 
Education. 
• Facilitate open house events. 

	  



15
5 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 155 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

The above duties may be delegated or contracted as approved by the Board to a business 
administrator of OCEAA or other employee, a parent volunteer (only in accordance with student 
and teacher confidentiality rights) or to a third party provider (only in accordance with student 
and teacher confidentiality rights) as allowed by law. 
 
Parent Involvement 
	  
PARENT INVOLVEMENT 
	  
OCEAA has an active parent committee, Families Supporting OCEAA (FSO) comprised of 
school staff, parents and guardians, which acts in an advisory capacity to OCEAA’s Board.    
The  FSO  is  governed  by  bylaws  adopted  by  the  parents  involved  in  the committee.  
Meetings are held throughout the year allowing parents to understand how a Charter School 
operates, how it provides an educational service and how it is accountable to the community.   
The FSO serves as a venue to facilitate open and ongoing communication between the school 
staff and home. 
	  
OCEAA promotes parent involvement on a variety of levels, from volunteering at school events 
to working side-by-side with staff in developing policy and procedures. Parents are 
encouraged to be advocates for their child’s education through our monthly meetings with 
administration, parent conferences, Board meetings, parent education workshops, weekly 
assemblies, and our open door policy. In addition, OCEAA annually seeks feedback from 
parents through surveys, which OCEAA then uses to refine and improve the instructional 
program and services provided to our students and their families. 



15
6 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 156 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

To encourage additional parent involvement, OCEAA requires recommendsthat a minimum of 
threenumber of volunteer hours , per trimester, per child be completed. It is our goal that these 
three hours entice our parents to deeper levels of involvement at the school in advocacy role. 
 
School-Site Decision Making 
	  
SCHOOL-SITE DECISION MAKING 
	  
OCEAA includes staff, students, parents and other stakeholders in the decision making 
process. Several committees support this inclusive process. 
 

• Instructional Leadership Team (ILT) works collaboratively to make school-wide 
decisions related to curriculum, instruction, and academic priorities.  This committee 
includes teachers and administration. 

• Student Leadership Team (SLT) promotes educational and recreational 
opportunities for students and staff. They are lead by staff and there is an elected student 
board. 

• Budget Committee oversees the school’s budget and seeks input from teachers, 
support staff, parents, administration and the Board. 

• FSO works collaboratively with students, teachers, administration, parents and 
community organizations to support educational goals and enrich the educational 
program. 

• Wellness Committee is a group of students, teachers, support staff and parents who 
promote healthy life-styles and choices. 

• Arts Committee works to develop partnerships with community organizations to support 
and advocate for arts education.  Arts coordinators, teachers, administration, and parents 
participate in this committee. 

• Technology Committee promotes the use and integration of technology to support the 
educational goals and includes the technology coordinator, teachers, support staff and 
parents. 

• RTI Committee supports struggling students through the development of a school-wide 
intervention plan based on the three tier levels of support. 

  
 Conflict of Interest 

  
• Instructional Leadership Team (ILT) works collaboratively to make school-wide 

decisions  related  to  curriculum,  instruction  and  academic  priorities.  This 
committee includes teachers, support staff and administration. 
• Student Leadership Team (SLT) promotes educational and

 recreational 
opportunities for students and staff. They are lead by staff and there is an elected student 

board. 
• Budget Committee oversees the school’s budget and seeks input from teachers, 

support staff, parents, administration and the Board. 
• FSO works collaboratively with students, teachers, administration, parents and 

community organizations to support educational goals and enrich the educational 



15
7 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 157 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

program. 
• Wellness Committee is a group of students, teachers, support staff and parents 
who promote healthy life-styles and choices. 
• Arts Committee works to develop partnerships with community organizations to 
support and advocate for arts education. Arts coordinators,

 teachers, administration and parents participate in this committee. 
• Technology Committee promotes the use and integration of technology to support the 

educational goals and includes the technology coordinator, teachers, support 
staff and parents. 
• RTI Committee supports struggling students through the development of a school- 
wide intervention plan based on the three tier levels of support. 

	  
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
	  
The Board may initiate and carry on any program or activity or may otherwise act in any 
manner which is not in conflict with or inconsistent with or preempted by any law and which is 
not in conflict with the purposes for which schools are established. 
	  
A Board member cannot vote or participate in a discussion relating to a matter in which he/she 
has a personal financial interest.   All officers, employees, and members of the OCEAA 
governing board shall comply with the Political Reform Act of 1974 (Gov. Code Section 87100 
et seq., the “PRA”) and any attendant regulations as they may be amended from  time  to  time,  
and  all  conflict  of  interest  laws  and  prohibitions  applicable  to California non-profit 
corporations and/or California charter schools.  Please see Exhibit “ “. 
	  
As required, the Conflicts Code will be submitted to the County Board of Supervisors for 
approval. 
 
Theoval. 



15
8 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 158 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

	  
The Charter School Board of Directors will attend an annual in-service for the purposes of 
training individual board members on their responsibilities with topics to include at minimum 
Conflicts of Interest, and the Brown Act. 
 
Brown Act 
	  
	  
	  
BROWN ACT 
	  
OCEAA and its governing board shall comply with the Ralph M. Brown Act as set forth in  
California Government Codes Section 54950 et seq. and any attendant regulations as they may be 
amended from time to time. 
 
Policies 
	  
POLICIES 
	  
OCEAA maintains policies and procedures pertinent to its operation, which shall be subject to 
review and comments by the District. Should the provisions of this Charter conflict with the 
Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, policies, or practices of the School or the corporation, the 
provisions of this Charter shall prevail.   OCEAA shall provide written notice to the District 
of any revisions to the Articles of Incorporation and/or Bylaws within three (3) business days of 
the adoption of such revision. 
 
District Collaboration 
	  
DISTRICT COLLABORATION 
	  
OCEAA is fortunate to count on the support of the District. TThe Principal attends should attend 
District Principals’ Meetings if allowed, in order to continue to develop leadership skills. In the 
past District staff has provided valuable feedback and suggestions on how to improve our 
instructional program for our students.  Through  annual  site  visits  and  meetings  with  
District  staff,  we  have dramatically improved the services provided to our Special Education 
students. The District staff’s recommendations on tools for progress monitoring (i.e. DIBELS), 
benchmark assessments, instructional programs (i.e. MIND Research Institute) and increasing 
instructional rigor are beinghave been implemented and have contributed to the success of our 
students. It is OCEAA’s goal to maintain this collaborative effort to continue to benefit all of 
our students. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



15
9 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 159 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
 
 
 
 
  



16
0 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 160 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

ELEMENT 5 
 
Governing Law: The qualifications to be met by individuals to be employed by the school. 
 
California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)



16
1 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 161 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

V. HUMAN RESOURCES (ELEMENTS 5, 6, 11, 13, 15) 
 
QUALIFICATIONS OF SCHOOL EMPLOYEES 
 
Governing Law: The qualifications to be met by individuals to be employed by the 
School— California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(E) 
 
Teachers 
 
 
 
Teachers 
 
OCEAA adheres to Education Code Section 47605(l), all California Commission on Teacher 
(CTC) Credentialing requirements, and the No Child Left Behind Act in the hiring of all 
faculties for the Charter School. 
 
Teachers for core classes must be “highly qualified” as defined by the No Child Left Behind 
Act, and must hold appropriate California teaching certificates, permits, or other documents 
equivalent to that which a teacher in other schools would be required to hold pursuant  to  
Education  Code  Section  47605(l).  A  copy  of  each  teacher’s  teaching credential is kept on 
file at the school site and is submitted to the District annually through the 
CBEDS/CALPADS reporting and additionally can be accessed through the California 
Commission on the Teacher Credentialing web page. A list of faculty qualifications can be seen 
in Exhibit R. 
 
In the event that OCEAA seeks to utilize the flexibility provided in Education Code Section 
47605(l), for non-core, non-college/non-preparatory teachers, it will notify the district and 
seek the district’s agreement as to the qualifications of the course as “non- core” or “non-
college/non-preparatory.” 
 
Non-Instruction 
	  
Non-Instruction 
	  
All non-instructional staff such as business manager, community outreach specialist, nutrition 
services director, food services accountant, instructional assistant, nurse, health clerk, data base  
coordinator, web site coordinator, technology coordinator, activities coordinator, attendance 
clerk, receptionist, custodian and noontime supervisor personnel must possess experience and 
expertise appropriate for their position. 
 
Administrators 
 
	  
Administrators 
	  



16
2 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 162 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

The Principal and Vice Principal of OCEAA hold , or are in the process of acquiring, a valid 
California Administrative Services Credentials and have at least three years of experience 
working in an elementary and/or middle school setting. They are fluent in English and 
Spanish and have experience working in schools with large populations of English language 
learners. They have a strong commitment to student achievement through   the   arts,   
technology,   language   and   culture.     They   are   responsible    for implementing  all the legal 
and  administrative responsibilities of OCEAA as well as serving as instructional leaders. They 
are exemplary communicators both in person and in written  in 



16
3 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 163 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

written communications and possess the organizational and interpersonal skills necessary to run 
a TK-8th grade school. 
	  
The Administrative positions may evolve as needed to meet the administrative needs of  
OCEAA (e.g. one Principal and one or more subject specific Assistant Administrators). 
 
Overall Qualifications of Staff 
	  
Overall Qualifications of Staff 
	  
OCEAA staff includes educators and support staff who seek to provide a high-quality 
education for our students. They share a strong desire and commitment to academic 
achievement through the arts, technology, language and culture (see attached job descriptions 
Exhibit S). 
 
OCEAA  has  a  rigorous  and  collaborative  selection  process  that  includes  students,  
teachers, support staff, administration and parents. The process generally includes: 
 

1. Positions advertised to the public 
2. Paper screening of candidate qualifications. 
3. Phone interview 
4. Initial interview 
5. Second interview to include lesson demonstration (if appropriate). 
6. Reference check. 
7. Live Scan and TB clearance. 
8. Credential (if appropriate) and document verification. 
9. Other requirements as needed. 

 
Salaries and Benefits 
 
OCEAA strives to maintain competitive salaries and benefit packages to retain highly qualified 
staff. Full health benefits are offered to full time employees. 
 
Performance Assessment 
 
Each OCEAA staff member receives a mid-year and end-of-year performance assessment 
annually by his/her supervisor. The goal of these assessments is to provide feedback and assist 
the employee in growing or improving professionally. The criteria used for OCEAA’s staff 
members in their evaluations include, but are not limited to: 
 

1. Job Descriptions specific to the position 
2. California Standards for the Teaching Profession (when applicable) 
3. Professional Learning Plan Goals (when applicable) 
4. California Professional Standards for Educational Leaders (when applicable) 
5. Feedback from colleagues/students/families (when applicable) 
6. Overall effectiveness 



16
4 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 164 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

. 
1.   Positions advertised to the public. 
2.   Paper screening of candidate qualifications. 
3.   Phone interview. 
4.   Initial interview. 
5.   Second interview to include lesson demonstration (if appropriate). 
6.   Reference check. 
7.   Live Scan and TB clearance. 
8.   Credential (if appropriate) and document verification. 
9.   Other requirements as needed. 
 

  



16
5 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 165 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

ELEMENT 6 
 
Governing Law: The procedures that the school will follow to ensure the health and safety of 
pupils and staff. These procedures shall include the requirement that each employee of the 
school furnish the school with a criminal record summary as described in Section 44237. 
 
California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(F) 
 
 
Procedures for Background Checks 
 
Procedures For Background Checks 



16
6 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 166 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
OCEAA complies with the provisions of Education Code Section 44237 and 45125.1 regarding 
the fingerprinting and background clearance of employees, contractors and volunteers prior to 
employment and/or any one-on-one contact with pupils of the school. The Principal of OCEAA 
monitors compliance with this policy and reports to the Board of Directors on an annual basis or 
upon request of the District. 
 
Role of Staff as Mandated Child Abuse Reporters 
 
 
 
 
Role Of Staff As Mandated Child Abuse Reporters 
 
All classified and certificated staff are mandated child abuse reporters and will follow all 
applicable reporting laws, the same policies and procedures used by the District. 
 
TB Testing 
 
TB Testing 
 
OCEAA  follows  the  requirement  of  Education  Code  Section  49406  in  requiring 
tuberculosis testing of all employees. 
 
Immunizations 
 
Immunizations 
 
OCEA adheres to all law related to legally required immunizations for entering students 
pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 120325-120375, and Title 17, California Code 
of Regulations Section 6000-6075. 
 
Medication in School 
 
Medication in School 
 
OCEAA  adheres  to  Education  Code  Section  49423  regarding  administration  of 
medication in school. 
 
Vision/Hearing/Scoliosis 
 
Vision/Hearing/Scoliosis 
 
OCEAA adheres to Education Code Section 49450 et. seq. as applicable to the grade levels 
served by the school. 
 



16
7 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 167 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Diabetes  
 
The Charter School will provide an information sheet regarding type 2 diabetes to the parent or 
guardian of incoming 7th grade students, pursuant to Education Code Section 49452.7.  The 
information sheet shall include, but shall not be limited to, all of the following: 
 

1. A description of type 2 diabetes. 
 

2. A description of the risk factors and warning signs associated with type 2 diabetes. 
 

3. A recommendation that students displaying or possibly suffering from risk factors or 
warning signs associated with type 2 diabetes should be screened for type 2 diabetes. 

 
4. A description of treatments and prevention of methods of type 2 diabetes. 

 
5. A description of the different types of diabetes screening tests available. 

 
School Facilities 
 
School Facilities 
 
OCEAA frequently assesses the safety of the school site using the state, county and city 
guidelines. Regular preventative maintenance is performed to ensure the structural integrity of 
our building and equipment. 
 
OCEAA maintains a safe school plan that is reviewed on an annual basis. This plan ensures that 
all of our auxiliary services (food services, transportation, custodial services, hazardous waste, 
etc.) are safe. 
 
Emergency Preparedness 
 
Emergency Preparedness 



16
8 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 168 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
OCEAA adheres to an Emergency Preparedness Handbook drafted specifically to the needs of 
OCEAA site.    This handbook includes responses to the following situations: fire, flood, 
earthquake, terrorist threats, and hostage situations. 
 
Blood borne Pathogens 
 
Blood borne Pathogens 
 
OCEAA meets state and federal standards for dealing with blood borne pathogens and other 
potentially infectious materials in the workplace.   The Board has established a written 
“Exposure Control Plan” designed to protect employees from possible infection due to contact 
with blood borne viruses, including human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) and hepatitis B virus 
(HBV). 
 
Whenever exposed to blood or other body fluids through injury or accident, students and staff 
should follow the latest medical protocol for disinfecting procedures. 
 
Drug-, Alcohol-, and Smoke-Free Environment 
 
The Charter School shall function as a drug-, alcohol-, and smoke-free environment. 
 
Drug Free/Smoke Free Environment 
 
OCEAA maintains a drug and alcohol and smoke free environment. 
 
Procedures 
Procedures 
 
 
OCEAA has adopted and maintains procedures detailed in the Employee Handbook to 
implement the policy statements listed above. This includes due process for employees and 
complaint procedures. 
 

  



16
9 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 169 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

ELEMENT 7 
 
Governing Law: The procedures that the school will follow to ensure the health and safety of 
pupils and staff. These procedures shall include the requirement that each employee of the 
school furnish the school with a criminal record summary as described in Section 44237. 
 
California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(F) 
 
 
OCEAA considers pupils for admission without regard to the characteristics listed in Section 
220 (actual or perceived disability, gender, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual 
orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth 
in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code or association with an individual who has any of the 
aforementioned characteristics), fluency in English, or parent income/educational level. 
OCEAA strives, through recruiting, to achieve a racial and ethnic balance of students that 
reflects the general population of the District (see Table  
6.1).  OCEAA rigorously recruits students in impacted areas and provides assistance to f 
families in completing and returning registration applications. 
 

Student Demographics (Source: CDE DataQuest 2013-14 Enrollment) 
 Hispanic 

or Latino  
American 
Indian or 
Alaska 
Native 

Asian Pacific 
Islander 

Filipino African 
America 

White Two or 
More 
Races 

Not 
Reported 

OCEAA 85.6% 0.1% 0.7% 0.0% 0.0% 1.2% 4.9% 0.0% 7.2% 
SAUSD 90.7% 0.1% 2.6% 0.1% 0.3% 0.3% 2.7% 0.6% 0.7% 

 
Table 6.1 Student Demographics 

Demographics African- 
American 

Asian Hispanic or 
Latino 

White 

OCEAA 4% 1% 86% 9% 
SAUSD 1% 3% 95% 2% 

 
 
OCEAA’s Outreach Plan includes a marketing plan which details significant outreach activities 
in Spanish language media, and other language media as needed, including newspaper and 
television.   The marketing plan also includes the preparation and distribution of recruiting 
materials in English and Spanish.   OCEAA will develop applications in other languages, as 
needed. 
 
The Outreach Plan schedules dates, times, and locations of open houses, informational 
meetings, and other activities in a manner which insures, to the extent possible, that all 
interested families are able to attend. 
 
OCEAA aims to enhance the instructional program and outreach through partnerships with 
the Orange County High School of the Arts, the Pacific Symphony, the Orange 



17
0 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 170 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

County Museum of Art, The Wooden Floor (Saint Joseph’s Ballet), El Centro Cultural de 
Mexico, Mexican Consulate, Santa Ana Arts Council, Santa Ana Arts organizations, Orange 
County Performing Arts Center, as well as regional colleges and universities such as California 
State University, Fullerton, Santa Ana College, Chapman University and the University of 
California, Irvine. 
 
OCEAA provides an annual report of student enrollment indicating the racial and ethnic mix of 
students and the percentage of students from the District and steps taken to ensure a racial and 
ethnic balance as described herein.  The annual report disaggregates racial and ethnic class, 
free and reduced lunch participation percentage, English Learners, and includes the percentage 
versus total of those who applied and those who were admitted. 
 

  



17
1 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 171 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

ELEMENT 8 
 
Governing Law: Admission requirements, if applicable. 
 
California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(H) 
 
 
OCEAA admits all pupils who wish to attend OCEAA up to capacity.  No test or assessment is 
administered to students prior to acceptance and enrollment into OCEAA. However, OCEAA 
may determine that a pupil is ineligible to return the following school year if the pupil fails to 
comply with requirements and polices stated in the OCEAA School-Family Handbook. 
 
Pupils are considered for admissions without regard to the characteristics listed in Section 
220 (actual or perceived disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race 
or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the 
definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code or association with an 
individual who has any of the aforementioned characteristics), fluency in English, or parent 
income/educational level. 
 
The application process is comprised of the following: 
 

• Parent attendance at a school orientation meeting 
• Completion of a student enrollment form 
• Parent signature of Home-School Contract 
• Proof of Immunization 
• Home Language Survey 
• Completion of Emergency Medical Information Form 
• Proof of minimum age requirements, e.g. birth certificate 

 
Applications are	  accepted during an open enrollment period from March 1st to March 15th for 
enrollment in the following school year.  Following the open enrollment period each year, 
applications are counted to determine whether any grade level has received more applications 
than availability.  In this event, OCEAA holds a public random drawing to determine enrollment 
for the impacted grade level(s), with the exception of existing students who are guaranteed 
enrollment for the following school year. 
 
• Parent attendance at a school orientation meeting 
• Completion of a student enrollment form 
• Parent signature of Home-School Contract 
• Proof of Immunization 
• Home Language Survey 
• Completion of Emergency Medical Information Form 
• Proof of minimum age requirements, e.g. birth certificate 
 
Applications are accepted during an open enrollment period from March 1st to March 15th for 



17
2 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 172 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

enrollment in the following school year.  Following the open enrollment period each year, 
applications are counted to determine whether any grade level has received more applications 
than availability.  In this event, OCEAA holds a public random drawing to determine 
enrollment for the impacted grade level(s), with the exception of existing students who are 
guaranteed enrollment for the following school year. 
 
Enrollment priority in the case of a public random drawing is allowed in the following priority 
order: 
 

1. Siblings of currently enrolled students 
2. Children of OCEAA employees 
3. All other applicants 

 
1.  Siblings of currently enrolled students 
 
2.  Children of OCEAA employees 



17
3 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 173 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

3. All other applicants 
 
 
 
 
At the conclusion of the lottery, all students who were not granted admission due to capacity are 
given the option to put their name on a wait list according to their draw in the lottery. This 
wait list (see Exhibit U) will allow students the option of enrollment in the case of an opening 
during the school year. 
 
In no circumstance does a wait list carry over to the following school year. 
 

  



17
4 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 174 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

ELEMENT 9 
 
Governing Law: The manner in which annual, independent, financial audits shall be conducted, 
which shall employ general accepted accounting principles, and the manner in which audit 
exceptions and deficiencies shall be resolved to the satisfaction of the chartering authority. 
 
California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(I) 
 
 
OCEAA facilitates an annual independent audit of OCEAA's financial affairs. The Board selects 
and oversees an auditor with, at a minimum, a CPA and educational institution audit experience 
and approved by the State Controller on its published list as an educational audit provider. 
	  
The audit verifies the accuracy of OCEAA's financial statements, attendance and enrollment 
accounting practices, and reviews OCEAA's internal controls. The audit is conducted in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to OCEAA.  The annual 
audit is completed four months after the close of the fiscal year and a copy of the auditor's 
findings is forwarded to the District, the County Superintendent of Schools, the State Controller 
and to the CDE by December 15th each year.   OCEAA's Principal along with an audit 
committee reviews any audit exceptions or deficiencies and reports to OCEAA Board with 
recommendations on how to resolve them. OCEAA Board submits a report to the District 
describing how the exceptions and deficiencies have been or will be resolved to the satisfaction 
of the District.  Any disputes regarding the resolution of audit exceptions and deficiencies are 
referred to the dispute resolution process contained in this Charter. 
	  
In the case that OCEAA either does not pay for or have an independent audit completed within 
one month of the applicable timelines, the District, may, at its option pay for an audit to be 
completed and subtract such payment from any funds due to the Charter School. 
 

  



17
5 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 175 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

ELEMENT 10 
 
Governing Law: The procedures by which pupils can be suspended or expelled. 
 
California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(J) 
 
 
This Pupil Suspension and Expulsion Policy has been established in order to promote learning 
and protect the safety and well being of all students at OCEAA. When the Policy is violated, it 
may be necessary to suspend or expel a student from regular classroom instruction. 
 
School faculty and support staff co-created the school wide discipline policies and procedures 
and annually convene to review and update the policies. As part of the review process, input 
from parents via the FSO is solicited and included as deemed necessary. School staff enforce 
disciplinary rules and procedures fairly and consistently amongst all students. The Principal 
ensures that this Policy and its Procedures are distributed and accessible to parents on the 
school’s web site as part of the Family School Handbook and clearly describe discipline 
expectations. Notice is given that this Policy and Administrative Procedures are also available on 
request at the Principal's office. Parents/Guardians and students sign in agreement to uphold the 
school’s discipline policies and procedures as part of the annual enrollment process.    
 
Discipline includes but is not limited to advising and counseling students, conferring with 
parents/guardians, detention during and after school hours, the use of alternative educational 
environments, suspension and expulsion. 
 
Corporal punishment is not used as a disciplinary measure against any student. Corporal 
punishment includes the willful infliction of or willfully causing the infliction of physical pain on 
a student. For purposes of the Policy, corporal punishment does not include an employee's use of 
force that is reasonable and necessary to protect the employee, students, staff or other persons or 
to prevent damage to school property. 
 
Suspended or expelled students are excluded from all school and school-related activities unless 
otherwise agreed during the period of suspension or expulsion. 
 
A student identified as an individual with disabilities or for whom OCEAA has a basis of 
knowledge of a suspected disability pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities in Education 
Improvement Act (IDEIA), or who is qualified for services under Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), is subject to the same grounds for suspension and 
expulsion and is accorded the same due process procedures applicable to regular education 
students except when federal and state law mandates additional or different procedures. OCEAA 
follows Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and Individuals with Disabilities in Education 
Improvement Act (IDEIA) when imposing any form of discipline on a student identified as an 
individual with disabilities or for whom OCEAA has a basis of knowledge of a suspected 
disability or who is otherwise qualified for such services or protections in according due process 
to such students.  OCEAA shall continue to coordinate and communicate with the District any 



17
6 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 176 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

discipline of a student with a disability under the IDEIA or who is suspected of having a 
disability under the IDEIA. 
 

A. Definitions (as used in this policy): 
 

1. “Board" means governing body of the Charter School 
2. “Expulsion” means dis-enrollment from the Charter School 

 
3. “School day” means a day upon which the Charter School is in session or 

weekdays during the summer recess. 
 

4. “Suspension” means removal of a pupil from ongoing instruction for adjustment 
purposes. However, “suspension” does not mean the following: 

 
a. Reassignment to another education program or class at the charter school 

where the pupil will receive continuing instruction for the length of day 
prescribed by the Charter School Board for pupils of the same grade level 
 

b. Referral to a certificated employee designated by the Principal to advise 
pupils. 

 
c. Removal from the class but without reassignment to another class for the 

remainder of the class period without sending the pupil to the Principal or 
designee. 

 
d.  “Pupil” includes a pupil's parent or guardian or legal counsel or other 

representative. 
 

e. "School" means the Charter School. 
 

B. Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion of Students 
 
A student may be suspended or expelled for prohibited misconduct if the act is related to 
school activity or school attendance occurring at OCEAA, at any other school or a School 
sponsored event at anytime including but not limited to: a) while on school grounds; b) 
while going to or coming from school; c) during the lunch period, whether on or off 
OCEAA campus; d) during, going to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity. 

 
C. Enumerated Offenses 

 
Students may be suspended or expelled for any of the following acts when it is 
determined the pupil: 
 

1. Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another 
person or willfully used force of violence upon the person of another, except self-
defense. 



17
7 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 177 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
2. Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, knife, explosive, or other 

dangerous object unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the 
students had obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated 
school employee, with the Principal/Administrator of designee’s concurrence. 

 
3. Unlawfully possessed, used, sold or otherwise furnished, or was under the 

influence of any controlled substance, as defined in Health and Safety Code 
11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any kind. 

 
4. Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as 

defined in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant 
of any kind, and then sold, delivered or otherwise furnished to any person another 
liquid substance or material and represented   same   as   controlled   substance,   
alcoholic   beverage   or intoxicant 

 
5.  Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion. 

 
6. Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property. 

 
7. Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property. 

 
8. Possessed or used tobacco or any products containing tobacco or nicotine 

products, including but not limited to cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove 
cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets, and betel. 

 
9. Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity. 

 
10. Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any 

drug paraphernalia, as defined in Health and Safety Code 11014.5. 
 

11. Disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of 
supervisors, teachers, administrators, other school officials, or other school 
personnel engaged in the performance of their duties. 

 
12. Knowingly received stolen school property or private property. 

 
13. Possessed an imitation firearm, i.e.:  a replica of a firearm that is so substantially 

similar in physical properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person 
to conclude that the replica is a firearm. 

 
14. Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 261, 

266c, 286, 288, 288a or 289, or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal 
Code 243.4. 

 



17
8 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 178 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

15. Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or 
witness in a school disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that 
student from being a witness and/or retaliating against that student for being a 
witness. 

 
16. Made terrorist threats against school officials and/or school property. 

 
17. Committed sexual harassment. 

 
18. Caused, attempted to cause, threatened to cause, or participated in an act of hate 

violence. 
 

19. Intentionally harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student or group of students to 
the extent of having the actual and reasonably expected effect of materially 
disrupting class work, creating substantial disorder and invading student rights by 
creating an intimidating or hostile educational environment. 

 
20. Failure to comply with the requirements and policies stated in the OCEAA 

School-Family Handbook. 
 

The above list is not exhaustive and, depending upon the offense, a pupil may be 
suspended or expelled for misconduct not specified above. 

 
Alternatives to suspension or expulsion will first be attempted with students who 
are truant, tardy, or otherwise absent from assigned school activities. 

 
D. Suspension Procedure 

 
Suspensions are initiated according to the following procedures: 

 
1. Informal Conference 

 
Suspensions are preceded, if possible, by an informal conference conducted by 
the Principal or the Principal's designee with the student and his or her parent and, 
whenever practicable, the teacher, supervisor or school employee who referred the 
student to the Principal.  The conference may be omitted if the Principal or 
designee determines that an emergency situation exists. An "emergency situation" 
involves a clear and present danger to the lives, safety or health of students or 
school personnel. If a student is suspended without this conference, both the 
parent/guardian and student are notified of the student's right to return to school 
for the purpose of a conference. 

 
At the conference, the pupil is informed of the reason for the disciplinary action 
and the evidence against him or her and is given the opportunity to present his or 
her version and evidence in his or her defense. 

 



17
9 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 179 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

This conference is held within two school days, unless the pupil waives this right 
or is physically unable to attend for any reason including, but not limited to, 
incarceration or hospitalization. 

 
No penalties are imposed on a pupil for failure of the pupil's parent or guardian to 
attend a conference with school officials. Reinstatement of the suspended pupil is 
not contingent upon attendance by the pupil's parent or guardian at the 
conference. 

 
2. Notice to Parents/Guardians 

 
At the time of the suspension, a School employee shall make a reasonable effort 
to contact the parent/guardian by telephone or in person. Whenever a student is 
suspended, the parent/guardian shall be notified in writing of the suspension.  This 
notice states the specific offense committed by the student.  In addition, the notice 
may also state the date and time when the student may return to school.   If school 
officials wish to ask the parent/guardian to confer regarding matters pertinent to 
the suspension, the notice may request that the parent/guardian respond to such 
requests without delay. 

 
3. Suspension Time Limits/Recommendation for Expulsion 

 
Suspensions, when not including a recommendation for expulsion, do not exceed 
five (5) consecutive school days per suspension.   If the pupil is recommended for 
expulsion, the suspension shall extend through the 10- day opportunity to appeal 
period. If the expulsion is appealed, the pupil and the pupil's guardian or 
representative are invited to a conference to determine if the suspension for the 
pupil should be extended pending an appeal hearing. This determination will be 
made by the Principal upon either of the following determinations: 1) the pupil's 
presence will be disruptive to the education process; or 2) the pupil poses a threat 
or danger to others. Upon either determination, the pupil's suspension will be 
extended pending the results of an appeal hearing. 

 
E. Authority to Expel 

 
A student may be expelled either by the Principal, or if appealed, by the OCEAA Board 
following an impartial hearing before an Administrative Panel (the “Expulsion Hearing 
Panel” or “Panel”) appointed by the OCEAA Board as needed. The Panel should consist 
of at least three members. The Panel may recommend expulsion, recommend no 
expulsion, or recommend other non- expulsion disciplinary measures. 

 
F. Expulsion Procedures 

 
The steps in the expulsion procedure are as follows: 

 



18
0 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 180 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

1. The Principal may recommend expulsion of a pupil and shall give notice to the 
parent or guardian. 
 

2. The parent or guardian shall have ten days from that notice to appeal the 
Principal’s recommendation for expulsion.  If the parent or guardian does not 
appeal the expulsion recommendation in a timely manner, the expulsion becomes 
final and the pupil is expelled. 

 
3. If appealed, an impartial Expulsion Hearing Panel shall hear the appeal and any 

evidence presented, and shall issue a report and recommendation to the OCEAA 
Board. 

 
4. The  OCEAA  Board  shall  consider  the  report  and  recommendation in closed 

session, and shall make the final determination on the expulsion appeal. 
 

Unless postponed for good cause, the appeal hearing shall be held within thirty 
(30) school days after the Principal determines that the Pupil has committed an 
expellable offense and recommends expulsion. 

 
The expulsion appeal hearing is presided over by the chair of the Expulsion 
Hearing Panel. 

 
Written notice of the appeal hearing shall be forwarded to the student and the 
student's parent/guardian at least ten (10) calendar days before the date of the 
hearing. Upon mailing the notice, it is deemed served upon the pupil.  The notice 
shall include: 

 
1. The date and location of the appeal hearing; 

 
2. A statement of the specific facts, charges and offenses upon which the proposed is 

based; 
 

3. A copy of OCEAA's disciplinary rules which relate to the alleged violation; 
 

4. Notification of the student's or parent/guardian's obligation to provide information 
about the student's status at the School to any other school district or school to 
which the student seeks enrollment; 

 
5. Notification   of   the   opportunity   for   the   student   or   the   student's 

parent/guardian to appear in person or to be represented by counsel or an 
advocate, and to present evidence; 

 
6. Notification of the of the right to inspect and obtain copies of all documents to be 

used at the hearing; 
 



18
1 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 181 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

7. Notification of the of the opportunity to confront and question all witnesses who 
testify at the hearing; 

 
8. Notification of the of the opportunity to question all evidence presented and to 

present oral and documentary evidence on the student's behalf including 
witnesses. 

 
G. Record of Appeal Hearing 

 
A record of the appeal hearing shall be made and may be maintained by any means, 
including electronic recording, as long as reasonably accurate. The record shall be made 
by the chair of the Panel or her/his designee. 

 
H. Presentation of Evidence 

 
While formal rules of evidence do not apply to appeal hearings, evidence is admitted and 
used as proof only if it is the kind of evidence on which reasonable persons can rely in 
the conduct of serious affairs. A recommendation by the Panel to expel must be 
supported by substantial evidence that the student committed an expellable offense. 

 
The Panel’s report, recommendation, and findings of fact are based solely on the 
evidence presented at the hearing. While hearsay evidence is admissible, no decision to 
expel may be based solely on hearsay.    Sworn declarations may be admitted as 
testimony from witnesses of whom the Panel determines that disclosure of their identity 
or testimony at the hearing may subject them to an unreasonable risk of physical or 
psychological harm. 

 
The decision of the Panel shall be in the form of a written recommendation to the 
OCEAA Board who will make a final determination regarding the expulsion. The final 
decision by the OCEAA Board shall be made within ten (10) school days following the 
conclusion of the hearing, or at its next regularly-scheduled meeting.  The OCEAA Board 
may from time to time adopt policies that modify the appeal hearing process, so long as 
the final expulsion determination is made by the Board. 

 
I. Written Notice to Expel 

The Principal, after close of the ten-day appeal period or, if appealed, following a 
decision of the OCEAA Board to expel, shall send a written notice of the decision to 
expel to the student or parent/guardian. This notice shall include the following: 
 

1. Notice of the specific offense committed by the student 
 

2. Notice of the student's or parent/guardian's obligation to inform any new district 
in which the student seeks to enroll of the student's status with OCEAA. 

 
The Principal shall send written notice of the decision to expel to the Student's School 
District of residence, and the Santa Ana School District. This notice includes the 



18
2 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 182 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

following: 
 

1. The student's name 
 

2. The specific expellable offense committed by the student 
 

Additionally, in accordance with Education Code Section 47605(d)(3), upon expulsion of 
any student, the Charter School shall notify the superintendent of the school district of the 
pupil’s last known address within 30 days, and shall, upon request, provide that school 
district with a copy of the cumulative record of the pupil, including a transcript of grades 
or report card and health information. 
 

J. Disciplinary Records 
 
OCEAA maintains records of all student suspensions and expulsions at the school.  Such 
records shall be made available to the District upon request. 

 
K. No Further Right to Appeal 

 
The pupil shall have no further right of appeal from expulsion from OCEAA as the 
Board’s decision to expel shall be final. 

 
L. Expelled Pupils/Alternative Education 

 
Pupils who are expelled are responsible for seeking alternative education programs 
including, but not limited to, programs within the County or their school district of 
residence. 

 
M. Rehabilitation Plans 

 
Students who are expelled from OCEAA are given a rehabilitation plan upon expulsion 
as developed by the Board at the time of the expulsion order, which may include, but is 
not limited to, periodic review as well as assessment at the time of review for 
readmission. The rehabilitation plan should include a date not later than one year from 
the date of expulsion when the pupil may reapply to OCEAA for readmission. 

 
N. Readmission 

 
The decision to readmit a pupil or to admit a previously expelled pupil from another 
school district or charter school is the sole discretion of the Board following a meeting 
with the Principal and the pupil and guardian or representative to determine whether the 
pupil has successfully completed the rehabilitation plan and to determine whether the 
pupil poses a threat to others or will be disruptive to OCEAA environment. The Principal 
shall make a recommendation to the Board following the meeting regarding his or her 
determination. The pupil's readmission is also contingent upon the school’s capacity at 
the time the student seeks readmission. 



18
3 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 183 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

ELEMENT 11 
 
Governing Law: The manner by which staff members of the charter schools will be covered by 
the State Teachers’ Retirement System, the Public Employees’ Retirement System, or federal 
social security. 
 
California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(K) 
 
 
This Pupil Suspension and Expulsion Policy has been established in order to promote 
learning and protect the safety and well being of all students at OCEAA. When the Policy is 
violated, it may be necessary to suspend or expel a student from regular classroom 
instruction. 

 
School faculty and support staff co-created the school wide discipline policies and procedures 
and annually convene to review and update the policies. As part of the review process, input 
from parents via the FSO is solicited and included as deemed necessary. School staff enforce 
disciplinary rules and procedures fairly and consistently amongst all students. The Principal 
ensures that this Policy and its Procedures are distributed and accessible to parents on the 
school’s web site as part of the Family School Handbook and clearly describe discipline 
expectations. Notice is given that this Policy and Administrative Procedures are also available 
on request at the Principal's office. Parents/Guardians and students sign in agreement to 
uphold the school’s discipline policies and procedures as part of the annual enrollment process. 



18
4 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 184 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Discipline includes but is not limited to advising and counseling students, conferring with 
parents/guardians, detention during and after school hours, the use of alternative educational 
environments, suspension and expulsion. 

 
Corporal punishment is not used as a disciplinary measure against any student. Corporal 
punishment includes the willful infliction of or willfully causing the infliction of physical pain 
on a student. For purposes of the Policy, corporal punishment does not include an employee's  
use  of  force  that  is  reasonable  and  necessary  to  protect  the  employee, students, staff or 
other persons or to prevent damage to school property. 

 
Suspended or expelled students are excluded from all school and school-related activities 
unless otherwise agreed during the period of suspension or expulsion. 

 
A student identified as an individual with disabilities or for whom OCEAA has a basis of 
knowledge of a suspected disability pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities in Education 
Improvement Act (IDEIA), or who is qualified for services under Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), is subject to the same grounds for suspension and 
expulsion and is accorded the same due process procedures applicable to regular education 
students except when federal and state law mandates additional or different procedures. 
OCEAA follows Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and Individuals with Disabilities in 
Education Improvement Act (IDEIA) when imposing any form of discipline on a student 
identified as an individual with disabilities or for whom OCEAA has a basis of knowledge of 
a suspected disability or who is otherwise qualified for such services or protections in 
according due process to such students.  OCEAA shall continue to coordinate and 
communicate with the District any discipline of a student with a disability under the IDEIA or 
who is suspected of having a disability under the IDEIA. 

 
A.        Definitions (as used in this policy): 

 
1.  “Board" means governing body of the Charter School 

 
2.  “Expulsion” means dis-enrollment from the Charter School 

 
3.  “School day” means a day upon which the Charter School is in session or 

weekdays during the summer recess. 
 

4.  “Suspension” means removal of a pupil from ongoing instruction for 
adjustment purposes. However, “suspension” does not mean the 
following: 

 
a. Reassignment to another education program or class at the charter 

school where the pupil will receive continuing instruction for the length 
of day prescribed by the Charter School Board for pupils of the same 
grade level. 



18
5 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 185 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

b. Referral to a certificated employee designated by the Principal to 
advise pupils. 

 
c. Removal from the class but without reassignment to another class for 

the remainder of the class period without sending the pupil to the 
Principal or designee. 

 
5.  “Pupil” includes a pupil's parent or guardian or legal counsel or other 

representative. 
 

6.          "School" means the Charter School. 
 
B. Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion of Students 

 
A student may be suspended or expelled for prohibited misconduct if the act is related 
to school activity or school attendance occurring at OCEAA, at any other school or a 
School sponsored event at anytime including but not limited to: a) while on school 
grounds; b) while going to or coming from school; c) during the lunch period, whether 
on or off OCEAA campus; d) during, going to, or coming from a school-sponsored 
activity. 

 
C. Enumerated Offenses 

 
Students may be suspended or expelled for any of the following acts when it is 
determined the pupil: 

 
1.  Caused, attempted to  cause, or  threatened to  cause physical injury  to 

another person or willfully used force of violence upon the person of another, 
except self-defense. 

 
2.  Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, knife, explosive, or other 

dangerous object unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the 
students had obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated 
school employee, with the Principal/Administrator of designee’s concurrence. 

 
3.  Unlawfully possessed, used, sold or otherwise furnished, or was under the 

influence of any controlled substance, as defined in Health and Safety Code 
11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any kind. 

 
4.  Unlawfully  offered,  arranged,  or  negotiated  to  sell  any  controlled 

substance as defined in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058, alcoholic 
beverage, or intoxicant of any kind, and then sold, delivered or otherwise 
furnished to any person another liquid substance or material and represented   
same   as   controlled   substance,   alcoholic   beverage   or intoxicant. 



18
6 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 186 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
5.  Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion. 

 
6.  Caused  or  attempted  to  cause  damage  to  school  property  or  private 

property. 
 

7.  Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property. 
 

8.  Possessed or used tobacco or any products containing tobacco or nicotine 
products, including but not limited to cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove 
cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets, and betel. 

 
9.  Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity. 

 
10.  Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any 

drug paraphernalia, as defined in Health and Safety Code 11014.5. 
 

11.  Disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of 
supervisors, teachers, administrators, other school officials, or other school 
personnel engaged in the performance of their duties. 

 
12.  Knowingly received stolen school property or private property. 

 
13.  Possessed  an  imitation firearm, i.e.:  a  replica of  a  firearm that  is  so 

substantially similar in physical properties to an existing firearm as to lead a 
reasonable person to conclude that the replica is a firearm. 

 
14.  Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 

261, 266c, 286, 288, 288a or 289, or committed a sexual battery as defined in 
Penal Code 243.4. 

 
15.  Harassed,  threatened,  or  intimidated  a  student  who  is  a  complaining 

witness or witness in a school disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of 
preventing that student from being a witness and/or retaliating against that 
student for being a witness. 

 
16.  Made terrorist threats against school officials and/or school property. 

 
17.  Committed sexual harassment. 

 
18.  Caused, attempted to cause, threatened to cause, or participated in an act of 

hate violence. 
 

19.  Intentionally harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student or group of 
students to the extent of having the actual and reasonably expected effect of  
materially  disrupting  class  work,  creating  substantial  disorder  and 



18
7 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 187 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

invading student rights by creating an intimidating or hostile educational 
environment. 

 
20.  Failure to comply with the requirements and policies stated in the OCEAA 

School-Family Handbook. 
 

The above list is not exhaustive and, depending upon the offense, a pupil may be 
suspended or expelled for misconduct not specified above. 

 
Alternatives to suspension or expulsion will first be attempted with students who are 
truant, tardy, or otherwise absent from assigned school activities. 

 
D. Suspension Procedure 

 
Suspensions are initiated according to the following procedures: 

 
1.  Informal Conference 

 
Suspensions  are  preceded,  if  possible,  by   an  informal  conference 
conducted by the Principal or the Principal's designee with the student and his or 
her parent and, whenever practicable, the teacher, supervisor or school  
employee  who  referred  the  student  to  the  Principal.     The conference 
may be omitted if the Principal or designee determines that an emergency 
situation exists. An "emergency situation" involves a clear and present  danger  
to  the  lives,  safety  or  health  of  students  or  school personnel. If a student 
is suspended without this conference, both the parent/guardian and student are 
notified of the student's right to return to school for the purpose of a conference. 

 
At the conference, the pupil is informed of the reason for the disciplinary action 
and the evidence against him or her and is given the opportunity to present his 
or her version and evidence in his or her defense. 

 
This conference is held within two school days, unless the pupil waives this 
right or is physically unable to attend for any reason including, but not limited 
to, incarceration or hospitalization. 

 
No penalties are imposed on a pupil for failure of the pupil's parent or guardian 
to attend a conference with school officials. Reinstatement of the suspended 
pupil is not contingent upon attendance by the pupil's parent or guardian at the 
conference. 

 
2.  Notice to Parents/Guardians 

 
At the time of the suspension, a School employee shall make a reasonable effort 
to contact the parent/guardian by telephone or in person. Whenever 



18
8 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 188 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

a student is suspended, the parent/guardian shall be notified in writing of the 
suspension.  This notice states the specific offense committed by the student.  
In addition, the notice may also state the date and time when the student may 
return to school.   If school officials wish to ask the parent/guardian to confer 
regarding matters pertinent to the suspension, the notice may request that the 
parent/guardian respond to such requests without delay. 

 
3.          Suspension Time Limits/Recommendation for Expulsion 

 
Suspensions, when not including a recommendation for expulsion, do not 
exceed five (5) consecutive school days per suspension.   If the pupil is 
recommended for expulsion, the suspension shall extend through the 10- day 
opportunity to appeal period. If the expulsion is appealed, the pupil and the 
pupil's guardian or representative are invited to a conference to determine if 
the suspension for the pupil should be extended pending an appeal hearing. 
This determination will be made by the Principal upon either of the following 
determinations: 1) the pupil's presence will be disruptive to the education 
process; or 2) the pupil poses a threat or danger to others. Upon either 
determination, the pupil's suspension will be extended pending the results of an 
appeal hearing. 

 
E. Authority to Expel 

 
A student may be expelled either by the Principal, or if appealed, by the OCEAA 
Board following an impartial hearing before an Administrative Panel (the “Expulsion  
Hearing  Panel”  or  “Panel”)  appointed  by  the  OCEAA  Board  as needed. The 
Panel should consist of at least three members. The Panel may recommend expulsion, 
recommend no expulsion, or recommend other non- expulsion disciplinary measures. 

 
F. Expulsion Procedures 

 
The steps in the expulsion procedure are as follows: 

 
1.         The Principal may recommend expulsion of a pupil and shall give notice to the 
parent or guardian. 
2.         The parent or guardian shall have ten days from that notice to appeal the 
Principal’s recommendation for expulsion.  If the parent or guardian does not appeal 
the expulsion recommendation in a timely manner, the expulsion becomes final and the 
pupil is expelled. 
3.         If appealed, an impartial Expulsion Hearing Panel shall hear the appeal 
and any evidence presented, and shall issue a report and recommendation to the 
OCEAA Board. 
4.         The  OCEAA  Board  shall  consider  the  report  and  recommendation in 
closed session, and shall make the final determination on the expulsion appeal. 



18
9 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 189 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
Unless postponed for good cause, the appeal hearing shall be held within thirty (30) 
school days after the Principal determines that the Pupil has committed an expellable 
offense and recommends expulsion. 
The expulsion appeal hearing is presided over by the chair of the Expulsion 
Hearing Panel. 

 
Written notice of the appeal hearing shall be forwarded to the student and the student's 
parent/guardian at least ten (10) calendar days before the date of the hearing. Upon 
mailing the notice, it is deemed served upon the pupil.  The notice shall include: 

 
1.          The date and location of the appeal hearing; 

 
2.  A statement of the specific facts, charges and offenses upon which the 

proposed is based; 
 

15. A copy of OCEAA's disciplinary rules which relate to the alleged 
violation; 

 
16. Notification of  the  student's or  parent/guardian's obligation to  provide 

information about the student's status at the School to any other school district 
or school to which the student seeks enrollment; 

 
17. Notification   of   the   opportunity   for   the   student   or   the   student's 

parent/guardian to appear in person or to be represented by counsel or an 
advocate, and to present evidence; 

 
18. Notification of the of the right to inspect and obtain copies of all 

documents to be used at the hearing; 
 

19. Notification of the of the opportunity to confront and question all 
witnesses who testify at the hearing; 

 
20. Notification of the of the opportunity to question all evidence presented and 

to present oral and documentary evidence on the student's behalf including 
witnesses. 

 
G. Record of Appeal Hearing 

 
A record of the appeal hearing shall be made and may be maintained by any means, 
including electronic recording, as long as reasonably accurate. The record shall be 
made by the chair of the Panel or her/his designee. 

 
H. Presentation of Evidence 



19
0 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 190 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

While formal rules of evidence do not apply to appeal hearings, evidence is admitted 
and used as proof only if it is the kind of evidence on which reasonable persons can 
rely in the conduct of serious affairs. A recommendation by the Panel to expel must be 
supported by substantial evidence that the student committed an expellable offense. 

 
The Panel’s report, recommendation, and findings of fact are based solely on the 
evidence presented at the hearing. While hearsay evidence is admissible, no decision to 
expel may be based solely on hearsay.    Sworn declarations may be admitted as 
testimony from witnesses of whom the Panel determines that disclosure of their identity 
or testimony at the hearing may subject them to an unreasonable risk of physical or 
psychological harm. 

 
The decision of the Panel shall be in the form of a written recommendation to the 
OCEAA Board who will make a final determination regarding the expulsion. The final 
decision by the OCEAA Board shall be made within ten (10) school days following the 
conclusion of the hearing, or at its next regularly-scheduled meeting.  The OCEAA 
Board may from time to time adopt policies that modify the appeal hearing process, so 
long as the final expulsion determination is made by the Board. 

 
I. Written Notice to Expel 

 
The Principal, after close of the ten-day appeal period or, if appealed, following a 
decision of the OCEAA Board to expel, shall send a written notice of the decision to 
expel to the student or parent/guardian. This notice shall include the following: 

 
3.         Notice of the specific offense committed by the student 

 
4. Notice of the student's or parent/guardian's obligation to inform any new 

district in which the student seeks to enroll of the student's status with OCEAA. 
 

The Principal shall send written notice of the decision to expel to the Student's 
School District of residence, and the Santa Ana School District. This 
notice includes the following: 

a) The student's name 
 

b) The specific expellable offense committed by the student 
 

Additionally, in accordance with Education Code Section 47605(d)(3), upon expulsion 
of any student, the Charter School shall notify the superintendent of the school district 
of the pupil’s last known address within 30 days, and shall, upon 



19
1 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 191 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

request, provide that school district with a copy of the cumulative record of the pupil, 
including a transcript of grades or report card and health information. 

 
J. Disciplinary Records 

 
OCEAA  maintains  records  of  all  student  suspensions  and  expulsions  at  the 
school.  Such records shall be made available to the District upon request. 

 
K. No Further Right to Appeal 

 
The pupil shall have no further right of appeal from expulsion from OCEAA as the 
Board’s decision to expel shall be final. 

 
L. Expelled Pupils/Alternative Education 

 
Pupils  who  are  expelled  are  responsible  for  seeking  alternative  education 
programs including, but not limited to, programs within the County or their school 
district of residence. 

 
M. Rehabilitation Plans 

 
Students who are expelled from OCEAA are given a rehabilitation plan upon expulsion 
as developed by the Board at the time of the expulsion order, which may include, 
but is not limited to, periodic review as well as assessment at the time of review for 
readmission. The rehabilitation plan should include a date not later than one year from 
the date of expulsion when the pupil may reapply to OCEAA for readmission. 

 
 
 
N. Readmission 

 
The decision to readmit a pupil or to admit a previously expelled pupil from another 
school district or charter school is the sole discretion of the Board following  a   
meeting  with   the  Principal  and   the  pupil  and   guardian  or representative to 
determine whether the pupil has successfully completed the rehabilitation plan and to 
determine whether the pupil poses a threat to others or will be disruptive to OCEAA 
environment. The Principal shall make a recommendation to the Board following the 
meeting regarding his or her determination. The pupil's readmission is also contingent 
upon the school’s capacity at the time the student seeks readmission. 

Employees at OCEAA participate in STRS, PERS and the federal social security system as 
applicable to the position. Additionally, OCEAA offers a 403(b) retirement program. OCEAA 
informs all applicants for positions within OCEAA of the retirement system options for 
employees of OCEAA. OCEAA strives to offer salaries and benefits packages that are 
competitive to local school districts. 
 
 



19
2 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 192 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

  



19
3 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 193 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

ELEMENT 12 
 
Governing Law: The public school attendance alternatives for pupils residing within the school 
district who choose not to attend charter schools. 
 
California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(L) 
 
 
Students who reside within the District who choose not to attend the charter school may attend a 
school within their school of residence according to District policy or at another school district or 
school within the District through the District’s intra and inter-district policies. Parents and 
guardians of each student enrolled in the charter school are informed that the students have no 
right to admission in a particular school of any local education agency as a consequence of 
enrollment in the charter school, except to the extent that such a right is extended by the local 
education agency. 
 
 

  



19
4 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 194 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

ELEMENT 13 
 
Governing Law: A description of the rights of an employee of the school district upon leaving the 
employment of the school district to work in a charter school, and of any rights of return to the 
school district after employment at a charter school. 
 
California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(M) 
 
 
No public school district employee shall be required to work at OCEAA. Employees of the 
school district who choose to leave the employment of the school district to work at OCEAA will 
have no automatic rights of return to the school district after employment by OCEAA unless 
specifically granted by the school district through a leave of absence or other agreement.  
OCEAA employees shall have any right upon leaving the school district to work in OCEAA that 
the school district may specify, any rights of return to employment in school district after 
employment in OCEAA that the school district may specify, and any other rights upon leaving 
employment to work in OCEAA that the school district determines to be reasonable and not in 
conflict with any law.Employees of the District who choose to leave the employment of the 
District to work in the Charter School have no automatic rights of return to the District after 
employment at the Charter School unless specifically granted by the District through a leave of 
absence or other Agreement of the District as aligned with the collective bargaining agreements 
of the District. 
 

  



19
5 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 195 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

ELEMENT 14 
 
Governing Law: The procedures to be followed by the charter school and the entity granting the 
charter to resolve disputes relating to provisions of the charter. 
 
California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(N) 
 
 
Disputes Between the District and OCEAA 
 
OCEAA and the District will always attempt to resolve any disputes between them amicably and 
reasonably without resorting to formal procedures. 
 
In the event formal disputes arising that relate to provisions of this charter between the District  
Board  of  Education  and  OCEAA,  the  following  procedures  have  been established: 
 
In the event that the District determines that OCEAA has violated the Charter and proposes as a 
result of such violation to revoke the Charter, the District and the Charter School have a face-to-
face meeting within 10 days of the Superintendent’s and/or designee’s  determination  that  a  
violation  has  occurred.  Present  in  the  face-to-face meeting shall be at least the Superintendent 
of the District or designee, on behalf of the District, and OCEAA’s Principal, on behalf of the 
Charter School.  If after such meeting, the District determines that a violation has occurred which 
requires a cure, the District sends a formal written notification to OCEAA outlining the violation 
and demanding the violation be cured.  OCEAA then has a reasonable amount of time not to 
exceed thirty (30) days after the date such formal written notice was sent (the “Notice Date”) to 
cure the violation.  If it cannot be cured within the time period specified by the District, the 
parties may agree to another predetermined time to commence to cure and diligently prosecute 
the cure to completion. 
 
The parties shall continue to use their best efforts to resolve the dispute. 
 
Thereafter, revocation of the charter may be commenced by the District in accordance with 
Education Code Section 47607 or applicable law. 
 
Internal Disputes 
 
Except those disputes between the District and OCEAA relating to provisions of this charter, all 
disputes involving OCEAA are resolved by OCEAA according to OCEAA’s own internal 
policies. 
 
Teachers’ Union 
 
OCEAA recognized the teachers' union in June 2009, and terms and conditions of employment 
“not inconsistent” with the charter may be negotiated with the union. 

  



19
6 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 196 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

ELEMENT 15 
 
Governing Law: A declaration whether or not the charter school shall be deemed the exclusive 
public school employer of the employees of the charter school for the purposes of the 
Educational Employment Relations Act (Chapter 10.7 (commencing with Section 3540) of 
Division 4 of Title 1 of the Government Code). 
 
California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(O) 
 
 
OCEAA has been deemed the exclusive public school employer of the employees of OCEAA for 
the purposes of the Educational Employment Relations Act (“EERA”).  OCEAA will comply 
with the EERA. 
 
 

  



19
7 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 197 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

ELEMENT 16 
 
Governing Law: A description of the procedures to be used if the charter school closes. The 
procedures shall ensure a final audit of the school to determine the disposition of all assets and 
liabilities of the charter school, including plans for disposing of any net assets and for the 
maintenance and transfer of public records. 
 
California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(P) 
 
 
The following procedures shall apply in the event the school closes. The following procedures 
apply regardless of the reason for closure. 
 
Closure of OCEAA will be documented by official action of the Board.  The action will identify 
the reason for closure. The official action will also identify an entity and person or persons 
responsible for closure-related activities. 
 
The Board will promptly notify the District of the closure and of the effective date of the closure. 
Parents and students of the school, the District, the Orange County Office of Education, 
OCEAA’s SELPA, the retirement systems in which OCEAA’s employees participate (e.g., 
Public Employees’ Retirement System, State Teachers’ Retirement System, and federal social 
security), and the California Department of Education will also be notified of the closure as well 
as the effective date. This notice will also include the name(s) of and contact information for the 
person(s) to whom reasonable inquiries may be made regarding the closure; the pupils’ school 
districts of residence; and the manner in which parents (guardians) may obtain copies of pupil 
records, including specific information on completed courses and credits that meet graduation 
requirements. 
 
The Board will provide information to assist parents and students in locating suitable alternative 
programs. This notice will be provided promptly following OCEAA Board's decision to close the 
school. 
 
The Board will also develop a list of pupils in each grade level and the classes they have 
completed, together with information on the pupils’ districts of residence, which they will 
provide to the entity responsible for closure-related activities. 
 
As applicable, OCEAA will provide parents, students, and the District with copies of all 
appropriate student records and will otherwise assist students in transferring to their next school. 
All transfers of student records will be made in compliance with the Family Educational Rights 
and Privacy Art  (FERPA) 20 U.S.C. § 1232g.  OCEAA will ask the District to store the records 
of the Charter School.  If the District cannot do so, OCEAA will ask the County Office of 
Education for storage. All state assessment results, special education  records,  and  personnel  
records  will  be  transferred  and  maintained  in accordance with applicable law. Copies of 
employment records will be sent to former employees. 
 



19
8 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 198 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

As soon as reasonably practical but no later than 60 days after closure, OCEAA will prepare 
final financial records.  OCEAA will also have an independent audit completed as soon as 
reasonably practical, which period is generally no more than six months after closure. OCEAA 
will pay for the final audit. The audit will be prepared by a qualified 
  
Certified Public Accountant selected by the school and will be provided to the District promptly 
upon its completion. In the case that OCEAA either does not pay for or have an independent 
audit completed within one month of the applicable timelines, the District, may, at its option pay 
for an audit to be completed and subtract such payment from any funds due to the Charter 
School. The final audit will include an accounting of all financial assets, including cash and 
accounts receivable and an inventory of property, equipment, and other items of material value, 
an accounting of the liabilities, including accounts payable and any reduction in apportionments 
as a result of audit findings or other investigations, loans, and unpaid staff compensation, and an 
assessment of the disposition of any restricted funds received by or due to the charter school. 
 
OCEAA will complete and file any annual reports required pursuant to Education Code section 
47604.33. 
 
On  closure  of  OCEAA,  all  assets  of  the  School,  including  but  not  limited  to  all 
leaseholds, personal property, intellectual property and all ADA apportionments and other 
revenues generated by students attending OCEAA, remain the sole property of the School  and  
shall  be  distributed  to  another  governmental  entity  engaged  in  public education upon the 
dissolution of the nonprofit public benefit corporation. Any assets acquired from the District or 
District property will be promptly returned to the District upon  School  closure.  The  
distribution  shall  include  return  of  any  grant  funds  and restricted categorical funds to their 
source in accordance with the terms of the grant or state and federal law, as appropriate, which 
may include submission of final expenditure reports for entitlement grants and the filing of any 
required Final Expenditure Reports and Final Performance Reports, as well as the return of  any 
donated materials and property in accordance with any conditions established when the donation 
of such materials or property was accepted.  On closure, OCEAA shall remain solely responsible 
for all liabilities arising from the operation of the Charter School. 
 
As OCEAA is organized as a nonprofit public benefit corporation, OCEAA Board will follow 
the procedures set forth in the California Corporations Code for the dissolution of a nonprofit 
public benefit corporation and file all necessary filings with the appropriate state and federal 
agencies. 
 
As specified in the attached Budget, the Charter School will utilize the reserve fund to undertake 
any expenses associated with the closure procedures identified above. 
 
Upon closure of OCEAA, employees of the Charter School have no automatic rights of 
employment with the District. Individuals employed by OCEAA would be unemployed and 
would have to seek employment elsewhere. 
 
  



19
9 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 199 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
 
Budget and Financial Reporting 
 
Governing Law: The petitioner or petitioners shall also be required to provide financial 
statements that include a proposed first-year operational budget, including startup costs, and 
cash-flow and financial projections for the first three years of operation.  
 
California Education Code Section 47605(g) 
 
Attached, as Exhibit “M”V, please find the following financial documents: 
 
 
• A letter from the Charter School Management Corporation (CSMC) verifying 
	  

OCEAA’s	  financial	  stability	  

	  

•	   Monthly	  budget	  to	  actual	  report	  for	  the	  period	  ending	  January	  31,	  2010	  

	  
  
 • A projected 5-year budget including a 3% reserve for economic uncertainties 
•  
  
• • Cash Flow for the next three years of operation 

 
 
These documents are based upon the best data available to the petitioners at this time. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
OCEAA will complete and file any annual reports required pursuant to Education Code section 
47604.33. 
 
OCEAA records all revenues and expenses in ACCPAC accounting software or the Financial 
System approved by the District.  All Governmental Funds of the Charter are reported using the 
modified accrual accounting method, measuring cash and all other financial assets that can be 
readily converted to cash.  All reporting conforms to the requirements of GASB 34 and all other 
pertinent governmental accounting and auditing standards. 
 
OCEAA   provides   financial   reports,   in   the   manner   prescribed   by   California’s 
Standardized Account Code Structure (SACS), for the required September 15 report to the  



20
0 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 200 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

District  and  for  the  First  and  Second  Interim  Reports,  Adopted  Budgets,  and Unaudited 
Actuals. 
 
The Charter also provides an annual independent audit, including financial schedules in the  
aforementioned  formats  to  the  District,  the  County  Board  of  Education,  the Controller, and 
the California Department of Education. 
 
Annually, no later than December 15th, the Charter School supplies the District with an annual 
statement of assets and liabilities.  It is expected that this information is included in the annual 
independent fiscal audit.  However, in the event that it is not contained in 
  
the audit or the audit is not completed by this date, the Charter School shall submit a separate 
document to the District containing this information. 
 
Annually, no later than July 1st, OCEAA submits a list of administrative positions along with 
their corresponding salaries. 
 
Indemnification 
 
With the exception of the District’s indemnification obligations related to the District’s 
provisions of special education services as specifically described in this Charter’s discussion of 
Special Education Services/Section 504, above, to the fullest extent permitted by law, OCEAA 
agrees to promptly, fully and completely indemnify, defend through counsel reasonably 
acceptable to Santa Ana Unified School District and hold harmless the Santa Ana Unified School 
District, the Santa Ana Unified School District’s Board of Trustees, and each of their members, 
officers, Board appointed groups, committees, boards, and any other Board appointed body, and 
administrators, employees and attorneys, agents, representatives, volunteers, successors, and 
assigns (“Indemnitees”) from and against any and all claims, demands, actions, causes of action, 
suits, losses, expenses, costs, penalties, obligations, or liabilities of whatever nature or kind, 
including, but not limited to, attorney’s fees and litigation costs, that in any way arise out of or 
relate to any actual or alleged act or omission on the part of OCEAA, and/or on the part of the 
board of directors, officers, board appointed groups, committees, boards, and any other OCEAA 
appointed body, and administrators, employees, attorneys, agents, representatives, volunteers, 
subcontractors, invitees, successors, and/or assigns of OCEAA in any way related to the 
performance of and/or to the failure to perform in whole or in part any obligation under this 
Charter and/or in any way related to the operation or operations of OCEAA or of any other 
facility, program, or activity.  The obligations of OCEAA to defend the Santa Ana Unified 
School District and the other Indemnitees identified herein is not contingent upon there being an 
acknowledgement of or a determination of the merit of any claim, demand, action, cause of 
action, or suit, and those obligations will be deemed to be triggered immediately upon the 
assertion of any claim, demands, actions, cause of action, or suit within the scope of this 
paragraph.  However, nothing in this paragraph shall be constructed to obligate OCEAA to 
indemnify Indemnitees for any claims, demands, actions, causes of action, suits, losses, 
expenses, costs, penalties, obligations, or liabilities resulting from an Indemnitee’s sole 
negligence, from an Indemnitee’s active negligence, or from an Indemnitee’s willful misconduct 
where such sole negligence, active negligence, or willful misconduct has been adjudged by the 



20
1 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 201 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

final and binding findings of a court of competent jurisdiction; except, in instances where the 
active negligence or willful misconduct of an Indemnitee accounts for only part of the loss(es) 
involved, the indemnity obligations of OCEAA shall be for that portion of the loss(es) not due to 
the active negligence or the willful misconduct of such Indemnitees.  
 
OCEAA further specifies that its indemnification, defense, and hold harmless obligations 
pursuant to this Charter extend to indemnify, defend, and hold the Indemnitees harmless from 
any and all financial obligations in the event of an unbalanced budget. 
 
OCEAA’s obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Indemnitees, as set forth in 
this section of the Charter, shall survive the revocation, expiration, termination, or cancellation 
of this Charter or any other act or event that would end OCEAA’s right to operate as a charter 
school pursuant to this Charter or cause OCEAA to cease operations. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code Section 47604(c), an entity that grants a charter to a charter school 
operated by or as a non-profit public benefit corporation shall not be liable for the debts or 
obligations of the charter school, or for claims arising from the performance of acts, errors, or 
omissions by the charter school, if the authorizing entity has complied with all oversight 
responsibilities required by law.  OCEAA shall at all times be operated by or as a nonprofit 
public benefit corporation and shall provide to the District proof of its federal and state tax 
exempt status on or before July 1 following approval of this Charter.  Further, OCEAA shall 
work diligently to assist the District in meeting any and all oversight obligations under the law, 
including monthly meetings, reporting, or other District-requested protocol(s) to ensure the 
District shall not be liable for the operation of the Charter School.  Nothing in this paragraph 
shall serve to reduce or excuse OEAA’s obligations to obtain and maintain the insurance 
required by this Charter and/or its obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the 
Indemnitees, as set forth in this Charter. 
 
Insurance 
 
OCEAA shall purchase and maintain in full force and effect at all times during the term of this 
Charter insurance in amounts and types and subject to the terms approved by the Santa Ana 
Unified School District’s risk manager and as specified below.  OCEAA’s obligations to acquire 
and maintain insurance as provided in this section of the Charter shall survive the revocation, 
expiration, termination, or cancellation of this Charter or any other act or event that would end 
OCEAA’s right to operate as a charter school pursuant to this Charter or cause OCEAA to cease 
operations until OCEAA has fully complied with the Closure Protocol set forth in this Charter 
and any additional closure procedures required by law, regulation, or required by the California 
Department of Education. 
 
Without limiting this Charter and/or the defense, indemnity, and hold-harmless obligations of 
OCEAA, throughout the life of the Charter, OCEAA shall obtain, pay for, and maintain in full 
force and effect insurance policies issued by an insurer or insurers admitted by the California 
Insurance Commissioner to do business in the State of California and rated not less than “ A or 
A-VII” by A.M. Best Insurance Rating Guide, or, in the case of self-insurance, with a California 



20
2 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 202 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Joint Powers Authority, a memorandum or memoranda of coverage providing coverage as 
follows: 
 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY insurance and/or coverage, which shall include 
coverage for: “bodily injury”, “property damage”, “advertising injury”, and “personal 
injury”, including, but not limited to, coverage for products and completed operations, 
sexual abuse/molestation, and sexual harassment with combined single limits of not less 
than $5,000,000 per occurrence and $10,000,000 in the aggregate.  Additionally, Excess 
Liability coverage shall be procured in the amount of $20,000,000 per occurrence. 
 
COMMERCIAL AUTO LIABILITY insurance and/or coverage, which shall include 
coverage for owned, non-owned, and hired autos, with bodily injury and property damage 
liability limits not less than $5,000,000 per person and per occurrence. 

 
WORKER’S COMPENSATION insurance and/or coverage, as required by applicable 
law, with not less than statutory limits.   

 
PROPERTY insurance and/or coverage, which shall include: (a) coverage for real 
property on an “all risk” basis with full replacement cost coverage and code upgrade 
coverage, (b) Fire Legal Liability, to protect against liability for portions of premises 
leased or rented, and (c) Business Personal Property, to protect on a Broad Form, named 
peril basis, for all furniture, equipment and supplies of OCEAA.  If any Santa Ana 
Unified School District property is leased, rented or borrowed, it shall also be insured by 
OCEAA in the same manner as (a), (b), and (c) above. 
 
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY insurance and/or coverage, in an amount not less than 
$1,000,000 per “claim” with an aggregate policy limit of $20,000,000.  This Professional 
Liability insurance and/or coverage must be “claims made” and not “claims made and 
reported.” 
 

All of the insurance and/or coverage required by the foregoing provisions of this Charter shall: 
(a) be endorsed to name the Santa Ana Unified School District and its Board of Trustees, Board 
members, officers, Board appointed groups, committees, boards, and any other Board appointed 
body, and administrators, employees and attorneys, agents, representatives, volunteers, 
successors, and assigns (collectively hereinafter the “Santa Ana Unified School District and the 
Santa Ana Unified School District Personnel”) as additional insureds; (b) shall insure Santa Ana 
Unified School District and Santa Ana Unified School District Personnel to the same extent as 
OCEAA; (c) shall be primary insurance, and any insurance and/or self-insurance or coverage 
maintained by the Santa Ana Unified School District and/or by the Santa Ana Unified School 
District Personnel shall be in excess of OCEAA’s insurance and/or coverage required by the 
foregoing provisions of this Charter and shall not contribute with the primary insurance and/or 
coverage to be provided by OCEAA; (d) shall be on an “occurrence” basis rather than a “claims 
made” basis, excepting only educators’ legal liability and errors and omissions insurance and/or 
coverage, which shall be on a “claims made” basis; and (e) shall apply separately to each insured 
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of liability set 
forth in the applicable policy or memorandum of coverage.  



20
3 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 203 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
Each policy of insurance and/or memorandum of coverage required by the foregoing provisions 
of this Charter shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, rescinded, voided, 
cancelled, reduced in coverage or in limits, or non-renewed, or materially changed for any 
reason, without thirty (30) days’ prior written notice thereof given by the insurer to the Santa 
Ana Unified School District by U.S. Mail, certified, or by personal delivery.  In addition to such 
notice provided to the Santa Ana Unified School District by the insurer, OCEAA shall also 
provide the Santa Ana Unified School District with thirty (30) days’ prior written notice, by 
certified mail, return receipt requested, of the suspension, recession, voiding, cancellation, 
reduction in coverage or limits, non-renewal, or material change for any reason, of any policy of 
insurance or memorandum of coverage required by the foregoing provisions of this Charter.  If at 
any time any policy of insurance or memorandum of coverage required by the foregoing 
provisions of this Charter is suspended, rescinded, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in 
limits, or non-renewed, or materially changed for any reason, Santa Ana Unified shall cease 
operations until such policy of insurance and/or memorandum of coverage is restored, and if the 
required insurance and/or coverage is not restored within two (2) business days, the Charter shall 
be subject to revocation pursuant Education Code Section 47607 and/or shall become void at the 
Santa Ana Unified School District’s option.   
 
The acceptance by the Santa Ana Unified School District of the insurance and/or coverage 
required by the foregoing provisions of this Charter shall in no way limit the liability or 
responsibility of OCEAA or of any insurer or joint powers authority to the Santa Ana Unified 
School District. 
 
Each policy of insurance and/or memorandum of coverage required by the foregoing provisions 
of this Charter shall be endorsed to state that all rights of subrogation against the Santa Ana 
Unified School District and/or the Santa Ana Unified School District Personnel are waived.   
OCEAA shall provide to the Santa Ana Unified School District duplicate originals of each policy 
of insurance and/or each memorandum of coverage required by the foregoing provisions of this 
Charter, including all declarations, forms, and endorsements, which shall be received and 
approved by the Santa Ana Unified School District within thirty (30) days of the approval of this 
Charter and by July 1 and January 7 of each year thereafter, and at any other time that a policy of 
insurance and/or memorandum of coverage is changed and at any other time a request is made by 
the District for such documents.  The duplicate originals and original endorsements required by 
this provision shall be signed by a person authorized by the insurer and/or joint powers authority 
to bind coverage on its behalf.  The procuring of such insurance and/or coverage or the delivery 
of duplicate originals and endorsements evidencing the same shall in no way be construed as a 
limitation of the obligation(s) of OCEAA to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Santa Ana 
Unified School District and the Santa Ana Unified School District Personnel.   
 
The limits of liability applicable to the policies of insurance and/or memoranda of coverage 
required by the foregoing provisions of this Charter shall not reduce or limit the obligation(s) of 
OCEAA to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Santa Ana Unified School District and the 
Santa Ana Unified School District Personnel.   
 



20
4 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 204 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

The limits of liability applicable to the policies of liability insurance and/or memoranda of 
coverage in place of liability insurance required by the foregoing provisions of this Charter shall 
not be reduced by or apply to defense costs or attorney’s fees incurred to defend against covered 
claims.   
 
Any deductible(s) or self-insured retention(s) applicable to the insurance and/or coverages 
required by the foregoing provisions of this Charter must be declared to and approved by the 
Santa Ana Unified School District. 
 
OCEAA shall promptly respond to all inquiries from the Santa Ana Unified School District 
regarding any claims against OCEAA and/or any obligation of OCEAA under the foregoing 
provisions of this Charter. 
 
Additionally, OCEAA shall, at all times, maintain a funds balance (reserve) of its expenditures 
as suggested by Section 15450, Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations.  
INDEMNIFICATION AND LIABILITY 
 
With the exception of special education services described herein and with the exception of any 
liability, claims or damages caused by the action or omission of the District, the Charter School 
agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the District and its Board, Board members, 
officers, administrators, employees, agents,  representatives,  volunteers,  successors,  and  
assigns  (collectively hereinafter “District and District Personnel”) against any and all actions, 
causes of action, suits, losses, expenses, costs, penalties, obligations, errors, omissions, or 
liabilities, including legal costs, attorney’s fees, and expert witness fees, whether or not suit is 
actually filed, and/or any judgment rendered against District and/or District Personnel that may 
be asserted or claimed by any person, firm, or entity which may in any way arise out of or in 
connection with performance under the Charter by OCEAA, its board of directors, 
administrators, employees, agents, representatives, volunteers, subcontractors, invitees, 
successors, and/or assigns. 
 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
Without limiting the Charter School’s indemnification obligations, throughout the life of the 
Charter, the Charter School shall pay for and maintain in full force and 
effect  with  an  insurance  company(s)  admitted  by  the  California  Insurance 
Commissioner to do business in the State of California and rated not less than “A- 
/VII” in Best Insurance Rating Guide, or through self-insurance with a California 
Joint Powers Authority, the following policies of insurance: 
 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE, which shall include: 
contractual, products and completed operations, corporal punishment and sexual 
misconduct and harassment coverages, for bodily injury and property damage liability 
insurance with combined single limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
Additionally, the Charter School shall procure excess liability coverage in the amount of 
$10,000,000. 

 
COMMERCIAL AUTO LIABILITY insurance which shall include: coverage for owned 



20
5 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 205 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

and non-owned autos, with bodily injury liability limits not less than $5,000,000 per 
person, per occurrence and property damage liability limits of not less than $500,000 per 
occurrence. 

 
WORKER’S COMPENSATION INSURANCE, as required by the 
California Labor Code, with not less than statutory limits. 

 
PROPERTY AND FIRE INSURANCE, shall be provided to protect: (a) Real Property, 
against risk of direct loss, commonly known as Special 

  
Form, (b) Fire Legal Liability, to protect against liability for portions of premises leased 
or rented, and (c) Business Personal Property, to protect on a Broad Form, named peril 
basis, for all furniture, equipment and 
supplies of the Charter School. If any District property is leased, rented or 
borrowed, it shall also be insured by the Charter School in the same manner as (a) and (b) 
above. 

 
ERRORS AND OMISSIONS INSURANCE, in an amount not less than 
$10,000,000. 

 
All of the Charter School’s insurance required by the Charter shall name the District and its 
Board of Trustees, Board members, officers, Board appointed groups, committees, boards, and 
any other Board appointed body, and administrators, employees, attorneys, agents, 
representatives, volunteers, successors, and assigns (collectively hereinafter “District and District 
Personnel”) as additional insureds; (ii) shall contain no special limitations on the scope of 
protection afforded to District and District Personnel; (iii) shall be primary insurance, 
notwithstanding any terms to the contrary therein, and any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the District and/or District Personnel shall be in excess of the Charter School’s 
insurance and shall not contribute with it, despite any terms therein to the contrary; (iv) shall be 
“occurrence” rather than “claims made” insurance, with the exception of educators’ legal 
liability insurance; and (v) shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or 
suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability. 
 
Each of the Charter School’s insurance policies shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not 
be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits, or non-renewed, or materially 
changed for any reason, without thirty (30) days’ prior written notice thereof given by the insurer 
to District by U.S. mail, certified, or by personal delivery.  In addition to such notice provided to 
District by the insurer, the Charter School shall also provide District with thirty (30) days’ prior 
written notice, by certified mail, return receipt requested, of the suspension, voiding, 
cancellation, reduction in coverage or limits, non-renewal, or material change for any reason, of 
any such insurance policy or policies. . 
 
The acceptance by the District of the above required insurance does not serve to limit the liability 
or responsibility of the insurer or the Charter School to the District. 
 
Each insurance policy shall be endorsed to state that the insurer shall waive all rights of 



20
6 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 206 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

subrogation against the District and District Personnel. 
 
The Charter School shall furnish District with duplicate originals of insurance policies and  
original endorsements effecting coverage required by  this MOU which shall be received and 
approved by District no later than thirty (30) days after execution of this MOU. The duplicate 
originals and original endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by a person 
authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  The procuring of such insurance or the 
delivery of 
  
duplicate originals and endorsements evidencing the same shall not be construed as  a  limitation 
on  Charter School’s obligation to  indemnify the  District  and District Personnel. 
 
The limits of liability described above shall apply only to indemnity available under the 
respective policies.  Defense costs and attorney’s fees shall not reduce the amounts available 
under the limits of liability under those respective policies. 
 
Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the District. 
 
The Charter School shall promptly respond to all inquiries from the District regarding claims 
against the Charter School and/or its outstanding insurance liability. 
 
All of the District’s insurance required by the Charter or this MOU (i) shall name the Charter 
School and its Board of Directors, Board members, officers, Board appointed groups, 
committees, boards, and any other Board appointed body, and administrators, employees, agents, 
representatives, volunteers, successors, and assigns (collectively hereinafter “District and District 
Personnel”) as additional insureds; (ii) shall contain no special limitations on the scope of 
protection afforded to Charter School or Charter School Personnel; (iii) shall be primary 
insurance, notwithstanding any terms to the contrary therein, and any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the Charter School  and/or Charter School Personnel shall be in excess of the 
District’s insurance and shall not contribute with it, despite any terms therein to the contrary; (iv) 
shall be “occurrence” rather than “claims  made”  insurance,  with  the  exception  of  educators’  
legal  liability insurance; and (v) shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is 
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability. 
 
Each of the District’s insurance policies shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be 
suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits, or non- renewed, or materially 
changed for any reason, without thirty (30) days’ prior written notice thereof given by the insurer 
to Charter School by U.S. mail, certified, or by personal delivery.  In addition to such notice 
provided to Charter School by the insurer, the District shall also provide Charter School with 
thirty (30) days’ prior written notice, by certified mail, return receipt requested, of the 
suspension, voiding, cancellation, reduction in coverage or limits, non-renewal, or material 
change for any reason, of any such insurance policy or policies. 
 
The acceptance by the Charter School of the above required insurance does not serve to limit the 
liability or responsibility of the insurer or the District to the Charter School under the 
indemnification provisions above. 



20
7 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 207 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
Each insurance policy shall be endorsed to state that the insurer shall waive all rights of 
subrogation against the Charter School and Charter School Personnel. 
  
The District shall furnish Charter School with duplicate originals of insurance policies and  
original endorsements effecting coverage required by  this MOU which shall be received by 
Charter School no later than thirty (30) days after execution of this MOU. The duplicate originals 
and original endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by 
that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  The procuring of such insurance or the delivery of 
duplicate originals and endorsements evidencing the same shall not be construed as a limitation 
on District’s obligation to indemnify the Charter School and/or Charter School Personnel as 
described above. 
 
The limits of liability described above shall apply only to indemnity available under the 
respective policies.  Defense costs and attorney’s fees shall not reduce the amounts available 
under the limits of liability under those respective policies. 
Administrative Services 
 
Governing Law: The manner in which administrative services of the school are to be provided. 
 
California Education Code Section 47605(g) 
 
A school site Principal assumes the lead responsibility for administering OCEAA under the 
policies adopted by OCEAA’s Board of Directors.   OCEAA provides or procures most of its 
own administrative services, including but not limited to financial management, personnel, and 
instructional program development.  OCEAA currently contracts with Charter School 
Management Corporation (CSMC), a business and development company specializing in charter 
schools, for administrative and “back office” services including, but not limited to, the following:  
 

• Complete Bookkeeping Services 
• Budget Creation / Fiscal Planning Services 
• Cash Flow Management 
• Local, State, and Federal Reporting 
• Audit and Compliance Preparation 
• Payroll Services 
• Employee Benefits 
• STRS and PERS Setup and Management 
• Planning & Management 
• Payroll Tax Payments 
• Audit Preparations & Support 
• LEA Plans 
• Compliance Reporting to County & State Grantors 
• Attendance Reporting 
• Food Program - Implementation & Claims Reporting 
• Training - Charter School Finance, Accounting & Operation Functions, Budgets, 



20
8 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 208 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Financial Reports 
• Quarterly & Annual Filings of Tax Forms (IRS, EDD, etc.) 
• Property Tax Exemptions Filings 

 
If the Charter School were interested in discussing the possibility of purchasing some of these or 
other services from the District, the specific terms and cost for these services will be the subject 
of a memorandum of understanding (MOU) between OCEAA and the District and subject to 
District availability. 
 
The OCEAA Nutrition Services Department participates with the National Free and Reduced 
Meals programs and provides all students the opportunity to enjoy a nutritious breakfast and 
lunch. All meals are prepared fresh daily on site by the Nutrition Services Staff and include a 
fresh fruit and vegetable bar option. The Nutrition Services Director writes the menus monthly 
which emphasize the importance of teaching families the life- long benefits of eating foods that 
meet and exceed the US Department of Agriculture, Food  and  Nutrition  Services  Guidelines. 
OCEAA’s  current  breakfast  and  lunch participation rates far exceed the state averages of 20% 
for breakfast and 55% for lunch at 34% and 91% respectfully. 
 
Facilities 
 
Governing Law: The facilities to be utilized by the school. The description of the facilities to be 
used by the charter school shall specify where the school intends to locate.  
 
California Education Code Section 47605(g) 
 
School Location 
 
This charter authorizes the operation of the Orange County Educational Arts Academy, a charter 
which shall operate at two sites within the geographic boundaries of Santa Ana Unified School 
District, as authorized pursuant to Education Code Section 47605 et seq. 
 
OCEAA’s current facility is located at 825 N. Broadway in the heart of the Santa Ana Civic 
Center between the Artist’s Village and the Museum Corridor in Central Orange County. It is 
surrounded by densely populated low socioeconomic neighborhoods. 
 
The building is a K-8 facility totaling 43,400 sq. ft. It includes an 800 sq. ft. kitchen, 4,100 sq. ft. 
dining hall and an amply secured 8,300 sq. ft. play space. There are 26 classrooms, three mobile 
computer carts, a staff lounge, administrative offices, reception areas, a workroom, and ample 
storage and janitorial supply rooms. It was brought up to code for ADA compliance in 2002 and 
interior improvements were performed to meet current seismic requirements. Byer & Associates, 
Inc. conducted an appraisal of this property in January 2002 and it was determined by Byer & 
Associates that this site is suitable for the operation of a public school for grades K-8. In the 
summer of 2009, the building underwent renovations to accommodate two additional 
classrooms. All new construction was made observing current building codes and regulations. 
 
OCEAA intends to add a second site for their program during the next term, conveniently located 



20
9 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 209 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

across the street from the current site at 822-828 Broadway Street.  The Kindergarten Annex is a 
9,685 square foot facility that has been leased for the purpose of housing both Transitional 
Kindergarten and Kindergarten. The facility contains six classrooms averaging 700 sq. feet and a 
play/lunch area consisting of approximately 2,100 sq. feet. The facility is currently undergoing 
tenant improvements and will tentatively open during the 2015-2016 school year. All 
construction is made observing current building codes and regulations. 
 
OCEAA complies with the requirement of Education Code Section 47610 by utilizing facilities 
that comply with the California Building Standards Code as adopted and entered by the local 
building enforcement agency with jurisdiction over the area in which the Charter School is  
located.  Regular  maintenance and operations are provided by OCEAA’s custodial staff. 
 
Transportation 
 
Transportation to and from school is the sole responsibility of the families who choose to attend 
OCEAA, except as required by law. Public transportation, and information regarding public 
transportation, is readily available for families wishing to attend OCEAA. 
 
Potential Civil Liability Effects 
 
Governing Law: Potential civil liability effects, if any, upon the school and upon the District.  
 
California Education Code Section 47605(g) 
 
Intent 
 
This statement is intended to fulfill the terms of Education Code Section 47605(g) and provides  
information  regarding  the  proposed  operation  and  potential  effects  of  the Charter School on 
the District. 
 
Civil Liability 
 
OCEAA  is  operated  as  a  California  non-profit  public  benefit  corporation.  This corporation 
is organized and operated exclusively for charitable purposes within the meaning of Section 
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 
23701d.  One of the objectives of the corporation is to provide public education for residents of 
the State of California, in accordance with the Charter Schools Act, California Education Code 
Section 47600, et seq. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code Section 47604(c), an entity that grants a charter to a charter school 
operated by or as a non-profit public benefit corporation shall not be liable for the debts or 
obligations of the charter school or for claims arising from the performance of acts, errors or 
omissions by the Charter School if the authority has complied with all oversight responsibilities 
required by law. OCEAA’s Articles of Incorporation are attached as Exhibit “J.” OCEAA shall 
work diligently to assist the District in meeting any and all oversight obligations under the law, 
including monthly meetings, reporting, or other requested protocol to ensure the District shall not 



21
0 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 210 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

be liable for the operation of the Charter School. 
 
Further, OCEAA and the District shall maintain a memorandum of understanding which shall 
provide for indemnification of the District. 
 
The corporate bylaws of OCEAA provide for indemnification of OCEAA’s Board of Directors, 
officers, agents, and employees, and OCEAA will purchase general liability insurance, Directors 
and Officers insurance, and fidelity bonding to secure against financial risks.  Insurance amounts 
are determined by recommendation of the insurance company for schools of similar size, 
location, and type of program. The District is named an additional insured on the general liability 
insurance of the Charter School. 
 
The Board of Directors of OCEAA has instituted appropriate risk management practices, 
including screening of employees, establishing codes of conduct for students, staff, and 
participating  families,  and  procedures  governing  financial  transactions  and  dispute 
resolution. 
 
Inspections 
 
Inspection or observation of any part of OCEAA may be conducted by SAUSD at any time, but 
SAUSD shall provide reasonable notice to the Principal prior to any observation or inspection. 
Third party inspections, observation monitoring and oversight activities may not be conducted on 
behalf of SAUSD without the mutual consent of the OCEAA Board. 
 
Notices 
 
All notices, consents, demands, or another communications for one party or the other required or 
permitted in this MOU shall be in writing and shall be either personally delivered or sent by a 
nationally recognized overnight courier, telecopier or by registered or certified U.S. mail, 
postage prepaid, addressed as set forth below (except that a party may, from time to time, give 
notice changing the address for this purpose). A notice shall be effective on the date personally 
delivered, on the date delivered by a nationally recognized overnight courier (or the next 
succeeding business day if delivered on a non- business day), on the date set forth on the receipt 
of a telecopier or a facsimile (or the next succeeding business day if received by telecopier or 
facsimile on a non-business day), or upon the earlier of the dates set forth on the receipt of 
registered or certified mail, or on the fifth (5th) day after mailing. 
 
Amendments 
 
OCEAA will seek approval by the District for any material revisions to the charter in accordance 
with Education Code 47607. The OCEAA Board will approve any minor revisions and the 
District will be updated annually. 
  



21
1 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 211 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

CONCLUSION 
 
 
OCEAA is proud of the work it has done to offer an excellent educational option to families in 
the region.  We look forward to building on our successes as well as capitalizing on opportunities 
for growth over the course of our next five year term.   OCEAA will continue to work closely 
with the SAUSD staff as well as the Orange County Department of Education to ensure the 
academic needs of all of OCEAA’s students are met. All OCEAA stakeholders will partake in 
and be informed about our planned goals. 
 
We ask that the SAUSD School Board grant this renewal petition for the Orange County 
Educational Arts Academy. 	  By approving this charter renewal, the District will be fulfilling the 
intent of the Charter Schools Act of 1992 to improve pupil learning; create new professional 
opportunities for teachers; and provide parents and pupils with expanded choices in education 
and following the directive of law to encourage the creation of charter schools. 
 
COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 
 
Governing Law:   The manner by which staff members of the Charter Schools will be covered by 

the State Teachers’ Retirement System, the Public Employee’s Retirement System, or federal 
social security—California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(K) 

 
Employees at OCEAA participate in STRS, PERS and the federal social security system as 
applicable to the position. Additionally, OCEAA offers a 403(b) retirement program. OCEAA 
informs all applicants for positions within OCEAA of the retirement system options for 
employees of OCEAA. OCEAA strives to offer salaries and benefits packages that are 
competitive to local school districts. 
 
EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATION 
 
Governing Law: A declaration whether or not the Charter School shall be deemed the exclusive 

public school employer of the employees of the Charter School for the purposes of the 
Educational Employment Relations Act. —California Education Code Section 

47605(b)(5)(O) 



21
2 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 212 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

OCEAA has been deemed the exclusive public school employer of the employees of 
OCEAA for the purposes of the Educational Employment Relations Act. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RIGHTS OF SCHOOL DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 
Governing Law:  A description of the rights of any employee of OCEAA district upon leaving the 
employment of OCEAA district to work in a charter school, and of any rights of return to OCEAA 

district after employment at a charter school. – Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(M) 
 
Employees of the District who choose to leave the employment of the District to work in the 
Charter School have no automatic rights of return to the District after employment at the 
Charter School unless specifically granted by the District through a leave of absence or other 
Agreement of the District as aligned with the collective bargaining agreements of the District. 
 
Salaries and Benefits 
 
OCEAA strives to maintain competitive salaries and benefit packages to retain highly 
qualified staff. Full health benefits are offered to full time employees. 
 
Performance Assessment 
 
Each OCEAA staff member receives a mid-year and end-of-year performance assessment 
annually (see examples Exhibit T) by his/her supervisor. The goal of these assessments is to 
provide feedback and assist the employee in growing or improving professionally. The criteria 
used for OCEAA’s staff members in their evaluations include, but are not limited to: 
1.   Job Descriptions specific to the position 
2.   California Standards for the Teaching Profession (when applicable) 
3.   Professional Learning Plan Goals (when applicable) 
4.   California Professional Standards for Educational Leaders (when applicable) 
5.   Feedback from colleagues/students/families (when applicable) 
6.   Overall effectiveness 
 
HEALTH AND SAFETY 
 
Governing Law: The procedures that OCEAA will follow to ensure the health and safety of 
pupils and staff. These procedures shall include the requirement that each employee of OCEAA 
furnish OCEAA record summary as described in Section 44237—California Education Code 
Section 47605(b)(5)(F) 
 
Procedures For Background Checks 



21
3 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 213 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
OCEAA complies with the provisions of Education Code Section 44237 and 45125.1 regarding 
the fingerprinting and background clearance of employees, contractors and volunteers prior to 
employment and/or any one-on-one contact with pupils of the school. The Principal of OCEAA 
monitors compliance with this policy and reports to the Board of Directors on an annual basis or 
upon request of the District. 
 
 
 
 
Role Of Staff As Mandated Child Abuse Reporters 
 
All classified and certificated staff are mandated child abuse reporters and will follow all 
applicable reporting laws, the same policies and procedures used by the District. 
 
TB Testing 
 
OCEAA  follows  the  requirement  of  Education  Code  Section  49406  in  requiring 
tuberculosis testing of all employees. 
 
Immunizations 
 
OCEA adheres to all law related to legally required immunizations for entering students 
pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 120325-120375, and Title 17, California Code 
of Regulations Section 6000-6075. 
 
Medication in School 
 
OCEAA  adheres  to  Education  Code  Section  49423  regarding  administration  of 
medication in school. 
 
Vision/Hearing/Scoliosis 
 
OCEAA adheres to Education Code Section 49450 et. seq. as applicable to the grade levels 
served by the school. 
 
School Facilities 
 
OCEAA frequently assesses the safety of the school site using the state, county and city 
guidelines. Regular preventative maintenance is performed to ensure the structural integrity of 
our building and equipment. 
 
OCEAA maintains a safe school plan that is reviewed on an annual basis. This plan ensures that 
all of our auxiliary services (food services, transportation, custodial services, hazardous waste, 
etc.) are safe. 
 



21
4 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 214 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Emergency Preparedness 



21
5 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 215 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
OCEAA adheres to an Emergency Preparedness Handbook drafted specifically to the needs of 
OCEAA site.   This handbook includes responses to the following situations: fire, flood, 
earthquake, terrorist threats, and hostage situations. 
 
Blood borne Pathogens 
 
OCEAA meets state and federal standards for dealing with blood borne pathogens and other 
potentially infectious materials in the workplace.   The Board has established a written 
“Exposure Control Plan” designed to protect employees from possible infection due to contact 
with blood borne viruses, including human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) and hepatitis B virus 
(HBV). 
 
Whenever exposed to blood or other body fluids through injury or accident, students and staff 
should follow the latest medical protocol for disinfecting procedures. 
 
Drug Free/Smoke Free Environment 
 
OCEAA maintains a drug and alcohol and smoke free environment. 
 
Procedures 
 
OCEAA has adopted and maintains procedures detailed in the Employee Handbook to 
implement the policy statements listed above. This includes due process for employees and 
complaint procedures. 



21
6 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 216 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

VI. DISPUTE RESOLUTION (ELEMENTS 11, 14) 
 
Governing Law: The procedures to be followed by the Charter School and the entity granting the 
charter to resolve disputes relating to provisions of the charter—California Education Code 
Section 47605(b)(5)(N) 
 
Disputes Between the District and OCEAA 
 
OCEAA and the District will always attempt to resolve any disputes between them amicably and 
reasonably without resorting to formal procedures. 
 
In the event formal disputes arising that relate to provisions of this charter between the District  
Board  of  Education  and  OCEAA,  the  following  procedures  have  been established: 
 
In the event that the District determines that OCEAA has violated the Charter and proposes as a 
result of such violation to revoke the Charter, the District and the Charter School have a face-to-
face meeting within 10 days of the Superintendent’s and/or designee’s  determination  that  a  
violation  has  occurred.  Present  in  the  face-to-face meeting shall be at least the 
Superintendent of the District or designee, on behalf of the District, and OCEAA’s Principal, on 
behalf of the Charter School.  If after such meeting, the District determines that a violation has 
occurred which requires a cure, the District sends a formal written notification to OCEAA 
outlining the violation and demanding the violation be cured.  OCEAA then has a reasonable 
amount of time not to exceed thirty (30) days after the date such formal written notice was 
sent (the “Notice Date”) to cure the violation.  If it cannot be cured within the time period 
specified by the District, the parties may agree to another predetermined time to commence to 
cure and diligently prosecute the cure to completion. 
 
The parties shall continue to use their best efforts to resolve the dispute. 
 
Thereafter, revocation of the charter may be commenced by the District in accordance with 
Education Code Section 47607 or applicable law. 
 
Internal Disputes 
 
Except those disputes between the District and OCEAA relating to provisions of this charter, all 
disputes involving OCEAA are resolved by OCEAA according to OCEAA’s own internal 
policies. 
 
Teachers’ Union 
 
OCEAA recognized the teachers' union in June 2009, and terms and conditions of employment 
“not inconsistent” with the charter may be negotiated with the union. 



21
7 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 217 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
VII. STUDENT ADMISSIONS, ATTENDANCE, AND SUSPENSION/EXPULSION 
POLICIES (ELEMENTS 7, 8, 10, 12) 
 
STUDENT ADMISSIONS POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
Governing Law: Admission Requirements, if applicable-Education Code Section 
47605(b)(5)(H) 
 
OCEAA admits all pupils who wish to attend OCEAA up to capacity.  No test or assessment is 
administered to students prior to acceptance and enrollment into OCEAA. However, OCEAA 
may determine that a pupil is ineligible to return the following school year if the pupil fails to 
comply with requirements and polices stated in the OCEAA School-Family Handbook. 
 
Pupils are considered for admissions without regard to the characteristics listed in Section 
220 (actual or perceived disability, gender, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual 
orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth 
in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code or association with an individual who has any of the 
aforementioned characteristics), fluency in English, or parent income/educational level. 
 
The application process is comprised of the following: 
 
• Parent attendance at a school orientation meeting 
• Completion of a student enrollment form 
• Parent signature of Home-School Contract 
• Proof of Immunization 
• Home Language Survey 
• Completion of Emergency Medical Information Form 
• Proof of minimum age requirements, e.g. birth certificate 
 
Applications are accepted during an open enrollment period from March 1st to March 15th for 
enrollment in the following school year.  Following the open enrollment period each year, 
applications are counted to determine whether any grade level has received more applications 
than availability.  In this event, OCEAA holds a public random drawing to determine 
enrollment for the impacted grade level(s), with the exception of existing students who are 
guaranteed enrollment for the following school year. 
 
Enrollment priority in the case of a public random drawing is allowed in the following priority 
order: 
 
1.  Siblings of currently enrolled students 
 
2.  Children of OCEAA employees 



21
8 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 218 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

3. All other applicants 
 
 
 
 
At the conclusion of the lottery, all students who were not granted admission due to capacity are 
given the option to put their name on a wait list according to their draw in the lottery. This 
wait list (see Exhibit U) will allow students the option of enrollment in the case of an opening 
during the school year. 
 
In no circumstance does a wait list carry over to the following school year. 
 
NON-DESCRIMINATION 
 
Governing Law: The means by which OCEAA will achieve racial and ethnic balance among its 
pupils that is reflective of the general population residing within the territorial jurisdiction of 
OCEAA district to which the charter petition is submitted—California Education Code Section 
47605 (b)(5)(G) 
 
OCEAA considers pupils for admission without regard to the characteristics listed in Section 
220 (actual or perceived disability, gender, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual 
orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth 
in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code or association with an individual who has any of the 
aforementioned characteristics), fluency in English, or parent income/educational level. 
OCEAA strives, through recruiting, to achieve a racial and ethnic balance of students that 
reflects the general population of the District (see Table 
6.1).  OCEAA rigorously recruits students in impacted areas and provides assistance to 
families in completing and returning registration applications. 
 
Table 6.1 Student Demographics 
Demographics African- 

American 
Asian Hispanic or 

Latino 
White 

OCEAA 4% 1% 86% 9% 
SAUSD 1% 3% 95% 2% 

 
OCEAA’s Outreach Plan includes a marketing plan which details significant outreach activities 
in Spanish language media, and other language media as needed, including newspaper and 
television.   The marketing plan also includes the preparation and distribution of recruiting 
materials in English and Spanish.   OCEAA will develop applications in other languages, as 
needed. 
 
The Outreach Plan schedules dates, times, and locations of open houses, informational 
meetings, and other activities in a manner which insures, to the extent possible, that all 
interested families are able to attend. 
 
OCEAA aims to enhance the instructional program and outreach through partnerships with 



21
9 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 219 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

the Orange County High School of the Arts, the Pacific Symphony, the Orange 



22
0 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 220 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

County Museum of Art, The Wooden Floor (Saint Joseph’s Ballet), El Centro Cultural de 
Mexico, Mexican Consulate, Santa Ana Arts Council, Santa Ana Arts organizations, Orange 
County Performing Arts Center, as well as regional colleges and universities such as California 
State University, Fullerton, Santa Ana College, Chapman University and the University of 
California, Irvine. 
 
OCEAA provides an annual report of student enrollment indicating the racial and ethnic mix of 
students and the percentage of students from the District and steps taken to ensure a racial and 
ethnic balance as described herein.  The annual report disaggregates racial and ethnic class, 
free and reduced lunch participation percentage, English Learners, and includes the percentage 
versus total of those who applied and those who were admitted. 
 
PUPIL PUBLIC SCHOOL ATTENDANCE ALTERNATIVES 
 
The public school attendance alternatives for pupils residing within OCEAA district who choose 
not to attend charter schools. -  Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(L) 
 
Students who reside within the District who choose not to attend the charter school may attend a 
school within their school of residence according to District policy or at another school district or 
school within the District through the District’s intra and inter-district policies. Parents and 
guardians of each student enrolled in the charter school are informed that the students have no 
right to admission in a particular school of any local education agency as a consequence of 
enrollment in the charter school, except to the extent that such a right is extended by the local 
education agency. 
 
SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION PROCEDURES 
 
Governing Law: The procedures by which pupils can be suspended or expelled— California 
Education Code Section 47605 (b)(5)(J) 
 
This Pupil Suspension and Expulsion Policy has been established in order to promote 
learning and protect the safety and well being of all students at OCEAA. When the Policy is 
violated, it may be necessary to suspend or expel a student from regular classroom 
instruction. 
 
School faculty and support staff co-created the school wide discipline policies and procedures 
and annually convene to review and update the policies. As part of the review process, input 
from parents via the FSO is solicited and included as deemed necessary. School staff enforce 
disciplinary rules and procedures fairly and consistently amongst all students. The Principal 
ensures that this Policy and its Procedures are distributed and accessible to parents on the 
school’s web site as part of the Family School Handbook and clearly describe discipline 
expectations. Notice is given that this Policy and Administrative Procedures are also available 
on request at the Principal's office. Parents/Guardians and students sign in agreement to uphold 
the school’s discipline policies and procedures as part of the annual enrollment process. 



22
1 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 221 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Discipline includes but is not limited to advising and counseling students, conferring with 
parents/guardians, detention during and after school hours, the use of alternative educational 
environments, suspension and expulsion. 
 
Corporal punishment is not used as a disciplinary measure against any student. Corporal 
punishment includes the willful infliction of or willfully causing the infliction of physical pain 
on a student. For purposes of the Policy, corporal punishment does not include an employee's  
use  of  force  that  is  reasonable  and  necessary  to  protect  the  employee, students, staff or 
other persons or to prevent damage to school property. 
 
Suspended or expelled students are excluded from all school and school-related activities unless 
otherwise agreed during the period of suspension or expulsion. 
 
A student identified as an individual with disabilities or for whom OCEAA has a basis of 
knowledge of a suspected disability pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities in Education 
Improvement Act (IDEIA), or who is qualified for services under Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), is subject to the same grounds for suspension and 
expulsion and is accorded the same due process procedures applicable to regular education 
students except when federal and state law mandates additional or different procedures. OCEAA 
follows Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and Individuals with Disabilities in Education 
Improvement Act (IDEIA) when imposing any form of discipline on a student identified as an 
individual with disabilities or for whom OCEAA has a basis of knowledge of a suspected 
disability or who is otherwise qualified for such services or protections in according due process 
to such students.  OCEAA shall continue to coordinate and communicate with the District any 
discipline of a student with a disability under the IDEIA or who is suspected of having a 
disability under the IDEIA. 
 
A.        Definitions (as used in this policy): 
 
1.  “Board" means governing body of the Charter School 
 
2.  “Expulsion” means dis-enrollment from the Charter School 
 
3.  “School day” means a day upon which the Charter School is in session or weekdays 
during the summer recess. 
 
4.  “Suspension” means removal of a pupil from ongoing instruction for adjustment 
purposes. However, “suspension” does not mean the following: 
 
a. Reassignment to another education program or class at the charter school where the 
pupil will receive continuing instruction for the length of day prescribed by the Charter School 
Board for pupils of the same grade level. 



22
2 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 222 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

b. Referral to a certificated employee designated by the Principal to advise pupils. 
 
c. Removal from the class but without reassignment to another class for the remainder of the 
class period without sending the pupil to the Principal or designee. 
 
5.  “Pupil” includes a pupil's parent or guardian or legal counsel or other representative. 
 
6.          "School" means the Charter School. 
 
B. Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion of Students 
 
A student may be suspended or expelled for prohibited misconduct if the act is related to school 
activity or school attendance occurring at OCEAA, at any other school or a School sponsored 
event at anytime including but not limited to: a) while on school grounds; b) while going to or 
coming from school; c) during the lunch period, whether on or off OCEAA campus; d) during, 
going to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity. 
 
C. Enumerated Offenses 
 
Students may be suspended or expelled for any of the following acts when it is determined the 
pupil: 
 
1.  Caused, attempted to  cause, or  threatened to  cause physical injury  to another 
person or willfully used force of violence upon the person of another, except self-defense. 
 
2.  Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, knife, explosive, or other 
dangerous object unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the students had 
obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee, with the 
Principal/Administrator of designee’s concurrence. 
 
3.  Unlawfully possessed, used, sold or otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of 
any controlled substance, as defined in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058, alcoholic 
beverage, or intoxicant of any kind. 
 
4.  Unlawfully  offered,  arranged,  or  negotiated  to  sell  any  controlled substance as 
defined in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any 
kind, and then sold, delivered or otherwise furnished to any person another liquid substance or 
material and represented   same   as   controlled   substance,   alcoholic   beverage   or 
intoxicant. 



22
3 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 223 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
5.  Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion. 
 
6.  Caused  or  attempted  to  cause  damage  to  school  property  or  private property. 
 
7.  Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property. 
 
8.  Possessed or used tobacco or any products containing tobacco or nicotine products, 
including but not limited to cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, smokeless 
tobacco, snuff, chew packets, and betel. 
 
9.  Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity. 
 
10.  Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug 
paraphernalia, as defined in Health and Safety Code 11014.5. 
 
11.  Disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of supervisors, 
teachers, administrators, other school officials, or other school personnel engaged in the 
performance of their duties. 
 
12.  Knowingly received stolen school property or private property. 
 
13.  Possessed  an  imitation firearm, i.e.:  a  replica of  a  firearm that  is  so substantially 
similar in physical properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude 
that the replica is a firearm. 
 
14.  Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 261, 
266c, 286, 288, 288a or 289, or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code 243.4. 
 
15.  Harassed,  threatened,  or  intimidated  a  student  who  is  a  complaining witness or 
witness in a school disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from being 
a witness and/or retaliating against that student for being a witness. 
 
16.  Made terrorist threats against school officials and/or school property. 
 
17.  Committed sexual harassment. 
 
18.  Caused, attempted to cause, threatened to cause, or participated in an act of hate 
violence. 
 
19.  Intentionally harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student or group of students to the 
extent of having the actual and reasonably expected effect of  materially  disrupting  class  
work,  creating  substantial  disorder  and 



22
4 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 224 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

invading student rights by creating an intimidating or hostile educational environment. 
 
20.  Failure to comply with the requirements and policies stated in the OCEAA School-
Family Handbook. 
 
The above list is not exhaustive and, depending upon the offense, a pupil may be suspended or 
expelled for misconduct not specified above. 
 
Alternatives to suspension or expulsion will first be attempted with students who are truant, 
tardy, or otherwise absent from assigned school activities. 
 
D. Suspension Procedure 
 
Suspensions are initiated according to the following procedures: 
 
1.  Informal Conference 
 
Suspensions  are  preceded,  if  possible,  by   an  informal  conference conducted by the 
Principal or the Principal's designee with the student and his or her parent and, whenever 
practicable, the teacher, supervisor or school  employee  who  referred  the  student  to  the  
Principal.     The conference may be omitted if the Principal or designee determines that an 
emergency situation exists. An "emergency situation" involves a clear and present  danger  to  
the  lives,  safety  or  health  of  students  or  school personnel. If a student is suspended 
without this conference, both the parent/guardian and student are notified of the student's right 
to return to school for the purpose of a conference. 
 
At the conference, the pupil is informed of the reason for the disciplinary action and the 
evidence against him or her and is given the opportunity to present his or her version and 
evidence in his or her defense. 
 
This conference is held within two school days, unless the pupil waives this right or is physically 
unable to attend for any reason including, but not limited to, incarceration or hospitalization. 
 
No penalties are imposed on a pupil for failure of the pupil's parent or guardian to attend a 
conference with school officials. Reinstatement of the suspended pupil is not contingent upon 
attendance by the pupil's parent or guardian at the conference. 
 
2.  Notice to Parents/Guardians 
 
At the time of the suspension, a School employee shall make a reasonable effort to contact the 
parent/guardian by telephone or in person. Whenever 



22
5 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 225 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

a student is suspended, the parent/guardian shall be notified in writing of the suspension.  This 
notice states the specific offense committed by the student.  In addition, the notice may also 
state the date and time when the student may return to school.   If school officials wish to ask 
the parent/guardian to confer regarding matters pertinent to the suspension, the notice may 
request that the parent/guardian respond to such requests without delay. 
 
3.          Suspension Time Limits/Recommendation for Expulsion 
 
Suspensions, when not including a recommendation for expulsion, do not exceed five (5) 
consecutive school days per suspension.   If the pupil is recommended for expulsion, the 
suspension shall extend through the 10- day opportunity to appeal period. If the expulsion is 
appealed, the pupil and the pupil's guardian or representative are invited to a conference to 
determine if the suspension for the pupil should be extended pending an appeal hearing. This 
determination will be made by the Principal upon either of the following determinations: 1) the 
pupil's presence will be disruptive to the education process; or 2) the pupil poses a threat or 
danger to others. Upon either determination, the pupil's suspension will be extended pending the 
results of an appeal hearing. 
 
E. Authority to Expel 
 
A student may be expelled either by the Principal, or if appealed, by the OCEAA Board 
following an impartial hearing before an Administrative Panel (the “Expulsion  Hearing  Panel”  
or  “Panel”)  appointed  by  the  OCEAA  Board  as needed. The Panel should consist of at least 
three members. The Panel may recommend expulsion, recommend no expulsion, or recommend 
other non- expulsion disciplinary measures. 
 
F. Expulsion Procedures 
 
The steps in the expulsion procedure are as follows: 
 
1.         The Principal may recommend expulsion of a pupil and shall give notice to the parent 
or guardian. 
2.         The parent or guardian shall have ten days from that notice to appeal the 
Principal’s recommendation for expulsion.  If the parent or guardian does not appeal the 
expulsion recommendation in a timely manner, the expulsion becomes final and the pupil is 
expelled. 
3.         If appealed, an impartial Expulsion Hearing Panel shall hear the appeal 
and any evidence presented, and shall issue a report and recommendation to the 
OCEAA Board. 
4.         The  OCEAA  Board  shall  consider  the  report  and  recommendation in closed 
session, and shall make the final determination on the expulsion appeal. 



22
6 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 226 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
Unless postponed for good cause, the appeal hearing shall be held within thirty (30) school days 
after the Principal determines that the Pupil has committed an expellable offense and 
recommends expulsion. 
The expulsion appeal hearing is presided over by the chair of the Expulsion 
Hearing Panel. 
 
Written notice of the appeal hearing shall be forwarded to the student and the student's 
parent/guardian at least ten (10) calendar days before the date of the hearing. Upon mailing 
the notice, it is deemed served upon the pupil.  The notice shall include: 
 
1.          The date and location of the appeal hearing; 
 
2.  A statement of the specific facts, charges and offenses upon which the proposed is 
based; 
 
15. A copy of OCEAA's disciplinary rules which relate to the alleged violation; 
 
16. Notification of  the  student's or  parent/guardian's obligation to  provide information 
about the student's status at the School to any other school district or school to which the student 
seeks enrollment; 
 
17. Notification   of   the   opportunity   for   the   student   or   the   student's 
parent/guardian to appear in person or to be represented by counsel or an advocate, and to 
present evidence; 
 
18. Notification of the of the right to inspect and obtain copies of all documents to be used at 
the hearing; 
 
19. Notification of the of the opportunity to confront and question all witnesses who testify at 
the hearing; 
 
20. Notification of the of the opportunity to question all evidence presented and to present 
oral and documentary evidence on the student's behalf including witnesses. 
 
G. Record of Appeal Hearing 
 
A record of the appeal hearing shall be made and may be maintained by any means, including 
electronic recording, as long as reasonably accurate. The record shall be made by the chair of the 
Panel or her/his designee. 
 
H. Presentation of Evidence 



22
7 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 227 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

While formal rules of evidence do not apply to appeal hearings, evidence is admitted and used 
as proof only if it is the kind of evidence on which reasonable persons can rely in the conduct of 
serious affairs. A recommendation by the Panel to expel must be supported by substantial 
evidence that the student committed an expellable offense. 
 
The Panel’s report, recommendation, and findings of fact are based solely on the evidence 
presented at the hearing. While hearsay evidence is admissible, no decision to expel may be 
based solely on hearsay.    Sworn declarations may be admitted as testimony from witnesses of 
whom the Panel determines that disclosure of their identity or testimony at the hearing may 
subject them to an unreasonable risk of physical or psychological harm. 
 
The decision of the Panel shall be in the form of a written recommendation to the OCEAA Board 
who will make a final determination regarding the expulsion. The final decision by the OCEAA 
Board shall be made within ten (10) school days following the conclusion of the hearing, or at its 
next regularly-scheduled meeting.  The OCEAA Board may from time to time adopt policies that 
modify the appeal hearing process, so long as the final expulsion determination is made by the 
Board. 
 
I. Written Notice to Expel 
 
The Principal, after close of the ten-day appeal period or, if appealed, following a decision of the 
OCEAA Board to expel, shall send a written notice of the decision to expel to the student or 
parent/guardian. This notice shall include the following: 
 
3.         Notice of the specific offense committed by the student 
 
4. Notice of the student's or parent/guardian's obligation to inform any new district in 
which the student seeks to enroll of the student's status with OCEAA. 
 
The Principal shall send written notice of the decision to expel to the Student's 
School District of residence, and the Santa Ana School District. This notice includes the 
following: 
a) The student's name 
 
b) The specific expellable offense committed by the student 
 
Additionally, in accordance with Education Code Section 47605(d)(3), upon expulsion of any 
student, the Charter School shall notify the superintendent of the school district of the pupil’s 
last known address within 30 days, and shall, upon 



22
8 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 228 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

request, provide that school district with a copy of the cumulative record of the pupil, including 
a transcript of grades or report card and health information. 
 
J. Disciplinary Records 
 
OCEAA  maintains  records  of  all  student  suspensions  and  expulsions  at  the school.  Such 
records shall be made available to the District upon request. 
 
K. No Further Right to Appeal 
 
The pupil shall have no further right of appeal from expulsion from OCEAA as the Board’s 
decision to expel shall be final. 
 
L. Expelled Pupils/Alternative Education 
 
Pupils  who  are  expelled  are  responsible  for  seeking  alternative  education programs 
including, but not limited to, programs within the County or their school district of residence. 
 
M. Rehabilitation Plans 
 
Students who are expelled from OCEAA are given a rehabilitation plan upon expulsion as 
developed by the Board at the time of the expulsion order, which may include, but is not 
limited to, periodic review as well as assessment at the time of review for readmission. The 
rehabilitation plan should include a date not later than one year from the date of expulsion when 
the pupil may reapply to OCEAA for readmission. 
 
 
 
N. Readmission 
 
The decision to readmit a pupil or to admit a previously expelled pupil from another school 
district or charter school is the sole discretion of the Board following  a   meeting  with   the  
Principal  and   the  pupil  and   guardian  or representative to determine whether the pupil has 
successfully completed the rehabilitation plan and to determine whether the pupil poses a threat 
to others or will be disruptive to OCEAA environment. The Principal shall make a 
recommendation to the Board following the meeting regarding his or her determination. The 
pupil's readmission is also contingent upon the school’s capacity at the time the student seeks 
readmission. 



22
9 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 229 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

VIII. FINANCIAL PLANNING, REPORTING AND ACCOUNTABILITY (ELEMENTS 
9, 16) 
 
BUDGETS 
 
Governing Law:  The petitioner or petitioners shall also be required to provide financial 
statements that include a proposed first year operational budget, including startup costs, and 
cash flow and financial projections for the first three years of operation- (Education Code 
Section 47605(g)) 
 
Attached, as Exhibit V, please find the following financial documents: 
 
• A letter from the Charter School Management Corporation (CSMC) verifying 
 
OCEAA’s financial stability 
 
• Monthly budget to actual report for the period ending January 31, 2010 
 
• A projected 5-year budget including a 3% reserve for economic uncertainties 
 
• Cash Flow for the next three years of operation 
 
 
These documents are based upon the best data available to the petitioners at this time. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
OCEAA will complete and file any annual reports required pursuant to Education Code section 
47604.33. 
 
OCEAA records all revenues and expenses in ACCPAC accounting software or the Financial 
System approved by the District.  All Governmental Funds of the Charter are reported using 
the modified accrual accounting method, measuring cash and all other financial assets that can 
be readily converted to cash.  All reporting conforms to the requirements of GASB 34 and all 
other pertinent governmental accounting and auditing standards. 
 
OCEAA   provides   financial   reports,   in   the   manner   prescribed   by   California’s 
Standardized Account Code Structure (SACS), for the required September 15 report to the  
District  and  for  the  First  and  Second  Interim  Reports,  Adopted  Budgets,  and Unaudited 
Actuals. 
 
The Charter also provides an annual independent audit, including financial schedules in the  
aforementioned  formats  to  the  District,  the  County  Board  of  Education,  the Controller, 
and the California Department of Education. 
 
Annually, no later than December 15th, the Charter School supplies the District with an annual 



23
0 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 230 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

statement of assets and liabilities.  It is expected that this information is included in the annual 
independent fiscal audit.  However, in the event that it is not contained in 



23
1 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 231 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

the audit or the audit is not completed by this date, the Charter School shall submit a 
separate document to the District containing this information. 
 
Annually, no later than July 1st, OCEAA submits a list of administrative positions along with 
their corresponding salaries. 
 
INDEMNIFICATION AND LIABILITY 
 
With the exception of special education services described herein and with the exception of 
any liability, claims or damages caused by the action or omission of the District, the Charter 
School agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the District and its Board, Board 
members, officers, administrators, employees, agents,  representatives,  volunteers,  successors,  
and  assigns  (collectively hereinafter “District and District Personnel”) against any and all 
actions, causes of action, suits, losses, expenses, costs, penalties, obligations, errors, omissions, 
or liabilities, including legal costs, attorney’s fees, and expert witness fees, whether or not suit 
is actually filed, and/or any judgment rendered against District and/or District Personnel that 
may be asserted or claimed by any person, firm, or entity which may in any way arise out of or 
in connection with performance under the Charter by OCEAA, its board of directors, 
administrators, employees, agents, representatives, volunteers, subcontractors, invitees, 
successors, and/or assigns. 
 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
Without limiting the Charter School’s indemnification obligations, throughout the life of the 
Charter, the Charter School shall pay for and maintain in full force and 
effect  with  an  insurance  company(s)  admitted  by  the  California  Insurance 
Commissioner to do business in the State of California and rated not less than “A- 
/VII” in Best Insurance Rating Guide, or through self-insurance with a California 
Joint Powers Authority, the following policies of insurance: 
 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE, which shall include: contractual, 
products and completed operations, corporal punishment and sexual misconduct and harassment 
coverages, for bodily injury and property damage liability insurance with combined single limits 
of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. Additionally, the Charter School shall procure excess 
liability coverage in the amount of 
$10,000,000. 
 
COMMERCIAL AUTO LIABILITY insurance which shall include: coverage for owned and 
non-owned autos, with bodily injury liability limits not less than $5,000,000 per person, per 
occurrence and property damage liability limits of not less than $500,000 per occurrence. 
 
WORKER’S COMPENSATION INSURANCE, as required by the 
California Labor Code, with not less than statutory limits. 
 
PROPERTY AND FIRE INSURANCE, shall be provided to protect: (a) Real Property, against 
risk of direct loss, commonly known as Special 



23
2 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 232 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Form, (b) Fire Legal Liability, to protect against liability for portions of premises leased or 
rented, and (c) Business Personal Property, to protect on a Broad Form, named peril basis, for all 
furniture, equipment and 
supplies of the Charter School. If any District property is leased, rented or 
borrowed, it shall also be insured by the Charter School in the same manner as (a) and (b) above. 
 
ERRORS AND OMISSIONS INSURANCE, in an amount not less than 
$10,000,000. 
 
All of the Charter School’s insurance required by the Charter shall name the District and its 
Board of Trustees, Board members, officers, Board appointed groups, committees, boards, and 
any other Board appointed body, and administrators, employees, attorneys, agents, 
representatives, volunteers, successors, and assigns (collectively hereinafter “District and 
District Personnel”) as additional insureds; (ii) shall contain no special limitations on the scope 
of protection afforded to District and District Personnel; (iii) shall be primary insurance, 
notwithstanding any terms to the contrary therein, and any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the District and/or District Personnel shall be in excess of the Charter School’s 
insurance and shall not contribute with it, despite any terms therein to the contrary; (iv) shall be 
“occurrence” rather than “claims made” insurance, with the exception of educators’ legal 
liability insurance; and (v) shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or 
suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability. 
 
Each of the Charter School’s insurance policies shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not 
be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits, or non-renewed, or materially 
changed for any reason, without thirty (30) days’ prior written notice thereof given by the 
insurer to District by U.S. mail, certified, or by personal delivery.  In addition to such notice 
provided to District by the insurer, the Charter School shall also provide District with thirty (30) 
days’ prior written notice, by certified mail, return receipt requested, of the suspension, voiding, 
cancellation, reduction in coverage or limits, non-renewal, or material change for any reason, of 
any such insurance policy or policies. . 
 
The acceptance by the District of the above required insurance does not serve to limit the 
liability or responsibility of the insurer or the Charter School to the District. 
 
Each insurance policy shall be endorsed to state that the insurer shall waive all rights of 
subrogation against the District and District Personnel. 
 
The Charter School shall furnish District with duplicate originals of insurance policies and  
original endorsements effecting coverage required by  this MOU which shall be received 
and approved by District no later than thirty (30) days after execution of this MOU. The 
duplicate originals and original endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by a 
person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  The procuring of such 
insurance or the delivery of 



23
3 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 233 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

duplicate originals and endorsements evidencing the same shall not be construed as  a  
limitation on  Charter School’s obligation to  indemnify the  District  and District Personnel. 
 
The limits of liability described above shall apply only to indemnity available under the 
respective policies.  Defense costs and attorney’s fees shall not reduce the amounts available 
under the limits of liability under those respective policies. 
 
Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the District. 
 
The Charter School shall promptly respond to all inquiries from the District regarding claims 
against the Charter School and/or its outstanding insurance liability. 
 
All of the District’s insurance required by the Charter or this MOU (i) shall name the Charter 
School and its Board of Directors, Board members, officers, Board appointed groups, 
committees, boards, and any other Board appointed body, and administrators, employees, 
agents, representatives, volunteers, successors, and assigns (collectively hereinafter “District 
and District Personnel”) as additional insureds; (ii) shall contain no special limitations on the 
scope of protection afforded to Charter School or Charter School Personnel; (iii) shall be 
primary insurance, notwithstanding any terms to the contrary therein, and any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by the Charter School  and/or Charter School Personnel shall be in excess 
of the District’s insurance and shall not contribute with it, despite any terms therein to the 
contrary; (iv) shall be “occurrence” rather than “claims  made”  insurance,  with  the  
exception  of  educators’  legal  liability insurance; and (v) shall apply separately to each 
insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the 
insurer’s liability. 
 
Each of the District’s insurance policies shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be 
suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits, or non- renewed, or materially 
changed for any reason, without thirty (30) days’ prior written notice thereof given by the 
insurer to Charter School by U.S. mail, certified, or by personal delivery.  In addition to such 
notice provided to Charter School by the insurer, the District shall also provide Charter School 
with thirty (30) days’ prior written notice, by certified mail, return receipt requested, of the 
suspension, voiding, cancellation, reduction in coverage or limits, non-renewal, or material 
change for any reason, of any such insurance policy or policies. 
 
The acceptance by the Charter School of the above required insurance does not serve to limit the 
liability or responsibility of the insurer or the District to the Charter School under the 
indemnification provisions above. 
 
Each insurance policy shall be endorsed to state that the insurer shall waive all rights of 
subrogation against the Charter School and Charter School Personnel. 



23
4 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 234 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

The District shall furnish Charter School with duplicate originals of insurance policies and  
original endorsements effecting coverage required by  this MOU which shall be received by 
Charter School no later than thirty (30) days after execution of this MOU. The duplicate 
originals and original endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by a person 
authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  The procuring of such insurance or 
the delivery of duplicate originals and endorsements evidencing the same shall not be 
construed as a limitation on District’s obligation to indemnify the Charter School and/or Charter 
School Personnel as described above. 
 
The limits of liability described above shall apply only to indemnity available under the 
respective policies.  Defense costs and attorney’s fees shall not reduce the amounts available 
under the limits of liability under those respective policies. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
 
Governing Law: The manner in which administrative services of OCEAA are to be provided. 
(Education Code Section 47605(g)). 
 
A school site Principal assumes the lead responsibility for administering OCEAA under the 
policies adopted by OCEAA’s Board of Directors.   OCEAA provides or procures most of its 
own administrative services, including but not limited to financial management, personnel, and 
instructional program development.  If the Charter School were interested in discussing the 
possibility of purchasing some of these or other services from the District, the specific terms and 
cost for these services will be the subject of a memorandum of understanding (MOU) between 
OCEAA and the District and subject to District availability. 
 
The OCEAA Nutrition Services Department participates with the National Free and Reduced 
Meals programs and provides all students the opportunity to enjoy a nutritious breakfast and 
lunch. All meals are prepared fresh daily on site by the Nutrition Services Staff and include a 
fresh fruit and vegetable bar option. The Nutrition Services Director writes the menus monthly 
which emphasize the importance of teaching families the life- long benefits of eating foods that 
meet and exceed the US Department of Agriculture, Food  and  Nutrition  Services  
Guidelines. OCEAA’s  current  breakfast  and  lunch participation rates far exceed the state 
averages of 20% for breakfast and 55% for lunch at 34% and 91% respectfully. 



23
5 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 235 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

FACILITIES 
 
Governing Law:  The facilities to be utilized by OCEAA. The description of facilities to be used 
by the charter school shall specify where OCEAA intends to locate. (Education Code Section 
47605(g)) 
School Location 
 
This charter authorizes the operation of the Orange County Educational Arts Academy, a charter 
which shall operate at one site within the geographic boundaries of Santa Ana Unified School 
District, as authorized pursuant to Education Code Section 47605 et seq. 
 
OCEAA’s current facility is located at 825 N. Broadway in the heart of the Santa Ana Civic 
Center between the Artist’s Village and the Museum Corridor in Central Orange County. It is 
surrounded by densely populated low socioeconomic neighborhoods. 
 
The building is a K-8 facility totaling 43,400 sq. ft. It includes an 800 sq. ft. kitchen, 
4,100 sq. ft. dining hall and an amply secured 8,300 sq. ft. play space. There are 26 classrooms, 
three mobile computer carts, a staff lounge, administrative offices, reception areas, a workroom, 
and ample storage and janitorial supply rooms. It was brought up to code for ADA compliance 
in 2002 and interior improvements were performed to meet current seismic requirements. Byer 
& Associates, Inc. conducted an appraisal of this property in January 2002 and it was 
determined by Byer & Associates that this site is suitable for the operation of a public school 
for grades K-8. In the summer of 2009, the building underwent renovations to accommodate 
two additional classrooms. All new construction was made observing current building codes and 
regulations. 
 
OCEAA complies with the requirement of Education Code Section 47610 by utilizing 
facilities that comply with the California Building Standards Code as adopted and entered by the 
local building enforcement agency with jurisdiction over the area in which the Charter  
School  is  located.  Regular  maintenance  and  operations  are  provided  by OCEAA’s 
custodial staff. 
 
TRANSPORTATION 
 
Transportation to and from school is the sole responsibility of the families who choose to attend 
OCEAA. Public transportation, and information regarding public transportation, is readily 
available for families wishing to attend OCEAA. 
 
AUDITS 
 
Governing Law: The manner in which an annual, independent financial audit shall be 
conducted, which shall employ generally accepted accounting principles, and the manner in 
which audit exceptions and deficiencies shall be resolved to the satisfaction of the chartering 
authority—California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(I) 



23
6 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 236 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

OCEAA facilitates an annual independent audit of OCEAA's financial affairs. The Board selects 
and oversees an auditor with, at a minimum, a CPA and educational institution audit experience 
and approved by the State Controller on its published list as an educational audit provider. 
 
The audit verifies the accuracy of OCEAA's financial statements, attendance and enrollment 
accounting practices, and reviews OCEAA's internal controls. The audit is conducted in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to OCEAA.  The annual 
audit is completed four months after the close of the fiscal year and a copy of the auditor's 
findings is forwarded to the District, the County Superintendent of Schools, the State Controller 
and to the CDE by December 15th  each year.   OCEAA's Principal along with an audit 
committee reviews any audit exceptions or deficiencies and 
reports to OCEAA Board with recommendations on how to resolve them. OCEAA Board 
submits a report to the District describing how the exceptions and deficiencies have been or  will  
be  resolved to  the  satisfaction  of  the  District.    Any  disputes regarding the resolution of 
audit exceptions and deficiencies are referred to the dispute resolution process contained in this 
Charter. 
 
In the case that OCEAA either does not pay for or have an independent audit completed within 
one month of the applicable timelines, the District, may, at its option pay for an audit to be 
completed and subtract such payment from any funds due to the Charter School. 
 
INSPECTIONS 
 
Inspection or observation of any part of OCEAA may be conducted by SAUSD at any time, but 
SAUSD shall provide reasonable notice to the Principal prior to any observation or inspection. 
Third party inspections, observation monitoring and oversight activities may not be conducted 
on behalf of SAUSD without the mutual consent of the OCEAA Board. 
 
NOTICES 
All notices, consents, demands, or another communications for one party or the other required or 
permitted in this MOU shall be in writing and shall be either personally delivered or sent by a 
nationally recognized overnight courier, telecopier or by registered or certified U.S. mail, postage 
prepaid, addressed as set forth below (except that a party may, from time to time, give notice 
changing the address for this purpose). A notice shall be effective on the date personally 
delivered, on the date delivered by a nationally recognized overnight courier (or the next 
succeeding business day if delivered on a non- business day), on the date set forth on the receipt 
of a telecopier or a facsimile (or the 
next succeeding business day if received by telecopier or facsimile on a non-business 
day), or upon the earlier of the dates set forth on the receipt of registered or certified mail, 
or on the fifth (5th) day after mailing. 



23
7 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 237 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
CLOSURE PROTOCOL 
 
Governing Law: A description of the procedures to be used if the charter school closes- 
Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(p) 
 
The following procedures shall apply in the event the school closes. The following procedures 
apply regardless of the reason for closure. 
 
Closure of OCEAA will be documented by official action of the Board.  The action will 
identify the reason for closure. The official action will also identify an entity and person or 
persons responsible for closure-related activities. 
 
The Board will promptly notify the District of the closure and of the effective date of the 
closure. Parents and students of the school, the District, the Orange County Office of Education, 
OCEAA’s SELPA, the retirement systems in which OCEAA’s employees participate (e.g., 
Public Employees’ Retirement System, State Teachers’ Retirement System, and federal social 
security), and the California Department of Education will also be notified of the closure as well 
as the effective date. This notice will also include the name(s) of and contact information for 
the person(s) to whom reasonable inquiries may be made regarding the closure; the pupils’ 
school districts of residence; and the manner in which parents (guardians) may obtain copies of 
pupil records, including specific information on completed courses and credits that meet 
graduation requirements. 
 
The Board will provide information to assist parents and students in locating suitable alternative 
programs. This notice will be provided promptly following OCEAA Board's decision to close 
the school. 
 
The Board will also develop a list of pupils in each grade level and the classes they have 
completed, together with information on the pupils’ districts of residence, which they will 
provide to the entity responsible for closure-related activities. 
 
As applicable, OCEAA will provide parents, students, and the District with copies of all 
appropriate student records and will otherwise assist students in transferring to their next school. 
All transfers of student records will be made in compliance with the Family Educational Rights 
and Privacy Art  (FERPA) 20 U.S.C. § 1232g.  OCEAA will ask the District to store the 
records of the Charter School.  If the District cannot do so, OCEAA will ask the County Office 
of Education for storage. All state assessment results, special education  records,  and  
personnel  records  will  be  transferred  and  maintained  in accordance with applicable law. 
Copies of employment records will be sent to former employees. 
 
As soon as reasonably practical but no later than 60 days after closure, OCEAA will prepare 
final financial records.  OCEAA will also have an independent audit completed as soon as 
reasonably practical, which period is generally no more than six months after closure. OCEAA 
will pay for the final audit. The audit will be prepared by a qualified 



23
8 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 238 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Certified Public Accountant selected by the school and will be provided to the District promptly 
upon its completion. In the case that OCEAA either does not pay for or have an independent 
audit completed within one month of the applicable timelines, the District, may, at its option 
pay for an audit to be completed and subtract such payment from any funds due to the Charter 
School. The final audit will include an accounting of all financial assets, including cash and 
accounts receivable and an inventory of property, equipment, and other items of material value, 
an accounting of the liabilities, including accounts payable and any reduction in apportionments 
as a result of audit findings or other investigations, loans, and unpaid staff compensation, and an 
assessment of the disposition of any restricted funds received by or due to the charter school. 
 
OCEAA will complete and file any annual reports required pursuant to Education Code section 
47604.33. 
 
On  closure  of  OCEAA,  all  assets  of  the  School,  including  but  not  limited  to  all 
leaseholds, personal property, intellectual property and all ADA apportionments and other 
revenues generated by students attending OCEAA, remain the sole property of the School  and  
shall  be  distributed  to  another  governmental  entity  engaged  in  public education upon the 
dissolution of the nonprofit public benefit corporation. Any assets acquired from the District or 
District property will be promptly returned to the District upon  School  closure.  The  
distribution  shall  include  return  of  any  grant  funds  and restricted categorical funds to their 
source in accordance with the terms of the grant or state and federal law, as appropriate, which 
may include submission of final expenditure reports for entitlement grants and the filing of 
any required Final Expenditure Reports and Final Performance Reports, as well as the 
return of  any donated materials and property in accordance with any conditions established 
when the donation of such materials or property was accepted.  On closure, OCEAA shall 
remain solely responsible for all liabilities arising from the operation of the Charter School. 
 
As OCEAA is organized as a nonprofit public benefit corporation, OCEAA Board will follow 
the procedures set forth in the California Corporations Code for the dissolution of a nonprofit 
public benefit corporation and file all necessary filings with the appropriate state and federal 
agencies. 
 
As specified in the attached Budget, the Charter School will utilize the reserve fund to undertake 
any expenses associated with the closure procedures identified above. 
 
Upon closure of OCEAA, employees of the Charter School have no automatic rights of 
employment with the District. Individuals employed by OCEAA would be unemployed and 
would have to seek employment elsewhere. 



23
9 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 239 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

VIII. IMPACT ON THE DISTRICT 
 
Governing Law: Potential civil liability effects, if any, upon OCEAA and upon the 
District. (Education Code Section 47605(g)). 
 
POTENTIAL CIVIL LIABILITY EFFECTS 
 
Intent 
 
This statement is intended to fulfill the terms of Education Code Section 47605(g) and provides  
information  regarding  the  proposed  operation  and  potential  effects  of  the Charter School 
on the District. 
 
Civil Liability 
 
OCEAA  is  operated  as  a  California  non-profit  public  benefit  corporation.  This 
corporation is organized and operated exclusively for charitable purposes within the meaning of 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and California Revenue and Taxation Code 
Section 23701d.  One of the objectives of the corporation is to provide public education for 
residents of the State of California, in accordance with the Charter Schools Act, California 
Education Code Section 47600, et seq. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code Section 47604(c), an entity that grants a charter to a charter school 
operated by or as a non-profit public benefit corporation shall not be liable for the debts or 
obligations of the charter school or for claims arising from the performance of acts, errors or 
omissions by the Charter School if the authority has complied with all oversight responsibilities 
required by law. OCEAA’s Articles of Incorporation are attached as Exhibit W in addition to a 
draft Certificate of Amendment of Articles of Incorporation  to  reflect  changes  to  the  
name,  purpose  and  membership  of  the Corporation, which are in process. OCEAA shall 
work diligently to assist the District in meeting any and all oversight obligations under the law, 
including monthly meetings, reporting, or other requested protocol to ensure the District shall 
not be liable for the operation of the Charter School. 
 
Further, OCEAA and the District shall maintain a memorandum of understanding which shall 
provide for indemnification of the District. 
 
The corporate bylaws of OCEAA provide for indemnification of OCEAA’s Board of Directors, 
officers, agents, and employees, and OCEAA will purchase general liability insurance, 
Directors and Officers insurance, and fidelity bonding to secure against financial risks.  
Insurance amounts are determined by recommendation of the insurance company for schools of 
similar size, location, and type of program. The District is named an additional insured on the 
general liability insurance of the Charter School. 
 
The Board of Directors of OCEAA has instituted appropriate risk management practices, 
including screening of employees, establishing codes of conduct for students, staff, and 



24
0 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 240 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

participating  families,  and  procedures  governing  financial  transactions  and  dispute 
resolution. 
 
IX. CONCLUSION 
 
FIVE YEAR STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
For  the  next  five  years,  OCEAA  will  utilize  the  Strategic  Plan  for  Academic 
Achievement developed with Insight Educational Group, Inc. Yearly adjustments to the plan 
will be made based on student achievement data, feedback from staff and families through 
annual surveys and current research-based best practices. In addition, OCEAA will continue to 
work closely with the SAUSD staff as well as the Orange County Department of Education to 
ensure the academic needs of all of OCEAA’s students are met. All OCEAA stakeholders will 
partake in and be informed about our planned goals. 
 
 
 
AMENDMENTS 
 
OCEAA will seek approval by the District for any material revisions to the charter in 
accordance with Education Code 47607. The OCEAA Board will approve any minor revisions 
and the District will be updated annually. 
 
CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF CHARTER TERM AND RENEWAL 
 
OCEAA’s initial Charter was from January 21, 2005 for a period of three years. A two- year 
extension was granted from April 8, 2008 to June 30, 2010. The conditional renewal term of this 
Charter shall commence on July 1, 2010 for a five-year period through and including June 30, 
2015, subject to the terms and conditions described and stipulated in this section and facilitated 
by modification of the charter renewal document. 
 
The modification of the charter renewal document incorporates specific and enforceable criteria, 
including but not limited to, the restructuring of the present academic program and the inclusion 
of Academic Performance Index (API) requirements pursuant to Education Code Section 
47607(b) and as defined in the California Department of Education Academic Performance Index 
Reports Information Guide. 
 
 
 
Restructuring of Academic Program 
 
OCEAA has agreed to a basic restructuring of the current educational program in order to address 
and implement corrective action over the term of the five (5) year conditional renewal period in 
four key areas of instructional concern identified by Santa Ana Unified School District. Specific 
recommendations from Santa Ana Unified School District in each of the four identified areas 
include: 



24
1 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 241 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Curriculum Planning 
Recommended Action 
 
• Have teachers continue to state and post lesson objectives to focus the attention of the 
students on the salient features of the lessons. 
 
• Re-institute the use of the focus walls to provide clarity for students and teachers of the 
strategies, skills, genre and vocabulary of the unit. 
 
• Amplify the intermediate science program to provide the students rigorous instruction in 
earth, life and physical science. 
 
• Principal should continue to attend SAUSD monthly principal meetings for technical 
support. 
 
 
Effective Use of Literacy Coach 
Recommended Action 
 
• Provide literacy coach position with support and resources to ensure the effectiveness of 
professional development. 
 
• Seek out resources that provide targeted, data driven professional development that is 
responsive to needs of OCEAA teachers. 
 
• Closely monitor professional development provided by administrative team and outside 
providers to ensure unified message. 
 
• If fiscally possible, continue relationship with California Reading and Literacy 
Project (CRLP) to provide professional development for staff 
 
• Have OCEAA coaches attend SAUSD monthly TOSA meetings to stay abreast of current 
instructional practices and compliance issues and for technical support. 
 
 
Comprehensive ELD Program 
Recommended Action 
 
• Implementation of an ELD program with fidelity that addresses the needs of 
English Learners. 
 
• Utilize frequent data to group students by language proficiency. 
 
• Revise student groups as new data becomes available. 
 
 



24
2 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 242 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
 
 
 
 
Frequent Monitoring of English Learner 



24
3 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 243 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

Recommended Action 
 
• Administration of CELDT yearly and ADEPT 2-3 times a year to monitor English 
Learner progress. 
 
• Regular and consistent disaggregation of benchmark data to monitor success on grade 
level standards. 
 
• Timely adherence to state time lines and submission CELDT data on a timely manner 
every year. 
 
 
Academic Performance Index (API) Requirements- Specific Enforceable Criteria 
 
Beginning with the API School Report to be released on or about August 2011, OCEAA shall 
meet the assigned API growth target school-wide and for each numerically significant subgroup 
in the school as defined in the California Department of Education Academic Performance Index 
Reports Information Guide and pursuant to Education Code Section 47607(b) criteria for charter 
renewal consideration. 
 
 
 
If OCEAA fails to meet the required growth targets as of August 2011, the 2011-2012 school 
year will be utilized by OCEAA to identify and begin school turn-around strategies to facilitate 
implementation of one of three school turn-around intervention models as prescribed by the U.S. 
Department of Education for the 2012-2013 school year: 
 
1.   Transformation model: Replace the principal, strengthen staff, implement a research-based 
instructional program, provide extended learning time, and implement new governance and 
flexibility. 
 
2.   Turnaround model: Replace the principal and rehire no more than 50 percent of the school 
staff, implement a research-based instructional program, provide extended learning time, and 
implement new governance structure. 
 
3.   School closure model: Close the school and enroll students who attended it in other, higher-
performing schools in the district. 
 
Subsequent to the August 2011 School Report, the OCEAA School Report API Growth and 
Targets Met will be reviewed annually to verify and confirm achievement of the school-wide and 
each numerically significant subgroup growth targets each year of the five year charter renewal 
term. 
 
If any year subsequent to the August 2011 School Report-API Growth Targets Met, OCEAA 
does not achieve the required school-wide and each numerically significant subgroup growth 
targets, one of the U.S. Department of Education interventions models for persistently 



24
4 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 244 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

underperforming schools will be implemented for the next school year. 



24
5 

ORANGE COUNTY EDUCATIONAL ARTS ACADEMY  PAGE 245 OF 245 
RENEWAL CHARTER PETITION: 2015 - 2020	  

 
If in any year of the five year charter renewal term the OCEAA API Statewide Ranking and/or 
Similar Schools Ranking is determined to be decile “4” or higher, OCEAA will not be subject to 
the consequences incorporated herein regarding failure to achieve API school-wide and each 
numerically significant subgroup growth targets. 
 
If OCEAA fails to maintain both the API Statewide and Similar Schools Ranking of “4” in the 
subsequent school year reporting period, the consequences incorporated herein regarding failure 
to achieve API school-wide and in each numerically significant subgroup growth target will be 
invoked. 





 

AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET  

May 26, 2015 

 

Board Meeting  

 
TITLE: ENCO Systems, Inc. for Closed Captioning of Board Meetings 

 

ITEM:  Discussion 

SUBMITTED BY:  Dawn Miller, Assistant Superintendent, Secondary Education 

PREPARED BY: Ricardo Enz, Director, Technology Innovation Services  

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to provide information and the opportunity for discussion 

regarding ENCO Systems, Inc. providing automatically generated closed captioning on real-time 

live video for District Board meetings. 

 

At its March 24, 2015 meeting, the Board asked to investigate closed captioning during Board 

meetings. 

 

 

RATIONALE: 

 

ENCO Systems, Inc. will provide the District a network-based speech recognition engine to 

closely inspect and transcribe audio in near real-time during the televised Board meetings.  

 

The District has approximately 20 families whose parents are deaf or hard of hearing.  This 

number includes those parents who have hearing children attending one of the District’s schools 

for which we provide sign language support for various events. 

 

The software license lease is for the enCaption 3, from ENCO, the hardware/software system 

that automatically generates captioning on live or recorded video.  This 12 month renewable 

software license lease has a yearly cost of $10,740.  There is a one-time hardware and software 

cost of $16,404.12 to integrate enCaption equipment to video production. 

 

This discussion item supports LCAP goal 3.4 “Support school and district operations to create 

welcoming and productive environments.” 

 

 

FUNDING: 

 

General Fund: $27,144.12 (Total cost first year) 

 

 

 

 



 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Provide information and discussion regarding ENCO Systems, Inc. providing automatically 

generated closed captioning on real-time live video for District Board meetings. 
 

 

DM:sz 



Quote Number

11233

Apr 8, 2015

Santa Ana Unified School District
1601 E. Chestnut
Santa Ana, Ca  92701-6322

Att: Sau Pham

1
2
3

1
1
1

1
1
1

Link
Telestream
Nuance

HDE-3000/2
CAPTIONMAKERP
DRAGON

HD SD SDI Closed Caption
RO software
 NaturallySpeaking 13 Premium

$8665.00
$6325.00

$199.00

Here is the quotation you requested:

714-480-5301
Fax Number

Work Phone

Lwilson
Salesperson

Unit Price Extension
$8665.00
$6325.00

$199.00

$15189.00Taxable AmountIf you have any questions, please call me at 562-594-1111.   Thank you for the
opportunity to quote prices to you.

Lewis Wilson
VMI, Inc

8% $1215.12Tax
Non Txble Amnt

Shipping Chg

$16404.12Total Charges

Phone (714) 894-6100
Fax (714) 894-6110

lwilson@vmivideo.com

email Number

Item Qty Ttl Manufacturer Model Number Description

VMI, Inc -So. California
11258 Monarch Street, Unit A

Garden Grove, CA  92841



Quote Number

11242

Apr 20, 2015

Santa Ana Unified School District
1601 E. Chestnut
Santa Ana, Ca  92701-6322

Att: Sau Pham

1 12 12 Enco ENCAPTION3 enCaption3 hardware/software:
lease price is based on a 12
month contract, with a monthly fee

$895.00

Here is the quotation you requested:

714-480-5301
Fax Number

Work Phone

Lwilson
Salesperson

Unit Price Extension
$10740.00

$10740.00Taxable AmountIf you have any questions, please call me at 562-594-1111.   Thank you for the
opportunity to quote prices to you.

Lewis Wilson
VMI, Inc

$0.00Tax
Non Txble Amnt

Shipping Chg

$10740.00Total Charges

Phone (714) 894-6100
Fax (714) 894-6110

lwilson@vmivideo.com

email Number

Item Qty Ttl Manufacturer Model Number Description

VMI, Inc -So. California
11258 Monarch Street, Unit A

Garden Grove, CA  92841



3
F U L L Y  A U T O M A T E D  R E A L - T I M E  CAPTIONING SYSTEM

enCaption3 is a unique totally
automated hardware/software system that
can automatically generate captioning
on live video. Using enCaption3,
content creators can provide real-time, live 
captioning to their hearing im-
paired audience any time, without any
advance notice and without the high costs 
of live captioners or signers.

enCaption3 uses ENCO’s enhanced
speaker independent neural network based 
speech recognition engine to closely inspect
and transcribe your audio in near real-time
(typically 4-6 seconds). Available in a number 
of languages, enCaption3  works with your
audio stream, whether recorded or live
and is local to your facility. This puts 
you in control of the captioning
process and makes it available even in the
most demanding situations.

This  is not an ENR/prompter based
system nor is it a ‘re-speaking’ system 
requirimg live personnel to operate.
enCaption3 is a fully automated,
true speaker independent speech recogni-
tion based system that is available whenever 
you need it.

ENCO Systems has been delivering quality solutions to markets on six continents for over 

30 years.  Now the company well known world-wide for their award winning DAD Radio 

Automation and DADtv instant audio playout products  presents  enCaption3.

AUTOMATIC SPEAKER INDEPENDENT SPEECH 
RECOGNITION means no voice training required

24/7/365 AVAILABILITY avoids potentially large 
government fines  for not captioning!

MONTHLY SERVICE MODEL that reduces  
operating costs

LEARNS YOUR LOCAL PLACE and people 
names to constantly improve accuracy!

THANK YOU FOR WATCHING ACTION NEWS
STAY TUNED



3

While enCaption3 is not ideal for use where background noise is 

high or scoring or other musical elements are present underneath spo-

ken voices, when a clean audio feed and script material (used to build 

and maintain a local dictionary) can be provided, enCaption3 gets the 

job done - reliably, accurately and at a significant cost savings.

The system consists of a rack-mount processor unit that provides a

serial data stream, feeding your captioning encoder. With the reality 

of regulatory captioning requirements and increasing, ENCO’s

enCaption3 system can economically meet your needs 24 hours a 

day. Whether you’re closed captioning for video or open captioning for

meetings, don’t wait (or pay) for a live captioner. With

enCaption3, you’re ready...  now.  With the reality of regulatory 

captioning requirements and increasing, ENCO’s enCaption3 system 

can economically meet your needs 24 hours a day. Whether you’re 

closed captioning for video or open captioning for meetings, don’t wait 

(or pay) for a live captioner. With enCaption3, you’re ready... now.

R E Q U I R E M E N T S :
Technical requirements are straightforward; AC power, clean (mix-minus preferred) audio feed of voice material to be captioned (free from
noise, music etc.), a source for script material or an IP link to your electronic newsroom system (optional), a serial or IP
connection to your closed caption encoder and IP connection to ENCO Systems for remote configuration and diagnostics. An executed ENCO enCaption
Software License Agreement is required prior to system shipment. Supported languages include Danish, Dutch, English (American, Australian, British
and Canadian), French (Canadian and European), German, Greek, Italian, Modern Standard Arabic, Polish, Portuguese (South American
and European), Romanian, Spanish (Latin American and European) and Swedish. Custom packages can be configured
to recognize a station-specific set of words. You could configure one package for the morning show and another for
the evening news or you could configure one for weather and traffic, one for news packages, and a third for the anchor. Linking enCaption3 to your electronic
newsroom system allows it to automatically access current and historical script information to build a local dictionary which allows
the system to improve accuracy over time - it literally gets better every day!

Custom-packaging can be configured

to recognize a station specific set 

of words.  You could configure one

package for the morning show and 

another for the evening news or you 

could configure one for weather and 

traffic , one for news packages, and a 

third for the anchor.

Linking enCaption3 to your

electronic newsroom system allows

 it to automatically access current and

historical script information to build 

a local dictionary which allows the

system to improve accuracy over 

time it literally gets better every day!

 +1(248) 827-4440  www.enco.com  sales@enco.com

For more information oplease contact your local ENCO representative.

ENCO SYSTEMS, INC.

Serve Your Hearing Impaired Audience For a Fraction of The Cost of Traditional Captioning Services



 

 

AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET                                                   

May 26, 2015 

 

Board Meeting 
 

TITLE: Adoption of Resolution No. 14/15-3060 – Establish a Special Reserve 

Fund for Postemployment Benefits 

 

ITEM:  Action  

SUBMITTED BY: Stefanie P. Phillips, Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  

PREPARED BY: Tina Douglas, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 

 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board adoption of Resolution No. 14/15-3060 to 

establish a special reserve fund for Postemployment Benefits. 

 

 

RATIONALE: 

 

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 34 regulations, the 

California Department of Education has established a new fund, which is not a fiduciary trust 

fund, to account for retirement benefits.  The Orange County Department of Education, in 

complying with the said code sections, has established fund 20 for this purpose. 

 

These benefits will now be accounted for in a Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment 

Benefits with the County Treasurer. 

 

 

FUNDING: 

 

Not Applicable 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Adopt Resolution No. 14/15-3060 to establish a special reserve fund for Postemployment 

Benefits. 

 

 

 
SP:mm 





 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 14/15-3053 1 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 2 

SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 3 

ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 4 

 5 

Resolution to Establish Special Reserve Fund  6 

for Postemployment Benefits (Fund 20) 7 

 8 

 9 

On motion of      , duly seconded, the following resolution 10 

was adopted: 11 

 12 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with California Department of Education regulations, 13 

Santa Ana Unified School District currently uses Fund 20 , Special Reserve for 14 

Postemployment Benefits Fund, to account for monies accumulated for post-employment 15 

benefits; and 16 

 17 

 WHEREAS, effective with the 2014-15 school year, in accordance with Federal 18 

GASB 34 regulations, the California Department of Education has established a new 19 

fund, which is not a fiduciary trust fund, to account for retirement benefits; and 20 

 21 

 WHEREAS, the Orange County Department of Education, in complying with the 22 

said code sections, has established fund 2020 for this purpose; and, 23 

 24 

 WHEREAS, the Santa Ana Unified School District wishes to comply with the 25 

California Administrative and Education Code provisions and the Orange County 26 

Department of Education directives;  27 

 28 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Governing Board authorizes the 29 

Administration to establish a of Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits 30 

with the County Treasurer for the purpose of accumulating revenues effective May 31 

26, 2015. 32 

 33 

AYES: 34 

 35 

NOES: 36 

 37 

ABSENT: 38 



 

 

I, Richard L. Miller, Ph.D., Secretary to the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ana 39 

Unified School District of Orange County, California hereby certify that the above 40 

and foregoing resolution was duly and regularly adopted by the said Board at a 41 

regular meeting thereof held on the 26th day of May, 2015. 42 

 43 

IN WITNESS OF I have hereunto set my hand and seal this ____ day of  ____, 2015. 44 

 45 

 46 

               47 

        Richard L. Miller, Ph.D.,   48 

        Secretary of the Board of Trustees 49 

        Santa Ana Unified School District 50 

 51 

 52 

 53 

 54 

 55 

 56 

 57 

 58 

 59 

 60 

 61 

 62 

 63 

 64 

 65 

 66 

 67 

 68 

 69 

 70 

 71 

 72 

 73 

 74 

 75 



AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 
May 26, 2015 

 
Board Meeting 

 
TITLE: Authorization to Reject and Rebid Bid Package 1001.1 at Fremont 

Elementary School Under Emergency Repair Program  
 
ITEM: Action 
SUBMITTED BY: Joe Dixon, Assistant Superintendent, Facilities and Governmental 
 Relations 
PREPARED BY: Todd Butcher, Director, Construction 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board authorization to Reject and Rebid Bid Package 
1001.1 at Fremont Elementary School Under Emergency Repair Program.  See Exhibit A for 
explanation of bid package.  
 
 
RATIONALE: 
 
Legal advertisements of notice calling for bids were placed with the Orange County Register on 
March 20 and March 27, 2015. The Construction Management, architects, and staff are in 
agreement that bid be rejected.   
 
Bid 
Package: 

Contractor: Description: 

1001.1 Reject and Rebid Roofing Replacement  
 
 
FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize staff to Reject and Rebid Bid Package 1001.1 at Fremont Elementary School Under 
Emergency Repair Program.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
JD:ym 
 





Preliminary Bid Results ERP Projects 5/13/2015 

Bidder Name Base Bid Amount Lowest Bid
J.L. Cobb Painting & Construction 878,000.00$                         
Cal City Construction, Inc. 1,150,000.00$                      

Total -$                               

FREMONT ERP 1001.1- REJCT AND REBID
Ceilings



Authorization to Reject and Rebid Bid Package 1001.1 at Fremont Elementary School Under 
Emergency Repair Program  

 
Bid Package 1001.1 
Staff is requesting to reject and rebid. This scope of work will be value engineered and rebid with 
anticipated project savings.  
 

yvette.miranda
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A

yvette.miranda
Typewritten Text



AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 
May 26, 2015 

 
Board Meeting 

 
TITLE: Authorization to Reject and Rebid Bid Package 1602 at Lathrop 

Intermediate School Under Emergency Repair Program  
 
ITEM: Action 
SUBMITTED BY: Joe Dixon, Assistant Superintendent, Facilities and Governmental 
 Relations 
PREPARED BY: Todd Butcher, Director, Construction 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board authorization to Reject and Rebid Bid Package 
1602 at Lathrop Intermediate School Under Emergency Repair Program.  See Exhibit B for 
explanation of bid package.  
 
 
RATIONALE: 
 
Legal advertisements of notice calling for bids were placed with the Orange County Register on 
March 20 and March 27, 2015. The Construction Management, architects, and staff are in 
agreement that bid be rejected.   
 
Bid 
Package: 

Contractor: Description: 

1602 Reject and Rebid Concrete/Asphalt   
 
 
FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize staff to Reject and Rebid Bid Package 1602 at Lathrop Intermediate School Under 
Emergency Repair Program.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
JD:ym 
 





Preliminary Bid Results ERP Projects 5/13/2015 

Bidder Name Base Bid Amount Lowest Bid
Cal City Construction 377,000.00$                         

Total -$                               

LATHROP ERP 1602- REJCT AND REBID
Concrete/Asphalt



Authorization to Reject and Rebid Bid Package 1602 at Lathrop Intermediate School Under 
Emergency Repair Program  

 
Bid Package 1602 
Staff is requesting to reject and rebid. This scope of work will be value engineered and rebid with 
anticipated project savings.  
 

yvette.miranda
Typewritten Text
Exhibit B 



AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 
May 26, 2015 

 
Board Meeting 

 
TITLE: Authorization to Award Contract for Concrete/Asphalt Project at 

Adams Elementary School Under Emergency Repair Program 
 
ITEM: Action 
SUBMITTED BY: Joe Dixon, Assistant Superintendent, Facilities and Governmental 
 Relations 
PREPARED BY: Todd Butcher, Director, Construction  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board authorization to award contract for  
Concrete/Asphalt Project at Adams Elementary School Under Emergency Repair Program. 
 
 
RATIONALE: 
 
Legal advertisements of notice calling for bids were placed with the Orange County Register on 
March 20 and March 27, 2015.  On May 13, 2015, bid day, the District received one bid.  Staff is 
in agreement that the listed contractor represents the lowest bidder.  This bid amount is within 
budget. 
 
Bid 
Package 

School Contractor Bid Amount 

2101 Adams ES Ben’s Asphalt $135,085.00 
 
 
FUNDING:  
 
State Emergency Repair Program:  $135,085.00 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize staff to award contract to Ben’s Asphalt for Bid Package No. 2101 at Adams 
Elementary School Under Emergency Repair Program. 
 
 
 
 
JD:ym  





Preliminary Bid Results ERP Projects 5/13/2015 

Bidder Name Base Bid Amount Lowest Bid
Ben's Asphalt 135,085.00$                         135,085.00$                   

Total 135,085.00$                   

Adams ERP 2101
Concrete/Asphalt





AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 
May 26, 2015 

 
Board Meeting 

 
TITLE: Authorization to Award Contracts for Roofing Projects at Lincoln, 

Martin, Remington, and Roosevelt Elementary Schools and Lathrop, 
Spurgeon, and Willard Intermediate Schools Under Emergency 
Repair Program 

 
ITEM: Action 
SUBMITTED BY: Joe Dixon, Assistant Superintendent, Facilities and Governmental 
 Relations 
PREPARED BY: Todd Butcher, Director, Construction  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board authorization to award contracts for Roofing 
Projects at Lincoln, Martin, Remington, and Roosevelt Elementary Schools and Lathrop, 
Spurgeon, and Willard Intermediate Schools Under Emergency Repair Program.  
 
 
RATIONALE: 
 
At its January 27, 2015 meeting, the Board authorized staff to obtain bids for Emergency Repair 
Program projects.  Legal advertisements of notice calling for bids were placed with the Orange 
County Register on March 20 and 27, 2015.  On May 13, 2015, bid day, the District received 
twenty one bids.  Staff is in agreement that the listed contractors represent the lowest bidders.  
These bid amounts are within budget. 
 
Bid 
Package School Contractor Bid Amount 

2301 Lincoln ES Best Contracting Services, Inc. $446,480.00 

1701 Martin ES Letner Roofing Company $723,000.00 

1901 Remington ES Best Contracting Services, Inc. $442,190.00 

2501 Roosevelt ES Best Contracting Services, Inc. $315,900.00 

1601 Lathrop IS Letner Roofing Company $621,000.00 

3001 Spurgeon IS Best Contracting Services, Inc. $713,250.00 

2001 Willard IS Best Contracting Services, Inc. $720,160.00 

 Tota1  $3,981,980.00 
 
FUNDING:  
 
State Emergency Repair Program:  $ 3,981,980.00 



RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize staff to award contracts to Best Contracting Services, Inc.  for Bid Package No. 2301 
at Lincoln Elementary, Letner Roofing Company for Bid Package No. 1701 at Martin 
Elementary, Best Contracting Services for Bid Package No. 1901 at Remington Elementary, Best 
Contracting Services, Inc. for Bid Package No. 2501 at Roosevelt Elementary, Letner Roofing 
for Bid Package No. 1601 at Lathrop Intermediate, Best Contracting Services, Inc. for Bid 
Package No. 3001 at Spurgeon Intermediate, and Best Contracting Services for Bid Package No. 
2001 at Willard Intermediate School for a total of $3,981,980.00 under the Emergency Repair 
Program. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JD:ym 



Preliminary Bid Results ERP Projects 5/13/2015 

Bidder Name Base Bid Amount Lowest Bid
Best Contracting Services, Inc. 315,900.00$                         
Letner Roofing Company 476,000.00$                         

Bidder Name Base Bid Amount Lowest Bid
Pacific Builders & Roofing dba WSP 
NON-RESPONSIVE (See Attachement 
A) 425,000.00$                         
Best Contracting Services, Inc. 446,480.00$                         
C. I. Services, Inc. 596,000.00$                         
Letner Roofing Company 960,000.00$                         

Bidder Name Base Bid Amount Lowest Bid
Best Contracting Services, Inc. 720,160.00$                         
Letner Roofing Company 807,000.00$                         
WSP Roofing 1,100,000.00$                      

Bidder Name Base Bid Amount Lowest Bid
Best Contracting Services, Inc. 442,190.00$                         
WSP Roofing 482,000.00$                         
Letner Roofing Company 517,000.00$                         

Bidder Name Base Bid Amount Lowest Bid
Best Contracting Services, Inc. 713,250.00$                         
Letner Roofing Company 811,000.00$                         
WSP Roofing 1,185,000.00$                      

Roosevelt ERP 2501
Roofing

315,900.00$                   

Lincoln ERP 2301
Roofing

446,480.00$                   

Willard ERP 2001
Roofing

720,160.00$                   

Remington ERP 1901
Roofing

442,190.00$                   

Spurgeon ERP 3001
Roofing

713,250.00$                   



Preliminary Bid Results ERP Projects 5/13/2015 

Bidder Name Base Bid Amount Lowest Bid
Letner Roofing Company 621,000.00$                         
Best Contracting Servicies, Inc. 681,500.00$                         
WSP Roofing 947,000.00$                         

Bidder Name Base Bid Amount Lowest Bid
Letner Roofing Company 723,000.00$                         
Best Contracting Services, Inc. 790,700.00$                         
WSP Roofing 805,000.00$                         

Total 3,981,980.00$                

723,000.00$                   

Martin ERP 1701
Roofing

Lathrop ERP 1601
Roofing

621,000.00$                   



Atta 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue, Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322, (714) 480-5357 
 

John Palacio, President • Cecilia “Ceci” Iglesias, Vice President 
Valerie Amezcua, Clerk • José Alfredo Hernández J.D., Member • Rob Richardson, Member 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Memorandum 

Date: May 14, 2015  
 
To: Todd Butcher  
 
From: Albert Bolanos    
 
Subject: ERP Projects- Lincoln Bid Package 2301 
 
 
On Wednesday May 13, 2015, staff opened bids for the above referenced project and Pacific Builders & 
Roofing dba WSP roofing was the apparent low bidder for Bid Package 2301.  A detailed review revealed 
that the bidder had failed to be prequalify prior to the bid opening, as stated in the public notice calling for 
bids.  
 
Because Pacific Builders & Roofing dba WSP Roofing was not prequalified during time of bid, staff is 
recommending to the Board of Education that the bid be deemed non-responsive and that this project be 
awarded to the next lowest responsive bidder, Best Contracting Services, Inc.  
 

Santa Ana Unified School District 
 

 
 

Facilities & Governmental Relations 
Joe Dixon, Assistant Superintendent

Richard L. Miller, Ph.D. 
Superintendent 

yvette.miranda
Typewritten Text
Attachment A 





AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 
May 26, 2015 

 
Board Meeting 

 
TITLE:  Authorization to Award Contract for After-School Enrichment 

Program Provider Services for 2015-18 School Years 
 
ITEM:  Action 
SUBMITTED BY: Michelle Rodriguez, Ed.D., Assistant Superintendent, K-12 Teaching 

and Learning 
PREPARED BY: Jennifer Cisneros, Director, Extended Learning Programs 
   Jonathan Geiszler, Director, Purchasing 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board authorization to award a contract for after-
school enrichment program provider services for the 2015-18 school year. 
 
The California Department of Education (CDE) After School Education and Safety (ASES) 
Program and the 21st Century Learning Centers Grant fund the establishment of local before and 
after school education and enrichment programs.  These programs are created through 
partnerships between schools and local community resources to provide literacy, academic 
enrichment, and safe constructive alternatives for students in kindergarten through eighth grades.  
The after-school program provides an opportunity to merge school reform strategies with 
community resources.  The goal is to support local efforts to improve assistance to students and 
broaden the base of support for education in a safe, constructive environment.  The program 
creates incentive for establishing locally driven after-school education and enrichment programs 
supportive of LCAP goal 1.10: Support Extended Learning Opportunities for Low-Income Pupils. 
 
 
RATIONALE: 
 
The After School Education and Safety (ASES) funding requires enrichment opportunities are 
available to all participating students.  On March 2, 2015 a Request for Proposal (RFP) was 
released for after school enrichment program provider services.  The RFP was advertised, as 
legally required, in the Orange County Register.  Eight (8) submitters attended the mandatory 
submitters meeting and received bid documentation, seven (7) submitters responded to the RFP.   
 
The seven proposals were reviewed by an after school team, consisting of individuals who 
currently work in after school throughout Orange County, including representation from Orange 
County Department of Education, Garden Grove Unified School District, and Brea Olinda 
Unified School District.   
 
The proposals that received a score of 80 or more points were invited to present and interview 
with an evaluation committee, on Thursday, April 2, 2015.  The evaluation committee viewed 
presentations and asked a series of questions to five agencies; Active Learning, Discovery Cube, 



Boys & Girls Clubs of Santa (two proposals submitted), Toyama Karate-Do, and Jose Hernandez 
Mariachi Academy.  The committee consisted of seven members – three district administrators, 
an Orange County Department of Education representative, a California Department of 
Education representative, a Garden Grove Unified School District Representative, and a Brea 
Olinda School District Representative.  The evaluation committee scored presentations and 
interview responses out of 70 points.  Administration recommends awards to Boys & Girls Clubs 
of Santa Ana, Active Learning, Discovery Cube, Toyama Karate-Do, and Jose Hernandez 
Mariachi Academy.  The outcome of the evaluation results were as follows: 
 
 

Composite Score 

 
Agency Score 

1 Active Learning 161/170 
2 Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana (Future Leaders) 151/170 
3 Discovery Cube 150/170 
4 Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana (Arts & Culture) 150/170 
5 Toyama Karate-Do 148/170 
6 Jose Hernandez Mariachi Academy 146.5/170 

 
 
FUNDING:  
 
After School Education and Safety (ASES) grants: 
 

 
          Agency         Amount 

1 Active Learning $565,333 
2 Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana (Future Leaders) $512,457 
3 Discovery Cube $599,684 
4 Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana (Arts & Culture) $512,457 
5 Toyama Karate-Do $478,440 
6 Jose Hernandez Mariachi Academy $298,476 

Total $2,966,847 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize administration to award contracts for after school enrichment program provider 
services, pursuant to RFP No. 15-15 for the 2015-18 school years, to Active Learning, Boys & 
Girls Clubs of Santa Ana (Future Leaders), Discovery Cube, Boys & Girls Clubs of Santa Ana 
(Arts & Culture), Toyama Karate-Do, and Jose Hernandez Mariachi Academy.  The vendor 
selection is in compliance with Board Policy. 
 
 
 
MR:JC:JG:ez 



 

Revised 2014/2015 7 

Enrichment Provider Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Active Learning hereinafter referred to as 

“ENRICHMENT PROVIDER.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, ENRICHMENT PROVIDER is specially trained and experienced and 

competent to perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are 

needed on a limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER: Will provide The ABC’s 

of Healthy Living visual and performing arts dance instruction for the District’s 

Engage 360 after School Program.  The instruction will take place in the expanded 

learning program at all K-8 sites for the period of July 1, 2015 thru June 30, 2018. 

Services will be provided per the terms of RFP # 15-15 Board Approved April 28, 

2015. 

 2. Term.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on 7/1/2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete performance 

by 6/30/18. 

4. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER for 

services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$565,333 yearly. DISTRICT shall pay ENRICHMENT PROVIDER 30 days after receipts of 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER invoice and with approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER for any 

costs or expenses paid or incurred by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER in performing services for 

DISTRICT except as follows:  N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, in the performance of this 

AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER understands and 

agrees that he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents 



 

Revised 2014/2015 8 

of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided 

employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, 

including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of 

his/her employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER shall assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and 

local taxes or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes 

with respect to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s employees. 

7. Materials.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all 

labor, materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be 

provided pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and 

recommendations prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and 

practices of his/her profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, 

except that submitted to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER consents to use of ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s name in conjunction with the 

sale, use, performance and distribution of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

10. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate ENRICHMENT PROVIDER only for services satisfactorily 

rendered to the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop 

further performance of services by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER.  Notice shall be deemed given 

when received by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER or no later than three days after the day of 

mailing, whichever is sooner. 



 

Revised 2014/2015 9 

The DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT without cause after written notice is provided 

by DISTRICT to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER informing ENRICHMENT PROVIDER of the 

DISTRICT’S intent to terminate the AGREEMENT, this notice will be provided no less than 

(60) days prior to the final date of services requested by the DISTRICT. DISTRICT may 

terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for cause.  Cause 

shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER; 

or (b) any act by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for 

personal injury or property damage; or (c) ENRICHMENT PROVIDER is adjudged bankrupt, 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a 

receiver is appointed due to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s insolvency.  Written notice by 

DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) 

days after service of such notice the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory 

arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration 

of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of such termination, the DISTRICT may 

secure the required services from another contractor.  If the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the 

cost of providing the service pursuant to this AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to 

and collected from the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER.  The foregoing provisions are in addition 

to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies available to the DISTRICT.  Written 

notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received by the other party, or no later than 

three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to and does hereby indemnify, 

hold harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and 

agents from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any 

nature whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(d) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER 

or any person, firm or corporation employed by the ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER, either directly or by independent contract, upon or in connection 

with the services called for in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for 

liability for damages referred to above which result from the sole negligence 

or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents. 

  



 

Revised 2014/2015 10 

(e) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, 

or any person, firm or corporation employed by the ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER, either directly or by independent contract, arising out of, or in 

any way connected with, the services covered by this AGREEMENT, 

whether said injury or damage occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, 

except for liability for damages which result from the sole negligence or 

willful misconduct of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents. 

(f) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to carry a 

comprehensive general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000) per occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a 

form mutually acceptable to both parties to protect ENRICHMENT PROVIDER and DISTRICT 

against liability or claims of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such 

insurance as is afforded by this policy shall be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT 

shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No later than the actual start date, ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of insurance evidencing all coverages and 

endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) day written notice of cancellation or 

reduction in coverage.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to name DISTRICT and its officers, 

agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  (Please check with 

DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER. 

14. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to comply with 

all federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the 

future become applicable to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s 



 

Revised 2014/2015 11 

business, and personnel engaged in operations covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of 

the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER and all ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, if an employee of 

another public agency, agrees that ENRICHMENT PROVIDER will not receive salary or 

remuneration, other than vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual 

time in which services are actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER 

agrees that it will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of 

race, color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, 

marital status, or sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or ENRICHMENT PROVIDER to seek 

redress for violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Revised 2014/2015 12 

DISTRICT: ENRICHMENT PROVIDER: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Active Learning 

1601 E. Chestnut Ave 14 Surfside Ct. 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Newport Beach, CA 92663 
 

 

 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 27th Day of May 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: ENRICHMENT PROVIDER: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed. D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO   

Title  Title 

 

5/26/2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Revised 2014/2015 1 

Enrichment Provider Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Boys and Girls Club of Santa Ana 

hereinafter referred to as “ENRICHMENT PROVIDER.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, ENRICHMENT PROVIDER is specially trained and experienced and 

competent to perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are 

needed on a limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER: Will provide Boys and 

Girls Club Future Leader Academy and Arts instruction for the District’s Engage 

360 after School Program.  The instruction will take place in the expanded learning 

program at all K-8 sites for the period of July 1, 2015 thru June 30, 2018. Services 

will be provided per the terms of RFP # 15-15 Board Approved May 26, 2015. 

 2. Term.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on 7/1/2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete performance 

by 6/30/18. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER for 

services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$512,457 yearly. DISTRICT shall pay ENRICHMENT PROVIDER 30 days after receipts of 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER invoice and with approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER for any 

costs or expenses paid or incurred by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER in performing services for 

DISTRICT except as follows:  N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, in the performance of this 

AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER understands and 

agrees that he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents 

of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided 



 

Revised 2014/2015 2 

employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, 

including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of 

his/her employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER shall assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and 

local taxes or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes 

with respect to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s employees. 

6. Materials.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all 

labor, materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be 

provided pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and 

recommendations prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and 

practices of his/her profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, 

except that submitted to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER consents to use of ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s name in conjunction with the 

sale, use, performance and distribution of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate ENRICHMENT PROVIDER only for services satisfactorily 

rendered to the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop 

further performance of services by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER.  Notice shall be deemed given 

when received by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER or no later than three days after the day of 

mailing, whichever is sooner. 



 

Revised 2014/2015 3 

The DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT without cause after written notice is provided 

by DISTRICT to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER informing ENRICHMENT PROVIDER of the 

DISTRICT’S intent to terminate the AGREEMENT, this notice will be provided no less than 

(60) days prior to the final date of services requested by the DISTRICT. DISTRICT may 

terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for cause.  Cause 

shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER; 

or (b) any act by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for 

personal injury or property damage; or (c) ENRICHMENT PROVIDER is adjudged bankrupt, 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a 

receiver is appointed due to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s insolvency.  Written notice by 

DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) 

days after service of such notice the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory 

arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration 

of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of such termination, the DISTRICT may 

secure the required services from another contractor.  If the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the 

cost of providing the service pursuant to this AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to 

and collected from the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER.  The foregoing provisions are in addition 

to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies available to the DISTRICT.  Written 

notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received by the other party, or no later than 

three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to and does hereby indemnify, 

hold harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and 

agents from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any 

nature whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER 

or any person, firm or corporation employed by the ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER, either directly or by independent contract, upon or in connection 

with the services called for in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for 

liability for damages referred to above which result from the sole negligence 

or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents. 

  



 

Revised 2014/2015 4 

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, 

or any person, firm or corporation employed by the ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER, either directly or by independent contract, arising out of, or in 

any way connected with, the services covered by this AGREEMENT, 

whether said injury or damage occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, 

except for liability for damages which result from the sole negligence or 

willful misconduct of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to carry a 

comprehensive general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000) per occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a 

form mutually acceptable to both parties to protect ENRICHMENT PROVIDER and DISTRICT 

against liability or claims of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such 

insurance as is afforded by this policy shall be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT 

shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No later than the actual start date, ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of insurance evidencing all coverages and 

endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) day written notice of cancellation or 

reduction in coverage.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to name DISTRICT and its officers, 

agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  (Please check with 

DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to comply with 

all federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the 

future become applicable to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s 



 

Revised 2014/2015 5 

business, and personnel engaged in operations covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of 

the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER and all ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, if an employee of 

another public agency, agrees that ENRICHMENT PROVIDER will not receive salary or 

remuneration, other than vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual 

time in which services are actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER 

agrees that it will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of 

race, color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, 

marital status, or sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or ENRICHMENT PROVIDER to seek 

redress for violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Revised 2014/2015 6 

DISTRICT: ENRICHMENT PROVIDER: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Boys and Girls Club of Santa Ana 

1601 E. Chestnut Ave 950 W. Highland 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Santa Ana, CA 92703 
 

 

 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 27th Day of May 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: ENRICHMENT PROVIDER: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed. D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO   

Title  Title 

 

5/26/2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 



 

Revised 2014/2015 13 

Enrichment Provider Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Discovery Cube Orange County 

hereinafter referred to as “ENRICHMENT PROVIDER.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, ENRICHMENT PROVIDER is specially trained and experienced and 

competent to perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are 

needed on a limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER: Will provide STEM 

focused instruction in Life, Earth and Physical sciences as well as engineering, 

technology and math for the District’s Engage 360 after School Program.  The 

instruction will take place in the expanded learning program at all K-8 sites for the 

period of July 1, 2015 thru June 30, 2018. Services will be provided per the terms of 

RFP # 15-15 Board Approved April 28, 2015. 

 2. Term.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on 7/1/2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete performance 

by 6/30/18. 

5. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER for 

services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$599,684 yearly. DISTRICT shall pay ENRICHMENT PROVIDER 30 days after receipts of 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER invoice and with approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER for any 

costs or expenses paid or incurred by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER in performing services for 

DISTRICT except as follows:  N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, in the performance of this 

AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER understands and 

agrees that he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents 



 

Revised 2014/2015 14 

of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided 

employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, 

including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of 

his/her employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER shall assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and 

local taxes or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes 

with respect to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s employees. 

8. Materials.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all 

labor, materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be 

provided pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and 

recommendations prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and 

practices of his/her profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, 

except that submitted to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER consents to use of ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s name in conjunction with the 

sale, use, performance and distribution of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

11. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate ENRICHMENT PROVIDER only for services satisfactorily 

rendered to the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop 

further performance of services by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER.  Notice shall be deemed given 

when received by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER or no later than three days after the day of 

mailing, whichever is sooner. 



 

Revised 2014/2015 15 

The DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT without cause after written notice is provided 

by DISTRICT to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER informing ENRICHMENT PROVIDER of the 

DISTRICT’S intent to terminate the AGREEMENT, this notice will be provided no less than 

(60) days prior to the final date of services requested by the DISTRICT. DISTRICT may 

terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for cause.  Cause 

shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER; 

or (b) any act by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for 

personal injury or property damage; or (c) ENRICHMENT PROVIDER is adjudged bankrupt, 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a 

receiver is appointed due to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s insolvency.  Written notice by 

DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) 

days after service of such notice the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory 

arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration 

of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of such termination, the DISTRICT may 

secure the required services from another contractor.  If the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the 

cost of providing the service pursuant to this AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to 

and collected from the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER.  The foregoing provisions are in addition 

to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies available to the DISTRICT.  Written 

notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received by the other party, or no later than 

three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to and does hereby indemnify, 

hold harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and 

agents from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any 

nature whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(g) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER 

or any person, firm or corporation employed by the ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER, either directly or by independent contract, upon or in connection 

with the services called for in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for 

liability for damages referred to above which result from the sole negligence 

or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents. 

  



 

Revised 2014/2015 16 

(h) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, 

or any person, firm or corporation employed by the ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER, either directly or by independent contract, arising out of, or in 

any way connected with, the services covered by this AGREEMENT, 

whether said injury or damage occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, 

except for liability for damages which result from the sole negligence or 

willful misconduct of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents. 

(i) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to carry a 

comprehensive general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000) per occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a 

form mutually acceptable to both parties to protect ENRICHMENT PROVIDER and DISTRICT 

against liability or claims of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such 

insurance as is afforded by this policy shall be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT 

shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No later than the actual start date, ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of insurance evidencing all coverages and 

endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) day written notice of cancellation or 

reduction in coverage.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to name DISTRICT and its officers, 

agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  (Please check with 

DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER. 

15. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to comply with 

all federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the 

future become applicable to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s 



 

Revised 2014/2015 17 

business, and personnel engaged in operations covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of 

the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER and all ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, if an employee of 

another public agency, agrees that ENRICHMENT PROVIDER will not receive salary or 

remuneration, other than vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual 

time in which services are actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER 

agrees that it will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of 

race, color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, 

marital status, or sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or ENRICHMENT PROVIDER to seek 

redress for violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Revised 2014/2015 18 

DISTRICT: ENRICHMENT PROVIDER: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Discovery Cube Orange County 

1601 E. Chestnut Ave 2500 North Main Street 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Santa Ana, CA 92705 
 

 

 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 27th Day of May 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: ENRICHMENT PROVIDER: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed. D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO   

Title  Title 

 

5/26/2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Revised 2014/2015 1 

Enrichment Provider Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Boys and Girls Club of Santa Ana 

hereinafter referred to as “ENRICHMENT PROVIDER.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, ENRICHMENT PROVIDER is specially trained and experienced and 

competent to perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are 

needed on a limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER: Will provide Boys and 

Girls Club Arts and Culture Academy program instruction for the District’s 

Engage 360 after School Program.  The instruction will take place in the expanded 

learning program at all K-8 sites for the period of July 1, 2015 thru June 30, 2018. 

Services will be provided per the terms of RFP # 15-15 Board Approved May 26, 

2015. 

 2. Term.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on 7/1/2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete performance 

by 6/30/18. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER for 

services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$512,457 yearly. DISTRICT shall pay ENRICHMENT PROVIDER 30 days after receipts of 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER invoice and with approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER for any 

costs or expenses paid or incurred by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER in performing services for 

DISTRICT except as follows:  N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, in the performance of this 

AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER understands and 

agrees that he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents 



 

Revised 2014/2015 2 

of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided 

employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, 

including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of 

his/her employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER shall assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and 

local taxes or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes 

with respect to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s employees. 

6. Materials.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all 

labor, materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be 

provided pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and 

recommendations prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and 

practices of his/her profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, 

except that submitted to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER consents to use of ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s name in conjunction with the 

sale, use, performance and distribution of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate ENRICHMENT PROVIDER only for services satisfactorily 

rendered to the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop 

further performance of services by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER.  Notice shall be deemed given 

when received by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER or no later than three days after the day of 

mailing, whichever is sooner. 



 

Revised 2014/2015 3 

The DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT without cause after written notice is provided 

by DISTRICT to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER informing ENRICHMENT PROVIDER of the 

DISTRICT’S intent to terminate the AGREEMENT, this notice will be provided no less than 

(60) days prior to the final date of services requested by the DISTRICT. DISTRICT may 

terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for cause.  Cause 

shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER; 

or (b) any act by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for 

personal injury or property damage; or (c) ENRICHMENT PROVIDER is adjudged bankrupt, 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a 

receiver is appointed due to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s insolvency.  Written notice by 

DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) 

days after service of such notice the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory 

arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration 

of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of such termination, the DISTRICT may 

secure the required services from another contractor.  If the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the 

cost of providing the service pursuant to this AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to 

and collected from the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER.  The foregoing provisions are in addition 

to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies available to the DISTRICT.  Written 

notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received by the other party, or no later than 

three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to and does hereby indemnify, 

hold harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and 

agents from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any 

nature whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER 

or any person, firm or corporation employed by the ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER, either directly or by independent contract, upon or in connection 

with the services called for in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for 

liability for damages referred to above which result from the sole negligence 

or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents. 

  



 

Revised 2014/2015 4 

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, 

or any person, firm or corporation employed by the ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER, either directly or by independent contract, arising out of, or in 

any way connected with, the services covered by this AGREEMENT, 

whether said injury or damage occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, 

except for liability for damages which result from the sole negligence or 

willful misconduct of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to carry a 

comprehensive general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000) per occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a 

form mutually acceptable to both parties to protect ENRICHMENT PROVIDER and DISTRICT 

against liability or claims of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such 

insurance as is afforded by this policy shall be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT 

shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No later than the actual start date, ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of insurance evidencing all coverages and 

endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) day written notice of cancellation or 

reduction in coverage.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to name DISTRICT and its officers, 

agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  (Please check with 

DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to comply with 

all federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the 

future become applicable to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s 



 

Revised 2014/2015 5 

business, and personnel engaged in operations covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of 

the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER and all ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, if an employee of 

another public agency, agrees that ENRICHMENT PROVIDER will not receive salary or 

remuneration, other than vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual 

time in which services are actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER 

agrees that it will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of 

race, color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, 

marital status, or sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or ENRICHMENT PROVIDER to seek 

redress for violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Revised 2014/2015 6 

DISTRICT: ENRICHMENT PROVIDER: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Boys and Girls Club of Santa Ana 

1601 E. Chestnut Ave 950 W. Highland 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Santa Ana, CA 92703 
 

 

 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 27th Day of May 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: ENRICHMENT PROVIDER: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed. D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO   

Title  Title 

 

5/26/2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 



 

Revised 2014/2015 19 

Enrichment Provider Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Toyama Karate-Do hereinafter referred to 

as “ENRICHMENT PROVIDER.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, ENRICHMENT PROVIDER is specially trained and experienced and 

competent to perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are 

needed on a limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER: Will provide their Youth 

Developing Self-Discipline through Martial Arts & Fitness program for the 

District’s Engage 360 after School Program.  The instruction will take place in the 

expanded learning program at all K-8 sites for the period of July 1, 2015 thru June 

30, 2018. Services will be provided per the terms of RFP # 15-15 Board Approved 

April 28, 2015. 

 2. Term.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on 7/1/2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete performance 

by 6/30/18. 

6. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER for 

services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$478,440 yearly. DISTRICT shall pay ENRICHMENT PROVIDER 30 days after receipts of 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER invoice and with approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER for any 

costs or expenses paid or incurred by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER in performing services for 

DISTRICT except as follows:  N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, in the performance of this 

AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER understands and 

agrees that he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents 



 

Revised 2014/2015 20 

of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided 

employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, 

including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of 

his/her employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER shall assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and 

local taxes or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes 

with respect to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s employees. 

9. Materials.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all 

labor, materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be 

provided pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and 

recommendations prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and 

practices of his/her profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, 

except that submitted to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER consents to use of ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s name in conjunction with the 

sale, use, performance and distribution of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

12. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate ENRICHMENT PROVIDER only for services satisfactorily 

rendered to the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop 

further performance of services by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER.  Notice shall be deemed given 

when received by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER or no later than three days after the day of 

mailing, whichever is sooner. 



 

Revised 2014/2015 21 

The DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT without cause after written notice is provided 

by DISTRICT to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER informing ENRICHMENT PROVIDER of the 

DISTRICT’S intent to terminate the AGREEMENT, this notice will be provided no less than 

(60) days prior to the final date of services requested by the DISTRICT. DISTRICT may 

terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for cause.  Cause 

shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER; 

or (b) any act by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for 

personal injury or property damage; or (c) ENRICHMENT PROVIDER is adjudged bankrupt, 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a 

receiver is appointed due to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s insolvency.  Written notice by 

DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) 

days after service of such notice the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory 

arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration 

of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of such termination, the DISTRICT may 

secure the required services from another contractor.  If the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the 

cost of providing the service pursuant to this AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to 

and collected from the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER.  The foregoing provisions are in addition 

to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies available to the DISTRICT.  Written 

notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received by the other party, or no later than 

three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to and does hereby indemnify, 

hold harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and 

agents from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any 

nature whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(j) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER 

or any person, firm or corporation employed by the ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER, either directly or by independent contract, upon or in connection 

with the services called for in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for 

liability for damages referred to above which result from the sole negligence 

or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents. 

  



 

Revised 2014/2015 22 

(k) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, 

or any person, firm or corporation employed by the ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER, either directly or by independent contract, arising out of, or in 

any way connected with, the services covered by this AGREEMENT, 

whether said injury or damage occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, 

except for liability for damages which result from the sole negligence or 

willful misconduct of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents. 

(l) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to carry a 

comprehensive general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000) per occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a 

form mutually acceptable to both parties to protect ENRICHMENT PROVIDER and DISTRICT 

against liability or claims of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such 

insurance as is afforded by this policy shall be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT 

shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No later than the actual start date, ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of insurance evidencing all coverages and 

endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) day written notice of cancellation or 

reduction in coverage.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to name DISTRICT and its officers, 

agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  (Please check with 

DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER. 

16. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to comply with 

all federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the 

future become applicable to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s 



 

Revised 2014/2015 23 

business, and personnel engaged in operations covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of 

the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER and all ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, if an employee of 

another public agency, agrees that ENRICHMENT PROVIDER will not receive salary or 

remuneration, other than vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual 

time in which services are actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER 

agrees that it will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of 

race, color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, 

marital status, or sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or ENRICHMENT PROVIDER to seek 

redress for violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Revised 2014/2015 24 

DISTRICT: ENRICHMENT PROVIDER: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Toyama Karate-Do 

1601 E. Chestnut Ave 2525 N. Grand Ave, Suite Z 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Santa Ana, CA 92705 
 

 

 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 27th Day of May 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: ENRICHMENT PROVIDER: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed. D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO   

Title  Title 

 

5/26/2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Revised 2014/2015 25 

Enrichment Provider Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Jose Hernandez Mariachi Academy 

hereinafter referred to as “ENRICHMENT PROVIDER.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, ENRICHMENT PROVIDER is specially trained and experienced and 

competent to perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are 

needed on a limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER: Will provide 

introductory instruction in mariachi music-making genre and cultural awareness 

for the District’s Engage 360 after School Program.  The instruction will take place 

in the expanded learning program at all 6-8 sites for the period of July 1, 2015 thru 

June 30, 2018. Services will be provided per the terms of RFP # 15-15 Board 

Approved April 28, 2015. 

 2. Term.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on 7/1/2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete performance 

by 6/30/18. 

7. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER for 

services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$298,476 yearly. DISTRICT shall pay ENRICHMENT PROVIDER 30 days after receipts of 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER invoice and with approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER for any 

costs or expenses paid or incurred by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER in performing services for 

DISTRICT except as follows:  N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, in the performance of this 

AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER understands and 

agrees that he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents 



 

Revised 2014/2015 26 

of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided 

employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, 

including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of 

his/her employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER shall assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and 

local taxes or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes 

with respect to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s employees. 

10. Materials.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all 

labor, materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be 

provided pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and 

recommendations prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and 

practices of his/her profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, 

except that submitted to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER consents to use of ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s name in conjunction with the 

sale, use, performance and distribution of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

13. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate ENRICHMENT PROVIDER only for services satisfactorily 

rendered to the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop 

further performance of services by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER.  Notice shall be deemed given 

when received by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER or no later than three days after the day of 

mailing, whichever is sooner. 



 

Revised 2014/2015 27 

The DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT without cause after written notice is provided 

by DISTRICT to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER informing ENRICHMENT PROVIDER of the 

DISTRICT’S intent to terminate the AGREEMENT, this notice will be provided no less than 

(60) days prior to the final date of services requested by the DISTRICT. DISTRICT may 

terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for cause.  Cause 

shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER; 

or (b) any act by ENRICHMENT PROVIDER exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for 

personal injury or property damage; or (c) ENRICHMENT PROVIDER is adjudged bankrupt, 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a 

receiver is appointed due to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s insolvency.  Written notice by 

DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) 

days after service of such notice the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory 

arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration 

of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of such termination, the DISTRICT may 

secure the required services from another contractor.  If the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the 

cost of providing the service pursuant to this AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to 

and collected from the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER.  The foregoing provisions are in addition 

to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies available to the DISTRICT.  Written 

notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received by the other party, or no later than 

three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to and does hereby indemnify, 

hold harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and 

agents from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any 

nature whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(m) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER 

or any person, firm or corporation employed by the ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER, either directly or by independent contract, upon or in connection 

with the services called for in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for 

liability for damages referred to above which result from the sole negligence 

or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents. 

  



 

Revised 2014/2015 28 

(n) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, 

or any person, firm or corporation employed by the ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER, either directly or by independent contract, arising out of, or in 

any way connected with, the services covered by this AGREEMENT, 

whether said injury or damage occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, 

except for liability for damages which result from the sole negligence or 

willful misconduct of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents. 

(o) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to carry a 

comprehensive general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000) per occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a 

form mutually acceptable to both parties to protect ENRICHMENT PROVIDER and DISTRICT 

against liability or claims of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, 

ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such 

insurance as is afforded by this policy shall be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT 

shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No later than the actual start date, ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of insurance evidencing all coverages and 

endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) day written notice of cancellation or 

reduction in coverage.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to name DISTRICT and its officers, 

agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  (Please check with 

DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the ENRICHMENT PROVIDER. 

17. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER agrees to comply with 

all federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the 

future become applicable to ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, ENRICHMENT PROVIDER’s 



 

Revised 2014/2015 29 

business, and personnel engaged in operations covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of 

the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER and all ENRICHMENT 

PROVIDER’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER, if an employee of 

another public agency, agrees that ENRICHMENT PROVIDER will not receive salary or 

remuneration, other than vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual 

time in which services are actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  ENRICHMENT PROVIDER 

agrees that it will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of 

race, color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, 

marital status, or sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or ENRICHMENT PROVIDER to seek 

redress for violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Revised 2014/2015 30 

DISTRICT: ENRICHMENT PROVIDER: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Jose Hernandez Mariachi Academy 

provided by The Mariachi Heritage Society 

1601 E. Chestnut Ave 10926 Rush St., Suite C 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 South El Monte, CA 91733 
 

 

 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 27th Day of May 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: ENRICHMENT PROVIDER: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed. D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO   

Title  Title 

 

5/26/2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 



After School Enrichment Program Provider Services Executive Summary 
 
 
The vision of Santa Ana Unified School District’s Engage 360° after school program is to work 
collaboratively and comprehensively with staff, parents, and the community to strengthen a 
learning environment focused on raising the achievement of all students and preparing them for 
success in college and career.  The mission is to provide SAUSD students with a safe 
environment that is a true extension of the academic school day.  Students will engage in 
meaningful, academic support, varied enrichment, nutrition and physical activities that will 
accelerate student outcomes linked to the District’s Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
Goals.   
 
In an effort to partner with community providers who share the same vision, mission, and goals 
as well as provide unique, quality enrichment opportunities, SAUSD engaged in a 
comprehensive Request for Proposal (RFP) process.  This process required all submitters to 
address the following: program design, elements of high quality programming, organizational 
design, program evaluation, budget, and success and sustainability.  The proposals were scored 
by a selection committee and the highest scoring advanced to an interview and presentation.  As 
a result, the following community providers are recommended for awards: Active Learning, 
Boys & Girls Clubs of Santa Ana - Arts & Culture, Boys & Girls Clubs of Santa Ana - Future 
Leaders, Toyama Karate-Do, Discovery Cube, and Jose Hernandez Mariachi Academy. 
 
Active Learning  
Active Learning combines visual and performing arts and culture that are wrapped around 21st 
Century skills, such as collaboration, critical thinking, communication, and creativity, to help 
students become college and career ready.  The program will operate for six-weeks at elementary 
and intermediate schools and focus on classical and cultural dance—ballet, tap, jazz, hip hop, 
break dance, pop & lock, African, Latin, Polynesian, Bollywood, Swing, Contemporary, 
Folklorico, Lyrical, Musical theater, Cheer, Interpretive plus many more and object 
manipulatives- props, literacy, poetry and art—and fitness (yoga, Pilates, Zumba) that are all 
combined with art from around the world.  Within the core of the structure, students gain a 
comprehensive cardio-fitness workout and learn Common Core State Standards intertwined with 
healthy messages for individuals, emotionally, physically and mentally.  Beyond dance, the 
program offers enrichment education in music, rhythm, arts/crafts, theater, and socialization, 
which are all showcased at the culminating performances. 
Cost: $565,333.00 
 
Boys & Girls Clubs of Santa Ana, Future Leaders Academy  
Future Leaders Academy is a customized enrichment strategy consisting of four different 6-week 
programs and is a segment of the enrichment programs from the traditional BGCSA Impact 
Model.  Each of the four programs incorporates the use of technology, global awareness, STEM, 
and college and career readiness concepts.  Each of the four components of the Future Leaders 
Academy develops students’ use of 21st Century Skills such as communication, collaboration and 
critical thinking and engages students in college and career. 
Cost: $512,457.00 
 



 

 
 

Discovery Cube  
Discovery Cube’s proposed STEM-focused enrichment program will include a comprehensive 
and integrated approach to investigate and learn about not only all fields of science, such as Life 
Science, Earth Systems Science, and Physical Science (including Chemistry), but will 
incorporate engineering design, practices, and challenge along with an exploration of technology 
and math.  Additionally, Discovery Cube’s program utilizes an engaging and strong academic 
platform providing student’s with STEM knowledge and encouragement to pursue these fields of 
interest while also implementing language-acquisitions strategies, teamwork, and positive habits 
of mind, such as problem-solving, persistence, and creativity. 
Cost: $599,684.00   
 
Boys & Girls Clubs of Santa Ana, Arts & Culture Exploration  
Arts & Culture Exploration is a customized enrichment strategy, consisting of two Boys & Girls 
Clubs of America national programs—DramaMatters Afterschool and Youth for Unity—and a 
multimedia enhancement that will be adapted to fit the Engage 360° program model.  Each of the 
three components will be offered separately throughout the week and will work in concert with 
each other to engage participants from elementary to intermediate school grades in the art of 
drama, learning about cultures and diversity, and the use of multimedia while learning about and 
researching college majors, careers and colleges related to Arts and Culture.   
Cost: $512,457.00  
 
Toyama Karate-Do  
Toyama Karate-Do’s after school program is called “Youth Developing Self-Discipline through 
Martial Arts & Fitness” (YDSDMA).  Their mission is to collaborate in the common core efforts, 
LCAP goals, and the seven building blocks of SAUSD by providing martial arts lessons as a tool 
to guide student’s energy, motor skills, and mental capacity to learn and understand the 
importance of confidence, concentration, focus, respect, values, physical fitness, discipline, 
leadership, nutrition, and safety. Toyama offers specialized movement which then transfers over 
to creating great students that will perform better in school because they are ready to learn with 
no limitations and focus.  The types of programs offered by Toyama in elementary include Tiger 
Karate for Kst-2nd and Eagle Karate for 3rd-4th-5th.  For intermediate schools, they offer Jr. 
Karate, Kick Boxing, and Dynamic Martial Arts.   
Cost: $478,440.00  
 
Jose Hernandez Mariachi Academy   
The Jose Hernandez Mariachi Academy curriculum provides intermediate students with an 
exceptional introductory educational experience that expands their cultural awareness and 
promotes a lifelong appreciation for music and music-making.  Students will be introduced to 
music of the mariachi genre through the singing of traditional songs and the playing of 
instruments inherent to the mariachi ensemble.  Those instruments include violin, trumpet, 
guitar, vihuela and guitarron.  
Cost: $298,476.00 
 
 
 



 

 
 

Intramural Sports—Intermediate Schools Only 
The Intramural Sports program is facilitated by the Special Projects department who works in 
collaboration with Extended Learning to ensure students enrolled in the Engage 360° have the 
opportunity to attend.  To expand access, the intramural sports is not provided solely for Engage 
360° students, rather, it is a parallel program that is offered to all intermediate students at all 
intermediate schools.  Engage 360° students have the opportunity to participate in sports as an 
enrichment option, with certificated coaches. Intramural consists of six seasons (approximately 
six weeks each), and include Cross Country, Flag Football, Girls Volleyball, Girls Basketball, 
Boys Soccer, Street Hockey*, Girls Soccer, Boys Basketball, and Track and Field. Below you 
will find a table of the number of students that participated in each sport: 
 
School Cross 

Country 
Boys’ 
Foot
ball 

Girls’ 
Volley
ball 

Boys’ 
Soccer 

Girls’ 
Basket
ball 

Boys’ 
Basket
ball 

Girls’ 
Soccer 

Hockey Track & 
Field 
(April-May) 

CARR 40 60 40 80 60 60 60 40  

LATHROP 40 40 20 40 20 40 60 15  

MACARTHUR 40 40 60 40 40 40 40 N/A  

MCFADDEN 40 60 40 40 40 40 40 40  

MENDEZ 40 40 60 80 60 60 80 N/A  

SIERRA 80 40 20 40 40 40 20 N/A  

SPURGEON 40 20 40 20 40 40 40 N/A  

VILLA 60 60 40 60 60 80 60 N/A  

WILLARD 20 40 40 60 40 40 40 15  

TOTAL 400 400 360 460 400 440 360 110 APPROX 
400+ @ 
tournament 

 
*Hockey is only offered at four schools due to the limited equipment donated from the Anaheim 
Ducks.   





 
Active Learning-SAUSD After School Enrichment Partner 2015 

1 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The ABC's of Healthy Living 
 

SAUSD After School Enrichment Provider  
Proposal 2015 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Active Learning 
www.activelearningusa.org 

 

Contact:  Hiba Shublak 

Address:  14 Surfside Ct.  

            Newport Beach, CA 92663 

Phone:    (714) 717-4534 

Fax:      (714) 841-2904 
Email:              hiba@activelearningusa.org 

http://www.activelearningusa.org/


 
Active Learning-SAUSD After School Enrichment Partner 2015 

2 

 

Active Learning provides 4 specific segments to educate participants on lifelong wellness strategies: 
Segment 1-Physical Activities (range: Infants/toddlers, K-12 as well as parents/seniors); Segment 2- Early Childhood and 
Elementary PE (range: toddlers-Pre K, K-5 as well as classroom teachers);; Segment 3- Creative Movement and Dance 
Education(range: toddlers-Pre K, K-12 as well as classroom teachers & parents/seniors);; and Segment 4- Fitness and 
basic nutrition education for adults and seniors(range: adults 18 years +). 
 
Our Mission:  Active Learning is dedicated to creating, implementing, and evaluating programs that promote 
lifelong health and wellness, improving the quantity and quality of dance education and physical activity for children 
as well as teachers and parents who positively impact children’s lives. 

 
Our Goal:  Our goal is to provide comprehensive education in dance and fitness through creative movement, 
technical workshops, cultural diversity, performing arts and emotional wellness.  

The following proposal focuses on applying Active Learning as an enrichment provider of After-School Education 
for K-8 in the Santa Ana Unified School District. Our program provides specialized movement in dance education and 
combines visual and performing arts and culture that are wrapped around 21st Century skills to help students become 
college and career ready.  We are offering six-week programs for elementary and intermediate schools in classical and 
cultural dance (ballet, tap, jazz, hip hop, break dance, pop & lock, African, Latin, Polynesian, Bollywood, Swing, 
Contemporary, Folklorico, Lyrical, Musical theater, Cheer, Interpretive plus many more and object manipulatives- props, 
literacy, poetry and art), fitness (yoga, Pilates, zumba) that are all combined with art from around the world.  

1. Program Design: 
 

The Active Learning Dance Program is designed to provide strategies and guidelines to increase the quantity 
and quality of classical and cultural dance education. We offer safe, proper and unique activities for children and 
their caregivers.  The separate components within the Active Learning program provide essential goals to 
enlighten children about lifelong wellness within dance and fitness education.  Through a range of creative master 
dance classes, children learn to respect who they are now and imagine the person they will become.   
 
Active Learning (AL) hires college students and graduates that are masters in the fields of dance, fitness and 
musical theater in addition to having a background working with children and/or striving to become teachers. The 
hiring criterion is based on their education and experience. As a partner with local community colleges, Cal State's 
and Universities, AL recruits and retains staff through Dance, Kinesiology, Theater, Human Service and Education 
departments.  

 
Along with education and experience, AL teachers are extensively trained in our comprehensive curriculum, 
classroom structure and management skills.  The instructional methods are based on a progressive curriculum that 
is specifically aligned with the CA Health and Dance Standards and integrated with CA Common Core Standards 
in English, Language Arts, Literacy, History/Social Science, Math subjects.   

 
Our research based, classroom practiced lessons, and structured schedules set our program apart from any other 
dance class.  Within the core of the structure, students gain a comprehensive cardio-fitness workout,  learn CCS 
standards intertwined with healthy messages for individuals, emotionally, physically and mentally.  We focus on 
positivity throughout each lesson so students feel successful. (instead of “Don’t” we say “Remember to”) Beyond 
dance, we are culturally diverse in our programs offering enrichment education in music, rhythm, arts/crafts, 
theater, socialization and much more, which are all showcased at the culminating performances.  

 
While motivating students for healthy lifestyles, our program integrates art, music and movement into captivating 
lessons that promote creative expression and bring reading and math concepts alive. Each hands-on learning 
class encompasses the development of English-Language skills & opportunities for children to: 

 
 Apply Literacy  using literature and games that focus on sounds, letters, blends, and words to build reading 

and writing skills-journal writing.  
 Math Skills counting whole numbers, learning timing & rhythm , shapes , body in space, use of props.  
 Develop Cultural Awareness in dance and music by exploring international dances and music.  
 Practice creative dance styles that are aligned with CA and National Dance Standards 
 Learn Science/Coordinated Health & Nutrition 



 
Active Learning-SAUSD After School Enrichment Partner 2015 

3 

 

 
The Active Learning Dance Enrichment Program will compliment SAUSD’s Engage 360 program as a whole by 
working collaboratively and comprehensively with staff, parents and other community partners to strengthen the learning 
environment focused on raising the achievement of all students and preparing them for success in college and career.  

 
Through dance education aligned with SAUSD mission and goals, linked to the 3 LCAP overarching goals, Active 
Learning  gives children and adolescents a chance to learn a variety of specialized skills that will enhance the 
development of their individuality and unique characters.  A report in 2013 from ArtWorks showing evidence on the impact 
of dance in the K-12 setting stated:  

 
The conclusions include that the arts build capacities that develop 21

st
 Century skills in 

students and provide constructivist learning experiences for them.  Longingly concludes: 
(1) the arts improve the school climate; (2) the arts’ comprehensive tasks challenge 

students; (3) the arts turns schools into communities.  (Overview Reports on the Benefits 
of Arts in Education;  Evidence Report on impact of dance;1999, page 16) 

 
LCAP GOAL 1:  Our students need the knowledge, skills, and values to become productive citizens in the 21st 
century. 

 

Movement is essential to the learning processes, cognitive and optimal brain development. The body-brain 
connection lays the foundation for lifelong learning. Dance provides a multi-sensory experience that allows for 
deep learning and an aesthetic pathway for all students to communicate understanding through movement. 
Students understand dance as a universal language bridging culture, place and time. Dance students learn 
creativity, leadership, collaboration, acceptance, critical thinking, problem-solving, empathy, metacognition, self 
discipline and self esteem while celebrating culture, history and diversity. 

 
According to recent studies from the California County Superintendents Educational Services Association (CCESA)  
regarding arts education in and out of the school day demonstrate the relationship between engagement in the visual and 
performing arts and cognitive capacities, motivation to succeed academically, and effective social behavior.  CCSESA 
urges every school to weave dance, music, theatre, and visual arts into the fabric of the curriculum, providing all students 
with a comprehensive education.  
 

The arts in after school programs provide critical tools In an ever changing global economy, after 
school programs that include the arts are focusing on developing student skills needed in the 21

st
 

century workplace, i.e. problem–solving, critical thinking, transfer, teamwork and cooperative 
planning. 

 

LCAP GOAL 2:  All students have equitable access to high quality curricular and instructional program that is 
accessible from school and home. 
 

Active Learning is devoted to SAUSD students, with approximately 60% of students as English learners, who  may lack 
the resources  or opportunities to access meaningful enrichment in art and specifically dance education. Our hands-on 
learning lessons, actively engage  the students in the learning process, which is our priority.  We offer enrichment in 
dance and art education to compliment the daily activities and collectively work with Engage 360 to cultivate a meaningful 
after school program that provides equitable access to all SAUSD K-8 students.  Along with Engage 360s’ high quality 
curricular and instructional program,  we integrate valuable dance education so that each child has access to  homework 
help, nutritious snacks, physical education and  enrichment.  

 

Over a 6-week series of dance and art education, students learn fundamental skills in technique and practice 
choreographed dances that are showcased at the culminating performances.  For more opportunities for students to 
access dance education from home, we provide breakdown of choreography and dance skills on our YouTube channel 
and provide students with online resources.   
 

 Valerie Rodriguez 4th grade student  Monroe Elementary: 
"I taught my cousins the moves I learned" 

 

 Alberto R.  1st grade student  Thorpe Elementary: 
"When my mom plays music, I am not shy anymore and I dance at home with her!" 

 

We also invite parents to volunteer and join our classes and activities offered. In addition we teach students fun take 
home crafts that inspire the whole family to move such as dance around the world game, dance charades and body 



 
Active Learning-SAUSD After School Enrichment Partner 2015 

4 

 

telephone. Active Learning’s dance program includes active parent participation in many events. This helps establish 
family togetherness and motivates both parent and child to bond through achievement and feeling good.  Each activity is 
designed to relate positive experience in physical activity. This has a direct benefit for nurturing the family unit with healthy 
messages, at home and in the school environment. 

 

LCAP GOAL 3: All students and staff work in a healthy, safe, and secure environment that supports learning.  
 

Active Learning dance education has been operating for over 15 years with 0% injuries. With more than 9 years in the 
after school programs in SAUSD, our physically safe programs are proven through our partnership and collaboration, 
which facilitates our excellence in defining secure physical space. By administering ongoing professional development 
trainings with our direct staff, teachers understand the importance of classroom organization and structure, administering 
effective classroom management and supervision for students’ success. The key to our outline of safety procedures is the 
sequential operation of our program set up.  This includes the classroom plan before, during and after class.   

 
Our commitment to SAUSD students is to increase the quantity and quality of enrichment in dance education to link with 
current lessons during the school day. We are dedicated to a lifetime of preparing students and teachers for success to be 
college and career ready. Our safe and developmentally appropriate practices personalize the learning experience for 
each student. With a strong and efficient infrastructure, we continually assess and monitor program details to implement 
best practices for student achievement. Our expertise in research and curriculum development aligns the Common Core 
State Standards with Health and Dance. We will work collaboratively and extensively with SAUSD, stakeholders and our 
community partners to strengthen student learning. 
 

Active Learning's program concentrate on efforts to ensure high-quality, personalized learning and instruction. Our 
Dance Curriculum is divided into different classes based on the CA Dance & Health Standards integrated with the 
Common Core State Standards to ensure the appropriate developmental level for each grade is met and implemented 
through our structured classes.   

 

We make a significant impact on students within the 6-week rotation at the elementary and intermediate level, by teaching 
meaningful lessons that students find connections to each lesson culturally, emotionally and through art. Our curriculum 
builds in a 6-week series that begins with foundational skills in a dance style or a combination of several. The genre(s) are 
then methodically explored and analyzed through a multitude of activities and projects that merge art, expression, self 
awareness and end with a culminating performance.   

 

Each class is constructed based on the developmentally appropriate needs of the students in elementary and 
intermediate grades.  Activities are designed to enhance the implementation of the Common Core State Standards 
through active learning, creative movement and object manipulation with health and dance education.  What really 
sets us apart from any other dance program is our implementation of healthy messages throughout our lessons 
that also include a comprehensive warm-up, cardiovascular and strength activity as well as a cool down portion 
that offers yoga and relaxation.  By attending classes daily and moving in structured formats students improve and 
increase physical activity levels so they're ready to learn.  This exceeds state mandated PE Minutes (CA State 
Board of Ed- requires  200 PE minutes every 10 days or more). Students also achieve socialization skills by 
making friends and connecting with their teachers and are able to consciously understand their bodies in space, 
how nutritious choices optimize their growth and have something to look forward to as an emotional and physical 
outlet each day.   

 

Each hands-on learning class encompasses the development of English-Language skills as well as providing 
opportunities for children to explore, create and innovate their ideas through movement: 

 

 Elementary and Intermediate students have the chance to apply  literacy concepts by using literature to 
discover emotional connections in art and movement;  choreograph poetry and stories through movement 
and dance.  

 Students will practice Math-CCS skills by using: 
 Sequence and Patterns: through rhythms and dance choreography 
 Problem Solving: by creating dance patterns, exploring body shapes, levels in space and working in 

groups and partners.  
 Addition/Subtraction/Multiplication and Division: by creating dance patterns in boxes of 32 counts 

each 
 Explore corners, angles and turns 

(A corner is where two edges meet or where one edge turns and changes to a different direction. 
Edges are straight and consequently, corners are sharp.) 
"Make a corner with your elbow."  



 
Active Learning-SAUSD After School Enrichment Partner 2015 

5 

 

What is the space in between the two arm bones called? (Angle) 
"Make a corner with your knee." 
"Find another way to make a corner with your body." Find another way to make lots of right angles”. 

 AL instructors integrate Science/Coordinated Health CA standards and Nutrition by teaching: 
 The Human Body, muscles, lungs and heart 
 The Heart Rate 
 Nutrition and it’s affect on personal performance 

 History/Social Science and cultural awareness are taught to children and adolescents through lessons 
about: 
 International History of different cultural dances, music and art.  
 Classical dance styles and art through time.  

 Socio-emotional skills are achieved through character education, team work by: 
 Working in groups, team work 
 Working in partners 
 Independent practice and following instruction 
 Multitasking by creating, following and learning new styles of dance 
 Practicing patience by watching and critiquing others 
 Becoming more self confident by having the opportunity to master skills in a supportive environment 
 Practicing Perseverance by working through different choreography and live performance 
 Learning simple, non-competitive, non-threatening dance choreography 
 Finding an outlet for emotions and behavioral problems 

 
The instructional methods are outlined in our class structures: 

 
Table 1: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

For elementary students, classes are structured in segments to provide meaningful learning that is student centered.  
Classes are separated by grade level spans: Kindergarten to 2nd grade and 3rd-5th grade. Depending on sites however, 
some exceptions are made for combination groups such as Kindergarten-1st, 2nd-3rd graders and 4th-5th graders 
together. For Intermediate schools, classes are 60 minutes and students are usually grouped together.  Individual sites 
may differ and we are happy to accommodate the needs of the students according to the site details. In all classes 
students are taught motor and mental skills in a multitude of formats encompassed with classical and cultural styles for a 
wide variety of fitness and dance education.  By participating in class and working in their journals, each grade level will: 

 
- Discover what they already know about dance and choose a goal of what they want to learn by the end of the 

session.  
- Identify, discuss and demonstrate an understanding of the elements of dance.  
- Create movement patterns by themselves, with partners and/or in groups that will be showcased at the 

performance.  

Elementary/Middle School Schedule 
6-week Agenda 5-Day Week Agenda 45-60 Minutes Class Agenda 

 Week 1-Intro to dance 
workshop 

 Week 2-Fundamental 
skills and technique 

 Week 3-Exploring the 
Elements of Dance 

 Week 4- Applying what 
we learned into 
Choreography 

 Week 5-Creating and 
Critiquing 

 Week 6-Practice and 
Performance 
 

Mondays 
Intro to 
Cultural/Classical Dance 
Tuesdays 
Cultural/Classical Dance 
Wednesdays 
Arts/Crafts Dance Activity 
Thursdays 
Theater-Dance Game 
Family Fridays 
Cultural/Classical Dance 

Introduction-Review  
(Health Standards) 
10 minutes 
Dance Fitness Warm Up 
10 minutes 
CCS-Dance Standard Activity 
15 minutes 
Dance Choreography 
10 minutes 
Cool Down, Stretch-Yoga 
5 minutes 
Review & Journal Art 
(Health/CCS/Dance 
Standards) 
10 minutes 



 
Active Learning-SAUSD After School Enrichment Partner 2015 

6 

 

- Learn brief history and cultural aspects about various dance genres. 
- Critique novice (with classmates) and professional dance performances (either through video, fieldtrip or live 

performers). 
 

Active Learning, use student performance as a means to teach students to grow and develop into performers and 
informed and thoughtful audience members. Students discover through dance that their bodies are capable of expressing 
a multitude of thoughts, ideas and experiences. 
 
2. Elements of High Quality Programming: 

 
Program Leadership: Active Learning's Executive Director and Program Coordinator will oversee individual dance 
teachers per site and continually link with administrators to ensure programs are of the highest quality centered around 
four main elements of the program environment a) Linkages to the school day and positive relationships, b) high quality 
staff c) safe environment and appropriate physical space, d) high interest programming  

 
a) Linkages to the school day: Active Learning (AL) maintains strong collaborative partnerships with the school through 
regularly scheduled meetings, email and other communication means. In order to promote team building, provide 
leadership support, and communicate with staff, the Executive Director and Program Coordinator will  
make and maintain contact with the site principal, site coordinators and school administration to ensure ongoing 
synchronization and parent interaction between the school day and AL programs. 

 
The Executive Director and Program Coordinator will meet with school administration and introduce the assigned dance 
teachers, review the program details that include the desired grade levels and secure a physically safe space on site for 
the activities (usually held in the MPR or Library).  This also acquaints the dance teachers with the site location and space 
details. We also learn the individual school site behavioral procedures and adopt them into our classes to extend behavior 
management into the after school program from what students are learning during the school day. Team leaders will 
frequently visit the site to maintain quality of service and enhance student learning environment. The Executive Director 
and Program Coordinator regularly communicate with site administration  to ensure that procedures and policies for both 
Active Learning and school day staff are working harmoniously together.   

 
The Executive Director will make recurrent visits throughout the 6-week sessions during school year to experience, 
observe and evaluate the activities at the site and to facilitate regular communication with the Program Coordinator and 
school day staff. The Program Coordinator and dance teachers will link with parents and students to create an inviting and 
welcoming program environment for families. During student pick up, the Program Coordinator and dance teachers will 
collaborate with parents on their child(ren)'s behavior and progress and invite them to family dance fitness classes every 
Friday and culminating performances at the end of the 6-week program.   

 
Each site will receive a printed welcome packet, also available online, that includes Active Learning’s outline of 
curriculum with online resources, dance strategies, policies and procedures, journal writing ideas and practice tools for 
students and families to do at home. The lesson tools offered include: custom made music with appropriate content that 
can be downloaded online from the AL website; You Tube video tutorials and an outline of objectives from our curriculum  
aligned with the CA Common Core Standards incorporating Literacy, History/Social Science, Science and Math as well as 
the CA Health and Dance standards. 

 
Our program  policy and procedure standards are adopted from the Generic Mentoring Program Policy and Procedure 
Manual Effective Strategies for Providing Youth Mentoring in Schools and Communities ( Linda Ballasy, Mark Fullop, and 
Michael Garringe Published by: The Hamilton Fish Institute on School and Community Violence &The National Mentoring 
Center at Northwest Regional Educational Laboratory supported by the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency 
Prevention, U.S. Department of Justice, Revised 2007) 

 
One of the cornerstones of Active Learning's program is a policy and procedure manual that provides governance and 
guidance in the delivery of services.  This research-based and best practices manual specifically addresses its purpose, 
rules, and procedures. There are many important facets to administering a quality program and written policies and 
procedures contribute greatly to the long-term stability and safety of our program by:  

 



 
Active Learning-SAUSD After School Enrichment Partner 2015 

7 

 

- Providing documentation of our organization’s vision and operating principles. Providing staff with clear guidelines 
on how to administer a program. Detailed with step-by-step instructions on how to administer our program 
activities and clearly defines staff roles, agency expectations, and routine operating guidelines.  

- Addressing risk management issues. We provide clear and explicit instructions on how every part of our program 
will be administered. Our policy and procedure manual will help eliminate uncertainties concerning how to safely, 
effectively, and consistently run the program.  

- Ensuring consistent operations. By clearly detailing, in writing, how our program is run, we minimize 
organizational knowledge loss and program disruption. 

- Serving as a baseline for continuous improvement. Our program continuously examines its services for 
improvement structure of current program practices.  
 

For school day staff we provide a manual that reflects our policies, which require our classes be held indoors to minimize 
external noise and other distractions, keep equipment clean and offer a safer space and environment for the students to 
allow for floor work during classes.  Each site will differ and certain exceptions to this policy can be made to accommodate 
the student's safety and maximize activities. Classes are structured by developmentally appropriate age groups (K-2; 3-5, 
6, 7-8) and broken up into segments as shown in Table 1.0.  

 
 

b) High Quality Staff:  The Active Learning (AL) teachers lead participants through creative movement, dance and 
physical activities and educate students in various dance genres including technique, footwork and performance. We hold 
the highest standards for the quality in AL staff. Active Learning hires college students and graduates that have 
intentions of working with children and find joy in teaching children. Our teachers get to know their students and modify 
their lessons to meet their needs. Staff expectations and program measurements are continually monitored with varied 
evaluations and assessments at each site, for student growth and AL teacher conduct.  AL expectations are met by 
extensively training and supporting staff so they know what is expected of them  and what their job responsibilities are 
before working with students.   

Active Learning has partnered with local campuses in and around Orange County such as California State Universities, 
Fullerton and Long Beach;  University of California, Irvine and local community colleges that link a teacher certificate 
program with the dance departments such as Orange Coast College, Cypress, Coastline, Santa Ana and Cerritos 
College. In addition we have an ongoing internship program with California State University, Fullerton where interns have 
the opportunity to work with children in dance and gain college credit through various assignments.  We have also 
recently partnered with Santa Ana High school to recruit high school dance students to participate and learn the aspects 
of teaching dance to children from experts.  We have had so much success that two of our former Active Learning 
students are currently assistant teachers in the program. AL participates in seasonal career fairs and also enlists with 
numerous talent agencies. Often, staff report "This is my dream job", "The pay is great!", " I excel in my college courses 
from this work".   

In compliance with the requirements of the Elementary and Secondary Act (NCLB), Active Learning hires committed 
individuals that demonstrate professionalism and instructional vision by attending mandatory monthly professional 
development trainings and seasonal dance/fitness and PE conferences to support and strengthen student learning and 
achievements, which is monitored through program and staff evaluations. Furthermore, teachers are required to follow the 
set curriculum aligned with the Dance, Health and Common Core State Standards along with custom music provided by 
Active Learning as well as write lesson plans, create dance routines and film You Tube video tutorials to showcase their 
choreography. 

 
c) Safe and Appropriate Environment: As a proud  community partner with over 9 years in the SAUSD After School 
Programs and 0% injuries, our physically safe programs are proven by communicating effectively with site administration 
to secure physical space during each enrichment rotation. Our ongoing professional development trainings outline the 
importance of classroom organization and structure, and guide teachers in creating effective classroom management and 
supervision for student's success. The basis to our framework of safety procedures is the sequential operation of our 
program structure and classroom strategies before, during and after: 

 

- Recruit, hire and train qualified teachers: teachers are trained extensively in classroom management and 
organization strategies to capitalize on student learning.  

- Scope out space details: for physical safety, the room must have adequate space for activities to be conducted 
safely. This is usually held in the MPR or Library.  



 
Active Learning-SAUSD After School Enrichment Partner 2015 

8 

 

- Classroom organization-boundaries: equipment such as cones, poly spots, lines and more are used to give 
students a visual understanding of where to stand and what is expected of them while using personal and shared 
space.  

- Classroom management strategies provided and enforced to maximize student learning environment.  
- Supervision enforced with teacher assistants and management 
- Communication with students on safety during class is clearly defined and taught as responsible and respectful 

behavior with rewarding results.  
 

Prior to start date, the Program Coordinator and Executive Director examine each site's physical space and environment 
to ensure it is appropriately equipped for staff members to conduct a range of activities that promote both mental and 
physical wellness of participating students. The main aim is to make sure that students are in a safe, supervised 
environment. Then it is documented that site space is safe, clean, secure and in proper condition for use. Once adequate 
and comfortable space is secured, classroom organization procedures are revised and set up such as boundary markers, 
cones, lines or poly spots are set out to ensure students know where to go and what they are expected to do. Classroom 
management strategies are put into place through extensive staff trainings and best practices. Class is limited by 
age/developmental appropriateness and number of students. The classes are structured by grade level to ensure 
student's learning is maximized and to monitor implementation of best practices. Finally, policy procedures (linked with the 
school day) are communicated to students so they know what is expected of them and what the outcomes are (rewards, 
consequences). Supervision from additional staff is mandated to monitor student behavior and ensure directions are 
followed. Each site will vary in the number of enrichment partners need to comply with the 20:1 ratio, and our extensively 
trained teachers and  assistants will  provide a safe physical and emotional space for each child throughout the entire 
hours of program daily.  
 

Our classroom management techniques have been adopted by many other programs as a source of gathering large 
groups of students and keeping their full attention in a safe, respectful and responsible way. Active Learning requires all 
the teachers to attend mandatory ongoing child development and classroom management trainings to ensure these 
techniques are contemporary and taught within each lesson and class.   In addition, students learn about spatial cognition 
and awareness: participants learn how to safely move in shared and personal space with a stronger sense of body 
awareness. 

 

Active Learning believes the awareness in our bodies can modify behavior and physical sensations.  Do we dance 
differently if we had a tough day or a great day? According to an article in Voice of OC by Tracy Wood released on May 
15, 2011 "A student's well-being is directly tied to achievement," stated Deputy Superintendent Cathie Olsky. "If you don't 
feel good, you're not going to do good."  

 

Active Learning was born to create an emotionally supportive and safe environment for students.  From the first day of 
class, teachers automatically set the tone of a learning environment for students and reward them for their participation 
and having fun. Children and adolescents also have the chance to perform for families and their peers. They learn the role 
of being an audience member and that of a performer. Together they share and support each other in performance and 
participation. Moreover, students gain the freedom of self expression through movement as a stress relief for psycho-
somatic wellness. Dance is a fun activity for children and adolescents and having fun is good for everyone. The positive 
social impact and connections students make with their peers in class also helps them develop an excellent sense of 
team work and socialization in a healthy environment while exercising. This helps students learn about lifetime fitness 
habits through group exercise and dance.  

 
Furthermore, AL instructors are here to encourage the development of leadership and critical-thinking skills for the future 
by utilizing a technique called Spaces.  

 
- Inner Space -self awareness and self esteem; activities taught to orient a child towards getting to know more 

about him/herself (ex. aerobic dance. How does my body feel? What does the activity do for the body?) 
- Outer Space-facing the unknown, creativity, problem-solving, creativity; encourages the explorer within a child 

(ex. throwing for distance. Throw a variety of different objects such as a ball, feather, scarf, paper airplane or ball 
of paper. Which object goes the greatest distance and why? Have kids measure and record distances. Does the 
person throwing the object affect the distance; does it matter if the activity is done inside or out?) 

- Shared Space- creates opportunities for socialization and teamwork. How space is shared independently or in a 
group, resolve conflicts, use communication;(ex. Playing in a small circle with everyone standing as close 
together as possible. What happens when too many people try to share the same space?) 



 
Active Learning-SAUSD After School Enrichment Partner 2015 

9 

 

In every domain of development, there should be an awareness and emphasis on developing each of the spaces within a 
child. Spaces provides a perspective for looking at the world and preparing kids for a high-tech and global future. When 
we choose activities that also meet the developmental needs of the individual child, we are promoting optimal growth and 
development. 

d) High Interest Programming: Active Learning identifies needs assessment and design a system to uphold a benchmark 
of quality learning services for student achievement and healthy lifestyles. One effective method used to recruit students 
for after school enrollment (since 2006) is the lunch time performances we offer. After a thrilling and colorful dance 
showcase, teachers interact with the student body through incentives and mass enrollment form distributions that have 
proven to raise ADA numbers for SAUSD after school programs. For more than 9 years Active Learning has serviced 
SAUSD schools, our class attendances have always exceeded the 85% goal at all sites. The offering of such programs 
has proven to raise and maintain attendance numbers throughout the year. 

Our innovative games, lessons and modern music and movement activities attract students of all ages. In addition, we 
incorporate object manipulation into creative classical & cultural dance styles to give children and adolescents a chance to 
learn a variety of skills that will enhance the development of their individuality and unique characters. Many schools 
currently use AL services as a reward incentive for student achievement. With successful completion of the program, 
children develop a positive sense of self as well as a healthy physical and emotional outlook.  Furthermore, we offer 
incentives that motivate students to come back such as awards for achievement. Our progressive curriculum builds each 
week, giving students the chance to excel in technique and various specialized skills in dance.   

Parents are proud to have their children participate with AL for many reasons: safety after school with an emphasis on 
health and fitness education, body awareness, socialization skills, relief of stress through movement, cultural, musical and 
performing art appreciation as well as having fun. Parents see the growth of their children's skills at the family dance days 
and during the culminating performances. Students showcase what they learned each week and present their dance 
journals that highlight English-language skills and creative art expression..  

MacArthur Fundamental reached out to AL to ensure program existence for 2012 Spring. With an upcoming visit from the 
CA Dept. of Education Portola Intermediate school in Orange, sought after our support to recruit and maintain attendance 
in the after school program.  We were brought in for one month and grew a dance program that began with 11 students on 
day one to 37 in a matter of 4 weeks.  Principals valued the immediate connection we made with the students, that they 
have partnered with us to provide seasonal award dance assemblies.  CA Department of Education representative 
enjoyed the dance class so much that he participated for the full hour and had only positive comments to report about the 
program.  

 
We pride ourselves with the uniqueness of setting healthy trends in schools and communities by updating our music, 
movements, lessons and games to the most contemporary styles that currently define the culture. AL teachers make an 
impressive appearance, appropriately uniformed in T-shirts and use the latest cartoon characters and media fads to 
enhance their lessons.   In addition we provide a class structure that offers suspenseful cliff hangers each week to attract 
students' return and participation in the evolving curriculum with culminating events to showcase their progress, such as 
student performances in local parks or that are linked to You Tube, presentations by guest artists, healthy incentives and 
supportive awards.   

 
3. Organizational Design 

 
Capacity: Active Learning staff recruitment and retention is based on 3 main topics: a) program recruitment and hiring 
process; b) staff retention strategies and c) staff reviews.  

 

a) Program Recruitment and Hiring Process: Active Learning has the capacity to recruit and hire staff through local 
universities and community college partnerships with dance, performing arts, Kinesiology and education departments. 
As a resource to AL, Orange Coast College, CSU, Fullerton & Long Beach, Chapman University, University of 
California, Irvine and Cypress Community College refer approximately 10-20 students, graduates and interns per 
semester as potential new hires and volunteers.  Colleges also invite AL to recruit at seasonal career fairs. Resumes 
and job descriptions are available to SAUSD upon request.  

 
b) Staff Retention Strategies: All of the staff describe an enjoyment of working with children and express that their job 
is a positive experience. Active Learning has had 85% of recurring staff applying to work in the same position and 



 
Active Learning-SAUSD After School Enrichment Partner 2015 

10 

 

100% renewal of re-hire with 40% maintained as active staff at current status, since 2006. Moreover, the majority of 
our recruitment and retention is from our very own staff which has enlisted 80% rate of new hires since 2006. AL 
teachers are so proud of their job, supporting student achievement and joy through dance; they constantly share any 
open job opportunities with their peers and colleagues. Moreover, we take pride in supporting our staff with: 

 Ongoing trainings and online resources (staff portal on website, custom music, lessons and classroom 
management strategies)  

 Offering academic credit and competitive salaries,   
 Providing collaboration with management and direct service staff  
 And an office library of equipment and educational tools to encourage creativity in lesson planning 

strategies. 
 

 c) Staff Reviews: Staff expectations and program measurements are continually monitored with varied evaluations 
and assessments at each site, for student growth and AL teacher conduct. AL expectations are met by extensively 
training and supporting staff so they know what is expected of them  and what their job responsibilities are before 
working with students.   

 

Staff Absence and Substitute Policy: In education we connect students to aspects of their culture. Active Learning 
teachers find rewards in serving the Santa Ana community, which is composed 60% of English learners.  The fulfillment of 
connecting with students on a weekly basis creates a consistent relationship and establishes trust between the student 
and teacher. Instructor commitment and attendance is strongly enforced to comply with AL standards of excellence and 
expectations. In addition, our strategic placement of multiple instructors per site with assistants and substitute teachers 
maintain the 20:1 ratio and student's learning environment with consistent lessons.  In the event in which a staff member 
is absent, classes are substituted by AL on call staff and Program Coordinator. For successful program implementation, 
teamwork is emphasized with AL staff and school day to work together for effective conflict resolutions. Consistent 
communication between the Executive Director, Program Coordinator, dance teachers and school day staff will help 
maintain a collaborative atmosphere both within the school day and with the after school programs.  

 

Professional Development:  AL teachers attend weekly professional development trainings to review and develop in the 
following ways: 

- Creating and implementing comprehensive lesson plans to strengthen student achievement that are 
developmentally appropriate and aligned with the K-8 CA Common Core Standards.  

- Gain an understanding of and practice hands-on classroom management skills, etiquette and professionalism 
in the school environment.  

- Exposure to varied dance styles, teaching methods and working with other specialists in dance. (team 
teaching and mentors, master teachers and artists)  

- Gain practical experiences that focus on establishing relationships with children and developing guidance  
and collaboration techniques in facilitating learning.  

- Creatively express their talent, skills and passion by mentoring younger generations and by teaching dance 
as a profession.   

  

Active Learning also offers contracted professional development trainings to classroom teachers, program leaders, site 
directors and parents as requested. By providing in-services for parents, teachers, administrators and more we teach 
them developmentally appropriate, realistic and simple ways of implementing daily physical activity, fitness and dance into 
education and exercising at school, work and home! 

 

Communications/Information Dissemination:  Active Learning program offerings, evaluations and research-based 
measurements are shared  bi-annually with local partners in the community, through meetings, conferences, special 
events and workshops; posted on AL website and social media; provided to SAUSD and Santa Ana agency partnerships. 
Some community partners that we have worked with are OCDE-After School ASES programs, ONEOC,  NuPAC 
(Nutrition and Physical Activity Coalition of OC), Network for a Healthy CA-OC County of Health Services, KID Healthy,  
Community Action Partnership of OC, Active Learning Advisory Council Members, The Heritage Museum of OC,  The 
City of Santa Ana, Anaheim City USD, Boys and Girls clubs of Santa Ana, Anaheim Achieves,  Orange County Head 
Start, Molina Healthcare-Inland Empire, TheStudioOC-Santa Ana, and many more.  AL's Social Media Coordinator 
updates current performance results of program on website and other media outlets such as Active Learning Facebook 
and You Tube.  

 

Evaluation results are shared with local partners, school personnel and parents through journals, performances and 
newsletters. One of the ways we implement the CA Common Core Standards is by encouraging journal writing and 
presentations on student's behalf; which are showcased in a culminating event/performance at the end of each semester.  
Parents, school personnel and community partners are invited to see the results of the program content, which are 



 
Active Learning-SAUSD After School Enrichment Partner 2015 

11 

 

physically demonstrated and presented with student produced journals.  Bi-annual newsletters are delivered to community 
partners and school personnel through email to highlight success in achieving CA state mandated PE minutes, ADA 
increases, English-Language skills and motor and mental skill enrichment. Sites are encouraged to include newsletters 
with parent letters and announcements.   

 

Volunteers: Active Learning has partnerships with local organizations such as ONEOC-volunteer center of OC, varied 
universities and community colleges in dance, performing arts, social services and education departments. Annual career 
fairs at the local college and university campuses invite AL to  recruit potential volunteers and interns. Interns receive 
semester academic credit and volunteers build personal resumes.  

 

Volunteers are invited to attend the monthly professional development trainings with potential for hire. In addition, they 
may be required to assist Program Coordinator with basic administrative duties and provide support to the assigned 
dance teachers on site.  Part of the orientation process with AL, is for volunteers to shadow and assist master teachers at 
sites, help manage classes and perform dance choreography.  
 

We also invite teachers and parents to volunteer daily in our programs. Opening up classes in the afterschool program to 
parents, will give us the opportunity to communicate openly with each other in order to measure and assess the best 
possible practices for student growth at school, at home and in the community. Furthermore, parents will have a firsthand 
view on the safety of their children during the program and will also have the opportunity to build trusting relationships 
based on respect, responsibility and results.  
 
4. Program Evaluation 
 

Active Learning's dance education program strives for continuous improvement. Our evaluation plan is based around the 
Seven Building Blocks to SAUSD Success, preparing all students to be college and career ready. AL program 
expectations are clear, specific and overt so students know what is being asked of them and their achievements are 
tangible. Furthermore, after each lesson, unit, semester or year, we make any adjustments to improve student learning 
experiences. The evaluation plan runs in a series of 6-week daily programs per school year. It contains multiple measures 
to assess what SAUSD students per each grade level (K-8) know and can do with respect to various dance and fitness 
genres, aligned with the elements of dance and CA Dance Standards.  

 

Active Learning utilizes periodic evaluations to identify program strengths and weaknesses throughout the school year 
as they are critical for the sustainability of the program, an instrument to inform constant self-improvement and evidence 
of program outcomes. We administer regular assessments to ensure continuous improvement and measure program 
effectiveness centered on a detailed plan for evaluation of program activities, staff performance, and student 
development. These are comprised on five assessment indicators 1) Method of evaluation for staff performance; 2) 
Method of evaluation for program activities; 3) Method of evaluation for student engagement; 4) Evaluation of students’ 
improvement on academic achievement (based on the CA Dance Standards); and 5) Evaluation findings are used for 
program improvement.  

 

Clear Focus on Learning:  
 AL Methods 2) 3) 4) & 5) Evaluation findings are used for program activities,  student engagement and 

achievement with  reinforcement of academic achievement in our educational curriculum aligned with the 
California Dance and Health standards integrated multi-disciplinary subjects with Common Core Standards.  

 Data Sources Used: both quantitative-rubrics and scales as well as qualitative-surveys on lesson objectives, 
activities, attitudes, personal interviews, observations and journals.  

 What is Measured:  Rubrics for performance objectives- skills mastered based on standards and scales to 
measure academic achievement improvement. Survey responses on attitudes-motivation of students behavior to 
attend, participate and perform, personal interviews-what students enjoy most about class structure, 
observations- progress in skills and journals-connecting to the CCS, English-language development, literacy and 
elements of dance.  

 How Used To Determine Success: Pre and post tests will be administered at the beginning and end of the 
session as well as daily observations and self reflection  journals to be implemented and monitored. May be used 
with a focus group.  

 

Comprehensive Accountability:  
 AL Methods1) 2)  3) 4) & 5) Evaluation for program activities and for staff performance: growth of technical skills 

in dance, motor, mental  and social skills, emotions and cognitive development with respect to movement.  
 Data Sources Used: both quantitative-rubrics as well as qualitative-surveys on lesson objectives, observations 

and journals.  



 
Active Learning-SAUSD After School Enrichment Partner 2015 

12 

 

 What is Measured:  Rubrics for skill improvements based on CA Dance Standards; Survey responses on lesson 
objectives, observations- progress in skills and journals-connecting to the CCS, English-language development, 
literacy, elements of dance and Health content standards.  

 How Used To Determine Success: Pre and Post tests will be administered at the beginning and end of the 
session, as well as weekly surveys, observations and journals to be implemented and monitored on a daily basis.  
May be used with a focus group.  
 

Climate:  
 AL Methods 1), 2) 3)& 5) Evaluation findings are used for program activities, improvement and for staff 

performance:  Monitor class structure and environment, staff supervision, policy and regulations: Respect, 
Responsibility, Results.   

 Data Sources Used: both quantitative-rubrics as well as qualitative-surveys on lesson objectives and 
observations.  

 What is Measured:  Rubrics on after-school safety:  1) Program space that is safe, clean and secure; 2) System 
is in place that keeps unauthorized people from taking students from the program; and 3) Students are carefully 
supervised. Survey responses on staff and student attitudes, observations on supervision and space.  

 How Used To Determine Success: Extensive professional development trainings with an emphasis on 
classroom management, AL policies, student safety, class structure and environment are monitored regularly.  

 

Capital:  
 Methods 1), 2) & 5) Evaluation findings are used for program activities, improvement and for staff performance:  

Identifies the resources necessary for high quality program outcomes. 
 Data Sources Used: both quantitative-rubrics as well as qualitative-surveys on supplies necessary for program 

operation. 
 What is Measured:  Analysis based on program operation including in-direct and direct services, physical 

supplies (i.e. music, art, equipment/props) and needs assessment on professional development trainings for staff 
progress, fund allocation-what is most cost effective and strategies to lower costs. Site monitored to verify needs 
assessment for equipment and staff training.  

 How Used To Determine Success: Pre and post budget analysis will be conducted at the beginning and end of 
each 6-week session as well as the school year. We will administer quarterly reports on needs assessment and 
fund allocation that determine most cost effective strategies for program quality.  

 

Communication:  
 Methods  2) 3) 4) & 5) Evaluation findings are used for program activities,  student engagement and 

achievement.     
 Data Sources Used: both quantitative-rubrics as well as qualitative-surveys on lesson objectives, activities and 

observations.  
 What is Measured:  Rubrics for skill improvements based on CA Dance and Health standards. Survey responses 

on elements of dance and observations- progress in  performance skills in technical specialized movement in 
dance and fitness; progression in fitness levels per grade level: cardiovascular, strength, flexibility and endurance 
training that focuses on teaching students ways to be active for a lifetime to strengthen a unified message and 
broaden the awareness of healthier lifestyles for the whole family.  

 How Used To Determine Success: Pre and post tests will be administered at the beginning and end of the 
session as well as daily observations to be implemented and monitored..  May be used with a focus group.  

 

Community and Parent Involvement: 
 Methods 1), 4) & 5) Evaluation findings are used for program activities, improvement and for staff performance: 

Implications of parent and family involvement. Culminating dance performances and family exercise classes will 
be held to promote togetherness and socialization skills at school sites and through community events.  
Partnerships with City of Santa Ana, Toyoma Karate Doe, American Cancer Society, SAUSD Parent Conference, 
Dad’s University, Network for a Healthy CA, OC Healthcare Agency, KIDHealthy, CAPOC, as well as 
stakeholders invited to performances and student performances at community events. 

 Data Sources Used: both quantitative-rubrics as well as qualitative-surveys on performance objectives and 
lessons to increase parent-child togetherness in program. 

 What is Measured:  Rubrics for attendance with respect to parent/family involvement. Survey responses from 
parents’ attitudes towards student achievement, physical and emotional wellness and socialization skills.  

 How Used To Determine Success: Pre and post tests will be administered at the beginning and end of the 
session, observations to be implemented and monitored on a daily basis.  May be used with a focus group. Clear 
and concise reports will be administered to all stakeholders through quarterly reports, including background 



 
Active Learning-SAUSD After School Enrichment Partner 2015 

13 

 

information, all evaluation questions and descriptions, how data was analyzed, findings and conclusion with 
recommendations.  

 

Commitment and Capacity:  
 Methods 1), 2) & 5) Evaluation for staff performance and program activities. Assess number and type of 

mandated professional development trainings and monitor staff instruction to secure that staff competency is 
thriving for student success.  

 Data Sources Used: both quantitative-rubrics as well as qualitative-surveys on staff attitudes and regular self-
reflection and employee performance assessments.   

 What is Measured:  Rubrics for skill improvements based on developmentally appropriate activities for students, 
using CA Dance Standards, regular PBIS trainings, classroom management on safety and supervision, AL 
policies and standards.  Survey responses on program, support, performance and professional development 
trainings and observations to monitor and reward staff success in implementing student-learning environment. 

 How Used To Determine Success: Pre and post tests will be administered at the beginning and end of each 
training to measure student-learning outcomes, as well as ongoing observations at site to verify implementation of 
program goals based on AL policies and standards.  
 

Active Learning's targeted  audience is intended for SAUSD with approximately 60% of students as English learners. 
Our purpose is to identify students’ engagement and achievement in technical motor skill competency and specialized 
movement in dance, as well as social skill development and joy of participation. This is especially important in 
documenting program outcomes. Overall satisfaction evaluations are also assessed among staff, students, and families 
and shared with SAUSD to ensure that expectations and the needs of all program participants are being met. Evaluation 
findings are consistently reviewed and made readily available in order to examine program progress. 
 

5. General Budget Information 
 

 



 
Active Learning-SAUSD After School Enrichment Partner 2015 

14 

 

Direct Services 
20:1 Adult to 
Student Ratio 

Elementary Based on 774 
Students 

Middle Based on 112 
Students 

 
Direct Services per year 

13 Enrichment Providers 
per Team of Sites 

2 Enrichment Providers per 
Team of Sites 

Expert Artists in 
Dance and Fitness 
Education 

  

 
134 regular days (4 hours) = 

536 hours 
137 regular days (4 hours) = 

548 hours 177 school days 

43 modified days (5 hours) = 
215 hours 

40 modified days (5 hours) = 
200 hours 5 days per week 

751 hours total 748 hours total 35.4 weeks 
751 hours/35.4 weeks 748 hours/35.4 weeks $292687.20 (elementary) 
21.2 hours per week 21.1 hours per week $44816.40 (Intermediate) 

$30/hour x 21.2 hours 
=$636/week $30/hour x 21.1 =$633/week 

 

$636 week (35.4 weeks) = 
$22514.40 

$633 week (35.4 weeks) = 
$22408.20 

$22514.40 (13 teachers) = 
$292687.20 

$22408.20 (2 teachers) = 
$44816.40 

Total Direct Services per year $337503.60 

In-Direct Services 
Oversight  Salary Total Percent 

 
Executive Director 1.0 FTE 

per year $51394 (10%) 

Total In-Direct Services per year $51394 

Statutory & other 
Employee Benefits Description Cost Total per year 

Payroll taxes 

Includes payroll, Social 
Security, Medical, Federal 

and State taxes per employee 
per year. 

7.65% federal,  6.55% medical, 
12.79% employer $91,092.22 

Workman's comp. 
and Insurance  3.33% $54,772.58 

Fingerprint & TB per school year for each 
employee, interns, volunteers $54/FP and  $22 TB $4,740 

Total Statutory & Other Benefits $150605 



 
Active Learning-SAUSD After School Enrichment Partner 2015 

15 

 

Professional 
Development Description Cost Total per year 

Classroom 
Management/Child 

Development 
Teacher Trainings 

160 hours per teacher based 
on 25 teachers per school 

year 

41 hours ($12/hour) = $912   
$492 (15 teachers) = $7,380.00 

Contracted Services Specialists/Artists to train staff 
on curriculum 

$150/expertise choreographers;   
3 trainings per school year (3 to 

4 hours each) 
$450.00 

CPR  $90 per teacher $0 
Total Professional Development $7830 

Supplies & 
Equipment Description Cost Total per year 

General school and 
art supplies 

Journal and Art supplies to 
correspond with dance 

curriculum.  Includes paper, 
markers, pencils, glue, 

notebooks based on 774 
elementary students and 112 
intermediate per rotation, total 

6 rotations per year 

886 students per rotation (6 
rotation) = 5316 students             

$1.12/per child (5316 students) 
=$6000.00 

$6,000.00 

Object 
Manipulatives 

to correspond with curriculum. 
Includes scarves, bean bags, 

hula hoops 
$0.00 $0.00 

Transportation not applicable $0.00 $0.00 

General operating 

Music, USB/Aux Cables, 
Incentives for students; 

Copies/Print (Evaluations, 
Surveys, Parent Newsletters, 
SC and Site communication 

(i.e. schedules) 

5316 students per school year 
($2.25 per child) = $12000.00 $12,000.00 

Total Supplies & Equipment $18000 

 

Total Direct $337,504 
Total In Direct $51,394 

Total Statutory & Other Benefits $150,605 

Total Professional Development $7,830 

Total Supplies & Equipment $18,000 

Grand Total per Year $565,333 

 



 
Active Learning-SAUSD After School Enrichment Partner 2015 

16 

 

 
 
Costs per Participant per Day 
We strive to give students the opportunities to explore self expression, relive pressures of daily life and to learn a lifestyle 
of health and fitness through dance.  Our goal is to maintain dance exercise classes in all schools so students grow with 
the skills to be fit and healthy for life. In order to make this happen we provide our services at lower costs. Based on 774 
children per elementary site the cost per child is $3.13 per day or $1.57 per hour and for 112 intermediate students the 
cost is $2.37 per day or $1.19 per hour.  We want to help students learn through movement and dance, because it works.  

 
Adequate Resources Per Site 
Active Learning uses little or no equipment so that students are sure to succeed. More than 9 years of service with 
SAUSD is evidence that there is a commitment of adequate resources per site for all participants in the after school 
program. All we need is space and the students; we will make the rest happen. For almost a decade, we have been 
serving all sites and continue to make it most convenient so that students have the chance to achieve, have fun and 
exercise.    

 
The expenditures and spending costs to support program goals are fundamental to this organization. We feature the most 
current, up-to-date music and media trends as a vehicle to capture students' interests and guide them to what's really 
important, their health. To master this expertise and exploit pop culture, we devote necessary time in research, 
customizing and analyzing music and curriculum to make it appropriate and exceed student expectations. Children learn 
through association and music plays a significant role in sensory influence.  Furthermore, our unique object manipulative 
activities inspire innate imagination and creativity is awakened. Our students learn fundamental physical skills in sports to 
the rhythm of musical beats, such as basketball hip hop, salsa soccer, kitchen calisthenics and animation station.  

 
Active Learning offers many opportunities to provide in-kind services including grants, volunteers, services, and 
resources. Pending SAUSD approval, AL’s goal for 2015-2016 school year is to pilot, document and measure student 
growth in published literature to be used as a model for sustainability and effective dance-fitness education for schools 
world-wide. Perspective donors highly consider funding our services due to the proven effects our program has on student 
success. We currently have been approved to provide services within the following categories: academic enrichment, 
health and wellness, mental health, physical health, PE, dance-performing arts, education, child development and early 
literacy through 21st Century, Prop 49, Title 1 and discretionary funds.  Since Health content standards and nutrition 
messages with physical activities are integrated in all our lessons, we also apply for funding through the Network for a 
Healthy CA.  

 
Other in-kind services and resources include but are not limited to: services and resources estimated at $57,385 that 

consist of:   

- Annual community events such as SAUSD Parent Conference, Dad’s University,  and other events 
highlighting student performances and dance competitions, Party in the Park. This FREE event  held in 
Santa Ana each year, brings awareness to local parks and resources and  encourages family togetherness in 
dance and fitness through fun filled activities like Zumba, yoga, field games, and music. 

- Annual visit, tour and presentation to California State University Fullerton:  Each year we are invited to 
highlight students from one elementary or intermediate school at CSU, Fullerton’s conference Arts at the 
Center of the 21

st
 Century Education.   Families will be chosen from an SAUSD school to come out enjoy a 

tour of the college campus, enjoy a delicious lunch and perform as the main attraction.  
- Promotional Lunch Assemblies and Professional Dance Performances at Intermediate schools and 

special events.  
- Operational, qualified Active Learning staff- Professionally trained, degreed/certified dancers, 

choreographers, and experts in their fields as well as interns and volunteers. 
- Comprehensive lessons- developmentally appropriate for children of various ages that build on each other 

for a culminating activity at end of program; 
- Dance Recital- Each site will end with a culminating activity and performance where children will have the 

opportunity to showcase their hard work and journals.  
- Photography/Video- Each dance recital is photographed and videotaped and by the end of each session, 

the site will receive a video footage compiled with pictures and video of the students.  
- Overtime- help children finalize performances; practice and feel comfortable before recital; 



 
Active Learning-SAUSD After School Enrichment Partner 2015 

17 

 

- Resources- for site administrators including, lessons, You Tube videos, access to custom music online & 
much more; 

- Costumes- Children will have the opportunity to make costumes for dance performances. 
- Travel and planning time- ED and PC will rotate and manage sites to ensure standards are met. 
- Assessments and evaluations to measure children’s needs and abilities, as well as, outcomes of instruction 

.Evaluations and research based surveys  
- Guest choreographers, professional dance crews and performances; (program is not limited to dance; 

professional singers and actors also come out for special events, etc.) 
- Rewards and incentive items for students: Costumes T-shirts, CD's, hats, DVD's etc. 

6. Success and Sustainability 
 

Record of Success:  Active Learning has partnered with a vast number of school districts and Community Based 
Organizations for over 16 years throughout California. Our programs are currently reaching great success in local school 
districts that include:  
 

 SAUSD, Anaheim City, Centralia, Ocean View, La Habra City, Capistrano Unified, Huntington Beach Union High, 
Orange, Irvine, Newport-Mesa, and early childhood programs- Head Start, School Readiness, Kinder-Readiness.  
 

Santa Ana Community Involvement and Success 
 
Parent/Family Success 
 

Santa Ana High School Dance Programs: Odalys Sanchez is a former dance student from Active Learning’s classes 
in both her elementary (Garfield) and intermediate (Villa) SAUSD schools and is currently a sophomore student at SA 
High and on the dance team.  In partnership with SA High Dance department director, Odalys learned of a job with Active 
Learning and is currently serving as an assistant teacher in our program.  She is the second student turned into teacher 
from our classes.  “I’m living my dream” says Odalys on March 10, 2015.  
 
Party in the Park: We sponsor annual events in the City of Santa Ana. AL creates, sponsors, and directs FREE and 
healthy community events to promote the health and wellness through dance and fitness for the entire family. Santa Ana 
residents and SAUSD students are thrilled to participate in this annual event. The 2012 Video footage was submitted  to 
Let's Move! Campaign: communities on the move- video challenge. SAUSD students still approach us with positive 
memories from the event.  
 
KID Healthy-Parent/Teen Mendez Exercise Classes:  Exercise classes held at Mendez Fundamental during evenings 
lost capacity to retain the instructor and began losing attendance in the scheduled program. Active Learning supported 
KID Healthy, by taking over the program without delay. Bi-lingual instructors were recruited, hired and raised overall 
attendance for a total of 5 months from 11/2011-4/2012. Classes became so popular, parents brought in pre teens and 
teens to join.  

2015 Community Events and In-Kind Services 

 April 2015 SAUSD Dad’s University 
 May 2015 Relay for Life, American Cancer Society Santa Ana College, dance warm up 
 March 21, 2015 Party in the Park 2  Memorial Park Santa Ana 
 March 14, 2015 21st Annual Parent Conference: Villa Fundamental  
 May 1, 2015  Valley View High:  High School Inc. Health Academy Wellness Conference 
 2015-2016 SAUSD Wellness Committee volunteer  
 January 24, 2015 Presented CSUF Arts at the Center of the 21st Century Education Conference 

Check out the footage of Monroe Students Performing:  https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3adIOtt7yHU 
 2014-2015 Toyoma Partnership:  FREE Zumba Classes for SAUSD Families Every Saturday  

Other In-Kind Services  

 February 2, 2012  Party in the Park 1 El Salvador Park 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3adIOtt7yHU


 
Active Learning-SAUSD After School Enrichment Partner 2015 

18 

 

       Check out the footage of SAUSD families:  https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=NOibB_NTSJ8 
 2013 Donated a 6-weeks Series of Family Dance Classes at SAUSD Taft Elementary funded by Dizzy Feet Grant  
 2011-2012  Donated exercise classes at Mendez Fundamental for SAUSD parents and teens 
 May, 1 2011 Donated a full day of dance and exercise for Valley View High:  High School Inc. Health Academy 

Wellness Conference 
 2010-2011 Donated dance classes for Century and Valley View High 

 
School Education Success 

 2015 Certificate Of Participation CSUF Arts at the Center of the 21st Century Education Conference 
 2014 National Community Leadership Award President’s Council on Fitness, Sports & Nutrition 
 2013 Certificate of Recognition SAUSD After School Programs 
 Nominated for Community Leader of the Year by UCI.  
 2011 Certificate of Appreciation SAUSD Valley View 
 2011 Certificate of Appreciation SAUSD High School Inc. Health Academy Wellness 
 2010 Certificate of Participation International Federation of Physical Education Oceania Conference 
 2008 Hip Hop Dance Award Commonwealth Elementary School 
 2006-2007 Appreciation Award for Partnership and Support SAUSD After School Education and Safety Program. 
 2006 International Dance and Fitness Award Training of Trainers NFC - NESTA 
 2005 Innovator Of The Year OCDE CAHPERD 
 2004 Excellence in Health and Physical Education SAUSD Kinder Readiness Program. 

 
 OCDE & CAHPERD: Working with over 11 OC school districts and after presenting best practices at the CA 

conference for Health, PE, Recreation and Dance, Hiba Shublak AL Executive Director, was honored by the OC 
Department of Education with an award Innovator of the Year in 2005 for methods of using hip hop music as an 
exercise tool to get students moving and having fun. 

 SAUSD Success:  Since 2003 till present time, Active Learning has provided a multitude of dance, physical 
activities and education in SAUSD.  Beginning with early childhood, we taught safe and developmentally 
appropriate physical education to all Kinder Readiness sites in the district coupled with teacher trainings for 
sustainability and received an Award for Excellence in Health and Physical Education.  In 2006, we launched 
the after school dance education program that started with 9 intermediate sites and received a plaque of 
Partnership and Support of SAUSD's After School Education and Safety Program. With continued success 
in the middle schools and by popular demand,  we've expanded into all 36 elementary schools.  In 2009-2010, AL 
donated in-services with Century (2 days) and Valley (1 day/week for 1 school year 2010-2011) High school in 
dance education and received a Certificate of Appreciation for dedication.    

 Commonwealth Elementary: In 2008, AL choreographed, taught and directed a school wide dance performance 
for grades K-6 and received a Hip Hop Award for appropriate dance education in elementary schools.  The PE 
teacher brought us back every year thereafter, and we were honored with several certificates in dance 
performance until he retired. 

 Gauer Elementary: We currently visit the Kinder and 1st grade classrooms annually to provide a grade level 
seasonal performance and have received certificates of appreciation since 2009. 

Stakeholder Feedback Within the past 7 years, Active Learning has collected  thousands of surveys from its 
stakeholders, including district and program administration, principals, parents and students. Active Learning uses this 
feedback to inform program development efforts at both the site and organization levels. The data feedback is reflected at 
staff meetings and used to plan goals that will to continue opportunities for student growth. 

 
District Liaisons: Over 91% of District Liaisons have indicated that they are satisfied or strongly satisfied on all of the 
following indicators: program organization, safety, alignment with district expectations, professionalism of staff, Innovation, 
maximizing student learning, managing student behavior and the quality of the academic components integrated into 
dance. 

 
School Principals: 87% of principals reported that Active Learning curriculum and instruction reinforces concepts 
taught during the school day. Nearly one-third of principals partner with AL to provide health reward assemblies for 
students. 

 "Tyler has so much positive energy that rubs off on the children it is awesome. He is professional and fun at the 
same time. He gets the students active while they are learning" 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=NOibB_NTSJ8


 
Active Learning-SAUSD After School Enrichment Partner 2015 

19 

 

 
 "Allie's been great and she displays great classroom management over the students and keeps them engaged.  

She forms organized lines and is able to connect with the kids which I am deeply appreciative of. " 
 

Parents: 86% of parents strongly believe that their child is more confident since coming to Active Learning classes. 
 

 "I thought my daughter hated exercise until she took these classes!" 
 “I am a parent and the principal at Lowell Elementary, and I have been positively impacted by Active Learning”  

 
Students: Nearly two-thirds of students report that the program has helped them learn how to do dance, make friends, 
practice self efficacy and do things they never thought they could. 89% of elementary and middle school students say that 
the program helps them do better in school, because they feel healthier and look forward to dance after school. 95% of 
elementary and middle school students say that the program is a safe place for them to be afterschool. 

 
 "I really like this program. In dance class I feel more confident and my self esteem is higher. I am so glad it came 

to my school and hope all the kids get to try it! " 
 "I taught my cousins the moves I learned" 
 "When we have ideas for a dance she pays attention to us, and that makes me feel better." 
 "I wish the program was longer because with the steps you learn math, angles and it's fun!" 
 "Thank you for teaching me dances, because dancing is my dream!" 

 
Articles of Success: Feature Articles in Newspapers and Magazines: (copies available upon request) 

 Orange County Register -4 times  
 Costa Mesa Daily Pilot- 3 times 
 Japan Fitness News- 1 time 
 Orange Coast Magazine-1 time 
 Anaheim Tribune-2 times 
 Kost 103.5 and KBIG 104- Radio Interview 2005 
 Channel 7 ABC Eyewitness news- On behalf of Network for a Healthy CA- Physical Activity 3 times 2005-2008 
 Local Orange County channel featuring Santa Ana School District, Boys and Girls clubs of Santa Ana and PA-

2005-2009 
 

Sustainability Plan:  AL focuses on the individuality of the student through its curriculum.  We aim for each child to leave 
our classes academically better equipped, physically more fit and emotionally more connected to himself, family and 
community. Our goal is to prepare these children to peak as healthy and successful citizens. Our continuous efforts in 
strengthening our partnership with SAUSD and expanding throughout the district will increase healthy behaviors lifestyles 
for Santa Ana community.  
 
Some of the partners that Active Learning links with Santa Ana to showcase student growth are community based 
organizations such as Toyoma Karate, the Boys &Girls clubs, YMCA, Delhi-Center. Our continuous efforts in networking 
and to strengthen the partnerships include support in local health awareness fairs, SAUSD specific events and local 
conferences.  We have recently connected with the Heritage Museum of OC and where we have been operating our 
monthly Advisory Council meetings. We have also partnered together to plan a special event for summer program and 
SAUSD students to experience the history of OC through movement and exercise. Children will have the chance to re-
enact the Gold Rush, learn square and folk dances of CA natives and Native Americans all while learning about the 
cultural and natural history of Orange County.  

 
Conclusion 
 
 Active Learning lessons engage all aspects of learning: cognitive (“I know”); affective (“I feel”); and psychomotor (“I 
experience and do”). We believe every child and youth can develop appropriate skills, feel good about his or her body, 
and relate to others in positive ways. Founded in 1999, Active Learning's vision was to incorporate a sanctuary in the 
school setting, that models healthy behaviors, allowing individuals to recognize their inner strengths and infinite talents 
with trusted mentors. Since 2006, SAUSD After School Program has supported this vision into fruition.  Active Learning 
bestows absolute acknowledgment and the caliber of partnering together. Collectively we continue to increase the 
capacity of students growth and self efficacy.  
 



 
Active Learning-SAUSD After School Enrichment Partner 2015 

20 

 

Active Learning's Founder and Executive Director, Hiba Shublak has read and agrees to comply with the following 
stipulations listed below and located in RFP:# 15-15. All documents including Limited Indemnification and Hold Harmless, 
Insurance, Workman's Compensation, Fingerprinting are available on request.  
 

 Terms and Conditions 
 Failure to Comply with Instructions 
 Withdrawal and Question of Proposal 
 Protest of Award 
 Cost of Proposal Preparation 
 Previous Performance 
 Competency of Applicant 
 Insurance for Selected Provider 
 Minimum Insurance/Coverage 
 Primary Insurance Endorsement 
 Workers Compensation 
 Injury and Illness Prevention 
 Commercial Automobile Liability 
 Survivability 
 Joint Interests 
 Assignment and Subcontracting 
 Excuse for Non-Performance 
 Property 
 Right to Refuse Entry 
 Fingerprinting Requirements 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Hiba Shublak 
Founder/Executive Director 
Active Learning 

 
 



 
 

1 

Executive Summary & Introduction 

The Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana’s (BGCSA) mission is to promote the positive and healthy 

development of youth, especially those from disadvantaged circumstances, by providing services that 

build the skills, civility and self-confidence necessary to succeed in a competitive world.  Founded in 

1954, BGCSA is part of the nationwide movement of community-based, autonomous Boys & Girls Clubs 

and Boys & Girls Clubs of America and has earned recognition as one of the most innovative and 

effective Clubs in the nation. As such, we tailor national best practices to address the unique needs of 

our community, serving more than 3,000 youth and adults each year. 

For over 60 years, the Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana has been Santa Ana’s premier mentoring 

organization.  We have strengthened families and saved lives through our mentor relationships, 

evidence-based programming and family support systems. The BGCSA is pleased to submit this proposal 

to the Santa Ana Unified School District (SAUSD) in an effort to continue to be a part of the after-school 

program services provided for the 2015-16 school year.  As the Santa Ana Unified School District seeks 

to enhance its after-school services, we are proud to collaborate and provide our resources, expertise, 

and programs to ensure that all Santa Ana students have the opportunity to reach their full potential. 

Section 1: Program Design 

BGCSA Future Leaders Academy 

At the direction of the SAUSD per the proposed Engage 360 After-School Model, we have designed the 

BGCSA Future Leaders Academy.  The Future Leaders Academy is a custom enrichment strategy, 

consisting of four different 6-week programs and is a segment of the enrichment programs from our 

traditional BGCSA Impact Model offered at the Main Club.  Each of the four programs incorporates the 

use of technology, global awareness, STEM and College and Career readiness concepts. Each of the four 

components of the Future Leaders Academy develops student’s use of 21st Century Skills such as 

communication, collaboration and critical thinking and engages students in college and career 

exploration through the use of technology.  Each of the four programs will be offered separately 

throughout the week and will work in concert with each other to reinforce 21st Century Skills in 

participants from elementary to middle school grades. Below are summaries of each of the four 

enrichment programs that will be offered as part of the BGCSA Future Leaders Academy 6-week 

enrichment Program:  

Arts & Culture Exploration 

Program Name Enrichment Core Areas Addressed Delivery Schedule 

Club Tech 21st Century Skills (Technology) 
College & Career Preparedness 

1x/week 

Startup Kids/Teens 21st Century Skills (Communication, 
Collaboration) 

2x/week 



 
 

2 

College & Career Preparedness 

Jr. Toastmasters 21st Century Skills (Communication) 1x/week 

STEM DIY: Designing Air-
Powered Vehicles 

STEM  
 

1x/week 

 

Club Tech: Club Tech specializes in teaching students foundational computer science skills using 

Code.org, a web-based program, to introduce key computer science concepts.  Students are introduced 

to drag and drop, loops, iterations, algorithms, functions, debugging and conditionals, through 

interactive games and puzzles. The program is designed to strengthen critical thinking skills and problem 

solving with the use of technology, while acquiring and practicing foundational elements of coding.  

Students are able to solve puzzle challenges using math and computational competence. 

The program consists of 4 main courses, each tailored to specific age levels and programming 

experience:  

 Course 1 (grades K-2): 18 Stages Total 
 Course 2 (grades 3-5): 19 Stages Total 
 Course 3 (Course 2 completion required): 21 Stages Total 
 Course 4 (Course 3 completion required): 18 Stages Total 
 
Students are assigned to each level based on their grade, with elementary students beginning with 

Course 1 and continuing to Course 2.  Intermediate students begin at the Course 2 level and continue to 

Course 3.   

Startup Kids/Teens: The Startup Kids program has been specifically designed to target the enhancement 

and practicality of 21st Century Skills of elementary and intermediate students.  The program curriculum 

incorporates aspects from Boys & Girls Clubs of America’s Money Matters: make it count curriculum, 

which promotes financial literacy and responsibility among Club members, with an in-depth look into 

entrepreneurship and fundamental business practices through engaging, project-based activities. 

Students collaborate throughout the course of the program curriculum to create their own fictional 

products or services, create a marketing strategy for their product, and pitch their product to a group of 

mock investors.   

Students will go through twelve (12) lessons throughout the 6-week program, with a new subject and 

collaborative project introduced each week: 

Week 1 – Entrepreneurship: Students are introduced to the concept of entrepreneurship and 

will research an entrepreneur of their choice using technology as the standard tools. 

Week 2 – Business Teams: Students will be grouped into teams of 2-3, and together will 

strategize to create a functional business team with individual roles and tasks.   



 
 

3 

Week 3 – Our First Business Plan: Students will be introduced to the concept of business plans 

by closely examining sample business plans of established companies and create their own 

business plans for their fictional companies.  

Week 4 – Marketing: Students will explore marketing through current, popular advertising 

techniques and create their own marketing plans using print or digital media.   

Week 5 – Pitch Presentation Preparation: Students will use their business plan and marketing 

materials to prepare for their pitch presentations. 

Week 6 – Sales Pitch Presentations: During the final week of the program students will present 

their product to an audience of staff and invited guests from the school, district, or business 

partners. 

Jr. Toastmasters: Modeled after the Toastmasters International® programs, Jr. Toastmasters helps 

students develop communication, public speaking, and leadership skills in a series of learn-by-doing 

workshops.  Students learn the concepts of effective body language, eye contact, facial expression, 

posture, gestures, articulation, pronunciation and variance as they relate to public speaking, and they 

also learn to provide constructive feedback to each other based on their presentations. Weekly lessons 

include students giving short presentations to the group on different subjects, ranging from introducing 

themselves to the group to delivering persuasive speeches.   

STEM DIY: Designing Air-Powered Vehicles: Students will engage in a series of lessons and activities 

with the goal of designing and building air-powered vehicles while working in pairs. Each lesson will 

introduce a theory, concept or idea that students will need to know to move on to the next step of the 

process, with the culminating event of students showcasing their vehicles. 

Week 1 – Science: Students will learn the science of energy by exploring the differences 

between kinetic and potential energy. 

Week 2 – Research: Students will use technology to research different types of vehicles and 

how they move. 

Week 3 – Engineering: Students will research and begin to plan their own vehicle designs. 

Week 4 – Data: Students will enter the testing phase using math concepts to capture data. 

Week s 5 & 6 – Build & Implementation: Students will build, enhance and test their vehicles. 

Range: The range of our program is open to all ages.  We will provide programming to students at the 

Elementary and Intermediate levels. Lessons and activities will be tailored to be grade-level appropriate. 

Section 2: Elements of High-Quality Programming 

Linkages to the School Day 

The Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana believes the best After School Program is one that complements the 

traditional school day and is aligned strategically to the goals, priorities and direction of the SAUSD.  



 
 

4 

Each program in the Future Leaders Academy is designed to meet 21st Century learning outcomes and 

reflects elements of the common core by providing real-world, hands-on, and robust learning 

opportunities that build the skills that Santa Ana students will need in order to be successful in college 

and career.  Each program in the Future Leaders Academy is aligned with the Common Core State 

Standards by preparing students for College and Career Readiness through lessons that incorporate 

reading, writing, speaking and listening, and language development.   

In addition to the strengths of the program in connecting to the Common Core State Standards, the Boys 

& Girls Club of Santa Ana has also adopted a series of best practices to support linkages to the school 

day such as:  

 Staff supporting school events and initiatives such as Back to School Nights, Open House, School 

Fundraisers, and awareness campaigns 

 Aligning to the SAUSD Core Values and Seven Building Blocks to Success 

 Site staff participating in SAUSD and OCDE training when offered 

 Site staff communicating regularly about strategy, target goals, and results with parents, 

community members, and school partners 

High-Quality Staff 

The Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana believes that our success and ability to reach goals is based entirely 

on who we hire, how we train them, and how we support them as they mentor Santa Ana youth. Our 

hiring and screening standards align to those set forth by the SAUSD and are NCLB compliant. We have 

demonstrated the ability to maintain those standards over the last several years as a contractor of the 

SAUSD. At a minimum, all BGCSA employees go through Live Scan fingerprinting to ensure that they 

have a clear criminal record, have earned at least two years’ worth of college credit, have a clear TB test, 

and have an interest in and passion to serve youth. All Mentor Professionals meet these expectations 

and most far exceed it. Several of our Mentor Professionals have earned four-year college degrees, 

teaching credentials, graduate degrees, and have previous experience in the field of child and 

adolescent development.   

Safe and Appropriate Environment 

We believe that there is nothing more important in our day-to-day operations than the safety of the 

children that we serve.  Our commitment to safety includes, but is not limited to: crisis management 

plans, conducting background checks on our Mentor Professionals and volunteers, CPR and First Aid 

training, procedure and policies to promote safety, staffing according to the 20:1 ratio required by the 

ASES grant, regular inspection of equipment used in programming, and conducing safety training for our 

staff, students, and volunteers. Safety is a component of every training session throughout the year and 

our team has access to training and best practice resources from Boys & Girls Clubs of America.  The 



 
 

5 

Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana also conducts feedback surveys from Club Members to assess the 

perception of safety and learning in the after school program that helps prevent or deter injury, abuse, 

violence, and accidents. 

In addition to Mentor Professionals assigned to each site, our dedicated team of senior staff members 

perform regular quality assurance visits.  It is during these site visits that we identify areas for 

improvement, provide feedback and coaching to our team of Mentor Professionals, and ensure that our 

programs are safe and of high quality. 

High-Interest Programming 

Our Formula consistently provides the most powerful Club Experience– by implementing the Five Key 

Elements for Positive Youth Development in all of our programs, we ensure that children and youth are 

exposed to high-quality programming that is interesting and engaging at all grade levels.   

FIVE KEY ELEMENTS FOR POSITIVE YOUTH DEVELOPMENT  

Boys & Girls Clubs of America reviewed youth development research and worked with the Search 

Institute to identify the key elements that ensure positive experiences for youth and help them achieve 

important outcomes.  

1. A safe, positive environment: The Boys & Girls Club is a safe haven where members feel 
physically and emotionally secure at all times.  

2. Fun: The Boys & Girls Club facility, staff, and program offerings create a welcoming, positive 
environment that allows members to engage in play, enjoy their play time and be happy and 
eager to come to the Club.  

3. Supportive relationships: The Boys & Girls Club ensures that every young person feels 
connected to one or more adults and has friendships with peers.  

4. Opportunities and expectations: Boys & Girls Club staff and programs consistently communicate 
the expectation that every child has the potential to excel, be productive, and succeed at the 
Club and in life.  

5. Recognition: The Boys & Girls Club takes every opportunity to recognize and validate Club 
Members' achievements and accomplishments.  

Section 3: Organizational Design 

Capacity 

The infrastructure for leadership, training, quality assurance, and program development is already in 

place to support the expansion of sites under the proposed Engage 360 model. The Boys & Girls Club of 

Santa Ana also currently employs all of the required Mentor Professionals needed in the proposed 

staffing projections. We are confident in our ability to meet staffing expectations for the September 



 
 

6 

launch of Engage 360. Our team is knowledgeable and sensitive to the expectations of ASES funded after 

school programs to include the staffing ratio of 20:1 at all times.   

Professional Development through BGCSA University 

Training and professional development has always been a high priority for the Boys & Girls Club of Santa 

Ana, since this directly links to the quality of our programs, retention of our professionals, and most 

importantly, the experience of our Club Members. Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana University is our 

Professional Development Strategy that develops talent, hones professional skills, and coaches our 

professionals to be the best role models and mentors to our Members. This professional development 

strategy is a combination of both formal training and coaching sessions throughout the year. Our 

leadership team incorporates local resources for training as well as the resources for professional 

development from Boys & Girls Clubs of America.  

All new Mentor Professionals participate in an orientation that prepares them for their role as mentors. 

During this process, we clarify expectations, prepare them for their positions, and equip them with the 

tools to lead program areas. Additional ongoing training opportunities throughout the year include 

areas such as CPR, first aid, classroom management, safety, mentoring strategies, and specific Boys & 

Girls Club of Santa Ana and Boys & Girls Clubs of America program curriculum.  

In addition to the professional development strategy of BGCSA University, key professionals attend 

regular trainings offered by the Orange County Department of Education, Boys & Girls Clubs of America 

and the Boys & Girls Clubs of Orange County Professional Association.  

Communication with Stakeholders 

The Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana will communicate regularly with Santa Ana Unified School District 

personnel at both the district office as well as local schools. In collaboration with Santa Ana Unified 

School District leadership, we will set target goals, develop strategy, and review impact of mentor 

programs. At each school site that we are assigned to, our leadership team will meet with the site 

coordinator and principal 2-3 weeks prior to program implementation to prepare for the transition, 

review goals, discuss logistics, and set expectations. The same leadership team will follow up throughout 

the 6-week period to monitor progress and will again meet at the end as part of the exit strategy. It is 

the goal of the Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana to leave some tools and access to resources in place after 

the 6-week period.  

Communication with stakeholders has been and will continue to be a high priority for us. We are 

committed to adopting new strategies at the discretion of the SAUSD such as progress reports to the 

Administration or School Board Members, updates or outcome measurement for public release, or 

other forms of communication.  



 
 

7 

Track Record of Volunteer Engagement 

The Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana has a strong track record of volunteer recruitment and engagement. 

Through strategic outreach, relationship management skills, corporate and private partnerships and 

effective screening systems, the Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana secures hundreds of volunteers annually.   

Volunteers are utilized as tools in the enrichment process to share their stories and help students make 

connections between curriculum content and real-world applications, as well as assisting our Mentor 

Professionals in the day-to-day delivery of program and bringing the mentor-to-student ratio down. 

Volunteers are recruited, screened and trained prior to allowing their participation in program. All 

volunteers over the age of 18 are required to go through a background check process and are supervised 

at all times.  

Program Evaluation 

The goals of the Future Leaders Academy will be measured through the use of the Boys & Girls Club of 

Santa Ana’s comprehensive 21st Century Skills Evaluation tool, which will include observational data 

collected by Mentor Professionals throughout the progression of the programs and student feedback 

surveys. Mentor Professionals will be asked to observe and grade students on the four 21st Century Skills 

of creativity, collaboration, critical thinking and communication throughout each of the components of 

the Future Leaders Academy. The student self-assessment component will provide feedback on 

student’s feelings of self-efficacy, confidence, and knowledge on the subject matter and will be 

administered both before and after program implementation.  Data will be used both within the BGCSA 

and externally for key stakeholders to review.  Internally, we analyze the data to improve delivery of 

programs and Club Experience.  We also use data to identify members for targeted intervention.  

Externally, we will use the data collected to demonstrate our Club’s impact to donors, partners, and the 

community.   

Section 5: General Budget 

Track Record of Fiscal Management and Accountability 

As one of Orange County’s most respected non-profits, the Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana has honorably 

served thousands of youth while maintaining fiscal responsibility and accountability as a high priority. 

Fiscal Accountability is achieved through an executive staff capable of managing a high-functioning 

business and a Board of Directors with a track record of fiscal oversight and governance.  

Proposed Budget 

The budget below is based on a 6-week rotation and a 20:1 staffing ratio. The proposed budget includes 

all staffing needs for professional development, quality control oversight, support services for program 



 
 

8 

development, outcome measurement, supplies, and additional priorities for volunteer engagement and 

securing matching funds. Based on the projected ADA numbers for the 2015-2016 school year, the 

estimated cost per student per day will be approximately $0.55. This amount will allow the BGCSA to 

purchase needed supplies to facilitate the Art, Culture and College Exploration curriculum with all 

students in the program. 

BGCSA Future Leaders Academy Budget - Elementary 

Expense Categories 6 sites  

Direct Service Mentor Professionals  231,532 

Program Oversight 55,500 

Employee Benefits, Taxes,  Insurance, 
Transportation, Training, Etc.  94,721 

Supplies*, Curriculum, Outcome Measurement  & 
Equipment 20,000 

Total  401,753 

*Supplies exclude technology required for programming and assumes 
permission to use  SAUSD technology allocated for the Engage 360 
Program  

 

BGCSA Future Leaders Academy Budget - Intermediate 

Expense Categories 1-2 sites 

Direct Service Mentor Professionals  54,612 

Program Oversight 21,500 

Employee Benefits, Taxes,  Insurance, 
Transportation, Training, Etc.  

25,117 

Supplies*, Curriculum, Outcome Measurement  & 
Equipment 

9,475 
 

Total  110,704 

*Supplies exclude technology required for programming and assumes 
permission to use SAUSD technology allocated for the Engage 360 
Program  

 

Matching Funds & Resources 

Throughout the Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana’s 60 year history, the Club has consistently raised millions 

of dollars, on an annual basis, that directly supports our mission and puts Santa Ana students on a path 

towards high school graduation with a plan for their future.  Through the support of large strategic 

partners and small donors alike, our Club has been able to constantly innovate and invest in new 

programs, facilities, and resources that allow us to create the greatest impact with our kids and create 

greater outcomes in their lives.  In addition to direct donations to the organization, the Club also secures 



 
 

9 

thousands of dollars annually in in-kind goods that further support academic performance:  school 

supplies, technology, Christmas toys, field trips, college scholarships, and food.  The Boys & Girls Club of 

Santa Ana also offers in-kind services and goods to local schools such as food baskets, supplies, 

parenting workshops, intervention programs, transportation, sponsorship, use of equipment, staffing for 

events, and access to our Main Club facility. The Club has a strong tradition of providing volunteer hours 

and manpower for the kids we serve; through our vast network of corporate partners, (ATT, PIMCO, 

Fluor, EMC, Microsoft, and many more) last year the Club secured over 700 volunteers to mentor Santa 

Ana youth and provide them with insight into new career opportunities, education pathways, inspiration 

for the future, and words of encouragement.   Our Club is focused on our mission to create impact and 

better serve our kids; we are committed to securing the necessary support and investments to our 

program and have on average raised more than two dollars in matching funds for every dollar of SAUSD 

school based program funds.  

Section 6: Success & Sustainability 

Sustainability  

The Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana is proud to have served Santa Ana youth and families for almost 60 

years; serving as a partner with the Santa Ana Unified School District to align with SAUSD’s vision, 

values, and priorities.  

We believe our mutual success is tied together; we are equally responsible for the outcomes seen in our 

community and we are committed to raising the standards and expectations for Santa Ana youth. We 

are committed to evolve as an organization based on the needs of our youth and families, and align with 

the new direction of the Santa Ana Unified School District.   

With a high level of excitement we are proud to embrace the Common Core into our holistic and project 

based philosophy.  As a partner for almost 60 years, we are committed to ensuring the SAUSD 

successfully continues this initiative and that we are aligned strategically.  

Resources and Support from Boys & Girls Clubs of America 

As a proud affiliate of Boys & Girls Clubs of America, we have the benefits and resources of a national 

organization with the flexibility and nimbleness of a local community-based organization. As a member 

of the Boys & Girls Clubs of California Alliance, we have a Government Relations team in Sacramento 

advocating and strategizing directly with legislators on ASES funds for after school programs. Boys & 

Girls Clubs in California represent the largest service provider network of after school programs in the 

State of California, and as a result are considered by legislators and policy makers a key strategic partner 

to ASES funding.  



 
 

10 

Boys & Girls Clubs of America also provides a Government Relations team in Washington D.C. 

advocating and working with legislators to secure federal funds for intervention programs, mentoring 

programs, juvenile delinquency prevention, as well as training, marketing, curriculum, and fundraising. 

Boys & Girls Clubs of America exists entirely to support local Clubs through National Marketing, National 

Fundraising, Professional Development, Program Development, Outcome Measurement, and other 

support systems.  

A Collaborative Spirit and Partner-Driven Philosophy 

As a community leader, we feel it is one of our responsibilities to foster relationships with other non-

profits and more importantly, find opportunities to collaborate and work together to address social 

issues. Depending on competencies and program structure, partner agencies are scheduled throughout 

the year into our normal day-to-day services. Our skill is to foster partner relationships as the lead 

agency, and coordinate service delivery. When we work together to combat social issues we are more 

effective at aligning resources and delivering higher quality impact to those we serve.  

  



 
 

 

Proposal Summary 

Students in America are all held accountable to the same expectations and goals no matter where they 

grow up. Those expectations are to meet basic academic benchmarks such as grade progression, reading 

levels, math skills, and critical thinking. It is also expected that all students graduate high school on time 

and leave with a plan for their future.  

It is unfortunate and simply unacceptable that as a country we have a large population of youth who will 

not meet those basic standards. It is even more troubling that statistically African American & Hispanic 

students are at higher risk of dropping out of high school. 

It is clear to us that Santa Ana youth are struggling to succeed due to their lack of access to mentors, 

resources, and support systems.  

The Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana interprets this cry for help from the youth of Santa Ana as a call to 

action. We must serve more kids and save more lives.  

We have a vision for a better Santa Ana, where success and college is within reach of every student. We 

are committed to working with the Santa Ana Unified School District to ensure Santa Ana students 

graduate high school with a plan for the future and are equipped to successfully compete in a global 

economy. 

 

 

 

Elizabeth Aguilar 
Chief Operating Officer  
Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana  
 





In response to: SAUSD RFP #15-15, After School Education & Safety Program Enrichment 
Partners 

Provider Organization: Discovery Cube Orange County (DCOC) 

Address: 2500 North Main Street, Santa Ana, CA 92705 

Contact: Janet Yamaguchi, Vice President, Education 

Phone: 714-913-5005  Email: jyamaguchi@discoverycube.org  

Purpose: Discovery Cube proposes to provide Science, Technology, Engineering, and Math-
based enrichment programs for SAUSD afterschool students during the 2015 – 2018 school 
years.  The STEM programs will link with and support SAUSD’s mission and vision to prepare 
all students to be college and career ready.  Discovery Cube’s high quality programming and 
instructional style within a safe environment, will impart to the students the knowledge, skills, 
and values to become productive citizens in the 21st Century (details are provided within this 
document). 
 

1. Program Design 
Discovery Cube’s proposed STEM-focused enrichment program will include a 

comprehensive and integrated approach to investigate and learn about not only all fields of 
science, such as Life Science, Earth Systems Science, and Physical Science (including 
chemistry), but will incorporate engineering design, practices, and challenges, along with an 
exploration of technology and math.  As an example of some of the intermediate STEM 
lessons: students will participate in hands-on activities using 3-D models, such as Slinkys and 
model walls made of wood, bolts, and tongue depressors, in order to understand the basic 
concept of earthquake waves, including wave anatomy, terminology, behavior, and a wave’s 
association with energy transfer.  Students will (a) conduct hands-on experiments on how to 
retrofit the model walls during a study of structural integrity, then attempt to knock the walls 
down, (b) use journals to create their own models and capture their thoughts and reflections, 
and (c) calculate the lag time from when a primary wave hits to when the secondary waves 
hit during an earthquake.  These STEM-based lessons and others are currently being taught 
to SAUSD students by Discovery Cube and have been shown to be engaging and effective at 
imparting interesting, in-depth STEM knowledge and inciting active participation by students.    

During the past eight years, Discovery Cube has provided high quality afterschool 
enrichment programs for students at all 36 SAUSD elementary schools and some 
intermediate schools whether by direct delivery of programs or indirectly through training of 
THINK Together program leaders who implemented the afterschool program. These hands-
on, inquiry-based, STEM-focused programs align with the California Science Content 
Standards and support the regular school day policies and curriculum.  In addition, the 
science center has developed over 80 hours of curriculum to ensure that the students do not 
experience redundancy in their activities as they graduate into subsequent grade levels 
during afterschool programs.  

In addition to teaching afterschool programs to SAUSD students, Discovery Cube has a 
23-year history of teaching STEM-focused programs to over 295,000 students per year.  Of 
those students, about 250,000 of them experience programs in their own classrooms during 
in-school and out-of-school hours.  In 2013, Discovery Cube won the National Medal of 
Service, the Nation’s highest award for a science center, museum, or library due to our 

mailto:jyamaguchi@discoverycube.org


educational programs that positively shape the participants’ perception of STEM and help lay 
a foundation for future interest and achievement in these fields, academically and 
professionally.  

Discovery Cube’s STEM-based programs will complement the SAUSD’s Afterschool 
Education and Safety Program utilizing an engaging and strong academic platform providing 
the students with STEM knowledge and encouragement to pursue these fields of interest 
while also implementing language-acquisition strategies, teamwork, and positive habits of 
mind, such as problem-solving, persistence, and creativity.  The STEM-focused lessons used 
during the afterschool program are created by Discovery Cube and have been also used in 
association with other school districts and individual elementary, intermediate, and high 
schools in Orange County, Los Angeles County, and the surrounding counties.   

Discovery Cube’s afterschool enrichment programming will be structured to have a 
significant impact on the elementary and intermediate students during the 6-week (30-hour) 
sessions. The hands-on sessions will support inquiry-based learning, science-thinking skills, 
model-making, and demonstrations of science concepts.  The students will learn by doing, 
including performing experiments, building contraptions, concocting substances, and 
competing in engineering challenges.  Some science topic areas will include: chemistry, 
astronomy, dynamic earth processes, density and buoyancy, and forces and motion. The 
program’s content will be aligned with the California Science Content Standards and the 
activities will be age and developmentally appropriate for the students.  Student journals will 
be used in order to capture data, drawings, conclusions, and reflections, while also 
strengthening language skills.  An evaluation system will be implemented to ascertain content 
knowledge gain and language acquisition.  
 

2. Elements of High-quality Programming 
Linkages to the School Day:  
      Discovery Cube staff members are well-versed in communicating and cooperating with 
schools and school personnel, as well as understanding security guidelines, student-safety 
policies, and the general operation of schools.  The staff are also knowledgeable in school 
restrictions and are flexible (able to adjust easily to new circumstances, changes and use of 
classroom/program spaces, etc.) in that each science center instructor may teach up to 
25,000 students per year at over 130 different school sites in total, so they have had a lot of 
experience in this area. The science center staff utilize appropriate instructional 
methodologies and group and materials management techniques.   
      Curriculum used by Discovery Cube is aligned with the California Science Content 
Standards, incorporates teaching strategies of Common Core State Standards, and supports 
the science and engineering principles of Next Generation Science Standards.  The STEM-
focused afterschool program also utilizes journaling as a format for students to collect data, to 
diagram concepts, and to reflect on what they have learned.  An evaluation process will be 
performed during the school year in order to access student content knowledge gain and 
language acquisition.  
 
High-quality Staff:  
      Paul Pooler, Discovery Cube Director of Outreach Programs, would lead and support the 
Discovery Cube afterschool program, as liaison with the SAUSD administrators, along with 
Tina Rolewicz, Discovery Cube Education Manager, as instructor trainer and manager and 
will also lead the evaluation component of the program.  Janet Yamaguchi, Vice President, 
Education, Discovery Cube, will supervise the above mentioned staff and the creation, 



implementation, and evaluation of the staff, students, and program. Discovery Cube will use 
the majority of its current program instructors and will hire other instructors as needed.  Many 
of Discovery Cube’s instructors have advanced degrees and/or teaching credentials.  Some 
of the science center staff are bilingual in English and Spanish.  
      When hiring afterschool instructional staff, the science center requires a minimum of two 
years of previous teaching in a formal or informal classroom and they must have obtained an 
associate's (or higher) degree.  In addition, weekly professional development classes are 
provided to the Discovery Cube afterschool instructor staff.  They are evaluated on a regular 
basis, including (a) informal “pop-ins” by program supervisors, (b) formal written evaluations, 
and (c) videotaped sessions to ensure the high quality of the staff and program. 
 
Safe & Appropriate Environment:  
      Discovery Cube staff is accustomed to the importance of providing safe and appropriate 
environments for both the guests that visit the Discovery Cube facility and for the students 
taught during in-school and out-of-school hours, including weeklong summer camp programs 
taught both at the science center and at our partnering sites, such as the Santa Ana Zoo and 
the San Joaquin Marsh.  The science center instructor staff receive training in this area to 
ensure that each child is physically and emotionally safe.  In addition, the staff are well-
versed in the protocol of alerting superiors in the event that there is an issue or concern of 
which the school or parent needs to be made aware.  In addition, if SAUSD wants to provide 
Discovery Cube with any specific instructions regarding this area, we will be more than happy 
to integrate this information into our staff training classes.  Discovery Cube currently does 
and will continue to adhere to the required “one adult to twenty students” ratio. The science 
center has a deep field of substitutes, including our education managers and directors, who 
are qualified and trained to teach the afterschool program.  
 
High-interest Programming:  
      Attitudinal surveys conducted during previous years with students who participated in the 
Discovery Cube afterschool programs show that students who once thought that science was 
boring, difficult to understand, or unattainable, have commented that they enjoy (“love!”) 
science and want to be a scientist when they grow up.  We believe that these types of 
comments are a reflection of the high-interest, hands-on programming that the science center 
presents and on the instructors that teach the program. 
      STEM-based curriculum (also detailed earlier in this document) will be comprised of the 
three fields of science: Physical Sciences, Earth Systems Sciences, and Life Sciences, and 
will be delivered in a multi-disciplinary format incorporating English Language Arts, math, and 
scientific and engineering practices.  The hands-on lessons will support inquiry-based 
learning, science-thinking skills, model-making, and demonstrations of science concepts.  
The students will learn by doing, including performing experiments, building contraptions, 
concocting substances, and competing in engineering challenges. Some science topic areas 
include: chemistry, astronomy, dynamic earth processes, water and weather related science, 
density and buoyancy, forces and motion, Newton’s Laws of Motion, ecology, environmental 
sciences, and the physics of light. The program’s content will be aligned with the California 
Science Content Standards and the activities will be age and developmentally appropriate for 
the students.   
 

3. Organizational Design: 
Program Leadership: 



Discovery Cube is a large and professional organization with many departments.  The 
Education Department is led by Vice President, Janet Yamaguchi (23 years at Discovery 
Cube).  She serves on the California Department of Education’s Next Generation Science 
Standards (NGSS) Review Panel, Science Expert Panel, and Strategic Implementation Team 
for California to help usher in the CA NGSS adoption and craft the Middle School course 
pathways.  In addition, Ms. Yamaguchi has developed and taught a course for UCI’s 
“Certification for After School Education,” is a member of the Advisory Board for the California 
STEM Initiative and the OC STEM Learning Ecosystem Initiative, has served on the 
California Advisory Board for MacMillan/McGraw Hill Publishing Company for elementary 
school science textbooks, and has written middle school science labs for Holt McDougal 
Publishing Company. She was a high school science teacher and taught for the Orange 
County Department of Education before joining Discovery Cube as Vice President.   
      Paul Pooler, Discovery Cube Director of Outreach Programs, would lead and support the 
Discovery Cube afterschool program, as liaison with the SAUSD administrators, along with 
Tina Rolewicz, Discovery Cube Education Manager, as instructor trainer and manager and 
will also lead the evaluation component of the program.  Janet Yamaguchi, Vice President, 
Education, Discovery Cube, will supervise the above mentioned staff and the creation, 
implementation, and evaluation of the staff, students, and program. 
      Mr. Pooler has been working in the education field for the past 22 years, primarily in 
informal science education. However, he began his education career with the Orange County 
Department of Education as an Instructor and Site-Coordinator for their Outdoor Science 
Education program.  Later, he joined Science Adventures, a hands-on, after-school/summer 
camp program and ultimately attained the position of Training Manager, responsible for 
training more than 300 staff members across the Nation. For the past nine years, Mr. Pooler 
has been the Director of Outreach Programs at Discovery Cube, overseeing the 
implementation of STEM curriculum for in-school and out-of-school time.  As Director, he has 
established and maintained partnerships with school districts, community colleges, and 
universities. 
      Ms. Rolewicz currently manages the afterschool instructor staff and develops and 
implements evaluations as a part of the SAUSD afterschool program for Discovery Cube to 
determine program and staff efficiency and efficacy. She has also taught the Discovery 
Cube/SAUSD afterschool science classes.  Prior to working with the science center, Ms. 
Rolewicz was Principal of Mission Parish School in San Juan Capistrano, where she led the 
school to receive the 2009 National Blue Ribbon School Award (one of only two schools in 
CA to receive this award).  Previous to that, she was a middle school science, math, and 
religion teacher.  She has also taught Kindergarten through 6th grade other California 
schools, received her BA in Economics and her MA in Educational Administration. 
 
Capacity: 
      Discovery Cube is a large-scale, professional organization able to hire, train and retain 
the appropriate number of staff needed to perform the necessary job requirements.  In the 
event that an individual instructor is sick and a substitute is needed, Discovery Cube’s 
Education Department has layers of staff (other instructors, managers, and directors) that are 
ready, willing, and able to teach. 
 
Professional Development: 
      Weekly professional development classes are provided to the afterschool instructor staff 
and they are evaluated on a regular basis, multiple times per year, including informal “pop-



ins” by supervisor staff, formal written reviews, and videotaped sessions to ensure the high 
quality of the staff and program. 
      As part of our professional development plan, Discovery Cube staff members are 
coached in communication skills, security guidelines, and student-safety policies.  In addition, 
the staff are trained in the protocol of alerting superiors in the event that there is an issue or 
concern of which the school or parent needs to be made aware. They also attend weekly 
sessions that increase their understanding of STEM content, classroom management, and 
presentation techniques.  If at any point SAUSD wanted to provide Discovery Cube with any 
specific training instructions that they feel our instructor staff are lacking or could benefit from, 
we will be more than happy to integrate this information into our regular staff training classes.  
      Discovery Cube staff at the vice president, director, and manager levels also receive 
professional development opportunities in the form of attending conferences, seminars and 
participating in webinars, such as are held by OC STEM Network, California STEM Learning 
Network, OC Department of Education, Association of Science and Technology Centers, 
California Science Teachers Association, and so forth.   
      Discovery Cube is also conducting assessments to determine knowledge-gain by the 
students, thereby assessing the effectiveness of this professional development program.  
Discovery Cube currently has a doctoral candidate serving as an intern who is leading the 
statistical review of the afterschool staff and student evaluations.  Some of the results that we 
have seen in the first two of months of the afterschool program are: (a) the majority of the 
students (K-5th grade) are proficient at producing and interpreting graphs that display data; 
(b) sixty percent of the students (K-5th grade) were able to recall exact details, compare 
similarities, and contrast differences between the animal designs, behaviors, and structures 
of two unfamiliar animals (puffer fish and squid); an indicator of strong science-thinking skills; 
(c) almost forty percent of the students (K-5th grade) were able to describe what an insulator 
is in association with electricity and with conserving the thermal energy of animals (i.e, sheep 
have wool to help them stay warm; heat is transferred from warm to cold areas/items; 
insulators slow down or do not allow for energy transfer).   
      In addition, Discovery Cube has a robust professional development program for in-service 
and pre-service teachers, helping to increase educator proficiency and confidence in teaching 
science and math, including seminars and courses on the content and practices associated 
with the Next Generation Science Standards.  The science center’s highly effective 
professional development programs promote teachers’ involvement over a number of years; 
in some cases, individual teachers have participated in the center’s professional learning 
programs for over ten years.  Each year, Discovery Cube teaches over 400 in-service and 
pre-service teachers who in turn impact thousands of students during their teaching career. 
 
Communication/Information Dissemination: 
      Discovery Cube proposes to communicate and disseminate information to parents, 
school personnel, and the School District in a few different ways. Bilingual “Letters Home” 
would let parents know what their children did during the STEM-focused classes and would 
include ideas of what activities could be done at home (their child becomes a teacher to their 
family members). “Letters Home” is a strategy that the science center uses in its summer 
camp program and is highly successful in informing and engaging the parents.   
      Invitations to community events, such as Discovery Cube’s annual Rocket Launch, 
Pumpkin Launch, and free Santa Ana resident admissions day at the science center would 
give the children the opportunity to share with their parents some of the information and 



projects they had designed and tested during their afterschool program, again allowing the 
student to become the teacher.   
      To keep the SAUSD informed on the progress of the program, Discovery Cube could 
provide quarterly reports, reflecting the quantitative and qualitative results of the program.  
Each quarter, the report would detail the number of students per school, along with 
information determined from pre/post-tests and an outline of the topics/concepts taught 
during the quarter. The report would also describe what lessons/activities are planned for the 
subsequent quarter. 
 
Volunteers: 
      On an annual basis, Discovery Cube has a large core of over 900 long-term and short-
term volunteers that are used for a variety of programs and in a variety of different 
departments, including Education, Marketing, Development, Operations, Exhibits, and 
Finance.  However, we do not anticipate that the science center will be using volunteers in 
the afterschool program, as this proposed program can be managed and implemented by the 
Center’s paid staff.  
 

4. Program Evaluation 
 
The Plan: 
      As mentioned previously, Discovery Cube could collect and provide information about the 
progress of the program through quarterly quantitative and qualitative evaluations of the 
program.  With access to roll sheets, Discovery Cube could determine program retention 
rates.  In addition, the science center would administer pre/post-tests during the school year 
that would help determine knowledge-gain of the students and instructor effectiveness. 
      Discovery Cube proposes to offer a motivational incentive for students to achieve a high 
score on the post-tests that we would administer at the end of each content unit.  Students 
who achieve at or above an 87% level of correct responses will be entered into a drawing to 
win a kid-friendly prize.  We believe that if a prize is at stake, not only do the students realize 
that their focused participation in the program is important, but we have found through trialing 
this procedure that the students make a greater effort to thoughtfully participate in completing 
the post-tests. 
      Students will be engaged in journaling, recording their reflections, data, and concept 
diagrams in order to deepen and cement their understanding of science content.  Science 
center instructors would also be able to observe the students’ journals and gauge the 
students’ level of understanding of content areas.  
      Discovery Cube instructor staff would be evaluated on a regular basis (a minimum of four 
times a year) as mentioned in previous sections, to ensure that the program maintains a high 
quality and the Instructors are teaching so that children learn. Instructor staff evaluations 
would include informal “pop-ins” by their supervisors, formal written reviews, and videotaped 
sessions (shared and discussed with the videotaped Instructor). 
 
Indicators of Success: 

a. Annual attendance retention rate of 85% of the students in the program 
b. 100% of students increase their knowledge-gain on the post-tests as compared to 

what was achieved on the pre-tests [Note: pre/post tests will be based on the students’ 
understanding of science content and concepts] 



c. The majority of students achieve a score of  87% or greater correct responses on the 
post-tests 

 
Feedback: 
      The evaluation results would be shared with SAUSD on a quarterly basis once pre/post-
test results become available; some results would be detailed in an annual report (particularly 
the annual attendance retention). Evaluation results would be shared with the Discovery 
Cube instructor staff to ensure that they are aware of how the students they are teaching 
achieve on the pre/post-tests.  This information would also be used by the science center 
Education administration staff and become instrumental in determining the individual 
instructors’ effectiveness and provide for a professional development/ improvement plan if 
necessary.  Student- journaling would also be considered a feedback mechanism, since 
students can reflect on their work, prepare for post-tests and share their knowledge with their 
parents.  Science center instructors can use the students’ journals to gauge the students’ 
level of understanding of content areas and give individual or class-wide guidance to help 
correct any misconceptions that may have occurred.  
 

5. General Budget Information 
Elementary School Program Budget 
      During each of three school years (2015-16, 2016-17, 2017-18), Discovery Cube 
proposes to teach afterschool programs at all SAUSD elementary school sites (5-7 schools 
per each period of 6 weeks) to approximately 774 K-8th grade students per day (in groups of 
approximately 20 students per hour), 5 days per week for a total of six 6-week units.  Thirteen 
Discovery Cube instructor staff would teach 4 hours of programs per day (except 5 hours on 
Wednesdays) or 21 hours per week.  
 
Elementary School Budget Narrative 
      The cost per student per day equates to $3.70. The budget reflects an adequate set of 
resources in order for the students to have the appropriate amount of supplies necessary to 
perform high-quality, STEM-based programs, taught by qualified staff.  The oversight figures 
reflect the ability to ensure that students are taught in a way that they will successfully learn, 
as that funding supports the necessary time to train and evaluate the instructor staff and to 
maintain strong communication with SAUSD.  Indirect service also contains the support staff 
necessary to organize, prepare, box, and deliver the hands-on science and engineering 
supply kits.  In-kind resources include invitations for the students and their families to 
Discovery Cube’s special events listed in this proposal, along with any evaluation incentives.    
 

Budget for Elementary School Sites Per Year 

Budget Items Rate Total  
Staff (direct service) –  

Discovery Cube instructors 
$20/hr X 21 hrs per week X 13 
instructors X 36 weeks  (5 days per 
week for 36 weeks) 

$196,560.00 

Statutory & other employee 
benefit costs (25%) 

$5/hr X 21 hrs per week X 13 
instructors X 36 weeks 

$49,140.00 

Supplies & equipment $1.50 per student per session  
(X 774 students X 180 days) 

$208,980.00 

Transportation  $.575 per mile X 12 mile roundtrip  $8,694.00 



X 7 sites X 180 days 
Professional development  $0 

Subtotal  $463,374.00 
Oversight (indirect service) – also 
includes evaluations and reporting  

11.5% of the above budget items $53,288.01 

Total for 13 instructors to teach 
774 students per day, 5 days 

per week for 36 weeks 

 $516,662.01 

 
Note: If acceptable, Discovery Cube could invoice the SAUSD $51,662.00 per month for a total of 10 months 
(totaling a 36-week program) per each of 3 school years.  Invoices would be sent to the District at the end of 
each month (September through June). 

 
Intermediate School Program Budget 
      During each of three school years (2015-16, 2016-17, 2017-18), Discovery Cube 
proposes to teach afterschool programs at all SAUSD intermediate school sites (1-3 schools 
per each period of 6 weeks) to approximately 112 6th - 8th grade students per day (in groups 
of approximately 20 students per hour), 5 days per week for a total of six 6-week units.  Two 
Discovery Cube instructor staff would teach 4 hours of programs per day (except 5 hours on 
Wednesdays) or 21 hours per week.  
 
Intermediate School Budget Narrative 
      The cost per student per day equates to $4.12. The budget reflects an adequate set of 
resources in order for the students to have the appropriate amount of supplies necessary to 
perform high-quality, STEM-based programs, taught by qualified staff. Supply cost is slightly 
higher for the intermediate school program than for the elementary school program, as the 
intermediate STEM-focused projects will contain a greater amount of robust materials for 
building and experimenting with engineering challenges. The oversight figures reflect the 
ability to ensure that students are taught in a way that they will successfully learn, as that 
funding supports the necessary time to train and evaluate the instructor staff and to maintain 
strong communication with SAUSD.  Indirect service also contains the support staff 
necessary to organize, prepare, box, and deliver the hands-on science and engineering 
supply kits. We can complete these indirect services for a lower percent only because we are 
conducting similar services for the larger elementary school program.  In-kind resources 
include invitations for the students and their families to Discovery Cube’s special events listed 
in this proposal, along with any evaluation incentives.    
 

Budget for Intermediate School Sites Per Year 

Budget Items Rate Total  
Staff (direct service) –  

Discovery Cube Instructors 
$20/hr X 21 hrs per week X 2 
instructors X 36 days  (5 days per 
week for 36 weeks) 

$30,240.00 

Statutory & other employee 
benefit costs (25%) 

$5/hr X 21 hrs per week X 2 
instructors X 36 weeks 

$7,560.00 

Supplies & equipment $2.00 per student per session  
X 112 students X 180 days 

$40,320.00 

Transportation  $.575 per mile X 12 mile roundtrip  $2,484.00 



X 2 sites X 180 days 
Professional development  $0 

Subtotal  $80,604.00 
Oversight (indirect service) – also 
includes evaluations and reporting  

3% of the above budget items  
(when combined with elementary 
school program, we are able to 
conduct this service at a lower %) 

$2,418.12 

Total for two instructors to 
teach 112 students per day, 5 
days per week for 36 weeks 

 $83,022.12 

 
Note: If acceptable, Discovery Cube would invoice the SAUSD $8,302.21 per month for a total of 10 months 
(totaling an 36-week program) per each of 3 school years.  Invoices would be sent to the District at the end of 
each month (September through June).   

 
6. Success and Sustainability 

Record of Success 
     For the past eight years, Discovery Cube has successfully conducted high-quality 
afterschool programs for SAUSD either as direct delivery with our instructors or indirectly by 
training THINK Together staff to conduct the program.      
     For the past four years and currently, Discovery Cube successfully has conducted and is 
conducting afterschool programs for middle school students in the Ocean View School 
District for El Viento Foundation. These STEM-based programs serve about 25 students per 
grade level, span 30 weeks (Sept – May) and are delivered in 1 ½ hour blocks of time. El 
Viento Foundation is very pleased with the progress of this grade-specific program (grade-
specific 5th grade through high school level curriculum is presented to each appropriate 
grade-level) which is also integrated into El Viento Foundation’s long-term plan of providing 
special STEM-based programming for a specific cluster of students who commit to participate 
in the afterschool program over the course of ten years – from their fifth grade year through 
their second year of college!   
      In addition, Discovery Cube in partnership with THINK Together conducted afterschool 
programs at the Tustin Unified School District, along with those conducted with the Santa 
Ana Unified School District.  The pilot program with TUSD was successful in building the 
excitement and confidence level of the frontline staff to conduct STEM-based programming.      
Also, the science center conducts long-term afterschool programs in Buena Park (GATE 
students), Anaheim Union High School District, and Anaheim City School District. 
      Discovery Cube conducts training programs for the Big Brothers and Big Sisters of 
Orange County in order for the “Bigs” to teach their “Littles” hands-on STEM-based activities.  
      Also, the science center developed and is conducting a program (now two years old) 
called Futuros Radiantes; a professional development program for Latino parents of 
preschoolers.  This very successful, free series of bilingual workshops are held at the science 
center, the Santa Ana Head Start facilities, Santa Ana Library, and at the Westminster School 
District preschools to teach parents how to prepare their children to succeed in kindergarten 
and beyond.   
      For the past four years, Discovery Cube has taught a component of “TEACH Academy” 
with Santa Ana’s Century High School to help train high school seniors in STEM-focused 
programs with the ultimate goal of these students becoming our future teacher workforce.  
 



 
 
Sustainability Plan 
      Since its opening in 1993 at its preview facility in the Crystal Court Mall about 23 years 
ago, Discovery Cube (formerly Discovery Science Center) has partnered with SAUSD.  
During those 23 years, thousands of SAUSD students and their teachers have benefitted 
from free field trips, including bus stipends, free outreach programs, and free professional 
development programs for their teachers which have included free classroom kits of 
materials. To give an idea of the scale, last year alone SAUSD teachers and students 
received over $80,740 worth of scholarship programs for 13,326 Santa Ana students.   
      Discovery Cube has many agency partners that help support programs that are delivered 
to the SAUSD at no cost to the District, their schools, students or parents of the students, 
such as the Municipal Water District of Orange County and City of Santa Ana who fund 
$25,337.50 for 10,135 Santa Ana students each year in the Ricki the Raindrop assembly-
style programs, a K – 5th grade-specific water education program (includes student take-
home booklets for the students) developed, managed and taught by Discovery Cube   
      Each year, Orange County Waste and Recycling City agencies fund $32,836.92 for 1266 
Santa Ana students to attend a 6th grade, resource-focused (reduce-reuse-recycle) 
assembly-style program (includes take-home booklets and household hazardous waste bins 
for the students and trash sorting bins for the teachers), professional development classes 
with kits for the teachers, and field trips to the science center.  This program was designed 
and is taught by Discovery Cube.  
      Last year, the Samueli Foundation funded $13,380 for 918 Santa Ana students  to 
receive an 8th grade Science of Hockey program that teaches about forces and motion and 
includes professional development for teachers, classroom kits of materials, field trips to the 
science center and in-school booklets for the students.  This program was designed and is 
taught by Discovery Cube and the accompanying in-school booklets were co-designed by DC 
and SAUSD staff.  
      In addition, Discovery Cube hosts a “Free Santa Ana Residents” Day” at Discovery Cube 
every first Tuesday of the month.  Santa Ana families are able to attend the science center for 
free during these dates with proof of residence.  In addition, Santa Ana Unified School District 
teachers are admitted to the science center for free at all times whether on a field trip or as a 
visiting guest.  
      As Discovery Cube continues to grow, so does our partnership with SAUSD.  As 
mentioned previously, during the past eight years, Discovery Cube has provided afterschool 
programs to SAUSD either by direct delivery or indirectly, through training THINK Together 
staff to conduct STEM-based programs.  Currently Discovery Cube is conducting STEM-
based afterschool programs at twenty elementary and intermediate schools. 
 
Discovery Cube is excited about continuing to partner with SAUSD to ensure that all children 
are prepared to be college and career ready and that there is a clear focus on results-based 
learning by all parties involved: the Science Center, the District, the teachers, the students, 
and their families.  We appreciate your consideration of our request to participate as a leader 
and partner in your after school program.  
 
 



 
 

1 
 

Executive Summary & Introduction 

The Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana’s (BGCSA) mission is to promote the positive and healthy 

development of youth, especially those from disadvantaged circumstances, by providing services that 

build the skills, civility and self-confidence necessary to succeed in a competitive world.  Founded in 

1954, BGCSA is part of the nationwide movement of community-based, autonomous Boys & Girls Clubs 

and Boys & Girls Clubs of America and has earned recognition as one of the most innovative and 

effective Clubs in the nation. As such, we tailor national best practices to address the unique needs of 

our community, serving more than 3,000 youth and adults each year. 

For over 60 years, the Boys & Girls Club of Santa ana has been Santa Ana’s premier mentoring 

organization.  We have strengthened families and saved lives through our mentor relationships, 

evidence-based programming and family support systems. The BGCSA is pleased to submit this proposal 

to the Santa Ana Unified School District (SAUSD) in an effort to continue to be a part of the after-school 

program services provided for the 2015-16 school year.  As the Santa Ana Unified School District seeks 

to enhance its after-school services, we are proud to collaborate and provide our resources, expertise, 

and programs to ensure that all Santa Ana students have the opportunity to reach their full potential. 

Section 1: Program Design 

BGCSA Arts & Culture Exploration 

At the direction of the SAUSD per the proposed Engage 360 After-School Model, we have designed the 

BGCSA Arts and Culture Exploration (ACE) program.  The BGCSA Arts and Culture Exploration is a cluster 

of programs that ties together the performing arts, global awareness and college and career exploration 

with a multimedia enhancement component.  The Arts and Culture Exploration is a custom enrichment 

strategy, consisting of two Boys & Girls Club of America programs and a multimedia enhancement that 

will be adapted to fit the Engage 360 program model. Each of the three components will be offered 

separately throughout the week and will work in concert with each other to engage participants from 

elementary to middle school grades in the art of drama, learning about cultures and diversity, and the 

use of multimedia while learning about and researching college majors, careers and colleges related to 

Arts and Culture. Below are summaries of each of the enrichment programs that will be offered as part 

of the BGCSA Arts and Culture Exploration:  

Arts & Culture Exploration 

Program Name Enrichment Core Areas Addressed Delivery Schedule 

DramaMatters Afterschool Arts & Culture 
21st Century Skills 
College & Career Preparedness 

2x/week 

Youth for Unity Arts & Culture 
21st Century Skills 

2x/week 



 
 

2 
 

College & Career Preparedness 

Multimedia Enhancement STEM (Technology) 
21st Century Skills 
College & Career Preparedness 

1-2x week, depending on 
program needs 

 

DramaMatters Afterschool: DramaMatters Afterschool is a drama education program that encourages 

students to engage in hands-on activities.  Drama education builds self-confidence, sparks creativity and 

boosts academic achievement. The DramaMatters Afterschool Program is a weekly program consisting 

of 60 minute sessions segmented for beginner, intermediate and advanced members. Each session is 

adapted to fit the age of participants as well. Sessions consist of a short warm-up; a main activity of 

games, script work or performance; and a 10-minute cool-down. Lessons also include many different 

ways for members to express themselves creatively, from costumes to set design to directing. Students 

will develop 21st Century skills, such as critical thinking, communication, collaboration, and creativity. 

Students will develop confidence and presence, practice articulation and expression of thought, increase 

understanding of cause and effect and how it relates to the development of a strong story line. The 

program curriculum ends in a culminating event during which students demonstrate their acquired 

knowledge by putting on a play. 

Youth for Unity:  Through a comprehensive set of interventions, the Youth for Unity program aims to 

promote and celebrate diversity while combatting prejudice, bigotry and discrimination.  Youth for Unity 

features age-appropriate programming for youth. The program builds the capacity to help students 

appreciate themselves as unique and special individuals and encourage global awareness by 

understanding diversity in society, recognizing bias and unfairness and taking personal leadership in 

confronting bias. 

Students will “travel the world” by visiting a new country each week, to learn about the culture, art, 

geography and customs of that particular country.  At the end of the week students will receive a stamp 

on a make-believe passport to show where they have been and what they have learned. The program 

will end in a culminating event with students hosting a “multi-cultural” fair, where they will prepare 

exhibits on their favorite countries. 

Multimedia Excursion: Multimedia Excursion is a lesson enhancement component that allows students 
to explore the “multi” in Multimedia through auditory and visual elements such as photography, audio, 
text, and design. With the use of chrome books, along with multiple educational applications (such as 
Google and web-based tools), students will further dissect topics learned in other Arts & Culture 
Exploration modules as well as school-day lessons.  
 
Range: The range of our program is open to all ages.  We will provide programming to students at the 
Elementary and Intermediate levels. Lessons and activities will be tailored to be grade-level appropriate. 
 



 
 

3 
 

Section 2: Elements of High-Quality Programming 

Linkages to the School Day 

The Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana believes the best After School Program is one that complements the 

traditional school day and is aligned strategically to the goals, priorities and direction of the SAUSD.  

Each program in the Arts, Culture and College Exploration is designed to meet 21st Century learning 

outcomes and reflect elements of the common core by providing real-world, hands-on, and robust 

learning opportunities that build the skills that Santa Ana students will need in order to be successful in 

college and career.  Each program in the Arts, Culture and College Exploration is aligned with the 

Common Core State Standards by preparing students for College and Career Readiness through lessons 

that incorporate reading, writing, speaking and listening, and language development.   

In addition to the strengths of the program in connecting to the Common Core State Standards, the Boys 

& Girls Club of Santa Ana has also adopted a series of best practices to support linkages to the school 

day such as:  

 Staff supporting school events and initiatives such as Back to School Nights, Open House, School 

Fundraisers, and awareness campaigns 

 Aligning to the SAUSD Core Values and Seven Building Blocks to Success 

 Site staff participating in SAUSD and OCDE training when offered 

 Site staff communicating regularly about strategy, target goals, and results with parents, 

community members, and school partners 

High-Quality Staff 

The Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana believes that our success and ability to reach goals is based entirely 

on who we hire, how we train them, and how we support them as they mentor Santa Ana youth. Our 

hiring and screening standards align to those set forth by the SAUSD and are NCLB compliant. We have 

demonstrated the ability to maintain those standards over the last several years as a contractor of the 

SAUSD. At a minimum, all BGCSA employees go through Live Scan fingerprinting to ensure that they 

have a clear criminal record, have earned at least two years worth of college credit, have a clear TB test, 

and have an interest in and passion to serve youth. All Mentor Professionals meet these expectations 

and most far exceed it. Several of our Mentor Professionals have earned four-year college degrees, 

teaching credentials, graduate degrees, and have previous experience in the field of child and 

adolescent development.   

Safe and Appropriate Environment 

We believe that there is nothing more important in our day-to-day operations than the safety of the 

children that we serve.  Our commitment to safety includes, but is not limited to: crisis management 



 
 

4 
 

plans, conducting background checks on our Mentor Professionals and volunteers, CPR and First Aid 

training, procedure and policies to promote safety, staffing according to the 20:1 ratio required by the 

ASES grant, regular inspection of equipment used in programming, and conducing safety training for our 

staff, students, and volunteers. Safety is a component of every training session throughout the year and 

our team has access to training and best practice resources from Boys & Girls Clubs of America.  The 

Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana also conducts feedback surveys from Club Members to assess the 

perception of safety and learning in the after school program that helps prevent or deter injury, abuse, 

violence, and accidents. 

In addition to Mentor Professionals assigned to each site, our dedicated team of senior staff members 

perform regular quality assurance visits.  It is during these site visits that we identify areas for 

improvement, provide feedback and coaching to our team of Mentor Professionals, and ensure that our 

programs are safe and of high quality. 

High-Interest Programming 

Our Formula consistently provides the most powerful Club Experience– by implementing the Five Key 

Elements for Positive Youth Development in all of our programs, we ensure that children and youth are 

exposed to high-quality programming that is interesting and engaging at all grade levels.   

FIVE KEY ELEMENTS FOR POSITIVE YOUTH DEVELOPMENT  

Boys & Girls Clubs of America reviewed youth development research and worked with the Search 

Institute to identify the key elements that ensure positive experiences for youth and help them achieve 

important outcomes.  

1. A safe, positive environment: The Boys & Girls Club is a safe haven where members feel 
physically and emotionally secure at all times.  

2. Fun: The Boys & Girls Club facility, staff, and program offerings create a welcoming, positive 
environment that allows members to engage in play, enjoy their play time and be happy and 
eager to come to the Club.  

3. Supportive relationships: The Boys & Girls Club ensures that every young person feels 
connected to one or more adults and has friendships with peers.  

4. Opportunities and expectations: Boys & Girls Club staff and programs consistently communicate 
the expectation that every child has the potential to excel, be productive, and succeed at the 
Club and in life.  

5. Recognition: The Boys & Girls Club takes every opportunity to recognize and validate Club 
Members' achievements and accomplishments.  

 

 



 
 

5 
 

Section 3: Organizational Design 

Capacity 

The infrastructure for leadership, training, quality assurance, and program development is already in 

place to support the proposed Engage 360 model. The Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana also currently 

employs all of the required Mentor Professionals needed in the proposed staffing projections, which 

includes substitutes to cover in the event of a staff member’s absence. We are confident in our ability to 

meet staffing expectations for the September launch of Engage 360. Our team is knowledgeable and 

sensitive to the expectations of ASES funded after school programs to include the staffing ratio of 20:1 

at all times.   

Professional Development  

Training and professional development has always been a high priority for the Boys & Girls Club of Santa 

Ana, since this directly links to the quality of our programs, retention of our professionals, and most 

importantly, the experience of our Club Members. Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana University is our 

Professional Development Strategy that develops talent, hones professional skills, and coaches our 

professionals to be the best role models and mentors to our Members. This professional development 

strategy is a combination of both formal training and coaching sessions throughout the year. Our 

leadership team incorporates local resources for training as well as the resources for professional 

development from Boys & Girls Clubs of America.  

All new Mentor Professionals participate in an orientation that prepares them for their role as mentors. 

During this process, we clarify expectations, prepare them for their positions, and equip them with the 

tools to lead program areas. Additional ongoing training opportunities throughout the year include 

areas such as CPR, first aid, classroom management, safety, mentoring strategies, and specific Boys & 

Girls Club of Santa Ana and Boys & Girls Clubs of America program curriculum.  

In addition to the professional development strategy of BGCSA University, key professionals attend 

regular trainings offered by the Orange County Department of Education, Boys & Girls Clubs of America 

and the Boys & Girls Clubs of Orange County Professional Association.  

Communication with Stakeholders 

The Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana will communicate regularly with Santa Ana Unified School District 

personnel at both the district office as well as local schools. In collaboration with Santa Ana Unified 

School District leadership, we will set target goals, develop strategy, and review impact of mentor 

programs. At each school site that we are assigned to, our leadership team will meet with the site 

coordinator and principal 2-3 weeks prior to program implementation to prepare for the transition, 

review goals, discuss logistics, and set expectations. The same leadership team will follow up throughout 



 
 

6 
 

the 6-week period to monitor progress and will again meet at the end as part of the exit strategy. It is 

the goal of the Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana to leave some tools and ACEss to resources in place after 

the 6-week period.  

Communication with stakeholders has been and will continue to be a high priority for us. We are 

committed to adopting new strategies at the discretion of the SAUSD such as progress reports to the 

Administration or School Board Members, updates or outcome measurement for public release, or 

other forms of communication.  

Track Record of Volunteer Engagement 

The Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana has a strong track record of volunteer recruitment and engagement. 

Through strategic outreach, relationship management skills, corporate and private partnerships and 

effective screening systems, the Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana secures hundreds of volunteers annually.   

Volunteers are utilized as tools in the enrichment process to share their stories and help students make 

connections between curriculum content and real-world applications, as well as assisting our Mentor 

Professionals in the day-to-day delivery of program and bringing the mentor-to-student ratio down. 

Volunteers are recruited, screened and trained prior to allowing their participation in program. All 

volunteers over the age of 18 are required to go through a background check process and are supervised 

at all times.  

Program Evaluation 

The goals of the Arts, Culture and College Exploration will be measured through the use of the Boys & 

Girls Club of Santa Ana’s comprehensive 21st Century Skills Evaluation tool, which will include 

observational data collected by Mentor Professionals throughout the progression of the programs and 

student feedback surveys. Mentor Professionals will be asked to observe and grade students on the four 

21st Century Skills of creativity, collaboration, critical thinking and communication throughout each of 

the components of the Arts, Culture and College Exploration. The student self-assessment component 

will provide feedback on student’s feelings of self-efficacy, confidence, and knowledge on the subject 

matter and will be administered both before and after program implementation.  Data will be used both 

within the BGCSA and externally for key stakeholders to review.  Internally, we analyze the data to 

improve delivery of programs and Club Experience.  We also use data to identify members for targeted 

intervention.  Externally, we will use the data collected to demonstrate our Club’s impact to donors, 

partners, and the community.   

  



 
 

7 
 

Section 5: General Budget 

Track Record of Fiscal Management and Accountability 

As one of Orange County’s most respected non-profits, the Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana has honorably 

served thousands of youth while maintaining fiscal responsibility and accountability as a high priority. 

Fiscal Accountability is achieved through an executive staff capable of managing a high-functioning 

business and a Board of Directors with a track record of fiscal oversight and governance.  

Proposed Budget 

The budget below is based on a 6-week rotation and a 20:1 staffing ratio. The proposed budget includes 

all staffing needs for professional development, quality control oversight, support services for program 

development, outcome measurement, supplies, and additional priorities for volunteer engagement and 

securing matching funds. Based on the projected ADA numbers for the 2015-2016 school year, the 

estimated cost per student per day will be approximately $.55. This amount will allow the BGCSA to 

purchase needed supplies to facilitate the Art, Culture and College Exploration curriculum with all 

students in the program. 

BGCSA Arts, Culture and College Exploration Budget - Elementary 

Expense Categories 6 sites  

Direct Service Mentor Professionals  231,532 

Program Oversight 55,500 

Employee Benefits, Taxes,  Insurance, 
Transportation, Training, Etc.  94,721 

Supplies*, Curriculum, Outcome Measurement  & 
Equipment 20,000 

Total  401,753 

*Supplies exclude technology required for programming and assumes 
permission to use  SAUSD technology allocated for the Engage 360 
Program  

 
BGCSA Arts, Culture and College Exploration Budget - Intermediate 

Expense Categories 1-2 sites 

Direct Service Mentor Professionals  54,612 

Program Oversight 21,500 

Employee Benefits, Taxes,  Insurance, 
Transportation, Training, Etc.  

25,117 

Supplies*, Curriculum, Outcome Measurement  & 
Equipment 

9,475 
 

Total  110,704 



 
 

8 
 

*Supplies exclude technology required for programming and assumes 
permission to use SAUSD technology allocated for the Engage 360 
Program  

 

Matching Funds & Resources 

Throughout the Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana’s 60 year history, the Club has consistently raised millions 

of dollars, on an annual basis, that directly supports our mission and puts Santa Ana students on a path 

towards high school graduation with a plan for their future.  Through the support of large strategic 

partners and small donors alike, our Club has been able to constantly innovate and invest in new 

programs, facilities, and resources that allow us to create the greatest impact with our kids and create 

greater outcomes in their lives.  In addition to direct donations to the organization, the Club also secures 

thousands of dollars annually in in-kind goods that further support academic performance:  school 

supplies, technology, Christmas toys, field trips, college scholarships, and food.  The Boys & Girls Club of 

Santa Ana also offers in-kind services and goods to local schools such as food baskets, supplies, 

parenting workshops, intervention programs, transportation, sponsorship, use of equipment, staffing for 

events, and access to our Main Club facility. The Club has a strong tradition of providing volunteer hours 

and manpower for the kids we serve; through our vast network of corporate partners, (ATT, PIMCO, 

Fluor, EMC, Microsoft, and many more) last year the Club secured over 700 volunteers to mentor Santa 

Ana youth and provide them with insight into new career opportunities, education pathways, inspiration 

for the future, and words of encouragement.   Our Club is focused on our mission to create impact and 

better serve our kids; we are committed to securing the necessary support and investments to our 

program and have on average raised more than two dollars in matching funds for every dollar of SAUSD 

school based program funds.  

Section 6: Success & Sustainability 

Sustainability  

The Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana is proud to have served Santa Ana youth and families for almost 60 

years; serving as a partner with the Santa Ana Unified School District to align with SAUSD’s vision, 

values, and priorities.  

We believe our mutual success is tied together; we are equally responsible for the outcomes seen in our 

community and we are committed to raising the standards and expectations for Santa Ana youth. We 

are committed to evolve as an organization based on the needs of our youth and families, and align with 

the new direction of the Santa Ana Unified School District.   

With a high level of excitement we are proud to embrace the Common Core into our holistic and project 

based philosophy.  As a partner for almost 60 years, we are committed to ensuring the SAUSD 

successfully continues this initiative and that we are aligned strategically.  



 
 

9 
 

Resources and Support from Boys & Girls Clubs of America 

As a proud affiliate of Boys & Girls Clubs of America, we have the benefits and resources of a national 

organization with the flexibility and nimbleness of a local community-based organization. As a member 

of the Boys & Girls Clubs of California Alliance, we have a Government Relations team in Sacramento 

advocating and strategizing directly with legislators on ASES funds for after school programs. Boys & 

Girls Clubs in California represent the largest service provider network of after school programs in the 

State of California, and as a result are considered by legislators and policy makers as a key strategic 

partner to ASES funding.  

Boys & Girls Clubs of America also provides a Government Relations team in Washington D.C. 

advocating and working with legislators to secure federal funds for intervention programs, mentoring 

programs, juvenile delinquency prevention, as well as training, marketing, curriculum, and fundraising. 

Boys & Girls Clubs of America exists entirely to support local Clubs through National Marketing, National 

Fundraising, Professional Development, Program Development, Outcome Measurement, and other 

support systems.  

A Collaborative Spirit and Partner-Driven Philosophy 

As a community leader, we feel it is one of our responsibilities to foster relationships with other non-

profits and more importantly, find opportunities to collaborate and work together to address social 

issues. Depending on competencies and program structure, partner agencies are scheduled throughout 

the year into our normal day-to-day services. Our skill is to foster partner relationships as the lead 

agency, and coordinate service delivery. When we work together to combat social issues we are more 

effective at aligning resources and delivering higher quality impact to those we serve.  

  



 
 

10 
 

Proposal Summary 

Students in America are all held accountable to the same expectations and goals no matter where they 

grow up. Those expectations are to meet basic academic benchmarks such as grade progression, reading 

levels, math skills, and critical thinking. It is also expected that all students graduate high school on time 

and leave with a plan for their future.  

It is unfortunate and simply unacceptable that as a country we have a large population of youth who will 

not meet those basic standards. It is even more troubling that statistically African American & Hispanic 

students are at higher risk of dropping out of high school. 

It is clear to us that Santa Ana youth are struggling to succeed due to their lack of access to mentors, 

resources, and support systems.  

The Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana interprets this cry for help from the youth of Santa Ana as a call to 

action. We must serve more kids and save more lives.  

We have a vision for a better Santa Ana, where success and college is within reach of every student. We 

are committed to working with the Santa Ana Unified School District to ensure Santa Ana students 

graduate high school with a plan for the future and are equipped to successfully compete in a global 

economy. 

 

 

 

Elizabeth Aguilar 
Chief Operating Officer 
Boys & Girls Club of Santa Ana  
 

 

 

 

 
 

 



 

Toyama Karate-Do 
“Youth Developing Self-Discipline through Martial Arts and Fitness” 

 

Proposal 

School Years 

2015-2016  2016-2017  2017-2018 

 

Santa Ana Unified School District 

RFP # 15-15 

After-School Program Enrichment Provider 

for 

After-School Education and Safety Program / 21
st
 Century 

Community Learning Centers Grant K-8 

 

 

Contact: Rodolfo Cazales, Araceli Cazales 

2525 N. Grand Ave. Suite Z. Santa Ana, CA 92705 

Email: toyamausa@yahoo.com Phone: 714-795-8887 

 

 

mailto:toyamausa@att.net


Toyama Karate-Do Organization 

After School Program Service Provider for 

SAUSD 

 

 

 

Purpose
 

Toyama Karate-Do Organization is pleased to submit this proposal to the Santa Ana Unified 

School District (SAUSD), in an effort to continue as part of the after school program service 

providers for the up-coming 2015-2016, 2016-2017, and 2017-2018 school year.  Our program is 

a perfect fit as an enrichment providers offering specialized movement through Martial Arts.  We 

understand and value the need of the SAUSD to established merging efforts with local 

community programs, in order to improve the enrichment program needed for students in a safe 

and fun environment; such programs that students would have no access due to many reasons. 

Toyama Karate-Do was established in Santa Ana in 1991, and continues to be one of the 

prominent schools in the teachings of Karate in California.  Our ongoing 13 year After School 

Program is called “Youth Developing Self-Discipline through Martial Arts & Fitness” 

(YDSDMA) it was established in 2000, with the help of a Santa Ana College and the SAUSD by 

Board members and the Superintendent.  Our mission is to collaborate in the common core 

efforts, the LCAP,  and the seven building blocks for the SAUSD by providing martial arts 

lessons as a tool to guide student’s energy, motor skills, and mental capacity to learn and 

understand the importance of confidence, concentration, focus, respect, values, physical 

fitness, discipline, leadership, nutrition, and safety. We offer specialized movement which 

then transfers over to creating great students that will perform better in school because they are 

ready to learn with no limitations and focus. 

We support the After School Program Enrichment Goals and all its efforts such as this one in 

order for the SAUSD to continue to improve student’s academic achievement, and the 

opportunity for students to be part of developmental activities in a safe environment.  Many 

studies show that students who are involved in a Structure Physical Activity such as Karate, 

increases the scores on standardized tests, students concentration, and reduces disruptive 

behavior, and promotes a better  health.  These improvements allow for cost-effective strategies 

to be made by districts to maximize funds.  We believe we are a much needed program in our 

community, which will keep partners like us promoting a positive stage in the life of the students 

to help them achieve success along with family involvement.  

      Page 1 



1. Program Design 

Our program is far beyond just the simple idea of teaching students to kick and punch; we focus 

to lead student’s energy and knowledge towards understanding and demonstrating discipline, 

confidence, and educational improvement.  This allows academic providers to have students 

ready to learn by being attentive.   

 

A. Range:  The range of our program is open for all ages.  We will provide Karate to students at 

Elementary and Jr. High level.  Our classes are designed to adapt to the needs of every school, 

and interest of age group. Karate is a popular way to keep students active and learning skills that 

will help them educationally.  We promote non-violence structure to get their minds working 

towards a positive result.   

 

B. Types of Programs:  The types of programs we have are (1) Tiger Karate for K
st
-2

nd
, (2) 

Eagle Karate for 3
rd

-4
th

-5
th

, and in elementary schools who wish to customize our program.  In 

Intermediate Schools we offer (3) Jr. Karate, Kick Boxing, and Dynamic Martial Arts for all 

Intermediate Grades.   

 

C. Number of Students and Schools:  Our program proposal is to serve approximately over 

4,500 Elementary students and approximately 615 Jr. High students based on SAUSD numbers 

provided.  Service will be offered throughout 6 week rotations of; such system the SAUSD will 

run during each school year of this 3 year service proposal.  Starting September 2015-June 2016 

we will teach all Elementary kids in the after school program based on 6 rotations of 6 weeks in 

each area which will have approximately an average of 774 students. We will service all Jr. 

Highs with the same 6 week rotation structure serving approximately 112 students per site.  

 

D. Program Details:  Students will receive a Karate Class 5 times a week for a total of 30 

classes in their 6 week rotation. The classes will be 1 hour long, serving groups of 20 students in 

each group as some sites which require 2 to 3 consecutive classes. Additional Service: Students 

will be able to attend our local dojo at no cost on Saturdays for FREE training during and after 

their rotation and also in case of no classes during the Holidays, or non-instruction days to 

continue their training.  Students and their parents will be invited to participate in Out-Door 

Classes once a month, 4 Karate-Day Camps throughout the year, Tournaments, and Seminars. 

 

E. Safety and Responsibility: Students are provided with an Application which serves as a 

waiver to be part of our program.  We make sure parents are aware students will be taking place 

in our Karate Class and released from other activities to participate.  Once a student is on a list he 

or she will be asked to participate in every session.  Once the Instructor arrives and checks in 

with After School Coordinator, we assume all legal responsibility and liability by providing our 

General Liability covering every site we teach at.  That ends when we return or dismiss students 

to your staff.  On the waiver parents sign there is also a section which ask for the permission to 

take pictures and video for reporting purposes only. We are also responsible for reporting to you 

on a monthly report explaining in detail what was accomplished throughout that month.   

     

 

 

 Page 2 



F. Class Structure:  All classes will be conducted with the same Teaching Guideline in order to 

maximize our time with students regardless of group.  This guideline is called the Yon (Japanese 

#4) System, which is a system that is composed of 4 components.  (1)Warm-Up, which are 

exercises that nurture conditioning, resistance, and willpower not to give up. (2)Basics, review of 

old and new material.  (3)Accomplishment, which will always take place as the end of class; this 

is when students perform what they have learned.  (4) Enrichment, activities or hand-outs that tie 

up with important dates such as Family Day, Walk to School Day, Red Ribbon Week, as well as 

Martial Arts Material for better discipline, confidence etc. 

 

G. Class Principles:  Our program will expose and teach students how to demonstrate the 

following principles throughout specialized movement in martial arts: (1)Concentration & 

Focus; creating positive habits that will help students become better in school, home, and 

everyday activities.  (2)Respect & Values; improving their self-conscience, which will make a 

positive change in the way students respect themselves and others.  (3)Confidence; preparing 

students physically and mentally secure to execute any given task.  (4)Physical Fitness; 

enhancing their body strength, endurance, and motor skills needed in order to perform well in 

any activity.  (5)Discipline; having them set commitments to carry out directions and completing 

tasks, making it harder to accept failure.  (6)Leadership; showing them they are always in 

control to make positive choices without following others actions. (7)Nutrition, helping them 

understand the positive outcomes as a result of a healthy life style and eating habits.  (8)Safety & 

Self-Defense; showing them to be aware of the surroundings and prepared to stay away from 

possible dangers. 

 

H. Class Expectations:  Throughout every class in our program students will be asked to follow 

instructions in order to have them understand and demonstrate respect, discipline, and self-

confidence.  We will teach them to answer “Yes Sir”, “Hai” or “Yes Sensei” when instructors 

ask a question or give a command.  As a form of respect for the location we train in, students will 

be asked to have a “Shoe Line Up” in order for them to practice good conduct and responsibility.  

There will also be “Class Line Up” to ensure that there is order and safety for training. 

 

I. Class Enrichment Approach:  Students will participate in activities and hand-outs during class and 

at home as part of our enrichment approach. The goal is to promote Literature, Parent Involvement, 

Academics, Drug and Alcohol Prevention, and the importance of being confident to avoid being a 

Bully or being Bullied. Here are some of the Examples: (1)Toyama Karate-Do History Hand-

Out- This is a packet that is read in class to let students know a little more about Toyama Karate-

Do. Serves as a tool for Instructors to share their story of how Karate has helped them become 

great leaders, as well as inspire students.  This activity promotes Role Models and leading by  

example.  Instructors read the material for the first 2 weeks of school in order for students to be  

more familiar with our program.  (2)Family Day Hand-Out- A National Movement that promotes 

a Family Night in which students and parents sit down and discuss the importance of staying 

Drug and Alcohol Free. This activity promotes Parent Involvement because it is a hand-out we 

created for students and parents to fill out and encourage students to have dinner with the Family 

 

 

 

 

Page 3 



 

 

that night. We award 1
st
, 2

nd
, and 3

rd 
place winners at each school for the best work from students  

once it is returned and read by Instructors.  (3)New Student Survey-Students are given a survey.  

This helps us understand what students expect from us and why they decided to be part of the 

program.  This activity promotes personality and individualism.  It is important to us because we 

want to keep students involved and in the after school program in order to prevent dangers at 

home or in the streets because the lack of no parent supervision after school.  (4)El Dia De Los 

Muertos / The Day of the Dead (Halloween)-  This is an English Literature Activity explaining 

the history and the meaning behind the Hispanic “Dia de los Muertos” Culture. This promotes 

Literature and Culture.  The Instructors direct the reading during the first 15 minutes of class. 

Students are then asked to take home the material to share with parents. (5)Thanksgiving Turkey 

Hand Out- This is a fun activity that is geared for students to express what they are thankful for.  

Students get a chance to take home their Turkey drawing and bring it back the next day colored 

and with their top choices on what they were thankful for. This activity promotes values and 

appreciation for everything students have and receive. (6)Just Be Safe Rules Hand-Out- A fun 

and simple list of rules for students to follow in order to be safe at all times. This activity 

promotes safety and awareness.  Students go over the list with the Instructors and are asked 

questions in regards to several different examples of when to put the rules in action. (7)Black 

Belt Academy Packet Hand-Outs- This activity packet is geared to help students understand the 

Martial Arts Principles, and when they should be demonstrated.  Instructors spend a few minutes 

once a week for the entire school year program going over the material.  The hand-outs give 

different exercises in which students have to analyze and response to the questions. This activity 

promotes team effort and literature because students have to use their reading skills and 

retention. 

 

J. Student and Family Attraction:  Because of the community already aware of our on going 

13 year Karate Program as part of the SAUSD, we can always predict a 98% guaranteed 

enrollment within the first few weeks because of returning studentS.  The other 2% to attract new 

students is never a challenge because the main reason why Karate is always a demand in any 

District is the cost.  Karate is a very popular physical activity that many parents seek for their 

children as well as students.  Unfortunately they sometimes never get a chance to get involved 

because of the high fees of most local studios such as $150 and a few toping $225 a month per 

child.  This makes our program a perfect fit as one of the enrichment programs for the students in 

the SAUSD.  Throughout specialized movement in martial arts they will gain a mental and 

physical strength which will create a positive impact in their life and education.   

 

 

 

 

Page 4 



K. Student Retention:  As far as retention our strategy has a great track record with 99% 

retention.  Our program will not have any problem having retention by students and parents as 

asked in the proposal. Our Karate After School Program is designed to offer high quality 

teachings just like any other well recognized studio.  We have the ability and experience to 

provide a dynamic fun approach towards teaching karate and meeting educational requirements 

while doing so.  We use new trends such as Xtreme Karate, Flashy Routines, and Crossfit Karate 

workouts that always have the students engaged and learning.  With that approach we 

incorporate our Traditional Karate System which teaches the principles of Martial Arts.   

L. Organizational Structure: Our organizational structure is designed to assist in any efforts 

that are being worked on by after-school program. This will allow the communication between 

District and us in order to maintain a high level of performance. We will provide the following: 

Director, Coordinator, Teaching (Karate) Advisor, Supervisor, and Instructors.  The Program 

Director will be responsible for providing elements to staff in order for the entire program 

operation to be efficient.  Director will also take part of any District requirements or meeting in 

the best interest of the After School Program.  The Coordinator will manage the day-to –day 

operations such as schedules, times, and attendance as a whole.  The Teaching Advisor is the 

person who will coordinate what lesson plan throughout karate will be executed.  Such duties 

involve preparing techniques and drills which are to be taught to students.  The Supervisor will 

oversee and keep record of Instructor performance and also student evaluations.  Duties will 

involve communicating with After School Program Staff regarding issues or concerns to make 

sure both parties are in collaboration.  The Instructors responsibility is to teach class and follow 

guideline on lesson plan, take attendance, and prepare students towards better individuals.   

 

2. Elements of High-Quality Programming 

 

A. Linkages to the School Day:  Our program is committed to provide teachings and efforts 

connected to the regular school day.  One example is when there is Testing, we make sure that 

our classes are geared to distress students and pump them up with positive feedback in their 

training so they feel confident and ready to take on the next day of testing.  When there are 

special events such as Red Ribbon Week, Back to School Night, Open House, Spirit Week, and 

many more, we gear our classes based on a supporting tool to help the goal of the school and 

after school program direction.  This can only be accomplished with the communication between 

our Instructors, Supervisor, Teaching Advisor, Coordinator, and your Staff to keep us informed 

as to what they need us to cover.  Communication will play an important part in order to have 

student in the program released from any other activity once the Karate Instructor arrives to the 

school and checks in with coordinator or staff member.  Since we are a service provider that will 

arrive after snack or announcements are over, we plan to make sure coordinator is aware of our 

schedule and arrival.  Communication between Instructor and Staff will be essential because if 

another activity does not allow for Karate, we will have to re-schedule or work with each other 

towards a different time.  When it comes to space, we always petition for an indoor open space. 

 

 

 

Page 5  



Communication plays a big role in this, because sometimes these multiple purpose rooms are 

sometimes not available for our training which requires our Instructor and Coordinator to adapt 

and be creative in order to find another location or teach outside in the field.  We are also aware 

that there are also rules and expectations from the students involved in the After School Program.  

We plan to offer a support system to the Staff by making sure we up-hold students to keep the 

same rules and expectations prior, during, and after class.  We will make ourselves available to 

take over occasional students or groups who need extra discipline and guidance to help the 

school program.  Our curriculum will be such as described on our Program Design on Section 1.  

We will provide leadership support by having Instructors take charge of their group when at 

sites.  Students will be asked to follow directions and encouraged to work out.  We can serve as 

Role Models or rewards to those groups of students who deserve an incentive.  Leadership is 

what we will bring to the Karate class in order for students to follow directions not just in Karate 

but also in their classrooms and promote good behavior to their peers.  Our methods for 

instruction are very unique in a sense that we are always innovating new moves and new drills 

that test and engage students.  By using positive feedback methods when students do well, 

students will grow as individuals. 

 

B. High-Quality Staff:  We offer some of the best Instructors to teach the students in the 

program. Our Instructors are all Black Belts recruited from within Toyama Karate-Do to ensure 

quality teaching. Our proposal is to serve as Service Providers in order to offer Martial Arts as a 

tool to meet Educational Enrichment needs.  The standards for Instructors and staff we hire have 

been set for years and up-hold the (NCLB).  This allows us to offer a competent program for 

students to receive great benefits.  Our standards/requirements are the following: (1) Instructors 

must have a High School Diploma and be an Active Student or Graduate of an accredited 

University, Vocational School, or College. (2)18 years of age or older. (3) They must be Black 

Belt Graduate from our studio with no less than 6 months of active (un-interrupted) training prior 

to hire. (4)100 Hours of Teaching Experience completed as a Black Belt 3 months before hire. 

(6) Must be an active student under Toyama Karate-Do.  Our retention of Instructors is 98% 

success rate, Karate Instructors receive training 3 times a week at our dojo to ensure their skills 

and competition level is at high standards.  They are up-to-date with new trends and 

skillful in Traditional Karate because we encourage them to form part of seminars and 

competitions.  Our Instructors are great at working with kids and experienced in working with 

program expectations.  Instructors hired through our program have experience in teaching 

students from all walks of life, administrating attendance, and tracking performance.  We offer 

qualified instructor who are examples of higher education.  Once again our instructors are 

required to be enrolled in a accredited University, College, or Vocational School unless already 

Graduated. 

 

C. Safe and Appropriate Environment:  Our program offers a safe environment to the students 

we fingerprint all of our Instructors and promote Role Model behavior at sites and in daily life.  

As far as the location we make sure that possible hazards can be avoided by removing tables and 

chairs in order to have a safe open space.  Students are not allowed to wonder or walk around 

while under our supervision.  Students are always motivated to try their best even if their best is  

 

 

Page 6 



not as good as others.  We make sure students are emotionally safe, by not exposing the students 

to perform, or signaling them to take up on a task we know needs work.  Our purpose is to help 

them gain confidence and feel safe.  In the event of any dangers students are shown to go by 

emergency guidelines given to us by school or after school program staff.  During class, 

Instructors do not instruct from only one place in the room, they walk around and observe for 

any students who need help or assistance to avoid injuries.  Although Karate is a physical sport 

we promote self-control and do not engage in full-contact fighting.  In the event of an emergency 

we always contact a staff member right away.  Our 20:1 ratio allows for students to learn faster 

and perform better in school.  Although the group is small we encourage students from time to 

time for individual training of a routine to test their retention and accuracy.  Our classes are also 

keept in order to provide precautions in a fate environment which is asked of us by insurance. 

 

D. High-Interest Programming:  All of our classes maintain students physically active and 

engaged regardless of age or grade level.  Our Karate teachings are the same because studies 

show that students who are engaging in mixed groups rather than by level, perform better and as 

a result become more confident in classrooms.  It allows returning (advanced) students to serve 

as guides for new students (beginners).  This gives the advanced students a sense of pride and 

leadership, yet as at the same time the positive pressure to take initiative and perform better to 

maintain being a leader by helping others.  Mixed classes also give the beginners the positive 

desire not to give up and seek same level of performance as advance students.  Together both 

groups balance each other out and help one another to reach better results in grades in school as 

well as in their training.  By doing these mixed classes we are not limited to teaching new 

material to advanced students.  Instructors are capable to incorporate material that both advanced 

and beginners will understand and execute. The only developmental difference is in their motor 

skills, conditioning, retention, and moves.  But the developmental stages that stay the same is the 

increase in attention, focus, confidence, and performance in the classroom. 

 

3. Organizational Design 

 

A. Program Leadership: Our program provides a Coordinator, Teaching Advisor, and a 

Supervisor to ensure Instructors are prepared and efficient. The requirements are the following: 

(1) Must be able to carry out the direction of the program on a day-to-day operation. (2) 

Experience in working as a Martial Arts Instructor with a minimum of 2 years experience for 

Supervisor, 4 for Coordinator and, 6 Teaching Advisor. (3) High School Diploma and be an 

Active Student or Graduate of an accredited University, Vocational School, or College. (4)18 

years of age or older for Coordinator and Supervisor, and 25 and older for Teaching Advisor.  (5) 

Minimum 1
st
 Degree Black Belt for Supervisor, 4

th
 Degree for Coordinator, 6

th
 Degree for 

Teaching Advisor.  (6)Coordinator and Teaching Advisor must be Certified Martial Arts 

Instructor by World Professional Black Belt Martial Arts Organization.  (7) The Teaching 

Advisor must have experience in Testing and evaluation Karate. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7 



B. Capacity:  We have a 98% retention in our group of Instructors because we encourage them 

to further their education and training. We have a capacity to hire 2-5 new Instructors every year 

because we graduate anywhere from 5-15 Black belts per year.  Many who at that point begin 

their training to one day be considered to be part of the After School Program.  In the event of a 

After School Assigned Instructor being absent we first get a substitute Instructor already in the 

program to cover the class.  We then contact Coordinator of the After School program to inform 

them of the change for the day. 

 

C. Professional Development:  Our program is always seeking continued education for our 

employees.  We provide them with opportunities to be part of work-shops, seminars, and 

trainings by other outside agencies such as: Orange County Department of Education, Santa Ana 

College, National Association of Professional Martial Arts Instructors, etc.  Instructors are in a 

special Training every two weeks called “Instructor College” which is a training every two 

weeks were we train them in house to come up with new methods and re-enforce old ones.  The 

also have to be part of their regular 3 times a week class to be able to continue teaching for the 

program.  Instructor will also be asked to participate in any training given by the SAUSD. 

 

D. Communication/Information Dissemination:  We provide our own flyers and information 

sheets given to the students and their parents.  Prior to sending them we always seek approval 

from After School Staff Directors and provide a copy to After School Program Staff to make 

sure they are aware. Communicating important dates and times to our extra-curricular events to 

parents and students is important to us.  We also follow up with some of our Instructors making 

phone calls to recognize great work and also to inform parents when there is a concern.   Our 

method to communicate our program details will be through constant communication with 

newsletters and reports provided to every site.  The community at large is also kept informed by 

presenting informational reports to the School Board as to how the program is doing.  We host an 

a open-house at Toyama Main Studio in which parents are part of a meeting and informed of 

program success and important dates.  We provide mentoring for parents and various Karate Day 

Camps for the students in the program. Several organizations with areas of expertise in education 

assist by giving workshops. 

 

E. Volunteers:  We value the time of those who want to help.  We recruit our Jr. Black Belts to 

come and assist in the implementation of our program.  We also encourage parents to take part of 

their child’s training by coming to a class and assist in the holding of punching bags or setting up 

materials.  We are always open to volunteers and plan to promote more volunteers to be part of 

our program.  It allows for students to take the most out of every class. 

 

4. Program Evaluation 

 

Evaluations are also a great piece of how our program is able to record data and track their 

improvement, performance, and educational enrichment.  We have developed evaluation hand-

outs such as: Student Profile Evaluation, Student Survey, and the I Feel Better Evaluation. The 

Evaluations are a very important part of how our system works.  We also ask parents for copy of  

 

 

Page 8 



report cards and track how they are improving or what area we need to help them with by 

distressing their mind and helping them become more efficient at the skills needed in that 

subject.  Here is an example: If math is a challenging subject we focus to teach and guide 

students how to coordinate and retain drills which exercise their mind, piece things together, and 

follow a step by step approach.   

 

We also make this information available to the parents and the school by providing reports and 

statistics to staff members in order to stay informed of students progress.  All the information 

will be open to public in order to be transparent in our program.   

 

We have always presented to the SAUSD board and will continue to do so in order to maintain a 

high caliber program. 

 

5. General Budget Information 

 

The proposed budget will cover the cost of Toyama Karate-Do for services rendered for 10 

months as a Service Provider specializing in Enrichment throughout Specialized Movement.  

Our After School Program cost is 68% less of its value, and 75% less than other Karate After 

School Programs at Private Studios.  Our services will include: Karate After School program for 

up to 774 Elementary students and up to 112 Jr. High Students in 6 rotations of 6 weeks each 

throughout each of the school years.  Toyama agrees to teach 5 times a week and have 

Instructors work 4 hours Mondays, Tuesdays, Thursdays, Fridays, and 5 hours on Wednesdays.  

Toyama is responsible for the following expenses upon proposed budget approval: (1) Payroll of 

Instructors, Supervisors, Coordinators, Advisors, and Director.  (2) Training of Instructors (3) 

General Liability Insurance. (4) Materials such as gear and equipment for training. (5) Office 

Materials and communication such as copies and flyers. (6) Instructor apparel  

 

A. Example of Normal Cost Per Student in Karate:   Regular fees for a service such as the 

one in this proposal, has a valued cost per child of $10 each hour, which represents $50 a week = 

$300 a 6 week rotation. 

B. Our proposed cost for SAUSD will be substantially less because of our efforts to reach 

out to the community and assist district goals for the enrichment portion of the After 

School Program.  Our mission is to use Dynamic Martial Arts as a tool for enrichment in order 

to help student maximize their potential academically. The cost per child is $3 for each hour of 

class, which represents $15 a week = $90 a 6 week rotation. 

 

  

 

Page 9 



 Explanation of Regular Karate Fees  

 

o Normal Cost Elementary  Schools (1 Student)    

1 Hour Class/Per Day        $             10.00         

5 Classes / 1 Week            $             50.00   

Cost Per Child 1 Rotation       $           300.00   

Cost for up to 774 Students 6 rotations of 6 weeks    $1,393,200.00  

o Normal Cost Jr. Highs Schools (1 Student)    

1 Hour Class/Per Day        $             10.00         

5 Classes / 1 Week            $             50.00   

Cost Per Child 1 Rotation       $           300.00   

Cost for up to 112 Students 6 rotations of 6 weeks    $    201,600.00 

 

 TOTAL DIRECT (REGULAR) COST FOR SERVICE   $1,594,800.00 

 

C. Proposed Cost Break Down to SAUSD for the same service 2015-2016 

(District Commitment):  

Elementary  

 1 Hour Class/Per Day / Per Student          $             3.00 

 

 

 5 Classes / 1 Week / Per Student          $           15.00 

 

 

 1 Rotation of  6 weeks  / Per Student     $           90.00 

 

 

 1 Rotations of 6 weeks / up to 774 Elementary Students   $    69,660.00 

 

 

 6 Rotations of 6 weeks / up to 774 Elementary Students   $  417,960.00 

 

Total Cost for Elementary for 2015-2016                        $417,960.00 



 

Jr. High School 

 1 Hour Class/Per Day / Per Student          $             3.00 

 

 

 5 Classes / 1 Week / Per Student          $           15.00 

 

 

 1 Rotation of  6 weeks  / Per Student     $           90.00 

 

 

 1 Rotations of 6 weeks / up to 112 Jr. High Students    $    10,080.00 

 

 

 6 Rotations of 6 weeks / up to 112 Jr. High Students    $    60,480.00 

 

Total      Cost for Jr. High for 2015-2016                      $    60,480.00 

 

D.           Total Cost to SAUSD for 2015-2016            $       478,440.00 

 

o Elementary  $  417,960.00 

o Jr High  $    60,480.00 

 

 

              *Budget Breakdown 

 Staff ( In compliance with contract)                                     $       464,800.00 

o Staff ( In compliance with contract)                                      

o Director, Coordinator, Instructors   

(15 Instructors + 1 Permanent backup Instructor)                                   

 Statutory and other employee benefit cost             $        10,500.00 

 Supplies and Equipment               $           3,140.00 

 

 

 

Page 10 



D. In-Kind Resources Provided:  The value cost of our program to provide a service to all the 

kids in the after school program k-8 at all 46 schools (Elementary & Jr. High) is 

$1,594,800.00.00 in which we are committed to helping the community by giving the SAUSD an 

“in-kind” donation discount of $1,116,360.00 towards the cost of the 2015-2016 program.  

Leaving a total cost to the SAUSD of $478,440.00. 

 

 

E. Total Cost forecast for the same service 2016-2017  

  

       Total Cost SAUSD 2016-2017                        $       518,310.00 

o Elementary Budget  $  452,790.00 at $3.25 a class per student 

o Jr High Budget   $    65,520.00 at $3.25 a class per student 

 

F. Total Cost forecast for the same service 2017-2018 (Status Quo) 

  

       Total Cost SAUSD 2016-2017                        $       518,310.00 

o Elementary Budget  $  452,790.00 at $3.25 a class per student 

o Jr High Budget   $    65,520.00 at $3.25 a class per student 

 

G. Commitment and Adequate Resources:  Our commitment towards SAUSD is to provide 

our area of expertise to facilitate the educational enrichment needed for the students in the 

district.  We have the resources to meet the requirements of providing a program at each of the 

sites requested, and to maintain a transparent program that provides what it is contracted for.  

Our program is willing to negotiate alternatives, new ideas, and implement our services as 

needed.  Our commitment to the community is far beyond just a contract, we want to empower 

and inspire the students we serve to pay attention to the Teachers, and Staff who guide their 

Academic Goals. 

 

6. Success and Sustainability 

 

A. Record of Success: This is will be our 14
th

 consecutive year providing our Karate Program to 

the SAUSD as Enrichment Providers offering Specialized Movement through Dynamic Martial 

Arts.  We have taught an average of 645 students per year up to 2014 and now over 3500 per 

year as of 2015, and have had a daily attendance of approximately 96%.  We are the most seked 

enrichment activities selected by administrators, teachers, staff and most important students 

during enrichment time; and our program will have completed 213,640 Healthy Hours of training 

once the 2014-2015 after school program is done.  The students in the program or who have been 

exposed to our program show more discipline, confidence, and focus which has lead them to 

better grades and better conduct.   

Page 11 



We have always maintained a great relationship with District in order to provide a program that 

always meets guidelines and collaborates with the mission to help students achieve Academic 

Achievement. Our program has been a stepping stone for many great students who started in the 

After School Program and continued.  Some examples are (1) Eileen Macias, Segerstrom High 

School Alumni Class of 2012, attending UC San Francisco on a Scholarship for her GPA and 

volunteer hours as a Jr. Black Belt in our program. (2) Noemi Urquiza, Godinez High School 

Alumni Class of 2013, Attending Harvard University on a Scholarship and part of the 

Taekwondo Team(3) Julissa Mendoza, Saddleback High School Alumni, Class of 2014 attending 

Concordia University and part of the Young Senators program as well as a Jr. Black Belt.  They 

all started in the after school programs. 

 

We have great relationships with many organizations and institutions that we have worked with 

and still maintain a great partnership.  Santa Ana Parks and Recreation, Tustin Parks and 

Recreation, Orange County Educational Arts Academy (OCEA), Orange County Therapeutic 

Arts Center (OCTAC), California Youth Soccer League, Los Amigos of Orange County, Youth 

Motivational Task Force, Santa Ana Public Library, Mary’s Shelters in Tustin, 20 Santa Ana 

District Schools as Official Partners, Mothers Against Drunk Driving (MADD), The National 

Center on Addiction and Substance Abuse at Columbia University,  

 

B. Sustainability Plan: Toyama will continue to offer its unique Dynamic Karate program in 

order to promote a specialized movement activity that will teach values and principles to students 

at the same time.  Toyama will also be available whenever the SAUSD is in need of educational 

enrichment support far beyond just teaching Karate at the proposed sites.  The communication 

between our program and District will be a key element to the ongoing partnership established.  

 

C. References:  The following individuals have expressed an interest to support and serve as a 

reference towards our proposal.  Detailed information can be provided upon request. 

 

Senator, Mimi Walters - Former Senator Lou Correa - City of Santa Ana Mayor, Miguel Pulido - 

City of Santa Ana Councilwoman, Michelle Martinez - City of Santa Ana Councilman, Roman 

Reyna - Santa Ana Parks and Recreation, Jeannie Jurado - President of Los Amigos de Orange 

County, Dr. Jose Moreno - Santa Ana Public Library, Silvia Cisneros - Mothers Against Drunk 

Driving (MADD), Belem Solis – District 4 PTA, Helen Martinez. 

 

 

End Notes: Toyama Karate-Do Organization is submitting this proposal to the Santa Ana 

Unified School District (SAUSD) for the up-coming 2015-2016 school year followed by 2 

consecutive years after that for the 2016-2017 and 2017-2018, in an effort to continue on-going 

service which has had great results and cost effectiveness as a providers since 2000. 

                                                                                        
________________________________        ___________________________________ 

Rodolfo Cazales, Owner/Chief Instructor          Araceli Cazales/Director 
“Youth Developing Self Discipline Through Martial Arts” 

 

 Page 12 































































AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 

May 26, 2015 

 

Board Meeting 

 

TITLE: Authorization to Extend Contracts Awarded through Request for 

Proposals or Bid for 2015-16 Fiscal Year and Approval to Continue 

use of Previously Approved Piggyback Bids, California Multiple 

Award Schedule and Western States Contracting Alliance 

Agreements 

 

ITEM:  Action 

SUBMITTED BY: Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed. D., Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

Joe Dixon, Assistant Superintendent, Facilities & Governmental 

Relations 

PREPARED BY: Jonathan Geiszler, Director, Purchasing and Stores 

   Todd Butcher, Director, Construction   

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 

The Board has authorized the award of contracts through the bidding and Request for Proposals 

process over the last several years as well as approved use of piggyback, California Multiple 

Award Schedule (CMAS) and Western States Contracting Alliance (WSCA) agreements.  The 

attached document lists the contract items or services that may be purchased during the 2015-16 

fiscal year for new or replacement District needs, to replenish warehouse stock, for facilities 

maintenance and services and Nutrition Services. 

 

This renewal authorization permits staff to utilize the pricing for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 

2015 through June 30, 2016 for previously awarded bids and contracts.  Vendor selection was in 

compliance with Board Policies.   

 

 

RATIONALE: 

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board approval to renew contracts awarded through 

the bidding and Request for Proposals process as well as approve the continued use of 

piggyback, CMAS and WSCA agreements which were previously Board approved. 

 

 

FUNDING: 

 

Various Budgeted Funds as requested 

 

 

 

 



 

RECOMMENDATION: 

   

Authorize staff to renew contracts awarded through Bids or Request for Proposals and approve 

the continued use of piggyback, California Multiple Award Schedule and Western States 

Contracting Alliance agreements which were previously Board approved for 2015-16 fiscal year 

for the term of the original contracts. 

 

 
SP:mm 

 

 







 

AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 

May 26, 2015 

 

Board Meeting 
 

TITLE: Authorization to Renew Annual Listing of Agreements/Contracts with 

Santa Ana Unified School District and Various Consultants 

Submitted for 2015-16 Fiscal Year 

 

 

ITEM:  Action  

SUBMITTED BY: Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

PREPARED BY: Jonathan Geiszler, Director, Purchasing and Stores 

 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board authorization to renew the annual listing of 

agreements/contracts with Santa Ana Unified School District and various consultants submitted 

for the 2015-16 fiscal year. 

 

 

RATIONALE: 

 

Consultants have been requested by school sites and District staff to enhance and support 

educational programs and provide professional development to improve student achievement. 

 

The attached list identifies various consultants that will provide services throughout the District 

whose compensation is under $250,000. 

 

 

FUNDING: 

 

Not Applicable 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

   

Authorize staff to renew the annual listing of agreements/contracts with the Santa Ana Unified 

School District and various consultants for the 2015-16 fiscal year. 

 

 

 
SP:mm 





20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: E
du

ca
tio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
ay

 2
6,

 2
01

5 
 

 
N

O
. 

 
N

AM
E 

 
IM

PL
IC

AT
IO

N
S 

FO
R 

TH
E 

DI
ST

RI
CT

/T
YP

E 
O

F 
SE

RV
IC

E 
 

DA
TE

 
 

AN
N

U
AL

 
RE

N
EW

AL
 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 

EX
CE

ED
 

 1.
 

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
, 

Irv
in

e 
M

at
h 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 

 Ed
uc

at
io

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

K-
12

: 
W

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

fo
r 

te
ac

he
rs

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 C

om
m

on
 C

or
e 

M
at

h,
 r

ev
ie

w
 u

ni
ts

 o
f 

st
ud

y,
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 c

la
ss

ro
om

 
co

ac
hi

ng
.  

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

S.
D.

 B
ec

ht
el

 
Gr

an
t 

 
$7

4,
52

0 
 

$7
4,

52
0 

 2.
 

 

 Si
lic

on
 V

al
le

y 
 Ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
Se

rv
ic

es
: 

W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 7
0 

se
ss

io
ns

 o
f 

m
at

h 
pr

of
es

sio
na

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
se

rv
ic

es
 t

o 
Di

st
ric

t 
st

af
f 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
th

e 
ne

w
 

St
at

e 
St

an
da

rd
s 

an
d 

m
at

he
m

at
ic

al
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

. 
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

S.
D.

 B
ec

ht
el

 
Gr

an
t 

 
$1

90
,0

00
 

 
$1

90
,0

00
 

 3.
 

  

 Do
cu

m
en

t T
ra

ck
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
, L

LC
 

 Re
se

ar
ch

 a
nd

 E
va

lu
at

io
n:

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 
as

sis
t 

th
e 

Di
st

ric
t 

in
 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
th

e 
Sc

ho
ol

 
Ac

co
un

ta
bi

lit
y 

Re
po

rt
 C

ar
ds

 (
SA

RC
) 

vi
a 

a 
w

eb
-b

as
ed

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
th

at
 

w
ill

 
cu

st
om

ize
 

an
d 

pr
e-

po
pu

la
te

 
on

lin
e 

te
m

pl
at

es
 

to
 

pr
od

uc
e 

sc
ho

ol
 

an
d 

Di
st

ric
t 

re
po

rt
s t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 S

ta
te

 a
nd

 F
ed

er
al

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
. 

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$2

2,
44

5 
 

$2
3,

64
5 

 4.
 

 

 Ea
gl

e 
So

ft
w

ar
e 

    

 Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

In
no

va
tio

ns
 

Se
rv

ic
es

: 
W

ill
 

pr
ov

id
e 

pr
of

es
sio

na
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t f

or
 A

ER
IE

S 
St

ud
en

t 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Sy

st
em

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 

to
 

st
af

f 
an

d 
di

re
ct

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 i

n 
su

bj
ec

t 
ar

ea
s,

 s
uc

h 
as

 M
as

te
r 

Sc
he

du
le

, 
th

at
 re

qu
ire

 a
 h

ig
h 

le
ve

l o
f e

xp
er

tis
e 

an
d 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e,
 

on
 a

n 
“a

s n
ee

de
d”

 b
as

is.
 

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$1

6,
00

0 
 

$1
0,

00
0 

1 
 



 20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: E
du

ca
tio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
ay

 2
6,

 2
01

5 
Pa

ge
 2

 
 

 
N

O
. 

 
N

AM
E 

 
IM

PL
IC

AT
IO

N
S 

FO
R 

TH
E 

DI
ST

RI
CT

/T
YP

E 
O

F 
SE

RV
IC

E 
 

DA
TE

 
 

AN
N

U
AL

 
RE

N
EW

AL
 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 

EX
CE

ED
 

 5.
 

 Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
Sc

ho
ol

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up
, I

nc
. 

      

 Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

In
no

va
tio

ns
 

Se
rv

ic
es

: 
W

ill
 

pr
ov

id
e 

pr
of

es
sio

na
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 f
or

 E
-R

at
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

, 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 
en

d-
to

-e
nd

 s
ol

ut
io

ns
, t

o 
en

su
re

 F
CC

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

an
d 

m
ax

im
um

 f
un

di
ng

 f
or

 t
he

 D
ist

ric
t’s

 E
-R

at
e 

pr
og

ra
m

; 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

ll 
FC

C 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n,

 
m

ai
n 

po
in

t 
of

 
co

nt
ac

t, 
pr

ep
ar

e 
an

d 
pr

es
en

t 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 a
ud

it 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n,

 a
nd

 a
dv

ise
 o

n 
an

y 
FC

C 
ap

pe
al

s,
 o

n 
an

 “
as

 n
ee

de
d”

 b
as

is.
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$8

5,
00

0 
 

$8
5,

00
0 

 6.
 

 DT
-C

om
p,

 In
c.

 
     

 Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

In
no

va
tio

ns
 

Se
rv

ic
es

: 
W

ill
 

pr
ov

id
e 

pr
of

es
sio

na
l s

er
vi

ce
s t

o 
su

pp
or

t a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
m

iss
io

n 
cr

iti
ca

l 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
Ac

tiv
e 

Di
re

ct
or

y/
Ex

ch
an

ge
 E

-m
ai

l 
se

rv
er

, 
se

cu
rit

y,
 n

et
w

or
k 

an
al

ys
is,

 d
isa

st
er

 r
ec

ov
er

y,
 a

nd
 f

or
en

sic
 d

isc
ov

er
y,

 
et

c.
, o

n 
an

 “
as

 n
ee

de
d”

 b
as

is 
at

 a
 r

at
e 

of
 $

14
5 

pe
r 

ho
ur

. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$1

00
,0

00
 

 
$5

8,
00

0 

 7.
 

  E
du

ca
tio

n 
Pi

on
ee

rs
 

 Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 I

nn
ov

at
io

ns
 S

er
vi

ce
s:

  
W

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
An

al
ys

t 
Fe

llo
w

s 
w

ith
 

st
ro

ng
 

an
al

yt
ic

al
, 

pr
oj

ec
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

sk
ill

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 
an

al
yt

ic
s 

in
 

an
 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t. 

 U
p 

to
 fi

ve
 A

na
ly

st
 F

el
lo

w
s.

 
 N

ot
e:

  
Di

st
ric

t 
pa

ym
en

t 
to

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
di

re
ct

ly
 t

o 
th

e 
An

al
ys

t 
Fe

llo
w

 s
ha

ll 
be

 p
ur

su
an

t 
to

 a
 s

ep
ar

at
el

y 
ne

go
tia

te
d 

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
Ag

re
em

en
t 

w
ith

 
An

al
ys

t F
el

lo
w

s.
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$7

6,
50

0 
 

$7
6,

50
0 

2 
 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: E
du

ca
tio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
ay

 2
6,

 2
01

5 
Pa

ge
 3

 
     
N

O
. 

 
N

AM
E 

 
IM

PL
IC

AT
IO

N
S 

FO
R 

TH
E 

DI
ST

RI
CT

/T
YP

E 
O

F 
SE

RV
IC

E 
 

DA
TE

 
 

AN
N

U
AL

 
RE

N
EW

AL
 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 

EX
CE

ED
 

 8.
 

 Gr
ay

 M
ill

er
 P

er
sh

 L
LP

 
(F

or
m

er
 n

am
e:

 
Do

w
 L

oh
ne

s P
LL

C)
 

 

 Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

In
no

va
tio

ns
 

Se
rv

ic
es

: 
W

ill
 

pr
ov

id
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
n 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
Br

oa
db

an
d 

Se
rv

ic
es

 r
eg

ul
at

or
y 

an
d 

le
as

e 
m

at
te

rs
 r

el
at

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
FC

C.
  

Gr
ay

 M
ill

er
 

Pe
rs

h,
 L

LP
, h

as
 a

 lo
ng

 s
ta

nd
in

g 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
w

ith
 t

he
 

Di
st

ric
t w

or
ki

ng
 in

 th
is 

ar
ea

. 
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$2

,5
00

 
 

$2
,5

00
 

9.
 

Pa
dr

es
 U

ni
do

s 
G

ar
fie

ld
 E

le
m

en
ta

ry
: 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 b
i-w

ee
kl

y 
th

re
e-

ho
ur

 c
la

ss
es

 f
or

 f
iv

e 
w

ee
ks

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

su
m

m
er

 o
f 

pa
re

nt
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

s,
 

th
at

 
in

co
rp

or
at

e 
in

-c
la

ss
ro

om
 

sc
ho

ol
 re

ad
in

es
s 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 fo

r 3
½

 to
 5

 y
ea

r o
ld

s,
 a

nd
 

pa
re

nt
in

g 
sk

ill
s 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 f
or

 p
ar

en
ts

 a
nd

 c
ar

eg
iv

er
s.

  
Th

es
e 

tw
o 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 s
im

ul
ta

ne
ou

sly
 

in
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

cl
as

sr
oo

m
s,

 o
ne

 f
or

 t
he

 p
ar

en
ts

 a
nd

 o
ne

 
fo

r t
he

 c
hi

ld
re

n.
 

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
Th

ro
ug

h 
Au

gu
st

 3
1,

 
20

15
 

 X 
 

Ti
tle

 I 
  

 
$3

,5
54

 

10
. 

Pa
dr

es
 U

ni
do

s 
Je

ffe
rs

on
 E

le
m

en
ta

ry
:  

W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 b
i-w

ee
kl

y 
th

re
e-

ho
ur

 c
la

ss
es

 f
or

 f
iv

e 
w

ee
ks

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

su
m

m
er

 o
f 

pa
re

nt
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

s,
 

th
at

 
in

co
rp

or
at

e 
in

-c
la

ss
ro

om
 

sc
ho

ol
 re

ad
in

es
s 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 fo

r 3
½

 to
 5

 y
ea

r o
ld

s,
 a

nd
 

pa
re

nt
in

g 
sk

ill
s 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 f
or

 p
ar

en
ts

 a
nd

 c
ar

eg
iv

er
s.

  
Th

es
e 

tw
o 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 s
im

ul
ta

ne
ou

sly
 

in
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

cl
as

sr
oo

m
s,

 o
ne

 f
or

 t
he

 p
ar

en
ts

 a
nd

 o
ne

 
fo

r t
he

 c
hi

ld
re

n.
 

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
Th

ro
ug

h 
Au

gu
st

 3
1,

 
20

15
 

 X 
 

Ti
tle

 I 
  

 
$3

,5
54

 

3 
 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: E
du

ca
tio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
ay

 2
6,

 2
01

5 
Pa

ge
 4

 
 

  

 
N

O
. 

 
N

AM
E 

 
IM

PL
IC

AT
IO

N
S 

FO
R 

TH
E 

DI
ST

RI
CT

/T
YP

E 
O

F 
SE

RV
IC

E 
 

DA
TE

 
 

AN
N

U
AL

 
RE

N
EW

AL
 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 

EX
CE

ED
 

11
. 

Pa
dr

es
 U

ni
do

s 
M

ar
tin

 E
le

m
en

ta
ry

: 
 W

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 b

i-w
ee

kl
y 

th
re

e-
ho

ur
 c

la
ss

es
 f

or
 f

iv
e 

w
ee

ks
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
su

m
m

er
 o

f 
pa

re
nt

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
s,

 
th

at
 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

in
-c

la
ss

ro
om

 
sc

ho
ol

 re
ad

in
es

s 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 fo
r 3

½
 to

 5
 y

ea
r o

ld
s,

 a
nd

 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

sk
ill

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 f

or
 p

ar
en

ts
 a

nd
 c

ar
eg

iv
er

s.
  

Th
es

e 
tw

o 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s 
ar

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 s

im
ul

ta
ne

ou
sly

 
in

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
cl

as
sr

oo
m

s,
 o

ne
 fo

r 
th

e 
pa

re
nt

s 
an

d 
on

e 
fo

r t
he

 c
hi

ld
re

n.
 

 

 
Ju

ly
 2

, 2
01

5 
Th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ly
 2

3,
 2

01
5 

 X 
 

Ti
tle

 I 
  

 
$2

,4
87

.8
0 

12
. 

Pa
dr

es
 U

ni
do

s 
M

on
te

 V
is

ta
 E

le
m

en
ta

ry
: 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 b
i-w

ee
kl

y 
th

re
e-

ho
ur

 c
la

ss
es

 fo
r 

fiv
e 

w
ee

ks
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
su

m
m

er
 

of
 p

ar
en

t 
tr

ai
ni

ng
s,

 t
ha

t 
in

co
rp

or
at

e 
in

-c
la

ss
ro

om
 

sc
ho

ol
 re

ad
in

es
s 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 fo

r 3
½

 to
 5

 y
ea

r o
ld

s,
 a

nd
 

pa
re

nt
in

g 
sk

ill
s 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 f
or

 p
ar

en
ts

 a
nd

 c
ar

eg
iv

er
s.

  
Th

es
e 

tw
o 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 s
im

ul
ta

ne
ou

sly
 

in
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

cl
as

sr
oo

m
s,

 o
ne

 fo
r 

th
e 

pa
re

nt
s 

an
d 

on
e 

fo
r t

he
 c

hi
ld

re
n.

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
Th

ro
ug

h 
Au

gu
st

 3
1,

 
20

15
 

 X 
 

LC
AP

 
Di

sc
re

tio
na

ry
 

  
 

$3
,5

54
 

13
. 

Pa
dr

es
 U

ni
do

s 
Pi

o 
Pi

co
 E

le
m

en
ta

ry
: 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 b
i-w

ee
kl

y 
th

re
e-

ho
ur

 c
la

ss
es

 f
or

 f
iv

e 
w

ee
ks

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

su
m

m
er

 o
f 

pa
re

nt
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

s,
 

th
at

 
in

co
rp

or
at

e 
in

-c
la

ss
ro

om
 

sc
ho

ol
 re

ad
in

es
s 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 fo

r 3
½

 to
 5

 y
ea

r o
ld

s,
 a

nd
 

pa
re

nt
in

g 
sk

ill
s 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 f
or

 p
ar

en
ts

 a
nd

 c
ar

eg
iv

er
s.

  
Th

es
e 

tw
o 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 s
im

ul
ta

ne
ou

sly
 

in
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

cl
as

sr
oo

m
s,

 o
ne

 fo
r 

th
e 

pa
re

nt
s 

an
d 

on
e 

fo
r t

he
 c

hi
ld

re
n.

 
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
Th

ro
ug

h 
Au

gu
st

 3
1,

 
20

15
 

 X 
 

Ti
tle

 I 
  

 
$3

,5
54

 

4 
 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: E
du

ca
tio

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
ay

 2
6,

 2
01

5 
Pa

ge
 5

 
 

 

 
N

O
. 

 
N

AM
E 

 
IM

PL
IC

AT
IO

N
S 

FO
R 

TH
E 

DI
ST

RI
CT

/T
YP

E 
O

F 
SE

RV
IC

E 
 

DA
TE

 
 

AN
N

U
AL

 
RE

N
EW

AL
 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 

EX
CE

ED
 

14
. 

Pa
dr

es
 U

ni
do

s 
W

al
ke

r 
El

em
en

ta
ry

: 
 W

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 b

i-w
ee

kl
y 

th
re

e-
ho

ur
 c

la
ss

es
 f

or
 f

iv
e 

w
ee

ks
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
su

m
m

er
 o

f 
pa

re
nt

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
s,

 
th

at
 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

in
-c

la
ss

ro
om

 
sc

ho
ol

 re
ad

in
es

s 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 fo
r 3

½
 to

 5
 y

ea
r o

ld
s,

 a
nd

 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

sk
ill

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 f

or
 p

ar
en

ts
 a

nd
 c

ar
eg

iv
er

s.
  

Th
es

e 
tw

o 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s 
ar

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 s

im
ul

ta
ne

ou
sly

 
in

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
cl

as
sr

oo
m

s,
 o

ne
 fo

r 
th

e 
pa

re
nt

s 
an

d 
on

e 
fo

r t
he

 c
hi

ld
re

n.
 

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
Th

ro
ug

h 
Au

gu
st

 3
1,

 
20

15
 

 X 
 

Ti
tle

 I 
  

 
$3

,5
54

 
 

15
. 

Pa
dr

es
 U

ni
do

s 
Jim

 
Th

or
pe

 
El

em
en

ta
ry

: 
 

W
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
bi

-w
ee

kl
y 

th
re

e-
ho

ur
 c

la
ss

es
 fo

r 
fiv

e 
w

ee
ks

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

su
m

m
er

 
of

 p
ar

en
t 

tr
ai

ni
ng

s,
 t

ha
t 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

in
-c

la
ss

ro
om

 
sc

ho
ol

 re
ad

in
es

s 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 fo
r 3

½
 to

 5
 y

ea
r o

ld
s,

 a
nd

 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

sk
ill

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 f

or
 p

ar
en

ts
 a

nd
 c

ar
eg

iv
er

s.
  

Th
es

e 
tw

o 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s 
ar

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 s

im
ul

ta
ne

ou
sly

 
in

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
cl

as
sr

oo
m

s,
 o

ne
 fo

r 
th

e 
pa

re
nt

s 
an

d 
on

e 
fo

r t
he

 c
hi

ld
re

n.
 

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
Th

ro
ug

h 
Au

gu
st

 3
1,

 
20

15
 

 X 
 

Di
sc

re
tio

na
ry

 
  

 
$3

,5
54

 

16
. 

Pa
dr

es
 U

ni
do

s 
Fr

em
on

t 
El

em
en

ta
ry

: 
 W

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 b

i-w
ee

kl
y 

th
re

e-
ho

ur
 c

la
ss

es
 f

or
 f

iv
e 

w
ee

ks
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
su

m
m

er
 o

f 
pa

re
nt

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
s,

 
th

at
 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

in
-c

la
ss

ro
om

 
sc

ho
ol

 re
ad

in
es

s 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 fo
r 3

½
 to

 5
 y

ea
r o

ld
s,

 a
nd

 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

sk
ill

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 f

or
 p

ar
en

ts
 a

nd
 c

ar
eg

iv
er

s.
  

Th
es

e 
tw

o 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s 
ar

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 s

im
ul

ta
ne

ou
sly

 
in

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
cl

as
sr

oo
m

s,
 o

ne
 fo

r 
th

e 
pa

re
nt

s 
an

d 
on

e 
fo

r t
he

 c
hi

ld
re

n.
 

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
Th

ro
ug

h 
Au

gu
st

 3
1,

 
20

15
 

 X 
 

Di
sc

re
tio

na
ry

 
  

 
$3

,5
54

 

5 
 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: B
us

in
es

s S
er

vi
ce

s 
M

ay
 2

6,
 2

01
5 

 
 

N
O

. 
 

N
AM

E 
 

IM
PL

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
FO

R 
TH

E 
DI

ST
RI

CT
/T

YP
E 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E 

 
DA

TE
 

 
AN

N
U

AL
 

RE
N

EW
AL

 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 

EX
CE

ED
 

 17
. 

 Ed
uc

at
io

na
l C

on
su

lti
ng

 
Se

rv
ic

es
 (E

CS
) 

 Ac
co

un
tin

g:
 

W
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
M

an
da

te
d 

Co
st

 
Re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s.

 
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$4

0,
00

0 
 

$4
0,

00
0 

 18
. 

 Ca
pi

to
l A

dv
iso

rs
 G

ro
up

, 
LL

C 

 Bu
si

ne
ss

 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

: 
W

ill
 

re
pr

es
en

t 
Di

st
ric

t 
on

 
bu

dg
et

 is
su

es
 b

ef
or

e 
le

gi
sla

tiv
e 

ac
tio

n 
is 

ta
ke

n 
on

 a
n 

“a
s n

ee
de

d”
 b

as
is.

 
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$2

6,
00

0 
 

$2
6,

00
0 

 19
. 

 Go
ve

rn
m

en
t F

in
an

ci
al

 
St

ra
te

gi
es

, I
nc

. 
  

 Bu
si

ne
ss

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
: 

W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 f
in

an
ci

al
 a

dv
ic

e 
an

d 
re

po
rt

s 
on

 
Di

st
ric

t 
ca

sh
 

flo
w

 
an

d/
or

 
de

bt
 

fin
an

ci
ng

 re
la

te
d 

to
 G

.O
. B

on
ds

, C
O

Ps
, Q

ZA
Bs

 e
tc

., 
on

 
an

 “
as

 n
ee

de
d”

 b
as

is.
 

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$2

5,
00

0 
 

$2
5,

00
0 

 20
. 

 Jo
se

ph
 W

. R
om

bo
ld

 d
ba

 
Co

de
ch

ek
 

 

 Bu
si

ne
ss

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
: 

W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
ss

ist
an

ce
 w

ith
 

st
at

ut
or

y 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
re

la
te

d 
to

 
th

e 
m

an
da

te
 

re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 a
nd

 m
an

da
te

 b
lo

ck
 g

ra
nt

. 
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 

 
$3

0,
00

0 
 

$3
0,

00
0 

 
21

. 
 Za

rc
a 

In
te

ra
ct

iv
e,

 In
c.

 d
ba

 
K1

2 
In

sig
ht

 
   

 Bu
si

ne
ss

 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

: 
W

ill
 

pr
ov

id
e 

Lo
ca

l 
Co

nt
ro

l 
Ac

co
un

ta
bi

lit
y 

Pl
an

 
su

pp
or

t 
fo

r 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
an

d 
pa

re
nt

s 
su

rv
ey

s 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 o
ng

oi
ng

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

to
ol

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 t
he

 D
ist

ric
t 

w
ith

 a
 

w
eb

-b
as

ed
 re

po
rt

in
g 

da
sh

bo
ar

d.
 

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$8

3,
70

0 
 

$8
3,

70
0 

 
6 

 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: B
us

in
es

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

M
ay

 2
6,

 2
01

5 
Pa

ge
 2

 
 

 
N

O
. 

 
N

AM
E 

 
IM

PL
IC

AT
IO

N
S 

FO
R 

TH
E 

DI
ST

RI
CT

/T
YP

E 
O

F 
SE

RV
IC

E 
 

DA
TE

 
 

AN
N

U
AL

 
RE

N
EW

AL
 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 

EX
CE

ED
 

 22
. 

 La
ur

el
 A

dl
er

 
 Bu

si
ne

ss
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

:  
W

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 re

vi
ew

 
an

d 
an

al
yz

e 
ch

ar
te

r 
pe

tit
io

ns
 a

ga
in

st
 t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 

re
la

te
d 

se
ct

io
ns

 
of

 
th

e 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a 

Ch
ar

te
r 

La
w

 
Re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. 

 C
on

su
lta

nt
 w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 o

n 
an

 “
as

 
ne

ed
ed

” 
ba

sis
. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$1

8,
00

0 
 

$1
8,

00
0 

 23
. 

 Sc
ho

ol
 S

er
vi

ce
s o

f 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a 

 Bu
si

ne
ss

 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

: 
 

W
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
pr

of
es

sio
na

l 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 a

dv
ise

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f B
us

in
es

s S
er

vi
ce

s.
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$1

5,
00

0 
 

$1
5,

00
0 

 24
. 

 St
ra

te
gi

c 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

 Bu
si

ne
ss

 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

: 
W

ill
 

re
pr

es
en

t 
Di

st
ric

t 
on

 
bu

dg
et

 is
su

es
 b

ef
or

e 
le

gi
sla

tiv
e 

ac
tio

n 
is 

ta
ke

n 
on

 a
n 

“a
s n

ee
de

d”
 b

as
is.

 
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$3

6,
00

0 
 

$3
6,

00
0 

 25
. 

 Va
vr

in
ek

, T
rin

e,
 D

ay
 &

 C
o.

, 
LL

P 
 

 Bu
si

ne
ss

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
: 

W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
ud

iti
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
pr

ep
ar

e 
ta

x 
re

tu
rn

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
Sa

nt
a 

An
a 

U
ni

fie
d 

Sc
ho

ol
 D

ist
ric

t P
ub

lic
 F

ac
ili

tie
s C

or
po

ra
tio

n.
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$8

1,
00

0 
 

$8
3,

00
0 

 26
. 

 Al
lia

nt
 In

su
ra

nc
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

  
  

 In
su

ra
nc

e 
Be

ne
fit

s:
  

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 

th
e 

Di
st

ric
t 

H
ea

lth
 B

en
ef

its
 a

nd
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

on
 H

ea
lth

 
Ca

re
 R

ef
or

m
 a

s i
t r

el
at

es
 to

 m
ed

ic
al

 a
nd

 d
en

ta
l p

la
n.

 
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$1

93
,0

00
 

 
$1

93
,0

00
 

 27
. 

 Ba
rn

ey
 &

 B
ar

ne
y 

 
 In

su
ra

nc
e 

Be
ne

fit
s:

  
W

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 H

ea
lth

 B
en

ef
its

 
se

rv
ic

es
 f

or
 t

he
 S

an
ta

 A
na

 E
du

ca
to

rs
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
(S

AE
A)

 a
nd

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 S

ch
oo

l 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

(C
SE

A)
. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$5

5,
00

0 
 

$5
5,

00
0 

7 
 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: B
us

in
es

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

M
ay

 2
6,

 2
01

5 
Pa

ge
 3

 
 

 
N

O
. 

 
N

AM
E 

 
IM

PL
IC

AT
IO

N
S 

FO
R 

TH
E 

DI
ST

RI
CT

/T
YP

E 
O

F 
SE

RV
IC

E 
 

DA
TE

 
 

AN
N

U
AL

 
RE

N
EW

AL
 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 

EX
CE

ED
 

 28
. 

 Pr
em

ie
r F

oo
d 

Sa
fe

ty
 

 N
ut

rit
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
: 

Th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 

w
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 f

or
 S

er
vS

er
ve

 F
oo

d 
M

an
ag

er
 C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

cl
as

se
s 

an
d 

ex
am

s 
fo

r 
st

af
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ur
po

se
s 

to
 

Fo
od

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s 

in
 a

re
a 

of
 F

oo
d 

Sa
fe

ty
.  

 
U

po
n 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 t
he

 c
ou

rs
e 

st
af

f 
w

ill
 

po
ss

es
s 

a 
fiv

e 
ye

ar
 

na
tio

na
lly

 
re

co
gn

ize
d 

Fo
od

 
M

an
ag

er
 c

er
tif

ic
at

e.
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Fu
nd

 1
3 

 
$5

,0
00

 
 

$7
,0

00
 

 29
. 

 SQ
U

AR
E 

(1
) D

es
ig

n 
 N

ut
rit

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

: 
W

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 d

es
ig

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 f

or
 

ki
tc

he
n 

up
gr

ad
es

 
fo

r 
su

bm
itt

al
 

to
 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t o
f E

du
ca

tio
n 

ap
pr

ov
al

. 
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Fu
nd

 1
3/

 
Fu

nd
s:

 0
1,

 
14

, 2
4,

 2
5,

 
26

, 2
8,

 2
9,

 
35

, 4
0 

 
$2

50
,0

00
  

 
$1

00
,0

00
 

$1
50

,0
00

 
$2

50
,0

00
  

 30
. 

 R&
D 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
, I

nc
. 

  

 Pu
rc

ha
si

ng
: 

W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n,

 p
la

nn
in

g,
 

an
d 

ro
ut

in
g 

an
d 

sc
he

du
lin

g,
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

po
rt

in
g 

an
d 

ca
ll 

ce
nt

er
 

se
rv

ic
es

 
fo

r 
st

ud
en

t 
ho

m
e 

to
 

sc
ho

ol
 

tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n.
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$2

35
,0

00
 

 
$2

35
,0

00
 

        

8 
 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: B
us

in
es

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

M
ay

 2
6,

 2
01

5 
Pa

ge
 4

 
 

 
N

O
. 

 
N

AM
E 

 
IM

PL
IC

AT
IO

N
S 

FO
R 

TH
E 

DI
ST

RI
CT

/T
YP

E 
O

F 
SE

RV
IC

E 
 

DA
TE

 
 

AN
N

U
AL

 
RE

N
EW

AL
 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 

EX
CE

ED
 

 31
. 

 AO
N

  G
lo

ba
l R

isk
 

Co
ns

ul
tin

g 
  

 Ri
sk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t: 

W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
ct

ua
ria

l 
st

ud
y 

of
 

W
or

ke
rs

’ C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
 a

s o
f J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
4.

 
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Se
lf-

In
su

ra
nc

e 
Fu

nd
 

 
$5

,0
00

 
 

$5
,0

00
 

 32
. 

 Dr
. G

re
g 

Sa
nc

ie
r  

   

 Ri
sk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t: 

W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 C
ris

is 
In

te
rv

en
tio

n 
Te

am
/M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 t

ra
in

in
g 

to
 P

ol
ic

e 
O

ffi
ce

rs
, F

irs
t 

Re
sp

on
de

rs
 a

nd
 s

ta
ff 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
st

re
ss

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 a

nd
 c

on
fli

ct
 re

so
lu

tio
n 

an
d 

m
ed

ia
tio

n.
 

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Se
lf-

In
su

ra
nc

e 
Fu

nd
 

 
$2

0,
00

0 
 

$2
0,

00
0 

 33
. 

 Gl
ob

al
 C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ol

le
ge

, 
In

c.
  

    

 Ri
sk

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t: 
W

ill
 

co
nd

uc
t 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 t
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
In

ci
de

nt
 C

om
m

an
d 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 
fo

r 
Di

st
ric

t 
st

af
f; 

as
sis

t 
in

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 s
ch

oo
l s

ite
 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 P
la

ns
; 

re
vi

ew
 D

ist
ric

t 
dr

ill
s 

an
d 

co
nd

uc
t s

ch
oo

l s
ite

 a
ud

its
 a

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

fo
r 2

01
4-

15
. D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 Im

pl
em

en
t a

 T
EE

N
 C

er
t P

ro
gr

am
.  

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Se
lf-

In
su

ra
nc

e 
Fu

nd
 

 
$1

0,
00

0 
 

$1
0,

00
0 

 34
. 

 Dr
. M

an
ny

 T
au

/B
ar

on
 

Ce
nt

er
  

  

 Ri
sk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t: 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 
w

or
kp

la
ce

 
vi

ol
en

ce
 

an
d 

th
re

at
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 
to

 
in

cl
ud

e 
sk

ill
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

be
ha

vi
or

al
 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

, a
nd

 th
re

at
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Se
lf-

In
su

ra
nc

e 
Fu

nd
 

 
$3

5,
00

0 
 

$3
5,

00
0 

 35
. 

 To
ta

l C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
Sy

st
em

s,
 In

c.
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 Ri
sk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t: 

W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 G
AS

B 
45

 A
ct

ua
ria

l 
St

ud
y 

of
 P

os
t-

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

Be
ne

fit
s 

as
 o

f 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 

20
14

. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 

   
   

   
 

$8
,5

00
 

 
   

   
   

$8
,5

00
 

 9 
 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: B
us

in
es

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

M
ay

 2
6,

 2
01

5 
Pa

ge
 5

 
 

 
N

O
. 

 
N

AM
E 

 
IM

PL
IC

AT
IO

N
S 

FO
R 

TH
E 

DI
ST

RI
CT

/T
YP

E 
O

F 
SE

RV
IC

E 
 

DA
TE

 
 

AN
N

U
AL

 
RE

N
EW

AL
 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 

EX
CE

ED
 

 36
. 

 Vi
sio

n 
St

ar
 M

ed
ia

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

  

 Ri
sk

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t: 
W

ill
 

pr
od

uc
e 

a 
se

rie
s 

of
 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
re

sp
on

se
 t

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

op
er

at
io

na
l v

id
eo

s 
hi

gh
lig

ht
in

g 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
Di

st
ric

t 
pr

ot
oc

ol
s 

fo
r 

ac
tiv

e 
sh

oo
te

r -
 ru

n,
 h

id
e,

 fi
gh

t-
sc

en
ar

io
s.

 
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Se
lf-

In
su

ra
nc

e 
Fu

nd
 

   
   

   
   

$1
60

,0
00

  

   
   

   
   

$1
60

,0
00

  

 37
. 

 RC
S 

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 &

 
Co

ns
ul

tin
g,

 L
LC

 
 

 Sc
ho

ol
 

Po
lic

e:
 

W
ill

 
co

nd
uc

t 
pr

e-
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 
fo

r 
Sc

ho
ol

 
Po

lic
e 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t s

ta
ff.

 
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$8

,0
00

 
 

$1
5,

00
0 

 38
. 

 Le
xi

po
l, 

LL
C 

 

 Sc
ho

ol
 P

ol
ic

e:
 W

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

up
da

te
s 

fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 

m
an

ua
l 

fo
r 

SA
U

SD
 

Sc
ho

ol
 P

ol
ic

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
. 

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$4

,4
50

 
 

$4
,4

50
 

   
          

10
 

 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: F
ac

ili
tie

s a
nd

 G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l R
el

at
io

ns
 

M
ay

 2
6,

 2
01

5 
 

 
N

O
. 

 
N

AM
E 

 
IM

PL
IC

AT
IO

N
S 

FO
R 

TH
E 

DI
ST

RI
CT

/T
YP

E 
O

F 
SE

RV
IC

E 
 

DA
TE

 
 

AN
N

U
AL

 
RE

N
EW

AL
 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 

EX
CE

ED
 

 39
. 

 Am
er

ic
an

 M
ec

ha
ni

ca
l 

Pl
um

bi
ng

 E
ng

in
ee

rs
 

(A
M

PE
) 

 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
ec

ha
ni

ca
l 

an
d 

pl
um

bi
ng

 e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 Va

rio
us

 
Fu

nd
s:

  
1,

  2
5,

 3
5,

 4
0,

 
49

 

 
$2

00
,0

00
 

 
$2

00
,0

00
 

 40
. 

 As
so

ci
at

ed
 S

oi
ls 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
oi

l 
te

st
in

g,
 i

n-
pl

an
t 

w
el

di
ng

, 
m

as
on

ry
 

te
st

in
g,

 a
nd

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 Va

rio
us

 
Fu

nd
s:

  
1,

 2
5,

 3
5,

 4
0,

 
49

 

 
$2

00
,0

00
   

 
$2

00
,0

00
   

 41
. 

 Ba
in

br
id

ge
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s 

 W
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ha

za
rd

ou
s 

m
at

er
ia

l 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
an

d 
te

st
in

g 
on

 a
n 

“a
s n

ee
de

d”
 b

as
is.

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 Va

rio
us

 
Fu

nd
s:

 0
1,

 
14

, 2
5,

 3
5,

 
40

, 4
9 

 
$9

0,
00

0  

 
$9

0,
00

0  

 42
. 

 CS
 &

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s,

 In
c.

 
 W

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

lly
 im

pl
em

en
t 

an
d 

op
er

at
e 

a 
La

bo
r 

Co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
(L

CP
) 

an
d 

up
da

te
 t

he
 L

CP
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

ne
w

 r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
Co

de
 o

f 
Re

gu
la

tio
ns

 o
n 

an
 "

as
 n

ee
de

d"
 

ba
sis

. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 Va

rio
us

 
Fu

nd
s:

  
1,

 2
5,

 3
5,

 4
0,

 
49

 

 
$3

5,
00

0  

 
$3

5,
00

0  

 43
. 

 Co
lb

i T
ec

hn
ol

og
ie

s 
 W

ill
 

pr
ov

id
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
so

ft
w

ar
e 

su
pp

or
t 

to
 

th
e 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

Pr
og

ra
m

. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 Va

rio
us

 
Fu

nd
s:

 2
5,

 
35

, 4
0,

 4
9 

 
$1

0,
00

0  

 
$1

0,
00

0  

  

11
 

 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: F
ac

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l R

el
at

io
ns

 
M

ay
 2

6,
 2

01
5 

Pa
ge

 2
 

 
 

N
O

. 
 

N
AM

E 
 

IM
PL

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
FO

R 
TH

E 
DI

ST
RI

CT
/T

YP
E 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E 

 
DA

TE
 

 
AN

N
U

AL
 

RE
N

EW
AL

 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 

EX
CE

ED
 

 44
. 

 Cu
m

m
in

g 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
In

c.
 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
en

er
gy

 c
on

su
lti

ng
 s

up
po

rt
 

fo
r P

ro
po

sit
io

n 
39

. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Fu
nd

:  
1 

 
$5

0,
00

0 
 

$5
0,

00
0 

 45
. 

 Do
lin

ka
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

. 
  W

ill
 

pr
ov

id
e 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
Di

st
ric

t, 
Re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

an
d 

De
ve

lo
pe

r 
Fe

e 
Ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 Va

rio
us

 
Fu

nd
s:

  
1,

 2
5,

 3
5,

 4
0,

 
49

 

 
$1

00
,0

00
 

 
$1

00
,0

00
 

 46
. 

 En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l N
et

w
or

k,
 

Co
rp

. d
ba

 E
nc

or
p 

 W
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ha

za
rd

ou
s 

m
at

er
ia

l 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
an

d 
te

st
in

g 
on

 a
n 

“a
s n

ee
de

d”
 b

as
is.

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 Va

rio
us

 
Fu

nd
s:

  
1,

 2
5,

 3
5,

 4
0,

 
49

 

 
$1

00
,0

00
 

 
$1

00
,0

00
 

 47
. 

 Ha
nc

oc
k,

 P
ar

k,
 D

el
on

g,
 In

c.
 

  W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
ch

oo
l 

ad
vi

so
ry

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
on

 a
n 

“a
s 

ne
ed

ed
” 

ba
sis

. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 Va

rio
us

 
Fu

nd
s:

  
1,

 2
5,

 3
5,

 4
0,

 
49

 

 
$1

0,
00

0 
 

$1
0,

00
0 

 48
. 

 M
ur

do
ch

, W
al

ra
th

 &
 

Ho
lm

es
 

 W
ill

 
re

pr
es

en
t 

th
e 

Di
st

ric
t 

in
 

ne
go

tia
tio

ns
 

w
ith

 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

, e
st

ab
lis

h 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 t

o 
fu

nd
, a

cq
ui

re
, 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

pr
op

er
tie

s,
 

an
d 

en
te

r 
in

to
 

jo
in

t 
us

e/
ed

uc
at

io
n 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

.  

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 Va

rio
us

 
Fu

nd
s:

  
1,

 2
5,

 4
0,

 4
9 

 
$1

00
,0

00
 

 
$1

00
,0

00
 

    

12
 

 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: F
ac

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l R

el
at

io
ns

 
M

ay
 2

6,
 2

01
5 

Pa
ge

 3
 

 
 

N
O

. 
 

N
AM

E 
 

IM
PL

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
FO

R 
TH

E 
DI

ST
RI

CT
/T

YP
E 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E 

 
DA

TE
 

 
AN

N
U

AL
 

RE
N

EW
AL

 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 

EX
CE

ED
 

 49
. 

 N
in

yo
 &

 M
oo

re
 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
oi

l 
te

st
in

g,
 i

n-
pl

an
t 

w
el

di
ng

, 
m

as
on

ry
 

te
st

in
g,

 a
nd

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 Va

rio
us

 
Fu

nd
s:

  
1,

 2
5,

 3
5,

 4
0,

 
49

 

 
$1

00
,0

00
 

 
$2

00
,0

00
 

 50
. 

 O
rb

ac
h,

 H
uf

f, 
Su

ar
ez

 &
 

He
nd

er
so

n 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 l
eg

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

(B
id

 d
oc

um
en

ts
, 

pr
ot

es
t, 

ap
pe

al
s,

 c
on

tr
ac

ts
, P

ub
lic

 C
on

tr
ac

t C
od

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e)
 

on
 a

n 
“a

s n
ee

de
d”

 b
as

is.
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 Va

rio
us

 
Fu

nd
s:

 0
1,

 
14

, 2
5,

 3
5,

 
40

, 4
9 

 
$1

00
,0

00
 

 
$1

00
,0

00
 

 51
. 

 Pl
ac

ew
or

ks
, I

nc
. 

 W
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

in
 

th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 c

or
re

ct
iv

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

an
d 

CE
Q

A 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 Va

rio
us

 
Fu

nd
s:

  
1,

 2
5,

 3
5,

 4
0,

 
49

 

 
$2

5,
00

0 
 

$2
5,

00
0 

 52
. 

 Pr
ef

er
re

d 
Ae

ria
l &

 C
ra

ne
 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
, I

nc
. 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 o
n-

sit
e 

an
nu

al
 s

af
et

y 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 
fo

r e
le

ct
ric

ia
ns

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s.

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 Fu

nd
:  

1 

 
$1

,0
00

 
 

$1
,0

00
 

 53
. 

 Pr
ie

st
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

, I
nc

. 

 W
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
Di

vi
sio

n 
of

 
St

at
e 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

 
(D

SA
) 

– 
In

sp
ec

to
r o

f R
ec

or
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
n 

as
 “

as
 n

ee
de

d”
 b

as
is.

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 Va

rio
us

 
Fu

nd
s:

 2
5,

 
35

, 4
0,

 4
9 

 
$2

50
,0

00
 

 
$2

50
,0

00
 

   
13

 
 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: F
ac

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l R

el
at

io
ns

 
M

ay
 2

6,
 2

01
5 

Pa
ge

 4
 

 
 

N
O

. 
 

N
AM

E 
 

IM
PL

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
FO

R 
TH

E 
DI

ST
RI

CT
/T

YP
E 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E 

 
DA

TE
 

 
AN

N
U

AL
 

RE
N

EW
AL

 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 

EX
CE

ED
 

 54
. 

 Ra
yb

ur
n 

Co
rp

or
at

io
n 

 W
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
st

an
da

rd
izi

ng
 

di
st

ric
t 

sy
st

em
s,

 
Vo

ic
e 

ov
er

 
In

te
rn

et
 

Pr
ot

oc
ol

 
pr

oj
ec

t 
su

pp
or

t, 
E-

Ra
te

 
re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t 

fu
nd

in
g,

 
Sc

ho
ol

 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

su
pp

or
t, 

te
ch

ni
ca

l 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 

of
 

st
af

f, 
an

d 
re

la
te

d 
su

pp
or

t. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 Va

rio
us

 
Fu

nd
s:

 0
1,

 
14

, 2
5,

 3
5,

 
40

, 4
9 

 
$8

5,
00

0 
 

$8
5,

00
0 

 55
. 

 Sa
nd

y 
Pr

in
gl

e 
As

so
ci

at
es

, 
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s,

 
In

c.
 

 

 W
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
Di

vi
sio

n 
of

 
St

at
e 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

 
(D

SA
) 

– 
In

sp
ec

to
r o

f R
ec

or
d 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 Va

rio
us

 
Fu

nd
s:

 
1,

 2
5,

 3
5,

 4
0,

 
49

 

 
$2

50
,0

00
 

 
$2

50
,0

00
 

 56
. 

 Tw
in

in
g 

La
bo

ra
to

rie
s 

 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
oi

l 
te

st
in

g,
 i

n-
pl

an
t 

w
el

di
ng

, 
m

as
on

ry
 

te
st

in
g,

 a
nd

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 Va

rio
us

 
Fu

nd
s:

 
1,

 2
5,

 3
5,

 4
0,

 
49

 

 
$1

00
,0

00
 

 
$2

00
,0

00
 

 57
. 

 Va
vr

in
ek

, T
rin

e,
 D

ay
 &

 C
o.

, 
LL

P 
(V

TD
) 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 g
en

er
al

 o
bl

ig
at

io
n 

bo
nd

 a
ud

it 
as

sis
ta

nc
e 

on
 a

n 
“a

s n
ee

de
d”

 b
as

is.
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 Va

rio
us

 
Fu

nd
s:

  
1,

 2
5,

 2
7,

 3
5,

 
40

, 4
9 

 

 
$2

5,
00

0 
 

$2
5,

00
0 

 58
. 

 Re
st

or
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

w
at

er
 d

am
ag

e 
re

st
or

at
io

n,
 

fir
e 

an
d 

sm
ok

e 
da

m
ag

e 
re

st
or

at
io

n 
an

d 
m

ol
d 

an
d 

se
w

ag
e 

re
m

ed
ia

tio
n 

on
 a

n 
as

 n
ee

de
d 

ba
sis

. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 Va

rio
us

 
Fu

nd
s:

  
1,

 2
5,

 2
7,

 3
5,

 
40

, 4
9 

 

 
$2

5,
00

0 
 

$2
5,

00
0 

14
 

 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
M

ay
 2

6,
 2

01
5 

 
 

N
O

. 
 

N
AM

E 
 

IM
PL

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
FO

R 
TH

E 
DI

ST
RI

CT
/T

YP
E 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E 

 
DA

TE
 

 
AN

N
U

AL
 

RE
N

EW
AL

 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 E

XC
EE

D 
 

59
. 

 Ri
ch

ar
d 

D.
 Jo

ne
s a

 
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l L
aw

 
Co

rp
or

at
io

n 
db

a 
Jo

ne
s &

 
M

ay
er

 
 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 l
eg

al
 c

ou
ns

el
 f

or
 d

isc
ip

lin
ar

y 
m

at
te

rs
 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
Sc

ho
ol

 P
ol

ic
e 

O
ffi

ce
rs

. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$5

,0
00

 
 

$5
,0

00
 

 
60

. 
 Er

ic
 W

ay
ne

 G
ru

ve
r, 

Ph
.D

. 
 

 W
ill

 
co

nd
uc

t 
pr

e-
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
ps

yc
ho

lo
gi

ca
l 

ev
al

ua
tio

ns
 fo

r S
ch

oo
l P

ol
ic

e 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t s
ta

ff.
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 

 
$5

,0
00

 
 

$3
,0

00
 

 
61

. 
 Ga

rc
ia

, H
er

na
nd

ez
, 

Sa
w

hn
ey

 &
 B

er
m

ud
ez

, L
LP

 
 

 W
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 
an

d 
re

se
ar

ch
 

se
rv

ic
es

 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 r
ep

re
se

nt
 t

he
 D

ist
ric

t’s
 b

es
t 

in
te

re
st

s 
in

 
th

e 
ar

ea
s 

of
 

co
lle

ct
iv

e 
ba

rg
ai

ni
ng

, 
la

bo
r 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t m

at
te

rs
. 

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 

30
, 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

 
$3

0,
00

0 
 

 
$3

0,
00

0 

      15
 

 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
M

ay
 2

6,
 2

01
5 

 
 

N
O

. 
 

N
AM

E 
 

IM
PL

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
FO

R 
TH

E 
DI

ST
RI

CT
/T

YP
E 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E 

 
DA

TE
 

AN
N

U
AL

 
RE

N
EW

AL
 

FU
N

DI
N

G
 

SO
U

RC
E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 

EX
CE

ED
 

 62
. 

 Ba
rb

ar
a 

Pe
nw

ar
de

n 
db

a 
Br

ai
lle

 to
 G

o 

 W
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
Br

ai
lle

 
tr

an
sc

rip
tio

n 
fo

r 
sp

ec
ia

l 
ed

uc
at

io
n.

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$7

,0
00

 
 

$7
,0

00
 

 63
. 

 U
.S

. H
ea

lth
W

or
ks

, I
nc

. 
 

 W
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
w

rit
te

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 
pr

es
cr

ip
tio

ns
 

fo
r 

ph
ys

ic
al

 a
nd

 o
cc

up
at

io
na

l t
he

ra
py

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

w
rit

te
n 

ap
pr

ov
al

 
of

 
Di

st
ric

t 
sp

ee
ch

 
pr

ot
oc

ol
 

fo
r 

sp
ee

ch
 

th
er

ap
y.

 
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

M
ed

i-C
al

 
Fu

nd
in

g 

 
$3

0,
00

0 
 

$3
0,

00
0 

 64
. 

 C.
J.T

. E
nt

er
pr

ise
s  

 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
pe

ci
al

iz
ed

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t/

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 f

or
 

st
ud

en
ts

 w
ith

 se
ve

re
 d

isa
bi

lit
ie

s.
   

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$4

,6
00

 
 

$4
,6

00
 

 65
. 

 Go
od

w
ill

 In
du

st
rie

s o
f O

C 
db

a 
AT

EC
 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 e
va

lu
at

io
ns

, 
tr

ai
ni

ng
, 

an
d 

tr
ia

l 
us

e 
of

 
ne

w
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t f
or

 sp
ec

ia
l e

du
ca

tio
n 

st
ud

en
ts

. 
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$5

,0
00

 
 

$5
,0

00
 

 66
. 

 Ga
il 

N
ug

en
t 

 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 f
ac

ili
ta

tio
n 

of
 s

pe
ci

al
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

pa
re

nt
 

m
ee

tin
gs

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 s

ta
ff 

m
ee

tin
gs

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
, 

to
w

ar
d 

tim
el

y 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

of
 is

su
es

. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

AD
R 

 
$2

0,
00

0 
 

$2
0,

00
0 

  

16
 

 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
M

ay
 2

6,
 2

01
5 

Pa
ge

 2
 

 
 

N
O

. 
 

N
AM

E 
 

IM
PL

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
FO

R 
TH

E 
DI

ST
RI

CT
/T

YP
E 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E 

 
DA

TE
 

 
AN

N
U

AL
 

RE
N

EW
AL

 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 E

XC
EE

D 
 67

. 
 Jo

hn
 (J

ac
k)

 L
uc

as
 

 W
ill

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 a
na

ly
ze

 t
he

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
of

 s
pe

ci
al

 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

re
ve

nu
e 

an
d 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s.

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$4

,6
00

 
 

$4
,0

00
 

 68
. 

 S.
 D

an
ie

l H
ar

bo
tt

le
 

db
a 

 H
ar

bo
tt

le
 L

aw
 G

ro
up

 
 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 le
ga

l c
ou

ns
el

 f
or

 t
he

 S
pe

ci
al

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t. 
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$7

5,
00

0 
 

$7
5,

00
0 

 69
. 

 Sh
ei

la
 D

oc
to

rs
 

db
a 

M
SD

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s,
 In

c.
 

 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
up

po
rt

 f
or

 t
he

 D
ist

ric
t 

fo
r 

st
ud

en
ts

 
w

ho
 

ar
e 

de
af

 
an

d 
ha

rd
 

of
 

he
ar

in
g 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gi
es

, 
in

te
rp

re
tin

g,
 

tr
an

sc
rip

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

, a
nd

 p
la

ce
m

en
t o

pt
io

ns
. 

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$3

4,
00

0 
 

$3
4,

00
0 

 70
. 

 M
ar

ia
 L

yn
 K

ul
ik

 A
br

am
so

m
 

db
a 

He
ar

 N
ow

 
 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

In
de

pe
nd

en
t 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l E

va
lu

at
io

n 
to

 a
 s

pe
ci

al
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

st
ud

en
t 

pe
r 

th
e 

st
ud

en
t’s

 
In

di
vi

du
al

ize
d 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
. 

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$1

,5
00

 
 

$1
,5

00
 

 71
. 

 Le
ig

h 
Pe

ra
le

s 
 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 b
eh

av
io

ra
l h

ea
lth

 s
up

po
rt

 fo
r 

st
ud

en
ts

 
to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
an

d 
us

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
be

ha
vi

or
al

 
in

te
ra

ct
io

n 
in

 t
he

 c
la

ss
ro

om
 a

nd
 i

n 
ot

he
r 

sc
ho

ol
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ts

. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 

 
$2

0,
00

0 
 

$2
0,

00
0 

     

17
 

 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
M

ay
 2

6,
 2

01
5 

Pa
ge

 3
 

 
 

N
O

. 
 

N
AM

E 
 

IM
PL

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
FO

R 
TH

E 
DI

ST
RI

CT
/T

YP
E 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E 

 
DA

TE
 

 
AN

N
U

AL
 

RE
N

EW
AL

 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 E

XC
EE

D 
 72

. 
 Li

sa
 S

ch
oo

le
r 

 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 c
ou

ns
el

in
g 

fo
r s

tu
de

nt
s.

 
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 

 
$3

8,
43

6 
 

$3
8,

88
0 

 73
. 

 Ka
tie

 R
iv

ki
nd

 
 W

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 c

ou
ns

el
in

g 
fo

r s
tu

de
nt

s.
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 

 
$4

6,
86

0 
 

$4
3,

20
0 

 74
. 

 Pa
ul

 A
ra

ta
  

 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 c
ou

ns
el

in
g 

fo
r s

tu
de

nt
s.

 
 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

6 
 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 

 
$7

9,
69

2 
 

$7
7,

76
0 

 75
. 

 Ta
m

m
y 

Sh
el

to
n 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 c
ou

ns
el

in
g 

fo
r s

tu
de

nt
s.

 
 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

6 
 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 

 
$7

9,
69

2 
 

$7
7,

76
0 

 76
. 

 Ch
ar

le
s S

pi
ce

r d
ba

 C
en

te
r 

fo
r G

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 C

ha
ng

e,
 

In
c.

 
 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 c
ou

ns
el

in
g 

fo
r s

tu
de

nt
s.

 
 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

6 
 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 

 
$7

9,
69

2 
 

$7
7,

76
0 

 77
. 

 M
ic

he
lle

 R
ot

h 
 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 c
ou

ns
el

in
g 

fo
r s

tu
de

nt
s.

 
 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

6 
 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 

 
$3

8,
43

6 
 

$3
8,

88
0 

18
 

 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
M

ay
 2

6,
 2

01
5 

Pa
ge

 4
 

 
 

N
O

. 
 

N
AM

E 
 

IM
PL

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
FO

R 
TH

E 
DI

ST
RI

CT
/T

YP
E 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E 

 
DA

TE
 

 
AN

N
U

AL
 

RE
N

EW
AL

 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 E

XC
EE

D 
 78

. 
 Jo

se
ph

 C
av

in
s 

 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 c
ou

ns
el

in
g 

fo
r s

tu
de

nt
s.

 
 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

6 
 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 

 
$7

9,
69

2 
 

$7
7,

76
0 

 79
. 

 An
dr

ea
 B

ai
rd

 
 W

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 c

ou
ns

el
in

g 
fo

r s
tu

de
nt

s.
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 

 
$7

9,
00

0 
 

$7
7,

76
0 

 80
. 

 De
 V

id
a 

Be
ll 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 c
ou

ns
el

in
g 

fo
r s

tu
de

nt
s.

 
 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

6 
 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

 
$2

9,
16

0 
 

$7
7,

76
0 

 81
. 

 Ro
do

lfo
 G

om
ez

 
 W

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 c

ou
ns

el
in

g 
fo

r s
tu

de
nt

s.
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 

 
$5

6,
90

4 
 

$5
8,

32
0 

 82
. 

 M
on

ic
a 

Se
db

er
ry

 
 W

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 c

ou
ns

el
in

g 
fo

r s
tu

de
nt

s.
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

 
$2

9,
16

0 
 

$7
7,

76
0 

 83
. 

 Fr
an

k 
M

isc
io

ne
 

 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 c
ou

ns
el

in
g 

fo
r s

tu
de

nt
s.

 
 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

6 
 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 

 
$4

2,
54

0 
 

$4
3,

20
0 

19
 

 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
M

ay
 2

6,
 2

01
5 

Pa
ge

 5
 

 
 

N
O

. 
 

N
AM

E 
 

IM
PL

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
FO

R 
TH

E 
DI

ST
RI

CT
/T

YP
E 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E 

 
DA

TE
 

 
AN

N
U

AL
 

RE
N

EW
AL

 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 E

XC
EE

D 
 84

. 
 De

br
a 

So
lse

ng
 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 c
ou

ns
el

in
g 

fo
r s

tu
de

nt
s.

 
 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

6 
 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 

 
$4

2,
54

0 
 

$4
3,

20
0 

 85
. 

 Li
nd

a 
Ro

be
rt

so
n 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 c
ou

ns
el

in
g 

fo
r s

tu
de

nt
s.

 
 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

6 
 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 

 
$3

8,
43

6 
 

$3
8,

88
0 

 86
. 

 Li
sa

 H
ar

tm
an

 
 W

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 c

ou
ns

el
in

g 
fo

r s
tu

de
nt

s.
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 

 
$3

0,
78

0 
 

$2
5,

92
0 

 87
. 

 M
el

od
y 

Fo
xx

 
 W

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 c

ou
ns

el
in

g 
fo

r s
tu

de
nt

s.
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 

 
$5

0,
74

8 
 

$5
1,

84
0 

 88
. 

 M
ax

in
e 

La
ng

do
n 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 c
ou

ns
el

in
g 

fo
r s

tu
de

nt
s.

 
 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

6 
 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 

 
$7

9,
69

2 
 

$7
7,

76
0 

     

20
 

 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
M

ay
 2

6,
 2

01
5 

Pa
ge

 6
 

 
 

N
O

. 
 

N
AM

E 
 

IM
PL

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
FO

R 
TH

E 
DI

ST
RI

CT
/T

YP
E 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E 

 
DA

TE
 

 
AN

N
U

AL
 

RE
N

EW
AL

 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 E

XC
EE

D 
 89

. 
 St

ev
en

 M
oo

dy
 

 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 c
ou

ns
el

in
g 

fo
r s

tu
de

nt
s.

 
 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

6 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$3

8,
43

6 
 

$3
8,

88
0 

 90
. 

 Ja
ni

ce
 C

as
te

el
 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 I
nd

ep
en

de
nt

 E
du

ca
tio

na
l 

Ev
al

ua
tio

ns
 

fo
r s

pe
ci

al
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

st
ud

en
ts

. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 

 
$1

2,
00

0 
 

$1
2,

00
0 

 91
. 

 Ro
be

rt
 P

at
te

rs
on

 
 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 i
nd

ep
en

de
nt

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l 

ev
al

ua
tio

ns
 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 s

pe
ci

al
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

du
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 in

 o
pi

ni
on

 a
nd

 a
ss

ist
 w

ith
 s

ta
ff,

 p
ar

en
ts

, 
an

d 
In

di
vi

du
al

ize
d 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
s 

an
d 

IE
P’

s 
in

 
re

ga
rd

 to
 d

ue
 p

ro
ce

ss
 h

ea
rin

gs
 a

nd
 d

ec
la

ra
tio

ns
. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 

 
$1

5,
00

0 
 

$1
5,

00
0 

 92
. 

 Pa
ul

 A
la

n 
Do

re
s 

 

 W
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ps

yc
ho

-e
du

ca
tio

na
l 

In
de

pe
nd

en
t 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l 

Ev
al

ua
tio

ns
 

to
 

sp
ec

ia
l 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
st

ud
en

t. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 

 
$4

,6
00

 
 

$4
,6

00
 

 93
. 

 So
ut

he
rn

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 C

ol
le

ge
 

of
 O

pt
om

et
ry

 
 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 v

isi
on

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

an
d 

th
er

ap
y 

fo
r 

sp
ec

ia
l e

du
ca

tio
n 

st
ud

en
ts

.  
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 

 
$6

,0
00

 
 

$1
,0

00
 

     

21
 

 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
M

ay
 2

6,
 2

01
5 

Pa
ge

 7
 

 
 

N
O

. 
 

N
AM

E 
 

IM
PL

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
FO

R 
TH

E 
DI

ST
RI

CT
/T

YP
E 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E 

 
DA

TE
 

 
AN

N
U

AL
 

RE
N

EW
AL

 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 E

XC
EE

D 
 94

. 
 Tu

rn
in

g 
Po

in
t C

en
te

r f
or

 
Fa

m
ili

es
 

 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
ou

ns
el

in
g 

an
d 

th
er

ap
eu

tic
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r 

st
ud

en
ts

 in
 n

ee
d 

of
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 su

pp
or

t. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

M
ed

i-C
al

 
 

$8
5,

40
0 

 
$3

5,
00

0 

 95
. 

 W
es

t S
hi

el
d 

Ad
ol

es
ce

nt
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
 

 W
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 
fo

r 
sp

ec
ia

l 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

st
ud

en
ts

 
to

 
Re

sid
en

tia
l 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t 
Ce

nt
er

s.
 

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$1

0,
00

0 
 

$1
0,

00
0 

 96
. 

 M
ic

ha
el

 A
. P

er
ry

 
 W

ill
 

pr
ov

id
e 

st
af

f 
w

ith
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 
in

 
de

-e
sc

al
at

in
g 

ag
gr

es
siv

e 
be

ha
vi

or
 

an
d 

bu
lly

in
g 

an
d 

vi
ol

en
ce

/t
ra

um
a 

pr
ev

en
tio

n/
in

te
rv

en
tio

n.
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$2

0,
00

0 
 

$2
0,

00
0 

 97
. 

 Ci
nd

y 
Co

tt
ie

r d
ba

 
Au

gm
en

ta
tiv

e 
Co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
Th

er
ap

ie
s 

 W
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

 
Au

gm
en

ta
tiv

e 
Al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
Co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n/

In
de

pe
nd

en
t 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
fo

r 
a 

sp
ec

ia
l 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
st

ud
en

t. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$5

,0
00

 
 

$5
,0

00
 

 98
. 

 TC
G 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
db

a 
Th

e 
Co

sc
a 

Gr
ou

p 

 In
 s

en
sit

iv
e 

IE
P 

m
ee

tin
gs

, w
ill

 s
up

po
rt

 p
ar

en
ts

 w
ith

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

IE
P 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
w

he
n 

st
ud

en
ts

 h
av

e 
co

m
pl

ex
 m

ul
tip

le
 n

ee
ds

. 
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$1

0,
00

0 
 

$5
,0

00
 

 99
. 

 Ki
m

be
rle

y 
Pa

lm
io

tt
o 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 n

eu
ro

-e
du

ca
tio

na
l 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

to
 a

 
sp

ec
ia

l e
du

ca
tio

n 
st

ud
en

t. 
 

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$3

,5
00

 
 

$3
,5

00
 

22
 

 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
M

ay
 2

6,
 2

01
5 

Pa
ge

 8
 

 
 

N
O

. 
 

N
AM

E 
 

IM
PL

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
FO

R 
TH

E 
DI

ST
RI

CT
/T

YP
E 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E 

 
DA

TE
 

 
AN

N
U

AL
 

RE
N

EW
AL

 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 E

XC
EE

D 
 10

0 
 M

at
th

ew
 W

ill
ia

m
s 

En
te

rp
ris

es
, L

LC
 

 W
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
Br

ai
lle

 
tr

an
sc

rip
tio

n 
fo

r 
sp

ec
ia

l 
ed

uc
at

io
n.

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$1

4,
00

0 
 

$1
4,

00
0 

 10
1 

 N
at

as
ha

 A
da

m
o 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l e

va
lu

at
io

n 
in

 
ps

yc
ho

lo
gi

ca
l/e

du
ca

tio
na

l 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r 

a 
sp

ec
ia

l 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

st
ud

en
t. 

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$4

,0
00

 
 

$4
,0

00
 

 10
2 

 Sc
ot

t W
. L

ar
so

n,
 P

h.
D.

 
 W

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l e
va

lu
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 sp
ec

ia
l e

du
ca

tio
n 

st
ud

en
t. 

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$3

,0
00

 
 

$3
,0

00
 

 10
3 

 St
ep

pi
ng

 S
to

ne
s T

he
ra

py
, 

In
c.

  
 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l e

va
lu

at
io

n 
in

 t
he

 a
re

a 
of

 s
pe

ec
h 

an
d 

la
ng

ua
ge

 f
or

 a
 s

pe
ci

al
 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
st

ud
en

t. 
 

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$3

,6
00

 
 

$3
,6

00
 

          

23
 

 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
M

ay
 2

6,
 2

01
5 

Pa
ge

 9
 

 
 

N
O

. 
 

N
AM

E 
 

IM
PL

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
FO

R 
TH

E 
DI

ST
RI

CT
/T

YP
E 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E 

 
DA

TE
 

 
AN

N
U

AL
 

RE
N

EW
AL

 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 E

XC
EE

D 
 10

4 
 Fi

tn
es

s 1
9 

CA
 2

02
 L

LC
 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 f
itn

es
s 

gy
m

 m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

ac
co

un
ts

 a
nd

 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s t

o 
Ad

ul
t T

ra
ns

iti
on

 st
ud

en
ts

.  
  

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$1

,9
50

.0
0 

 
$1

,9
50

 

 10
5 

 Ca
re

er
St

af
f U

nl
im

ite
d,

 In
c.

 
db

a 
Pr

oC
ar

e 
O

ne
 N

ur
se

s 
 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 R
eg

ist
er

ed
 N

ur
se

s 
(R

N
s)

 a
nd

 L
ic

en
se

d 
Vo

ca
tio

na
l 

N
ur

se
s 

(L
VN

s)
 

se
rv

ic
es

 
to

 
en

su
re

 
al

l 
st

ud
en

ts
’ 

m
ed

ic
al

 n
ee

ds
 a

re
 m

et
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
in

fa
nt

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 i

n 
re

sp
ite

 c
ar

e,
 i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 t
he

ir 
In

di
vi

du
al

ize
d 

Fa
m

ily
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
ns

 (I
FS

Ps
). 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l 

Ed
uc

at
io

n/
 

PS
S 

 
$6

4,
00

0.
00

 
 

$6
6,

00
0 

 10
6 

 An
ne

 D
el

fo
ss

e 
 W

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r s
pe

ec
h 

pa
th

ol
og

ist
s 

on
 b

es
t 

pr
ac

tic
es

 t
o 

as
sis

t 
st

ud
en

ts
 i

n 
ac

ce
ss

in
g 

th
e 

gr
ad

e 
le

ve
l s

ta
nd

ar
ds

. 
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$8

00
.0

0 
 

$8
00

 

 10
7 

 Pr
og

re
ss

us
 T

he
ra

py
, L

LC
. 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 S
pe

ec
h-

La
ng

ua
ge

 T
he

ra
py

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
st

ud
en

ts
. 

  

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$4

4,
26

8.
00

 
 

$4
4,

26
8 

 10
8 

 Su
la

 G
ol

de
nb

er
g 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 c
ou

ns
el

in
g 

fo
r s

tu
de

nt
s.

 
 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

6 
 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$4

2,
00

0.
00

 
 

$4
3,

20
0 

    

24
 

 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
M

ay
 2

6,
 2

01
5 

Pa
ge

 1
1 

 
 

N
O

. 
 

N
AM

E 
 

IM
PL

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
FO

R 
TH

E 
DI

ST
RI

CT
/T

YP
E 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E 

 
DA

TE
 

 
AN

N
U

AL
 

RE
N

EW
AL

 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 E

XC
EE

D 
 10

9 
 Je

na
 R

ey
no

ld
s 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 c
ou

ns
el

in
g 

fo
r s

tu
de

nt
s.

 
 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

6 
 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

 
$2

9,
16

0.
00

 
 

$7
3,

44
0 

 11
0 

 Ta
ra

 L
ow

e 
 W

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 c

ou
ns

el
in

g 
fo

r s
tu

de
nt

s.
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

 
$2

8,
35

0.
00

 
 

$5
4,

00
0 

 11
1 

 Ab
by

 R
oz

en
be

rg
 

 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 In
de

pe
nd

en
t E

du
ca

tio
na

l E
va

lu
at

io
ns

 in
 

th
e 

ar
ea

 
of

 
sp

ee
ch

 
an

d 
la

ng
ua

ge
 

fo
r 

sp
ec

ia
l 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
st

ud
en

ts
.  

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$4

,0
00

.0
0 

 
$4

,0
00

 

 11
2 

 Ja
ric

e 
Bu

tt
er

fie
ld

 
 W

ill
 

pr
ov

id
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 
in

 
ne

w
 

re
cl

as
sif

ic
at

io
n 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 fo

r s
tu

de
nt

s w
ith

 d
isa

bi
lit

ie
s.

 
 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

M
en

ta
l 

He
al

th
 

 
$7

50
.0

0 
 

$1
,0

00
 

 11
3 

 Dr
. R

ob
in

 M
or

ris
 

 W
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ps

yc
ho

-e
du

ca
tio

na
l 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l 

ev
al

ua
tio

ns
 

fo
r 

sp
ec

ia
l 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
st

ud
en

ts
.  

 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
Th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 X 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

d.
 

 
$3

,6
00

.0
0 

 
$4

,0
00

 

      

25
 

 



20
15

-1
6 

AN
N

U
AL

 L
IS

TI
N

G
 O

F 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS
/C

O
N

TR
AC

TE
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
Su

bm
itt

in
g 

Di
vi

si
on

: S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
M

ay
 2

6,
 2

01
5 

Pa
ge

 1
0 

 
 

N
O

. 
 

N
AM

E 
 

IM
PL

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
FO

R 
TH

E 
DI

ST
RI

CT
/T

YP
E 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E 

 
DA

TE
 

 
AN

N
U

AL
 

RE
N

EW
AL

 

 
FU

N
DI

N
G

 
SO

U
RC

E 

 
20

14
-1

5 
20

15
-1

6 
M

AX
IM

U
M

 
N

O
T 

TO
 E

XC
EE

D 
 11

4 
 Ac

t H
om

e 
He

al
th

ca
re

 
 W

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 n

ur
sin

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 t

o 
st

ud
en

ts
 a

t 
no

 c
os

t 
to

 th
e 

Di
st

ric
t. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

N
/A

 
 

N
o 

Co
st

 to
 

th
e 

Di
st

ric
t 

 
N

o 
Co

st
 to

 
th

e 
Di

st
ric

t 

 11
5 

 Ex
ce

pt
io

na
l H

om
e 

He
al

th
ca

re
 

 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 n
ur

sin
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o 

st
ud

en
ts

 a
t 

no
 c

os
t 

to
 th

e 
Di

st
ric

t. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

N
/A

 
 

N
o 

Co
st

 to
 

th
e 

Di
st

ric
t 

 
N

o 
Co

st
 to

 
th

e 
Di

st
ric

t 

 11
6 

 M
ax

im
 H

ea
lth

ca
re

 
Se

rv
ic

es
, I

nc
. 

 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 n
ur

sin
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o 

st
ud

en
ts

 a
t 

no
 c

os
t 

to
 th

e 
Di

st
ric

t. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

N
/A

 
 

N
o 

Co
st

 to
 

th
e 

Di
st

ric
t 

 
N

o 
Co

st
 to

 
th

e 
Di

st
ric

t 

 11
7 

 Pr
em

ie
r H

ea
lth

ca
re

 A
ge

nc
y 

 

 W
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 n
ur

sin
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o 

st
ud

en
ts

 a
t 

no
 c

os
t 

to
 th

e 
Di

st
ric

t. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

N
/A

 
 

N
o 

Co
st

 to
 

th
e 

Di
st

ric
t 

 
N

o 
Co

st
 to

 
th

e 
Di

st
ric

t 

 11
8 

 Ro
ya

l H
ea

lth
ca

re
 A

ge
nc

y 
 W

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 n

ur
sin

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 t

o 
st

ud
en

ts
 a

t 
no

 c
os

t 
to

 th
e 

Di
st

ric
t. 

 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6 

 

 X 
 

N
/A

 
 

N
o 

Co
st

 to
 

th
e 

Di
st

ric
t 

 
N

o 
Co

st
 to

 
th

e 
Di

st
ric

t 

 

26
 

 



No. 1 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and University of California, Irvine Math 

Project hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

1. NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: Consultant will provide 

professional development for teachers involved in Common Core Math, review 

units of study, and provide classroom coaching. 

2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$74,520.    DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and 

with approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

 1 



No. 1 
 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

 2 



No. 1 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

 3 



No. 1 
 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

 4 



No. 1 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District University of California, Irvine Math Project 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 439 Social Science Tower 

Santa Ana, CA  92701 Irvine, CA  92697-2505 

  

 5 



No. 1 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.                                  

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

  

 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 6 



No. 2 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Silicon Valley Mathematics Initiative, 

LLC hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

1. NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: Consultant will provide services 

to assist the District in preparing the School Accountability Report Cards 

(SARC) via a web-based application that will customize and pre-populate online 

templates to produce school and District reports to comply with State and 

Federal regulations. 

2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $190,000.   

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

 1 



No. 2 
 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 2 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 2 
 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 2 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Silicon Valley Mathematics Initiative, LLC 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 17485 Monterey Park, Ste. 205 

Santa Ana, CA  92701 Morgan Hill, CA  95037 

 5 



No. 2 
 

  

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.                                  

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

  

 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 6 



 
 

LICENSING AGREEMENT 

 
This Agreement effective July 1, 2015, is made and entered into by Santa Ana Unified 

School District as Licensee and Document Tracking Services (DTS) as Licensor each a 
“Party” and collectively the “Parties”. 
 

Licensee desires that DTS provide a license to use DTS proprietary web-based application 
in accordance with the following provisions: 

A. License. DTS hereby grants to Licensee a non-exclusive license to use DTS 
application in order to create, edit, update, print and track specific documents as 
described in Exhibit A of this agreement.  

(i) DTS retains all rights, title and interest in DTS application and any registered 
trademarks associated with the license. 

(ii) Licensee retains all rights, title and interest in the documents as described in 
Exhibit A of this agreement. 

B. Internet Areas. All parties including third party licensees shall not be permitted to 

establish any “pointers” or links between the Online Area and any other area on or 
outside of the DTS login without the prior written approval. 

C. Term of License. The term of the Agreement is for one (1) year from the effective 
date (as noted in paragraph one) of the license agreement. 

D. Personnel. DTS will assign the appropriate personnel to represent DTS in all aspects 
of the license including but not limited to account set up and customer license 
inquiries. 

E. Content. DTS will be solely responsible for loading the content supplied by Licensee 
into DTS secure server and provide complete access to Licensee and its 

representatives. 

F. Security of Data. DTS at all times will have complete security of Licensee documents 
on dedicated servers that only authorized DTS personnel will have access to; all login 

by DTS authorized will be stored and saved as to time of log-in and log-out. 

(i) Licensee may request DTS to only store Licensee documents for the period of time 

that allows Licensee and its authorized personnel to create, edit and update their 
documents. 

G. Management of Database. DTS shall allow Licensee to review, edit, create, update 

and otherwise manage all content of Licensee available through the Secure Login of 
DTS. 

H. Customer License. DTS shall respond promptly and professionally to questions, 
comments, complaints and other reasonable requests regarding any aspect of DTS 
application by Licensee. DTS business hours are Monday-Friday 8AM PST to 5PM PST 

except for national/state holidays. 

I. License Fee. Licensee shall pay a fee of $12,470. 

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text
No. 3

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text



 
J. Document Set Up Fee. The one-time set up fee for documents as described in Exhibit 

A and made a part of this Agreement is $0. 

K. Payment Terms. Licensee shall pay the annual licensing fee upon execution of the 

Agreement between parties and the electronic submittal of the invoice to Licensee. 

L. Number of Documents. The maximum number of documents per school district is 

limited to five (5). 

M. Warranty. Licensee represents and warrants that all information provided to DTS, 
including but not limited to narratives, editorials, information regarding schools, is 

owned by Licensee and Licensee has the right to use and allow use by DTS as called 
for hereunder and that no copyrights, trademark rights or intellectual property rights 

of any nature of any third party will be infringed by the intended use thereof.  In the 
event any claim is brought against DTS based on an alleged violation of the rights 
warranted herein, Licensee agrees to indemnify and hold DTS harmless from all such 

claims, including attorney fees and costs incurred by DTS in defending such claims. 

N. Definitions. 

(i) Document. A document is defined as a) a specific template provided by CDE 
or; b) any specific word document or forms that have different fields or school 
references such as elementary, middle or high schools* submitted by District 

or CDE; or c) individual inserts submitted by District or CDE that are 
integrated into existing documents or are offered as supplemental and/or 

addendums to other report documents. 
 

* Licensee submits a SPSA template for their elementary, middle and high schools, 

which is counted as three (3) separate documents. 

(ii) Customized Documents. Any document that is not a standard CDE template is 
considered a custom document and as such may be subject to additional setup 

fees; DTS shall provide an estimated cost of these additional fees prior to the 
execution of this agreement.  

O. Document Setup Fee. DTS will charge a one-time setup fee of $200 per standard 
document up to a maximum of $850 for customized documents. 

P. Additional Fees. Licensee shall pay additional fees if Licensee exceeds the number of 

documents as described in section L of this agreement. The fee for each additional 
document is $39 per document times the number of schools in the district. The fee 

shall be payable within thirty (30) days from DTS invoice. 



 

 

Q. Additional Services. DTS will provide Spanish translation services for fifty-eight (57) 
2015 School Accountability Report Cards published during the 2015-16 school-year. 

Creation of SARCs, with translations, will be completed by January 1, 2016 for the 
February 1 California deadline, provided that all school and district updates are 

complete, and DTS is notified by December 1, 2015. 

One (1) business day will be added to the aforementioned deadline for every one (1) 
day delay of notification of completion to DTS. 

 

The Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 

 
 

Document Tracking Services, LLC 

By:  Aaron Tarazon, Director 
Document Tracking Services 

10225 Barnes Canyon Road, Suite A200 
San Diego, CA 92121 
858-784-0967 - Phone 

858-587-4640 - Corporate Fax 
 

Date: April 13, 2015 
 

Licensee 

By: ______________________ 

Date: ______________________ 

Santa Ana Unified School District 



 
 

Exhibit A 
 

The following are standard documents to be used in conjunction with the license. 

 

1. 2015 School Accountability Report Card, English (Custom Template) 

2. 2015 School Accountability Report Card, Spanish (Custom Template) 

3. 2015 Comprehensive School Safety Plan, English (Custom Template) 

4. 2015 Single Plan for Student Achievement, English (Custom Template) 
 



 
 
 
April 13, 2015 
 
Santa Ana Unified School District 
1601 East Chestnut Avenue 
Santa Ana, CA 92701 
 
Re: Document Tracking Services 
 

INVOICE #6667014 
 

Pursuant to the licensing agreement between Santa Ana Unified School District and Document Tracking Services 
(DTS): 
 

Document Tracking Services  
Document Tracking Services [7/1/15 to 6/30/16]: 

57 schools and District Personnel = 58 sites 
License Agreement includes up to 5 documents 

$12,470 

  

Translation Services  

2015 Spanish School Accountability Report Card 
$175/document x 57 School Accountability Report Cards 

$9,975 

2014 Vietnamese School Accountability Report Card 
$300/document x 4 School Accountability Report Cards 

$1,200 

Total Balance Due: $23,645 
 
Please Make Checks Payable To: Document Tracking Services 
 
Send to: 
 
Aaron Tarazon, Director 
Document Tracking Services 
10225 Barnes Canyon Road, Suite A200 
San Diego, CA 92121 
858-784-0967 - Phone 
858-587-4640 - Corporate Fax 
 
 
 
 

   
Approved Per Payment (Signature)  Name/Role (Printed) 

 
 





No. 4 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Eagle Software hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: Professional services and support of 

Aeries Student Information System training to staff and direct training in subject 

areas, such as Master Schedule, that require a high level of expertise and 

experience, on an “as needed” basis. 

   2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$ 10,000.   

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  All Travel Expenses (not to exceed $250.00 per day)                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

Revised 8-18-05 1 



assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

 2 

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text
No. 4



No. 4 
a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

Revised 8-18-05 3 



of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

 4 

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text
No. 4



No. 4 
contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Eagle Software 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 1065 N. PacifiCenter Drive, Ste. 400 

Santa Ana, CA  92701 Anaheim, CA  92806 

714-480-4702 888-487-7555 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

Revised 8-18-05 5 



 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st day of July 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.                               Brent Lloyd    

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

  

Vice President 

Title  Title 

 

May 12, 2015  33-0427993  

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 

 

  Training Support (per day):  $1,200.00 

  Travel Expenses (per day):  $   250.00 

 6 

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text
No. 4



No. 5 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and California School Management Group, 

Inc. hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

1. NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: Consultant will provide 

professional services for E-Rate projects, to deliver end-to-end solutions, to 

ensure FCC compliance and maximum funding for the District’s E-Rate 

program; as well as preparation of all FCC documentation, main point of 

contact, prepare and present applicable audit documentation, and advise on any 

FCC appeals, on an “as needed” basis. 

2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $85,000.   

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

 1 



No. 5 
 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

 2 



No. 5 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

 3 



No. 5 
 

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

 4 



No. 5 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 5 



No. 5 
 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District California School Management Group, Inc. 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 3333 P.O. Box 4408 

Santa Ana, CA  92701 El Dorado Hills, CA  95762 

  

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.                                  

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

  

 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 6 



No. 6 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and DT-Comp, Inc., hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

1. NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: Consultant will provide 

professional services to support and maintain mission critical applications, 

including Active Directory/Exchange E-mail server, security, network analysis, 

disaster recovery, and forensic discovery, etc., on an “as needed” basis at a rate 

of $145 per hour. 

2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $58,000.   

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

 1 



No. 6 
 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 6 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 6 
 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 6 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District DT-Comp, Inc. 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 1287 Western Ave., Suite G 

Santa Ana, CA  92701 Garden Grove, CA 92841 

 5 



No. 6 
 

  

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.                                  

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

  

 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 6 



No. 7 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Education Pioneers, Inc., hereinafter 

referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:  Consultant will continue to provide 

Analyst Fellows with strong analytical, project management, and communication 

skills for the application of analytics in an educational environment. Up to five 

Analyst Fellows. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$76,500.   

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

 1 



No. 7 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

 2 



No. 7 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

 3 



No. 7 

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

 4 



No. 7 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

 5 



No. 7 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Education Pioneers, Inc. 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 617 S. Olive Street, Suite 1100 

Santa Ana, CA  92701 Los Angeles, CA 90014 

714-480-4702 310-743-9064 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.,  Celia Garcia Alvarado 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

    

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Executive Director – Western Region 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  77-0602311 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

  
 

 

 6 



No. 8 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Gray Miller Persh, LLP hereinafter 

referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide services on Education 

Broadband Services regulatory and lease matters.  Gray Miller Persh, LLP 

(formerly known as Dow Lohnes PLLC) has a long standing relationship with the 

District working in this area. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$2,500.     

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

 1 



No. 8 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

 2 



No. 8 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

 3 



No. 8 

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

 4 



No. 8 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

 5 



No. 8 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 

Gray Miller Persh, LLP 

1200 New Hampshire Ave., NW, Ste. 800 

Santa Ana, CA  92701 

714-480-4702 

Washington, DC  20036-6802 

202-776-2571 

  

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stephanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Todd D. Gray 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations  Partner 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  46-4381194 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 
 

 

 6 



maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text
No. 9 through No. 16

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text
Master Agreement

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text





















lupe.pantoja
Typewritten Text
No. 17

lupe.pantoja
Typewritten Text

lupe.pantoja
Typewritten Text

lupe.pantoja
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text



maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text
No. 17



lupe.pantoja
Typewritten Text
No. 18

lupe.pantoja
Typewritten Text

lupe.pantoja
Typewritten Text

lupe.pantoja
Typewritten Text

lupe.pantoja
Typewritten Text

lupe.pantoja
Typewritten Text

lupe.pantoja
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text



maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text
No. 18

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text



maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text
No. 18

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text



maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text
No. 18



No. 19 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Government Financial Strategies, Inc., 

hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Provide financial advice and reports 

on District cash flow and/or debt financing related to G.O. Bonds, COPs, 

QZABs etc., on an “as needed” basis. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT a total fee not to exceed $25,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  Consultant will charge DISTRICT for costs associated with printing and mailing 

the preliminary and final official statements, if any.  Consultant will not charge the 

DISTRICT for travel arrangements, lodging, transportation, and meals.  All other 

expenses to be reimbursed by DISTRICT shall be approved in advance by the DISTRICT.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that 

 1 



No. 19 

he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the 

DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of 

the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as 

they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall 

assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, 

including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to 

CONSULTANT’s employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be 

provided pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  Consultant will supply all tools, 

and instruments required to perform the services under this Contract.                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of 

his/her profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  Every report, study, memo, letter, spreadsheet, 

worksheet, plan, graph, diagram, map, photograph, computer model, computer disk, computer 

software and other document or item prepared by CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT 

and provided to and paid for by DISTRICT (the “Work Product”) shall be the property of 

DISTRICT, and DISTRICT shall have the right to use, reuse, reproduce, publish, display, 

broadcast and distribute the Work Product and to prepare derivative and additional documents 

or works based on the Work Product without further compensation to CONSULTANT.  

CONSULTANT may retain a copy of any Work Product and use, reproduce, publish, display, 

broadcast and distribute any Work Product and prepare derivative and additional documents or 

 2 



No. 19 

works based on any Work Product; provided, however, that CONSULTANT shall not provide 

any Work Product not previously made available to the public to any third party without 

DISTRICT’s prior approval, unless compelled to do so by legal process.  If DISTRICT reuses 

or modifies any Work Product for a use or purpose other than that intended by this 

AGREEMENT, then DISTRICT shall hold CONSULTANT harmless against all claims, 

damages, losses and expenses arising from such reuse or modification. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered 

to the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT 

makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition 

or violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  Written notice 

by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received by the other party, or no later than three 

days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

10. Hold Harmless:  Both parties shall indemnify, defend, protect, and hold harmless 

the other party, its officers, employees, volunteers and agents from and against any and all 

liability, losses, claims, damages, expenses, demands, and costs (including, but not limited to, 

attorney’s fees) directly arising from any negligent act or omission, willful misconduct or 

violation of law of the other party. 

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a 

comprehensive general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000) per occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a 

 3 



No. 19 

form mutually acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against 

liability or claims of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, 

CONSULTANT agrees to provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is 

afforded by this policy shall be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be 

excess and noncontributory.”  No later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide 

DISTRICT with certificates of insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required 

hereunder including a thirty (30) day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  

CONSULTANT agrees to name DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as 

additional insureds under said policy.   

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that 

it will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

 4 



No. 19 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, 

or sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or 

prevent a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either 

party to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, 

mailed either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  

Service shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third 

day after deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be 

given by either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice 

provisions of this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are 

as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Government Financial Strategies, Inc. 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 1228 N Street, Suite 13 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Sacramento, CA  95814 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by 

a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining 

provisions will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, 

impaired or invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 

 

 

 

 5 



No. 19 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., CBO  Lori Raineri 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations  President, Government Financial Strategies, Inc. 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  95-4193488 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 6 



No. 20 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Joseph W. Rombold hereinafter referred to 

as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1.  1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide assistance with 

statutory compliance related to the mandate reimbursement process and 

mandate block grant.. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$30,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

 1 



No. 20 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 20 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 20 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 20 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Joseph W. Rombold 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 925 L Street, Suite 1200 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Sacramento, CA  95814 
 

 5 



No. 20 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Joseph W. Rombold 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations  President 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  223-80-2474 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 6 



No. 21 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Zarca Interactive, Inc., dba K-12 Insight 

hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

1. NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: Consultant will provide Local 

Control Accountability Plan support for community and parents surveys as well 

as ongoing communication tool between the community and the District with a 

web-based reporting dashboard. 

2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $83,700.   

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 13 
 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 21 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 13 
 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 21 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Zarca Interactive, Inc., dba K-12 Insight 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 2291 Wood Oak Drive, Ste. 300 

Santa Ana, CA  92701 Herndon, VA  20171 

 5 



No. 13 
 

  

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.                                  

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

  

 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 6 



No. 22 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Laurel Adler LLC hereinafter referred to 

as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1.  1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide services to review 

and analyze charter petitions against the specific related sections of the 

California Charter Law Requirements on-an-if-needed basis. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$18,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

 1 



No. 22 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 22 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 22 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 22 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 5 



No. 22 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Laurel Adler LLC 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 225 South Lake #300 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Pasadena, CA  91101 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Laurel Adler 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations  Consultant 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  26-4174953 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 6 



No. 23 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and School Services of California hereinafter 

referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1.  1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide professional services 

and advise in the area of Business Services. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$15,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 23 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 23 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 23 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 23 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 5 



No. 23 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District School Services of California 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue P.O. Box 15546 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Sacramento, CA  95852-1546 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations  Consultant 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 6 



No. 24 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Strategic Education Services, hereinafter 

referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: a) Monitor Budget issues which 

impact District. b) Monitor major legislative fiscal issues which may affect Client. 

c) Provide Client with periodic updates, to SAUSD superintendent or his designee, 

on relevant budget issues and major fiscal issues. d) Represent District on budget 

issues and major fiscal issues before appropriate legislative committees and with 

legislative members, the Governor’s Administration and legislative staff.  e) 

Convening of weekly telephone conference calls to provide updates on activities in 

legislature, governor’s office, State Board, Department of Education and 

Department of Finance. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at a total fee not to exceed 

$36,000.  

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

 

 1 



No. 24 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  The fee for services will cover all basic expenses incurred in Sacramento by the 

Consultant on behalf of the District.  The District shall reimburse the Consultant for all 

District written approved travel expenses incurred by the Consultant for attendance of 

meetings outside the Sacramento area.  In addition the District will be billed for the cost of 

printing, photocopying, faxes, postages, conference calls and publications. 

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 

 

 2 



No. 24 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and 

agents from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or 

expense, of any nature whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

 

 3 



No. 24 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

 4 



No. 24 

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

 5 



No. 24 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Strategic Education Services 

1601 E. Chestnut Ave. 1130 K Street, Suite 250 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Sacramento, CA  95814 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st day of July, 2015. 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Dale F. Shimasaki 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations  CEO 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015 

 94-3317314 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 
 6 



lupe.pantoja
Typewritten Text
No. 25

lupe.pantoja
Typewritten Text

lupe.pantoja
Typewritten Text

lupe.pantoja
Typewritten Text

lupe.pantoja
Typewritten Text



8

lupe.pantoja
Typewritten Text
No. 25



maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text
No. 25

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text



maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text
No. 25

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text



maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text
No. 25

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text



maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text
No. 25

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text



maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text
No. 25

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text



8

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text
No. 25

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text



maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text
No. 25

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text



maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text
No. 25

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text



maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text
No. 25

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text



maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text
No. 25

maribel.martinez
Typewritten Text



No. 26 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Alliant Insurance Services hereinafter 

referred to as “CONSULTANT.” 

 WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide services related to the 

District Health Benefits and guidance on Health Care Reform as it relates to 

medical and dental plan. 

2.  Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this  

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3.  Compensation.   DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for  

services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this  AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$193,000.   DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice 

and with approval of a District representative. 

4.  Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any  

costs or expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT 

except as follows:   N/A. 

  5.  Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this  

AGREEMENT, shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and 

agrees that he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents 

of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided 

employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, 

 1 



No. 26 

including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  

CONSULTANT assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her 

employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  

CONSULTANT shall assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes 

or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with 

respect to CONSULTANT’s employees. 

6.   Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, materials, 

equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided pursuant 

to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A. 

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7.  Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

8.  Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason,  

terminate this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily 

rendered to the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop 

further performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when 

received by the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is 

sooner. 

 2 



No. 26 

 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10.  Hold Harmless:    CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.  

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

 3 



No. 26 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12.  Assignment.    The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance With Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 4 



No. 26 

14.  Permits/Licenses.    CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15.  Employment with Public Agency.    CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16.  Entire Agreement/Amendment.    This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

17.  Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.    CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18.  Non-waiver.    The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19.  Notice.   All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either 

party to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, 

mailed either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  

Service shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third 

day after deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be 

given by either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice 

provisions of this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as 

follows: 

 

 

 

 

 5 



No. 26 

DISTRICT:             CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District  Alliant Insurance Services 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue  1301 Dove Street, Suite 200 
Santa Ana, CA 92701  Newport Beach, CA  92660 

  

20.  Severability.   If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21.  Governing Law.   The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

 

DISTRICT:          CONSULTANT: 

 

By:  By:  
 

 

Signature  Signature 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

  

 

Title  Title 

05/26/2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 6 



No. 27 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Barney & Barney hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.” 

 WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:  Will provide Health Benefits 

services for the Santa Educators Association (SAEA) and California School 

Employees Association (CSEA). 

2.  Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this  

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3.  Compensation.   DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for  

services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this  AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$55,000.   DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and 

with approval of a District representative. 

4.  Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any  

costs or expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT 

except as follows: N/A 

  5.  Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this  

AGREEMENT, shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and 

agrees that he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents 

of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided 

employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, 

 1 



No. 27 

including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  

CONSULTANT assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her 

employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  

CONSULTANT shall assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes 

or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with 

respect to CONSULTANT’s employees. 

6.   Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, materials, 

equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided pursuant 

to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A 

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7.  Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

8.  Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason,  

terminate this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily 

rendered to the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop 

further performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when 

received by the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is 

sooner. 

 2 



No. 27 

 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10.  Hold Harmless:    CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

 3 



No. 27 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12.  Assignment.    The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance With Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 4 



No. 27 

14.  Permits/Licenses.    CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15.  Employment with Public Agency.    CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16.  Entire Agreement/Amendment.    This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

17.  Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.    CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18.  Non-waiver.    The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19.  Notice.   All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either 

party to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, 

mailed either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  

Service shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third 

day after deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be 

given by either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice 

provisions of this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as 

follows: 

 

 

 

 

 5 



No. 27 

DISTRICT:      CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District  Barney & Barney 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue  P.O. Box 85638 
Santa Ana, CA 92701  San Diego, CA  92186-5638 

 

20.  Severability.   If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21.  Governing Law.   The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

 

DISTRICT:      CONSULTANT: 

 

By:  By:  
 

 

Signature  Signature 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

 Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

  

 

 Title 

 

 Title 

05/26/2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 6 



No. 28 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Premier Food Safety, hereinafter referred 

to as “CONSULTANT.” 

 WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide services for ServServe 

Food Manager Certification classes and exams for staff development purposes 

to Food Services Employees in area of Food Safety.   Upon successful 

completion of the course staff will possess a five year nationally recognized 

Food Manager certificate. 

2.  Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this  

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by July 30, 2016. 

3.  Compensation.   DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for  

services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this  AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $7,000.   

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4.  Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any  

costs or expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT 

except as follows: N/A 

  5.  Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this  

AGREEMENT, shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and 

agrees that he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents 

 1 



No. 28 

of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided 

employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, 

including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  

CONSULTANT assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her 

employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  

CONSULTANT shall assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes 

or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with 

respect to CONSULTANT’s employees. 

6.   Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, materials, 

equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided pursuant 

to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A 

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7.  Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

8.  Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason,  

terminate this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily 

rendered to the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop 

further performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when 

 2 



No. 28 

received by the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is 

sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10.  Hold Harmless:    CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

 3 



No. 28 

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12.  Assignment.    The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance With Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

 4 



No. 28 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14.  Permits/Licenses.    CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15.  Employment with Public Agency.    CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16.  Entire Agreement/Amendment.    This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

17.  Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.    CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18.  Non-waiver.    The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19.  Notice.   All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either 

party to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, 

mailed either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  

Service shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third 

day after deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be 

given by either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice 

provisions of this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as 

follows: 

 

 

 5 



No. 28 

DISTRICT:             CONSULTANT: 

 

Santa Ana Unified School District  Premier Food Safety 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue  1532 W. Commonwealth Ave., Suite A 

Santa Ana, CA 92701  Fullerton, CA 92833 
 

 

20.  Severability.   If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21.  Governing Law.   The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

 

DISTRICT:          CONSULTANT: 

 

By:  By:  
 

 

Signature  Signature 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

  

 

Title  Title 

 

05/26/2015 

  

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 6 



No. 29 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Square (1) Design, hereinafter referred to 

as “CONSULTANT.” 

 WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide design services for 

kitchen upgrades for submittal to California Department of Education 

approval. 

2.  Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this  

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by July 30, 2016. 

3.  Compensation.   DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for  

services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this  AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$250,000.   DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice 

and with approval of a District representative. 

4.  Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any  

costs or expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT 

except as follows: N/A 

  5.  Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this  

AGREEMENT, shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and 

agrees that he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents 

of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided 

employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, 

 1 



No. 29 

including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  

CONSULTANT assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her 

employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  

CONSULTANT shall assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes 

or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with 

respect to CONSULTANT’s employees. 

6.   Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, materials, 

equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided pursuant 

to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A 

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7.  Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

8.  Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason,  

terminate this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily 

rendered to the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop 

further performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when 

received by the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is 

sooner. 

 2 



No. 29 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10.  Hold Harmless:    CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 29 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12.  Assignment.    The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance With Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 29 

14.  Permits/Licenses.    CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15.  Employment with Public Agency.    CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16.  Entire Agreement/Amendment.    This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

17.  Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.    CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18.  Non-waiver.    The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19.  Notice.   All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either 

party to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, 

mailed either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  

Service shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third 

day after deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be 

given by either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice 

provisions of this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as 

follows: 

 

 

 

 

 5 



No. 29 

DISTRICT:          CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District  Square (1) Design 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue  10451 Samoa Drive 

Santa Ana, CA 92701  Huntington Beach, CA 92646 
 

 

20.  Severability.   If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21.  Governing Law.   The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

 

DISTRICT:          CONSULTANT: 

 

By:  By:  
 

 

Signature  Signature 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

  

 

Title  Title 

 

05/26/2015 

  

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 6 



No. 30 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and R&D Transportation Services, Inc. 

hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.” 

 WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide transportation, 

planning, and routing and scheduling, services reporting and call center 

services for student home to school transportation. 

2.  Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this  

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by July 30, 2016. 

3.  Compensation.   DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for  

services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this  AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$235,000.   DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice 

and with approval of a District representative. 

4.  Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any  

costs or expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT 

except as follows: N/A. 

  5.  Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this  

AGREEMENT, shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and 

agrees that he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents 

of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided 

employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, 

 1 



No. 30 

including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  

CONSULTANT assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her 

employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  

CONSULTANT shall assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes 

or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with 

respect to CONSULTANT’s employees. 

6.   Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, materials, 

equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided pursuant 

to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A. 

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7.  Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

8.  Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason,  

terminate this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily 

rendered to the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop 

further performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when 

received by the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is 

sooner. 

 2 



No. 30 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10.  Hold Harmless:    CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 30 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12.  Assignment.    The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance With Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 30 

14.  Permits/Licenses.    CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15.  Employment with Public Agency.    CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16.  Entire Agreement/Amendment.    This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

17.  Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.    CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18.  Non-waiver.    The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19.  Notice.   All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either 

party to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, 

mailed either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  

Service shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third 

day after deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be 

given by either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice 

provisions of this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as 

follows: 

 

 

 

 

 5 



No. 30 

DISTRICT:          CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District  R&D Transportation Services, Inc. 
1601 E. Chestnut Avenue  3036 Adolfor Rd. 
Santa Ana, CA 92701  Camarillo, CA  93012 
 

 

20.  Severability.   If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21.  Governing Law.   The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

 

DISTRICT:          CONSULTANT: 

 

By:  By:  
 

 

Signature  Signature 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

  

 

Title  Title 

 

05/26/2015 

  

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 6 



No. 31 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and AON Global Risk Consulting, hereinafter 

referred to as “CONSULTANT.” 

 WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide actuarial study of 

Workers’ Compensation Program as of June 30, 2014. 

2.  Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this  

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by July 30, 2016. 

3.  Compensation.   DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for  

services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this  AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $5,000.   

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4.  Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any  

costs or expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT 

except as follows: N/A. 

  5.  Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this  

AGREEMENT, shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and 

agrees that he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents 

of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided 

employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, 

including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  

 1 



No. 31 

CONSULTANT assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her 

employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  

CONSULTANT shall assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes 

or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with 

respect to CONSULTANT’s employees. 

6.   Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, materials, 

equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided pursuant 

to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A. 

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7.  Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

8.  Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason,  

terminate this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily 

rendered to the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop 

further performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when 

received by the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is 

sooner. 

 

 2 



No. 31 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10.  Hold Harmless:    CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 31 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12.  Assignment.    The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance With Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 31 

14.  Permits/Licenses.    CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15.  Employment with Public Agency.    CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16.  Entire Agreement/Amendment.    This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

17.  Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.    CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18.  Non-waiver.    The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19.  Notice.   All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either 

party to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, 

mailed either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  

Service shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third 

day after deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be 

given by either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice 

provisions of this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as 

follows: 

 

 

 

 

 5 



No. 31 

DISTRICT:          CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District  AON Global Risk Consulting 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue  100 Bayview Circle 

Santa Ana, CA 92701  Newport Beach, CA 92660 
 

 

20.  Severability.   If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21.  Governing Law.   The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

 

DISTRICT:         CONSULTANT: 

 

By:  By:  
 

 

Signature  Signature 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

  

 

Title  Title 

 

05/26/2015 

  

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 6 



No. 32 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Dr. Greg Sancier, hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.” 

 WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide Crisis Intervention 

Team/Mental Health training to Police Officers, First Responders and staff to 

include stress management strategies and conflict resolution and mediation. 

2.  Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this  

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by July 30, 2016. 

3.  Compensation.   DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for  

services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this  AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$20,000.   DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and 

with approval of a District representative. 

4.  Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any  

costs or expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT 

except as follows: N/A 

  5.  Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this  

AGREEMENT, shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and 

agrees that he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents 

of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided 

employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, 

 1 



No. 32 

including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  

CONSULTANT assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her 

employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  

CONSULTANT shall assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes 

or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with 

respect to CONSULTANT’s employees. 

6.   Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, materials, 

equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided pursuant 

to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A 

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7.  Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

8.  Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason,  

terminate this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily 

rendered to the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop 

further performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when 

received by the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is 

sooner. 

 2 



No. 32 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10.  Hold Harmless:    CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 32 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12.  Assignment.    The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance With Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 32 

14.  Permits/Licenses.    CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15.  Employment with Public Agency.    CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16.  Entire Agreement/Amendment.    This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

17.  Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.    CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18.  Non-waiver.    The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19.  Notice.   All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either 

party to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, 

mailed either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  

Service shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third 

day after deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be 

given by either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice 

provisions of this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as 

follows: 

 

 

 

 

 5 



No. 32 

DISTRICT:          CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District  Dr. Greg Sancier 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue  4941 Roundtree Drive 

Santa Ana, CA 92701  Campbell, CA 95008 
 

 

20.  Severability.   If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21.  Governing Law.   The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

 

DISTRICT:         CONSULTANT: 

 

By:  By:  
 

 

Signature  Signature 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

  

 

Title  Title 

 

05/26/2015 

  

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 6 



No. 33 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Global Community College, Inc., 

hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.” 

 WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will conduct Emergency Operations 

training and Incident Command Training for District staff; assist in 

development of school site Emergency Operations Plans; review District drills 

and conduct school site audits as necessary for 2014-15. Develop and Implement 

a TEEN Cert Program. 

2.  Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this  

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by July 30, 2016. 

3.  Compensation.   DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for  

services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this  AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$10,000.   DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and 

with approval of a District representative. 

4.  Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any  

costs or expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT 

except as follows: N/A 

  5.  Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this  

AGREEMENT, shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and 

agrees that he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents 

 1 



No. 33 

of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided 

employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, 

including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  

CONSULTANT assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her 

employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  

CONSULTANT shall assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes 

or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with 

respect to CONSULTANT’s employees. 

6.   Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, materials, 

equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided pursuant 

to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A 

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7.  Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

8.  Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason,  

terminate this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily 

rendered to the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop 

further performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when 

 2 



No. 33 

received by the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is 

sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10.  Hold Harmless:    CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

 3 



No. 33 

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12.  Assignment.    The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance With Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

 4 



No. 33 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14.  Permits/Licenses.    CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15.  Employment with Public Agency.    CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16.  Entire Agreement/Amendment.    This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

17.  Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.    CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18.  Non-waiver.    The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19.  Notice.   All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either 

party to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, 

mailed either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  

Service shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third 

day after deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be 

given by either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice 

provisions of this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as 

follows: 

 

 

 5 



No. 33 

 

 

DISTRICT:          CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District  Global Community College, Inc. 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue  232 South Orchard Avenue 

Santa Ana, CA 92701  Ukiah, CA 95482 
 

 

20.  Severability.   If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21.  Governing Law.   The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

 

DISTRICT:          CONSULTANT: 

 

By:  By:  
 

 

Signature  Signature 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

  

 

Title  Title 

 

05/26/2015 

  

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 6 



No. 34 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Dr. Manny Tau/Baron Center, hereinafter 

referred to as “CONSULTANT.” 

 WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide services related to 

workplace violence and threat management and training to include skill 

development, behavioral interventions, and threat assessments. 

2.  Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this  

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by July 30, 2016. 

3.  Compensation.   DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for  

services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this  AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$35,000.   DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and 

with approval of a District representative. 

4.  Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any  

costs or expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT 

except as follows: N/A 

  5.  Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this  

AGREEMENT, shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and 

agrees that he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents 

of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided 

employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, 

 1 



No. 34 

including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  

CONSULTANT assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her 

employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  

CONSULTANT shall assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes 

or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with 

respect to CONSULTANT’s employees. 

6.   Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, materials, 

equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided pursuant 

to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A 

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7.  Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

8.  Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason,  

terminate this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily 

rendered to the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop 

further performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when 

received by the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is 

sooner. 

 2 



No. 34 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10.  Hold Harmless:    CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 34 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12.  Assignment.    The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance With Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 34 

14.  Permits/Licenses.    CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15.  Employment with Public Agency.    CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16.  Entire Agreement/Amendment.    This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

17.  Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.    CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18.  Non-waiver.    The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19.  Notice.   All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either 

party to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, 

mailed either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  

Service shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third 

day after deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be 

given by either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice 

provisions of this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as 

follows: 

 

 

 

 

 5 



No. 34 

DISTRICT:          CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District  Dr. Manny Tau/Baron Center 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue  300 S. El Camino Real, Suite 218 

Santa Ana, CA 92701  San Clemente, CA 92672 
 

 

20.  Severability.   If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21.  Governing Law.   The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

 

DISTRICT:          CONSULTANT: 

 

By:  By:  
 

 

Signature  Signature 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

  

 

Title  Title 

 

05/26/2015 

  

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 6 



No. 35 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Total Compensation Systems, Inc., 

hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.” 

 WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide GASB 45 Actuarial 

Study of Post-Employment Benefits as of June 30, 2014. 

2.  Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this  

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by July 30, 2016. 

3.  Compensation.   DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for  

services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this  AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $8,500.   

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4.  Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any  

costs or expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT 

except as follows: N/A. 

  5.  Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this  

AGREEMENT, shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and 

agrees that he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents 

of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided 

employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, 

including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  

 1 



No. 35 

CONSULTANT assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her 

employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  

CONSULTANT shall assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes 

or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with 

respect to CONSULTANT’s employees. 

6.   Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, materials, 

equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided pursuant 

to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A. 

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7.  Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

8.  Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason,  

terminate this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily 

rendered to the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop 

further performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when 

received by the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is 

sooner. 

 2 



No. 35 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10.  Hold Harmless:    CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 35 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12.  Assignment.    The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance With Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 35 

14.  Permits/Licenses.    CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15.  Employment with Public Agency.    CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16.  Entire Agreement/Amendment.    This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

17.  Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.    CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18.  Non-waiver.    The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19.  Notice.   All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either 

party to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, 

mailed either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  

Service shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third 

day after deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be 

given by either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice 

provisions of this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as 

follows: 

 

 

 

 

 5 



No. 35 

DISTRICT:          CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District  Total Compensation Systems, Inc. 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue  5655 Lindero Canyon Road, #223 

Santa Ana, CA 92701  Westlake Village, CA 91362 
 

 

20.  Severability.   If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21.  Governing Law.   The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

 

DISTRICT:          CONSULTANT: 

 

By:  By:  
 

 

Signature  Signature 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

  

 

Title  Title 

 

05/26/2015 

  

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 6 



No. 36 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Vision Star Media, hereinafter referred to 

as “CONSULTANT.” 

 WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will produce a series of emergency 

response training and operational videos highlighting specific District protocols 

for active shooter - run, hide, fight-scenarios. 

2.  Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this  

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by July 30, 2016. 

3.  Compensation.   DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for  

services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this  AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$160,000.   DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice 

and with approval of a District representative. 

4.  Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any  

costs or expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT 

except as follows: N/A. 

  5.  Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this  

AGREEMENT, shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and 

agrees that he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents 

of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided 

employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, 

 1 



No. 36 

including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  

CONSULTANT assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her 

employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  

CONSULTANT shall assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes 

or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with 

respect to CONSULTANT’s employees. 

6.   Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, materials, 

equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided pursuant 

to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A. 

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7.  Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

8.  Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason,  

terminate this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily 

rendered to the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop 

further performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when 

received by the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is 

sooner. 

 2 



No. 36 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10.  Hold Harmless:    CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 36 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12.  Assignment.    The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance With Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 36 

14.  Permits/Licenses.    CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15.  Employment with Public Agency.    CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16.  Entire Agreement/Amendment.    This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

17.  Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.    CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18.  Non-waiver.    The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19.  Notice.   All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either 

party to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, 

mailed either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  

Service shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third 

day after deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be 

given by either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice 

provisions of this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as 

follows: 

 

 

 

 

 5 



No. 36 

DISTRICT:          CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District  Vision Star Media 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue  17518 Von Karman Avenue 

Santa Ana, CA 92701  Irvine, CA 92614 
 

 

20.  Severability.   If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21.  Governing Law.   The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

 

DISTRICT:          CONSULTANT: 

 

By:  By:  
 

 

Signature  Signature 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

  

 

Title  Title 

 

05/26/2015 

  

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 6 



No. 37 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and RCS Investigations & Consulting, LLC 

hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: RCS to conduct background 

investigations for the SAUSD Police Department. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$15,000.  DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and 

with approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

 1 



No. 37 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

 2 



No. 37 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

 3 



No. 37 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

 4 



No. 37 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits and licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 5 



No. 37 

Santa Ana Unified School District RCS Investigations & Consulting, LLC 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue PO Box 29798 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Anaheim Hills, CA 92809-9798 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT:  CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Charlie Chavez 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO   

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  20-5065414 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 6 



No. 38 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Lexipol, LLC hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Provide Lexipol subscription 

services: policy manual updates, daily training bulletins, and additional online 

resources to SAUSD Police Department. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $4,450. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 38 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services.   

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 38 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 38 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 38 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits and licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 5 



No. 38 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Lexipol, LLC 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 6B Liberty, Suite 200 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Aliso Viejo, CA 92656 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.,   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations   

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 6 



No. 39 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and American Mechanical Plumbing 

Engineering, Inc. hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Mechanical, electrical and structural 

engineering design services at multiple school sites. 

2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $200,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows: N/A.  

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that 

he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the 

DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees 

of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but 

not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

 1 



No. 39 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as 

they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall 

assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, 

including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to 

CONSULTANT’s employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.  

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, formulae, 

procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, recordings, 

teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the DISTRICT and/or 

used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to CONSULTANT and 

shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that submitted to 

CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that all 

matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and cannot 

be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, title 

and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, trademark 

and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents to use of 

CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution of the 

matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate this 

AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to the 

date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further performance 

of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by the 

CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to 

terminate for cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the 

 2 



No. 39 

CONSULTANT; or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others 

for personal injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, 

CONSULTANT makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is 

appointed due to CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the 

reasons for such intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such 

notice the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction 

thereof be made, this AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and 

terminate.  In the event of such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services 

from another contractor.  If the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the 

CONSULTANT.  The foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other 

rights or remedies available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed 

given when received by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, 

whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) Injury to, 

loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense arising out 

of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any person, firm or 

corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly or by 

independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for in this 

AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages referred to 

above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 

DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

 3 



No. 39 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use of any 

copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented invention 

under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or agents 

shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in connection 

with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 4 



No. 39 

15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District AMPE, Inc. 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 600 W. Broadway, Ste. 250 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Glendale, CA 91204 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

 5 



No. 39 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations   Consultant  

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 
 

  

 

 6 



No. 40 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Associated Solis Engineering, Inc. 

hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Geotechnical engineering consulting 

services and lab testing services for multiple school sites.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $200,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

 1 



No. 40 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

 2 



No. 40 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

 3 



No. 40 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

 4 



No. 40 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Associated Solis Engineering, Inc. 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 2860 Walnut Avenue 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Signal Hill, CA 90755 

 5 



No. 40 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations  Consultant 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 6 



No. 41 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Bainbridge Environment Consultants 

hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Asbestos, lead paint, mold and/or 

other building related environmental issues for Measure G. Critically Overcrowded 

Schools (COS)., Overcrowded Relief Grant (ORG), Modernization (MOD) and 

Maintenance and Operations projects. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $90,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

 1 



No. 41 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 41 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 41 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

 4 



No. 41 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Bainbridge Environment Consultants 

1601  E. Chestnut Avenue 3814 E. La Palma Avenue 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Anaheim, CA 92807 

 5 



No. 41 

 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Henry Moreno 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations  Principal/Program Manager 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 6 



No. 42 

 

AGREEMENT FOR LABOR COMPLIANCE CONSULTANT SERVICES 
 
 This AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 1st  day of July in the year 2015, by 
and between SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as 
“DISTRICT”, and CS & ASSOCIATES, INC., hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT”; 
 

WHEREAS, Labor Code Section 1771.7 requires school districts that use funds derived 
from the Kindergarten-University Public Education Facilties Bond Act of 2002 or 2004 for a 
public works project to initiate and enforce, or contract with a third party to initiate and enforce, 
a labor compliance program; 

WHEREAS, DISTRICT desires to obtain labor compliance consultant services for the 
following school construction/modernization projects deriving funds from the Kindergarten-
University Public Education Facilities Bond Act of 2002 or 2004: 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________ 
(hereinafter referred to collectively as “PROJECTS”) located in the DISTRICT. The DISTRICT 
and CONSULTANT may upon mutual written agreement amend this AGREEMENT to change 
the number of PROJECTS or the scope of the CONSULTANT’s work; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT acknowledges that funds derived from the Kindergarten-
University Public Education Facilities Bond Act of 2002 or 2004 is a condition precedent to the 
effectiveness of this AGREEMENT. If such is not received by the DISTRICT, this 
AGREEMENT is void except to the extent services have been rendered pursuant to DISTRICT 
Board authority; 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT represents it has the necessary personnel, professional 
qualifications, expertise and financial capability to provide such special consultant services in 
conformity with the laws of the State of California and as set forth in CONSULTANT’s Proposal 
to the DISTRICT dated February 24, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, the period during which services are provided under this AGREEMENT shall not 
exceed five years including all extensions in accordance with Education Code Section 17596 
subject to the provisions set forth in Article VI 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE I- CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITIES & SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

1. CONSULTANT’s services shall consist of those services performed by CONSULTANT, 
CONSULTANT’S employees and CONSULTANT as enumerated in this 
AGREEMENT. 

2. CONSULTANT’s services shall be performed in manner that is consistent with 
professional skill and care and the orderly progress of the work. CONSULTANT shall 
perform its services diligently, expeditiously and with adequate forces consistent with the 
requirements for the PROJECTS. 

 1 



No. 42 

 

3. CONSULTANT, upon notice to proceed from the DISTRICT, shall provide labor 
compliance related services as required for the implementation, enforcement, 
management and operation of the CONSULTANT’s Initial Approved Labor Compliance 
Program (“LCP”). A copy of the CONSULTANT’s LCP is attached hereto as 
Attachment “A”. CONSULTANT shall furnish and pay for all labor, materials, 
supervision, supplies and equipment necessary for the timely and efficient performance 
of such services. 

 
4. CONSULTANT shall review the DISTRICT’s Division “00” and “01” of its Project 

Specifications to ensure that the documents contain the appropriate language concerning 
the requirements of the Labor Code for the PROJECTS. 

 
 
5. CONSULTANT shall coordinate and perform all services set forth in this AGREEMENT 

through the DISTRICT’s Construction Manager. CONSULTANT shall carbon copy the 
Construction Manager on any communications with the DISTRICT. CONSULTANT 
shall conduct all Pre-Job Conferences. 

 
6. CONSULTANT shall not subcontract or assign any services or responsibilities set forth 

in this AGREEMENT without the prior written consent and approval of the DISTRICT. 
 

 
7. PRE-JOB CONFERENCE /PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING 
 

a. After the award of the contract for the PROJECTS, and prior to the commencement 
of any work by the Contractor or its Subcontractors, CONSULTANT shall conduct 
all Pre-Job Conferences. 

b. At the Pre-Job Conference, the CONSULTANT shall discuss and be prepared the 
answer questions regarding the state labor law requirements applicable to the 
PROJECTS, including, but not limited to the following: prevailing wage 
requirements, wage determinations, the respective record keeping responsibilities, the 
requirement for the submittal of certified payroll records to CONSULTANT, 
apprenticeship requirements, the prohibition against discrimination in employment 
and required forms for filing and submittal. 

c. CONSULTANT shall provide the DISTRICT with the necessary labor compliance 
documents and suggested reporting forms to be provided to the Contractor and 
Subcontractors at the Pre-Job Conference including, but not limited to the following: 
a copy of the approved LCP, the checklist of Labor Law Requirements, Department 
of Industrial Relations website (www.dir.ca.gov) where the applicable prevailing 
wage determinations can be obtained, blank certified payroll record forms, fringe 
benefit statements, state apprenticeship requirements, and a copy of the Labor Code 
relating to Public Works and Public Agencies (Part 7, Chapter 1, Sections 1720-
1861). 

d. CONSULTANT shall provide and discuss in detail the issues set forth in the 
Checklist of Labor Law requirements of the LCP and Appendix A of the Title 8, 
California Code of Regulations, section 16430. 

 2 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/


No. 42 

 

e. CONSULTANT shall ensure that the contractor’s and all of the Subcontractors’ 
representatives certify that they acknowledge and understand the LCP and all of the 
state labor law requirements for the PROJECTS. 

 
8. CERTIFIED PAYROLL RECORDS 
 

a. CONSULTANT shall monitor Contractor and Subcontractors to ensure they maintain 
weekly certified payroll records (“CPR”) and submit CPRs to CONSULTANT with 
each payment application, but not less than once every month. CONSULTANT shall 
receive all CPRs in a manner as to not delay payment to the Contractor and 
Subcontractors. 

b. CONSULTANT shall timely review all submitted CPRs to ensure they are 
accompanied by a statement of compliance signed by the Contractor and each 
Subcontractor indicating that the payroll records are correct and complete, that the 
wage Department of Industrial Relations and that the classifications set forth for each 
employee conform with the work performed. CONSULTANT shall review all CPRs 
in a manner as to not delay payment to the Contractor and Subcontractors if 
CONSULTANT does not have a basis for recommending withholding of contract 
payments based on its review of such CPRs.  

c. CONSULTANT shall ensure that sole owners and partners who work on the 
PROJECTS also submit CPRs listing the days and hours worked and the trade 
classification descriptive of the work actually done.  

d. CONSULTANT shall review all CPRs to ensure the following: that the worker’s rate 
for straight time hours equal or exceed the rate specified in the contract by reference 
to the Prevailing Wage Discriminations for the class of work actually performed, 
overtime payments, subsistence, travel, shift differential and other payments are made 
in accordance with the applicable Prevailing Wage Determinations and applicable 
California law. 

 
9.  APPRENTICESHIP REQUIREMENTS 

 
a. CONSULTANT shall ensure that the Contractor and all Subcontractors comply with 

the apprenticeship requirements set forth in the LCP and Labor Code section 1777.5. 
b. CONSULTANT shall ensure that a separate DAS 140 Form is properly completed 

and submitted for each apprenticeable craft employed on the PROJECTS. 
c. If the Contractor or a Subcontractor is not required to make apprenticeship training 

contributions to the applicable apprenticeship program, CONSULTANT shall ensure 
the appropriate contributions are timely made to California Apprenticeship Council 
and accompanied by the required CAC-2 Form. 

 
10.  AUDITS & INVESTIGATIONS 

 
a. CONSULTANT shall conduct audits and investigations of CPRs to determine whether 
all workers on the PROJECTS have been paid according to the applicable prevailing 
wage rates. These audits and investigations shall take place on a random basis or at the 

 3 



No. 42 

 

request of the Labor Commissioner or upon receipt of a complaint or when there is any 
evidence that a violation may have occurred. 
 
b. CONSULTANT shall conduct on-site interviews with workers on the PROJECTS if 
there is any evidence that a violation may have occurred or on a random basis or as 
requested by the DISTRICT. 
 
c. CONSULTANT shall conduct all such audits and investigations and prepare 
appropriate audit records in sufficient detail as set forth in the LCP and Title 8, California 
Code of Regulations, section 16432. 
 
d. CONSULTANT shall prepare and maintain records documenting any audits 
investigation activities in sufficient detail so that such records may be used by the 
DISTRICT in the event of a request for hearing, appeal or litigation. The records must 
also demonstrate that a thorough and objective investigation took place. 
 
e. An outline for the proposed steps for document collection which should be in place and 
applied to all prevailing wage violation cases is attached hereto as Attachment “B”. 
 
f. If an audit or investigation reveals that a willful violation of the Labor Code (as set 
forth in the LCP) has occurred, the CONSULTANT shall make a written report to the 
Labor Commissioner which shall include: (1) an audit consisting of a comparison of 
payroll records to the best available information as to the actual hours worked (2) the 
classification of workers employed on the PROJECTS and (3) any other information 
required under the LCP or the Labor Code.  

 
 

11.  ENFORCEMENT ACTION 
 

a.  CONSULTANT shall provide services to assist the DISTRICT in enforcing Labor 
Code section 1720 et seq. and the procedural regulations of the Department of Industrial 
Relations in a manner consistent with the practice of the Division of Labor Standards 
Enforcement (“DLSE”) and the regulations found in Title 8, California Code of 
Regulations, section 1600 et seq. 
 

 
b. CONSULTANT’s duties in assisting with the DISTRICT’s enforcement 
responsibilities under the Labor Code and LCP include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

 
(i) Making written recommendations to withhold contract payments and 

assess appropriate penalties when payroll records are delinquent or 
inadequate. 

(ii) Making written recommendations, after a full and complete investigation 
to the satisfaction of the CONSULTANT, to withhold contract payments 

 4 



No. 42 

 

and assess appropriate penalties for not paying the per diem prevailing 
wages. 

(iii) Making written recommendations to withhold contract payments and 
assess appropriate penalties for failing to comply with the required 
apprenticeship requirements for the PROJECTS. 

(iv) Making written recommendations for forfeitures and preparing the 
required file ore report for the determination and approval of such 
forfeitures to the Labor Commissioner. 

(v) Making written recommendations regarding the debarment of any 
Contractor or Subcontractor found to be repeat violators of the Labor 
Code. 

 
c. After determination of the amount of forfeiture by the Labor Commissioner, 
CONSULTANT shall assist the DISTRICT in preparing and serving the appropriate 
notice of withholding of contract payments to the Contractor and/or Subcontractors. 
 
d. Should the affected Contractor or Subcontractor request review of a notice of 
withholding of contract payment, CONSULTANT shall assist the DISTRICT and its 
legal counsel in preparing for such review and hearings including, but not limited to, 
preparing all documents and evidence and providing testimony at any such hearings. 

 
12.  OUTREACH ACTIVITIES 

 
CONSULTANT shall insist in the DISTRICT’s successful implementation of the LCP by 
conducting the following outreach activities: 

a. General communication and outreach relative to public information regarding the LCP. 
b. Presentations to Contractors and Subcontractors at all Pre-Bid Conferences and Pre-
Job Conferences. 
c. Ongoing communications (via correspondence or meetings) with workers at the 
PROJECTS when review of the CPRs reveals the possibility of prevailing wage 
violations. 
d. Periodic meetings with contractor organizations, prime contractors and subcontractors 
interested in public works contracting with the DISTRICT. 
e. Providing advice and expertise to answer any questions from the DISTRICT’s staff, 
Contractors and Subcontractors relative to the terms, requirements and administration of 
the LCP. 

 
13.  ANNUAL REPORTS 

a. CONSULTANT shall assist the DISTRICT in preparing the required annual report on 
the operation of the LCP to be submitted to the DISTRICT Board, DISTRICT. 
b. CONSULTANT shall insist the DISTRICT in applying for either extended initial 
approval or final approval of the DISTRICT’s LCP should the DISTRICT have one. 

 
 
ARTICLE II- DISTRICT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 5 



No. 42 

 

1. The DISTRICT, through the CONSULTANT, ultimately has the duty to enforce Labor Code 
section 1720 et seq., the LCP and the procedural regulations of the Department of Industrial 
Relations in a manner consistent with the practice of DLSE and the regulations found in Title 
8, California Code of Regulations, section 1600 et seq. 

 
2. DISTRICT shall insist and provide information promptly and as is reasonably required for 

CONSULTANT to perform its obligations under this AGREEMENT. 
 
 
3. DISTRICT shall allow CONSULTANT continuous access and right-of-way on the 

PROJECTS to the extent reasonably determined by CONSULTANT to be appropriate to 
perform its obligations under this AGREEMENT. 

 
4. DISTRICT shall devote the necessary personnel for performance of its obligations under this 

AGREEMENT and shall designate a Labor Commissioner Officer on behalf of the 
DISTRICT who will be responsible for coordinating the DISTRICT and CONSULTANT’s 
performance under this AGREEMENT. 

 
ARTICLE III- CONSULTANT’S DOCUMENTS 

 
Any and all documents prepared by CONSULTANT for the PROJECTS shall be and remain the 
property of the DISTRICT. 
 
 
ARTICLE IV- ACCOUNTING RECORDS OF THE CONSULTANT 
 
1. Records of the CONSULTANT’s direct personnel and other expenses pertaining to the 

PROJECTS, and records of accounts between the DISTRICT and CONSULTANT shall be 
kept on a generally recognized accounting basis and shall be available to the DISTRICT or 
DISTRICT’s authorized representative at mutually convenient times. 

 
ARTICLE V- COMPENSATION TO THE CONSULTANT 
 
1. The DISTRICT shall compensate the CONSULTANT on a “time and materials” basis in 

accordance with the hourly rate schedule for CONSULTANT‘s personnel set forth in 
Attachment “c” attached hereto. 
 

2. In no event, however, shall the total fee amount paid to CONSULTANT for services under 
this AGREEMENT exceed the Grant Adjustments for Labor Compliance Programs adopted 
by the State Allocation Board (“SAB”) on July 2, 2003 and set forth in Attachment “C”. If 
the SAB Grant Adjustments are revised in the future while CONSULTANT is providing 
services pursuant to this AGREEMENT, the parties agree to review any revisions, and if 
mutually agreeable, will incorporate any revisions into this AGREEMENT through a written 
Amendment. 
 

 6 



No. 42 

 

3. If necessary, the DISTRICT and CONSULTANT agree that they will meet once a year on a 
mutually agreeable date to evaluate and discuss the general status of the DISTRICT’s 
PROJECTS as it relates to the CONSULTANT’s compensation and services as set forth in 
this AGREEMENT. Upon such review and evaluation if both parties agree it is in their best 
interest to make adjustments to the CONSULTANT’s compensation, manpower 
requirements, Reimbursable Expenses or the hourly rates set forth in Exhibit “C”, both 
parties shall execute a written Amendment setting forth all adjustments or changes to this 
AGREEMENT. No Amendments to this AGREEMENT shall be effective unless in writing 
and fully executed by both parties and approved by the DISTRICT’s Governing Board. 

 
ARTICLE VI-TERMINATION 
 
1. This AGREEMENT may be terminated by either party upon fourteen (14) days’ written 

notice to the other party in the event of a substantial failure of performance by such other 
party, including insolvency of CONSULTANT; or if the DISTRICT fails to receive funds 
from the Kindergarten-University Public Education Facilities Bond Act of 2002 or 2004; or 
if the DISTRICT should decide to abandon or indefinitely postpone the PROJECTS. 

 
2. In the event of a termination based upon abandonment or postponement by DISTRICT, the 

DISTRICT shall pay to the CONSULTANT for all services performed and all expenses 
incurred under this AGREEMENT supported by documentary evidence, including payroll 
records, and expense reports up until the date of the abandonment or postponement. In 
ascertaining the services actually rendered hereunder up to the date of termination of this 
AGREEMENT, consideration shall be given to both completed work and work in process of 
completion and other documents whether delivered to the DISTRICT or in the possession of 
the CONSULTANT.  In the event termination is for a substantial failure of performance, all 
damages and costs associated with the termination, including increased consultant and 
replacement consultant costs shall be deducted from payments to CONSULTANT. 

 
3. This AGREEMENT may be terminated without cause by DISTRICT upon fourteen (14) 

days’ written notice to CONSULTANT.  In the event of a termination without cause, the 
DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT for all services performed and all expenses incurred 
under this AGREEMENT supported by documentary evidence, including payroll records, 
and expense reports up until the date of notice of termination. In ascertaining the services 
actually rendered hereunder up to the date of termination of this AGREEMENT, 
consideration shall be given to both completed work and work in process of completion and 
other documents whether delivered to the DISTRICT or in the possession of the 
CONSULTANT. In addition, CONSULTANT will be reimbursed for reasonable termination 
costs through the payment of no more than 5% of all actual costs incurred up until the date of 
termination, but no more than the actual documented costs incurred by CONSULTANT for 
four months prior to the date of termination, as termination costs upon CONSULTANT’s 
provision of substantiating justification documents. This payment is agreed to compensate 
CONSULTANT for the unpaid profit CONSULTANT would have made under the 
PROJECTS on the date of termination and is consideration for entry into this termination for 
convenience clause. 

 

 7 



No. 42 

 

4. In the event of a dispute between the parties as to performance of the work or the 
interpretation of this AGREEMENT, or payment or nonpayment for work performed or not 
performed, the parties shall attempt to resolve the dispute.  In the event of a failure to resolve 
the dispute, CONSULTANT agrees to work for the DISTRICT for a period not to exceed 45 
days, to allow the DISTRICT to obtain a replacement CONSULTANT. During the period 
following the attempt to resolve the dispute, CONSULTANT agrees to work diligently, and 
DISTRICT agrees to make all other payments to CONSULTANT for undisputed work. 
DISTRICT agrees not to withhold funds other than funds for work which is in dispute. After 
expiration of the 45-day period, or installation of a replacement CONSULTANT, either party 
may submit the controversy to a court having competent jurisdiction of the dispute if the 
dispute has not been resolved. 

 
ARTICLE VII- MISCELLANEOUS 
 
1. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 

DISTRICT entirely harmless from all liability arising out of: 
 

a. Any and all claims under Workers’ Compensation acts and other employee 
benefit acts with respect to CONSULTANT’s employees or CONSULTANT’s 
subcontractor’s employees arising out of CONSULTANT’s work under this 
AGREEMENT; and 

 
b. Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person; (2) injury to, loss or 
theft of property; (3) any failure or alleged failure to comply with any provision of law or 
(4) any other loss, damage or expense arising under either (1), (2), or (3) above, sustained 
by the CONSULTANT or any person, firm or corporation employed by the 
CONSULTANT or the DISTRICT, or any person, firm or corporation employed by 
CONSULTANT upon or in connection with the CONSULTANT’s work on the projects, 
except for liability resulting from the sole or active negligence, or willful misconduct of 
the DISTRICT, its officers, employees, agents or independent consultants who are 
directly employed by the DISTRICT; 

 
c. Any loss, injury to or death or persons or damage to property caused by any 
negligent act, neglect, default or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any person, firm or 
corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly or by independent contract, 
including all damages due to loss or theft, sustained by any person, firm or corporation 
including the DISTRICT, arising out of, or in any way connected with the PROJECTS, 
including injury or damage either on or off DISTRICT property; but not for any loss, 
injury, death or damages caused by the sole or active negligence, or willful misconduct of 
the DISTRICT. 

 
CONSULTANT, at its own expense, cost, and risk, shall defend any and all claims, actions, 
suits, or other proceedings arising under Article VII.1.b that may be brought or instituted against 
the DISTRICT, its officers, agents or employees, on any such claim or liability, and shall pay or 
satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against the DISTRICT, its officers, agents or 
employees in any action, suit or other proceedings as a result thereof. 

 8 



No. 42 

 

 
2. CONSULTANT shall purchase and maintain policies of insurance with an insurer or 

insurers, qualified to do business in the State of California and acceptable to DISTRICT 
which will protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT from claims which may arise out of or 
result from CONSULTANT’s actions or inactions relating to the AGREEMENT, whether 
such actions or inactions be by themselves or by any subcontractor or by anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.  
The aforementioned insurance shall include coverage for: 

 
a. Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance in accordance with the 
laws of the State of California. 

 
b. Comprehensive general and auto liability insurance with limits of not less than 
$500,000 combined single limit, bodily injury and property damage liability per 
occurrence, including: 

 
   1. Owned, non-owned and hired vehicles; 
   2. Blanket contractual; 
   3. Broad form property damage; 
   4. Products/completed operations; and 
   5. Personal injury. 
 

c. Professional liability insurance, including contractual liability, with limits of $500,000, 
per occurrence.  Such insurance shall be maintained during the term of this 
AGREEMENT and renewed for a reasonable period of time.  Failure to maintain 
professional liability insurance is a material breach of this AGREEMENT and grounds 
for immediate termination. 

 
d. Each policy of insurance required in (b) above shall name DISTRICT and its officers, 
agents and employees as additional insured’s; shall state that, with respect to the 
operations of CONSULTANT hereunder, such policy is primary and any insurance 
carried by DISTRICT is excess and non-contributory with such primary insurance; shall 
state that not less than thirty (30) days’ written notice shall be given to DISTRICT prior 
to cancellation; and, shall waive all rights of subrogation.  CONSULTANT shall notify 
DISTRICT in the event of material change in, or failure to renew, each policy.  Prior to 
commencing work, CONSULTANT shall deliver to DISTRICT certificates of insurance 
as evidence of compliance with the requirements herein.  In the event CONSULTANT 
fails to secure or maintain any policy of insurance required hereby, DISTRICT may, at its 
sole discretion, secure such policy of insurance in the name of and for the account of 
CONSULTANT, and in such event CONSULTANT shall reimburse DISTRICT upon 
demand for the cost thereof. 
 

3. CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, shall be and act as an 
independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that CONSULTANT and 
all of CONSULTANT’s employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of 
the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided 

 9 



No. 42 

 

employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, 
including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s 
Compensation.  CONSULTANT assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions 
of CONSULTANT’s employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under 
this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full responsibility for payment of all 
federal, state and local taxes or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social 
security and income taxes for the respective CONSULTANT’s employees. 

 
 
4. Nothing contained in this AGREEMENT shall create a contractual relationship with or a 

cause of action in favor of any third party against either the DISTRICT or CONSULTANT. 
 
 
5. The DISTRICT and CONSULTANT, respectively, bind themselves, their partners, officers, 

successors, assigns and legal representatives to the other party to this AGREEMENT with 
respect to the terms of this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall not assign this 
AGREEMENT. 

 
 
6. This AGREEMENT shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. 
 
 
7. This AGREEMENT represents the entire AGREEMENT between the DISTRICT and 

CONSULTANT and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, 
either written or oral. This AGREEMENT may be amended or modified only by an 
agreement in writing signed by both the DISTRICT and CONSULTANT. 

 
 This AGREEMENT entered into as of the day and year first written above. 
 
 
DISTICT:      CONSULTANT: 
 
Santa Ana Unified School District   CS & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 
 
 
By:        By:       
Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D    ______________________________ 
Deputy Superintendent, Operations   ______________________________ 
   
Date:________________    Date:_________________ 
 

 10 



No. 42 

 

ATTACHMENT “A” 
 

(Insert copy of Approved LCP) 
 
 
 

 11 



No. 42 

 

ATTACHMENT “B” 
 

(Outline for proposed steps for documentation collection) see page 4 of agreement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 12 



No. 42 

 

EXHIBIT “C” 

 13 





No. 43 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Colbi Technologies hereinafter referred to 

as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide financial software 

support to the Facilities Accounting Program. 

2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $10,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows: N/A.   

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that 

he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the 

DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees 

of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but 

not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

 1 



No. 43 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as 

they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall 

assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, 

including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to 

CONSULTANT’s employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A. 

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, formulae, 

procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, recordings, 

teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the DISTRICT and/or 

used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to CONSULTANT and 

shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that submitted to 

CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that all 

matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and cannot 

be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, title 

and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, trademark 

and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents to use of 

CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution of the 

matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate this 

AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to the 

date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further performance 

of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by the 

CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to 

terminate for cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the 

 2 



No. 43 

CONSULTANT; or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others 

for personal injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, 

CONSULTANT makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is 

appointed due to CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the 

reasons for such intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such 

notice the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction 

thereof be made, this AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and 

terminate.  In the event of such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services 

from another contractor.  If the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the 

CONSULTANT.  The foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other 

rights or remedies available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed 

given when received by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, 

whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) Injury to, 

loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense arising out 

of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any person, firm or 

corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly or by 

independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for in this 

AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages referred to 

above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 

DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

 3 



No. 43 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use of any 

copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented invention 

under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or agents 

shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in connection 

with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 4 



No. 43 

15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Colbi Technologies 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 17792 Orange Tree Lane 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Tustin, CA 92780 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

 5 



No. 43 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations  Consultant  

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date   

 

 

 6 



No. 44 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Cumming Construction Management, 

Inc., hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Energy Efficiency Consulting 

Services- Proposition 39 (Energy Services Consulting Fee Year 2).  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $50,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  are allowed with prior approval of a district representative.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

   



No. 44 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

   



No. 44 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

   



No. 44 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

   



No. 44 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Cumming Construction Management, Inc. 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 130 Vantis,  Ste. 110 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Aliso Viejo, CA  92656 
 

   



No. 44 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D    

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations  Consultant  

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

   



No. 45 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Dolinka Group, Inc., hereinafter referred to 

as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: CFD, Redevelopment and Developer 

fee justification services.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $100,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  Not to exceed $2,000                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

 1 



No. 45 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

 2 



No. 45 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

 3 



No. 45 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 4 



No. 45 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Dolinka Group 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 20 Pacifica Ste. 900 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Irvine, CA 92618 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

 5 



No. 45 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations  Consultant  

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 6 



No. 46 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Environmental Network, Corp. dba 

ENCORP hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Environmental Services, monitoring 

for asbestos and lead abatement in preparation for demolition of buildings  

2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $100,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows: N/A. 

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that 

he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the 

DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees 

of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but 

not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

 1 



No. 46 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as 

they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall 

assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, 

including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to 

CONSULTANT’s employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A. 

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, formulae, 

procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, recordings, 

teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the DISTRICT and/or 

used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to CONSULTANT and 

shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that submitted to 

CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that all 

matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and cannot 

be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, title 

and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, trademark 

and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents to use of 

CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution of the 

matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate this 

AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to the 

date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further performance 

of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by the 

CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to 

terminate for cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the 

 2 



No. 46 

CONSULTANT; or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others 

for personal injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, 

CONSULTANT makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is 

appointed due to CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the 

reasons for such intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such 

notice the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction 

thereof be made, this AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and 

terminate.  In the event of such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services 

from another contractor.  If the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the 

CONSULTANT.  The foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other 

rights or remedies available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed 

given when received by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, 

whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) Injury to, 

loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense arising out 

of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any person, firm or 

corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly or by 

independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for in this 

AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages referred to 

above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 

DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

 3 



No. 46 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use of any 

copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented invention 

under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or agents 

shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in connection 

with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 4 



No. 46 

15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District ENCORP 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 16700 Valley View Ave., Suite 100 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 La Mirada, Ca 90638 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

 5 



No. 46 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations  Consultant  

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 
 

  

 

 6 



No. 47 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Hancock, Park Delong, Inc., hereinafter 

referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: School advisory services on an “as 

needed” basis.  

2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $100,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.  

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that 

he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the 

DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees 

of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but 

not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

 1 



No. 47 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as 

they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall 

assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, 

including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to 

CONSULTANT’s employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.  

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, formulae, 

procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, recordings, 

teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the DISTRICT and/or 

used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to CONSULTANT and 

shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that submitted to 

CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that all 

matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and cannot 

be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, title 

and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, trademark 

and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents to use of 

CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution of the 

matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate this 

AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to the 

date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further performance 

of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by the 

CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to 

terminate for cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the 

 2 



No. 47 

CONSULTANT; or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others 

for personal injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, 

CONSULTANT makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is 

appointed due to CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the 

reasons for such intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such 

notice the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction 

thereof be made, this AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and 

terminate.  In the event of such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services 

from another contractor.  If the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the 

CONSULTANT.  The foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other 

rights or remedies available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed 

given when received by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, 

whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) Injury to, 

loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense arising out 

of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any person, firm or 

corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly or by 

independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for in this 

AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages referred to 

above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 

DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

 3 



No. 47 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use of any 

copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented invention 

under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or agents 

shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in connection 

with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 4 



No. 47 

15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 

 

DISTRICT: 

 

CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Hancock, Park, Delong, Inc. 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 1451 River Park Drive, Suite 285 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Sacramento, CA 95815 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

 5 



No. 47 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 
Deputy Superintendent, Operations  Consultant  

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

  

 

 

 

 6 



No. 48 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Murdoch, Walrath and Holmes 

hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Represent District in negotiations 

with developers, meeting and negotiations with the city, city agencies, and other 

local agencies and any services  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $100,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  are allowed with prior approval of a district representative.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

   



No. 48 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

   



No. 48 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

   



No. 48 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

   



No. 48 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Murdoch, Walrath & Holmes 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 1130 K Street, Suite 210   

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Sacramento, Ca 95814 

   



No. 48 

 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations   

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

   



No. 49 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Ninyo & Moore hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Geotechnical, materials testing and 

specialty inspection services.  

2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $200,000.  

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.  

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that 

he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the 

DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees 

of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but 

not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

 1 



No. 49 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as 

they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall 

assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, 

including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to 

CONSULTANT’s employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.  

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, formulae, 

procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, recordings, 

teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the DISTRICT and/or 

used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to CONSULTANT and 

shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that submitted to 

CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that all 

matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and cannot 

be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, title 

and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, trademark 

and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents to use of 

CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution of the 

matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate this 

AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to the 

date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further performance 

of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by the 

CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to 

terminate for cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the 

 2 



No. 49 

CONSULTANT; or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others 

for personal injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, 

CONSULTANT makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is 

appointed due to CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the 

reasons for such intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such 

notice the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction 

thereof be made, this AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and 

terminate.  In the event of such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services 

from another contractor.  If the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the 

CONSULTANT.  The foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other 

rights or remedies available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed 

given when received by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, 

whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) Injury to, 

loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense arising out 

of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any person, firm or 

corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly or by 

independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for in this 

AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages referred to 

above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 

DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

 3 



No. 49 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use of any 

copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented invention 

under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or agents 

shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in connection 

with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 4 



No. 49 

15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Ninyo and Moore  

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 475 Goddard, Suite 200 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Irvine, CA 92618  
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

 5 



No. 49 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations  Consultant  

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 6 



No. 50 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Orbach Huff Suarez & Henderson, LLP 

hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Legal services for all building funds.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $100,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

 1 



No. 50 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

 2 



No. 50 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

 3 



No. 50 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

 4 



No. 50 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Orbach Huff Suarez & Henderson, LLP  

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 1901 Avenue of the Stars 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Los Angeles, CA 90067 

 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

 5 



No. 50 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations   Consultant  

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 6 



No. 51 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Placeworks, Inc., hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Planning and implementation of 

corrective measures and CEQA services. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $25,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows: Consultants expenses for travel, copy, fax, delivery, services, equipment, facilities, 

and other costs will be reimbursed if approved by the District at a total fee not to exceed 

$2,000.00.  

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

 1 



No. 51 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 51 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 51 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

 4 



No. 51 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District The Planning Center  

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 3 MacArthur Place, Ste. 1100 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Santa Ana, CA 92707 

 5 



No. 51 

 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations   Consultant 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 
 

 6 



No. 52 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Preferred Aerial & Crane Technology, 

Inc., hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: On site annual safety procedure 

training for electricians and maintenance employees. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $1,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows: N/A. 

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

 1 



No. 52 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

 2 



No. 52 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

 3 



No. 52 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 4 



No. 52 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Preferred Aerial & Crane Technology, Inc.  

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 1121 E. Marshall Place  

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Long Beach, CA 90807 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

 5 



No. 52 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations  Consultant  

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 6 



No. 53 

 

CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
 
 This AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 1st day of July in the year 2015 
(“EFFECTIVE DATE”), between Santa Ana Unified School District, hereinafter referred to as 
(“DISTRICT”), and Priest Construction Services, Inc. hereinafter referred to as 
“CONSULTANT”; 
 

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT requires specialized services and/or advice in connection 
with certain financial, economic, accounting, engineering, or administrative matters where such 
services and advice are not available to the DISTRICT without cost either internally or from 
other public agencies; and  

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially experienced and competent to provide to the 
District, certain specialized services and/or advice in one or more of the foregoing areas; and  

WHEREAS, DISTRICT desires to obtain specialized services and/or advice in one or 
more of the foregoing areas for DSA Inspection Services         hereinafter referred to as 
“PROJECT”, located in the DISTRICT; and 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT has indicated its willingness and commitment to provide 
its specialized services and/or advice to the DISTRICT on the terms hereafter set forth in this 
Agreement. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
 

ARTICLE I 
SCOPE AND SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY CONSULTANT 

 
  1. Services To Be Provided By CONSULTANT.  CONSULTANT shall provide to 
the District on the terms herein set forth all of the services articulated in ATTACHMENT “A” 
to this Agreement (“WORK PLAN”).  Where CONSULTANT’s WORK PLAN consists of a 
proposal or quote submitted in response to a Request for Proposals from the DISTRICT (an 
“RFP”), CONSULTANT’s WORK PLAN shall be considered to include the DISTRICT’s RFP, 
a copy of which may be attached and incorporated herein as ATTACHMENT “B”.  The Parties 
agree that the attachment of the DISTRICT’s RFP is not a condition precedent to the 
effectiveness of this AGREEMENT.  If the DISTRICT’s RFP is not attached to this 
AGREEMENT as ATTACHMENT “B”, this AGREEMENT is not void and shall still be 
binding upon the Parties and shall be executed in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
this AGREEMENT and ATTACHMENT “A”.  In the event the DISTRICT’s RFP is attached as 
ATTACHMENT “B”, the Parties agree that: (i) the DISTRICT’s RFP shall be controlling in the 
event of any conflict between said RFP and CONSULTANT’s WORK PLAN, and (ii) the terms 
of this AGREEMENT shall be controlling in the event any of the terms hereof shall be in 
conflict with any of the terms of either the RFP or CONSULTANT’s WORK PLAN. 

 

 1 



No. 53 

 

ARTICLE II 
CONSULTANT’S SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
  1. CONSULTANT’s Certifications, Representations and Warranties.  
CONSULTANT makes the following certifications, representations, and warranties for the 
benefit of the DISTRICT and CONSULTANT acknowledges and agrees that the DISTRICT, in 
deciding to engage CONSULTANT pursuant to this AGREEMENT, is relying upon the truth 
and validity of the following certifications, representations and warranties and their effectiveness 
throughout the term of this AGREEMENT and the course of CONSULTANT’s engagement 
hereunder: 

a. CONSULTANT is qualified in all respects to provide to the DISTRICT all 
of the services contemplated by this AGREEMENT and, to the extent required by 
any applicable laws, CONSULTANT has all such licenses and/or governmental 
approvals as would be required to carry out and perform for the benefit of the 
DISTRICT, such services as are called for hereunder. 

b. CONSULTANT, in providing the services and in otherwise carrying out 
its obligations to the DISTRICT under this AGREEMENT, shall, at all times, 
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and 
ordinances, including worker’s compensation and equal protection and non-
discrimination laws. 

 
 

ARTICLE III 
TERMINATION 

 
  1. This AGREEMENT may be terminated by either party upon fourteen (14) days 
written notice to the other party in the event of a substantial failure of performance by such other 
party, including insolvency of CONSULTANT; or if the DISTRICT should decide to abandon or 
indefinitely postpone the services which CONSULTANT is agreeing to provide pursuant to this 
AGREEMENT. 
 
  2. In the event of a termination based upon abandonment or postponement by 
DISTRICT, the DISTRICT shall pay to the CONSULTANT for all services performed and all 
expenses incurred under this AGREEMENT supported by documentary evidence, including 
payroll records, and expense reports up until the date of the abandonment or postponement plus 
any sums due the CONSULTANT for DISTRICT approved extra services.  In ascertaining the 
services actually rendered hereunder up to the date of termination of this AGREEMENT, 
consideration shall be given to both completed work and work in process of completion and to 
complete and incomplete drawings and other documents whether delivered to the DISTRICT or 
in the possession of the CONSULTANT.   
 

 2 



No. 53 

 

  3. This AGREEMENT may be terminated without cause by DISTRICT upon 
fourteen (14) days written notice to CONSULTANT.  In the event of a termination without 
cause, the DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT for all services performed and all expenses 
incurred under this AGREEMENT supported by documentary evidence, including payroll 
records, and expense reports up until the date of notice of termination plus any sums due the 
CONSULTANT for Board approved extra services.  
 
  4. In the event of a dispute between the parties as to performance of the work or the 
interpretation of this AGREEMENT, or payment or nonpayment for work performed or not 
performed, the parties shall attempt to resolve the dispute.  Pending resolution of this dispute, 
CONSULTANT agrees to continue the work diligently to completion.  If the dispute is not 
resolved, CONSULTANT agrees it will neither rescind the AGREEMENT nor stop the progress 
of the work, but CONSULTANT’s sole remedy shall be to submit such controversy to 
determination by a court having competent jurisdiction of the dispute, after the services provided 
for in this AGREEMENT have been completed, and not before. 
 
 

ARTICLE IV 
REPORTS, PLANS, DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS, RECORD DRAWINGS AND/OR 

OTHER DOCUMENTS 
 
  1. The reports, plans, drawings, specifications, record drawings and/or other 
documents that are prepared, reproduced, maintained and/or managed by the CONSULTANT or 
CONSULTANT’s consultants in accordance with this AGREEMENT, shall be and remain the 
property of the DISTRICT (hereinafter “PROPERTY”).  The DISTRICT must fully compensate 
the CONSULTANT for all reports, plans, drawings, specifications, record drawings and/or other 
documents that are prepared, reproduced, maintained and/or managed by the CONSULTANT or 
CONSULTANT’s consultants in accordance with this AGREEMENT in order for such 
documents to be considered DISTRICT PROPERTY, unless a good faith dispute arises out of 
the performance of the work, or the interpretation of this AGREEMENT, or payment or 
nonpayment for work performed or not performed.  The DISTRICT may provide the 
CONSULTANT with a written request for the return of its PROPERTY at any time.  Upon 
CONSULTANT’s receipt of the DISTRICT’s written request, CONSULTANT shall return the 
requested PROPERTY to the DISTRICT.  
 
 

ARTICLE V 
ACCOUNTING RECORDS OF THE CONSULTANT 

 
  1. Records of the CONSULTANT’s direct personnel and reimbursable expenses 
pertaining to any extra services provided by the CONSULTANT, which are in addition to those 
services already required by this AGREEMENT, and any records of accounts between the 
DISTRICT and CONSULTANT shall be kept on a generally recognized accounting basis and 
shall be available to the DISTRICT or DISTRICT’s authorized representative at mutually 
convenient times. 
 

 3 



No. 53 

 

ARTICLE VI 
COMPENSATION TO THE CONSULTANT 

 
  1. The DISTRICT shall compensate the CONSULTANT as follows: 
 
 a. The DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT in accordance with the 

rate and price schedule information set forth in ATTACHMENT “A” for the 
services performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT, payable upon monthly 
billings submitted by the CONSULTANT. 
 
 

ARTICLE VII 
ADDITIONAL CONSULTANT SERVICES 

 
  1. CONSULTANT shall notify the DISTRICT in writing of the need for additional 
services required due to circumstances beyond the CONSULTANT’s control.  CONSULTANT 
shall obtain written authorization from the DISTRICT before rendering such services.  The 
DISTRICT may require CONSULTANT to perform additional services which are, in the 
DISTRICT’s discretion, necessary.  Compensation for such services shall be negotiated and 
approved in writing by the DISTRICT.  Such services shall include: 
 

 a. Making material revisions in reports, drawings, specifications or other 
documents when such revisions are required by the enactment or revision of laws, rules 
or regulations subsequent to the preparation and completion of such documents. 

 
 b. Preparing reports, drawings, specifications and other documentation and 
supporting data, and providing other services in connection with project modifications 
required by causes beyond the control of the CONSULTANT which are not the result of 
the direct or indirect negligence, errors or omissions on the part of CONSULTANT. 

 
 c. If the DISTRICT requests additional shifts to complete surveying services 
where the requests for additional shifts does not arise from the direct or indirect 
negligence, errors or omissions on the part of CONSULTANT.  The CONSULTANT’s 
compensation is expressly conditioned on the lack of fault of the CONSULTANT. 
 
 d. Providing any other services not otherwise included in this AGREEMENT 
or not customarily furnished in accordance with the generally accepted practice in the 
CONSULTANT’s industry. 

 
 

 4 



No. 53 

 

ARTICLE VIII 
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 

 
  1. Reimbursable expenses are in addition to compensation for basic and extra 
services, and shall be paid to the CONSULTANT at one and one-tenth (1.1) times the expenses 
incurred by the CONSULTANT, the CONSULTANT’s employees and consultants for: 

 
 (1) Approved reproduction of reports, drawings and specifications in 
excess of the copies provided by this AGREEMENT. 
 
 (2) Fees advanced for securing approval of authorities in connection 
with the services rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 
 

  2. Reimbursable expenses are estimated to be ONE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED 
DOLLARS ($1,500), and this amount shall not be exceeded without the prior written approval of 
the DISTRICT. 
 
 

ARTICLE IX 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
  1. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify, 
defend and hold DISTRICT entirely harmless from all liability arising out of: 
 

a. Any and all claims under Workers’ Compensation acts and other 
employee benefit acts with respect to CONSULTANT’s employees or 
CONSULTANT’s subcontractor’s employees arising out of CONSULTANT’s 
work under this AGREEMENT; and 
 
b. Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person; (2) injury to, 
loss or theft of property; (3) any failure or alleged failure to comply with any 
provision of law or (4) any other loss, damage or expense arising under either (1), 
(2), or (3) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any person, firm or 
corporation employed by the CONSULTANT upon or in connection with the 
PROJECT, except for liability resulting from the sole or active negligence, or 
willful misconduct of the DISTRICT, its officers, employees, agents or 
independent consultants who are directly employed by the DISTRICT; 
 
c. Any loss, injury to or death or persons or damage to property caused by 
any negligent act, neglect, default or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 
person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly or 
by independent contract, including all damages due to loss or theft, sustained by 
any person, firm or corporation including the DISTRICT, arising out of, or in any 
way connected with the services performed by CONSULTANT in accordance 
with this Agreement, including injury or damage either on or off DISTRICT 

 5 



No. 53 

 

property; but not for any loss, injury, death or damages caused by the sole or 
active negligence, or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT. 

 
The CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT’s own expense, cost, and risk, shall defend any 

and all claims, actions, suits, or other proceedings that may be brought or instituted against the 
DISTRICT, its officers, agents or employees, on any such claim or liability, and shall pay or 
satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against the DISTRICT, its officers, agents or 
employees in any action, suit or other proceedings as a result thereof. 
 
  2. CONSULTANT shall purchase and maintain policies of insurance with an insurer 
or insurers, qualified to do business in the State of California and acceptable to DISTRICT which 
will protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT from claims which may arise out of or result from 
CONSULTANT’s actions or inactions relating to the AGREEMENT, whether such actions or 
inactions be by themselves or by any subcontractor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed 
by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.  The aforementioned 
insurance shall include coverage for: 
 

a. The CONSULTANT shall carry Workers’ Compensation and Employers 
Liability Insurance in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
b. Comprehensive general and auto liability insurance with limits of not less 
than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) combined single limit, bodily 
injury and property damage liability per occurrence, including: 

 
   1. Owned, non-owned and hired vehicles; 
   2. Blanket contractual; 
   3. Broad form property damage; 
   4. Products/completed operations; and 
   5. Personal injury. 
 

c. Professional liability insurance, including contractual liability, with limits 
of $1,000,000, per claim.  Such insurance shall be maintained during the term of 
this AGREEMENT and renewed for a period of at least five (5) years thereafter 
and/or at rates consistent with the time of execution of this AGREEMENT 
adjusted for inflation.  In the event that CONSULTANT subcontracts any portion 
of CONSULTANT’s duties, CONSULTANT shall require any such subcontractor 
to purchase and maintain insurance coverage as provided in this subparagraph.  
Failure to maintain professional liability insurance is a material breach of this 
AGREEMENT and grounds for immediate termination. 

 
d. Valuable Document Insurance.  The CONSULTANT shall carry adequate 
insurance on all reports, drawings, specifications, record drawings and/or other 
documents as may be required to protect the DISTRICT in the amount of its full 
equity in those reports, drawings, specifications, record drawings and/or other 
documents, and shall file with the DISTRICT a certificate of that insurance. The 

 6 



No. 53 

 

cost of that insurance shall be paid by the CONSULTANT, and the DISTRICT 
shall be named as an additional insured. 
 
e. Each policy of insurance required in (b) above shall name DISTRICT and 
its officers, agents and employees as additional insured’s; shall state that, with 
respect to the operations of CONSULTANT hereunder, such policy is primary 
and any insurance carried by DISTRICT is excess and non-contributory with such 
primary insurance; shall state that not less than thirty (30) days’ written notice 
shall be given to DISTRICT prior to cancellation; and, shall waive all rights of 
subrogation.  CONSULTANT shall notify DISTRICT in the event of material 
change in, or failure to renew, each policy.  Prior to commencing work, 
CONSULTANT shall deliver to DISTRICT certificates of insurance as evidence 
of compliance with the requirements herein.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to 
secure or maintain any policy of insurance required hereby, DISTRICT may, at its 
sole discretion, secure such policy of insurance in the name of and for the account 
of CONSULTANT, and in such event CONSULTANT shall reimburse 
DISTRICT upon demand for the cost thereof. 

 
  3. CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, shall be and act as an 
independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that CONSULTANT and all of 
CONSULTANT’s employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the 
DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees 
of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but 
not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 
assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of CONSULTANT’s employees or 
agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT 
shall assume full responsibility for payment of all federal, state and local taxes or contributions, 
including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes for the respective 
CONSULTANT’s employees. 
 
  4. Nothing contained in this AGREEMENT shall create a contractual relationship 
with or a cause of action in favor of any third party against either the DISTRICT or 
CONSULTANT. 
 
  5. The DISTRICT and CONSULTANT, respectively, bind themselves, their 
partners, officers, successors, assigns and legal representatives to the other party to this 
AGREEMENT with respect to the terms of this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall not 
assign this AGREEMENT. 
 
  6. This AGREEMENT shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. 
This AGREEMENT represents the entire AGREEMENT between the DISTRICT and 
CONSULTANT and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either 
written or oral.  This AGREEMENT may be amended or modified only by an agreement in 
writing signed by both the DISTRICT and the CONSULTANT. 
 
  7. Time is of the essence with respect to all provisions of this AGREEMENT. 

 7 



No. 53 

 

 
  8. All exhibits referenced herein and attached hereto shall be deemed incorporated 
into and made a part of this AGREEMENT by each reference as though fully set forth in each 
instance in the text hereof. 
 
 The parties, through their authorized representatives, have executed this AGREEMENT 
as of the day and year first written above. 
 
 
CONSULTANT:     DISTRICT: 
 
Priest Construction Services, Inc.   Santa Ana Unified School District 
 
 
 
By:        By:       
 
             
        
Date: ________________________   Date: ________________________                                         
 
 

 8 



No. 53 

 

ATTACHMENT “A” 
 

Scope of Work 
 

 9 



No. 53 

 

ATTACHMENT “B” 
Fee Schedule 

 

 10 



No. 54 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Rayburn Corporation hereinafter referred 

to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Voice over internet protocol project 

support, E-rate reimbursement funding, school facility program support, technical 

training of staff, and related support.   

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $85,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

1 
 



No. 54 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

2 
 



No. 54 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

3 
 



No. 54 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

4 
 



No. 54 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Rayburn Corporation 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 28241 Crown Valley Pkwy Ste. F-140 

Santa Ana, CA92701 Laguna Niguel, CA 92677 
 

5 
 



No. 54 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations   Consultant 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

6 
 



No. 55 

 

CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
 
 This AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 1st day of July in the year 2015 
(“EFFECTIVE DATE”), between Santa Ana Unified School District, hereinafter referred to as 
(“DISTRICT”), and SANDY PRINGLES AND ASSOCIATES hereinafter referred to as 
“CONSULTANT”; 
 

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT requires specialized services and/or advice in connection 
with certain financial, economic, accounting, engineering, or administrative matters where such 
services and advice are not available to the DISTRICT without cost either internally or from 
other public agencies; and  

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially experienced and competent to provide to the 
District, certain specialized services and/or advice in one or more of the foregoing areas; and  

WHEREAS, DISTRICT desires to obtain specialized services and/or advice in one or 
more of the foregoing areas for DSA Inspector-Measure G: Wilson Elementary School 
Modernization Project for all DSA required inspections services hereinafter referred to as 
“PROJECT”, located in the DISTRICT; and 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT has indicated its willingness and commitment to provide 
its specialized services and/or advice to the DISTRICT on the terms hereafter set forth in this 
Agreement. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
 

ARTICLE I 
SCOPE AND SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY CONSULTANT 

 
  1. Services To Be Provided By CONSULTANT.  CONSULTANT shall provide to 
the District on the terms herein set forth all of the services articulated in ATTACHMENT “A” 
to this Agreement (“WORK PLAN”).  Where CONSULTANT’s WORK PLAN consists of a 
proposal or quote submitted in response to a Request for Proposals from the DISTRICT (an 
“RFP”), CONSULTANT’s WORK PLAN shall be considered to include the DISTRICT’s RFP, 
a copy of which may be attached and incorporated herein as ATTACHMENT “B”.  The Parties 
agree that the attachment of the DISTRICT’s RFP is not a condition precedent to the 
effectiveness of this AGREEMENT.  If the DISTRICT’s RFP is not attached to this 
AGREEMENT as ATTACHMENT “B”, this AGREEMENT is not void and shall still be 
binding upon the Parties and shall be executed in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
this AGREEMENT and ATTACHMENT “A”.  In the event the DISTRICT’s RFP is attached as 
ATTACHMENT “B”, the Parties agree that: (i) the DISTRICT’s RFP shall be controlling in the 
event of any conflict between said RFP and CONSULTANT’s WORK PLAN, and (ii) the terms 
of this AGREEMENT shall be controlling in the event any of the terms hereof shall be in 
conflict with any of the terms of either the RFP or CONSULTANT’s WORK PLAN. 

 1 



No. 55 

 

 
ARTICLE II 

CONSULTANT’S SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
  1. CONSULTANT’s Certifications, Representations and Warranties.  
CONSULTANT makes the following certifications, representations, and warranties for the 
benefit of the DISTRICT and CONSULTANT acknowledges and agrees that the DISTRICT, in 
deciding to engage CONSULTANT pursuant to this AGREEMENT, is relying upon the truth 
and validity of the following certifications, representations and warranties and their effectiveness 
throughout the term of this AGREEMENT and the course of CONSULTANT’s engagement 
hereunder: 

a. CONSULTANT is qualified in all respects to provide to the DISTRICT all 
of the services contemplated by this AGREEMENT and, to the extent required by 
any applicable laws, CONSULTANT has all such licenses and/or governmental 
approvals as would be required to carry out and perform for the benefit of the 
DISTRICT, such services as are called for hereunder. 

b. CONSULTANT, in providing the services and in otherwise carrying out 
its obligations to the DISTRICT under this AGREEMENT, shall, at all times, 
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and 
ordinances, including worker’s compensation and equal protection and non-
discrimination laws. 

 
 

ARTICLE III 
TERMINATION 

 
  1. This AGREEMENT may be terminated by either party upon fourteen (14) days 
written notice to the other party in the event of a substantial failure of performance by such other 
party, including insolvency of CONSULTANT; or if the DISTRICT should decide to abandon or 
indefinitely postpone the services which CONSULTANT is agreeing to provide pursuant to this 
AGREEMENT. 
 
  2. In the event of a termination based upon abandonment or postponement by 
DISTRICT, the DISTRICT shall pay to the CONSULTANT for all services performed and all 
expenses incurred under this AGREEMENT supported by documentary evidence, including 
payroll records, and expense reports up until the date of the abandonment or postponement plus 
any sums due the CONSULTANT for DISTRICT approved extra services.  In ascertaining the 
services actually rendered hereunder up to the date of termination of this AGREEMENT, 
consideration shall be given to both completed work and work in process of completion and to 
complete and incomplete drawings and other documents whether delivered to the DISTRICT or 
in the possession of the CONSULTANT.   
 
3. This AGREEMENT may be terminated without cause by DISTRICT upon fourteen (14) 
days written notice to CONSULTANT.  In the event of a termination without cause, the 

 2 



No. 55 

 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT for all services performed and all expenses incurred under 
this AGREEMENT supported by documentary evidence, including payroll records, and expense 
reports up until the date of notice of termination plus any sums due the CONSULTANT for 
Board approved extra services.  
 
  4. In the event of a dispute between the parties as to performance of the work or the 
interpretation of this AGREEMENT, or payment or nonpayment for work performed or not 
performed, the parties shall attempt to resolve the dispute.  Pending resolution of this dispute, 
CONSULTANT agrees to continue the work diligently to completion.  If the dispute is not 
resolved, CONSULTANT agrees it will neither rescind the AGREEMENT nor stop the progress 
of the work, but CONSULTANT’s sole remedy shall be to submit such controversy to 
determination by a court having competent jurisdiction of the dispute, after the services provided 
for in this AGREEMENT have been completed, and not before. 
 
 

ARTICLE IV 
REPORTS, PLANS, DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS, RECORD DRAWINGS AND/OR 

OTHER DOCUMENTS 
 
  1. The reports, plans, drawings, specifications, record drawings and/or other 
documents that are prepared, reproduced, maintained and/or managed by the CONSULTANT or 
CONSULTANT’s consultants in accordance with this AGREEMENT, shall be and remain the 
property of the DISTRICT (hereinafter “PROPERTY”).  The DISTRICT must fully compensate 
the CONSULTANT for all reports, plans, drawings, specifications, record drawings and/or other 
documents that are prepared, reproduced, maintained and/or managed by the CONSULTANT or 
CONSULTANT’s consultants in accordance with this AGREEMENT in order for such 
documents to be considered DISTRICT PROPERTY, unless a good faith dispute arises out of 
the performance of the work, or the interpretation of this AGREEMENT, or payment or 
nonpayment for work performed or not performed.  The DISTRICT may provide the 
CONSULTANT with a written request for the return of its PROPERTY at any time.  Upon 
CONSULTANT’s receipt of the DISTRICT’s written request, CONSULTANT shall return the 
requested PROPERTY to the DISTRICT.  
 
 

ARTICLE V 
ACCOUNTING RECORDS OF THE CONSULTANT 

 
  1. Records of the CONSULTANT’s direct personnel and reimbursable expenses 
pertaining to any extra services provided by the CONSULTANT, which are in addition to those 
services already required by this AGREEMENT, and any records of accounts between the 
DISTRICT and CONSULTANT shall be kept on a generally recognized accounting basis and 
shall be available to the DISTRICT or DISTRICT’s authorized representative at mutually 
convenient times. 
 

ARTICLE VI 
COMPENSATION TO THE CONSULTANT 

 3 



No. 55 

 

 
  1. The DISTRICT shall compensate the CONSULTANT as follows: 
 
 a. The DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT in accordance with the 

rate and price schedule information set forth in ATTACHMENT “A” for the 
services performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT, payable upon monthly 
billings submitted by the CONSULTANT. 
 
 

ARTICLE VII 
ADDITIONAL CONSULTANT SERVICES 

 
  1. CONSULTANT shall notify the DISTRICT in writing of the need for additional 
services required due to circumstances beyond the CONSULTANT’s control.  CONSULTANT 
shall obtain written authorization from the DISTRICT before rendering such services.  The 
DISTRICT may require CONSULTANT to perform additional services which are, in the 
DISTRICT’s discretion, necessary.  Compensation for such services shall be negotiated and 
approved in writing by the DISTRICT.  Such services shall include: 
 

 a. Making material revisions in reports, drawings, specifications or other 
documents when such revisions are required by the enactment or revision of laws, rules 
or regulations subsequent to the preparation and completion of such documents. 

 
 b. Preparing reports, drawings, specifications and other documentation and 
supporting data, and providing other services in connection with project modifications 
required by causes beyond the control of the CONSULTANT which are not the result of 
the direct or indirect negligence, errors or omissions on the part of CONSULTANT. 

 
 c. If the DISTRICT requests additional shifts to complete surveying services 
where the requests for additional shifts does not arise from the direct or indirect 
negligence, errors or omissions on the part of CONSULTANT.  The CONSULTANT’s 
compensation is expressly conditioned on the lack of fault of the CONSULTANT. 
 
 d. Providing any other services not otherwise included in this AGREEMENT 
or not customarily furnished in accordance with the generally accepted practice in the 
CONSULTANT’s industry. 

 
 

 4 



No. 55 

 

ARTICLE VIII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
  1. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify, 
defend and hold DISTRICT entirely harmless from all liability arising out of: 
 

a. Any and all claims under Workers’ Compensation acts and other 
employee benefit acts with respect to CONSULTANT’s employees or 
CONSULTANT’s subcontractor’s employees arising out of CONSULTANT’s 
work under this AGREEMENT; and 
 
b. Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person; (2) injury to, 
loss or theft of property; (3) any failure or alleged failure to comply with any 
provision of law or (4) any other loss, damage or expense arising under either (1), 
(2), or (3) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any person, firm or 
corporation employed by the CONSULTANT upon or in connection with the 
PROJECT, except for liability resulting from the sole or active negligence, or 
willful misconduct of the DISTRICT, its officers, employees, agents or 
independent consultants who are directly employed by the DISTRICT; 
 
c. Any loss, injury to or death or persons or damage to property caused by 
any negligent act, neglect, default or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 
person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly or 
by independent contract, including all damages due to loss or theft, sustained by 
any person, firm or corporation including the DISTRICT, arising out of, or in any 
way connected with the services performed by CONSULTANT in accordance 
with this Agreement, including injury or damage either on or off DISTRICT 
property; but not for any loss, injury, death or damages caused by the sole or 
active negligence, or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT. 

 
The CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT’s own expense, cost, and risk, shall defend any 

and all claims, actions, suits, or other proceedings that may be brought or instituted against the 
DISTRICT, its officers, agents or employees, on any such claim or liability, and shall pay or 
satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against the DISTRICT, its officers, agents or 
employees in any action, suit or other proceedings as a result thereof. 
 
  2. CONSULTANT shall purchase and maintain policies of insurance with an insurer 
or insurers, qualified to do business in the State of California and acceptable to DISTRICT which 
will protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT from claims which may arise out of or result from 
CONSULTANT’s actions or inactions relating to the AGREEMENT, whether such actions or 
inactions be by themselves or by any subcontractor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed 
by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.  The aforementioned 
insurance shall include coverage for: 
 

a. The CONSULTANT shall carry Workers’ Compensation and Employers 
Liability Insurance in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

 5 



No. 55 

 

 
b. Comprehensive general and auto liability insurance with limits of not less 
than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) combined single limit, bodily 
injury and property damage liability per occurrence, including: 

 
   1. Owned, non-owned and hired vehicles; 
   2. Blanket contractual; 
   3. Broad form property damage; 
   4. Products/completed operations; and 
   5. Personal injury. 
 

c. Professional liability insurance, including contractual liability, with limits 
of $1,000,000, per claim.  Such insurance shall be maintained during the term of 
this AGREEMENT and renewed for a period of at least five (5) years thereafter 
and/or at rates consistent with the time of execution of this AGREEMENT 
adjusted for inflation.  In the event that CONSULTANT subcontracts any portion 
of CONSULTANT’s duties, CONSULTANT shall require any such subcontractor 
to purchase and maintain insurance coverage as provided in this subparagraph.  
Failure to maintain professional liability insurance is a material breach of this 
AGREEMENT and grounds for immediate termination. 

 
d. Valuable Document Insurance.  The CONSULTANT shall carry adequate 
insurance on all reports, drawings, specifications, record drawings and/or other 
documents as may be required to protect the DISTRICT in the amount of its full 
equity in those reports, drawings, specifications, record drawings and/or other 
documents, and shall file with the DISTRICT a certificate of that insurance. The 
cost of that insurance shall be paid by the CONSULTANT, and the DISTRICT 
shall be named as an additional insured. 
 
e. Each policy of insurance required in (b) above shall name DISTRICT and 
its officers, agents and employees as additional insured’s; shall state that, with 
respect to the operations of CONSULTANT hereunder, such policy is primary 
and any insurance carried by DISTRICT is excess and non-contributory with such 
primary insurance; shall state that not less than thirty (30) days’ written notice 
shall be given to DISTRICT prior to cancellation; and, shall waive all rights of 
subrogation.  CONSULTANT shall notify DISTRICT in the event of material 
change in, or failure to renew, each policy.  Prior to commencing work, 
CONSULTANT shall deliver to DISTRICT certificates of insurance as evidence 
of compliance with the requirements herein.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to 
secure or maintain any policy of insurance required hereby, DISTRICT may, at its 
sole discretion, secure such policy of insurance in the name of and for the account 
of CONSULTANT, and in such event CONSULTANT shall reimburse 
DISTRICT upon demand for the cost thereof. 

 
  3. CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, shall be and act as an 
independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that CONSULTANT and all of 

 6 



No. 55 

 

CONSULTANT’s employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the 
DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees 
of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but 
not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 
assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of CONSULTANT’s employees or 
agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT 
shall assume full responsibility for payment of all federal, state and local taxes or contributions, 
including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes for the respective 
CONSULTANT’s employees. 
 
  4. Nothing contained in this AGREEMENT shall create a contractual relationship 
with or a cause of action in favor of any third party against either the DISTRICT or 
CONSULTANT. 
 
  5. The DISTRICT and CONSULTANT, respectively, bind themselves, their 
partners, officers, successors, assigns and legal representatives to the other party to this 
AGREEMENT with respect to the terms of this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall not 
assign this AGREEMENT. 
 
  6. This AGREEMENT shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. 
This AGREEMENT represents the entire AGREEMENT between the DISTRICT and 
CONSULTANT and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either 
written or oral.  This AGREEMENT may be amended or modified only by an agreement in 
writing signed by both the DISTRICT and the CONSULTANT. 
 
  7. Time is of the essence with respect to all provisions of this AGREEMENT. 
 
  8. All exhibits referenced herein and attached hereto shall be deemed incorporated 
into and made a part of this AGREEMENT by each reference as though fully set forth in each 
instance in the text hereof. 
 
 The parties, through their authorized representatives, have executed this AGREEMENT 
as of the day and year first written above. 
 
 
CONSULTANT:     DISTRICT: 
 
_____________________________   Santa Ana Unified School District 
 
 
By:        By:       
       Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., 
       Deputy Supt., Operations 
                    
Date: ________________________   Date: ________________________                                         
 

 7 



No. 55 

 

 
 

ATTACHMENT “A” 
 

Scope of Work 
 

 
Provide Division State Architect (DSA) inspection services, In-plant Inspection 
Services, Miscellaneous Welding Inspection Services, In-plant elevator inspection 
services for _____________________________________ 

 8 



No. 55 

 

ATTACHMENT “B” 
Fee Schedule 

See proposal dated _________ 
 

 9 





No. 56 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Twining Consulting, Inc., hereinafter 

referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Geotechnical, materials testing and 

specialty inspection services.  

2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $200,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.  

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that 

he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the 

DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees 

of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but 

not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

 1 



No. 56 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as 

they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall 

assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, 

including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to 

CONSULTANT’s employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.  

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, formulae, 

procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, recordings, 

teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the DISTRICT and/or 

used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to CONSULTANT and 

shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that submitted to 

CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that all 

matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and cannot 

be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, title 

and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, trademark 

and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents to use of 

CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution of the 

matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate this 

AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to the 

date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further performance 

of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by the 

CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to 

terminate for cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the 

 2 



No. 56 

CONSULTANT; or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others 

for personal injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, 

CONSULTANT makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is 

appointed due to CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the 

reasons for such intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such 

notice the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction 

thereof be made, this AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and 

terminate.  In the event of such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services 

from another contractor.  If the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the 

CONSULTANT.  The foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other 

rights or remedies available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed 

given when received by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, 

whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) Injury to, 

loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense arising out 

of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any person, firm or 

corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly or by 

independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for in this 

AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages referred to 

above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 

DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

 3 



No. 56 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use of any 

copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented invention 

under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or agents 

shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in connection 

with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 4 



No. 56 

15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Twining Consulting, Inc. 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 18011 Sky Park Circle, Suite J 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Irvine, CA 92614 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

 5 



No. 56 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations  Consultant  

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 6 



No. 57 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP 

hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1.     Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Financial and performance audit on 

Measure G- Capital Improvement Program.  

2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $25,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  Travel costs  will be reimbursed if approved in advance by District.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

 1 



No. 57 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  Audit documentation for this engagement is the 

property of the CONSULTANT and constitutes confidential information. However, pursuant to 

authority given by law or regulation, the CONSULTANT may be requested to make certain audit 

documentation available to third parties for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve 

audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. The CONSULTANT will notify the 

DISTRICT of any such request. All requests will be provided under the supervision of 

CONSULTANT personnel.  
9. Termination.  the DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

 2 



No. 57 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  Written notice 

by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received by the other party, or no later than three 

days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

 3 



No. 57 

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 4 



No. 57 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 8270 Aspen Street 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Rancho Cucamonga, CA  91730 

 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 5 



No. 57 

This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D  Royce Townsend 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations    Partner 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 6 



No. 58 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Restoration Management hereinafter 

referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Emergency mitigation services, fire 

and smoke damaged restoration, water damage restoration and other specialty 

services.  

2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $25,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 58 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  Audit documentation for this engagement is the 

property of the CONSULTANT and constitutes confidential information. However, pursuant to 

authority given by law or regulation, the CONSULTANT may be requested to make certain audit 

documentation available to third parties for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve 

audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. The CONSULTANT will notify the 

DISTRICT of any such request. All requests will be provided under the supervision of 

CONSULTANT personnel.  
9. Termination.  the DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 58 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  Written notice 

by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received by the other party, or no later than three 

days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

 3 



No. 58 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

 4 



No. 58 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Restoration Management  

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 4142 Point Eden Way 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Hayward, CA 94545 

 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 5 



No. 58 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations  Consultant  

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

             

          

 6 



No. 59 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Richard D. Jones a Professional Law 

Corporation dba Jones & Mayer hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Legal counsel for disciplinary 

matters relating to School Police Officers. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $5,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

 1 



No. 59 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

 2 



No. 59 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

 3 
1067



No. 59 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

 4 
1068



No. 59 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits and licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 5 
1069



No. 59 

Santa Ana Unified School District Richard D. Jones dba Jones & Mayer 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 3777 North Harbor Blvd. 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Fullerton, CA 92835 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., CBO        

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations        

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  33-0945054 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 6 
1070



No. 60 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “District” and Eric Gruver, Ph.D. hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Conduct pre-employment 

psychological evaluations for SAUSD Police Department personnel.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$3,000 and per attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

 1 
1071



No. 60 
relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

 2 
1072



No. 60 
CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

 3 
1073



No. 60 
of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits and licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

 4 
1074



No. 60 
contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Eric Gruver, Ph.D. 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 2021 East 4th Street, Suite 116 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Santa Ana, CA 90605 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 5 
1075



No. 60 
 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July 2015. 

  

DISTRICT:  CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., CBO  Eric W. Gruver, Ph.D. 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Psychologist 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  564-52-6530 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 6 
1076



No. 61 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School District, 

hereinafter referred to as “District” and Garcia, Hernandez, Sawhney & Bermudez, LLP 

hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Garcia, Hernandez, Sawhney & 

Bermudez, LLP will provide consultant and research services required to represent 

the District’s best interests in the areas of collective bargaining, labor and 

employment matters. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $30,000. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

 1 



No. 61 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 
1078



No. 61 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 
1079



No. 61 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

 4 
1080



No. 61 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits and licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Garcia, Hernandez, Sawhney & Bermudez, LLP 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 401 B Street, Suite 2010 

 5 
1081



No. 61 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 San Diego, CA 92101 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., CBO  Garcia, Hernandez, Sawhney & Bermudez, LLP 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations  Consultant 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 6 
1082



No. 62 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and  Barbara Penwarden dba Braille To Go  

hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:     Consultant will provide Braille 

Transcription for special education.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

 $7,000  and per attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 
1083



No. 62 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 
1084



No. 62 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 
1085



No. 62 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

 4 
1086



No. 62 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Barbara Penwarden dba Braille To Go     

1601 E. Chestnut 1241 N. East St. #200    

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Anaheim, CA  92805    
 

 5 
1087



No. 62 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st   Day of July 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO        

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   26-1712872  

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly rate $  35.00 

Per Page rate $      .25 

      $        

 

 6 
1088



No. 63 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and U.S. HealthWorks Inc., hereinafter 

referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:  Will provide written individual 

prescriptions for physical therapy and occupational therapy services as well as 

written approval of district speech protocol for speech therapy.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$30,000 and per attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

 1 
1089



No. 63 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 
1090



No. 63 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 
1091



No. 63 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

 4 
1092



No. 63 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District     U.S. HealthWorks Medical Group, P.C. 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 25124 Springfield Court Ste. 200 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 Valencia, CA 91355   
 

 5 
1093



No. 63 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., CBO   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations   

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly $ 150.00 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 
1094



No. 64 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and C.J.T. Enterprises, Inc., hereinafter referred 

to as “CONSULTANT.” 

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:   This consultant will provide 

wheelchair and communication mounting for non-verbal special education students using  

communication devices, as well as positioning equipment and predicting what will be 

necessary as the students mature.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on  July 1, 2015  and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by  June 30, 2016 . 

 3.  Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $4,600 and per 

attached fee schedule.  DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant 

invoice and with approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as  

follows:    N/A 

 5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this  

AGREEMENT, shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and 

agrees that he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents 

of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided 

 1 
1095



No. 64 

employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, 

including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  

CONSULTANT assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her 

employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  

CONSULTANT shall assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes 

or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with 

respect to CONSULTANT’s employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided  

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.    

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 
1096



No. 64 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 
1097



No. 64 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

 4 
1098



No. 64 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District C.J.T. Enterprises, Inc. 

1601 E. Chestnut Ave.  17870 Newhope St. #104-457 

Santa Ana, Ca. 92701 Fountain Valley, CA 92708 
 

 5 
1099



No. 64 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

  This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July 2015. 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO   

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2016   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
  

Evaluations $225 

Installations $250 

 

 6 
1100



No. 65 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Goodwill Industries of OC/ATEC 

hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Assistive Technology Services 

(ATEC) will provide evaluations, training, and/or trial use of new equipment for 

Special Education students to promote independence. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$ 5,000.   DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and 

with approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 
1101



No. 65 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 
1102



No. 65 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 
1103



No. 65 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

 4 
1104



No. 65 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits and licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Goodwill Industries of OC/ATEC 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 410 N. Fairview 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 Santa Ana, CA 92703 
 

 5 
1105



No. 65 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this   1st Day of July 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO   

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 6 
1106



No. 66 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Gail Nugent hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:    Consultant will provide services to 

Santa Ana Unified School district by facilitating individualized educational 

programs (IEP’s), providing relevant training, mentoring, facilitating staffing in 

preparation for IEP meetings and other services relevant to alternative dispute 

resolution. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $20,000 per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:                   

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

 1 
1107



No. 66 

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

 

 2 
1108



No. 66 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

 3 
1109



No. 66 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

 

 4 
1110



No. 66 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

 5 
1111



No. 66 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Gail Nugent 

1601 E. Chestnut 2089 Glasgow Avenue 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Cardiff, CA  92007 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Gail Nugent, MSW 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Facilitator 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  560-94-1243 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 6 
1112



No. 66 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly rate $ 100.00   

Fee for training and 
consultation 

$100.00/hour 
 

Fee for all neutral services, 
including conducting 
mediations, resolution 
sessions and facilitating 
IEP’s 

$100.00/hour 

Presentations or Written 

Work 

$ 100.00/hr 

 

 7 
1113





No. 67 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and John Lucas hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:  Consultant will review and analyze 

the reporting of special education revenue and expenditures.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$4,000  and per attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:   

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 
1114



No. 67 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 
1115



No. 67 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 
1116



No. 67 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 
1117



No. 67 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District     John Lucas 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 21551 Magnolia St. 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 Walnut, CA  91789 

 5 
1118



No. 67 

 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  John Lucas 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO   

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  554-72-0318 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly: $ 150 

Daily: $ 1,000 

 

 6 
1119



No. 68 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and  S. Daniel Harbottle, JD, PhD dba 

Harbottle Law Group  hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:     Consultant will provide legal 

counsel for the special education department.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $75,000 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 
1120



No. 68 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 
1121



No. 68 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 
1122



No. 68 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 
1123



No. 68 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 5 
1124



No. 68 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District 

1601 E. Chestnut 

S. Daniel Harbottle, JD, PhD  

Harbottle Law Group    

Santa Ana, CA 92701 18401 Von Karman Ave., Suite 200    

 Irvine, CA 92612    
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st  Day of July 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  S. Daniel Harbottle, JD, PhD 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO        

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 

 6 
1125



No. 68 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly rate $   195.00    

      $        

      $        

      $        

 

 7 
1126





No. 69 

 Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Sheila Doctors dba MSD Professional 

Consultants, Inc., hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:    Consultant will provide 

consultation services to address issues in educating students who are deaf and hard 

of hearing,  including communication methodologies, interpreting, transcription 

services, and placement options. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

 $34,000   and per attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

 1 
1127



No. 69 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

 2 
1128



No. 69 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

 3 
1129



No. 69 

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

 4 
1130



No. 69 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

 5 
1131



No. 69 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Sheila Doctors 

1601 E. Chestnut 1224 Via Barranca 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 La Jolla, CA 92037 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st   Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Sheila Doctors 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Consultant, DHH Specialist 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  20-2217328 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 

 

 6 
1132



No. 69 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Consultant Services $ 150.00 

Expert Witness $ 200.00 

Mileage $ .56 per mile 

  

 

 7 
1133





No. 70 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Maria Lyn Kulick Abramson dba Hear 

Now hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:     Consultant will provide  auditory 

processing IEE evaluation services to special education students per student IEP's.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $1,500 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 
1134



No. 70 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 
1135



No. 70 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 
1136



No. 70 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 
1137



No. 70 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Maria Abramson dba Hear Now 

1601 E. Chestnut 33292 Astoria 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Dana Point, CA 92629 

 5 
1138



No. 70 

 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st  Day of   July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Maria Abramson 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Doctor of Audiology 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   57-1154247  

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 6 
1139



No. 70 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly rates:    

Auditory Processing 

Evaluations:  

$485 

Legal Consultation  $185   

Consultation/Records 

Review: 

$85  

 

 7 
1140





No. 71 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Leigh Perales hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:     Consultant will provide  behavior 

intervention services to both teachers and students.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 

$20,000 and per attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 71 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 71 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 71 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 71 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Leigh Perales 

1601 E. Chestnut 25795 Via Lomas #190 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Laguna Hills, CA 92653 

 5 



No. 71 

 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st   Day of July 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Leigh Perales 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Behavior Specialist 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly rate $  85.00   

      $        

 

 6 



No. 72 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Lisa Schooler hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:  Will provide mental health 

counseling for students.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed  $38,880 and per 

attached fee schedule.  DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant 

invoice and with approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  mileage.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

 1 



No. 72 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  Consultant will provide all supplies.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

 2 



No. 72 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

 3 



No. 72 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 4 



No. 72 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Lisa Schooler 

1601 E. Chestnut 280 San Joaquin St. 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Laguna Beach, CA 92651 
 

 

 

 

 5 



No. 72 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st   Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Lisa Schooler 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Licensed Clinical Social Worker 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   529-04-9333  

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly rate $  54.00 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 73 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Katie Rivkind, M.S. LMFT hereinafter 

referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:  Consultant will provide mental 

health counseling to students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed  $43,200 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  mileage                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 73 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 73 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 73 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 73 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Katie Rivkind, M.S.  LCFT 

1601 E. Chestnut 161 Fashion Lane, Suite 110 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Tustin, CA 92780 

 5 



No. 73 

 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Katie Rivkind, M.S. LMFT 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Licensed Marriage Family Therapist 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  563-08-6689 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

 Hourly  $  54.00  

      $        

 

 6 



No. 74 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Paul Arata hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide mental health 

counseling for students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed  $77,760 

and per attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  mileage at current IRS rate.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 74 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  Consultant will provide all supplies.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 74 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 74 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 74 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Paul Arata 

1601 E. Chestnut 10 Dunlin Lane 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Aliso Viejo, CA 92656 

 5 



No. 74 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st  Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Paul Arata 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO   

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly rate $  54.00 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 75 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Tammy Shelton, M.A. M.F.T. hereinafter 

referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide mental health 

counseling for students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $77,760 

and per attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  mileage                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 75 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  No Materials will be provided.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 75 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 75 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 75 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Tammy Shelton, M.A.  MFT 

1601 E. Chestnut 161 Fashion Lane, Suite 110 

Santa Ana, CA  92701 Tustin, CA 92781 

 5 



No. 75 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Tammy Shelton, M.A.  MFT 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Marriage Family Therapist 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  562-31-1425 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

 Rate: $54.00/hour 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 76 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Charles Spicer dba Center for Growth 

and Change, Inc. hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide mental health 

counseling for students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $77,760 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  mileage                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 76 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 76 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 76 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 76 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 5 



No. 76 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue      

Charles Spicer dba Center for Growth and 

Change, Inc. 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 1400 Quail Street, Suite 210 

 Newport Beach, CA  92660 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Charles Spicer 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  President 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  47-1883311 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 

 6 



No. 76 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly $ 54.00 

      $        

      $        

      $        

 

 7 





No. 77 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Michelle Roth hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Consultant will provide mental 

health counseling to students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $38,880 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  mileage                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 77 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 77 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 77 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 77 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 Santa Ana Unified School District     Michelle Roth 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 208 N. Palm Dr. 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 Beverly Hills, CA  90210 

 5 



No. 77 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Michelle Roth 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO        

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly $ 54.00 

 $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 78 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Joseph Cavins hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide mental health 

counseling for students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $77,760 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:   mileage                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 78 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 78 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 78 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 78 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District     Joseph Cavins 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 11132 Meads 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 Orange, CA  92869 

 5 



No. 78 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Joseph Cavins 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO   

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly $ 54.00 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 79 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Andrea Baird hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide mental health 

counseling for students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $77,760. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

 1 



No. 79 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

 2 



No. 79 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

 3 



No. 79 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

 4 



No. 79 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits and licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Andrea Baird 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 216 E. 20th Street 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 Costa Mesa, CA  92627 

 5 



No. 79 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Andrea Baird, M.A., LMFT 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 6 



No. 80 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and De Vida Bell hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide mental health 

counseling for students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $77,760    and 

per attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 80 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 80 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 80 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 80 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits and licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District     De Vida Bell 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 2913 El Camino Real, Suite 129 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 Tustin, CA  92782 

 5 



No. 80 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  De Vida Bell 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Licensed Clinical Social Worker 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly $ 54.00 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 81 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Rodolfo Gomez hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:   Will provide mental health 

counseling for students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $58,320 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  mileage                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 81 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 81 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 81 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 81 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Rodolfo Gomez 

1601 E. Chestnut Ave. 5151 Walnut Avenue #27 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Irvine, CA  92604 

 5 



No. 81 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21.  Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Rodolfo Gomez 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO        

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  553-75-7000 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Per Hour  $  54.00 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 82 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Monica Sedberry hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide mental health 

counseling for students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $77,760 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 82 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 82 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 82 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 82 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits and licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District     Monica Sedberry 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 1331 Camelot Dr. 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 Corona, CA  92882 

 5 



No. 82 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Monica Sedberry  

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Licensed Clinical Social Worker 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly $ 54.00 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 83 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and  Frank A. Miscione  hereinafter referred to 

as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:    Consultant will provide mental 

health counseling to students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $43,200 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows: mileage                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 83 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 83 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 83 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 83 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Frank A. Miscione  

1601 E. Chestnut 12381 Charloma Dr.    

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Tustin, CA 92780    

 5 



No. 83 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st  Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., CBO  Frank Miscione 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO        

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly rate $   54.00         

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 84 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Debra Solseng hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide mental health 

counseling for students.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $43,200 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  mileage                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 84 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 84 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 84 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 84 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Debra Solseng 

1601 E. Chestnut 2900 Bristol Street, J-204 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

 5 



No. 84 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Debra Solseng 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Licensed Marriage Family Therapist 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly $ 54.00 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 85 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Linda Robertson hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:   Consultant will provide mental 

health counseling to students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $38,880  and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  mileage                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 85 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 85 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 85 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 85 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Linda Robertson 

1601 E. Chestnut Ave. 912 Santa Ana St. 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Laguna Beach, CA  92651 

 5 



No. 85 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21.  Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Linda Robertson 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO        

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Per Hour $54.00 

 $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 86 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Lisa Hartman hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide mental health 

counseling to students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed  $25,920 and per 

attached fee schedule.  DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant 

invoice and with approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A. 

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

 1 



No. 86 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  Consultant will provide all supplies.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

 2 



No. 86 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

 3 



No. 86 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 4 



No. 86 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Lisa Hartman  

1601 E. Chestnut Ave. 20212 Big Bend Lane  

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Huntington Beach, CA 92646 
 

 

 

 

 5 



No. 86 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st   Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., CBO  Lisa Hartman 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations  Licensed Clinical Social Worker 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   299-82-7997  

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly rate $  54.00 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 87 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Melody Foxx hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:   Will provide mental health 

counseling for students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $51,840 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  mileage                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 87 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 87 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 87 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 87 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Melody Foxx 

1601 E. Chestnut Ave. 1151 Dove St., #245 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Newport Beach, CA  92660 

 5 
1242



No. 87 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21.  Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Melody Foxx 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO        

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Per Hour  $54.00 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 88 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Maxine Langdon hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:   Consultant will provide mental 

health counseling to students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $77,760 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  mileage                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 88 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 88 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 88 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 88 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Maxine Langdon 

1601 E. Chestnut Ave. 53010 Bantry Bay St. 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Lake Elsinore, CA  92532 

 5 



No. 88 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21.  Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Maxine Langdon 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Marriage and Family Therapist 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Per Hour  $ 54.00 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 89 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Steven Moody hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide mental health 

counseling for students.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $38,880 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  mileage                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 89 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 89 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 89 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 89 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Steven Moody 

1601 E. Chestnut 2070 Business Ctr. Dr., Suite 110  

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Irvine, CA 92612 

 5 



No. 89 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Steven Moody 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO   

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly $ 54.00 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 90 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and  Janice L. Casteel  hereinafter referred to 

as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:  Consultant will provide 

Independent Educational Evaluations to special education students.    

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on  July 1, 2015  and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by  June 30, 2016 . 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $12,000 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 90 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 90 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 90 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 90 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Janice L. Casteel 

1601 E. Chestnut 25281 Cabol Road, Suite 201 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Laguna Hills, CA 92653 

 5 



No. 90 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Janice L. Casteel 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Psychologist 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  569-70-7652 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

 Not to exceed:  $ 12,000 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 91 

Consultant Agreement 
 

 This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and    Robert Patterson, Psy.D. 

 hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.” 
  

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Independent Educational Evaluation 

(IEE) has been required from time to time to address Special Education due 

process differences in opinion regarding the assessment, eligibility and disability 

classification of students.  A contract with a Licensed Educational Psychologist, 

independent of the District , is recommended to assist with staff, interviewing 

parents, conducting IEEs, writing reports, attending IEPs, developing hearing 

declarations and attending due process hearings. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on  July 1, 2015  and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by  June 30, 2016 . 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $15,000 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

 1 



No. 91 

 5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this  

AGREEMENT, shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and 

agrees that he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents 

of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided 

employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, 

including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  

CONSULTANT assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her 

employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  

CONSULTANT shall assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes 

or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with 

respect to CONSULTANT’s employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided  

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.    

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

 

 2 



No. 91 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

 3 



No. 91 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

 4 



No. 91 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 5 



No. 91 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Robert Patterson, Psy.D. 

1601 E. Chestnut Ave.  2030 E. 4th St., Ste. #122A 

Santa Ana, CA  92701 Santa Ana, CA  92705 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This Agreement is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Robert Patterson Psy.D. 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Psychologist 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  572-44-6625 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 

 

 6 



No. 91 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

All Services Hourly $ 250.00 

 $ 

 $ 

  

 

 7 





No. 92 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Paul Alan Dores, Ph.D., B.C.B.A. 

hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:  Consultant will provide Psycho-

educational Independent Educational Evaluations (IEE) to students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $4,600 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  No instances when district will be liable.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 92 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  Consultant will provide all supplies.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 92 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 92 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 92 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Paul Alan Dores, Ph.D., B.C.B.A. 

1601 E. Chestnut 2477 Congress Street, Suite 200 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 San Diego, CA  92110 

 5 



No. 92 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st  Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Psychologist 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly rate $ 250.00 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 93 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and  Southern California College of 

Optometry  hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:     Consultant will provide vision 

assessment and therapy to special education student.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $1,000 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 93 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 93 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 93 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 93 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Southern California College of Optometry  

1601 E. Chestnut 2575 Yorba Linda Blvd.     

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Fullerton, CA  92831     

 5 



No. 93 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st   Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO        

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 6 



No. 93 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Comprehensive Eye Exam $ 71.00 

Visual Efficiency Exam  $ 70.00 

Visual Information Processing Exam  $ 210.00 

Dyslexia Exam     $ 50.00 

Vision Therapy Session $ 75.00/session 

Missed Vision Therapy Session $ 30.00  

General Equipment $ 25.00 

Computer Equipment $ 150.00 

 

 7 





No. 94 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Turning Point Center for Families 

hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:     Consultant will provide 

counseling and therapeutic services for students in need of mental health support.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $35,000 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 94 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 94 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 94 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 94 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Turning Point Center for Families      

1601 E. Chestnut 2101 E. 4th St., Suite 150 B     

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Santa Ana, CA  92705     

 5 



No. 94 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this   1st   Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO        

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Per Counselor $ 1,052 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 95 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and West Shield Adolescent Services 

hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:   This consultant will provide 

transport and support services for special education students placed at Residential 

Treatment Centers.. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $10,000 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

 1 



No. 95 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 95 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 95 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 95 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District West Shield Adolescent Services 

1601 E. Chestnut Ave. 16033 Bolsa Chica St. #104350 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Huntington Beach, CA 92649 

 5 



No. 95 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21.  Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO        

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
  

Primary Agent $81 

Back-up Agent $57 

Case Administration $70 

 

 6 



No. 96 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and  Michael A. Perry dba Positive Youth 

Interventions  hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:  Consultant will provide staff with 

training in de-escalating aggressive behavior; bullying and violence/trauma 

prevention/intervention.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on  July 1, 2015  and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016 . 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $20,000 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

 1 



No. 96 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  Printing/workbook materials.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 96 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 96 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 96 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 Santa Ana Unified School District      Michael A. Perry     

1601 East Chestnut Avenue  9852 W. Katella Ave. #310     

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322  Anaheim, CA  92804     

 5 



No. 96 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this  1st   Day of  July, 2015 . 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   Michael A. Perry  

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Senior Trainer/Consultant 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  545-86-5322 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly $  187.50 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 97 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Cindy Cottier dba Augmentative 

Communication Therapies  hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:  Will provide an Augmentative 

Alternative Communication Evaluation/Independent Educational Evaluation for a 

special education student.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on   July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $5,000 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

 1 



No. 97 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 97 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 97 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 97 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Cindy Cottier 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 960 E. Green St. #203 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 Pasadena, CA  91106 

 5 



No. 97 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Cindy Cottier 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Augmentative Communication/Assistive 

Technology Specialist 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  571-84-6176 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Evaluation Rate $950.00  

Consultation, meetings, 
and training 

$155.00 

 

 6 



No. 98 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and TCG Leadership Development 

Corporation dba The Cosca Group hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:  Will review special education 

preschool assessment procedures for quality and compliance.  Consultant will also 

provide nonpublic school/residential treatment center case management and 

administrative support to the ED programs at Adams.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on   July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $5,000 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

 1 



No. 98 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

 2 



No. 98 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

 3 



No. 98 

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

 4 



No. 98 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

 5 



No. 98 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District The Cosca Group 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 44625 Adobe Dr. 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 Hemet, CA  92544 
 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Jeanne C. Davis, Ed.D. 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Partner 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  33-0972414 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 

 

 6 



No. 98 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Daily Rate: $ 900.00 

      $        

      $        

      $        

 

 7 





No. 99 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as "DISTRICT" and Kimberley Palmiotto hereinafter 

referred to as "CONSULTANT." 

WHEREAS, District is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government Code 
 
to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons 

are specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide a neuro-educational 

evaluation of a student to include assessment in the areas of cognitive processing and 

academics, as well as observation of the student, interviews and review of records.  

Following the evaluation, Consultant will provide the IEP team with a detailed written 

report of the findings, with recommendations and suggestions.  Consultant will attend 

up to two IEP team meetings at which the results of the evaluation or the attendant 

recommendations and suggestions are dis-cussed.  Time for attendance at any IEP team 

meeting will be billed at the hourly rate set forth below. 

2.  Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 
AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 
performance by June 30, 2016. 

 
3.    Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily  rendered pursuant to this Agreement at total fee not to exceed $3,500 per 

attached fee schedule. DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of 

consultant invoice and with approval of a DISTRICT representative. 

4.     Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except 

as follows:  N/A. 

1 
 



No. 99 

5.  Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this 

AGREEMENT, shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands 

and agrees that he/she and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees 

or agents of the DISTRICT, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally 

provided employees of the DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT's employees are normally 

entitled, including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker's 

Compensation. CONSULTANT assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions 

of his/her employees or agents as they relate to the services to be provided under this 

AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full responsibility for payment of all Federal, 

State and local taxes or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and 

income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT's employees. 

6.  Materials. CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this Agreement except as follows: N/A.   

CONSULTANT's services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7.  Originality of Services. CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, formulae, 

procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, recordings, 

teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the DISTRICT and/or 

used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to CONSULTANT and 

shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that submitted to 

CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

8.  Copyright/Trademark/Patent. CONSULTANT understands and agrees that all 

matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used with- out DISTRICT's express written permission. DISTRICT shall have all 

right, title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT 

consents to use of CONSULTANT's name in con- junction with the sale, use, performance and 

distribution of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

 

2 
 



No. 99 

9.  Termination. DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate this 

AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to the 

date of termination. Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further performance 

of services by CONSULTANT. Notice shall be deemed given when received by the 

CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause. Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the 

CONSULTANT; or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to 

others for personal injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, 

CONSULTANT makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is 

appointed due to CONSULTANT's insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain 

the reasons for such intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of 

such notice the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the 

correction thereof be made, this AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days 

cease and terminate.  In the event of such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the 

required services from another contractor.  If the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of 

providing the service pursuant to this AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to 

and collected from the CONSULTANT. The foregoing provisions are in addition to, and 

not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies available to the DISTRICT. Written notice 

by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received by the other party, or no later than three 

days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

10.  Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a)  Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) Injury 

to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either 

directly or by independent con- tract, upon or in connection with the 

services called for in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for 

3 
 



No. 99 

liability for damages referred to above which result from the sole 

negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT or its officers, 

employees or agents. 

(b)  Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its 

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property 

caused by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the 

CONSULTANT, or any person, firm or corporation employed by the 

CONSULTANT, either directly or by independent 

contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the services 

covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage occurs 

either on or off DISTRICT's property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 

DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c)  Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use of 

any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT. 

11.  Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a policy of 

comprehensive general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000) per occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in 

a form mutually acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against 

liability or claims of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, 

CONSULTANT agrees to pro- vide an endorsement to this policy stating, "Such insurance as 

is afforded by this policy shall be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be 

excess and noncontributory." No later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall 

provide DISTRICT with certificates of insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements 

required hereunder including a thirty (30) day written notice of cancellation or reduction in 

coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees 

as additional insureds under said policy.  (Please check with District's Risk Manager 

regarding any and all insurance provisions.) 

 
 

4 
 



No. 99 

12.  Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13.  Compliance with Applicable Laws. The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT's general right of inspection 

to secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all 

federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the 

future become applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT's business, and personnel 

engaged in operations covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of 

such operations. 

14.  Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT's employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

15.  Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another public 
 
agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services 

are actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

16.  Entire Agreement/Amendment.   This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the 

AGREEMENT. 

 17.  Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination. CONSULTANT agrees 

that it will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, 

color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital 

status, or sex of such persons. 

 18.  Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or 

prevent a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or 

condition. 

5 
 



No. 99 

 19.  Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either 

party to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. 

Mail, mailed either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage 

prepaid.  Service shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, 

on the third day after deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or 

demands may be given by either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance 

with the notice provisions of this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses 

of the parties are as follows: 
 
DISTRICT: 
 
Santa Ana Unified School District 
1601 East Chestnut Avenue 
Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 

CONSULTANT: 
 
Kimberley Palmiotto, LPC, LEP  
2850 East Mesa Verde Drive, Suite E 
Costa Mesa, CA  92626 

6 
 



No. 99 

 
20.  Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held 

by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining 

provisions will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, 

impaired or invalidated in any way. 

 
21.  Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 
 

This AGREEMENT, comprising six pages including this signature page, is entered 

into this 1st day of July, 2015. 
 
 
District:  Consultant: 
 
 
 
By:   By: Signature 
 
 
        Kimberley Palmiotto 
 

Printed Name  Printed Name 
 
 
 
Deputy Superintendent, Operations  Educational Psychologist 
 
                                 Title    Title 
 
 
 
                      May 26, 2015 200-41-4402 
 
                  Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer 
Identification 
 
 
 
FEE SCHEDULE: 
 
 
The DISTRICT shall pay the CONSULTANT for actual services rendered.  Services shall be 

billed as shown below: 
 
Neuro-Educational Evaluation and report 

 
$2,950.00 

 
Attendance at IEP team meetings

 
   $150.00/hour 

7 
 





No. 100 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and  Matthew Williams Enterprises, LLC  

hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:  Consultant will provide Braille 

Transcription for special education.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $14,000 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:   N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 100 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 100 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 100 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 100 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Matthew Williams      

1601 E. Chestnut 26205 Normandy    

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Roseville, MI 48066    

 5 



No. 100 

 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st  Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Matthew Williams 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Braille Transcriber 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015     

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 6 



No. 100 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Nemeth (math, science and chemistry) $ 3.00 per page 

Music braille (no tactile drawings) $ 4.25 per page   

Tactile drawings for math $ 5.25 per page  

Tactile drawings for science and 

chemistry 

$ 6.25 per page 

Tactile drawings for music $ 7.25 per page 

 

*The amounts are total amounts and not to be added together for a page cost. 

 7 





No. 101 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Dr. Natasha Adamo hereinafter referred to 

as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:  Will provide an independent 

educational evaluation in psychological/educational areas for a special education 

student.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $4,000 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

 1 



No. 101 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 101 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 101 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 101 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Natasha Adamo 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 28321 Las Cabos 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 Laguna Niguel, CA  92677 

 5 



No. 101 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., CBO  Natasha Adamo 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations   

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly $ 150.00 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 102 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Scott W. Larson hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:  Will provide an independent 

psycho-educational evaluation to a special education student, including IEP 

attendance.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on  July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $3,000.00 and 

per attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

 1 



No. 102 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 102 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 102 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 102 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Scott W. Larson, Ph.D. 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 1151 Dove Street, Suite 240 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 Newport Beach, CA  92660 

 5 



No. 102 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., CBO   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations   

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly $ 160.00 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 103 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Stepping Stones Therapy, Inc., hereinafter 

referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:  Will provide an independent 

educational evaluation in the area of speech and language to a special education 

student, including IEP attendance.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on  July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $3,600.00 and 

per attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

 1 



No. 103 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 103 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 103 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 103 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Stepping Stones Therapy, Inc. 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 3900 Birch Street, 103 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 Newport Beach, CA  92660 

 5 



No. 103 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., CBO  Brock Tropea 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations   

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  11-3833237 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly $ 150.00 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 104 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Fitness 19 CA 202 LLC hereinafter 

referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide fitness gym  

membership accounts and access to facilities to Adult Transition students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $1,950 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 104 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 104 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 104 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 104 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Fitness 19 CA 202 LLC 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 1845 E. Chapman Ave. 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 Orange, CA 92867 

 5 



No. 104 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this   1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO   

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Not to exceed: $1,950.00 

  

      $        

 

 6 



No. 105 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and CareerStaff Unlimited, Inc. dba ProCare 

One Nurses  hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:  Consultant will provide Registered 

Nurses (RNs) and Licensed Vocational Nurses (LVNs) services to ensure all 

students’ medical needs are met. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $66,000  and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  Travel and mileage. 

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

 1 



No. 105 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 105 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 105 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 105 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits and licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 

CareerStaff Unlimited, Inc. dba ProCare 

One Nurses 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 4041 MacArthur Blvd. #150 

 Newport Beach, CA 92660 

 5 



No. 105 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  CareerStaff Unlimited, Inc. dba ProCare One 

Nurses 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO   

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Rate: $ 600.00 

 

 6 



No. 106 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Anne Delfosse hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:  Will provide Common Core 

training for Speech Pathologists.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $800. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

 1 



No. 106 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

 2 



No. 106 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

 3 



No. 106 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits and licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 4 



No. 106 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Anne Delfosse 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 12 Circle Hill Ct. 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 Laguna Niguel, CA  92677-5902 

 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

 5 



No. 106 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Anne Delfosse 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO   

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 6 



No. 107 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Progressus Therapy, LLC (“Progressus”) 

hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:  Speech- Language Pathology 

services to students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $44,268 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  Mileage not to exceed $1,500.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 107 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 107 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 107 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 107 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits and licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District PROGRESSUS THERAPY, LLC 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 75 Remittance Drive, Suite 6221 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 Chicago, IL 60675-6221 

 5 



No. 107 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO   

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 6 



No. 107 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly $  

Speech-Language Pathologist, CCC-SLP or CF-SLP $71.00 per hour 

Bilingual Speech-Language Pathologist, CCC-SLP 

or CF-SLP 
$72.00 per hour 

      $        

 

 7 





No. 108 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Sula Goldenberg hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide mental health 

counseling for students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on  July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $43,200 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 108 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 108 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 108 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 108 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits and licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Sula Goldenberg 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 161 Fashion Lane, Suite 110 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 Tustin, CA 92780 

 5 



No. 108 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Sula Goldenberg 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly $ 54.00 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 109 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Jena Reynolds hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:  Will provide mental health 

counseling for students.  

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $73,440 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 109 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 109 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 109 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 109 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits and licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Jena Reynolds 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue P.O. Box 5752 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 Orange, CA 92863 

 5 



No. 109 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Jena Reynolds 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  M.S., MFT 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly $ 54.00 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 110 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Tara Lowe hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Will provide mental health 

counseling for students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on  July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $54,000 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 110 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 110 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 110 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 110 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits and licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Tara Lowe 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 1400 Solvay Aisle 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 Irvine, CA 92606 

 5 



No. 110 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Tara Lowe 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Hourly $ 54.00 

      $        

      $        

 

 6 



No. 111 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Abby Rozenberg hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Independent educational evaluation 

of special education student including attendance at an IEP meeting. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on  July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $4,000 and per 

attached fee schedule. DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant 

invoice and with approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

 1 



No. 111 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

 2 



No. 111 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

 3 



No. 111 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 4 



No. 111 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Abby Rozenberg 

1601 E. Chestnut 2900 Bristol Street, Buite B103 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Costa Mesa, CA 92626 
 

 

 

 5 



No. 111 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Abby Rozenberg 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Speech & Language Pathologist 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  52-2450106 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Assessment $  1,400 

IEP Attendance  $  135/hour 

      $        

 

 6 



No. 112 

Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Jarice Butterfield  hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:  Consultant will provide a training to 

special education staff on new reclassification procedures for students with 

disabilities. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $1,000 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  Travel and mileage. 

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

 1 



No. 112 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 112 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 112 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 112 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits and licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District     Jarice Butterfield 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 340 Alisal Rd.  #314 

Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322 Solvang, CA  93464  

 5 



No. 112 

 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Jarice Butterfield 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Santa Barbara County SELPA 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015        

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Rate: $ 600.00 

  

 

 6 



No. 113 

 Consultant Agreement 
 

This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Dr. Robin Morris hereinafter referred to as 

“CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT:    Consultant will provide psycho-

educational independent educational evaluations for special education students. 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on July 1, 2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete 

performance by June 30, 2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to his AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed $4,000 and per 

attached fee schedule. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows: N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

 1 



No. 113 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A.                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 2 



No. 113 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

 3 



No. 113 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 

 

 4 



No. 113 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 
 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Dr. Robin Morris 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 26440 La Alameda, #220 

Santa Ana, CA  92701 Mission Viejo, CA  92691 

 5 



No. 113 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July, 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.  Sheila Doctors 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  Consultant, DHH Specialist 

Title  Title 

 

May 26, 2015  20-2217328 

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 
 

Consultant Services $ 150.00 

Expert Witness $ 200.00 

Mileage $ .56 per mile 

 

 6 



 
 

AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 
May 26, 2015 

 
Board Meeting 

 
TITLE: Authorization to Renew Subscriptions with The Ware Group for 

2015-16 School Year 
 
ITEM: Action 
SUBMITTED BY: Michelle Rodriguez, Ed.D., Assistant Superintendent, K-12 Teaching  

and Learning 
PREPARED BY: Alexandra Ito, Director, Learning Innovation with Technology 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board authorization to renew the existing online 
subscription for Lexia Reading with The Ware Group for 2015-16 school year. 
 
 
RATIONALE: 
 
Currently, twenty-nine elementary and six intermediate schools have subscriptions to Lexia 
Reading with The Ware Group.  This program is used as part of the overall reading improvement 
strategies of the subscribing schools.  By consolidating all of the school orders together into one 
renewal the subscription for Lexia Reading will provide a cost savings to the District in the form 
of a multiple-site bulk discount. 
 
Lexia Reading provides explicit, systematic, personalized learning on foundational reading 
schools for students of all abilities, and delivers norm-referenced performance data and analysis 
without interrupting the flow of instruction to administer a test. This research-proven, 
technology-based approach accelerates reading skills development, predicts students’ year-end 
performance and provides teachers with data-driven action plans to help differentiate instruction.  
 
LCAP Goal 1.1:  Provide equitable student access to rigorous, standard-based, instructional 
program that include, but not limited to high-quality instruction, instructional materials, 
academic supports, and technology-based resources. 
 
 
FUNDING: 
 
Various Site Funding:  $130,550.40 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the authorization to renew subscription with The Ware Group for 2015-16 school year. 
 
 
 
MR:AI:ez 





Send orders to: The Ware Group
PO Box 9154
La Jolla, CA 92038

Fax orders to: 253.550.2243

Inquiries: Peter Dougherty
800.399.2635

School
Current # 
Licenses

 Cost for hosting 
through 6/30/2016 10% Savings Total per School

Adams 400 1,296.00$             129.60-$        1,166.40$             
Carl Harvey 150 972.00$                97.20-$          874.80$                
Carver unlimited 8,500.00$             850.00-$        7,650.00$             
Davis 750 4,860.00$             486.00-$        4,374.00$             
Diamond 8,500.00$             850.00-$        7,650.00$             
Edison 450 2,916.00$             291.60-$        2,624.40$             
Esqueda 500
Franklin 250 1,620.00$             162.00-$        1,458.00$             
Fremont Unlimited 8,500.00$             850.00-$        7,650.00$             
Garfield Unlimited 8,500.00$             850.00-$        7,650.00$             
Greenville
Heninger 650 4,212.00$             421.20-$        3,790.80$             
Heroes 300 1,944.00$             194.40-$        1,749.60$             
Hoover 250 1,620.00$             162.00-$        1,458.00$             
James Madison 250 1,350.00$             135.00-$        1,215.00$             
Jackson 800 5,184.00$             518.40-$        4,665.60$             
Kennedy Unlimited 5,666.67$             566.67-$        5,100.00$             
Lincoln Unlimited 4,958.33$             495.83-$        4,462.50$             
Martin 300 1,944.00$             194.40-$        1,749.60$             
Monte Vista 250 1,620.00$             162.00-$        1,458.00$             
Remington 8,500.00$             850.00-$        7,650.00$             
Santiago 350 2,268.00$             226.80-$        2,041.20$             
Sepulveda 8,500.00$             850.00-$        7,650.00$             
Taft 890 2,851.00$             285.10-$        2,565.90$             
Thorpe 8,500.00$             850.00-$        7,650.00$             
Washington unlimited 8,500.00$             850.00-$        7,650.00$             
Wilson unlimited 8,500.00$             850.00-$        7,650.00$             
Rooseve;t unlimited 8,500.00$             850.00-$        7,650.00$             
Villa Intermediate 400 2,592.00$             259.20-$        2,332.80$             
Spurgeon Intermediate 250 1,620.00$             162.00-$        1,458.00$             
Sierra Intermediate 250 1,620.00$             162.00-$        1,458.00$             
McFadden Intermediate 430 2,786.00$             278.60-$        2,507.40$             
Willard Intermediate 150 972.00$                97.20-$          874.80$                
Carr Intermediate 800 5,184.00$             518.40-$        4,665.60$             

Subtotal 145,056.00$         14,505.60-$   130,550.40$         
14,505.60-$           

130,550.40$         

Cost to get all Santa Ana Lexia licenses to co-expire on 6/30/2016

Less: District savings

Total for renewal



 

 

www.lexialearning.com 
©2

Lexia Reading Core5® Research Report: August 2014 – December 2014 
Student Program Usage and Gains: Santa Ana Unified School District 
Data compiled and analyzed by the Education and Research Team (research@lexialearning.com) 
 

Program Description 

Lexia Reading Core5® (Core5) provides an explicit, systematic, personalized learning experience and 

delivers norm-referenced performance data and analysis without interrupting the flow of instruction to 

administer a test. Aligned to the Common Core State Standards, this research-proven, technology-based 

system accelerates reading skills development, predicts students’ end-of-year performance, and 

provides teachers with data-driven action plans, lessons, and skill builders to help differentiate 

instruction.  

Lexia Reading provides individualized learning that is both student-driven and teacher-directed. 

Student-Driven 

 Independent, adaptive learning on 

foundational reading skills 

 Explicit, systematic instruction that 

scaffolds students as they struggle and 

advances them to higher levels as they 

demonstrate proficiency 

 

 

 

Teacher-Directed 

 Differentiated instructional materials for 

all students based on their performance in 

the program 

 Individualized, data-driven action plans 

that focus teacher time 

 Easy to use reports prescribe the 

instructional intensity needed to help 

students reach end-of-year goals

Sample Selection and Description 

The sample of students in this report consisted of 2,716 kindergarten-fifth graders from 19 schools in 

Santa Ana Unified School District1.  These students used Core5 between August and mid-December 

2014, with up to 18 weeks of use.  Additionally, students used the program for at least 30 days and at 

least 10 minutes per week. Core5’s Auto Placement determined an appropriate starting level in the 

program consistent with each student’s performance. The program is organized into grade levels of 

material and a student could place in: PreK (Level 1), K (Levels 2-5), 1st grade (Levels 6-9), 2nd grade 

(Levels 10-12), 3rd grade (Levels 13-14), 4th grade (Levels 15-16), or 5th grade (Levels 17-18). In this 

sample, 49% of Santa Ana Core5 first-fifth graders began the school year needing to review skills two or 

more grade levels below their grade (e.g., second grader working on K skills), qualifying them as at-risk 

for reading failure. This report presents usage and gains information for all 2,716 K-5th grade students, as 

well as progress for high fidelity students within the sample. 

  

                                                           
1
 Schools with fewer than 30 eligible students were excluded from this report. 

mailto:research@lexialearning.com


  
Santa Ana USD, Grades K-5, Fall 2014 

                                                                                                                               2                                                                                                                      

Analysis 1: Skill Mastery by Usage  

In Lexia Reading Core5, students advance through the program by completing activities (i.e., skills) such 

as initial/final consonants discrimination, silent-e word construction, and sight word recognition. Skills 

are organized in the program by grade level of the material and mastery of skills is required to advance. 

Based on real-time performance data from students’ work in these skills, Core5 provides a monthly 

Prescription of Intensity. This Prescription includes weekly recommended minutes on the software, 

designed to increase the student’s likelihood of completing skills in Core5 to achieve that student’s end-

of-year benchmark. For this report, meeting recommended use for at least six of the eligible weeks is 

considered a high fidelity implementation. Core5 Santa Ana students, with varying levels of intensity on 

the program, showed differences in their progress. The graph below compares the average number of 

skills mastered by all students from three usage categories. On average, students who had high fidelity 

completed more than twice as many skills as students with lower levels of fidelity. Santiago, 

Washington, and Jackson showed the highest average skills mastered. 

Figure 1. Comparing Students’ Progress in Core5 by Intensity of Software Use (N=2,716) 

 
  



  
Santa Ana USD, Grades K-5, Fall 2014 

                                                                                                                               3                                                                                                                      

Analysis 2: Student Progress for All Moderate and High Fidelity Students 

Of the 2,716 Lexia Reading Core5 students in this sample, 1,848 had moderate or high fidelity (met their 

recommended usage for at least one week), qualifying them for Analysis 2. The table below present 

student progress in Core5 during Fall 2014.  As described above, Core5 is organized into different grade 

levels of material (GLM).  Students could be working on skills above, in, or below their grade level.  

During Fall 2014, the percentage of moderate and high fidelity students working on skills in or above 

their grade level increased from 14% to 26%.  

The table below presents two rows per grade that compare the percentage of students working at each 

grade level status from their initial placement (Start Level) to their status in mid-December (Dec Level). 

The bold green line indicates reaching each grade’s end-of-year benchmark. 

 

Table 1. Percent of Moderate and High Fidelity Students in each Grade Level Status 

 
2+ GLM 
Below 

1 GLM 
Below 

In GLM 
Above 
GLM 

Kindergarten 
Students  

(316) 

Start Level n/a 79% 20% 1% 

Dec Level n/a 34% 64% 2% 

First Graders  
(408) 

Start Level 22% 54% 23% <1% 

Dec Level 5% 59% 34% 1% 

Second Graders  
(414) 

Start Level 42% 45% 11% 1% 

Dec Level 29% 52% 17% 2% 

Third Graders  
(269) 

Start Level 70% 28% 2% <1% 

Dec Level 59% 37% 4% <1% 

Fourth Graders  
(274) 

Start Level 89% 5% 5% – 

Dec Level 80% 12% 8% – 

Fifth Graders  
(167) 

Start Level 78% 13% 10% – 

Dec Level 75% 13% 12% <1% 

All Students 
(1,848) 

Start Level 45% 42% 13% 1% 

Dec Level 35% 39% 25% 1% 

 

 

  

Note: Totals may not equal 100% due to rounding. 



  
Santa Ana USD, Grades K-5, Fall 2014 

                                                                                                                               4                                                                                                                      

Analysis 3: Progress in Core5 for Only High Fidelity Students 

A sub-sample of 322 students used Core5 with high fidelity. Core5 provided these students with the 

opportunity to practice and master numerous reading skills to make substantial gains in Core5. By using 

Core5 near or above recommended levels, the percent of students working on skills in or above their 

grade level increased from 28% to 54% in just a few months. District and school leaders in Santa Ana 

should continue to support and increase Core5 implementation to help more students reach levels of 

high fidelity and ensure their success.  

Figure 2. Change in Grade Level Status for High Fidelity Students (N=322) 

 

Analysis 4: Differentiated, Data-driven Instruction 

Lexia Learning’s Assessment Without Testing® online tool (myLexia.com) provides teachers with detailed 

student data so they can analyze student performance and match instruction to each student’s needs.  

Reporting features support teachers’ abilities to differentiate instruction by identifying and grouping 

students who have similar skill gaps. During Fall 2014, 330 staff members the 19 Santa Ana schools 

logged in at least once, of which about two-thirds logged in at least monthly. Notably, 60 staff members 

logged in over 20 times, which suggests at least one visit to myLexia each week. 





 

AGENDA ITEM BACK-UP SHEET 

May 26, 2015 

 

Board Meeting 
 

TITLE: Authorization to Utilize Piggyback Contract for Purchase of 

Classroom and Office Furniture 

 

ITEM:  Action 

SUBMITTED BY: Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

PREPARED BY: Jonathan Geiszler, Director, Purchasing and Stores  

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 

On February 17, 2015, the Glendale Unified School District entered into a piggyback Contract 

No. P-16 14/15, which grants local government agencies the ability to purchase classroom and 

office furniture under their awarded contracts.  The contracts also provided that they would 

continue in effect until termination by the Glendale Unified School District for a period not to 

exceed five years, renewable yearly thru February 2020. Use of this contract has been reviewed 

and approved by Orange County Department of Education Legal Services. 

 

The District may, without going to bid, utilize such contracts pursuant to California Public 

Contract Code Sections 20118 and 10298.  The contract prices offered under Glendale Unified 

School District Bid No. P-16 14/15, have been assessed to be fair, reasonable and competitive. 

Staff has determined that it is in the best interest of the District to utilize these contracts as 

allowed under Contract No. P-16 14/15 

 

 

RATIONALE: 

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board approval to utilize piggyback contract awarded 

by Glendale Unified School District for the purchase of classroom and office furniture. 

 

 

FUNDING: 

 

Budgeted Funds as requested 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Authorize staff to utilize contracts awarded under Glendale Unified School District Bid No. P-16 

14/15 for the purchase of classroom and office furniture.  

 

 
SP:mm 

 





AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 
May 26, 2015 

 
Board Meeting 

 
TITLE:  Approval of Head Start Budget Adjustment No. 1 for 2014-15 

Program Year 
 
ITEM:  Action 
SUBMITTED BY: Michelle Rodriguez, Ed.D., Assistant Superintendent, K-12 Teaching 

and Learning 
PREPARED BY: Charlotte Ervin, Coordinator, Head Start Program 
    
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board approval for the Head Start Budget Adjustment 
No. 1 for the 2014-15 program year.  The Board is the governing body of the Head Start 
Program, and must ensure that appropriate internal controls are established and implemented to 
safeguard Federal funds in accordance with 45 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 1301.13. 
 
Under the Head Start Act 642(c)(1)(E)(VII), the Board is responsible for the following: (a) 
approving financial management, (b) accounting, (c) reporting policies, and (d) compliance with 
laws and regulations related to financial statements including: (aa) approval of all major financial 
expenditures of the agency; (bb) annual approval of the operating budget of the agency.  All 
budget adjustments must be approved by the Board. 
 
 
RATIONALE: 
 
In the 2014-15 Head Start Basic Budget there are projected savings in the personnel section of 
the budget in the amount of $90,000.00.  This is due to open positions, employees on unpaid 
leaves of absence or differential pay, and newly-hired employees at lower salary or benefit 
levels.  As a result, a budget adjustment is needed to transfer funds from personnel to non-
personnel program expenses.  The funds will be utilized to increase the quality of the 
program, specifically in the areas of facilities, classroom and office supplies, and transition 
to kindergarten, field trips, and other program needs. 
 

Current Adjustment 
 
 
 
 

Personnel 
 

 
 
 
 

$90,000.00 
 

Supplies (Instructional, Office, Custodial) $70,000 
Mitchell Playground and Restroom Remodeling  $2,000 
Field Trips $6,000 
Playground Maintenance (Surfacing, Painting) $4,000 
Outside Toy Shed (Edison and Jackson) $8,000 

  Total $90,000 
 



LCAP Goal 3: All students and staff will work in a healthy, safe and secure environment that 
supports learning. 
 
 
FUNDING:  
 
Orange County Head Start, Inc.:  $90,000.00 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the Head Start Budget Adjustment No. 1 for the 2014-15 program year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MR:CE:ez 



Page 1 of 3 

APPROVALS 
  Grantee Program Office and Date Signed 

   

 DA Policy Committee (Auth. Rep.) and Date Signed Quality Systems Unit and Date Signed 
 
  

        

DA -- Signature of Authorized Board Member and Date Signed Div. Director, Finance and Administration and Date Signed 
 
  

 
  

 

Orange County Head Start, Inc. 
Budget Adjustment & Request for Advance Approvals 

Head Start & State Preschool Delegate Agencies and School Districts 
 

Name of Delegate Agency Fiscal Year Date of Request Effective Date 

Santa Ana Unified School District 2014/2015 05/26/15  

Funding Source (HS Basic, HS T&TA, EHS Basic, etc.) Nature of Funding DA Assigned 
Number BAR Number (Grantee Use) 

HS Basic     Permanent 8  
 
Justification of Budget Adjustment and/or Request for Advance Approvals: 
 
1. Describe the purpose of the proposed change(s), including: 

a) What is the impact of the proposed change on program operations currently in place? 
b) How will the change(s) impact the organizational structure in terms of the agency’s ability to deliver 

services? 
2. Do the budget changes that support the request meet fiscal accountability as they relate to (a) allowable, (b) 

necessary, (c) reasonable, and (d) allocable? 
3. What alternative(s) were considered before proposing the changes? 
4. How will the alternative chosen improve the delivery of services to children and families? 
5. Describe how the proposed changes conform to Federal and/or State regulations. 
 
Head Start 2014/2015, Budget Adjustment #1   
      
Line Item  Savings/Needed  Reason 
a. PERSONNEL     
1.  Program Managers & content 
Area Experts 

                        
4,152.00  Due to raises, retro 2013/14  and 2014/15 

2.  Teachers 

                    
(46,492.00) 

In spite of raises, there is still an excess of funds.  
New teachers hired since the original budget 
entered at a lower level on the Salary Scale.  
Several have been out on extended family or 
medical leaves or leave of absence with reduced 
or no pay.  Some positions have been filled, 
then others vacated.   Currently 1 Lead Teacher 
position open. 

5.  Teacher Aides 

                    
(44,752.00) 

In spite of raises, there is still an excess of funds.  
Started year with 3 vacancies.  2 have been 
filled, but 1 TA promoted to Teacher, so still 2 
vacancies, though one is in process.  One TA out 
on unpaid family leave through end of year. 



Page 2 of 3 

APPROVALS 
  Grantee Program Office and Date Signed 

   

 DA Policy Committee (Auth. Rep.) and Date Signed Quality Systems Unit and Date Signed 
 
  

        

DA -- Signature of Authorized Board Member and Date Signed Div. Director, Finance and Administration and Date Signed 
 
  

 
  

 

7.  Disabilities Services Personnel                     
(29,654.00) Has been out on maternity then family leave. 

10.  Program Managers & content 
Area Experts 

                        
3,828.00  Due to raises, retro 2013/14  and 2014/15 

11.  Other Family & Community 
Partnership Personnel 

                      
13,632.00  Due to raises, retro 2013/14  and 2014/15 

13.  Head Start Director                         
5,496.00  

Due to raises, retro 2013/14  and 2014/15 

16.  Clerical Personnel                             
405.00  

Due to raises, retro 2013/14  and 2014/15, less 
differential pay for family leave 

17.  Fiscal Personnel 

                    
(18,976.00) 

Fiscal Assistant I was hired at a lower level on 
the salary scale, Fiscal Assistant II position has 
been a vacancy since end of January. 

19.  Maintenance Personnel 
                        
3,221.00  Due to raises, retro 2013/14  and 2014/15 

21.  Other Personnel: Substitutes 
                      
99,140.00  

Additional funds needed to cover substitutes at 
each site. 

Sub-total Salaries (6a) 
                    
(10,000.00)   

      
b. FRINGE BENEFITS     

1. Social Security, State Disability, 
SUI 

                      
(4,819.00) Due to vacancies, leaves listed above 

2. Health/Dental/Life Insurance 
                    
(78,188.00) Due to vacancies, leaves listed above 

3.  Retirement                       
(7,825.00) 

Increase in %, but excess due to vacancies, 
leaves 

4.  Other Fringe: Medicare, 
Workers Comp., Retiree Benefits 

                      
10,832.00  

Workers Comp decrease from 1.72% to 1.43% 
as of September 2014,  Retiree benefits increase 
from 2.68% to 4.35% as of January 2015. 

Sub-total Fringe Benefits (6b) 
                    
(80,000.00)   

Total Personnel & Benefits 
                    
(90,000.00) Total Available 

  
     
      



Page 3 of 3 

APPROVALS 
  Grantee Program Office and Date Signed 

   

 DA Policy Committee (Auth. Rep.) and Date Signed Quality Systems Unit and Date Signed 
 
  

        

DA -- Signature of Authorized Board Member and Date Signed Div. Director, Finance and Administration and Date Signed 
 
  

 
  

 

e. SUPPLIES     

1.  Office Supplies 
                        
5,000.00  Additional supplies  

2.  Child and Family Services 
Supplies 

                      
65,000.00  

Chairs, tables and other furnishings have been 
replaced at most sites, reducing the amount 
available for classroom supplies and other 
outdated items that need to be replaced, 
including some computers.   

5.  2 storage sheds                         
8,000.00  

Outside Toy Sheds are needed at Edison and 
Jackson. 

Sub-total Supplies (6e) 
                      
78,000.00    

      
f. Contractual     
4.  Child Transportation Services                         

6,000.00  
Additional funds needed for Field Trip 
Transportation and admissions 

Sub-total Contracts (6f) 
                        
6,000.00    

      
h.  Other     
6.  Building Maintenance/Repair 
and Other Occupancy                         

6,000.00  

Broadway Children’s  Restroom Remodeling, 
$2,000; Monte Vista Playground Maintenance 
(Surfacing, painting), $4,000. 

Sub-Total Other (6h) 
                        
6,000.00    

      

i. Total Non-Personnel 
                      
90,000.00  Total Needed 

Difference 
                                     
-      

 



EXHIBIT A

Fiscal Year Date of Request Effective Date

2014/2015 05/26/15
Nature of Funding DA Assigned Number

Permanent 8

Approved Funding BAR, Pending This Request + (-) Adjusted Budget

Current
Budget

BAR Pending 
Approval

This Request
Adjustments +(-)

Proposed
Adjusted Budget

a.

Child Health and Developmental Services Personnel
1 Program Managers & content Area Experts 68,280                4,152                  72,432                
2 Teachers/Infant Toddler Teachers 1,060,321           (46,492)               1,013,829           
3 Family Child Care Personnel -                          
4 Home Visitors -                          
5 Teacher Aides & Other Education Personnel 192,089              (44,752)               147,337              
6 Health/Mental Health Services Personnel -                          
7 Disabilities Services Personnel 62,315                (29,654)               32,661                
8 Nutrition Services Personnel -                          
9 Other Child Services Personnel -                          

Family and Community Partnerships Personnel
10 Program Managers & content Area Experts 63,096                3,828                  66,924                
11 Other Family & community Partnerships Personnel 308,775              13,632                322,407              
Program Design and Management Personnel
12 Executive Director/Other Supervisor of HS Director -                          
13 Head Start/Early Head Start Director 90,288                5,496                  95,784                
14 Managers -                          
15 Staff Development -                          
16 Clerical Personnel 89,459                405                     89,864                
17 Fiscal Personnel 88,510                (18,976)               69,534                
18 Other Administrative Personnel -                          
19 Maintenance Personnel 72,988                3,221                  76,209                
20 Transportation Personnel -                          
21 Other Personnel: Subs 16,202                99,140                115,342              

Other Write-in Line Items -                          
TOTAL PERSONNEL (6a) 2,112,323           -                          (10,000)               2,102,323           

b.
1 Social Security (FICA), State Disability, UI 67,570                (4,819)                 62,751                
2 Health/Dental/Life Insurance 571,020              (78,188)               492,832              
3 Retirement 218,511              (7,825)                 210,686              
4 Other Fringe: Medicare, Workers Comp., Retiree benefits 120,683              10,832                131,515              

Other Write-in Line Items -                          

3,325,719        
Contact Person for Questions (Type Name and Phone Number)

GABI Line Item Budget for Head Start

Program Operation

FRINGE BENEFITS

Line Item

Santa Ana Unified School District, 2014/2015, HS Basic, Permanent, 8

PERSONNEL

-                       

Orange County Head Start, Inc.

Head Start Delegate Agencies
Budget Adjustment & Request for Advance Approvals

3,368,953        

Santa Ana Unified School District
Funding Source (HS Basic, HS T&TA, etc.)

Name of Delegate Agency

Charlotte Ervin, Head Start Coordinator

Dorothy Hinshaw, 714-558-5823

Director or Authorized Representative (Type Name and Title)

BAR Number (Grantee Use)

-                       

Budget Summary, Program Operation

HS Basic



EXHIBIT A

Current
Budget

BAR Pending 
Approval

This Request
Adjustments +(-)

Proposed
Adjusted Budget

GABI Line Item Budget for Head Start

Program Operation

Line Item

Santa Ana Unified School District, 2014/2015, HS Basic, Permanent, 8

TOTAL FRINGE BENEFITS (6b) 977,784              -                          (80,000)               897,784              



EXHIBIT A

Current
Budget

BAR Pending 
Approval

This Request
Adjustments +(-)

Proposed
Adjusted Budget

GABI Line Item Budget for Head Start

Program Operation

Line Item

Santa Ana Unified School District, 2014/2015, HS Basic, Permanent, 8

c.
1 Staff Out-Of-Town Travel -                          

Other Write-in Line Items -                          
TOTAL TRAVEL (6c) -                          -                          -                          -                          

d.
1 Office Equipment -                          
2 Classroom/Outdoor/Home-based/FCC -                          
3 Vehicle Purchase -                          
4 Other Equipment -                          

Other Write-in Line Items -                          
TOTAL EQUIPMENT (6d) -                          -                          -                          -                          

e.
1 Office Supplies 9,118                  5,000                  14,118                
2 Child and Family Services Supplies 50,800                65,000                115,800              
3 Food Services Supplies 6,000                  6,000                  
4 Other Supplies: Custodial, computer, printer supplies 24,507                24,507                
5 Other Write-in Line Items: 2 storage sheds for outdoor toys 8,000                  8,000                  

TOTAL SUPPLIES (6e) 90,425                -                          78,000                168,425              

f.
1 Administrative Services (e.g., Legal, Accounting) -                          
2 Health/Disabilities Services 91,980                91,980                
3 Food Service -                          
4 Child Transportation Services 12,000                6,000                  18,000                
5 Training & Technical Assistance -                          
6 Family Child Care -                          
7 Delegate Agency Costs -                          
8 Other Contracts 31,225                31,225                

Other Write-in Line Items -                          
TOTAL CONTRACTUAL (6f) 135,205              -                          6,000                  141,205              

g.
1 New Construction -                          
2 Major Renovation -                          
3 Acquisition of Buildings/Modular Units -                          

Other Write-in Line Items -                          
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION (6g) -                          -                          -                          -                          

EQUIPMENT

SUPPLIES

CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTUAL

TRAVEL



EXHIBIT A

Current
Budget

BAR Pending 
Approval

This Request
Adjustments +(-)

Proposed
Adjusted Budget

GABI Line Item Budget for Head Start

Program Operation

Line Item

Santa Ana Unified School District, 2014/2015, HS Basic, Permanent, 8

h.
1 Depreciation/Use Allowance -                          
2 Rent 6,048                  6,048                  
3 Mortgage -                          
4 Utilities, Telephone 14,550                14,550                
5 Building & Child Liability Insurance 1,788                  1,788                  
6 Building Maintenance/Repair and Other Occupancy 6,000                  6,000                  
7 Incidental Alterations/Renovations -                          
8 Local Travel 8,000                  8,000                  
9 Nutrition Services -                          

10 Child Services Consultants -                          
11 Volunteers -                          
12 Substitutes (if not paid benefits) -                          
13 Parent Services 10,430                10,430                
14 Accounting & Legal Services -                          
15 Publications/Advertising/Printing 8,000                  8,000                  
16 Training or Staff Development -                          
17 Other 4,400                  4,400                  

Other Write-in Line Items -                          
TOTAL OTHER (6h) 53,216                -                          6,000                  59,216                

i. TOTAL DIRECT CHARGES 3,368,953           -                          -                          3,368,953           

j. INDIRECT COSTS -                          

k. TOTALS - ALL BUDGET CATEGORIES 3,368,953           -                          -                          3,368,953           

 Non Federal Share 842,239              842,239              

JUSTIFICATION - (Use the provided Microsoft Word Template for the rationale and justification for the requested
advance approval and/or budget adjustment.)

OTHER





AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 
May 26, 2015 

 
Board Meeting 

 
TITLE:  Approval of Agreement with Northwest Evaluation Association for 

2014-15 School Year  
 
ITEM:  Action 
SUBMITTED BY: Michelle Rodriguez, Ed.D., Assistant Superintendent, K-12 Teaching 

and Learning 
PREPARED BY: Michelle Rodriguez, Ed.D., Assistant Superintendent, K-12 Teaching 

and Learning 
    
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board approval of the agreement with Northwest 
Evaluation Association (NWEA) for 2014-15 school year.   
 
 
RATIONALE: 
 
NWEA provides MAP® assessment services to the District, to conduct a linking study 
between MAP scores and state summative assessment scores for the purpose of updating the 
California linking study.  The studies provide a gauge or metric for school teachers and 
administrators to predict their students’ likely performance on the state test.  In order to 
complete these studies, NWEA requires a sample of students who complete both assessments 
during the same testing season, and then NWEA will complete a series of statistical analyses 
that permit NWEA to estimate cut scores on our assessment that correspond to the various 
performance levels on the state test.  
 
LCAP Goal 1.2: Implement progress monitoring (growth) assessments for all academic 
programs. 
 
 
FUNDING:  
 
Not Applicable 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the agreement with Northwest Evaluation Association (NWEA) for 2014-15 school 
year.   
 
 
 
MR:ez 





NWEA – California Research Permission – April 2015 

Data Sharing & Research Permission  
California 

 
To further legitimate educational interest, Santa Ana Unified School District (SAUSD) 
grants permission to Northwest Evaluation Association (NWEA), an Oregon non-profit 
organization that provides MAP® assessment services to District, to conduct a linking 
study between MAP scores and state summative assessment scores for the purpose of 
updating the California linking study.  These state test alignment studies examine the 
correspondence between the performance of students taking NWEA’s Measures of 
Academic Performance Assessments with their performance on the California state tests.  
The studies provide a gauge or metric for school teachers and administrators to predict 
their students’ likely performance on the state test.  In order to complete these studies, 
we require a sample of students who complete both assessments during the same  
testing season, and then NWEA completes a series of statistical analyses that permit 
NWEA to estimate cut scores on our assessment that correspond to the various 
performance levels on the state test.  
 
The District agrees to release its state summative assessment student level scores for 
all available grades and tests (Smarter Balanced Assessment for grades 3-8 &11; 
California Modified Assessment in Science for grades 5, 8, and 10; and CAHSEE) 
for 2014-15 academic year for each of its students, along with student names, their 
associated student ID numbers and birth dates to NWEA. Further, District grants 
permission to NWEA to use personally identifiable student MAP scores from 2014-15 
academic year in the performance of the linking study on behalf of the District.  Pursuant 
to federal and state laws, NWEA as contractor performing work that otherwise would be 
performed by District and that is under the direct control of District for purposes of that 
work, may have access to this educational data. See 34 C.F.R. § 99.31(a). District 
acknowledges that it has the parental consents on file to authorize redisclosure of 
personally identifiable student records to NWEA. 
 
All personally identifiable student data under this permission will be shared and maintained 
by both parties in a secure electronic format consistent with industry standards. Once data 
is received, recipient will be responsible for safekeeping the data and for compliance with 
all federal and state laws.  
 
The following shall also apply to this permission: 
 
• NWEA shall only disclose District’s personally identifiable student data 

disclosed under this permission to NWEA employees required to perform the 
services outlined in this permission.  

• Any NWEA employees having access to District’s personally identifiable 
student data under this permission will be under a confidentiality and non-
disclosure agreement with NWEA.  

• NWEA will not sell or use any District personally identifiable student data for 
marketing or targeted advertising purposes.   

• Personally identifiable student data shared under this permission shall remain 
the property of the District.  
 



NWEA – California Research Permission – April 2015 

 
• In the event of a confirmed security breach of personally identifiable student 

data, NWEA will notify District as soon as practicable in accordance with 
applicable laws.   

 
NWEA has established technological, internal policies and practices and appropriate 
safeguards to help prevent unauthorized access to or misuse of personally identifiable 
student data. To protect confidentiality, NWEA employs policies and procedures around 
segregation of duties and personnel management to ensure personally identifiable student 
data and other sensitive data remains secure. This includes practices around recruiting 
and hiring involving security clearance and background checks. All employees complete 
orientation and training regarding appropriate use of communications and software 
systems and foundational information security policies. NWEA audits these controls 
regarding access, confidentiality and integrity yearly via an SSAE 16 audit, done by an 
outside independent auditing firm.  
 
This permission is governed by applicable state and federal data practices laws, including 
the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 (FERPA), 20 U.S.C.§ 1232g, and 
related regulations at 34 C.F.R. Chapter 99.  
 
This permission is effective from the date of the last signature until NWEA receives written 
notice of termination of this permission from the District or 5 years, whichever earlier.  At that 
time, NWEA shall destroy all personally identifiable student data disclosed under this 
permission.  
 
 
District Name:  Santa Ana Unified School District       

 
 
Signed: _______________________ 
 
Print Name: Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D.   
 
Title: Deputy Superintendent Operations, CBO_ 
 
Date:  _________________________ 



 
AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 

May 26, 2015 
 

Board Meeting 
 

TITLE: Approval of Data Sharing Agreement between Santa Ana Unified 
School District and WestEd Period of May 27, 2015 Through 
December 31, 2017 

 
ITEM: Action 
SUBMITTED BY: David Haglund, Ed.D., Deputy Superintendent, Educational Services 
PREPARED BY: Tran Keys, Ph.D., Executive Director, Research and Evaluation  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board approval of the non-financial Data Sharing 
Agreement between Santa Ana Unified School District and WestEd for the period of May 27, 
2015 through December 31, 2017. 
 
 
RATIONALE: 
 
WestEd’s Middle Grades School Climate Alliance is comprised of WestEd, the California 
Department of Education (CDE), and districts and schools throughout California. The alliance is 
collaborating on a project to develop a concise summary report template providing current status 
data and progress data in the Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) priority areas: student 
achievement, student engagement, school climate, parental involvement, basic services, 
implementation of state standards, course access, and other pupil outcomes.  The LCAP report 
template will be populated with district-level and school-level data so that progress can be 
monitored across each level.  The immediate purpose of this task is for the alliance to develop 
the report template and assess its potential usefulness in targeting and monitoring school 
improvement strategies.  WestEd will also be providing data analysis support related to LCAP 
metrics (i.e., college and career readiness data). 
 
This agreement will further the District’s LCAP goal:  1.2 “Implement progress monitoring 
(growth) assessments for all academic programs.” 
 
 
FUNDING: 
 
Not Applicable (non-financial agreement) 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the Data Sharing Agreement between Santa Ana Unified School District and WestEd 
for the period of May 27, 2015 through December 31, 2017. 
 
 
DH:lr 





 

Data Sharing Agreement  Page 1 of 3 

 

Data Sharing Agreement between 
Santa Ana Unified School District and WestEd 

1. Purpose  
This Data Sharing Agreement (this “DSA”) is between the Santa Ana Unified School District, located in 
Santa Ana CA, (“the District”) and WestEd regarding the Regional Educational Laboratory, West (REL 
West) project to provide support for the analysis of data relevant for the District’s Local Control 
Accountability Plan (hereinafter the “Project”). This DSA sets forth the parameters for the collection of 
education record data in the District. This is a non-financial agreement. 

REL West’s Middle Grades School Climate Alliance is comprised of WestEd, the California Department 
of Education (CDE), and districts and schools throughout California. The alliance is collaborating on a 
project to develop a concise summary report template providing current status data and progress data in 
the Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) priority areas: student achievement, student engagement, 
school climate, parental involvement, basic services, implementation of state standards, course access, 
and other pupil outcomes. The LCAP report template will be populated with district-level and school-
level data so that progress can be monitored across each level. The immediate purpose of this task is for 
the alliance to develop the report template and assess its potential usefulness in targeting and monitoring 
school improvement strategies. 

2. Definitions 
A. "Data" as used in this DSA shall mean student-level assessment data or other data used or 

potentially used as a data element in the District’s Local Control Accountability Plan. 
B. "Personally Identifiable Information” or "PII" as used in this DSA shall mean any information or 

Data that, alone or in combination, is linked or linkable to a specific student that would allow a 
reasonable person in the school community, who does not have personal knowledge of the 
relevant circumstances, to identify the student with reasonable certainty. PII includes but is not 
limited to, any of the following: name, social security number, student identification number, 
home address, and date of birth.  

C. "De-identified Data" as used in this DSA shall mean Data that has been stripped of all Personally 
Identifiable Information. 

3. Terms of the DSA 
A.   This DSA is effective as of the date of execution and expires December 31, 2017. 

B.   Either party to this agreement can request/provide information through the identified contacts as 
given in Sections 5 and 6. 

C.   This DSA may be terminated by either party at anytime, upon written notice to the other party. 

4. Confidentiality 
A. WestEd and its contractors agree to take all necessary precautions to safeguard the Data and 

comply with all applicable Federal, State, or local laws, ordinances, regulations, and directives 
relating to confidentiality. These include, but are not limited to, the Family Educational Rights 
and Privacy Act (FERPA) (20 U.S.C. § 1232g; 34 CFR part 99), the California Information 
Practices Act (California Civil Code § 1798 et. seq.), and the Privacy Act of 1974, as amended, (5 
U.S.C. § 552). 



 

Data Sharing Agreement  Page 2 of 3 

B. Personally Identifiable Information will only be used for the Project identified in this DSA. 
C. WestEd will limit internal access to PII to individuals working on the Project with legitimate 

interests in the PII and on a need to know basis. 
D. WestEd will take steps to maintain the confidentiality of all PII at all stages of the Project. 
E. No individual shall be identifiable in any reports, publications, or other documents created by 

WestEd or its contractors with the use of Data. 
F. WestEd will destroy all PII when it is no longer needed for the Project and no later than 30 days 

after the expiration of this DSA. The parties may amend the DSA to extend the time period if 
needed, however such amendment must be in accordance with Section 8.A of this DSA. 

5. WestEd’s responsibilities: 
WestEd shall: 

A. Provide dedicated contact information for the Project. WestEd’s contact information is: 

Dr. Thomas Hanson 
WestEd 
4665 Lampson Avenue 
Los Alamitos, CA 90720 
Email: thanson@wested.org 

B. Use the Data collected for the Project for research purposes only.  

C. Retain the Data in a place physically secure from access by unauthorized persons. Any computer 
on which the data reside will be password protected at all times. 

D. Provide a secure, encrypted transmission method for transferring the Data. 

6. District responsibilities: 
The District shall: 

A. Designate a contact person to facilitate communications between the District and WestEd for 
coordinating the Data transfer activities necessary to carry out this DSA. The District contact 
person is: 

Name:  _______________________________________________ 

Title:  _______________________________________________ 

Telephone:  _______________________________________________ 

Email: _______________________________________________ 

B. Collaborate with WestEd, as needed, to facilitate the coordination of the Data transfer and 
analysis.  

7. Timeline 
The project will be conducted in 2015. The timeline will be open to revision as needed based on Data 
availability and additional refinements in Data collection protocols.  

8. General Provisions 
A. Amendments.  This DSA may be amended at any time by mutual agreement of the parties 

without additional consideration, provided that before any amendment shall take effect, it shall be 
in writing and signed by both parties. 

mailto:thanson@wested.org


 

Data Sharing Agreement  Page 3 of 3 

B. Assignment.  Neither party shall voluntarily or by operation of law, assign or otherwise transfer 
its rights or obligations under this DSA without the other party’s prior written consent.  Any 
purported assignment in violation of this paragraph shall be void. 

C. Severability: The provisions of this DSA are severable and the unenforceability of any provision 
of this DSA shall not affect the enforceability of any other provisions hereof. 

D. Dispute Resolution. The parties will attempt to settle any dispute, internally through good faith 
negotiations. The parties may agree to submit a dispute to non-binding mediation. 

E. Execution: Each of the persons signing this DSA represents that he or she has the authority to 
sign on behalf of and bind their respective party. 

F. Entire Agreement.  This DSA is the entire agreement between the parties.  No other agreements, 
oral or written, have been entered into with respect to the subject matter of this DSA. 

 

In witness hereof, the parties hereby execute this Data Sharing Agreement. 

Santa Ana Unified School District 
 
X______________________________________________  _____________________ 

Authorized Signatory for Santa Ana Unified School District  Date 

       

Print Name:  ____________________________________ 

Title:  ____________________________________ 

Email: ____________________________________ 

 

WestEd 
 

X______________________________________________  _____________________ 

Authorized Signatory for WestEd      Date 

Michael J. Neuenfeldt       

Director of Finance & Contracts        

 

 





 

AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET  

May 26, 2015 

 

Board Meeting  

 
TITLE: Ratification of Personnel Agreement with Orange County 

Department of Education - Safe Schools Program for Intervention 

and Support Services at Community Day School from April 27, 2015 

through June 30, 2015 
 

ITEM: Action 

SUBMITTED BY: Doreen Lohnes, Assistant Superintendent, Support Services 

PREPARED BY: Heidi Cisneros, Executive Director, Pupil Support Services 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board ratification of a personnel agreement with the 

Orange County Department of Education (OCDE) - Safe Schools Program for intervention and 

support services from April 27, 2015 through June 30, 2015.  To further support students in 

mitigating recent stressors, this agreement provides a short-term plan of support.  

 

 

RATIONALE: 

 

The Orange County Department of Education Safe Schools Program provides services in 

collaboration with Community Day school administration, staff, and students to foster a safe and 

productive learning environment.  Services include restorative circles, one-to-one 

paraprofessional counseling, mentoring, youth development, and mediation services.  

Consultation and collaboration with administration and staff are also provided.  This 

collaboration and additional support for the students is intended to ameliorate the issues that may 

escalate egregious or potentially violent incidents at or near the school site.     

 

A long term plan of support for Community Day School students will be submitted for Board 

approval at a forthcoming meeting. 

 

The restorative practices and mentoring that are provided address the goals delineated in LCAP 

Goal 3.5. 

 

 

FUNDING:  

 

LCAP Discretionary: $9,600     

 

 

 

 



 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Approve the personnel agreement with the Orange County Department of Education - Safe 

Schools Program for intervention and support services from April 27, 2015 through June 30, 

2015.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DL:hc 



Personnel Agreement 
 

Orange County Department of Education- Safe Schools Program 

and Santa Ana Unified School District (SAUSD) 
 

 
 

 

This Personnel Agreement is entered into between Orange County Department of 

Education- Safe Schools Program (“Provider”) and the Santa Ana Unified School District 

(“District”) to memorialize the terms under which Provider will deliver services to Community 

Day School. 

 

1. Term.  This Personnel Agreement is effective for the period beginning April 27- June 30, 

2015.  

2. The services to be rendered by Provider (“Services”) are described in the Scope of Work 

attached to this Personnel Agreement and incorporated by this reference as though fully 

set forth.  Provider will render the Services to students who are enrolled in District 

schools or programs (“Students”), who have requested and been given permission to 

receive the Services, on dates and at times to be mutually agreed upon by Provider and 

District. 

3. Qualifications. Provider represents that the individuals and teams, as applicable, 

providing the Services are qualified to do so.  

a. All personnel assigned by Provider to deliver Services hereunder shall be 

appropriately licensed, credentialed, certified, or otherwise experienced or trained 

to provide such Services to public school students in the state of California.  

b. Provider will furnish to the District the names of the individuals and, upon 

request, copies of their certifications or licenses if applicable.   

c. Provider further represents that all employees or contractors providing Services 

under this Personnel Agreement have signed statements indicating their 

understanding of and compliance with child abuse and neglect reporting 

requirements and patient confidentiality under applicable law.  These 

requirements will be provided to Provider in writing by District upon request. 

d. Provider shall ensure that all employees or contractors who will have contact with 

Students have been cleared through a background check process with Orange 

County Department of Education or submitted to a volunteer clearance through 

Santa Ana School Police and follow volunteer protocols and procedures per 

SAUSD. 



 

 

e. Provider further represents it has developed and implemented a quality control 

system to ensure the Services meet or exceed the standard of care in the 

community.   

4. Applications and Permissions. Provider will furnish the District and/or school 

administration, as appropriate, with a sufficient number of applications, consent forms, or 

similar paperwork for Students and Students’ parents or guardians to complete as 

necessary to authorize the provision of Services.   

5. District’s Obligations. The District will facilitate delivery of the Services by: 

a. Making announcements, as appropriate, to Students and their parents and 

guardians sufficiently in advance of the service delivery date to allow for 

reasonable arrangements so the maximum number of Students can receive the 

services. 

b. Collecting completed applications, consent forms, or similar paperwork from 

Students in advance of the date(s) on which the Services are to be delivered, and 

delivering the completed paperwork to Provider as far in advance of the service 

delivery date(s) as reasonably possible.  District or school personnel will deliver 

paperwork to Provider in a manner that protects the confidentiality of this 

information.  

c. Allotting usable space in the District school or facility on the service delivery 

date(s) that is sufficient for Provider to furnish the Services in an appropriately 

private and secure setting. 

d. Cooperating with Provider’s management and staff to accomplish the objectives 

of this Personnel Agreement.   

6. Discretion.  The District reserves the right to refuse entry to its schools or facilities by 

any agent of the Provider who, in the sole discretion of the District, poses any risk to 

Students, staff, or property of the District. 

7. Payment.  Provider will not charge students or families for services rendered under the 

obligations of this Personnel Agreement.  Santa Ana Unified School District agrees to 

pay Orange County Department of Education-Safe Schools Program $9600.00 for the 

services outlined in the Scope of Work Proposal.  

8. Insurance. Provider will secure and maintain a Commercial General Liability Policy 

(including coverage for contractual liability) with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per 

occurrence or claim. Provider will secure and maintain Malpractice Errors and Omissions 

Policy with limits of $1,000,000 per claim and $3,000,000 aggregate. Provider will 

secure and maintain Business Automobile Liability Insurance for automobiles owned, 

leased or hired by Provider with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per 

occurrence.  Provider will deliver a copy of such insurance policies to District upon 

request.  Provider will further provide all required worker’s compensation insurance for 

its employees, if any.  All of the insurance policies described in this paragraph will be 



 

 

maintained at Provider’s expense.  The District shall be listed as an additional named 

insured on all of the policies described in this paragraph. 

9. Indemnification. Provider will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its 

agents, contractors, employees, and governing board members, from and against all 

claims, damages, losses, and expenses (including, but not limited to attorney’s fees, costs, 

and fees of other professional consultants) arising out of the negligent acts or omissions 

of the Provider or its respective agents, contractors, or employees during or related in any 

way to the offer or delivery of Services under this Personnel Agreement except to the 

extent arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the District. 

10. Compliance with Law and District Policy.  The parties will adhere to all applicable 

laws, regulations, and District policies in the performance of their respective 

responsibilities under this Personnel Agreement.  

11. Responsibilities. This Personnel Agreement describes the mutual agreements and 

obligations of the District and the Provider for the sole purpose of rendering the Services 

to District Students. It does not place any additional responsibilities on either party or 

imply any transfer of responsibility from one to the other or sharing of statutory 

responsibilities.   

12. No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Personnel Agreement, express or implied, 

is intended or shall be construed to confer on any person or entity other than the parties 

hereto any remedy or claim under or by reason of this Personnel Agreement or any term, 

covenant, or condition hereof, as a third party beneficiary or otherwise. 

13. Independent Relationship. The parties acknowledge and agree that the relationship 

created between the District and Provider is strictly that of an independent contractor 

with respect to the Services described.  Nothing contained in this Personnel Agreement 

shall be construed as creating any other type of relationship between the parties such as 

that of a principal-agent, master-servant, or employer-employee between Provider and the 

District.  No party to this Personnel Agreement nor any of its agents shall have any claim 

hereunder or otherwise against the other party for payment of employment taxes, 

workers’ compensation, vacation, sick leave, retirement benefits, social security benefits, 

disability benefits, unemployment insurance, or employee compensation or benefits of 

any kind. 

14. Nondiscrimination. Neither the District nor the Provider shall discriminate on the basis 

of race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, age or disability in employment 

or in the delivery of Services hereunder. 

15. Non-Assignment. Neither party shall assign, transfer or subcontract the rights, duties or 

obligations called for under this Personnel Agreement without the written consent of the 

other party. 

 

 



 

 

    See attached Scope of Work, for description of services and cost  

 

 

 

PROVIDER: 

Orange County Department of Education 

Safe Schools Program 

 

 

 

By:________________________________ 

 

 

 

Dated:_____________________________ 

DISTRICT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 

 

 

By:_________________________________ 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., CBO 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations 

 

Dated:____________________ 

  

 



Scope of Work 
Proposal: Santa Ana Community Intervention Worker 

Orange County Department of Education/Safe Schools & Support Services 

Santa Ana Unified School District (SAUSD) 2015-2016 
 

1 

 

Position Dates Description School Served Cost Breakdown 

3 Community Intervention Workers  

2 Male &  1 Female (CIW) 
 

 

April 27- June 30, 2015 

 

 Provide restorative circles 

 Provide one-to-one paraprofessional 

counseling 

 Provide on-to-one paraprofessional mentoring 

 Provide youth development 

 Provide mediation services  

 Provide intervention and support services 

Community Day 

School 

 

 

 

Position: $29/hr @10 hrs 

at week $2,900/CIW 

(including benefits) 

Subtotal for  Community Intervention Worker                                                                                                                                                                    $8,709 

Indirect 9.28%                                                                                                                                                                                                                      $   891 

TOTAL COST                                                                                                                                                                             $9,600 

 





AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 
May 26, 2015 

 
Board Meeting 

 
TITLE:  Approval of Partnership Proposal with Discovery Education Science 

Techbook for 2015-21 School Years  
 
ITEM:  Action 
SUBMITTED BY: Michelle Rodriguez, Ed.D., Assistant Superintendent, K-12 Teaching 

and Learning 
PREPARED BY: Michelle Rodriguez, Ed.D., Assistant Superintendent, K-12 Teaching 

and Learning 
    
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board approval of Partnership Proposal with 
Discovery Education Science Techbook for 2015-21 school years. 
 
 
RATIONALE: 
 
Discovery Education Social Science, Science, and Math Techbooks are digital programs that 
boost the rigor and relevance of the K-12 Science program, fuels digital transformation, and 
supports implementation of the Common Core State Standards.  Techbook is a non-linear 
curriculum pathway that promotes inquiry-based learning, enhances critical thinking, and 
improves student achievement.  The program will be used with the upcoming dependent charter 
and provide students online opportunities. 
 
Discovery Education Science Techbook will provide professional development that is designed 
to transform teaching in ways that systematically impact learning experiences, which prepare 
students to success in college and career.   
 
LCAP Goal 1.1:  Provide equitable student access to rigorous, standard-based, instructional 
program that include, but not limited to high-quality instruction, instructional materials, 
academic supports, and technology-based resources. 
 
 
FUNDING:  
 
Common Core Block Grant:  $31,800 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the partnership proposal with Discovery Education Science Techbook for 2015-21 
school years. 
 
 
MR:ez 





 

Revised 3-01-10 1 

Consultant Agreement 

 
This AGREEMENT is hereby entered into between the Santa Ana Unified School 

District, hereinafter referred to as “DISTRICT” and Discovery Education hereinafter referred 

to as “CONSULTANT.”              

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government 

Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in 

financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are 

specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required; 

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to 

perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a 

limited basis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Services to be provided by CONSULTANT: Discovery Education Science 

Techbook, professional development to include the following per the 

Partnership Proposal dated April 29, 2015; 

 Participants will be immersed in the 5E’s of Inquiry model of science 

instruction to promote deeper levels of science understanding 

 Educators will be introduced to features of the Techbook and effective 

instructional strategies for using digital content in science so that they 

may immediately start planning and implementing the content into their 

classrooms. 

 Centers-Based Teaching & Learning in a Techbook Classroom 

 Maximizing Student Engagement in a Blended Learning Environment 

 Read, Write and Think Like a Scientist (2 day course) 

 Flipping the Classroom with Techbook 

 Digital Storytelling in the Blended Classroom 

 2. Term.  CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this 

AGREEMENT on 7/1/2015 and will diligently perform as required and complete performance 

by 6/30/2016. 

3. Compensation.  DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT for services 

satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT at total fee not to exceed 



 

Revised 3-01-10 2 

$10,000 and per attached Partnership Proposal. 

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT 30 days after receipts of consultant invoice and with 

approval of a District representative. 

4. Expenses.  DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any costs or 

expenses paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT except as 

follows:  N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

5. Independent Contractor.  CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

shall be and act as an independent contractor.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she 

and all his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, 

and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the 

DISTRICT and/or to which DISTRICT’s employees are normally entitled, including, but not 

limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or Worker’s Compensation.  CONSULTANT 

assumes the full responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they 

relate to the services to be provided under this AGREEMENT.  CONSULTANT shall assume full 

responsibility for payment of all Federal, State and local taxes or contributions, including 

unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT’s 

employees. 

6. Materials.  CONSULTANT shall furnish, at his/her own expense, all labor, 

materials, equipment, supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT except as follows:  N/A                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

CONSULTANT’s services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations 

prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her 

profession. 

7. Originality of Services.  CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, 

formulae, procedures, processes, methods, writings, and ideas, dialogue, compositions, 

recordings, teleplays and video productions prepared for, written for, submitted to the 

DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall be wholly original to 

CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that 

submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as basis for such services. 

 8. Copyright/Trademark/Patent.  CONSULTANT understands and agrees  

that all matters produced under this AGREEMENT shall become the property of DISTRICT and 

cannot be used without DISTRICT’s express written permission.  DISTRICT shall have all right, 

title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, 



 

Revised 3-01-10 3 

trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the DISTRICT.  CONSULTANT consents 

to use of CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution 

of the matters, for any purpose and in any medium. 

9. Termination.  DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate 

this AGREEMENT and compensate CONSULTANT only for services satisfactorily rendered to 

the date of termination.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be sufficient to stop further 

performance of services by CONSULTANT.  Notice shall be deemed given when received by 

the CONSULTANT or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon written notice of intention to terminate for 

cause.  Cause shall include: (a) material violation of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT; 

or (b) any act by CONSULTANT exposing the DISTRICT to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or (c) CONSULTANT is adjudged bankrupt, CONSULTANT makes 

a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed due to 

CONSULTANT’s insolvency.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall contain the reasons for such 

intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the condition or 

violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

AGREEMENT shall, upon the expiration of ten (10) days cease and terminate.  In the event of 

such termination, the DISTRICT may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 

the cost to the DISTRICT exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this 

AGREEMENT, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the CONSULTANT.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any other rights or remedies 

available to the DISTRICT.  Written notice by DISTRICT shall be deemed given when received 

by the other party, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

 10. Hold Harmless:  CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold 

harmless and defend the DISTRICT and its governing board, officers, employees and agents 

from every claim or demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense, of any nature 

whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of: 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person.  (2) 

Injury to, loss or theft of property; or (3) any other loss, damage or expense 

arising out of (1) or (2) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, upon or in connection with the services called for 

in this AGREEMENT, however caused, except for liability for damages 



 

Revised 3-01-10 4 

referred to above which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct 

of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents.   

(b) Any injury to or death of any persons, including the DISTRICT or its  

officers, employees and agents, or damage to or loss of any property caused 

by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any 

person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly 

or by independent contract, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 

services covered by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage 

occurs either on or off DISTRICT’s property, except for liability for damages 

which result from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the DISTRICT 

or its officers, employees or agents. 

(c) Any liability for damages which may arise from the furnishing or use  

of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted matter or patented or unpatented 

invention under this AGREEMENT.  

11. Insurance.  Pursuant to Section 10, CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive 

general and automobile liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 

occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually 

acceptable to both parties to protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims 

of liability, which may arise out of the AGREEMENT.  In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to 

provide an endorsement to this policy stating, “Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall 

be primary, and any insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory.”  No 

later than the actual start date, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of 

insurance evidencing all coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) 

day written notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage.  CONSULTANT agrees to name 

DISTRICT and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds under said policy.  

(Please check with DISTRICT’s Risk Manager regarding any and all insurance 

provisions.) 

12. Assignment.  The obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this  

AGREEMENT shall not be assigned by the CONSULTANT. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  The services completed herein must meet the 

approval of the DISTRICT and shall be subject to the DISTRICT’s general right of inspection to 

secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, 

state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become 



 

Revised 3-01-10 5 

applicable to CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s business, and personnel engaged in operations 

covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

14. Permits/Licenses.  CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT’s employees or 

agents shall secure and maintain in force such permits ad licenses as are required by law in 

connection with the furnishing of services pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 15. Employment with Public Agency.  CONSULTANT, if an employee of another 

public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT will not receive salary or remuneration, other than 

vacation pay, as an employee of another public agency for the actual time in which services are 

actually being performed pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 16. Entire Agreement/Amendment.  This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached 

hereto constitute the entire agreement among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous understanding or agreement with respect to the services contemplated, and 

may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT. 

 17. Affirmative Action Employment/Nondiscrimination.  CONSULTANT agrees that it 

will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment of persons because of race, color, 

religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, or 

sex of such persons. 

 18. Non-waiver.  The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for 

violation of, or to insist upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this 

AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent 

a subsequent similar act from again constituting a violation of such term or condition. 

 19. Notice.  All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party 

to the other, shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) U.S. Mail, mailed 

either by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid.  Service 

shall be considered given when received, if personally served or if mailed, on the third day after 

deposit in any U.S. Post Office.  The address to which notices or demands may be given by 

either party may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of 

this section.  At the date of this AGREEMENT, the Addresses of the parties are as follows: 

 

 

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

Santa Ana Unified School District Discovery Education 

1601 E. Chestnut Ave One Discovery Place 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 Silver Spring, MD 20910 



 

Revised 3-01-10 6 

 

 20. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions 

will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 



 

Revised 3-01-10 7 

 

 21. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and 

conditions of this AGREEMENT with venue in Orange County, California. 

 

 This AGREEMENT is entered into this 1st Day of July 2015. 

  

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT: 

 

By:   By:  

Signature  Signature 

 

Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed. D.   

Printed Name  Printed Name 

 

Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO   

Title  Title 

 

   

Board Approval Date  Social Security or Taxpayer Identification 

 

FEE SCHEDULE: 

 

The District shall pay the Consultant for actual services rendered.  Services shall be billed on an 

hourly basis as shown below: 

 

  

      $        

      $        

      $        

 



Proprietary and Confidential  1 
   

 

PARTNERSHIP PROPOSAL 
SANTA ANA UNIFIED  

SCHOOL DISTRICT 
APRIL 29, 2015 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  



Proprietary and Confidential  2 
   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Discovery Education’s mission is to transform teaching and learning through innovative 
partnerships with districts, states, and like-minded organizations worldwide.  To achieve this 
goal, Discovery Education provides comprehensive solutions that employ digital technology, 
engaging content, professional development, and effective assessment that have proven 
success in positively impacting student achievement.  
 
Discovery Education provides the background, experience, and qualifications necessary to 
implement a successful and effective solution in partnership with Santa Ana Unified School 
District.  We look forward to working with you to build a transformative partnership and shared 
commitment to meeting your specific district goals.  
 
The following pages provide a more detailed description of our proposed solution including 
specific information on our services and implementation. 

 

 
SOLUTIONS AT A GLANCE 

 
 

Discovery Education offers leading, high-quality digital services, coupled with professional 
development and assessment, to support educators’ efforts to engage students and accelerate 
student achievement. 
 
Discovery Education Science Techbook™ is a powerful, simple-to-use digital program that 
boosts the rigor and relevance of your (K-12 Science) program, fuels digital transformation, and 
supports implementation of the Common Core State Standards.  Built around the 5E model of 
instruction, Techbook™ is a non-linear curriculum pathway that promotes inquiry-based 
learning, enhances critical thinking, and improves student achievement.  With cloud-based 
planning tools and real-time assessments that measure student progress, Science Techbook™ 
individualizes instruction and ensures that students are not just learning critical science 
content, but also practicing the skills that will support them with college and career readiness. 

Professional Development:  Focused on high-yield instructional strategies that result in 
sustainable improvements in student engagement and achievement, Discovery Education 
Professional Development is designed to transform teaching in ways that systematically impact 
learning.  Our professional development team is committed to the highest standards of 
professional learning grounded in research and successful practice.  With topics including 
student collaboration and flipped classrooms, lesson planning around the Common Core, and 



Proprietary and Confidential  3 
   

digital media integration in environments that are 1:1 or 20:1, Discovery Education Professional 
Development partners with districts to identify their goals and develop a customized learning 
plan.  

Community Engagement:  Discovery Education believes in the power of a professional 
learning network to support teacher growth and encourage sharing of best practices.  As part of 
our partnership, we offer Discovery Educator Network (DEN) support*.  The DEN is a global 
community of education professionals who are passionate about transforming the learning 
experience with digital media.  The DEN connects members across town and around the world 
through social media, virtual conferences and in-person events - fostering valuable networking, 
idea sharing and inspiration.  Through the DEN, educators are able to connect and share best 
practices that enable them to be more effective in the classroom.  These connections give 
educators opportunities to develop their leadership capabilities and help their districts build 
capacity.   
 
Discovery Education works with districts across the country to create custom solutions that 
transform teaching and learning and accelerate student achievement.  Below is an overview 
the solutions, features, and benefits that Discovery Education delivers in partnership with 
districts throughout the United States and Canada. 
   



Proprietary and Confidential  4 
   

DIGITAL CONTENT 
 
 
 
 

Discovery Education Science Techbook™ is a powerful, simple-to-use digital program that 
boosts the rigor and relevance of your (K-12 Science) program, fuels digital transformation, and 
supports implementation of the Common Core State Standards. Built around the 5E model of 
instruction, TechbookTM is a non-linear curriculum pathway that promotes inquiry-based 
learning, enhances critical thinking, and improves student achievement.  
 
With cloud-based planning tools and real-time assessments that measure student progress, 
Science Techbook™ individualizes instruction and ensures that students are not just learning 
critical science content, but also practicing the skills that will support them with college and 
career readiness. 
 
 Supports all learning modalities through the integration of text, audio, video, images, 

and digital investigations in an easy-to-navigate format 

 Custom-built and aligned to state standards   

 Encourages exploration, inquiry, data collection, and analysis via virtual labs, hands-on 
labs and STEM resources 

 Unrivaled content from Discovery and other noted publishers is constantly updated at 
no additional cost 

 Saves teachers time and supports the transition to a digital classroom with detailed 
model lessons, activity guides, and custom professional development 

 Provides instant, personalized access to planning and teaching resources anywhere, 
any time, on virtually any internet-connected device 

 Facilitates content creation, sharing and collaboration with integrated Board Builder 
software 

 Substantially less expensive than traditional textbooks 

 

Available for the following courses: 

 K-5 Science 

 6-8 Science 

 High School Biology, Chemistry, Physics and Earth & Space Science  

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
 
 



Proprietary and Confidential  5 
   

Discovery Education is pleased to partner with Santa Ana Unified School District to support its 
mission of assuring “well rounded learning experiences, which prepare students for success in 
college and career.” 
 
Focused on high-yield instructional strategies that result in sustainable improvements in 
student engagement and achievement, Discovery Education Professional Development is 
designed to transform teaching in ways that systematically impact learning.  Our professional 
development team is committed to the highest standards of professional learning grounded in 
research and successful practice. 
 
Discovery Education Professional Development provides a comprehensive training and support 
model that has proven to significantly improve practice and lead to dramatic gains in student 
achievement.  From administrators, to instructional coaches, to teachers, and students, 
Discovery Education Professional Development helps participants integrate digital content and 
technology into classrooms, curricula, and administrative practices.  
 
Discovery Education is committed to creating learning environments where administrators, 
teachers, and support staff implement digital content in relevant and meaningful ways.  We 
welcome the opportunity to partner with Santa Ana Unified School district to create dynamic, 
flexible and blended learning environments that put students and teachers at the forefront of 
change.  
 
The suggested course sequence below will allow educators to learn, reflect, apply, and reinforce 
their knowledge to initiate and sustain changes in practice.   
 

Getting Started with Science Techbook 
Participants will be immersed in the 5E’s of Inquiry model of science instruction to promote 
deeper levels of science understanding.  Educators will be introduced to features of the 
Techbook and effective instructional strategies for using digital content in science so that they 
may immediately start planning and implementing the content into their classrooms. 

 

Centers-Based Teaching & Learning in a Techbook Classroom 
Using a center-based approach, participants will experience the 5Es of a model lesson first 
hand, by moving through a variety of stations designed to build student content knowledge. 
Directions, management, resources and planning techniques for centers are shared.  
Educators will create their own centers using materials, planning templates and guidance 
from a Discovery Education Professional Development Specialist. 

Maximizing Student Engagement in a Blended Learning Environment  
Uncover the power and potential of the Techbook Student Center for blended learning 
environments! Participants will learn how to promote and differentiate student learning 



Proprietary and Confidential  6 
   

through the use of Discovery Education tools such as Writing Prompt, Assignment Builder and 
Assessment Manager.  
 
Read, Write and Think Like a Scientist (2 day course) 
Participants will learn how the reciprocal relationship between inquiry and literacy is fostered 
with rich text, digital media, interactive writing and high-yield reading strategies leading to 
critical analysis skills applicable to written text, science labs, media and more.  They will learn 
how to model scientific investigation with a variety of materials including reading passages, 
contemporary news articles, charts/graphs, hands on activities, science labs, and digital media.  

 
Flipping the Classroom with Techbook 
The flipped classroom is a model of instruction where teachers create learning materials for 
students to view at home and use class time to do more engaging and hands-on learning.  This 
process of instruction increases student engagement, fosters rich, content-based discussions 
and allows teachers to spend more time guiding student inquiry. A Discovery Education 
Specialist will lead participants through the process of designing a flipped classroom.  
 
Digital Storytelling in the Blended Classroom 
Explore innovative ways for students to demonstrate understanding of new concepts! 
Participants will learn to combine text, images, audio, and video to tell stories to make ideas 
stick. Teachers will use their devices to create simple to sophisticated digital stories as they 
explore the art of digital storytelling and the ways it can be used. Using several examples as a 
springboard, a Discovery Education Specialist will demonstrate each step of the process from 
storyboarding, to resource selection, to the use of available technology that pulls all aspects 
together into a coherent, impactful product. 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 
 

 
 
 

The Discovery Education Network (DEN) is a global professional learning network 
committed to connecting educators, students, and parents to their most valuable 
resource...each other.  Through the DEN, educators are able to connect and share best 
practices that enable them to be more effective in the classroom.  These connections give 
educators opportunities to develop their leadership capabilities and help their districts build 
capacity.  By participating in the global DEN community, educators will:   

 Build a network of professional colleagues  
 Increase their effectiveness and through a variety of professional  grow th 

opportunities  
 Increase and improve their use of digital media in the classroom  



Proprietary and Confidential  7 
   

In addition to connecting educators to the global community, the DEN will provide resources to 
build and maintain a DEN STAR professional learning community.  Through our partnerships, 
the DEN will communicate and celebrate success though exclusive screenings, partnership 
updates, community outreach activities and events. 

 

DEN STAR Program 
All of Santa Ana Unified educators are eligible to apply to be a DEN STAR. This program is 
designed to connect educators to one another and share best practices.  As part of the DEN 
STAR program, all new members have access to a three-month Rising STAR mentor program 
developed to introduce them to the  
DEN community. 
 

Anchor Activities 
In an effort to connect Santa Ana Unified educators with the global DEN, community, unique 
events are regularly planned such as:    

 Spring and Fall Virtual Conferences 
 Webinars and Live Streams 
 Exclusive contents and promotions including DEN Teacher Appreciation Week 
 DEN Summer Institute 

 
* Membership in the Discovery Educator Network is available to districts that license one or more Discovery 
Education digital services 
 

PARTNER INVESTMENT 
 

 
 

Techbook Licenses Three-year license Six-year license 

Charter School:  
48 students in each grade 
4th Grade Science Techbook 
5th Grade Science Techbook 
6th Grade Science Techbook 
6th Grade Social Studies Techbook 
6th Grade Math Techbook 
 
Total Investment for Charter School 
Techbook licenses 
 

 
 
$1,296 
$1,296 
$1,296 
$1,296 
$1,296 
 
$6,475 

 
 
$2,160 
$2,160 
$2,160 
$2,160 
$2,160 
 
$10,800 
 

Virtual High School: 
Biology Science Techbook 
200 students 

 
$6,680 
 

 
$11,000 
 



Proprietary and Confidential  8 
   

 
*Professional Development  

Four days – courses listed above $10,000 

 
*Specific courses for Professional Development to be determined by Santa Ana Unified School District and Discovery Education 

upon execution of the contract.  Each day is six hours and accommodates a maximum of 25 educators.  
 
 
 

 
TONI ROBINSON 
Director of Professional Development 
240-475-6248 
Toni_Robinson@Discovery.com 
 
DANA DODGE 
Education Partnerships Manager 
310-717-5934 
Dana_Dodge@Discovery.com 

 
 
 

 
TERMS 

 
1. Upon award of this proposal, Discovery Education will provide a Subscriber Agreement to Santa Ana Unified School District 

that must be signed before Discovery Education services will be provided.  
 

2. This offer is valid until July 30th, 2015.  The terms and conditions set forth herein shall not be binding on either party until such 
time as the parties enter into and execute a Subscriber Agreement. 
 

3. Any rates, fees, or prices offered or proposed in connection with a multiple-year agreement are subject to the execution of a 
multiple-year agreement between the Santa Ana Unified School District and Discovery Education, such agreement not to 
include any right or option to terminate due to lack of funding or budget.  
 

4. This proposal is for discussion purposes only.  The terms contained herein are non-binding and nothing herein is intended to 
constitute an agreement between the parties.  The terms herein are confidential and may not be disclosed without written 
consent of Discovery Education. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

TH
A

N
K

 Y
O

U
 





AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 

May 26, 2015 

 

Board Meeting 
 

TITLE: Approve Material Revision of INDA Charter School Charter Petition 

and Adopt Resolution No. 14/15-3061 

 

ITEM:  Action 

SUBMITTED BY: Stefanie P. Phillips, Ed.D., Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO 

PREPARED BY: Mavis Mitchell, Charter Schools Financial Coordinator 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 

Pursuant to Education Code Section 47605, the Board of Education is required to approve or 

deny a charter petition that is submitted to it proposing to establish a charter school within the 

geographic boundaries of the Santa Ana Unified School District.  The purpose of this agenda 

item is for the Board to take action on the material revision of the current INDA Charter School 

charter petition and if the Board approves the material revision of the Charter Petition, to adopt 

Resolution No. 14/15-3061 implementing that action.   

 

 

RATIONALE: 

 

Material revision of the current operating charter of the INDA Charter School was made 

necessary by changes to the name of the charter school, the initial opening date, the initial 

location, and the governance structure.  Other changes include, but are not limited to, the editing 

and updating of language to clarify the concept, practices, and educational program specific to 

the operation of the district sponsored “dependent” charter school and to ensure legislative 

compliance.    

 

The Santa Ana Unified School District has fully considered and evaluated the material revision 

of the INDA Charter School Charter Petition.  The review and resulting analysis of the material 

revision of the INDA Charter School Charter Petition indicates that approval of the material 

revision of the Charter would be consistent with sound educational practice. 

 

 

FUNDING: 

 

Not Applicable 

 

 

 

 

 

 



RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Adopt Resolution No. 14/15-3061 – Approving the material revision of the INDA Charter 

School Charter Petition. 

 

 
SP:mm 



RESOLUTION NO. 14/15-3061 1 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 2 

SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 3 

ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 4 

 5 

Approving Material Revisions to Charter for 6 

INDA Charter School 7 

 8 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Charter Schools Act of 1992 (Ed. Code § 47600 et 9 

seq.) the Governing Board of the Santa Ana Unified School District (“SAUSD” and/or 10 

“District”) is required to review and authorize creation and/or renewal of charter 11 

schools and provide oversight to charter schools which it authorizes; and 12 

 13 

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of SAUSD has approved the Charter (“Charter”) 14 

for INDA Charter School(“INDA”) with the current term running through and including 15 

June 30, 2020; and 16 

 17 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Charter Schools Act of 1992, material revisions to a 18 

charter school’s charter are governed by the standards and criteria applicable to 19 

initial requests for a charter, including approval by the oversight agency, and at 20 

the time of any material revision to a charter, the revised charter must include a 21 

reasonably comprehensive description of any requirement applicable to charter 22 

schools that was enacted into law after that charter was previously 23 

granted/renewed; and 24 

 25 

WHEREAS, on or about May 18, 2015, INDA delivered to SAUSD a request for 26 

material revisions to the INDA Charter with INDA’s primary purpose in requesting 27 

the revisions being changes to the name of the charter school, the initial opening 28 

date, the initial location, and the governance structure.  Other changes include, 29 

but are not limited to, the editing and updating of language to clarify the 30 

concept, practices, and educational program specific to the operation of the 31 

district sponsored “dependent” charter school and to ensure legislative compliance; 32 

and 33 

 34 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Charter Schools Act of 1992, the revised 35 

Charter was brought to the District Governing Board meeting of May 26, 2015, at 36 

which time it was received by the District Governing Board, thereby commencing the 37 

timelines for District Governing Board action thereon; and 38 



-2- 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the provisions of the Charter was conducted on 39 

May 26, 2015, pursuant to Education Code Section 47605, at which time the District 40 

Board considered the level of support for the material revisions to the Charter by 41 

teachers employed by the District, other employees of the District, and parents;  42 

 43 

WHEREAS, District staff have reviewed and analyzed the information received 44 

with respect to the Charter, including the specific material revisions requested 45 

and information related to the operation and potential effects of INDA; and 46 

 47 

WHEREAS, INDA has included a reasonably comprehensive description of the new 48 

legal requirements that have been enacted into law, including a Local Control and 49 

Accountability Plan for INDA; and 50 

 51 

WHEREAS, based upon its review of the revised Charter, District staff has 52 

made a recommendation to the District Governing Board that the materially revised 53 

INDA Charter be approved; 54 

 55 

WHEREAS, the Governing Board has fully considered the revised Charter and the 56 

recommendation provided by District staff. 57 

 58 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED AS FOLLOWS: 59 

 60 

I. That the Governing Board of SAUSD finds the above listed recitals to be true 61 

 and correct and incorporates them herein by this reference. 62 

 63 

II. That the Governing Board of the Santa Ana Unified School District hereby 64 

 approves the request for material revisions.  The INDA Charter that the 65 

 Governing Board is hereby approving is attached hereto as Exhibit “A.”  66 

 67 

 68 

 69 

 70 

 71 

 72 

 73 

 74 

 75 

 76 



-3- 

 The foregoing resolution was considered, passed, and adopted by this Board at 77 

its regular meeting of May 26, 2015.   78 

 79 

 80 

      By:      ________ 81 

       John Palacio, President 82 

       President of the Board of Education 83 

       Santa Ana Unified School District 84 

 85 

 86 

Attest: 87 

 88 

     ____ 89 

Valerie Amezcua 90 

Clerk of the Board of Education 91 

Santa Ana Unified School District 92 

 93 

 94 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 95 

    ) ss 96 

ORANGE COUNTY  ) 97 

 98 

 99 

I, Valerie Amezcua, Clerk of the Board of Education of the Santa Ana Unified 100 

School District of Orange County, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 101 

correct copy of Resolution No. 14/15-3061, which was duly adopted by said Board at 102 

a regular meeting thereof held on the 26th day of May, 2015, and that it was so 103 

adopted by the following vote: 104 

 105 

AYES: 106 

NOES: 107 

ABSENT: 108 

ABSTENTIONS: 109 

 110 

       By       _____ 111 

        Valerie Amezcua 112 

        Clerk of the Board of Education 113 

        Santa Ana Unified School District 114 



-4- 

 [ATTACH A COPY OF THE REVISED INDA CHARTER AS EXHIBIT A] 115 

 116 

 117 

 118 

 119 

 120 

 121 

 122 

 123 

 124 

 125 

 126 

 127 

 128 

 129 

 130 

 131 

 132 

 133 

 134 

 135 

 136 

 137 

 138 

 139 

 140 

 141 

 142 

 143 

 144 

 145 

 146 

 147 

 148 

 149 

 150 

 151 

 152 



[Insert name of school] Charter Petition   Page 1 of 114 

  

 

 

 

 

  INDA Advanced 

Learning 

AcademyCharter 

School 
C h a r t e r  S c h o o l  P e t i t i o n  

 
P r e s e n t e d  t o :  

Santa Ana Unified School District 

Board of Education 
 

 

2015

3 

 
 
 

October  May  20132015 

Style Definition: Header1: Right:  -0.08"



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 2 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 

This page was intentionally left blank. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 3 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

TA B L E  O F  C O N T E N T S  

 

A F F I R M AT I O N S / A S S U R A N C E S │ 9  

 

I N T R O D U C T I O N │10 

 

A. The Need………………….………………….………………………………………..…..…..………....... 10 

B. Vision………………………………………..………………..………………….……..……..………....... 11 

C. Mission.………………………………………..…………….………………………….……..…….…….. 11 

 

ELEMENT ONE│ E D U C AT I O N A L P R O G R A M │ 1 3  

A. Mission……………………………………………………………………….……………………………  13 

B. Educational Philosophy…………………………………………………………….……….…….….……. 14 

 

An Educated Person in the 21
st
 Century  

How Learning Best Occurs 

STEM Emphasis in Curriculum 

Technology Integrated Education 

Field Trips and Guest Speakers  

Peer Assisted Reading (PALS) 

 

C. Students To Be Served…………………………………………………………..……….…………...…… 17 

 

Table 1: Sample Student Populations 

Priority Enrollment 

Student Projection 

Table 2: Conservative Enrollment Projections 

Table 3: Aggressive Enrollment Projections 

 
D. Curriculum and Instructional Design ……………………………………………………..………………. 20 

 

Exhibit 1: SAUSD’s Theoretical Framework for Common Core Implementation 

Literacy 

Mathematics  

Computer Science 

Textbooks & Instructional Materials 

Small School Environment 

Culture of High Expectations 

Sample Instructional Calendar and Bell Schedule 

Table 4: Sample Elementary Bell Schedule 

Table 5: Sample Intermediate Bell Schedule 

Exhibit 2: Sample Academic School Calendar 

 

E. Plan for Academically Low Achieving Students ………………………..………………………………… 30 

 

F. Plan for Academically High Achieving Students……………..………..………………….…...…………... 31 

 

G. Plan for English Learners.……….…………………………………………...………….……………….. 32 

 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 4 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

Home Language Survey 

CELDT Testing 

Reclassification Procedures 

Strategies for English Learners 

 

H. Plan for Socio-Economically Disadvantaged Students……………………………………..…………….. 33 

 

I. Plan for Special Education…………………………………………………………………………………  34 

 

Interim and Initial Placements of New Charter School Students 

Referral for Assessment 

Assessment 

Development and Implementation of IEP 

 

ELEMENT TWO & THREE│ M E A S U R A B L E  S T U D E N T  O U T C O M E S  &  

P U P I L  P R O G R E S S  M E A S U R E M E N T  M E T H O D  │ 4 1  

 

A. Approach to Assessment and Data……………………………………………………………………….. 41 

 

Data Analysis and Data-Driven Instruction 

Reporting of Data 

Communication of Data with Students and Families 

Student Achievement Goals 

Table 6: Measurable Student Outcome Goals and Assessment Tools 

Table 7: Representative Measurable Student Outcomes and Assessment Tools in Core Academic Areas 

Table 8: Representative Measurable Outcomes and Assessment Tools for Interpersonal Skills 

 

B. Statewide Assessments…………………………………………………………………..……...……….. 45 

C. Grading and Promotion…………………………………………………………………..….…………… 46 

 

Grading Policy 

Table 9: Grading Policy 

ELD Grades 

Report Cards 

Elementary School Grade Promotion 

Intermediate School Grade Promotion 

 

ELEMENT FOUR│ G O V E R N A N C E │ 4 9  

A. Governance of the School Structure………………………………………………………………………  49 

Exhibit 3: Organizational Chart 

B. School Leadership………………………………………………………………………………………… 50 

C. Parental Involvement………………………………………………………………….……………..……. 50 

D. Grievance Procedure for Parents & Students…………………………………………………….……….. 50 

 

ELEMENT FIVE│ E M P L O Y E E  Q U A L I F I C AT I O N S │ 5 2  

Equal Opportunity Employer 

A. Qualifications, Conditions & Benefits………………………………………………………………..……. 52 

 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 5 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

Credentials 

Employee Records & Background Checks 

Employee Welfare and Safety 

 

B. Recruitment & Selection………………………………………………………………………………… 53 

 

Teacher Recruitment 

Staff Selection 

General Qualifications 

Job Descriptions for Key Personnel 

Staff Compensation and Benefits  

Staff Evaluation 

 

ELEMENT SIX│ H E A LT H  A N D  S A F E T Y │ 6 1  

 
A. Site Safety……………………………………………………………………………………………….. 61 

 

Building Code  

Asbestos Management 

Drug Free ●  Alcohol Free ●  Smoke Free Environment 

Workplace Safety 

 

B. Staff & Student Safety Measures……………………………………………………..…………….……. 62 

 

Criminal Background Checks 

Comprehensive Sexual Harassment Policies and Procedures 

Child Abuse Reporting 

 

C. Medical Plans………………………………………………………………………………….………… 63 

 

Immunizations & Tuberculosis Testing 

Prescription Medications 

Vision, Hearing & Scoliosis Testing 

Diabetes 

Blood Borne Pathogens 

 

D. Emergency Plans………………………………………………………………………………………… 64 

 

Emergency Situations 

Fire Drills 

Earthquake and Other Disaster Drills 

Bomb Threats 

Evacuation Plan 

 

E. Additional………………………………………………………………………………….…………….. 66 

 

Indemnification 

Insurance 

Auxiliary Services 

 

ELEMENT SEVEN│ R A C I A L &  E T H N I C  B A L A N C E │ 6 8  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 6 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

  
ELEMENT EIGHT│ A D M I S S I O N  R E Q U I R E M E N T │ 6 9  

Legal Assurances  

McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 

Priority Enrollment 

 

ELEMENT NINE│ A N N U A L F I N A N C I A L A U D I T S │ 7 1  

Financial Reports  

 

ELEMENT TEN│ S U S P E N S I O N  &  E X P U L S I O N │ 7 3  

Progressive Positive Discipline 

Enumerated Offenses 

Suspension Procedure 

Expulsion Procedure 

Special Procedures for Expulsion & Hearings 

Records & Litigation 

Further Assurances 

 

ELEMENT ELEVEN│ R E T I R E M E N T  P R O G R A M S │ 8 3  

Mandatory Benefits 

Health Benefits 

Work Schedule 

Retirement 

 

ELEMENT TWELVE│ P U B L I C  S C H O O L AT T E N D A N C E  A LT E R N AT I V E S │ 8 5  

 

ELEMENT THIRTEEN│ E M P L O Y E E  R I G H T S  &  R E P O N S I B I L I T I E S │ 8 6  

 

ELEMENT FOURTEEN│ D I S P U T E  R E S O L U T I O N │ 8 7  

Dispute-Resolution 

Internal Disputes 

Disputes Between the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy and SAUSD 

 

ELEMENT FIFTEEN│ E X C L U S I V E  P U B L I C  S C H O O L E M P L O Y E R │ 9 0  

 

ELEMENT SIXTEEN│ S C H O O L C L O S U R E │ 9 1  

   
Charter Renewal 

Revocation 

Closure Action 

Closure Procedures 

 

ELEMENT SEVENTEEN│ P R O P O S E D  B U D G E T  &  C A S H  F L O W │ 9 6  

 

ELEMENT EIGHTEEN│ FA C I L I T I E S │ 9 9  

Site Description  

Design 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 7 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

Exhibit 4: Planned Development 

Exhibit 5: Regional Map 

Exhibit 6: Local Map 

Exhibit 7: Net Usable Acreage 

Exhibit 8: Site Photographs 

Exhibit 9: Site Plan 

Sustainability and Sensitivity to Adjacent Natural Habitat 

Charter Implementation  

Exhibit 10: Charter Implementation Timeline 

 

ELEMENT NINETEEN│ R E Q U I R E D  S I G N AT U R E S │ 1 0 7  

 

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 8 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 

A P P E N D I X  

 

APPENDIX A│ C O L L E C T I V E  B A R G A I N I N G  A G R E E M E N T │ 1 0 9  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 9 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 

A F F I R M A T I O N S / A S S U R A N C E S  

 

The Charter will comply with California Education Code § 47605(d) and all other applicable federal, state and 

local laws and regulations, including, but not limited to, ensuring that the school shall:  

 

• Be nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, employment practices and all other operations.  

• Not charge tuition.  

• Not discriminate against any student on the basis of disability, gender, nationality, race, color or ethnicity, 

religion, sexual orientation, home language or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of 

hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code.  

• Admit all pupils who wish to attend the school. Cal. Education Code § 47605(d)(2)(A).  

• Determine admission by a public random drawing, if the number of pupils who wish to attend the school 

exceeds the school capacity, with a lottery exemption for existing pupils of the charter schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy, siblings of enrolled students, and children of staff and founding parents (not to exceed 

10%). Cal. Education Code § 47605(d)(2)(B). Preference shall be given to pupils who reside in the Santa Ana 

Unified School District, or other preferences permitted by the charter authority that are consistent with the 

law.  

• In accordance with Education Code § 47605(d)(3), if a pupil is expelled or leaves the charter schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy without graduation or completing the school year for any reason, the school 

shall notify the superintendent of the school district of the pupil’s last known address within 30 days, and 

shall, upon request, provide that school district with a copy of the cumulative record of the pupil, including a 

transcript of grades or report card, and health information.  

• Be deemed the exclusive public employer of the employees of the school for purposes of the Educational 

Employment Relations Act.  

• Adhere to all provisions of federal law related to students with disabilities including, but not limited to, 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1974, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and the 

Individuals with Disabilities in Education Improvement Act of 2004. Meet all statewide standards and 

conduct the student assessments required, pursuant to Education Code §§ 60605 and 60851, and any other 

statewide standards authorized in statute, or assessments application to students in non-charter public schools. 

Comply in a timely fashion with all reporting requirements, including enrollment, attendance (ADA), 

standardized testing, and other data and information required.  

• Ensure that teachers at the school hold a Commission on Teacher Credentialing certificate, permit, or other 

document equivalent to that which a teacher in other public schools are required to hold under NCLB and 

other applicable laws. As allowed by statute, flexibility will be given to non-core, non-college preparatory 

teachers.  

• Comply with the terms of Education Code § 47611 (STRS).  

• Maintain all necessary and appropriate insurance coverage at all times.  

• Comply with all applicable laws and regulations relating to charter school facilities.  

• Agree to standard District requirements and processes regarding supervisorial oversight, funding and services 

for special education students, inspection and audit requirements as aligned to applicable laws.  

• Comply with the Brown Act, nonprofit integrity standards, and applicable federal and state laws regarding 

ethics and conflicts of interest.  

• Be solely responsible for the debts and obligations of the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy.  

 

 

 

Joe DixonDavid Haglund, Assistant Deputy Superintendent         October May 826, 20132015 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 10 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

I N T R O D U C T I O N  

 

The Santa Ana Unified School District (―SAUSD‖ and/or ―District‖) acting through its Governing Board and 

administration, together with it’s primary partner the University of California, Irvine, School of Education, 

desires to serve the students and parents of the District by providing the option of a dependent charter school and 

is pleased to submit this petition to establish and open the Irvine/Newport Development AreaAdvanced Learning 

Academy Charter School (―the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy‖) in the fall of 2017.  This 

Charter proposes the establishment of a dependent charter school with ian cooperational Advisory Board, which 

will make recommendations to the District Administration and District Governing Board. Because of the 

dependent nature of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy and the close operational and governing 

relationship between the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy and the District, including the District’s 

administration and Governing Board, this Charter does not require the same level of detail and specificity as the 

District would require of an independent charter school seeking District approval and oversight. 

 

The proposed Charter School will serve kindergarten through eighth grade (K-8) with a specialized educational 

program focused on engaging, challenging Common Core-based curriculum designed to improve students’ skills 

in science, technology, engineering, and mathematics (STEM). The educational program will be unique not only 

to the SAUSD, but to Orange County, in that it is based on a high-tech, project-based, STEM curriculum 

emphasizing college and career readiness at the elementary and intermediate level.  

 

In today’s ever-changing technological society, it is critical that students have the skills needed to compete in a 

global economy. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy believes it is not too early to reinforce the 

importance of science and career readiness at the elementary and intermediate school level. Without this 

preparation, by high school, students often lack the academic foundation and confidence in math and science and 

overlook the potential as an exciting, lucrative career. The K-8 Charter School is a natural progression to the high 

school level to graduate scientific thinkers with critical thinking skills who will be successful in their adult lives. 

In order to fulfill our mission, it is essential to start at the elementary level engaging students with hands-on, 

technology-based learning that will inspire students to pursue STEM-related careers. 

 

General Charter School Information  

The contact person for the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is Joe DixonDavid 

Haglund, Assistant SuperintendentDeputy Superintendent. 

The grade configuration is kindergarten through 8
th 

at full enrollment. 

The grade level(s) of the students the first year of the charter term will be kindergarten 4
th
 through 

6
th
. 

The number of students in the first year (20157/168) of the charter term will be 240. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will evolve into a K-8 school over three years. 

The scheduled opening date of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is August 

20172015. 

The enrollment capacity is 600 students. 

The instructional calendar will be traditional.  

 

A.  THE NEED 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy would fulfill two needs of the SAUSD: 1) the school would 

serve an area of the District that is not currently served by SAUSD facilities; and 2) the school would provide an 

educational program that is unique to SAUSD and Orange County. 

Fa ci l i t i e s  

Formatted: Superscript



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 11 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

The SAUSD’s boundary includes the area south of the John Wayne Airport within the cities of Irvine and 

Newport Beach (See Exhibit 5 in Element 18 - Facilities). This Irvine/Newport development area (INDA) has 

experienced rapid development in the last ten years, and is planned to continue to develop over the next ten years.  

 

The INDA, which was originally developed as a commercial and industrial center, has experienced market forces 

and development pressures encouraging a rapid transition into a more urban mixed-use center. In 2004, the 

number of building permits for residential units increased dramatically in the INDA. Based on past and planned 

development, residential development could reach 10,000 units within SAUSD boundaries in the next five to ten 

years. This increase in residential units and evolution to a mixed-use environment warrants the need for school 

facilities in the area. The closest existing non-fundamental SAUSD schools (Taft Elementary, McFadden 

Intermediate, and Saddleback High) are approximately 3, 6, and 4 driving miles from the INDA, respectively. 

 

While the school is proposed to open in a temporary location at the Grant School site, the school will ultimately 

relocate into the INDA. Our school will be strategically located in the INDA and be more accessible for students 

to reach compared to any existing public schools nearby. In addition, there is a strong demand in the SAUSD for 

schools with advanced curriculum options. The District’s fundamental schools have a waiting list to enroll. Our 

charter will provide youths in Santa Ana another viable option to experience a rigorous and demanding education. 

 

S TEM  Cu rr i cu lum  

The commercial/industrial component of the INDA provides a unique opportunity and atmosphere to place a 

high-tech, STEM-focused school. A specialty school in the INDA has the potential to partner with the local 

science and technology-based businesses to immerse students in high-quality science instruction based on the 

Next Generation Science Standards, provide project-based learning, and incorporate internship and leadership 

programs, in order to prepare students with the kinds of skills needed to compete in a global economy.  

 

As the nation’s economy base has shifted from industry to technology, the future will require a highly adaptable 

and technologically-competent workforce. With increasing global competition, Orange County and SAUSD must 

keep a competitive edge in the STEM disciplines. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy aligns 

with this concept, and the District’s goal to prepare students for success in college, career, and society. 

 

The number of Latino students pursuing STEM careers has historically been low. A notable cause of this is that 

Latino students have inadequate exposure to STEM curriculum. In California, where Latinos represent the fastest 

growing and soon to be the largest segment of the population, it is important to provide educational programs that 

engage and prepare Santa Ana students to choose career paths in STEM. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced 

Learning Academy plans to offer the District a unique educational program that accomplishes this goal.  
 

B. VISION 
 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy has the same vision as the SAUSD: We will work 

collaboratively and comprehensively with staff, parents, and the community to strengthen a learning environment 

focused on raising the achievement of all students and preparing them for success in college and career. 

 

C. MISSION 
 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy has the same mission as the SAUSD: We assure well-

rounded learning experiences, which prepare our students for success in college and career. We engage, inspire, 

and challenge all of our students to become productive citizens, ethical leaders, and positive contributors to our 

community, country, and a global society. 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 12 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s main objective is to provide a unique STEM-focused 

educational program to an under-served geographical area of the District. The educational program goals are as 

follows: 

 Provide a safe, nurturing, small-school academic environment that cultivates respect for oneself and 

others 

 Offer engaging, challenging curriculum designed to improve students’ skills in STEM areas that will be 

based on Common Core State Standards and Next Generation Science Standards 

 Provide a college and career preparatory program that inspires students to pursue STEM-related careers 

 Provide high-tech, project-based curriculum that will engage and inspire students, thereby achieving 

optimal attendance rates and reducing dropout rates  

 Sharpen students’ critical thinking skills by providing hands-on, inquiry-based activities 

 Infuse goal-oriented collaboration with daily instruction to optimize learning and support English 

Learners 

 Expose students to engaging STEM curriculum and close the gap on the number of Latino students that 

pursue careers in STEM areas 

 Retain strong staff that are role models and inspire students to achieve personal academic and career 

goals 

 Encourage parent involvement and ensure students have academic, social, and emotional support to 

reach their highest potential 

 Offer parent technology classes to allow parents to actively participate in their student’s education and 

provide optimal student support 

In alignment with the SAUSD’s mission statement, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy aims to 

graduate students with the following characteristics and values:   

 Socially-responsible global citizens who embrace and value cultural diversity and contribute to the 

improvement of their community 

 Critical thinkers that effectively utilize technology in their daily lives 

 Motivated and follow an academic plan with an aspiration to follow a STEM career path 

 Health conscious and understand the importance of nutrition and physical health on daily life 

 Environmentally conscious and understand the importance of sustainability for the global future 

 Great communicators who are skilled in sharing their thoughts, questions, ideas and solutions 

 Creative problems solvers who try and develop new approaches to get things done 

 

 

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 13 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

ELEMENT ONE│ E D U C AT I O N A L P R O G R A M  
 

Governing Law: A description of the educational program of the school, designed, among other things, to 

identify pupils whom the school is attempting to educate, what it means to be an "educated person" in the 21st 

century, and how learning best occurs. The goals identified in that program shall include the objective of enabling 

pupils to become self-motivated, competent, and lifelong learners. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(A)(i). 

 

A. MISSION 

Our K-8 grade school will give students a world class education that will prepare them for success in high school, 

college, life, and a future career involving science, technology, engineering, and mathematics (STEM). To 

achieve this ambitious goal, all leadership decisions are executed to best support the mission and school staff with 

an unwavering commitment to the mission’s success. Furthermore, we will work with students and their families 

to develop a community that fully supports every child’s desire to attend and prepare for high school and college 

graduation. To lead students to reach their full academic potential, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy will provide a unique, engaging STEM-focused curriculum with specific educational program goals as 

follows: 

 

 Provide a safe, nurturing, small-school academic environment that cultivates respect for oneself and 

others 

 Offer engaging, challenging Common Core-based curriculum designed to improve students’ skills in 

STEM areas 

 Provide a college and career preparatory program that inspires students to pursue STEM-related careers 

 Provide high-tech, project-based curriculum that will engage and inspire students, thereby achieving 

optimal attendance rates and reducing dropout rates  

 Sharpen students’ critical thinking skills by providing hands-on, inquiry-based activities 

 Expose students to engaging STEM curriculum and close the gap on the number of Latino students that 

pursue careers in STEM areas 

 Retain strong staff that are role models and inspire students to achieve personal academic and career 

goals 

 Encourage parent involvement and ensure students have academic, social, and emotional support to 

reach their highest potential 

 Offer parent technology classes to allow parents to actively participate in their student’s education and 

provide optimal student support 

 

As the nation’s economy base has shifted from industry to technology, the future will require a highly adaptable 

and technologically-competent workforce. It is critical that the student population is science and technology 

literate. An education with a focus in STEM will help students acquire scientific and critical thinking habits. With 

increasing global competition, a successful, educated person in the 21
st
 century must keep a competitive edge in 

the STEM disciplines.  

 

Individual and societal decisions increasingly require some understanding of STEM, from comprehending 

medical diagnoses to managing daily activities with a wide variety of computer-based application. While there 

has been a rise in the number of STEM learning programs in the United States, the state of STEM learning still 

requires leaps and bounds before it can reach adequacy. Research suggests that many students are currently not 

prepared for the demands of the present and future economy. As measured by the National Assessment of 

Educational Progress, roughly 75 percent of U.S. 8
th
 graders are not proficient in mathematics when they 

complete 8
th
 grade. Furthermore, there are significant gaps in achievement between the following student 

population groups: black/white, Hispanic/white, and high-poverty/low-poverty gaps. U.S. students also lag behind 

the highest performing nations on international assessments. For example, only 10 percent of U.S. 8
th
 graders met 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 14 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

the Trends in International Mathematics and Science Study advanced international benchmark in science, 

compared with 32 percent in Singapore and 25 percent in China. 

 

For the advancement of STEM learning in the U.S., the National Research Council has established three U.S. 

STEM education goals, which our Charter School fully supports:  

 

1. Expand the number of students who ultimately pursue advanced degrees and careers in STEM fields 

and broaden the participation of women and minorities in those fields. 

2. Expand the STEM-capable workforce and broaden the participation of women and minorities in that 

workforce.  

3. Increase STEM literacy for all students, including those who do not pursue STEM-related careers or 

additional study in the STEM disciplines.  

 

To support our rigorous STEM curriculum, our school has incorporated five key elements from the National 

Research Council into our school’s design that will help ensure the effectiveness of our STEM instruction.  

 

1. A coherent set of standards and curriculum found in Next Generation Science Standards 

2. Teachers with a high capacity to teach in their discipline 

3. A supportive system of assessment and accountability aligned with Smarter Balanced literacy claims  

4. Adequate instructional time to promote deep learning 

5. Equal access to high-quality STEM learning opportunities 

 

B. EDUCATIONAL PHILOSOPHY  

The Charter will meet the unique needs of students (K-8
th
 grades) and families in the SAUSD, and will serve a 

student body that is reflective of the ethnic and socioeconomic diversity of the community. Students will be 

encouraged and nurtured by engaged parents, dedicated staff, and community partners. The Charter SchoolThe 

Advanced Learning Academy will develop public-private partnerships with the surrounding higher education 

institutions and business community. By utilizing the local university and professional resources, we will link 

technology with academics and prepare students for higher education and professional opportunities. 

 

An  Ed u ca ted  P er son  in  th e  2 1
s t

 Cen tur y  
 

Our goal is to ensure that all of our students develop the skills and behaviors necessary for academic, personal, 

and professional success in the 21
st
 century. As the nation’s economy base has shifted from industry to 

technology, the future will require a highly adaptable and technologically-competent workforce. It is critical that 

the student population is science and technology literate. An education with a focus in STEM will help students 

acquire scientific and critical thinking habits. With increasing global competition, a successful, educated person in 

the 21
st
 century must keep a competitive edge in the STEM disciplines. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced 

Learning Academy will provide opportunities that engage and challenge students and allow them to demonstrate 

their learning and thinking process. Teachers will strive to integrate innovative technologies and research-based 

instructional strategies throughout the curriculum to prepare students to be confident critical thinkers and self-

learners. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy aims to graduate 21
st
 century scholars who: 

 

 Put their talent, expertise, and smarts to work with others to reach a goal 

 Develop and utilize new and creative approaches to get things done 

 Use technology effectively in their daily lives to access, organize, research and present information 

 Are critical thinkers that connect the skills and content learned across the curriculum and evaluate multiple 

points of view 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 15 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 Are motivated and follow an academic plan with an aspiration to follow a STEM career path 

 Are effective communicators that collaborate, work effectively, and manage interpersonal relationships 

within diverse groups and settings 

 Demonstrate content area and grade level achievement in reading, writing, mathematics, history and science 

 Are socially responsible global citizens that embrace and respect cultural diversity 

 Contribute to the improvement of life in their school and local community through leadership skills and 

participation in community projects 

 Understand the importance of proper nutrition and physical health in daily life 

 

Ho w  L ea rn ing  B es t  O ccu rs  

Learning best occurs when students are actively involved in the learning process, have direct experiences with the 

physical world, and relate these experiences to what they are learning in school. This process deepens students’ 

knowledge and stimulates their curiosity and passion for learning. Students will discover how to learn, and 

develop the skills to become self-empowered learners. Experiential methods will engage each student and 

facilitate understanding of core concepts.  

 

A high quality learning environment must be one that is highly structured and generously flexible, allowing 

students to explore and discover, and operates with high standards that challenge students. The ideal learning 

environment is one where teachers and students learn together through the open exchange of ideas and 

information. 

 

Parent participation is an important element in the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s educational 

philosophy and is consistent with SAUSD’s Parent Involvement Framework. Students whose parents are involved 

in their education generally have higher grades, better attendance, higher homework submission rates, higher 

graduation rates and a better chance of continuing with their education after graduation. This is especially true for 

predominantly minority and/or lower income communities. 

 

Guest speakers and field trips from local higher education institutions and STEM-focused companies will 

emphasize the links between instruction and practical application. Teacher-designed units will emphasize the 

main tenets of Common Core and Next Generation Science Standards. This design will allow students to make 

necessary school-to-life correlations. In order to be responsible members of society, students need to provide 

service to the community. Engaging in ―real life‖ projects that are related to the curriculum will help students 

move from adolescence and school to adulthood and society.  

 

By traveling through our Charter School’s varied learning avenues and by experiencing our education program 

that is guided by rigorous common core state standards, students will be thoroughly prepared for success in their 

academic and professional careers.   

 

S TEM  Em p ha s i s  i n  Cur r i cu lum  

In agreement with the National Governors Association Center for Best Practices (NGA Center) and the Council 

of Chief State School Officers (CCSSO), the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy believes that an 

educated citizen in the 21
st
 century must have the skills and understanding to participate and work productively in 

a technologically oriented and global environment. A significant step toward helping students achieve their 

maximum potential involves providing a rigorous, relevant and college preparatory curriculum. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s educational program specifically emphasizes science, technology, 

engineering and math (STEM) education. While the curriculum concentrates on STEM, it also provides a solid 

instruction in humanities and social sciences to educate the whole child. 

 

Math courses will be based on the Common Core integrated course sequencing, which will provide a 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 16 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

comprehensive scope and sequence in an effort to address the diverse skills, interests and backgrounds of all 

learners. Students are assessed for their current knowledge and skill level and placed in the most appropriate 

class. Those with little math background are supported with remediation and intervention. Students with a strong 

background are provided with enrichment opportunities.  

 

Science courses immerse students in the scientific method and encourage them to use the applicable technology to 

plan and organize projects, hypothesize, analyze data, and draw conclusions from tests they create. Students who 

have experience applying scientific inquiry and reasoning to real-world problems in the classroom will have a 

clear advantage when they are exposed to the types of questions that require similar thought and reasoning 

process as adults. Additionally, the site’s connection to the existing natural habitat offers a unique opportunity to 

design a curriculum that has a prominent environmental science component. 

 

In keeping with the STEM emphasis, advanced courses are offered to spur interest and prepare students for 

STEM-related careers. Science classes employ technology in laboratory explorations and experimentation. The 

use of technology as an educational tool will motivate and engage students in their learning, accelerate their 

academic achievement, and equip them with the functional and critical thinking skills needed to succeed in a 

technology and media-driven environment. Computer simulations will assist in expanding the number of lab 

opportunities in all grade levels. Teachers effectively use the inquiry-based approach to engage students in the 

learning process while encouraging high levels of interest. Students’ observations and reflections are the key 

factors for maximum learning results through hands-on instruction.  

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy implements collaborative conversations to challenge both 

high and low achieving students. To enhance critical-thinking skills, students work on inquiry-based activities and 

projects outside of the classroom throughout the school year. Each year the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy organizes a school-wide science fair, in which all students participate. The Charter SchoolThe 

Advanced Learning Academy students then move on to participate in the regional and statewide science fairs. 

T ech no log y  In t eg ra t ed  Ed uca t io n  

Our curriculum integrates Math, Science, Social Science and Language Arts classes with technology education in 

a fun and comprehensive way. Different learning theories and practices such as project-based learning, student-

centered learning, and differentiated instruction are incorporated into our technology integrated approach. The 

following are the ways by which we integrate technology into education:  

1. All students complete a multi-year, comprehensive, and detailed technology curriculum 

2. Teaching materials and assessment tools 

3. Professional training for computer and core class teachers 

The elementary component of the charter’s computer science curriculum focuses on the technology literacy skills 

requirement as identified in the Common Core State Standards as well as problem solving and creative thinking. 

The intermediate school component aims to provide strong skills in computer literacy and fundamentals of 

computational thinking in 6
th
 and 7

th
 grades and transitions into conceptual understanding of high school electives 

in 8
th
 grade.  

 

By the completion of their elementary school education, students will obtain fluency in computers and learn 

introductory level computer literacy. Their classes will be supported with problem solving and creative thinking 

skills. In grades 6 through 8, students will be offered computer and technology courses as electives. These 

electives include, but are not limited to, Computer Literacy, Computer Programming, Digital Art, and Robotics.  

 

Academic interventions at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy are targeted and the staff use data 

to closely monitor our students’ academic progress. Furthermore, these interventions focus on three levels of data: 

formative, interim, and summative. Discussion of each student’s progress or lack thereof takes place during 

department and grade level team meetings. In additional, adult technology courses will be offered to parents to 

allow parents to actively participate in their student’s education and ensure optimal student support at home. 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 17 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 18 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

Fi e ld  T r ip s  a nd  Gues t  Sp ea k ers  

Field trips will allow students to gain insight, information, or knowledge that cannot be adequately developed 

through regular classroom instruction. Field trips, therefore, are an integral part of the curriculum and are as 

essential to the instructional process as textbooks, equipment, and other instructional devices and 

teaching/learning strategies. Since not all children learn in the same way, field trips will support the application of 

learning by giving students the opportunity to expand their intelligence in ways different from those typically 

available inside the classroom. Visiting a research laboratory, a university campuses (e.g., UCI), and meeting with 

scientists during these field trips or through guest speakers on campus will motivates students. Especially when 

some of these guest speakers or people they meet during field trips share the same culture with students, students 

will find new role models. 

 

While most field trips are directly related to specific academic curricula, they also may address the need for intra- 

and inter- personal growth in children, and thus may be designed to promote social and emotional development 

and to provide for the development of the "whole" child.  

 

P eer  A ss i s t ed  R ea d ing  ( PA LS )  

Student and staff will participate in Peer Assisted Reading (PALS) that will occur three to four days a week for a 

minimum of 20 minutes per session. The classrooms will be equipped with libraries to provide access to a wide 

variety of books at appropriate reading levels. Students will be trained on PALS protocols and procedures. 

Students who are struggling academically will participate in additional English enrichment/intervention programs 

during the day and after school. 

 

In order to determine the student’s reading level, a computerized reading assessment that utilizes computer-

adaptive technology is administered. Depending on the assessment results, students will receive a range of book 

recommendations that will challenge the student without causing frustration. Students' reading comprehension 

skills will be monitored. If a student continually obtains low scores while reading at his or her level, intervention 

will be immediately implemented. Assessment results will be used by teachers to inform their literacy strategies 

for individual students.  

 

C. STUDENTS TO BE SERVED 

Students from all areas of SAUSD and the INDA will be recruited with a goal of creating an economically and 

ethnically diverse student population. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will advertise to the 

entire SAUSD community and draw students that are attracted to the unique K-8 STEM program. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy aims to attract students from all cultural backgrounds within SAUSD, 

especially the Latino ethnicity. Historically, the number of Latino students pursuing careers in STEM areas has 

been low. A notable cause of these low numbers is that Latino students have inadequate exposure to STEM 

curriculum. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will provide a unique program to a largely-

Latino student population of SAUSD in the hopes of educating and inspiring students to pursue STEM-related 

careers in today’s technology-driven economy. 

 

As a sample student population, we have used the following SAUSD schools that have similarities in their 

educational programs to project the demographics of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy. The 

SAUSD fundamental schools have similar ―magnet‖ educational programs that draw students from throughout 

the District. These schools would be expected to have student populations similar to the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy that has a ―magnet‖ STEM program. Sepulveda Elementary has a science-focused 

curriculum, and would also be expected to have similar demographics to the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy. In addition, Taft Elementary and McFadden Intermediate schools are the SAUSD schools in 

closest proximity to the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy and would be anticipated to have the 

most comparable demographics to the INDA (See Table 1 on the following page). 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 19 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 20 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

TABLE 1: Sample Student Populations  

 
S C H O O L  

P R O F I L E  
A P I  A Y P  

S C H O O L S  

E
n

g
li

sh
 

L
ea

rn
er

s 
(%

) 

F
re

e-
R

ed
u

ce
d

 

M
ea

ls
 (

%
) 

S
ta

te
w

id
e 

S
ch

o
o

l 
 

R
an

k
in

g
 

S
im

il
ar

  

S
ch

o
o

l 
 

R
an

k
in

g
 

P
I 

S
ta

tu
s 

 

 A
P

I 

G
ro

w
th

 f
ro

m
 

P
ri

o
r 

Y
ea

r 

M
et

 E
n

g
li

sh
 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e?

 

M
et

 M
at

h
 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e?

 

Similar Area Schools          

Taft Elementary 41.1 70.9 4 6 
Year 

3 
794 +8 No No 

McFadden Intermediate 33.4 78.7 2 5 
Year 

5 
739 +28 No Yes 

Similar Program Schools          

Greenville Fundamental  

Elementary 
28.9 57.0 9 10 n/a 886 -1 No No 

MacArthur Fundamental 

Intermediate 
6.6 68.0 8 9 

Year 

4 
858 +9 Yes No 

Mendez Fundamental 

Intermediate 
20.7 79.6 7 9 

Year 

3 
829 +16 No No 

Muir Fundamental Elementary 34.2 57.6 9 10 n/a 904 +11 Yes Yes 

Sepulveda Elementary 61.7 83.1 5 10 n/a 770 -29 No No 

Thorpe Fundamental 

Elementary 
30.9 62.6 9 10 n/a 901 -1 Yes Yes 

 

TABLE 1 (Continued): Sample Student Populations  

 E T H N I C I T Y  P E R C E N T A G E S  ( % )  

S C H O O L  

A
m

er
ic

an
 

In
d

ia
n
 

A
si

an
 

P
ac

if
ic

 

Is
la

n
d

er
 

F
il

ip
in

o
  

A
fr

ic
an

 

A
m

er
ic

an
 

W
h

it
e
 

2
 o

r 
M

o
re

 

R
ac

es
 

N
o

n
e 

 

R
ep

o
rt

ed
 

H
is

p
an

ic
 

Similar Area Schools          

Taft Elementary 0.2 6.6 0.4 0.7 3.1 6.1 2.4 0 80.5 

McFadden Intermediate 0 4.0 0.3 0.5 0.9 1.6 0.4 0 92.3 

Similar Program Schools          

Greenville Fundamental  

Elementary 
0.2 11.5 0.2 0.8 0.9 4.3 2.1 0.1 79.9 

MacArthur Fundamental 

Intermediate 
0 9.3 0.1 0.8 0.8 2.0 1.0 0 86.0 

Mendez Fundamental Intermediate 0.1 0.6 0.1 0 0.3 0.6 0.3 0 98.0 

Muir Fundamental Elementary 0.5 2.2 0.2 0.5 0.6 3.6 0.7 0 91.7 

Sepulveda Elementary 0.2 0.5 0 0.2 0.5 0.2 0.2 0 98.2 

Thorpe Fundamental Elementary 0 7.9 0.5 0.7 0.7 2.6 0.8 0 86.8 

 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 21 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

P r io r i t y  E nro l lm en t  
 

The main objective of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is to house students generated from 

the INDA. Priority enrollment will be given to students that reside in this area. Second enrollment priority will be 

given to SAUSD students attending other SAUSD impacted (overcrowded) schools. Third enrollment priority 

will be given to SAUSD students attending any other SAUSD schools. Any other students that choose to attend 

the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will be admitted as facility capacity allows. If Irvine Unified 

School District (IUSD) students in the vicinity wish to enroll, they will first be required to obtain an inter-district 

transfer release from IUSD. At full capacity, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will serve 600 

students in grades K-8. If the number of students who wish to attend the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy exceeds the school’s capacity, enrollment preferences will be given as explained in Element 8. 

 

St ud en t  P ro j ec t io n  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy site is located within an area of the SAUSD that has 

experienced significant development, and is planned to continue developing with residential and retail mixed-

uses. Residential development projects totaling 4,658 units are planned to be developed in the next 2-5 years. An 

additional 902 units were previously submitted to the City of Irvine, but since withdrawn or expired as a result of 

the economic depression. This residentially-designated land has the potential to become future residential projects 

again as the market returns, and should be considered in the enrollment projection for the INDA build-out (see 

Exhibit 4 in Element 18). Together these total 5,560 planned units planned within SAUSD. When added to the 

existing 4,755 units, the INDA would contain a total of more than 10,000 residential units within SAUSD 

boundaries. Based on various student generation rates (SGR) obtained from gathered data, the INDA residential 

units have the potential to generate 300-600 students within SAUSD, as detailed in Tables 2 and 3.  

 

A conservative SGR was obtained using the number of students currently residing in the area. As the INDA 

continues to grow and evolve into a mixed-use community, it will become more attractive to families and is 

anticipated to generate additional students. Therefore, an additional enrollment projection was prepared to project 

the number of students at build-out of the approximately 10,000 residential units. Since the type of residential 

development within the INDA is consistent with the residential development within the IUSD, the build-out 

projection utilizes the IUSD’s SGR for higher-density attached units. In addition to INDA units with SAUSD, the 

Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy has the potential to draw students from the residential 

development just outside the SAUSD boundaries in the vicinity of the school site, as shown in Exhibit 4 (See 

Element 18), and the potential to draw students from other areas of the SAUSD that are drawn to the specialized 

STEM instructional program. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

TABLE 2: Conservative Enrollment Projection  
School Level SGR # of Units Students Generated 

Elementary  0.040 4,658 186 

Intermediate  0.012 4,658 56 

Total 0.052 4,658 242 

NOTE: Based on the current number of students in the INDA. 

TABLE 3: Enrollment Projection  at Build-out 
School Level SGR # of Units Students Generated 

Elementary  0.0500 10,000 500 

Intermediate  0.0100 10,000 100 

Total 0.0600 10,000 600 

NOTE: Based on the IUSD’s student generation rate. 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 22 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy believes the conservative projection best constitutes the 

anticipated enrollment for its opening year (August 2017). The build-out projection is used for the charter’s full-

enrollment projection. In consideration that this area is not currently served by a school facility, and the school is 

likely to draw ―magnet‖ enrollment from outside the INDA, we believe this enrollment is feasible, is backed by 

development research, and is reasonably achievable. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will open as an elementary school serving 240 students 

from grades K4-6, and over a 3-year period, it will expand into a K-8 school with 600 students. As the residential 

development continues within the INDA, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will build its 

enrollment until it reaches full-enrollment at 600 students.   

 

D. CURRICULUM & INSTRUCTIONAL DESIGN  

Our goal is to provide students a world class education that will prepare them for success in high school, college, 

life, and a future STEM career. To achieve this ambitious goal, we will employ research-based strategies proven 

to increase student achievement, provide an engaging STEM-focused educational program that is based on 

Common Core State Standards and Next Generation Science Standards, and work with students and families to 

develop an environment that fully supports students and their needs. 

 

The program at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will combine the following instructional 

strategies for a balanced approach to instruction:  

• Develop positive attitudes toward science  

• Increase students’ interest in STEM and reading 

• Provide an innovative, engaging Common Core standards-based curriculum 

• Sharpen students’ critical thinking skills by providing hands-on inquiry activities 

• Increase vocabulary knowledge and conceptual understanding 

 Provide field trips, internship opportunities, and guest motivational speakers 

 Engage students with independent and group projects 

 Conduct ongoing assessment and intervention 

 Provide ample access to technology and incorporate technology into the daily instruction  

 Provide differentiated curriculum and scaffolding supports 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s instructional program is based around providing hands-

onproject-based, inquiry-based oriented instruction. Significant research has been conducted about the benefits of 

an inquiry-based science program for special populations. Inquiry-oriented teaching may be especially valuable 

for many underserved and underrepresented populations. As noted by the North Central Regional Education 

Laboratory, ―All students—especially those at risk—need to be engaged in interesting and challenging learning 

that goes beyond basic proficiencies.‖  

 

The more interested and engaged students are by a subject or project, the easier it will be for them to construct in-

depth knowledge of it. Learning becomes almost effortless when something reflects their own interests. 

According to the Center for Inquiry, inquiry-based learning provides advantages for all students: 

 An inquiry-based learning approach is flexible and works well for projects that range from the extensive 

to the bounded, from the research-oriented to the creative, from the laboratory to the Internet. It is 

essential, however, that you plan ahead so you can guide kids to suitable learning opportunities. 

 Students who have trouble in school because they do not respond well to lectures and memorization will 

blossom in an inquiry-based learning setting, awakening their confidence, interest, and self-esteem. 

 The traditional approach tends to be very vertical: the class studies science for a while, for example, then 

language arts, then math, then geography. In contrast, the inquiry-based approach is at its best when 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 23 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

working on interdisciplinary projects that reinforce multiple skills or knowledge areas in different facets 

of the same project. The traditional approach is sharply weighted toward the cognitive domain of growth, 

whereas inquiry-based learning projects positively reinforce skills in all three domains—physical, 

emotional, and cognitive. 

 Inquiry-based learning is particularly well-suited to collaborative learning environments and team 

projects. Activities can be created in which the entire class works on a single question as a group (the 

whole group must truly care about the question) or in teams working on the same or different questions. 

Inquiry-based learning also works well when each student develops an individual project if some 

elements of collaboration or sharing are required. 

 An inquiry-based approach can work with any age group. Even though older students will be able to 

pursue much more sophisticated questioning and research projects, a spirit of inquiry can be cultivated 

even with the youngest student, in an age-appropriate manner. 

 

EXHIBIT 1 :  SAUSD’s Theoretical Framework for Common Core Implementation  

 

L i t e r a c y  

 
Although the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy specializes in STEM curriculum, it also is 

committed to enhancing the literacy and language skills of all students, and especially literacy development of 

Latino students. From kindergarten through fifth grade, students benefit from two and a half hours a day of 

literacy instruction and practice—mastering foundational skills in phonemic awareness, phonics, fluency, 

comprehension, vocabulary, writing, grammar, spelling, research, listening, and oral presentation skills necessary 

to be effective communicators in English.  The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy uses a literature-



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 24 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

based literacy program, to help students master all of the Common Core State Standards and become habitual, 

critical readers.  

 

Key elements of the school’s literacy program include: 

 

 Phonics. Kindergarten and first grade literacy focuses on the development of foundational skills. Each day 

students receive 45 minutes of direct phonics instruction during literacy rotations. This instruction occurs in small 

groups to allow teachers to differentiate instruction in order to meet the needs of all of the students in the 

classroom.  

 

 Fluency and Decoding. Students are placed in small groups based on initial diagnostic assessments that follow 

PALS protocols and procedures. This allows teachers to meet students at their current level, remediate specific 

deficits, and accelerate them to grade-level standards of proficiency. Teachers running these small groups are 

trained in early literacy and English language development in order to provide students with the phonemic 

awareness and phonics skills necessary for reading success. Several research-based programs have proven 

effective with similar populations of students. Students receive additional reading instruction until their 

assessment results indicate that fluency and decoding remediation is no longer needed.  

 

 Comprehension and the Use of Literature. Understanding the written word is likely a student’s best indicator of 

future school success. In order to ensure that all students develop proficient comprehension of all types of text, 

the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy provides multiple opportunities for skill development with a 

variety of texts with a focus on informational text. We believe strongly in the use of full pieces of literature, rather 

than the excerpts commonly used in the traditional basal reader. However, both the far reading and close reading 

strategies will be deployed to support deep analyses of text. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s reading classes are grounded in the use of grade-level and 

above grade-level books and use an additional decoding and comprehension phonics program to support students 

who are struggling. Most of the novels selected for use in our reading classes were chosen from the Common 

Core State Standards.  

 

Teachers read aloud short stories, novels, poems, and nonfiction to model fluent, expressive reading of texts at 

and above the students’ grade level. Through the deliberate ―think aloud of metacognitive strategies, teachers 

help students develop the habits of effective readers. Teachers also provide direct instruction about these 

metacognitive strategies, give students opportunities to practice and share their own thought processes, and offer 

constructive feedback that pushes students to deeper understanding, both in whole-class demonstrations and one-

on-one reading conferences.  

 

In kindergarten through grade five, students also practice these reading strategies in their core reading classes and 

in leveled, guided reading groups. These guided reading classes support the work of the core reading classes and 

are based on the same units of study and content standards as the core reading course. All teachers in the school 

(not simply English-Language Arts teachers) are assigned a group of students based on reading fluency, 

decoding, and comprehension assessment data. These groups are smaller in size than other core classes in order to 

provide increased opportunities for each student to read and receive specific feedback from their teacher. 

Teachers lead students through shared texts, with a level of support appropriate to the group’s reading level.. 

 

A textual analysis component provides students the opportunity to apply specific reading skills to shorter pieces 

of texts that, through repeated practice, help students develop their ability to decipher questions and use evidence 

from the text to support their answers. These passages and questions are carefully selected to prepare students for 

mastery of the reading standards at each grade level.  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 25 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

Students read independently for at least 30 minutes a day in grades K-3 and an hour a day in grades 4-8, including 

supervised reading time at school and assigned reading at home. 

 

 Vocabulary. The development of academic vocabulary is a school-wide focus. Teachers in all content areas use 

research-based best practices for explicitly teaching new words, providing opportunities to learn words in context, 

and providing students with the necessary opportunities to practice these words repeatedly across content areas in 

collaborative conversations and writing. In addition, teachers provide students with instruction about word parts 

(prefixes, suffixes, and Latin and Greek roots) and strategies for learning new words so that students increase 

their vocabularies as they encounter unfamiliar words in their daily reading.  

 

 Writing and Grammar Students in kindergarten through sixth grade also have opportunities to write for multiple 

purposes to improve their writing skills. They will write arguments to support claims in an analysis of substantive 

topics and off selected texts. In addition, students will write informative and explanatory texts to examine and 

convey complex ideas and information as well as narratives to develop read or imagined experiences or events.  

In addition, through the explicit teaching and practice of grammar and spelling rules, students master conventions 

of the English language and will be held accountable for these conventions in the writing they complete at 

school—not just in writing, but in all of their classes. Students are expected to write every day, in every class and 

for a variety of purposes.  
 

M a t h e m a t i c s  
 

All students need a high-quality mathematics program designed to prepare them to graduate from high school 

ready for college and careers. In support of this goal, SAUSD adopted the Common Core State Standards in 

mathematics. The following is a brief summary of the standards by grade: 

 

K i n d e r g a r t e n :   

1. Counting and Cardinality  

 Know number names and the count sequence  

 Count to tell the number of objects 

 Compare numbers 

2. Operations and Algebraic Thinking  

 Understand addition as putting together and adding to, and understand subtraction as taking apart and 

taking from 

3. Number and Operations in Base Ten  

 Work with numbers 11–19 to gain foundations for place value 

4. Measurement and Data  

 Describe and compare measurable attributes  

 Classify objects and count the number of objects in categories 

5. Geometry  

 Identify and describe shapes 

 Analyze, compare, create, and compose shapes 

 

F i r s t  G r a d e :   

1. Operations and Algebraic Thinking  

 Represent and solve problems involving addition and subtraction.  

 Understand and apply properties of operations and the relationship between addition and subtraction. 

 Add and subtract within 20. 

 Work with addition and subtraction equations.  

2. Number and Operations in Base Ten  

 Extend the counting sequence.  

 Understand place value.  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 26 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 Use place value understanding and properties of operations to add and subtract.  

3. Measurement and Data  

 Measure lengths indirectly and by iterating length units.  

 Tell and write time.  

 Represent and interpret data.  

4. Geometry  

 Reason with shapes and their attributes. 

 

S e c o n d  G r a d e :   

1. Operations and Algebraic Thinking  

 Represent and solve problems involving addition and subtraction.  

 Add and subtract within 20. 

 Work with equal groups of objects to gain foundations for multiplication.  

2. Number and Operations in Base Ten  

 Understand place value.  

 Use place value understanding and properties of operations to add and subtract.  

3. Measurement and Data  

 Measure and estimate lengths in standard units.  

 Relate addition and subtraction to length.  

 Work with time and money.  

 Represent and interpret data.  

4. Geometry  

 Reason with shapes and their attributes.  

 

T h i r d  G r a d e :   

1. Operations and Algebraic Thinking  

 Represent and solve problems involving multiplication and division.  

 Understand properties of multiplication and the relationship between multiplication and division. 

 Multiply and divide within 100.  

 Solve problems involving the four operations, and identify and explain patterns in arithmetic. 

2. Number and Operations in Base Ten  

 Use place value understanding and properties of operations to perform multi-digit arithmetic. 

3. Number and Operations—Fractions  

 Develop understanding of fractions as numbers.  

4. Measurement and Data  

 Solve problems involving measurement and estimation of intervals of time, liquid volumes, and 

masses of objects 

 Represent and interpret data.   

 Geometric measurement: understand concepts of area and relate area to multiplication and to 

addition.  

 Geometric measurement: recognize perimeter as an attribute of plane figures and distinguish between 

linear and area measures.  

5. Geometry 

 Reason with shapes and their attributes. 

 

F o u r t h  G r a d e :   

1. Operations and Algebraic Thinking  

 Use the four operations with whole numbers to solve problems.  

 Gain familiarity with factors and multiples.  

 Generate and analyze patterns.  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 27 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

2. Number and Operations in Base Ten  

 Generalize place value understanding for multi-digit whole numbers.  

 Use place value understanding and properties of operations to perform multi-digit arithmetic.  

3. Number and Operations—Fractions  

 Extend understanding of fraction equivalence and ordering.  

 Build fractions from unit fractions by applying and extending previous understandings of operations 

on whole numbers.  

 Understand decimal notation for fractions, and compare decimal fractions.  

4. Measurement and Data 

 Solve problems involving measurement and conversion of measurements from a larger unit to a 

smaller unit.  

 Represent and interpret data.  

 Geometric measurement: understand concepts of angle and measure angles.  

5. Geometry 

 Draw and identify lines and angles, and classify shapes by properties of their lines and angles. 

 

F i f t h  G r a d e :   

1. Operations and Algebraic Thinking  

 Write and interpret numerical expressions.  

 Analyze patterns and relationships.  

2. Number and Operations in Base Ten  

 Understand the place value system.  

 Perform operations with multi-digit whole numbers and with decimals to hundredths.  

3. Number and Operations—Fractions  

 Use equivalent fractions as a strategy to add and subtract fractions.  

 Apply and extend previous understandings of multiplication and division to multiply and divide 

fractions.  

4. Measurement and Data  

 Convert like measurement units within a given measurement system.  

 Represent and interpret data.  

 Geometric measurement: understand concepts of volume and relate volume to multiplication and to 

addition.  

5. Geometry 

 Graph points on the coordinate plane to solve real-world and mathematical problems.  

 Classify two-dimensional figures into categories based on their properties.  

 

S i x t h  G r a d e :  

1. Ratios and Proportional Relationships  

 Understand ratio concepts and use ratio reasoning to solve problems.  

2. The Number System  

 Apply and extend previous understandings of multiplication and division to divide fractions by 

fractions.  

 Compute fluently with multi-digit numbers and find common factors and multiples.  

 Apply and extend previous understandings of numbers to the system of rational numbers. 

3. Expressions and Equations  

 Apply and extend previous understandings of arithmetic to algebraic expressions.  

 Reason about and solve one-variable equations and inequalities.  

 Represent and analyze quantitative relationships between dependent and independent variables.  

4. Geometry  

 Solve real-world and mathematical problems involving area, surface area, and volume.  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 28 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

5. Statistics and Probability  

 Develop understanding of statistical variability.  

 Summarize and describe distributions. 

 
 
S e v e n t h  G r a d e :   

1. Ratios and Proportional Relationships  

 Analyze proportional relationships and use them to solve real-world and mathematical problems.  

2. The Number System  

 Apply and extend previous understandings of operations with fractions to add, subtract, multiply, and 

divide rational numbers.  

3. Expressions and Equations  

 Use properties of operations to generate equivalent expressions.  

 Solve real-life and mathematical problems using numerical and algebraic expressions and equations. 

4. Geometry  

 Draw, construct and describe geometrical figures and describe the relationships between them.  

 Solve real-life and mathematical problems involving angle measure, area, surface area, and volume. 

5. Statistics and Probability  

 Use random sampling to draw inferences about a population.  

 Draw informal comparative inferences about two populations.  

 Investigate chance processes and develop, use, and evaluate probability models. 

 

E i g h t h  G r a d e :  

1. The Number System  
 Know that there are numbers that are not rational, and approximate them by rational numbers. 

2. Expressions and Equations  
 Work with radicals and integer exponents.  
 Understand the connection between proportional relationships, lines, and linear equations.  
 Analyze and solve linear equations and pairs of simultaneous linear equations.  

3. Functions  
 Define, evaluate, and compare functions.  
 Use functions to model relationships between quantities.  

4. Geometry  
 Understand congruence and similarity using physical models, transparencies, or geometry software. 
 Understand and apply the Pythagorean Theorem.  
 Solve real-world and mathematical problems involving volume of cylinders, cones, and spheres. 

5. Statistics and Probability 
 Investigate patterns of association in bivariate data. 

 

Com p uter  S c i e n c e  

At the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, every teacher will have access to dedicated computers in 

their classrooms to prepare and present teaching activities such as class documentary movies, presentations, etc. 

Wireless network access will be available at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy. Teachers will 

use various types of technology during classroom instruction, including computer and projector, interactive 

technology tools, and access to educational websites. Furthermore, the school will utilize computers to support 

the instructional and managerial needs, such as online grades and attendance information, online homework, and 

student progress reports for parents using the school information system. 

 

During intervention, teachers use educational materials that provide review, re-teach and enrichment programs. 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 29 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy would utilize the same computer software programs and 

other resources as SAUSD that allow teachers to monitor the progress of students who are achieving below grade 

level, and provide software generated tests and personalized instructional materials based on common core and 

California content standards/framework which have not been achieved. 

 

Students at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will develop their ability to use technology as a 

tool for learning, research, observation, and communication. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning 

Academy encourages parents’ active use of school’s technology resources by offering free tutorial sessions on 

how to track student’s performance using School information system and providing computer access to all 

parents. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy is aware of the fact that, given its target 

population, a high percentage of students may have either limited or no access to any computer outside the 

school. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s computer science curriculum is designed for 

students with limited computer experience. Students requiring extra time with a computer will have the 

opportunity to visit the computer lab after school. 

 

T ex tb o ok s  &  I ns t ru c t io na l  Ma t er ia l s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy, as a District-dependent charter, will adopt instructional 

materials that are aligned with Common Core State Standard instructional materials. The Charter SchoolThe 

Advanced Learning Academy’s Co-Director will work with the District’s Chief Academic OfficerEducational 

Services Division and teacher leaders to identify, evaluate, and select appropriate materials and to make 

modifications to core and additional instructional resources.  

 

Sm a l l  S cho o l  En vi ro nm en t  
 

Research has repeatedly indicated that small schools are highly effective in ensuring that urban students reach 

proficiency. Among the benefits of smaller schools are: 

 

 Lower dropout rates  

 More course completion  

 Higher grades and improvements in standardized test scores  

 Better attendance  

 Less exposure to violence  

 Increased student engagement and achievement  

 Better communication among the staff  

 Increased parent involvement  

 Greater accountability  

At full enrollment the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will serve 600 students kindergarten 

through eighth grade. This small size and strategic growth plan allows us to create an environment where every 

staff member knows each student by name, individual supports are a vital component of the daily schedule, and a 

strong, orderly, academic culture is consistently maintained. This small school size provides the structure 

necessary for student success while at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy and also allows the 

students to develop the character and discipline necessary for future success.  

 

Cu l tur e  o f  Hig h  Ex p ec ta t io ns  
 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy has created a structured learning environment where 

everyone is held to high behavioral and academic expectations at all times. Leaders, teachers, and staff are 

expected to be professionals who work to the absolute best of their ability to ensure each student’s success. Every 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 30 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

staff member must be organized, meticulous, and passionate in the school-wide pursuit of excellence. Each is be a 

model of the lifelong learner we challenge our students to become.  

 

The leadership, teachers, and staff work together to create and support the high level of structure necessary for 

students to succeed academically and behaviorally. A clearly defined Code of Conduct outlines the behaviors 

expected from each student and the consequences for both positive and negative choices. Seemingly small details 

are given careful attention at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy. From strict enforcement of the 

uniform policy, to standards for binder organization, to rules for behavior in the hallway, every detail is planned 

to ensure a safe, orderly, respectful school community.  

 

In addition to this highly structured approach to management and discipline, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy also works to create a caring, joyful community in which positive reinforcement and explicit 

character development efforts help students to build intrinsic motivation. Based on the success of this approach as 

used at the highest-performing urban charter schools serving a similar population, consistent enforcement of 

consequences for small infractions prevents larger infractions from occurring. 

 

 

Sam p l e  Ins t ru c t io na l  Ca l end a r  &  B el l  S ch ed u le  

 

TABLE 4: Sample Elementary Bell Schedule 

Lower Elementary      (TK-2) 

Breakfast 8:15 AM 8:30 AM 

Reading/Writing/ELA  8:30 AM 10:20 AM 

Recess 10:20 AM 10:40 AM 

Math 10:40 AM 12:05 PM 

Lunch 12:05 PM 12:30 PM 

PALS (READING) 12:30 PM 12:55 PM 

Specials 12:55 PM 1:40 PM 

Science/Social Studies 1:40 PM 2:25 PM 

Dismissal 2:25 PM 2:40 PM 

Tutoring / Clubs 2:40 PM 3:30 PM 

 

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 31 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

TABLE 5: Sample Intermediate Bell Schedule  

 
6 7 8 

1st Period 8:00 AM 8:56 AM ENGLISH ENGLISH ENGLISH 

2nd Period 9:00 AM 9:56 AM MATH MATH MATH 

3rd Period 10:00 AM 10:56 AM SOCIAL STUDIES SOCIAL STUDIES SOCIAL STUDIES 

LUNCH 11:00 AM 11:28 AM LUNCH LUNCH LUNCH 

Reading 11:32 AM 12:00 PM PALS PALS PALS 

4th Period 12:04 PM 1:00 PM SCIENCE SCIENCE SCIENCE 

5th Period 1:04 PM 2:00 PM 

ELECTIVE/  

ELA-MATH 

ENRICHMENT 

ELECTIVE/  

ELA-MATH 

ENRICHMENT 

ELECTIVE/  

ELA-MATH 

ENRICHMENT 

6th Period 2:04 PM 3:00 PM 

ELECTIVE/ 

ELA-MATH 

ENRICHMENT 

ELECTIVE/  

ELA-MATH 

ENRICHMENT 

ELECTIVE/  

ELA-MATH 

ENRICHMENT 

After School 3:10 PM 4:00 PM TUTORING/CLUBS TUTORING/CLUBS TUTORING/CLUBS 

 

EXHIBIT 2: Sample Academic School Calendar



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 32 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

E. PLAN FOR ACADEMICALLY LOW ACHIEVING STUDENTS  

California’s high stakes standardized testing program provides results too late for meaningful academic 

adjustments. Therefore, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy students will be tested in the 

beginning of the school year and several times during the year with standards-based and large-scaled tests, and 

necessary adjustments to the instruction are made based upon the data.  

 

Campus-wide tests will be used to measure individual levels of student performance reflected in state adopted 

content standards. The tests will measure various skills, such as analytic ability, critical thinking, and synthesis. 

While the testing is not used as a basis for student promotion, it will provide a valuable resource to identify 

students in need of remediation and intervention. The tests will be administered three times every academic year. 

They adapt to the student's ability, measuring what a child knows and needs to learn. They also measure academic 

growth over time, independent of grade level or age.  

 

Students are tested in four main subject areas: Reading, Language Usage, Mathematics, and Science. Based on 

results, student performances will be identified as one of the following: 

 Proficient and growing 

 Proficient and not growing 

 Growing but not proficient 

 Not growing and not proficient 

 

While we believe that most students’ needs will be met by the wide variety of school-wide supports in place, the 

Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is committed to working with students who are achieving below 

grade level in order to help them achieve at expected levels.  

 

A student at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is considered low-achieving if they meet the 

following criteria: 

1. Performing more than one level below his/her actual grade level based on class assignments and 

assessments, including a proficient score of Below Basic or Far Below Basic on the California 

Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CST CAASPP) and equivalent scores on Measures of 

Academic Performance (nationally-normedMAP) assessments  

2. Earning below 70% in one or more core subjects and therefore in danger of failing the grade  

3. Not on track to make at least one grade level of growth in reading, writing, and math  

Students with below-grade-level skills benefit from the following components of our school’s design: 

 Highly skilled teachers who use a variety of effective teaching strategies and techniques  

 Supportive culture of high expectations and discipline  

 Predictable class structure in all content areas  

 Extended time for literacy (reading and writing) instruction in grades kindergarten through six  

 Small, leveled guided reading groups in grades kindergarten through five  

 Systematic, explicit instruction in phonics and phonemic awareness in kindergarten through first grade  

 Systematic reading strategy and textual analysis instruction  

 Extensive independent reading at each student’s level  

 Small group math instruction in grades kindergarten through three  

 Systematic writing and grammar instruction  

 Word Walls to reinforce academic vocabulary  

 Frequent use of ―think-pair-share‖ and other cooperative learning strategies  

 Use of graphic organizers to represent ideas  

 Reinforcement of ELA standards in all content areas  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 33 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 Explicit vocabulary instruction in all content areas  

 Group work and oral presentations in all content areas  

 Frequent use of assessments and specific feedback from teachers  

 Frequent communication with and engagement of parents in supporting academic and behavioral 

expectations  

 

In upper grades, students identified as low achieving will also attend intensive obligatory after school programs 

tailored towards each student’s needs. This specialized strategy provides the opportunity for struggling students to 

master the relevant subject’s content standards.  

 

Students demonstrating adequate improvement can advance to a satisfactory level where they are provided 

moderate tutoring sessions and various fun opportunities, such as recreational clubs, and community trips. For 

those low-achieving students who do not positively respond to intervention/instruction, the homeroom teachers 

may decide to include them in different recreational activities to promote students’ interest in learning. The 

teacher will regularly monitor academic improvement for these low achieving students through in-class 

assessment and monitoring tools. Parents will remain informed of their student’s academic progress during this 

process via parent-student-teacher meetings and parent access to student grades and progress reports. 

 

F. PLAN FOR ACADEMICALLY HIGH ACHIEVING STUDENTS  
 

We are committed in engaging in comprehensive strategies for all students enrolled at the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy. While we believe that most students are appropriately challenged by our rigorous 

academic program, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is committed to working with students 

who are performing above grade level to provide additional challenge.  

 

Students earning advanced scores on the CSTCAASPP or MAP, or otherwise identified by the staff as high-

achieving, benefit from the following components of our school’s design:  

 

• Highly skilled teachers who use a variety of effective teaching strategies and techniques that challenge each 

student  

• Small school size and safe environment, where academic achievement is cool  

• Small, leveled guided reading groups that allow high-achieving students to access challenging literature  

• Extensive independent reading at each student’s level that allows each child to excel at his or her own pace  

• Frequent use of ―think-pair-share‖ and other cooperative learning strategies  

• Opportunities to further develop literacy skills in all content areas  

• Group work and oral presentations in all content areas  

• Frequent use of assessments and specific feedback from teachers  

• Frequent communication with and engagement of parents in supporting our college preparatory mission  

• Opportunities to build leadership skills through peer tutoring  

 

Classroom teachers are trained to differentiate lessons to meet the needs of advanced learners, and provide 

learning experiences that meet the special needs of these students with regard to the pace of lessons, the depth of 

content presented, and variety of processes used and products created.  

 

High-achieving students will also be offered opportunities to study a variety of advanced concepts in core 

academic subjects and enrichment topics. Additional opportunities for high-achieving students include advanced 

book clubs, poetry readings, math Olympics, journalism, robotics, speech and debate. These students are also 

challenged through preparation for and participation in a variety of school-based, local and/or national academic 

competitions, like spelling bees, science fairs, and Science Olympiad.  

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 34 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

G. PLAN FOR ENGLISH LEARNERS 
 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will meet all applicable legal requirements for English 

Learners (―EL‖) as it pertains to annual notification to parents, student identification, placement, program options, 

EL and core content instruction, teacher qualifications and training, re-classification to fluent English proficient 

status, monitoring and evaluating program effectiveness, and standardized testing requirement. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will implement policies to assure proper placement, evaluation, and 

communication regarding ELs and the rights of students and parents.  

 

Hom e La ng uag e  Su rvey  
 
The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will administer the home language survey upon a student’s 

initial enrollment into the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy.  

 

CE L DT  T es t ing  
 

All students who indicate that their home language is other than English will be a California English Language 

Development Test (―CELDT‖) tested within thirty days of initial enrollment and at least annually thereafter 

between July 1
st
 and October 31

st
 until re-designated as fluent English proficient.  

 

R ecla s s i f i ca t io n  Pro ced ur es  
 

Reclassification procedures utilize multiple criteria in determining whether to classify a pupil as proficient in 

English including, but not limited to, all of the following:  

 

 Assessment of language proficiency using an objective assessment instrument including,  but not limited 

to, the CELDT.  

 Participation of the pupil’s classroom teachers and any other certificated staff with direct responsibility 

for teaching or placement decisions of the pupil to evaluate the pupil’s curriculum mastery.  

 Parental opinion and consultation, achieved through notice to parents or guardians of the language 

reclassification and placement including a description of the reclassification process and the parents’ 

opportunity to participate, and encouragement of the participation of parents or guardians in the 

reclassification procedure including seeking their opinion and consultation during the reclassification 

process.  

 Comparison of the pupil’s performance in basic skills against an empirically established range of 

performance and basic skills based upon the performance of English proficient pupils of the same age that 

demonstrate to others that the pupil is sufficiently proficient in English to participate effectively in a 

curriculum designed for pupils of the same age whose native language is English.  

 The Student Oral Language Observation Matrix may be used by teachers to measure progress regarding 

comprehension, fluency, vocabulary, pronunciation, and grammar usage.  

 

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 35 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

St ra t eg ie s  fo r  Eng l i sh  L ea rn er s  
 

The programs, materials and strategies to be developed, implemented and administered may include:  

 

 Parents will be informed of how the program will specifically help their students learn English taught by 

qualified teachers who are providing research based instruction.  

 Parents will be encouraged to be involved in the academic achievement of their student through written 

and oral communications which have been translated into the Spanish language Translation into other 

languages can be accomplished through the use of Santa Ana Unified School District personnel when 

necessary.  

 Parent meetings and conferences regarding their student’s identification, placement, progress, and exit 

criteria will have translators available.  

 Parents will receive support strategies to assist their student at home 

 Spanish speaking individuals will make phone calls to parents and translate at meetings 

 

 

H. PLAN FOR SOCIO-ECONOMICALLY DISADVANTAGED STUDENTS  

A goal of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is to expose students to STEM curriculum and 

inspire students to pursue STEM-related careers that might not have otherwise been exposed to STEM 

curriculum. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy plans to offer the District a unique educational 

program that accomplishes this goal. 

 

We believe that poverty alone does not indicate the need for specific instructional techniques. Our instructional 

approaches are based on each student’s instructional needs, not their income level. Our school design is based on 

highly successful urban schools that serve a similar population of low-income students and offers a multitude of 

supports that meet the needs of potentially ―at-risk students, including:  

 

• Highly skilled teachers who use a variety of effective teaching strategies and techniques  

• Small school size and safe environment  

• Supportive culture of high expectations and discipline  

• Predictable class structure in all content areas  

• Extended time for literacy (reading and writing) instruction  

• Small, leveled guided reading groups  

• Systematic, explicit instruction in phonics and phonemic awareness in kindergarten through first grade  

• Systematic reading strategy and textual analysis instruction  

• Extensive independent reading at each student’s level  

• Phonics, decoding, and fluency groups  

• Systematic writing and grammar instruction  

• Small group math instruction in grades kindergarten through three  

• Frequent use of ―think-pair-share‖ and other cooperative learning strategies  

• Use of graphic organizers to represent ideas  

• Reinforcement of ELA standards in all content areas  

• Explicit vocabulary instruction in all content areas  

• Group work and oral presentations in all content areas  

• Frequent use of assessments and specific feedback from teachers  

• Frequent communication with and engagement of parents in supporting academic and behavioral 

expectations. 

 

California Department of Education defines socio-economically disadvantaged student as a student neither of 

whose parents have received a high school diploma or as a student who is eligible for the free or reduced-price 

lunch program, also known as the National School Lunch Program (NSLP).  The Charter SchoolThe Advanced 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 36 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

Learning Academy will also use registration records, home visits and parent surveys to identify the socio-

economically disadvantaged students.  

 

Being socio-economically disadvantaged means that the parents would likely not be able to provide sufficient 

help with topics taught in class or homework assigned to the student. Every student has a potential to learn and 

excel. However, not all students have the motivation to excel, or the means to do so. Socio-economically 

disadvantaged students are prone to fail because of lack of high expectation, or they do not have necessary 

assistance and guidance required of their families. 

 

The instructional design of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy addresses the needs of low-

income and socio-economically disadvantaged students. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy 

will identify the socio-economically disadvantaged and low-achieving students in the first weeks of the academic 

year, and implement early intervention where indicated.  

 

While tutoring, additional resources given by teachers and available at the library, and after school programs will 

enhance the academic progress of the students; motivational guest speaker programs, parent meetings, university 

and college visits,  and field trips are planned to shape the educational vision of the student and the family. Socio-

economically disadvantaged students will have role models around them who will inspire motivation to focus on 

lessons and self-confidence with the discovery of their potential. 

 

I. PLAN FOR SPECIAL EDUCATION 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy recognizes its responsibility to enroll and support students 

with disabilities who can benefit from its programs and who otherwise qualify for enrollment and pledges to work 

in cooperation with SAUSD to ensure that a free and appropriate education is provided to all students with 

exceptional needs. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will comply with all applicable state and 

federal laws in serving students with disabilities, including, but not limited to the Individuals with Disabilities 

Education Act of 2004 (IDEA), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title II of the Americans with 

Disabilities Act, and any other civil rights enforced by the U.S. Department of Education Office of Civil Rights 

(OCR). Furthermore, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will comply with AB 602, SAUSD 

guidelines, and all California laws pertaining to special education students.  

 

Initially and by default, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall be considered a ―school of the 

District‖ for purposes of Special Education purposes pursuant to Education Code Section 47641(b).  However, 

the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy reserves the right to make written verifiable assurances that 

it may become an independent local educational agency (LEA) and join a SELPA pursuant to Education Code 

Section 47641(a) either on its own or with a grouping of charter school LEAs as a consortium. A change in LEA 

status or SELPA membership shall not constitute a material revision of this charter.  

 

So long as the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy operates as a public school of the District, solely 

for purposes of providing special education and related services under the IDEA pursuant to Education Code 

Section 47641(b) and in accordance with Education Code Section 47646 and 20 U.S.C. 1413, the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy seeks services from the District for special education students enrolled in 

the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy in the same manner as is provided to students in other 

District schools.   

 

Per Federal Law, all students with disabilities will be fully integrated into the programs of the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy, with the necessary materials, services, and equipment to support their learning. 

The school will ensure that any student with a disability attending the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy is properly identified, assessed and provided with necessary services and supports. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will meet all the requirements mandated within a student’s 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 37 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

Individualized Education Program (IEP). The school will seek to include all special needs students with non-

disabled peers to the maximum extent appropriate according to their IEP. However, if the student's needs as 

documented on the IEP require a program other than inclusion, the school will work with the District and/or 

SELPA to provide an appropriate placement and services. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will work with the District to make time and facilities 

available to meet the needs of the student’s IEP. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will 

actively participate in all aspects of the IEP to enable the student to be successful, including the appropriate 

individual tutoring schedule and classroom modifications, strategies, and techniques. The school will make 

available student’s work products for analysis and evaluation of progress and will participate in the IEP reviews 

conducted by the District.  

 

If a parent or faculty member feels the student’s educational needs are not being met, they may request a 

reassessment or a review of the IEP by the IEP team at any time during the year via written notice to the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, which will then forward such written notice to SAUSD within two 

school days. The school will encourage open communication between the parents and the district for any items 

related to the special education services. Students at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy who 

have IEP’s will continue to attend the school, unless the IEP recommends otherwise and states why. 

 

In order to comply with Child Find requirements as specified by law, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy will establish a referral and assessment process that brings together the parent/guardian, student, and 

school personnel to address any problems that interfere with a student’s success at the school. This process will 

entail search and serve, a Student Study Team, referral, assessment and IEP review.  

 

I n t er im  & I n i t i a l  P la cem en t s  o f  N ew Cha r te r  S cho o l  S tud en t s  

If a student enrolls at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy with an existing IEP, the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will notify SAUSD within 5 days. An IEP meeting will be convened 

within 30 days to review the existing IEP, discuss the students’ present levels of performance and needs, and offer 

an appropriate placement and services. Prior to such meeting and pending agreement on a new IEP, the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall work with the District or SELPA to implement the existing IEP at 

the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy or as otherwise agreed by the parent/guardian.   

 

R ef er ra l  fo r  A ss e ssm en t  

The referral process is a formal, ongoing review of information related to students who are suspected of showing 

potential signs of needing special education and related services. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning 

Academy’s internal method of referral for assessment will be the Student Study Team.  The parent of any student 

suspected of needing or qualifying for special education services may also make a referral for an evaluation. Any 

such referrals will be responded to in writing by the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy within 15 

days, either granting the request or denying the request pursuant to CFR 300.503 prior written notice 

requirements. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will notify SAUSD of the assessment request 

on the receipt of the request.  Parents will be informed via the Special Education Administrator that special 

education and related services are provided at no cost to them.  

 

The Assessment Plan along with the Parental Safeguards document is adequate notice of granting the request for 

assessment. The parent will be given at least 15 days to provide written consent to the Assessment Plan. 

Assessments will be done only upon receipt of written parent permission. The assessment will be completed and 

an Individualized Education Program (IEP) meeting held within 60 days of receipt of the parent’s written consent 

for assessment. 

 

A ss es sm en t  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 38 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

The Principal will be responsible for gathering all pertinent information and sharing such information with the 

District. Information gathered will be used as tools to determine the student’s disability, eligibility for services, 

and determining the nature and extent of required services.  Assessment procedures will be conducted in the 

student’s primary language unless to do so is clearly not feasible, and an interpreter will be provided if needed. 

The types of assessments that may be used for determining eligibility for specialized instruction and services will 

include, but are not limited to: 

 Individual testing; 

 Teacher observations; 

 Interviews; 

 Review of school records, reports, and work samples; and 

 Parent input. 

Unless conflicting with District or SELPA policies and procedures, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy will follow the following assessment guidelines. If a conflict with District policies and procedures 

exists, then District policies and procedures will govern.  

   

 Parents or guardians of any student referred for assessment must give their written consent for the school 

to administer the assessment; 

 The assessment will be completed and an IEP meeting held within 60 days of receipt of the parent’s 

written consent for assessment;  

 The student must be evaluated in all areas related to his/her suspected disability; 

 Assessments must be conducted by a person with knowledge of the student’s suspected disability and 

administered by trained and knowledgeable personnel in accordance with any instructions provided by 

the producer of the assessments. Individually administered tests of intellectual or emotional functioning 

must be administered by a credentialed school psychologist; 

 Assessments must be selected and administered so as not to be racially, culturally, or sexually 

discriminatory; 

 Assessments will be delivered in the student’s primary language unless to do so is clearly not feasible, 

and a qualified interpreter will be provided if needed; 

 Assessment tools must be used for purposes for which the assessments or measures are valid and reliable; 

and 

 Assessments will be adapted as necessary for students with impaired sensory, physical or speaking skills; 

and 

 A multidisciplinary team will be assembled to assess the student, including a teacher knowledgeable in 

the disability. 

Upon completion of the assessment, an IEP team will be assembled to review the results of the assessment and 

determine the student’s need for special education. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy, in 

coordination with SAUSD will be responsible for scheduling, coordinating and facilitating the IEP meeting.  

Educators qualified to interpret test results will present the assessment data at the IEP meeting. Parents will be 

provided with written notice of the IEP meeting, and the meeting will be held at a mutually agreeable time and 

place.  

 

D eve lo pm en t  &  Im p l em en ta t io n  o f  IEP  

Every student who is assessed by the school will have an IEP that documents assessment results and eligibility 

determination for special education services.   

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy, in collaboration with SAUSD, will ensure that all aspects 

of the IEP are implemented at the school site. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will provide 

accommodations (outlined within each individual’s IEP) in the general education environment taught by the 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 39 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

general education teacher. Students at the school who have IEP’s will be served in the Least Restrictive 

Environment (LRE). 

 

Each student’s IEP team oversees the IEP development and implementation and documentation of progress of the 

student. All decisions concerning the special education programs and services to be provided to a student with a 

disability are to be made by the IEP team. The IEP team must include all of the following members:  

 

 The parent or guardian of the student for whom the IEP was developed 

 The Student, if appropriate 

 The Principal or designee 

 At least one special education teacher  of the student 

 A General Education teacher who is familiar with the curriculum appropriate to that student, if the student 

is, or may be, participating in the general education environment; 

 A District Special Education Representative 

 If the child was recently assessed, the individual who conducted the assessment or who is qualified to 

interpret the assessment results; 

Others familiar with the student may be invited as needed. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy 

views the parent as a key stakeholder in these meetings and will make every effort to accommodate parents’ 

schedules and needs so that they will be able to participate effectively on the IEP team. The school will provide 

an interpreter if necessary to ensure that all parents and/or guardians understand and can participate in the IEP 

process. If a parent cannot attend the IEP meeting, the school will ensure his/her participation using other 

methods, such as conferencing by telephone.  

 

A copy of the IEP will be given to the parent in accordance with federal and state laws and SAUSD policies. 

Upon the parent or guardian’s written consent, the IEP will be implemented by the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy, in cooperation with the District or SELPA in which the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy is a member. The IEP will include all required components and be written on District forms.  

 

 The student’s IEP will include the following: 

 

 A statement of the student’s present levels of academic achievement and functional performance 

 The rationale for placement decisions 

 The services the student will receive and the means for delivering those services 

 A description of when services will begin, how often the student will receive them, who will provide 

them, and where they will be delivered 

 Measurable annual goals and short-term objectives focusing on the student’s current level of performance 

 A description of how the student’s progress toward meeting the annual goals will be measured and 

monitored and when reports will be provided  

 Accommodations necessary to measure the academic achievement and functional performance of the 

student on state and district assessments 

 For students 16 years of age and older or younger than 16 years of age, if the IEP team deems 

appropriate, measurable postsecondary goals related to training, education, employment and independent 

living skills, along with transition services needed to assist the student in reaching those goals.  

 

IEP meetings will be held according to the following schedule: 

 

 Yearly to review the student’s progress and make any necessary changes to conduct student’s Annual 

Review IEP 

 Every three years to review the results of a mandatory comprehensive reevaluation of the student’s 

eligibility and unique needs progress 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 40 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 After the student has received a formal assessment or reassessment 

 When a parent, teacher or other team member requests an IEP review for a student, consistent with state 

and federal law, IEP meetings will be held within 30 days of a parent’s request during the school year 

 When an Individual Transition Plan is (ITP) required at the appropriate age 

 When the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy seeks to suspend or remove the student for a 

period of 10 days or more for the same behavior, in order to determine if the student’s misconduct was a 

manifestation of his/her disability. 

 

1. IEP Review 

The IEP team will formally review the student’s IEP at least once a year to determine how the IEP is meeting 

his/her needs. In accordance with IDEA regulations, the IEP team will also conduct a formal review of the IEP 

once every three years, in which the student is reassessed to determine if the student remains eligible for special 

education and, if so, the student’s unique needs and goals.  

 

If a parent or faculty member believes the student’s educational needs are not being met, they may request a 

reassessment or a review of the IEP by the IEP team at any time during the school year via written notice to the 

school. Once the request is received, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will have thirty days to 

hold the IEP meeting. 

 

Parents will be informed of student progress as specified on the students’ IEP. The District’s electronic IEP and 

progress report shall be utilized by the Charter.  

2. Staffing 

Although SAUSD will hold ultimate responsibility for providing Special Education services (so long as the 

Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy operates as a school of the District for purposes of special 

education), the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is committed to assuring all IEPs are properly 

implemented. 

 

It is the goal of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy to employ at least one full time teacher who, 

in addition to having the proper credentials to teach a general education subject, will also possess a Special 

Education Credential.   This teacher, along with the principal Co-Director of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy, will be the primary Charter School representative tasked with assuring that all aspects of the 

IEPs and 504 plans are implemented.   All teaching staff at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy 

will implement all IEPs and 504 plans appropriately for students at the Charter.    

3. Reporting 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy, in collaboration with SAUSD, will collect and maintain all 

information on disabled students as required by the CDE, utilizing the District’s electronic IEP. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will utilize the Notice of Procedure Safeguards used by the District in 

which it is a member and pursuant to procedures established by the District.  

4. Complaint Resolution 

Parents or guardians also have the right to file a complaint with SAUSD and/or California State Department of 

Education if they believe that the school or SELPA has violated federal or state laws or regulations governing 

special education. 

5. Special Education Strategies for Instruction & Services 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will comply with the federal mandate of the ―least 

restrictive environment,‖ meaning that the school will make every attempt to educate special education students 

along with their non-disabled peers. the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will mainstream all of 

its students as much as is appropriate according to each individual IEP, offering a comprehensive inclusion 

program that includes specialized individual tutoring through the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 41 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

Academy’s extended day and year. Each student’s IEP requires differentiation for instruction and services, 

therefore the educational strategies of the IEP will be built around the student’s needs and how these fit within the 

general educational program of the school. The instruction outlined in each student’s IEP will be delivered by 

personnel qualified to do so.  

6. Professional Development for the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy Staff 

The School Director, Principal, regular and special education teaching staff, as well as other appropriate faculty 

and staff members will attend professional development and/or training meetings necessary to comply with state 

and federal special education laws, including those sponsored by the District or SELPA. 

So long as the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy operates as a ―school of the District‖ for special 

education purposes, DISTRICT agrees to allow the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy staff access 

to all Special Education related professional development opportunities that are available to district employees.   

 

7. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy shall be solely responsible for its compliance with Section 

504 of the Rehabilitation Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act.  All facilities of the School shall be 

accessible for all students with disabilities in accordance with the ADA.  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy recognizes its legal responsibility to ensure that no 

qualified person with a disability shall, on the basis of disability, be excluded from participation, be denied the 

benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy. Any student, who has an objectively identified disability which substantially limits a major 

life activity including but not limited to learning, is eligible for accommodation by the school. 

 

A 504 team will be assembled by the Principal Co-Director and shall include a SAUSD representative, the 

parent/guardian, the student, a qualified faculty member, and other qualified persons knowledgeable about the 

student, the meaning of the evaluation data, placement options, and accommodations. The 504 team will review 

the student’s existing records; including academic, social and behavioral records, and is responsible for making a 

determination as to whether an evaluation for 504 services is appropriate. If the student has already been 

evaluated under the IDEA but found ineligible for special education instruction or related services under the 

IDEA, those evaluations may be used to help determine eligibility under Section 504. The student evaluation shall 

be carried out by the 504 team who will evaluate the nature of the student’s disability and the impact upon the 

student’s education. This evaluation will include consideration of any behaviors that interfere with regular 

participation in the educational program and/or activities. The 504 team may also consider the following 

information in its evaluation: 

 

• Tests and other evaluation materials that have been validated for the specific purpose for which they are 

used and are administered by trained personnel. 

• Tests and other evaluation materials include those tailored to assess specific areas of educational need, 

and not merely those which are designed to provide a single general intelligent quotient. 

• Tests are selected and administered to ensure that when a test is administered to a student with impaired 

sensory, manual or speaking skills, the test results accurately reflect the student’s aptitude or achievement 

level, or whatever factor the test purports to measure, rather than reflecting the student’s impaired 

sensory, manual or speaking skills. 

 

The final determination of whether the student will or will not be identified as a person with a disability is made 

by the 504 team in writing and notice is given in writing to the parent or guardian of the student in their primary 

language along with the procedural safeguards available to them. If during the evaluation, the 504 team obtains 

information indicating possible eligibility of the student for special education per the IDEA, a referral for 

assessment under the IDEA will be made by the 504 team. 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 42 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 

If the student is found by the 504 team to have a disability under Section 504, the 504 team shall be responsible 

for determining what, if any, accommodations or services are needed to ensure that the student receives the free 

and appropriate public education (―FAPE‖). In developing the 504 Plan, the 504 team shall consider all relevant 

information utilized during the evaluation of the student, drawing upon a variety of sources, including, but not 

limited to, assessments conducted by the School’s professional staff. 

 

The 504 Plan shall describe the Section 504 disability and any program accommodations, modifications or 

services that may be necessary. All 504 team participants, parents, guardians, teachers and any other participants 

in the student’s education, including substitutes and tutors, must have access to each student’s 504 Plan. The 

Principal Co-Director will ensure that teachers include 504 Plans with lesson plans for short-term substitutes and 

that he/she review the 504 Plan with a long-term substitute. A copy of the 504 Plan shall be maintained in the 

student’s file. Each student’s 504 Plan will be reviewed at least once per year to determine the appropriateness of 

the Plan, needed modifications to the plan, and continued eligibility. 

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 43 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

ELEMENT TWO & THREE│ M E AS UR ABL E ST U DE NT OU T C OM ES  &   

P U PI L P R OGRESS  M EA SU REM E NT M ET HOD   

 
Governing Law: The measurable pupil outcomes identified for use by the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy. "Pupil outcomes," for purposes of this part, means the extent to which all pupils of the school 

demonstrate that they have attained the skills, knowledge, and attitudes specified as goals in the school's 

educational program. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(B). 

Governing Law: The method by which pupil progress in meeting those pupil outcomes is to be measured.  

Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(C). 

 

A. APPROACH TO ASSESSMENT & DATA 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s mission is to prepare students with the academic skills, 

character traits, and intellectual discipline necessary to excel in high school, college, and life. This includes 

providing at-risk elementary and intermediate school students with a college-preparatory instructional program 

that equips them for success in high school Honors and Advanced Placement courses. While we recognize that 

such growth is achieved in gradual, incremental steps, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy 

regularly assesses the effectiveness of our programs using a variety of assessment tools. These frequent and 

systematic assessments provide the school leadership and teachers with valuable data that allow us to critique our 

academic program, adapt instructional approaches, and establish new goals to best serve our student population. 

Should any changes to the measurable pupil outcomes be made, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy will submit those changes to the SAUSD as an update to the charter.   

 

We believe in the value of standardized test data and also recognize that no single assessment provides a 

comprehensive picture of student progress. As a result, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy uses 

a combination of assessments to gather valuable data about our students’ strengths and weaknesses and allow us 

to make informed instructional decisions. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy has created 

interim benchmark tests using a thorough understanding of grade-level standards and the school’s scope and 

sequence, an intense look at California’s released test questions and other relevant assessments, and will use the 

CDE’s blueprints as models for each benchmark test. Teachers receive professional development and on-going 

feedback to improve quality of their informal and formal assessments and push them to consistently analyze and 

use data in ways that drive student achievement.  

 

Da ta  Ana l ys i s  &  Da ta - Dr iven  In s t ru c t io n  

Management and teachers use test data to analyze areas of strength and weakness and to set priorities for each 

school year. Diagnostic assessments are administered at the start of each year to determine a baseline for students 

in English language arts and math. This data, along with classroom observation and other assessments, provides 

valuable details about students’ needs in each content area, and results are used to help teachers plan lessons, 

effectively differentiate, and participate in academic support groups during tutoring. 

 

Teachers meet with the management team after each round of interim assessments to closely inspect the data, 

look for patterns, and create an action plan for both the class and individual students based on the results. These 

action plans identify:  

 Skills/concepts to be retaught to the entire class  

 Skills/concepts to be retaught to small groups during class  

 Skills/concepts to be retaught to individual students with one-on-one teacher instruction or with the 

assistance of a peer or volunteer tutor  

 Adjustments to existing small groups for reading and math instruction  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 44 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 Weaknesses in the curriculum to be revised for subsequent years  

 Support and professional development for the teacher to strengthen areas of instructional weakness  

 

Action plans are revisited frequently in grade-level and content-area team meetings to ensure that students are 

making adequate progress toward mastery. At least one teacher professional development meeting each month 

will include the analysis of student assessment data.  

 

R ep o r t ing  o f  Da ta  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy creates a School Accountability Report Card (SARC) for 

submission to the CDE, including the following components. The SARC will be updated annually by the 

Operations Manager under the supervision of the Co-Director of Finance and Operations.  

• Demographic data  

• School safety and climate for learning information  

• Academic data  

• School completion rates  

• Class sizes  

• Teacher and staff information  

• Curriculum and instruction descriptions  

• Postsecondary preparation information  

• Fiscal and expenditure data  

• Adequate yearly progress data  

 

Com m uni ca t io n  o f  Da ta  w i th  S tud en t s  &  Fam i l i es  

Students and their families deserve to be consistently and proactively informed about student performance. The 

Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy involves students and their parents in the analysis of student 

work, noting progress, areas of strength, and plans to remediate any deficits.  

 

After each round of interim assessments, teachers share results with students during class and short individual 

conferences with each student. At these mini-conferences, teachers work with each student to set goals for the 

upcoming assessment and personalize an individual action plan, including small group instruction or tutoring, as 

needed.  

 

Teachers also use interim assessment results to create and maintain mastery charts for each student that show 

progress toward mastery for each content standard taught each year. These mastery charts are shared with 

students after each round of assessments and reviewed with parents at each report card conference. Interim 

assessment results, chapter and unit tests, and midterm and final exams are sent home for parents to review and 

sign.  

 

State testing results are also sent to families and the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy hosts an 

annual parent meeting each summer to share the school’s progress toward school-wide goals and also explain 

individual score reports to students and their families. The SARC will also be made available to the public 

through the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy website.  

 

St ud en t  A ch i evem en t  Go a l s  

The principal, staff, and teachers of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will be held accountable 

by the SAUSD for meeting the following student outcome goals, in addition to Common Core goals.  
  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 45 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

TABLE 6: Measurable Student Outcome Goals and Assessment T ools 

Outcome Goal Assessments  

Academic 

Performance 

Index (―API‖) 

growth 

For the first year of operation, met or exceed the API 

meet or exceed the API of comparable SAUSD schools 

identified in Table 1 in Element 1. For subsequent 

years, meet or exceed API growth target in the year 

prior. 

API reports (annual) 

Benchmark Map assessments 

(quarterly) 

Adequate Yearly 

Progress (―AYP‖) 

For the first year of operation, met or exceed the API 

meet or exceed the API of comparable SAUSD schools 

identified in Table 1 in Element 1. For subsequent 

years, meet or exceed API growth target in the year 

prior. 

AYP reports (annual) 

Benchmark MAP assessments 

(quarterly) 

Grade-level 

proficiency 

At least 80% of the students demonstrate grade-level 

proficiency on standards in Reading/Language Arts, 

Math, Science, and Social Studies. 

OR 5-10% increase in proficiency each yeara minimum 

of 1.5 years growth on the MAP 

CST CAASPP reports (annual) 

Benchmark MAP assessments 

(quarterly) 

End-of-year student report cards 

(annual) 

Student 

attendance rate 

Average daily attendance rate of at least 95% 

 

Daily attendance reporting via Aeries 

(daily) 

ADA rate report (monthly) 

Student 

suspension rate 

Suspension rate lower than the SAUSD average 

 

CDE records (annual) 

Suspension reporting via Aeries (daily) 

English Learner 

(EL) performance 

50% of ELs will advance one overall performance 

level on the CELDT each year. 

50% of ELs at overall Early Advanced performance 

level on the CELDT who are enrolled no less than one 

year will be reclassified to fluent English proficient 

(RFEP) each year. 

CELDT reports (annual) 

CDE records (annual) 

School records (annual) 

Graduation rate Graduation rate higher than the SAUSD average  

 

CDE records 

Enrollment and graduation records 

Dropout rate Dropout rate lower than the SAUSD average 

 

CDE records 

Enrollment and graduation records 

CAHSEE passing 

rate 

10th grade CAHSEE passing rate of more than 70% 

during the first test administration of the year 

CAHSEE reports  

 

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 46 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

TABLE 7: Representative Measurable Student Outcomes and Assessment Tools in Core Academic areas 

Curricular Focus Measurable Outcomes Assessment Tools 

Core Academic 

Skills (Mathematics) 

Ability to solve text-based as well as real-world 

problems using a variety of mathematics tools 

and procedures 

Implement a variety of problem-solving 

strategies. 

Develop fluency in basic 

computational/procedural skills. 

Communicate precisely about quantities and 

logical relationships.  

Make connections among mathematical ideas 

and between mathematics and other disciplines. 

Be aware of the range of careers available in 

mathematics. 

Assignments, tests and activities designed 

by the teacher or using published materials 

and sometimes scored using rubrics. 

(weekly, monthly, each semester)  

State-mandated tests aligned to standards 

(e.g., CSTCAASPP) (annual) 

Portfolios of student work, reports and/or 

presentations scored by the teacher using 

rubrics. (monthly) 

MAP Testing (quarterly) 

Core Academic 

Skills (Science) 

Work individually and on a team, using 

scientific inquiry and skills and the scientific 

method to ask and answer questions about the 

physical world. 

Use critical thinking skills to analyze scientific 

problems and reach conclusions. 

Effectively communicate results verbally and in 

writing. 

Be aware of the range of careers available in 

science. 

Assignments, tests and activities designed 

by the teacher or using published materials 

and sometimes scored using rubrics. 

(weekly, monthly, each semester) 

State-mandated tests aligned to standards 

(e.g., CSTCAASPP) (grades 6 – 8) 

(annual) 

Portfolios of student work, reports and/or 

exhibits scored by the teacher using 

rubrics. (monthly) 

MAP Testing (quarterly) 

Core Academic 

Skills (Language 

Arts) 

Grade-level and critical reading skills. 

Knowledge of a coherent body of literature from 

the traditional canon. 

Effective and accurate writing skills. 

Effective verbal communication skills.  

Critical-thinking skills. 

Assignments, tests and activities designed 

by the teacher or using published materials 

and sometimes scored using rubrics. 

(weekly, monthly, each semester)  

State-mandated tests aligned to standards 

(e.g., CSTCAASPP) (annual) 

Portfolios of student work, reports and/or 

presentations scored by the teacher using 

rubrics.  (monthly) 

MAP Testing (quarterly) 

Core Academic 

Skills  

(History - Social 

Science) 

Ability to analyze, explain, and evaluate world, 

US and world history. 

Ability to link events in one historical period to 

another. 

Effective writing and verbal communication 

skills. 

Critical-thinking skills. 

Critical-reading skills. 

Understanding of cause and effect. 

Understanding the importance of belief systems. 

Assignments, tests and activities designed 

by the teacher or using published materials 

and sometimes scored using rubrics. 

(weekly, monthly, each semester) 

State-mandated tests aligned to standards 

(e.g., CSTCAASPP) (annual) 

Portfolios of student work, reports and/or 

presentations scored by the teacher using 

rubrics. (monthly) 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 47 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

TABLE 8: Representative Measurable Outcomes and Assessment Tools for Interpersonal Skills 
 

Skills Measurable Outcomes Assessment Tools 

Leadership, 

Collaboration 

and Cooperation 

Incorporate personal management skills on a 

daily basis. 

Effective participation in group decision-

making processes. 

Work cooperatively with others and be a team 

player in achieving group goals. 

Be able to assume leadership in group tasks. 

End of semester teacher evaluations on student 

behaviors. 

Teachers’ comments entered into the Student 

Information System. 

Portfolios of student work, reports and/or 

exhibits including group assignments. 

Self-assessment 

and Reflection 

 

Describe, analyze and prioritize personal skills 

and interests that they want to develop. 

Describe and effectively use the personal 

qualities they possess that make them 

successful members of their school and 

community. 

Recognize their intelligence types and personal 

learning styles and employ those styles in their 

learning and personal development. 

End of semester teacher evaluations on student 

behaviors. 

Teachers’ comments entered into the Student 

Information System. 

Portfolios of student work, reports and/or 

presentations scored by the teacher using 

rubrics.  

Goal Setting  

 

Set positive academic and non-academic goals. 

Apply goal-setting skills to promote academic 

success. 

Set post-secondary goals with action steps, 

timeframes, and evaluation criteria.  

Identify the skills and credentials required for a 

particular profession and prepare accordingly. 

End of semester teacher evaluations on student 

behaviors. 

Teachers’ comments entered into the Student 

Information System. 

Portfolios of student work, reports and/or 

presentations scored using rubrics. 

Critical 

Thinking and 

Problem 

Solving  

 

Implement stop, think, and act strategies in 

solving daily life problems. 

Generate alternative solutions to problems and 

predict possible outcomes. 

Apply the steps of systematic decision-making 

in school and life. 

End of semester teacher evaluations on student 

behaviors. 

Portfolios of student work, reports and/or 

presentations scored using rubrics.  

Self-discipline 

 

Implement a plan to meet a need or address a 

challenge based on personal strengths and 

available support from others. 

Explore career opportunities based on their 

identified interests and strengths. 

Show self-esteem based on accurate assessment 

of self. 

End of semester teacher evaluations on student 

behaviors. 

Portfolios, presentations and/or exhibits of 

student work 

Citizenship 

 

Personal honesty and integrity. 

Courage to express their views. 

Love, respect and loyalty to the United States of 

America. 

Understanding and tolerance towards other 

societies in the world. 

Participate in multicultural and cross-cultural 

activities. 

End of semester teacher evaluations on student 

behaviors. 

Teachers’ comments entered into the Student 

Information System. 

Portfolios, presentations and/or exhibits of 

student work, peer competitions 

 

B. STATEWIDE ASSESSMENTS 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy agrees to comply with and adhere to the State requirements 

for participation and administration of all state mandated tests and Common Core tests. Test results will be 

provided directly to the District. 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 48 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 

C. GRADING & PROMOTION 

The primary purpose for grading is to provide feedback to students and parents on the achievement of learning 

goals. At the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, course report card grades are to be represented in 

letter-grade equivalent to the percentage earned in each course. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s grading policy will be consistent with the SAUSD’s 

policy. If a conflict with District policies and procedures exists, then District policies and procedures will govern. 

 

G ra d ing  Po l i c y  

Students at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy earn grades based on their demonstration of 

mastery of the California Content Standards. Grades include student performance on in-class work, homework, 

assessments, and other components as applicable to each content area. Each department will work with the 

Department Chair in conjunction with the School’s Co-Director to develop specific and consistent weights for 

each component to ensure that grades are calibrated and assigned in a fair and consistent manner that corresponds 

with student mastery of State Content Standards. The grading standards are school-wide and will be shared with 

parents and students. Exceptions to this grading policy for students with special needs are based on each student’s 

IEP. 

 

Table 9 indicates the ways in which letter, percentage, and rubric grades are used at the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy and what these grades mean in terms of a student’s level of mastery of the State 

Content Standards: 

 

TABLE 9: Grading Policy  

Letter Grade  

(grades 2-8)  

Percentage  

 

Rubric Score  

(grades TK-1)  

Meaning  

 

A+ 98-100%  4 A student earning an A in a course is consistently 

demonstrating advanced levels of mastery with the content 

standards.  
A 93-97%  

A- 90-92%  

B+ 88-89%  3 A student earning a B in a course is consistently 

demonstrating proficiency with the content standards.  B 83-87%  

B- 80-82%  

C+ 78-79%  2 A student earning a C in a course is consistently 

demonstrating basic competency with the content standards. C 73-77%  

C- 70-72%  

NY80NYP Below 

70%  

 

0 or 1 A student earning less than 70% in a course is not yet 

demonstrating a basic level of mastery with the content 

standards and needs to demonstrate mastery of the standards 

before credit will be earned.  

 

E L D Gra d es  

1 = Beginning, 

2 = Early Intermediate,  

3 = Intermediate,  

4 = Early Advanced, 

5= Advanced 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 49 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 

The following is the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s policy regarding the retention of pupils in 

grades K–5: 

 

Grades K–2: Any student who is not at benchmark based on (1) reading benchmark assessments or (2) math 

benchmark assessments or (3) report card grades; Grades 3–5: Students who fail to achieve the minimal level of 

proficiency (BASIC) in accordance with SBE Section 60648 on MAP tests and/or CST CAASPP(California 

Standards Test) in Mathematics or Reading and Language Arts; Grades K-5: Any student who is more than one 

year behind grade level in mathematics or reading and language arts as determined by the MAP assessments. 

Kindergarten students will be retained only if the teacher and parent are in agreement that retention is the best 

intervention to ensure student success. 

 

An identified student who is performing below the minimum standard for promotion shall be recommended by 

the student’s teacher for retention in the current grade unless the student’s teacher determines in writing that 

retention is not the appropriate intervention for the student’s academic deficiencies. The teacher’s 

recommendation to promote is contingent upon a detailed plan to correct deficiencies. At the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy, the following steps will be taken prior to a student being retained: 

• A letter shall be sent to the student’s parent(s) or guardian(s) by May 1st of each school year informing them 

that their child is at risk of retention. 

• The teacher’s evaluation shall be provided to and discussed with the student’s parent(s) or guardian(s) and the 

principal before any final determination of pupil retention. The parent(s)/guardian(s) are informed at that 

meeting that their child is recommended for retention. This meeting is documented with an academic support 

plan signed by both the teacher and parent/guardian. 

• The principal shall make a decision regarding the recommended retention. Upon the acceptance or rejection 

of the above stated reports by the principal, a letter shall be sent within five school days to formally inform 

the student’s parent(s) or guardian(s) of the principal’s decision regarding the retention. 

• The parent(s) or guardian(s) shall have the right to appeal the decision to the Deputy SuperintendentChief 

Academic Officer of the District. 

• The program design of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is to ensure that all children 

succeed. Students who are in jeopardy of retention are individually counseled and given extra help in their 

specific areas of concern, both in class and through intervention offerings.  

 

R ep o r t  Ca rd s  

Student report cards create a succinct written record of student performance by compiling data from multiple 

assessments both formal and informal. Report cards are one of several ways to keep parents informed about 

student performance and to ensure that data collection is regular and consistent. Report cards reflect student 

achievement toward state standards, and summarize narratives, anecdotal records, attendance data, and 

information about student participation in class and school life. Results of standardized tests are mailed separately 

as well as included in the student grade report with explanations designed to help students and parents interpret 

their relationship to other assessments. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will use a standards-based report card that is aligned with 

the California State StandardsNew State Standards. For each academic content area, students are scored on a 1–5 

scale, which mirrors the CST CAASPP scores. ELD also uses the 1–5 scale, but the scores mirror the CELDT 

scores. The guidelines for all content areas indicate the Proficient Level. Proficient is considered at grade level. 

To receive a Proficient (4), the expectation is that the student has mastered all the standards indicated in the 

guidelines for that marking term.  

 

Students will receive a report card three times a year. At the end of the first and second trimester, teachers will 

arrange a conference to discuss the report card with every parent/guardian. End-of-the-year conferences are 

prioritized for parents/guardians of students not making progress, low-achieving students, and those being 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 50 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

retained. Other parents/guardians are encouraged to attend teacher conferences at the end of the year as well. 

 

Ongoing communication between teachers, parents, and students is an essential component of the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy. In addition to progress reports, report cards, and assessment reports, 

newsletters are distributed monthly and grade-level meetings occur monthly. Parents can conference with teachers 

on an informal basis weekly or monthly, and on a formal basis three times per year, to discuss students’ progress 

reports and proficiency levels. Back to School Nights and Open House also take place each year. 

 

El em en ta r y  S cho o l  G ra d e  Prom o t io n  

In grades K through 5, students will receive one of the following marks for their grade level performance on each 

component or standard in Language Arts, Math, Science, and Social Science. 

 

I n t erm ed ia t e  S cho o l  Gra d e  P rom o t ion  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will follow a standard scale to assign letter grades for 

semester work. Grading is based on a 4.0 (unweighted) scale for regular courses. In grades 6 through 8, for year-

long courses, the numerical grades of two semesters will be averaged to determine an end-of-the-year grade. The 

average numerical grade will then be converted to a letter-grade and grade-point equivalent for GPA calculations. 

To earn credit, the end-of-the-year grade for the class must be at least a ―C‖ (2.0) or the second semester grade 

should be at least a ―B-‖ (2.7). 

 

To be promoted to the next grade, an intermediate school student must have a 2.0 grade point average (GPA) and 

passing end-of-the-year grades in all core courses before the start of the next school year. Core courses are Math, 

Science, English Language Arts, and History/Social Science.  

 

Students who fail three or more core courses at the end of the year will not be promoted to the next grade. Eighth 

graders who are not being promoted will not be able to participate in eighth grade promotion activities. Students 

who fail one or two core courses can attend summer school to make up failed courses during summer. Student 

transcripts will be updated to include summer grades and GPA will be recalculated. 

 

 

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 51 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

ELEMENT FOUR│ G O V E R N A N C E  

Governing Law: The governance structure of the school, including, but not limited to, the process to be followed 

to ensure parental involvement.  Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(D). 

 

A. GOVERNANCE OF THE SCHOOL STRUCTURE  

 
The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will be governed by the SAUSD Board of 

EducationAdvisory Board, in cooperation with the SAUSD Board of Education, will govern the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy Co-Directors will 

be evaluated by the SAUSD Superintendent. In an effort to additional oversight, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy will create a five-member Advisory Board that will aide in the supervision of the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy policies, programs, evaluations, and finances. The Advisory Board 

members will be determined at least one year prior to the opening of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy, and will be comprised of respected educational professionals and/or business partners, and at least two 

parents of Charter School studentsthree members representing SAUSD and two members selected by the Dean of 

the UCI School of Education.  

 

 

EXHIBIT 3: Organizational Chart:  
 

 

   

Teachers 

Co-Director 

of Academics & Culture 

Psychologist 

Special Education (Special Ed) 

Teaching Assistants 

Custodian 

SAUSD 

Board of Education 

Co-Director  

of Finance & Operations 

Charter Advisory Board 

Office Manager 

Office Assistants 

Superintendent 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 52 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

B. SCHOOL LEADERSHIP 

Refer to the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the SAUSD and Santa Ana Educators’ Association in 

Appendix A.  

C. PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy strongly encourages parents to participate in and share the 

responsibility for their children’s educational process and educational. Studies have shown that students whose 

parents are involved in their education generally have higher grades, better attendance, higher homework 

submission rates, higher graduation rates, and a better chance of continuing with their education after graduation. 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will work with parents to make them aware of the 

importance of their involvement in their children’s education through some combination of the following 

activities: 

 

• By having representatives on the Charter School Advisory Board, pParents will play an active role in 

developing local school policies, leading efforts to engage the support of the community, making 

recommendations about issues related to the school, and reviewing parental and community concerns. 

• Parents complete a survey each year evaluating the strengths and weakness they identify with the 

program. 

• There will be various opportunities for parents to volunteer.  For example, they may help in classrooms, 

lead extra-curricular activities, assist in event planning, tutor, assist with lunch distribution, and attend 

field trips.  It is not required, but expected, that parents will contribute a minimum of 10 hours per year to 

the school. 

• Teachers will meet one-on-one with parents of low-achieving students on an as needed basis to ensure the 

proper supports are in place for the student. 

• Communications with parents, whether about school policies and programs or about their own children, 

will be frequent, clear, and two-way. This will include community outreach meetings in native languages. 

Students will assist staff with helping parents understand the link between education and career 

opportunities.  

• Individualized student and parent advisory sessions: Each of our teachers and mentors will be assigned to 

a small group of students. They will arrange two to four meetings at school during the school year to 

discuss their students’ academic achievements. 

• Parents will also be collaborators in the educational process. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning 

Academy will provide an opportunity for parents to participate in their child's education, receive 

technology training, enroll in empowerment classes and provide input into school operations.  

• Parents of participating students will also be involved as: project team members, guest lecturers, content 

evaluators and peer leaders in community outreach/recruitment activities.  

• Each trimester, parent workshops on improving student study skills and college preparation will be 

offered. Also, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will encourage parents to form a 

parent committee. The school will also work with parents to develop and adopt a set of parent 

involvement policies and strategies. 

 

D. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE FOR PARENTS & STUDENTS  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will designate at least one employee at each site to 

coordinate its efforts to comply with and carry out its responsibilities under Title IX of the Education 

Amendments of 1972 (Title IX) and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504) including any 

investigation of any complaint filed with Charter School alleging its noncompliance with these laws or alleging 

any actions which would be prohibited by these laws. Charter School will notify all its students and employees of 

the name, office address, and telephone number of the designated employee or employees. 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 53 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will adopt and publish grievance procedures providing for 

prompt and equitable resolution of student and employee complaints alleging any action, which would be 

prohibited by Title IX, or Section 504. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will implement specific and continuing steps to notify 

applicants for admission and employment, students and parents, employees, sources of referral of applicants for 

admission and employment, and all unions or professional organizations holding collective bargaining or 

professional agreements with the recipient, that it does not discriminate on the basis of sex or mental or physical 

disability in the educational program or activity which it operates, and that it is required by Title IX and Section 

504 not to discriminate in such a manner. 

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 54 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

ELEMENT FIVE│ E M P L O Y E E  Q U A L I F I C AT I O N S  

Governing Law: The qualifications to be met by individuals to be employed by the school.  Education Code 

Section 47605(b)(5)(E). 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy is a dependent charter of the SAUSD and works within 

existing hiring policies and practices. SAUSD employs a group of professionals passionate about educating all 

students and dedicated to fulfilling our college preparatory mission. Education research consistently demonstrates 

that teacher quality has the most significant impact on student achievement. As a result, it is a top priority to 

recruit, select, hire, train, support, and retain the best teachers, administrators, and support staff available.  

 

Eq ua l  Op po r tun i t y  Em p lo yer  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy and the SAUSD believes that all persons are entitled to 

equal employment opportunity. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy shall not discriminate 

against qualified applicants or employees on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, gender identity, sexual 

orientation, pregnancy, national origin, ancestry, citizenship, age, marital status, physical disability, mental 

disability, medical condition, or any other characteristic protected by California or federal law. Equal employment 

opportunity shall be extended to all aspects of the employer-employee relationship, including recruitment, hiring, 

upgrading, training, promotion, transfer, discipline, layoff, recall, and dismissal from employment.  

 

A. QUALIFICATIONS, CONDITIONS & BENEFITS  

 

C r ed en t ia l s  

All teachers at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy and in SAUSD will follow credentialing 

requirements described in the California Education Code and policies established by the SAUSD Board of 

Education. Teachers of core content areas (English Language Arts, Math, Science, and Social Studies) are 

required to hold a Commission on Teacher Credentialing certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that 

which a teacher in other public schools would be required to hold. All teachers working with ELs must possess an 

EL authorization from the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) or authorization allowed 

under California Education Code such as an Emergency CLAD/BCLAD Permit from the CTC. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will seek to minimize ourlimit the use of Emergency Credentialed 

Teachers.  

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy and SAUSD may employ or retain non-certificated 

instructional support staff in any case where a prospective staff member has an appropriate mix of subject matter 

expertise, professional experience, and the demonstrated capacity to work successfully in an instructional support 

capacity. Instruction support staff will not assign grades or approve student work assignments without the 

approval of a teacher except in non-core courses and activities. All non-instructional staff will possess experience 

and expertise appropriate for the position within the school. 

 

Em p lo yee  R eco rd s  &  Ba ck g ro und  Ch eck s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy and SAUSD will comply with all State and Federal laws 

concerning the maintenance and disclosure of employee records. Copies of each teacher’s credentials are kept on 

file in the main office and are readily available for inspection. School administration will review teacher 

credentials annually.  

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy and SAUSD complyies with California Education Code 

44237 and 45125.1 regarding the requirement to fingerprint and obtain background clearance of employees. Prior 

to the first day of work with students, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will process all 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 55 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

background checks through LiveScan, administered by the United States Department of Justice.  

 

In addition, all employees must provide:  

 Up-to-date medical clearance of communicable disease and a negative Mantoux Tuberculosis (TB) test.  

 A full disclosure statement regarding a prior criminal record  

 Documents establishing legal employment status  

 Contact information for at least two (2) professional and one (1) personal reference  

 

Em p lo yee  W e l fa r e  &  Sa f e t y  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy and SAUSD complyies with all Local, State, Federal, and 

relevant District policies concerning employee welfare, health, and safety issues. These include, but are not 

limited to, the requirement for a drug- and tobacco-free workplace and child abuse awareness and reporting.  

 

B. THE RECRUITMENT & SELECTION  

T ea ch er  R ecru i tm en t   

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy and SAUSD recruits qualified teachers to successfully 

implement the school’s mission. Teacher recruitment includes job listings posted on a variety of teacher recruiting 

sites, including the California Charter School Association, Teach For America, Ed-Join, and the Association for 

Supervision and Curriculum Development.  

 

Sta f f  S e l ec t io n  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy and SAUSD utilizes a strenuous screening process to 

ensure selection of the highest quality staff. The SAUSD hires the school’s Co-Directors. All other staffing 

decisions will be made by the Co-Directors in collaboration with SAUSD staff.  

 

Our selection process includes:  

 

1. Development of job qualifications and a thorough job description  

2. Posting of job openings and participation in career fairs  

3. Request of a resume, cover letter, and short essay responses  

4. Short introductory interview (in-person or by phone)  

5. Sample teaching lesson followed by debrief  

6. Extensive interview with multiple members of the school’s existing staff  

7.  Verification of credential and previous employment, State and Federal background checks, and    

    professional and personal reference checks of strong candidates  

8. Offers of employment to the strongest candidates  

 

The selection procedures shall not discriminate on the basis of race, sex, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, 

physical or mental disability, medical condition, statues as Vietnam-era veteran or special disabled veteran, 

marital status, age (40 and above), sexual orientation or any other basis protected by federal, state, or local law or 

ordinance or regulation.  

 

G en era l  Qua l i f i ca t io ns  

All faculty and staff must possess a firm belief in our mission and core instructional beliefs, exemplary personal 

character, and critical professional qualifications. Ideal candidates for employment at the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy, regardless of their position, must consistently demonstrate the following:  

 Unwavering belief in and commitment to fulfill the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s mission  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 56 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 Embodiment of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s PRIDE values—preparation, respect, 

integrity, determination, and enthusiasm  

 In-depth knowledge of and enthusiasm for classroom technology and STEM areas 

 Eagerness to use hands-on, project-based instructional methods utilizing technology on a daily basis 

 Ability to prioritize and manage multiple tasks  

 Ability to effectively handle challenging situations with students, parents, and faculty  

 Desire to work as a member of a collaborative team  

 Willingness to have frequent and honest dialogue about job performance  

 Modeling lifelong learning by engaging in individual professional development  

 Demonstrated commitment to academic excellence and high standards—for themselves, their students, and their 

colleagues  

 Experience working with urban student populations (preferred)  

 Strong oral and written communication skills  

 Use of data to inform decisions and drive continuous improvement  

 Comfort with basic Microsoft Office applications  

 Regular, punctual attendance and professional appearance  

 Appropriate California credentials and qualifications required by No Child Left Behind  

 

J o b  D es cr ip t io ns  fo r  K ey  Perso nn el  

The staff of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will include the following key personnel:  

 Co-Director for Academics and Culture (Principal) 

 Co-Director for Finance and Operations  

 Office Manager and office assistants  

 Teachers  

 Psychologist 

 

The following job descriptions outline the key positions at the school, including their qualifications and 

responsibilities. Job descriptions will be revised as necessary to reflect the needs of the school. 

 

1. Co-Director for Academics and Culture (Principal) 

 
The Co-Director of Academics and Culture will be the candidate with the most expertise in quality curriculum, 

non-traditional instruction, administration, working with historically underserved populations and motivating 

parents. Further, the Principal will have extensive classroom experience and a respect for quality, innovative 

teachers with high-tech and STEM specialties. The Principal will also be instrumental in developing partnerships 

with local businesses and higher education partners as part of the school’s unique program offering opportunities 

for internships, leadership, public speaking, and college and career pathways. By hiring adequate support staff 

and through the support services of the district, the Principal will have more time to serve as a mentor teacher, 

interact with students and parents and effectively deal with and follow-up on academic and disciplinary problems. 

 
The Co-Director of Academics and Culture will work in with the Co-Director of Operations and Finance to 

advance the school’s mission. He/she will be directly accountable to the Superintendent for the school’s rigorous 

culture and academic success.  

 

As the instructional leader of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, the individual who assumes 

the position of Co-Director for Academics and Culture must be prepared to successfully carry out many different 

tasks, including, but not limited to the following:  

 Providing day-to-day leadership of the school  

 Recruitment, hiring, assignment, evaluation, and firing of all instructional staff  

 Providing high quality professional development for teachers and support staff  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 57 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 Developing and managing the school’s instructional leadership team (Assistant Directors, Dean, Special 

Education Coordinator, and Teacher Leaders)  

 Overseeing school-wide transition to the Common Core State Standards  

 Overseeing standardized testing coordination  

 Utilizing student assessment data to maximize student achievement  

 Building and maintaining a school culture based on the school’s values—preparation, respect, integrity, 

determination, and enthusiasm  

 Enforcing student discipline policies  

 Managing the school’s special education program  

 Developing internal and external academic goals, evaluating school performance on multiple measures, and 

adjusting program elements accordingly  

 Evaluating, selecting, and/or overseeing creation of high-quality curricula  

 Preparing and presenting thorough and accurate monthly academic reports to the Board, including student 

progress toward specific benchmarks identified by the Board  

 Ensuring the physical and emotional safety of all students and employees  

 

In addition to the general expectations of all school employees, this Co-Director should possess:  

 At least three years teaching experience and two years leadership experience, ideally in urban and/or charter 

schools  

 Demonstrated classroom success  

 Demonstrated experience managing and leading adults toward increased student achievement  

 Knowledge of applicable education laws and regulatory compliance  

 Knowledge of school finance, budgetary planning, and accounting principles preferred  

 Understanding of statistical data and analysis, particularly with student achievement data  

 Master’s Degree in Education or related field  

 Administrative credential or comparable school leadership training preferred  

 

2. Co-Director for Finance & Operations 
 
The Co-Director of Operations and Finance at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will work 

with the Co-Director of Academics and Culture to advance the school’s mission. He/she will be directly 

accountable to the Superintendent for the school’s financial stability and organizational viability.  

 

As the operational leader of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, the individual who assumes the 

position of Co-Director for Finance and Operations must be prepared to successfully carry out many different 

tasks, including, but not limited to the following:  

 Recruitment, hiring, assignment, evaluation, and firing of all non-instructional support staff  

 Recruitment of students, including coordinating a random public lottery, when needed  

 Implementing effective communication processes with all stakeholders  

 Creating structures for meaningful parental involvement  

 Overseeing the annual budget and monthly cash flow, and ensuring sound financial conditions  

 Overseeing acquisition and maintenance of the school site 

 Managing relationships and overseeing the work of contracted service providers  

 Advocating on the school’s behalf and serving as the school’s primary spokesperson to all external audiences, 

including investors, media, community partners, local leaders, elected officials, and the Santa Ana Unified School 

District 

 Work with the Advisory Board to develop and implement a fundraising strategy and plan  

 Ensuring the school follows all applicable District policies and State and Federal laws  

 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 58 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

In addition to the general expectations of all school employees, this Co-Director should possess:  

 least two years teaching experience and two years leadership experience, ideally in urban and/or charter schools  

 Demonstrated classroom success 

 Demonstrated experience managing and leading adults toward increased student achievement  

 Knowledge of applicable education laws and regulatory compliance  

 Knowledge of school finance, budgetary planning, and accounting principles  

 Understanding of statistical data and analysis, particularly with student achievement data  

 Master’s Degree in Education or related field  

 Administrative credential or comparable school leadership training preferred  

 

3. School Psychologist 
 
The School Psychologist will maintain compliance will guidelines regarding the assessment, reporting, and 

services provided to students with Individualized Education Programs (IEPs). He/she will also use therapeutic 

skills to help students understand and deal with social, behavioral and personal problems that may be affecting 

particular students in the classroom. The psychologist will work with individual students, families and groups, 

and he/she will also function as an integral part of the special education department and the larger school team. 

This role is integral in supporting students toward better coping with their daily stresses while functioning in an 

academically rigorous environment. The Psychologist reports to the District Special Education Administrator. 

 

The School Psychologist will:  

 Guide students to develop problem solving and coping skills. Help student/family gain insight into their issue of 

concern and create an action plan 

 Create new or use existing paperwork (Consent form, Release of Information, Intake Questionnaire, Basic 

Information Sheet, Student File Checklist) needed to obtain parental/client consent for treatment  

 Collect information through interviews (initial intake, collaboration with outside professionals working with the 

student, etc.) and observations  

 Assess safety and follow protocol in crisis situations  

 Evaluate the effectiveness of counseling and client progress in resolving identified problems and moving toward 

identified objectives  

 Maintain confidentiality, unless there are special circumstances to break confidentiality, as in the case of danger 

to self or others  

 

Specialized Qualifications –  

 

Required:  

 Candidate must possess a graduate degree in school psychology  

 Candidate must also possess a valid school psychological services credential  

 Experience working with urban middle school students and their families  

 Knowledge of applicable special education laws and regulations  

 Experience conducting psychological assessments, writing comprehensive reports, participating in IEP meetings, 

and providing individual and group counseling  

Preferred:  

 Fluency in Spanish  

 Experience working with families, doing family counseling, leading parent workshops, etc.  

 Knowledge of external resources to support students and families outside of the school day/structure  

 Experience as a classroom teacher in an urban setting  

 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 59 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

4. Special Education Teacher 
 

The special education teacher will work with and report to the District Special Education Administrator to 

operationalize the mission of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy and ensure high-quality special 

education services for students.  

 

The special education teacher’s primary duties include:  

 

 Providing pull-out and push-in Special Ed services for students with Individualized Education Plans (IEPs)  

 Drafting IEPS and ensuring compliance with all components of the IEP  

 Ensuring that all service minutes are provided and appropriately documented through meticulous special 

education records  

 Monitoring progress toward IEP goals and providing parents with frequent progress reports  

 Scheduling, preparing for, and facilitating IEP meetings  

 Meeting regularly with other members of the special education to collaborate and share best practices  

 Collaborating with general education teachers to ensure academic success of special education students within the 

classroom  

 Coordinating with the general education team to ensure students are provided an effective Student Success Team 

(SST) process  

 Completing other tasks as directed by the Special Education Coordinator or Co-Director for Academics and 

Culture  

 
In addition to the general expectations of all school employees, the special education teacher should possess:  

 

 Valid Resource Specialist Program credential through the CA Commission on Teacher Credentialing, including 

authorization to work with English language learners  

 Working knowledge of special education law, documentation, and best practices  

 Effective communication with parents, especially conflict resolution  

 Successful teaching and/or special education experience, ideally with urban youth, as evidenced by strong 

achievement data and strong classroom relationships, preferred  

 Working knowledge of content standards and curricular materials for the grade span for which he/she will be 

responsible, preferred  

 Master’s degree in special education or related field, preferred  

 
 

5. Teachers 
 
Teachers at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy perform the most critical work of our school—

the daily instruction, evaluation, and support of our students. Teachers will report to the Co-Director for 

Academics and Culture or Assistant Director.  

 

A Charter School teacher’s primary duties include:  

 Planning and delivering thorough, challenging, standards-based lesson that ensure all students master required 

content  

 Assessing students daily through informal measures and at least one formal test or quiz each week  

 Creating comprehensive chapter and/or unit tests, as well as cumulative final exams  

 Reinforcing school-wide rules and expectations in classrooms and elsewhere on campus  

 Providing supervision before- and after-school and at lunch and/or recess as assigned in order to maintain student 

safety  

 Reflecting continually in order to ensure a culture of high academic and behavioral standards  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 60 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 Communicating effectively with students, parents, and colleagues  

 Using detailed data analysis of student performance to inform best practices  

 Identifying students who are academically at risk and initiating effective intervention strategies  

 Completing other tasks as directed by the Co-Directors  

 

In addition to the general expectations of all school employees, the teachers should possess:  

 

 Bachelor’s degree (advanced degree preferred)  

 Appropriate California teaching credential, including English Learner Authorization  

 Fulfillment of all criteria set forth to be considered Highly Qualified under NCLB  

 Evidence of successful management of an urban classroom using structure and high expectations to drive student 

success  

 Experience as a classroom teacher with demonstrated quantifiable and objective student performance gains that 

surpass state or local averages  

 Ability to work with a variety of learning abilities, including those with special needs and low skill level in a 

heterogeneously grouped classroom setting  

 Demonstrated ability to work well in a team, especially with parents and community members  

 

6. Teaching Assistant 
 

A Teaching Assistant at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy supports the teachers in the daily 

instruction, evaluation, and supervision of our students. Teaching Assistants report to the Teacher to whom they 

are assigned.  

 
A Teaching Assistant at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s primary duties include:  

 Collaborating with teachers to plan and delivering small group lessons and activities that ensure all students 

master required content  

 Assessing students and tracking results to inform lessons  

 Reinforcing school-wide rules and expectations in classrooms and elsewhere on campus  

 Providing supervision before- and after-school and at lunch and/or recess as assigned in order to maintain student 

safety  

 Reflecting continually in order to ensure a culture of high academic and behavioral standards  

 Communicating effectively with students, parents, and colleagues  

 Using detailed data analysis of student performance to inform best practices  

 Identifying students who are academically at risk and initiating effective intervention strategies  

 Translating for parent meetings, conferences, and events as needed  

 Completing other tasks as directed by the Co-Directors, including administrative office tasks  

 

In addition to the general expectations of all school employees, the teachers should possess:  

 Associate’s Degree  

 Evidence of successful management of an urban classroom using structure and high expectations to drive student 

success  

 Ability to work with a variety of learning abilities, including those with special needs and low skill level in a 

heterogeneously grouped classroom setting  

 Demonstrated ability to work well in a team, especially with parents and community members  

 

7. Office Manager 
 

The Office Manager of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will ensure the efficient operation of 



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 61 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

the school’s main office and work with members of the administrative team to ensure the success of the school. 

The Office Manager will report to the Co-Director for Finance and Operations. 

  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 62 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

The Office Manager’s primary duties include:  

 Performing the duties of the Office Assistant in his/her absence, including reception, clerical, and student 

supervision duties.  

 Implementing systems to support the work of teachers and administrative staff  

 Working with the Operations Managers and back office support provider to prepare various district, state, and 

federal reports  

 Independently, or in accordance with administrative instructions, developing school communications in English 

and Spanish based on a thorough knowledge of school policies, regulations, and operational procedures  

 Translating for parent meetings and school events  

 Preparing and maintaining a variety of student and school records  

 Maintaining and operating a variety of office equipment, such as the copy machine, printers, fax machine, and 

scanners with speed and accuracy  

 Maintaining a neat, organized office environment  

 Assisting in the coordination of special events  

 Overseeing and evaluating the Office Assistant  

 Assisting the Co-Directors and members of the administrative team, as directed  

 

In addition to the general expectations of all school employees, the Office Manager should possess:  

 

 A minimum of an Associate’s Degree or two years of college  

 A minimum of two years’ experience in a similar position  

 Demonstrated proficiency with letter and report writing, accurate mathematical calculations, word processing, 

record keeping, and data collection systems  

 Exemplary communication skills in English and Spanish, including impeccable grammar and fluency  

 Strong public relations skills with a variety of constituencies  

 Ability to quickly and accurately perform clerical duties such as data entry, filing, maintaining systems, 

proofreading, and operating office equipment  

 Experience in an educational setting preferred  

 

8. Office Assistant 
 

The Office Assistants at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will be the school’s front desk 

receptionist and will support members of the administrative team to ensure the success of the school. The Office 

Assistant will report to the Office Manager.  

 
The Office Manager’s primary duties include:  

 Monitoring the school’s entryway, greeting parents and visitors, and ensuring school safety  

 Performing clerical duties, including data entry, mail correspondence, office supply inventory, and answering 

phones  

 Attending to students who are ill or injured  

 Student supervision during arrival, recess, lunch, dismissal, etc., as directed by Co-Director  

 Maintaining attendance records, including monitoring and following up with families about excessive absences 

and/or tardies  

 Maintaining a neat, organized office environment  

 Translating for parent meetings and school events  

 Processing student enrollment paperwork  

 Preparing and maintaining a variety of student records  

 Maintaining and operating a variety of office equipment, such as the copy machine, printers, fax machine, and 

scanners with speed and accuracy  

 Overseeing parent volunteers and other school guests  



 

INDA Advanced Learning Academy Charter School Petition   Page 63 of 114 

  

Formatted Table

 Assisting in the coordination of special events  

 Assisting the School Directors and members of the administrative team, as directed  

 
In addition to the general expectations of all school employees, the Office Manager should possess:  

 Exemplary communication skills in English and Spanish, including impeccable grammar and fluency  

 Strong public relations skills with a variety of constituencies  

 Demonstrated proficiency with letter and report writing, accurate mathematical calculations, word processing, 

record keeping, and data collection systems  

 Ability to quickly and accurately perform clerical duties such as data entry, filing, maintaining systems, 

proofreading, and operating office equipment  

 A minimum of an Associate’s Degree or two years of college  

 Experience in an educational setting preferred  

 

Sta f f  Com p en sa t io n  & B en ef i t s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s salary schedule is the salary scale of the SAUSD. A 

comprehensive benefits package (medical, dental, and retirement), consistent with the SAUSD’s, is included as 

part of each full-time employee’s compensation.  

 

Sta f f  E va lua t io ns  

The purpose of evaluation is to improve instruction. The SAUSD Superintendent would conduct an annual 

performance review of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy Co-Directors. The Co-Directors are 

responsible for completing all other annual staff evaluations, based on an evaluation process outlined in SAUSD 

collective bargaining agreements that includes multiple measures of performance, including annual formal 

observations, monthly informal observations, staff self-reflection, and student achievement data (for teachers). 

Site administration will assist teachers in meeting the California Standards for the Teaching Profession.  

 

 

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 64 of 114 

  

ELEMENT SIX│ H E A LT H  &  S A F E T Y  

Governing Law: The procedures that the school will follow to ensure the health and safety of pupils and 

staff.  These procedures shall include the requirement that each employee of the school furnish the school 

with a criminal record summary as described in Section 44237.  Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(F). 

 

The health and safety of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy staff and pupils is a high 

priority for the school. The school will follow all required safety regulations including emergency policies 

and procedures. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will comply with all applicable health 

and safety laws and regulations. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will operate as a 

drug, alcohol, and tobacco free workplace. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy has 

adopted and implemented a comprehensive health and safety plan to create a safe and secure learning 

environment, keep it on file for review and train its staff annually on the safety procedures outlined in the 

plan. It will be the task of the school administration to monitor all activities consistently to provide safety 

and security for the students.  For this purpose, a ―team-on-duty‖ will be created among teachers and 

assistant teachers to supervise students at all times.  

 

The school will comply with the Healthy Schools Act, California Education Code Section 17608, which 

details pest management requirements for schools.   

 

The health and safety policies include, but are not be limited to, the following topics: 

A. SITE SAFETY   

 

Bu i ld in g  Co d e  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy facility will comply with all applicable building codes, 

standards and regulations adopted by the city and/or county agencies responsible for building and safety 

standards for the city in which the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is to be located, and the 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Applicable codes and ADA requirements shall also apply to the 

construction, reconstruction, alteration of or addition to the proposed Charter School facility. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will implement any corrective actions, orders to comply, or notices 

issued by the authorized building and safety agency. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy 

cannot exempt itself from applicable building and zoning codes, ordinances, and ADA requirements.  The 

Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will adhere to the program accessibility requirements of 

Federal law (Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 504). See Element 18 for additional information 

on the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy facilities. 

 

A sb es to s  Ma n ag em e n t  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will comply with the asbestos requirement as cited in 

the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (AHERA), 40CFR part 763.  AHERA requires that any 

building leased or acquired that is to be used as a school or administrative building shall maintain an asbestos 

management plan. 

 

D ru g  F r e e  ●  A l co h o l  F r e e  ●  Sm ok e  Fr e e  En v i ro nm en t  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will function as a drug, alcohol and tobacco free 

workplace. 

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 65 of 114 

  

Wo rk p la c e  S a f e t y  

All employees are responsible for their own safety, as well as that of others in the workplace. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will rely upon its employees to ensure that work areas are kept safe 

and free of hazardous conditions. Employees will report any unsafe conditions or potential hazards to their 

supervisor immediately. If an employee suspects a concealed danger is present on the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy’s premises, or in a product, facility, piece of equipment, process, or business 

practice for which the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is responsible, the employee will 

bring it to the attention of their supervisor or Principal immediately. Supervisors will arrange for the 

correction of any unsafe condition or concealed danger immediately and will contact the Principal the 

problem. 

 

Employees will be encouraged to report any workplace injury, accident, to their supervisor as soon as 

possible, regardless of the severity of the injury or accident. If medical attention is required immediately, 

supervisors will assist employees in obtaining medical care, after which the details of the injury or accident 

must be reported. 

 

On a periodic basis the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will issue rules and guidelines 

governing workplace safety and health in its employee handbook. All employees will familiarize themselves 

with the rules and guidelines, as strict compliance will be expected. Failure to comply with rules and 

guidelines regarding health and safety or work performance as described in the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy’s employee handbook will not be tolerated. 

 

 

B. STAFF & STUDENT SAFETY MEASURES 
 

C rim in a l  Ba ck g ro u n d  Ch e ck s  

Each employee and contractor of the school will submit to a criminal background check and furnish a 

criminal record summary as required by Education Code Section 44237 and 45125.1. Employees and 

contractors will submit fingerprints to the Department of Justice via LiveScan processing. Employees will 

not start working until results are received from the Department of Justice and they are cleared to begin 

work. The Principal of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall monitor compliance with 

this policy. Volunteers who will volunteer outside of the direct supervision of a credentialed employee shall 

be fingerprinted and receive background clearance prior to volunteering without the direct supervision of a 

credentialed employee. 

 

Com p reh en s i ve  S ex u a l  Ha ra ssm en t  Po l i c i e s  &  P ro c ed u re s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy is committed to providing a school that is free from 

sexual harassment, as well as any harassment based upon such factors as race, religion, creed, color, national 

origin, ancestry, age, medical condition, marital status, sexual orientation, or disability. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy has developed a comprehensive policy to prevent and immediately 

remediate any concerns about sexual discrimination or harassment at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy (including employee to employee, employee to student, and student to employee 

misconduct). 

 

Ch i ld  Ab u s e  R ep o r t in g  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy employees are mandated reporters and will adhere to 

the requirements of California Penal Code Section 11166 regarding child abuse reporting. The Charter 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 66 of 114 

  

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy staff must report to the proper authorities if they suspect the 

following occurring to a student: 

 Sexual assault 

 Neglect 

 Willful cruelty or unjustifiable punishment 

 Cruel or inhuman corporal punishment or injury 

 Abuse in out-of-home care 

The reporting person need only to ―reasonably suspect‖ that abuse or neglect has occurred. The reporting 

person does not have to prove abuse. The Principal will work will all faculty and staff members to make sure 

all appropriate steps are taken if a child abuse situation occurs. All faculty and staff will understand that it is 

their duty and responsibility to report any suspicions of child abuse. Staff will understand that under 

California law, failure to report an incident of known or reasonably suspected child abuse or neglect is guilty 

of a misdemeanor punishable by up to six months confinement in a county jail or by a fine of one thousand 

dollars ($1,000) or by both. Staff will not be made to investigate any incident, only report to the Principal 

and proper law enforcement of child protective services.   

 

All suspected cases of child abuse will be brought to the Principal and proper law enforcement of child 

protective services. A written report of the situation will be completed and either the Department of Child 

Support Services or the Police Department will be immediately notified. The reporting person will be 

responsible for providing all the necessary information and child abuse reports to the Department of Children 

Services and/or the Police Department since he/she will be most knowledgeable of the situation.   

 

Should it be necessary to remove the child from school, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy 

staff will obtain the contact information of the agency person removing the child. This information will be 

placed in the student’s record and be available to the parent/guardian. 

 

C. MEDICAL PLANS 
 

Im m u n iza t io n s  & T u b e rc u lo s i s  Te s t in g  

All enrolling students and staff will provide records documenting immunizations to the extent required for 

enrollment in non-charter public schools pursuant to Health and Safety Code Sections 120325-120375 and 

Title 17, California Regulations Section 6000-6075. Records of student immunizations shall be maintained. 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will comply with education Code Section 49406 with 

regard to tuberculosis testing.  

 

P r es c r ip t io n  Med i ca t io n s  

Students requiring prescription medications and other medicines during school hours will be accommodated 

as per Education Code Section 49423.  Parents must bring medication to the office in the original containers, 

with the name of the prescribing physician, the name of the student, and dispensing instructions. Parents will 

complete the appropriate form authorizing school staff to administer medication. Designated staff will put 

medications in a locked cabinet or refrigerate as needed for medications requiring refrigeration. Designated 

staff will log times for administering medications for each student and will establish a tickler system to 

ensure that medications are dispensed at the appropriate times. Designated staff will call students to receive 

medications at the appropriate times. In cases where medications are long-term prescriptions, designated 

staff will provide parents with one week’s notice to alert them that additional medication is needed.  

 

Vi s io n ,  Hea r in g  & S co l io s i s  T es t in g  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 67 of 114 

  

Students will be screened for vision, hearing and scoliosis to the same extent as would be required if the 

pupils attended a non-charter public school.  The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will 

adhere to Education Code Section 49450, et seq., as applicable to the grade levels served by the school.  

 

D ia b e t e s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will provide an information sheet regarding type 2 

diabetes to the parent or guardian of incoming 7th grade students.  The information sheet shall include, but 

shall not be limited to, all of the following: 

 A description of the risk factors and warning signs associated with type 2 diabetes. 

 A recommendation that students displaying or possibly suffering from risk factors or warning signs 

associated with type 2 diabetes should be screened for type 2 diabetes.  

 A description of treatments and prevention of methods of type 2 diabetes. 

 A description of the different types of diabetes screening tests available.  

 

Blo o d  Bo rn e  Pa th og e n s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will meet state and federal standards for dealing with 

blood borne pathogens and other potentially infectious materials in the work place. The Board will establish 

a written infectious control plan designed to protect employees and students from possible infection due to 

contact with blood borne viruses, including human immunodeficiency virus (―HIV‖) and hepatitis B virus 

(―HBV‖). Whenever exposed to blood or other bodily fluids through injury or accident, staff and students 

will follow the latest medical protocol for disinfecting procedures. 

 

D. EMERGENCY PLANS 
 

Em e rg en c y  S i tu a t io n s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will utilize its School Safety Plan in responding to 

emergency situations. The plan will be reviewed each year and updated as necessary. The Charter SchoolThe 

Advanced Learning Academy will ensure that the staff has been trained in health, safety, and emergency 

procedures. Staff will receive internal memos regarding relevant health and safety issues. Schoolwide drills 

in preparation for fires, earthquakes, intruders on campus, or other emergency/disaster situations will be 

conducted at regular intervals throughout the year. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy 

will create and maintain a record of each drill. Additionally, important safety and health topics will  be 

addressed in the School’s newsletter. 

 

Fi r e  Dr i l l s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will comply with the Education Code Section 32001 

in regards to conducting fire drills not less than once every calendar month at the elementary level, at least 

four times every school year at the intermediate levels, and not less than twice every school year at the 

secondary level. The Office will maintain a record of each drill conducted with the amount of time it  takes 

for complete evacuation. 

 

Whenever the alarm is given, all students, teachers and other employees shall quickly leave the building in 

an orderly manner. Teachers shall ascertain that no student remains in the building. Designated evacuation 

routes shall be posted in each room. Teachers shall be prepared to select alternate exits and direct their 

classes to these exits in the event the designated evacuation route is blocked. 

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 68 of 114 

  

Students are to remain with their teacher in the evacuation area. Teachers shall take their roll to ensure that 

all students are accounted for and be prepared to identify missing students to the office staff and the 

administrators. Students will remain with their teachers at the designated evacuation area until the 

administrative staff gives the ―all clear‖ signal. In a successful fire drill, orderly evacuation begins 

immediately and is completed within five minutes of the initial alarm. The students and staff will then return 

to their appropriate classrooms and the teachers will take roll once more. Missing students will be reported to 

the attendance office. 

 

Ea r t h q u ak e  & Oth e r  Di sa s t e r  Dr i l l s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will comply with the Education Code Section 35297 

in regards to holding a ―drop procedure‖ practice at least once each school quarter in elementary schools and 

at least once a semester in secondary schools. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy shall 

conduct disaster drills to prepare students and staff for any seismic activity and other disasters. The practice 

drills include the ―duck, hold, cover‖ procedure. A disaster drill commencing with the ―duck, hold, cover‖ 

procedure will be initiated by an announcement over the intercom. Students and staff will hear, ―This is an 

emergency drill. Duck, hold, and cover.‖ Teachers will then turn off the lights and have students get under a 

desk/table or against the wall away from the windows. Students are to remain quiet and orderly so they will 

be able to hear additional instructions when given. All drills will be concluded with an ―all clear‖ 

announcement on the intercom, or a visible signal from the administrative staff.  

 

In the case of a real earthquake, everyone must engage in the ―duck, hold, cover‖ procedure immediately and 

remain in position until the teacher determines that it is safe to leave the building. If remaining in the room 

becomes dangerous, or when the shaking stops, teachers will proceed with their students to the evacuation 

site or another safety zone. If students are on the playground or other outdoor area when a disaster drill is 

called or during an actual earthquake, students are to drop immediately to the ground, away from trees and 

power lines, and cover their heads with their hands. They are to remain in that position until given additional 

instructions.  

 

In the case of disasters other than earthquakes, the administrative staff will contact each room, advice staff  of 

potential dangers, and give further directions or orders. Teachers and students will remain in their classrooms 

until instructions are received for an ―all clear‖ or an evacuation. For safety purposes, no one is to leave the 

rooms. If there has been a chemical spill, the teacher must make sure that all doors, windows, and vents 

remain closed. The school site maintenance staff will turn off the gas. All unassigned staff will report to the 

office for assignments such as searching offices, bathrooms, and all other common areas, including outdoor 

facilities. 

Teachers will stay with their classes for the duration of the emergency. In the event of an earthquake or other 

natural disaster, all school employees are immediately designated ―Civil Defense Workers‖ and are not 

allowed to leave school until they are given official clearance to do so by the administrative staff.  

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy has prepared general classroom safety rules to help 

make classrooms safer in the event of serious seismic activity. This list of rules advises teachers, for 

example, to have their emergency clipboards readily available near the entrance/exit to their classrooms, 

instructs teachers-and staff-not to store heavy objects on top of cabinets, exits and ways of travel are to be 

kept free of obstructions and have their earthquake buckets at a visible location in the classroom. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy also participates in the Great California ShakeOut, a statewide 

program that helps people and organizations prepare for major earthquakes, and also practice how to respond 

when they happen. 

 

Bom b  Th r ea t s  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 69 of 114 

  

Every person receiving the call must understand the importance of a calm and reasonable action when a 

bomb threat is received. Information obtained by that person might be of great importance. Therefore, the 

person receiving the threat will get as much information as possible from the caller. This includes the time of 

the day, wording of the message, background noises, quality of the voice and information about where the 

bomb is, what time it will go off, etc. The person receiving the threat should delay the caller as long as 

possible while s/he alerts another adult to the crisis. That adult will immediately notify the telephone 

company to trace the call and immediately thereafter notify the police via 911. 

 

Based on the information at hand, the administrative staff will make a decision whether an immediate 

evacuation is warranted. If so, the evacuation code word ―safe school drill‖ will be given over the intercom 

and evacuation procedures will be followed. The office staff will coordinate information requests from/to 

law enforcement, the telephone company, and the parents/guardians. If an immediate evacuation is not 

warranted, the administrative staff will notify teachers to inspect their room for any suspicious materials or 

unknown packages without alarming students. All unassigned staff will report to the office for assignments 

such as searching offices, bathrooms, and all other common areas including outdoor facilities. 

 

E va c u a t io n  P la n  

A disaster of a significant nature may require the evacuation of the school. Immediately upon notification by 

outside authorities that the school must be evacuated, the administrative staff will verify the name and 

position of the person placing the alert. Once the source is confirmed, the administrative staff will give the 

evacuation code word ―safe school drill‖ over the intercom. Teachers will proceed with their students to the 

nearest school exit indicated on the evacuation map posted for this purpose. Before leaving the room, 

teachers will make sure they have their emergency clipboards that include class attendance rosters with them. 

Students who are not in a classroom at the time the intercom signal is given will attach themselves to the 

nearest teacher exiting the building for purposes of getting to the designated evacuation site. Prior to 

evacuation, offices, bathrooms, and all other common areas, including outdoor facilities, will be searched by 

unassigned staff members designated by the administrative staff. 

 

Once at the designated evacuation site, teachers and other staff will ensure that all students find their 

respective teachers. Teachers will then take roll to ensure that all students are accounted for. The names of 

any missing students will be given to the office personnel and an individual will be assigned the task of 

finding any missing students. Teachers will work together to take care of students with injuries, respiratory 

problems, or other medical conditions. 

 

Teachers will stay with their classes for the duration of the emergency. In the event of an evacuation, all 

school employees are immediately designated ―Civil Defense Workers‖ and are not allowed to leave school 

until they are given official clearance to do so by the administrative staff.  

 

Students will remain with their teachers at the designated evacuation site until the administrative staff gives 

the ―all clear‖ signal. In the event students cannot return to the school site, the administrative staff will notify 

parents and/or the media as to where students can be picked up. The office personnel will sign out students 

as they are being picked up by a parent or other adult listed on the emergency information card. Parents will 

be asked to remain in a designated area, and students will be escorted to the designated area for release.  

 

 

E. ADDITIONAL 
 

I n d em n i f i ca t io n  

With the exception of the District’s indemnification obligations related to the District’s provision of special 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 70 of 114 

  

education services as specifically described in the charter thus far, and with the exception of any liability, 

claims or damages caused solely by the active negligence or willful misconduct of the District, the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the District and its 

Board, Board members, officers, administrators, employees, agents, representatives, volunteers, successors, 

and assigns (collectively hereinafter ―District and District Personnel‖) against any and all claims, demands, 

actions, causes of action, suits, losses, expenses, costs, penalties, obligations, errors, omissions, or liabilities, 

including legal costs, attorney’s fees, and expert witness fees, whether or not suit is actually filed, and/o r any 

judgment rendered against District and/or District Personnel that may be asserted or claimed by any person, 

firm, or entity which may in any way arise out of or in connection with performance under the Charter by the 

Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, their advisory board, administrators, employees, agents, 

representatives, volunteers, subcontractors, invitees, successors, and/or assigns. The Charter SchoolThe 

Advanced Learning Academy and its Board’s obligation to defend the District and the other indemnities 

identified herein is not contingent upon there being an acknowledgement or determination of the merit of any 

claim, demand, action, cause of action, or suit.    

 

I n su ra n c e  

 

As a District-sponsored charter, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will be insured under 

SAUSD’s insurance policy. The proposed Charter development will add property and buildings under the 

District’s ownership, and would be added to the District’s insurance policy. The District is insured under the 

Alliance of Schools for Cooperative Insurance Programs for property coverage. Should the District have a 

loss with a $25,000 Self-Insured Retention on an occurrence, the coverage limit will be the replacement cost. 

The District’s premium is based on a property appraisal that is done every five years and on annual trending. 

 

Au x i l ia r y  S er v i ce s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy administrative staff will conduct annual reviews to 

ensure all applicable auxiliary services are safe (food services, custodial services).  

  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 71 of 114 

  

ELEMENT SEVEN│ R A C I A L &  E T H N I C  B A L A N C E  

Governing Law: The means by which the school will achieve a racial and ethnic balance among its pupils 

that is reflective of the general population residing within the territorial jurisdiction of the school district to 

which the charter petition is submitted.  Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(G). 

 

Students from all areas of SAUSD and the INDA will be recruited, with a goal of creating an economically 

and ethnically diverse student population. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will 

advertise to the entire SAUSD community and draw students that are attracted to the unique K-8 STEM 

program. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy aims to attract students from all cultural 

backgrounds within SAUSD, especially the Latino ethnicity. Historically, the number of Latino students 

pursuing careers in STEM areas has been low. A notable cause of these low numbers is that Latino students 

have inadequate exposure to STEM curriculum. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will 

provide a unique program to a largely-Latino student population of SAUSD in the hopes of educating and 

inspiring students to pursue STEM-related careers in today’s technology-driven economy. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will implement a special recruitment process to 

achieve racial and ethnic balance among its students that reflects the general population residing in the 

geographic boundaries of the District. This process involves the following: 

 

 Hold discussions and distribute application materials at places where diverse populations may be reached in 

the target area, including community centers, neighborhood meeting areas, and existing schools 

 Distribute materials in English and Spanish to reach the limited English proficient populations that exist in 

the target area; 

 Employ bilingual individuals who specialize in public relations with underrepresented communities and 

neighborhoods 

 Host Open Houses and provide tours of the school 

 Monthly or biweekly public presentations; 

 All means of advertising will be used, such as electronic media, flyers, and direct mail 

 Distributing flyers at playgrounds, recreation centers and/or sports clubs in our neighborhood 

 Direct mailing to the parents/guardians who have children in targeted age groups 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will maintain an accurate accounting of the ethnic and 

racial balance of students enrolled in the school.  Such data may drive additional recruitment measures 

should the data indicate that the racial and ethnic distribution is not reflective of the surrounding 

communities. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will also document the efforts made to 

achieve racial and ethnic balance in accordance with the charter petition and standards of charter legislation. 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 72 of 114 

  

ELEMENT EIGHT│ A D M I S S I O N  R E Q U I R E M E N T  

Governing Law: Admission requirements, of the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, if 

applicable. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(H). 

 

L eg a l  A ssu ra n c e s  

Charter schools are schools of choice and admissions policies will reflect this compliance with state and 

federal requirements. In accordance with Education Code Section 47605(d)(2)(A), the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy will admit all students who wish to attend, up to the school’s enrollment 

capacity.  

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will:  

 Be non-sectarian in all areas of operations, including student admission  

 Not discriminate on the basis of the characteristics listed in Education Code Section 220 (actual or perceived 

disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual 

orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 

422.55 of the Penal Code or association with an individual who has any of the aforementioned 

characteristics).  

 Not charge tuition  

 Accept all students who are California residents that wish to attend the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy, regardless of their place of residence within the state  

 Not require any pupil to attend the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy  

 Not require any test or assessment prior to acceptance and enrollment in the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy  

 Not enroll pupils over 19 years of age unless continuously enrolled in public school and making satisfactory 

progress toward high school diploma requirements  

 Comply with all laws establishing minimum age for public school attendance  

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will adhere to all provisions of No Child Left Behind 

regarding:  

 Receiving students from Program Improvement schools as part of Public School Choice.  

 Providing the Co-Directors' attestation of highly qualified teachers and paraprofessionals.  

 Meeting the needs of "at-risk" students if the school is designated a targeted assistance school.  

 

M c Kin n e y - Ve n to  Hom el es s  A ss i s ta n c e  A c t  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will adhere to the provisions of the McKinney-Vento 

Homeless Assistance Act and ensure that each child of a homeless individual and each homeless youth has 

equal access to the same free, appropriate public education as provided to other children and youth s. The 

Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will include specific information in their outreach 

materials, websites, at community meetings, open forums, and regional center meetings notifying parents 

that the school is open to enroll and provide services for all students which shall include a District standard 

contact number to access additional information regarding enrollment. A student’s IEP will never be 

required prior to participation in any attendance lottery or as a condition for enrollment.  

 

P r io r i t y  E n ro l lm en t  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 73 of 114 

  

The main objective of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is to house students generated 

from the INDA. Priority enrollment will be given to students that reside in this area. Second enrollment 

priority will be given to SAUSD students attending other SAUSD impacted (overcrowded) schools. Third 

enrollment priority will be given to SAUSD students attending any other SAUSD schools. Any other 

students that choose to attend the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will be admitted as 

facility capacity allows. If Irvine Unified School District (IUSD) students in the vicinity wish to enroll, they 

will first be required to obtain an inter-district transfer release from IUSD.  

 

At full capacity, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will serve 600 students in grades K-8. 

If the number of students who wish to attend the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy exceeds 

the school’s capacity, enrollment preferences will be given as on a lottery basis.  

 

The following is a description of the random enrollment lottery process, if needed: 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will inform parents of all applicants and all interested 

parties of the rules to be followed during the lottery process, location, date and time of the lottery through 

mail, e-mail, school website, phone, and other available outlets prior to the lottery date.  

 

Enrollment preferences in the case of a lottery will be given in the following order:  

 Siblings of existing students 

 Children of Board members or children of employees of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy 

 Students who reside within SAUSD attendance boundaries 

 All other students permitted by law 

 

In the lottery, all names are drawn and listed in order, separately, for each grade level. Once the school 

capacity is met, the remaining students’ names will continue to be drawn randomly and p laced in the order 

they are drawn on the waiting list. The students who do not apply in the open enrollment period are added to 

the end of the waiting list in the order they applied. All waiting lists expire annually at the end of the formal 

academic year. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will maintain auditable records of the 

above activities. 

 

Notifications of admission status will be communicated through mail and phone calls to all applicants. 

Enrollment packets will be sent to admitted students; students not admitted will be informed of their waiting 

list priority number as determined by the admissions lottery or application order.  

 

If the enrollment packets are not returned within 10 business days from the date of postage, then admission 

for that student is forfeited, and an admission notice will be mailed to the next student on the waiting list. In 

addition, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall attempt on at least two separate 

occasions to contact the parents/guardians of promoted students by telephone. Those families not returning 

the enrollment packets within the 10-day period forfeit their right to enroll their student in the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy for that school year, and an admission notice will be mailed to the 

next student on the waiting list. 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 74 of 114 

  

ELEMENT NINE│ A N N U A L F I N A N C I A L A U D I T S  

 

Governing Law: The manner in which annual, independent financial audits shall be conducted, which shall 

employ generally accepted accounting principles, and the manner in which audit exceptions and deficiencies 

shall be resolved to the satisfaction of the chartering authority. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(I). 

 

Annually, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will use the District's state-approved 

independent financial auditor and a Certified Public Accountant to produce an annual financial statement and 

audit. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will maintain auditable records and other 

evidence pertaining to costs incurred throughout the charter period for at least seven years. These audits will 

be conducted pursuant to State Superintendent of Schools and federal regulations. The audit will verify the 

accuracy of the school's financial statements, attendance and enrollment accounting practices, and review the 

school's internal controls.  

 

To the extent required under applicable federal law, the audit scope will be expanded to include items and 

processes specified in any applicable Office of Management and Budget Circulars. It is anticipated that the 

annual audit will be completed within six months of the close of the fiscal year. Upon completion, a copy of 

the auditor's findings will be forwarded to the SAUSD Deputy Superintendent of Business and Board of 

Education. The Deputy Superintendent will review any audit exceptions or deficiencies, then recommend 

ways for the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s Co-Directors to resolve them. The Co-

Directors will then report back to the Board how the exceptions and deficiencies have been or will be 

resolved.  

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will utilize the district's written contract 

administration system that ensures that all contractors, including consultants, perform in accordance with 

terms, condition and specifications of all state contract procurement regulations.  

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will compile and provide to the Board an annual 

performance report. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy staff and the Board will jointly 

develop the content, evaluation criteria, timelines, and process for the annual performance reports. This 

report will, at a minimum, include the following data:  

 Summary data showing student progress toward the goals and outcomes from assessment instruments and 

techniques specified herein. This data will be displayed on both a school-wide basis and disaggregated by 

major racial and ethnic categories to the extent feasible without compromising student confidentiality.  

 A summary of major decisions and policies established by the school during the year.  

 Data on the level of parent involvement in the school's governance and summary data from an annual parent 

and student satisfaction survey.  

 Data regarding the number of staff working at the school and their qualifications.  

 A copy of the school's health and safety policies and/or a summary of any major changes to those policies 

during the year.  

 Information demonstrating whether the school achieved its goal of recruiting a racially and ethnica lly 

balanced student population.  

 An overview of the school's admissions practices during the year and data specifying the numbers of 

students enrolled, the number on waiting lists, and the numbers of students expelled and/or suspended.  

 Analyses of the effectiveness of the school's internal and external dispute mechanisms and data on the 

number and resolution of disputes and complaints.  

 Other information regarding the educational program and the administrative, legal, and governance 

operations of the school relative to compliance with the terms of the charter.  

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 75 of 114 

  

  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 76 of 114 

  

In Element 17, ―Proposed Budget and Cash Flow,‖ please find the following: 

 Projected operational budgets for five years of operation 

 Cash flow projections for five years of operation  

These documents are based upon the best data available to the Petitioners at this time. 

 

Fi n a n c ia l  R ep o r t s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy guarantees to provide reports required by the SAUSD 

as outlined below:  

 CBEDS (California Basic Educational Data System) 

 ADA (Average Daily Attendance) reports J18/19 

 SARC (School Accountability Report Card) 

 Each fiscal year an independent audit will be conducted of the financial affairs of the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy to verify the accuracy of the school's financial statements, attendance and 

enrollment accounting practices, and internal controls.  

 Pursuant to AB 1137, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will provide any necessary 

financial statements to SAUSD, the Orange County Department of Education (OCDE), and California 

Department of Education. Additionally, the following reports will be submitted to SAUSD, in the required 

format and within timelines to be specified by SAUSD each year: 

 Final Budget – Spring prior to operating fiscal year 

 First Interim Projections – November of operating fiscal year  

 Second Interim Projections – February of operating fiscal year  

 Unaudited Actuals – July following the end of the fiscal year 

 Audited Actuals – December 15 following the end of the fiscal year 

 Classification Report – monthly according to the School’s calendar 

 Statistical Report – monthly according to the School’s calendar of reports 

   

 

  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 77 of 114 

  

ELEMENT TEN│ S U S P E N S I O N  &  E X P U L S I O N  

 

Governing Law: The procedures by which pupils can be suspended or expelled.  Education Code Section 

47605(b)(5)(J). 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s policy will be consistent with the SAUSD’s policy. 

If a conflict with District policies and procedures exists, then District policies and procedures will govern. 

 

This Student Suspension and Expulsion Policy has been established in order to promote learning and protect 

the safety and well-being of all students at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy. When the 

policy is violated, it may be necessary to suspend or expel a student from regular classroom instruction. This 

policy shall serve as the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s policy and procedures for student 

suspension and expulsion, and it may be amended from time to time without the need to amend the charter so 

long as the amendments comport with legal requirements stipulated within Education Code and Penal Code. 

 

Staff shall enforce disciplinary rules and procedures fairly and consistently among all students.  This Policy 

and its Procedures will clearly describe discipline expectations, and it will be printed and distributed as part 

of the Student Handbook which is sent to each student at the beginning of the school year. The Charter 

SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy administration shall ensure that students and their 

parents/guardians are notified as part of the Student Handbook of all discipline policies and procedures.  

Discipline includes but is not limited to advising and counseling students, conferring with parents/guardians, 

detention during and after school hours, use of alternative educational environments, suspension and 

expulsion.  

 

Corporal punishment shall not be used as a disciplinary measure against any student.  Corporal punishment 

includes the willful infliction of or willfully causing the infliction of physical pain on a student. For purposes 

of the Policy, corporal punishment does not include an employee’s use of force that is reasonable and 

necessary to protect the employee, students, staff or other persons or to prevent damage to school property.  

Suspended or expelled students shall be excluded from all school and school-related activities unless 

otherwise agreed during the period of suspension or expulsion. 

 

A student identified as an individual with disabilities or for whom The Charter SchoolThe Advanced 

Learning Academy has a basis of knowledge of a suspected disability pursuant to the Individuals with 

Disabilities Education Act of 2004 (―IDEA‖) or who is qualified for services under Section 504 of the 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (―Section 504‖) is subject to the same grounds for suspension and expulsion and 

is accorded the same due process procedures applicable to regular education students except when federal 

and state law mandates additional or different procedures.  The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning 

Academy will follow all applicable federal and state laws when imposing any form of discipline on a student 

identified as an individual with disabilities or for whom The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning 

Academy has a basis of knowledge of a suspected disability or who is otherwise qualified for such services 

or protections in according due process to such students. 

 

P ro g re ss i v e  Po s i t i ve  Di s c ip l in e  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will act in accordance with the District’s Positive 

Behavioral Interventions and Supports (PBIS) program that acknowledges and encourages positive student 

behavior and improvements. Parents will be informed of positive behavior and improvements via phone, 

email, and home visits. Students will receive certificates and/or rewards for outstanding performance and 

behaviors.  

  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 78 of 114 

  

En u m era t ed  O f f en s e s  

Students may be suspended or expelled for any of the following acts when it is determined the student: 

 Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another person. 

 Willfully used force of violence upon the person of another, except self-defense. 

 Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, knife, explosive, or other dangerous object unless, in the 

case of possession of any object of this type, the students had obtained written permission to possess the item 

from a certificated school employee, with the Principal or designee’s concurrence. 

 Unlawfully possessed, used, sold or otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of any controlled 

substance, as defined in Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of 

any kind. 

 Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined in Health and Safety 

Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant of any kind, and then sold, delivered or 

otherwise furnished to any person another liquid substance or material and represented same as controlled 

substance, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant. 

 Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion. 

 Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property. 

 Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property. 

 Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products, including but not limited to 

cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets and betel. This 

section does not prohibit the use of his or her own prescription products by a student. 

 Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity. 

 Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug paraphernalia, as 

defined in Health and Safety Code Section 11014.5. 

 Disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of supervisors, teachers, 

administrators, other school officials, or other school personnel engaged in the performance of their duties. 

 Knowingly received stolen school property or private property. 

 Possessed an imitation firearm, i.e.: a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar in physical 

properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude that the replica is a firearm. 

 Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code Sections 261, 266c, 286, 288, 

288a or 289, or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code Section 243.4. 

 Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness in a school 

disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from being a witness and/or retaliating 

against that student for being a witness. 

 Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug Soma. 

 Engaged in, or attempted to engage in hazing.  For the purposes of this subdivision, ―hazing‖ means a 

method of initiation or pre-initiation into a student organization or body, whether or not the organization or 

body is officially recognized by an educational institution, which is likely to cause serious bodily injury or 

personal degradation or disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a former, current, or prospective 

student.  For purposes of this section, ―hazing‖ does not include athletic events or school-sanctioned events. 

 Engaged in an act of bullying, including bullying by means of electronic act, as defined in Education Code 

Section 48900. 

 Made terrorist threats against school officials and/or school property.  For purposes of this section, 

"terroristic threat" shall include any statement, whether written or oral, by a person who willfully threatens to 

commit a crime which will result in death, great bodily injury to another person, or property damage in 

excess of one thousand dollars ($1,000), with the specific intent that the statement is to be taken as a threat, 

even if there is no intent of actually carrying it out, which, on its face and under the circumstances in which 

it is made, is so unequivocal, unconditional, immediate, and specific as to convey to the person threatened, a 

gravity of purpose and an immediate prospect of execution of the threat, and thereby causes that person 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 79 of 114 

  

reasonably to be in sustained fear for his or her own safety or for his or her immediate family's safety, or for 

the protection of school property, or the personal property of the person threatened or his or her immediate 

family. 

 Committed sexual harassment, as defined in Education Code Section 212.5.  For the purposes of this section, 

the conduct described in Section 212.5 must be considered by a reasonable person of the same gender as the 

victim to be sufficiently severe or pervasive to have a negative impact upon the individual's academic 

performance or to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment. This section shall 

apply to students in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive. 

 Caused, attempted to cause, threaten to cause or participated in an act of hate violence, as defined in 

subdivision (e) of Section 233 of the Education Code.  This section shall apply to students in any of grades 4 

to 12, inclusive. 

 Intentionally harassed, threatened or intimidated a student or group of students to the extent of having the 

actual and reasonably expected effect of materially disrupting class work, creating substantial disorder and 

invading student rights by creating an intimidating or hostile educational environment. This section shall 

apply to students in any of grades 6 to 12, inclusive. 

 

Alternatives to suspension or expulsion will first be attempted with students who are truant, tardy, or 

otherwise absent from assigned school activities.  

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy principal or the superintendent of schools shall 

recommend the expulsion of a pupil pursuant to Education Code 48915: 

 

(a) (1) Except as provided in subdivisions (c) and (e), the principal or the superintendent of schools shall 

recommend the expulsion of a pupil for any of the following acts committed at school or at a school activity 

off school grounds, unless the principal or superintendent determines that expulsion should not be 

recommended under the circumstances or that an alternative means of correction would address the conduct:  

(A) Causing serious physical injury to another person, except in self-defense. 

(B) Possession of any knife or other dangerous object of no reasonable use to the pupil.  

(C) Unlawful possession of any controlled substance listed in Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 11053) 

of Division 10 of the Health and Safety Code, except for either of the following: 

(i) The first offense for the possession of not more than one avoirdupois ounce of marijuana, other than 

concentrated cannabis. 

(ii) The possession of over-the-counter medication for use by the pupil for medical purposes or medication 

prescribed for the pupil by a physician. 

(D) Robbery or extortion. 

(E) Assault or battery, as defined in Sections 240 and 242 of the Penal Code, upon any school employee.  

(2) If the principal or the superintendent of schools makes a determination as described in paragraph (1), he 

or she is encouraged to do so as quickly as possible to ensure that the pupil does not lose instructional time.  

(b) Upon recommendation by the principal or the superintendent of schools, or by a hearing officer or 

administrative panel appointed pursuant to subdivision (d) of Section 48918, the governing board of a school 

district may order a pupil expelled upon finding that the pupil committed an act listed in paragraph (1) of 

subdivision (a) or in subdivision (a), (b), (c), (d), or (e) of Section 48900. A decision to expel a pupil for any 

of those acts shall be based on a finding of one or both of the following: 

(1) Other means of correction are not feasible or have repeatedly failed to bring about proper conduct. 

(2) Due to the nature of the act, the presence of the pupil causes a continuing danger to the physical safety of 

the pupil or others. 

 (c) The principal or superintendent of schools shall immediately suspend, pursuant to Section 48911, and 

shall recommend expulsion of a pupil that he or she determines has committed any of the following acts at 

school or at a school activity off school grounds: 

(1) Possessing, selling, or otherwise furnishing a firearm. This subdivision does not apply to an act of 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 80 of 114 

  

possessing a firearm if the pupil had obtained prior written permission to possess the firearm from a 

certificated school employee, which is concurred in by the principal or the designee of the principal. This 

subdivision applies to an act of possessing a firearm only if the possession is verified by an employee of a 

school district. The act of possessing an imitation firearm, as defined in subdivision (m) of Section 48900, is 

not an offense for which suspension or expulsion is mandatory pursuant to this subdivision and subdivision 

(d), but it is an offense for which suspension, or expulsion pursuant to subdivision (e), may be imposed.  

(2) Brandishing a knife at another person. 

(3) Unlawfully selling a controlled substance listed in Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 11053) of 

Division 10 of the Health and Safety Code. 

(4) Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault as defined in subdivision (n) of Section 48900 or 

committing a sexual battery as defined in subdivision (n) of Section 48900. 

(5) Possession of an explosive. 

S u sp en s io n  Pro c ed u re  

Suspensions shall be initiated according to the following procedures: 

1. Conference 

Suspension shall be preceded, if possible, by a conference conducted by the Principal or the Principal’s 

designee with the student and his or her parent and, whenever practical, the teacher, supervisor or school 

employee who referred the student to the Principal.  The conference may be omitted if the Principal or 

designee determines that an emergency situation exists.  An ―emergency situation‖ involves a clear and 

present danger to the lives, safety or health of students or school personnel.  If a student is suspended without 

this conference, both the parent/guardian and student shall be notified of the studen t’s right to return to 

school for the purpose of a conference. 

 

At the conference, the student shall be informed of the reason for the disciplinary action and the evidence 

against him or her and shall be given the opportunity to present his or her version and evidence in his or her 

defense. 

 

This conference shall be held within two school days, unless the student waives this right or is physically 

unable to attend for any reason including, but not limited to, incarceration or hospitalization. 

 

No penalties may be imposed on a student for failure of the student’s parent or guardian to attend a 

conference with school officials.  Reinstatement of the suspended student shall not be contingent upon 

attendance by the student’s parent or guardian at the conference.  

 

2. Notice to Parents/Guardians 

At the time of suspension, the Principal or designee shall make a reasonable effort to contact the 

parent/guardian by telephone or in person.  Whenever a student is suspended, the parent/guardian shall be 

notified in writing of the suspension and the date of return following suspension.  This notice shall state the 

specific offense committed by the student.  In addition, the notice may also state the date and time when the 

student may return to school.  If school officials wish to ask the parent/guardian to confer regarding matters 

pertinent to the suspension, the notice may request that the parent/guardian respond to such requests without 

delay. 

 

1) Suspension Time Limits/Recommendation for Placement/Expulsion 

Suspensions, when not including a recommendation for expulsion, shall not exceed five (5) consecutive 

school days per suspension. Notice of suspension and the reasons for the suspension will be given to the 

student and the parent in writing. If a student is suspended, s/he will not have any opportunity to make up 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 81 of 114 

  

work that s/he misses during the suspension. If a student receives two (2) suspensions; third disciplinary 

action that requires another suspension may automatically start the expulsion process. Students and 

parent/guardian may appeal a suspension within one (1) school day of the suspension. This appeal will be 

made to the Principal and heard by a discipline committee. 

 

The student may not attend classes until the appeal is heard, but they will be able to turn in work for the 

classes they miss while waiting for the appeal and receive credit for that work. All discipline committee 

hearings on suspensions will be held within two (2) school days of the appeal being made. The decision of 

the discipline committee is final. 

 

Upon a recommendation of Placement/Expulsion by the Principal or Principal’s designee, the student and the 

student’s guardian or representative will be invited to a conference to determine if the suspension for the 

student should be extended pending an expulsion hearing.  This determination will be made by the Principal 

or designee upon either of the following determinations: (1) the student’s presence will be disruptive to the 

education process; or (2) the student poses a threat or danger to others.  Upon either determination, the 

student’s suspension will be extended pending the results of an expulsion hearing.  

 

Ex p u l s io n  Pro c ed ur e  

A student may be expelled either by the Santa Ana Board of Education following a hearing before it or by 

the Santa Ana Board of Education upon the recommendation of an Administrative Panel to be assigned by 

the Santa Ana Board of Education as needed. The Administrative Panel should consist of at least three 

members who are certificated and neither a teacher of the student or a Board member of the Santa Ana Board 

of Education. The Administrative Panel may recommend expulsion of any student found to have committed 

an expellable offense. 

 

Students recommended for expulsion are entitled to a hearing to determine whether the student should be 

expelled. Unless postponed for good cause, the hearing shall be held within thirty (30) school days after the 

Principal or designee determines that the Student has committed an expellable offense. 

 

In the event an administrative panel hears the case, it will make a recommendation to the Santa Ana Board of 

Education for a final decision whether to expel.  The hearing shall be held in closed session unless the 

student makes a written request for a public hearing three (3) days prior to the hearing. 

 

Written notice of the hearing shall be forwarded to the student and the student’s parent/guardian at least ten 

(10) calendar days before the date of the hearing.  Upon mailing the notice, it shall be deemed served upon 

the student.  The notice shall include: 

 The date and place of the expulsion hearing; 

 A statement of specific facts, charges and offenses upon which the proposed expulsion is based;  

 A copy of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s disciplinary rules which relate to the 

alleged violation; 

 Notification of the student’s or parent/guardian’s obligation to provide information about the student’s status 

at the school to any other school district or school to which the student seeks enrollment; 

 The opportunity for the student or the student’s parent/guardian to appear in person or to employ and be 

represented by counsel or a non-attorney advisor; 

 The right to inspect and obtain copies of all documents to be used at the hearing; 

 The opportunity to confront and question all witnesses who testify at the hearing; 

 The opportunity to question all evidence presented and to present oral and documentary evidence on the 

student’s behalf including witnesses. 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 82 of 114 

  

 

S p ec ia l  Pro c ed u r e s  fo r  Ex p u l s io n  & He a r i n g s  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy may, upon finding a good cause, determine that the 

disclosure of either the identity of the witness or the testimony of that witness at the hearing, or both, would 

subject the witness to an unreasonable risk of psychological or physical harm.  Upon this determination, the 

testimony of the witness may be presented at the hearing in the form of sworn declarations which shall be 

examined only by the Board, administrative panel, or the hearing officer.  Copies of these sworn 

declarations, edited to delete the name and identity of the witness, shall be made available to the student.  

 

 The complaining witness in any sexual assault or battery case must be provided with a copy of the applicable 

disciplinary rules and advised of his/her right to (a) receive five days notice of his/her scheduled testimony, 

(b) have up to two (2) adult support persons of his/her choosing present in the hearing at the time he/she 

testifies, which may include a parent, guardian, or legal counsel, and (c) elect to have the hearing closed 

while testifying. 

 The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy must also provide the victim a room separate from the 

hearing room for the complaining witness’ use prior to and during breaks in testimony. 

 At the discretion of the person or panel conducting the hearing, the complaining witness shall be allowed 

periods of relief from examination and cross-examination during which he or she may leave the hearing 

room. 

 The person conducting the expulsion hearing may also arrange the seating within the hearing room to 

facilitate a less intimidating environment for the complaining witness. 

 The person conducting the expulsion hearing may also limit time for taking the testimony of the complaining 

witness to the hours he/she is normally in school, if there is no good cause to take the testimony during other 

hours. 

 Prior to a complaining witness testifying, the support persons must be admonished that the hearing is 

confidential.  Nothing in the law precludes the person presiding over the hearing from removing a support 

person whom the presiding person finds is disrupting the hearing.  The person conducting the hearing may 

permit any one of the support persons for the complaining witness to accompany him or her to  the witness 

stand. 

 If one or both of the support persons is also a witness, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy 

must present evidence that the witness’ presence is both desired by the witness and will be helpful to the 

Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy.  The person presiding over the hearing shall permit the 

witness to stay unless it is established that there is a substantial risk that the testimony of the complaining 

witness would be influenced by the support person, in which case the presiding official shall admonish the 

support person or persons not to prompt, sway, or influence the witness in any way.  Nothing shall preclude 

the presiding officer from exercising his or her discretion to remove a person from the hearing whom h e or 

she believes is prompting, swaying, or influencing the witness. 

 The testimony of the support person shall be presented before the testimony of the complaining witness and 

the complaining witness shall be excluded from the courtroom during that testimony. 

 Especially for charges involving sexual assault or battery, if the hearing is to be conducted in the public at 

the request of the student being expelled, the complaining witness shall have the right to have his/her 

testimony heard in a closed session when testifying at a public meeting would threaten serious psychological 

harm to the complaining witness and there are not alternative procedures to avoid the threatened harm.  The 

alternative procedures may include videotaped depositions or contemporaneous examination in another place 

communicated to the hearing by means of closed-circuit television. 

 Evidence of specific instances of a complaining witness’ prior sexual conduct is presumed inadmissible and 

shall not be heard absent a determination by the person conducting the hearing that extraordinary 

circumstances exist requiring the evidence be heard.  Before such a determination regarding extraordinary 

circumstances can be made, the witness shall be provided notice and an opportunity to present opposition  to 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 83 of 114 

  

the introduction of the evidence.  In the hearing on the admissibility of the evidence, the complaining witness 

shall be entitled to be represented by a parent, legal counsel, or other support person.  Reputation or opinion 

evidence regarding the sexual behavior of the complaining witness is not admissible for any purpose. 

 

R e co rd s  &  L i t ig a t io n s  

1. Record of Hearing 

A record of the hearing shall be made and may be maintained by any means, including electronic recording, 

as long as a reasonably accurate and complete written transcription of the proceedings can be made. 

 

2. Presentation of Evidence 

While technical rules of evidence do not apply to expulsion hearings, evidence may be admitted and used as 

proof only if it is the kind of evidence on which reasonable persons can rely in the conduct of serious affairs.  

A recommendation by the Administrative Panel to expel must be supported by substantial evidence that the 

student committed an expellable offense. 

 

Findings of fact shall be based solely on the evidence at the hearing.  While hearsay evidence is admissible, 

no decision to expel shall be based solely on hearsay and sworn declarations may be admitted as testimony 

from witnesses of whom the Board, Panel or designee determines that disclosure of their identity or 

testimony at the hearing may subject them to an unreasonable risk of physical or psychological harm.  

 

If, due to a written request by the accused student, the hearing is held at a public meeting, and the charge is 

committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault or committing a sexual battery as defined in Education 

Code Section 48900, a complaining witness shall have the right to have his or her testimony heard in a 

session closed to the public. 

 

The decision of the Administrative Panel shall be in the form of written findings of fact and a written 

recommendation to the Santa Ana Board of Education who will make a final determination regarding the 

expulsion.  The final decision by the Board shall be made within ten (10) school days following the 

conclusion of the hearing.  The decision of the Board is final.  

If the expulsion hearing panel decides not to recommend expulsion, the student shall immediately be 

returned to his/her educational program. 

 

3.  Written Notice to Expel 

The Principal or designee following a decision of the Board to expel shall send written notice of the decision 

to expel, including the Board’s adopted findings of fact, to the student or parent/guardian.  This notice shall 

also include the following: 

 

 Notice of the specific offense committed by the student 

 Notice of the student’s or parent/guardian’s obligation to inform any new district in which the student seeks 

to enroll of the student’s status with the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy 

 The reinstatement eligibility review date; a copy of the rehabilitation plan; the type of educational placement 

during the period of expulsion, and notice of appeal rights/procedures 

 The Principal or designee shall send a copy of the written notice of the decision to expel to the student’s 

district of residence.  This notice shall include the following: 

 The student’s name 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 84 of 114 

  

 The specific expellable offense committed by the student 

 

4.  Disciplinary Records 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy shall maintain records of all student suspensions and 

expulsions at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy.  Such records shall be made available to 

the District upon request. 

 

5.  No Right to Appeal 

The student shall have no right of appeal from expulsion from the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy as the Board decision to expel shall be final. 

 

Fu r th er  A ssu ra n c es  

 

1. Expelled Students/Alternative Education 

Students who are expelled shall be responsible for seeking alternative education programs including, but not 

limited to, programs within the County or their school district of residence. 

Charter School shall provide due process for all students, including adequate notice to parents/guardians and 

students regarding the grounds for suspension and expulsion and their due process rights regarding 

suspension and expulsion, including rights to appeal. 

 

Charter School shall ensure that its policies and procedures regarding suspension and expulsion will be 

periodically reviewed, and modified as necessary, including, for example, any modification of the lists of 

offenses for which students are subject to suspension or expulsion. Charter School shall be responsible for 

the appropriate interim placement of students during and pending the completion of the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy’s student expulsion process.   

 

Charter Schools will implement operational and procedural guidelines ensuring federal and state laws and 

regulations regarding the discipline of students with disabilities are met. Charter Schools will also ensure 

staff is knowledgeable about and complies with the District’s Policies. If the student receives or is eligible 

for special education, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall identify and provide special 

education programs and services at the appropriate interim educational placement, pending the completion of 

the expulsion process, to be coordinated with the SAUSD. 

 

Charter School shall document the alternatives to suspension and expulsion the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy utilizes with students who are truant, tardy, or otherwise absent from compulsory school 

activities. 

 

If a student is expelled from the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy shall forward student records upon request of the receiving school district in a 

timely fashion. Charter School shall also submit an expulsion packet to the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academys Division immediately or as soon as practically possible, containing:  

 pupil’s last known address 

 a copy of the cumulative record  

 transcript of grades or report card 

 health information 

 documentation of the expulsion proceeding, including specific facts supporting the expulsion and 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 85 of 114 

  

documentation that the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s policies and procedures were 

followed 

 student’s current educational placement 

 copy of parental notice of expulsion 

 copy of documentation of expulsion provided to parent stating reason for expulsion, term of expulsion, 

rehabilitation plan, reinstatement notice with eligibility date and instructions for providing proof of student’s 

compliance for reinstatement, appeal process and options for enrollment; and 

 if the Student is eligible for Special Education, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy must 

provide documentation related to expulsion pursuant to IDEA including conducting a manifestation 

determination  IEP prior to expulsion. If the student is eligible for Section 504 Accommodations, the  

Charter School must provide evidence that it convened a Link Determination meeting to address two 

questions:  

 

1. Was the misconduct caused by, or directly and substantially related to the student’s disability? 

2. Was the misconduct a direct result of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s failure to 

implement 504 Plan? 

 

2. Outcome Data 

Charter School shall maintain all data involving placement, tracking, and monitoring of student suspensions, 

expulsions, and reinstatements, and make such outcome data readily available to the District upon request.  

 

3. Rehabilitation Plans 

Pupils who are expelled from the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall be given a 

rehabilitation plan upon expulsion as developed by the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s 

governing board at the time of the expulsion order, which may include, but is not limited to, periodic review 

as well as assessment at the time of review for readmission.  Terms of expulsion should be reasonable and 

fair with the weight of the expelling offense taken into consideration when determining the length of 

expulsion.  Therefore, the rehabilitation plan should include a date not later than one (1) year from the date 

of expulsion when the pupil may reapply to the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy for 

readmission.  

4. Readmission 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s governing board shall adopt rules establishing a 

procedure for the filing and processing of requests for readmission and the process for the required review of 

all expelled pupils for readmission. Upon completion of the readmission process, the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy’s governing board shall readmit the pupil, unless the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy’s governing board makes a finding that the pupil has not met the conditions of 

the rehabilitation plan or continues to pose a danger to campus safety. A description of the procedure shall be 

made available to the pupil and the pupil’s parent or guardian at the time the expulsion order is entered and 

the decision of the governing board, including any related findings, must be provided to the pupil and the 

pupil’s parent/guardian within a reasonable time.  

 

5. Reinstatement 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s governing board shall adopt rules establishing a 

procedure for processing reinstatements, including the review of documents regarding the rehabilitation plan. 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy is responsible for reinstating the student upon the 

conclusion of the expulsion period in a timely manner. 

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 86 of 114 

  

6. Special Education Students 

In the case of a student who has an Individualized Education Program (―IEP‖), or a student who has a 504 

Plan, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will ensure that it follows the correct disciplinary 

procedures to comply with the mandates of state and federal laws, including IDEA and Section 504 of the 

Rehabilitation Plan of 1973. As set forth in the MOU regarding special education between the District and 

the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy an IEP team, including a District representative, will 

meet to conduct a manifestation determination and to discuss alternative placement utilizing the District’s 

Policies and Procedures Manual. Prior to recommending expulsion for a student with a 504 Plan, the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s administrator will convene a Link Determination meeting to ask 

the following two questions: 

 

 Was the misconduct caused by, or directly and substantially related to the student’s disability?  

 Was the misconduct a direct result of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s failure to 

implement 504? 

 Gun Free Schools Act 

 The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy shall comply with the federal Gun Free Schools Act.



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 87 of 114 

  

ELEMENT ELEVEN│ R E T I R E M E N T P R O G R A M S  
  

Governing Law: The manner by which staff members of the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academys will be covered by the State Teachers’ Retirement System, the Public Employees’ Retirement 

System, or federal social security.  Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(K). 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy staff will participate in the federal social security 

system and will have the option to elect to participate in the State Teachers Retirement System and/or Public 

Employees Retirement System and coordinate such participation, as appropriate, with the social security 

system or other reciprocal systems in the future. If the school should opt to participate in the STRS or PERS 

systems, the district shall cooperate as necessary to forward any required payroll deductions and related data. 

If any of the school's teachers participate in the STRS system, then all must do so.  The Charter SchoolThe 

Advanced Learning Academy’s retirement program policy will be consistent with the SAUSD’s policy. If a 

conflict with District policies and procedures exists, then District policies and procedures will govern. 

 

Mandatory Benefits 

Mandatory contributions such as workers compensation, unemployment insurance, Medicare and social 

security (for non-STRS employees) will be paid by the employer.  

 

Health Benefits 

 
Health, dental, vision and related benefits as part of the total compensation package for each employee will 

be determined as part of the individual employment agreement.  

 

Work Schedule 

Work calendars, hours per week, and vacation time will be determined by individual employment 

agreements consistent with the applicable calendar of workdays for each position. The principal will work 

for the school year with appropriate vacation time as specified in the employment agreement. Teachers and 

teachers' assistants will work a school year comprised of 11 months, which will include professional training 

beyond the regular teaching schedule. The teaching staff may also be required to attend weekly staff and 

several parent-community meetings each school term. Office and maintenance staff will work a calendar 

year of 12 months with appropriate vacation time. The standard day for the non-teaching staff is 8.0 working 

hours.  

Retirement 

All full-time teaching employees who are eligible will participate in the State Teachers’ Retirement System 

(STRS). All full-time non-teaching employees who are eligible will participate in the Public Employees 

Retirement System (PERS). The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will make any 

contribution that is legally required of the employer, including STRS, PERS, social security, and 

unemployment insurance. All withholdings from employees and the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy will be forwarded to the STRS and PERS funds as required. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced 

Learning Academy will submit all retirement data and will comply with all policies and procedures for 

payroll reporting. Employees will accumulate service credit years in the same manner as all other members 

of STRS. The HR Dept. will be responsible for ensuring that appropriate arrangements are made for 

retirement and other benefits. 

 

The School may establish other retirement plans for employees that include, but shall not be limited to, 

establishment of section 403(b), 457 or 401(k) plans. 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 88 of 114 

  

 

 Process for Resolving Complaints/Grievances 

All staff members will follow state and federal laws for reporting alleged improprieties as well as adhere to  

the Employee Handbook. 

 

The following process will apply to staff members filing a complaint /grievance: 

 When a problem first arises, the grievant should discuss the matter with the School principal rather than 

fellow employees. 

 The principal will review the problem and any relating policies. If the problem cannot be resolved informally 

through discussion or meeting, the grievance shall be reduced to writing by the grievant and submitted to the 

principal. The grievant should specify the problem to the fullest extent possible and any remedies sought.  

 Following any necessary investigation, the principal shall prepare a written response to the grievant no later 

than ten (10) working days from the date of receipt of the grievance, unless for good cause, additional time is 

required for the response. 

 If no satisfactory solution can be reached, the grievant may request to meet with the Chief Executive Officer 

or his/her designee and the Principal. The request for this meeting will be written and will include any and all 

documentation related to the grievance along with any solutions that have been proposed by either the 

grievant or the principal. Any decision by the Chief Executive Officer or his/her designee shall be final.  

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 89 of 114 

  

ELEMENT TWELVE│ PUBLIC SCHOOL ATTENDANCE ALTERNATIVES 

 

Governing Law: The public school attendance alternatives for pupils residing within the school district who 

choose not to attend the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy. Education Code Section 

47605(b)(5)(L). 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy is a school of choice and no students shall be required 

to attend. Pupils who choose not to attend the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy may choose 

to attend other public schools in their district of residence or pursue an intra- or inter-district transfer in 

accordance with existing enrollment and transfer policies of the District.  

 

Parents and guardians of each student enrolled in the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will 

be informed on admissions forms that the students have no right to admission in a particular school of an 

local education agency as a consequence of enrollment in the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy, except to the extent that such a right is extended by the local education agency.  

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 90 of 114 

  

ELEMENT THIRTEEN│ EMPLOYEE RIGHTS & RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

Governing Law: A description of the rights of any employee of the school district upon leaving the 

employment of the school district to work in a charter school, and of any rights of return to the school district 

after employment at a charter school. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(M). 

 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy’s employee policies will be consistent with the 

SAUSD’s policy. If a conflict with District policies and procedures exists, then District policies and 

procedures will govern. Any employee of the district who works at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy will be covered by existing district policies for inter-district transfers and the terms of 

existing labor contracts. Charter School staff who leave a permanent job in the district to work at the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will have the right to return to a comparable position in the district 

during their tenure at the school, subject to layoff provisions in the Education Code.  

 

Staff of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy recognize the uniqueness of Charter Schools 

and will work to establish a positive culture that fulfills the mission of the school 

 

All school personnel will abide and commit to the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s 

mission and vision.  All job descriptions and work schedules will be reviewed and modified as necessary to 

meet the needs of the school and its students. The school expects a high level of professionalism from its 

staff including self-monitoring of higher education development. All staff members will follow state and 

federal laws for reporting alleged improprieties as well as adhere to the SAUSD Employee Contract. All 

school personnel will be evaluated at least once annually.  

 

Job applicants for positions at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will be considered 

through an open process, and if hired, will enter into an at-will agreement with the school. Unless the 

employees elect to be represented by an organization for bargaining purposes, all employees will be recruited 

individually and receive at-will agreements. The individual agreements will address, among other issues, 

salary, health and welfare benefits, work schedules and responsibilities, accountability measurements, and 

standards for performance evaluations. 

 

Employees will not be allowed to carry over their sick/vacation rights from their previous employment to the 

Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy.  

 

Leave and return rights for union-represented employees who accept employment with the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy will be administered in accordance with applicable collective bargaining 

agreements between the employee’s union and the District and also in accordance with any applicable 

judicial rulings. 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 91 of 114 

  

ELEMENT FOURTEEN│ D I S P U T E  R E S O L U T I O N  

 

Governing Law: The procedures to be followed by the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy and 

the entity granting the charter to resolve disputes relating to the provisions of the charter.  Education Code 

Section 47605(b)(5)(N). 

 

In the case of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, the District is both the charter agency and 

charter-granting entity.  

 

D isp u t e  R eso lu t io n  

The following section of this charter provides the standardized language that the SAUSD is adopting for all 

charter schools in the district. The transition to the standardized language is being facilitated during a charter 

renewal and/or when revision/modification of a MOU or other contractual agreement between the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy and the district takes place. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced 

Learning Academy’s dispute resolution policy will be consistent with the SAUSD’s policy. If a conflict with 

District policies and procedures exists, then District policies and procedures will govern. 

 

This language is being incorporated into the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy application 

petition and subject to change depending on and including but not limited to, discussion and negotiations, 

individual school circumstance and the specific document being renewed/revised/modified and applicable 

law.  

 

If the District determines that a violation of the Charter, MOU or law may have occurred or a problem has 

arisen to the operation of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy or the District’s oversight 

obligations, or a dispute otherwise arises between the District and the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy the following procedures shall be followed to resolve the dispute.  

 

1. Should the District determine in writing that the violation or issue in question constitutes a severe 

and imminent threat to the health or safety of the pupils, it shall not be bound by any portion of this 

dispute resolution process and may commence revocation proceedings immediately or take action as 

it deems necessary.  

2. If the violation or issue in question does not constitute a severe and imminent threat to the health 

and safety of pupils, District will provide written notification of the violation or issue. The date that 

this notice is sent shall be the ―Notice Date.‖ Upon issuance of this notice, a meeting will be 

scheduled to discuss and possibly resolve the dispute. Both parties must have representatives present 

at this meeting and under no circumstances will the meeting be held more than ten (10) calendar 

days after the Notice Date. The District representative at the meeting will be the Superintendent or 

the Superintendent’s designee, and the INDA Charter School representative will be a Co-Director or 

the Advisory Board. If the dispute is not resolved at this meeting or in strict accordance with any 

plan for resolution agreed upon at this meeting, the parties will proceed to Step 3.  

3. The District may commence revocation of the Charter and/or other appropriate action in accordance 

with Education Code 47607 or applicable law.  

The parties shall exchange information as necessary to avoid disputes and assist in curing disputes and shall 

use their best efforts to resolve disputes between them at the earliest possible time.  

In the event of a dispute raised by the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy against the District 

over the terms of the charter, the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall put the dispute in 

writing to the Superintendent or designees, and the District Superintendent, or Designee shall meet with the 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 92 of 114 

  

Principal and President of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy to seek resolution within two 

weeks of receiving the written complaint. After this meeting if resolution is not reached, both parties are free 

to pursue any other legal remedy available. However, mediation may be commenced with the agreement of 

both the District and the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, with the costs of the mediator to 

be split by both parties.  

 

I n t ern a l  D i sp u t es  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy shall have an internal dispute resolution process to be 

used for all internal disputes related to the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s operations. 

Parents, students, board members, volunteers, and staff at the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy will be provided with a copy of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s policies and 

dispute resolution process. The District will refer all disputes not related to a possible violation of the Charter 

or law or to the operation of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy or District’s oversight 

obligations to the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy for resolution according to tis internal 

dispute resolution process.  

 

D isp u t e s  B e tw e en  th e  Ch a r t er  S ch o o l th e  Ad va n c ed  L ea rn in g  A ca d em y  & 

S A US D 

The staff and governing board members of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy agree to 

resolve any claim, controversy or dispute arising out of or relating to the Charter agreement between the 

District and the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy. Any dispute between the District and the 

Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures set 

forth below: 

 

Any dispute shall be made in writing (―Written Notification‖).  The Written Notification must identify the 

nature of the Dispute and any supporting facts.  The Written Notification shall be tendered to the other party 

by personal delivery, by facsimile, or by certified mail.  The Written Notification shall be deemed received 

(a) if personally delivered, upon date of delivery to the address of the person to receive such notice if 

delivered by 5:00 PM or other-wise on the business day following personal delivery; (b) if by facsimile, 

upon electronic confirmation of receipt; or (c) if by mail, two (2) business days after deposit in the U.S. 

Mail.  All Written Notifications shall be addressed as follows: 

 

 

To Charter School, c/o: 

(To Be Determined) 

 

To District, c/o Superintendent: 

Santa Ana Unified School District 

1601 East Chestnut Avenue 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 

 

A written response (―Written Response‖) shall be tendered to the other party within twenty (20) business 

days from the date of receipt of the Written Notification.  The parties agree to schedule a conference to 

discuss the Dispute identified in the Written Notice (―Issue Conference‖).  The Issue Conference shall take 

place within fifteen (15) business days from the date the Written Response is received by the other party.  

The Written Response may be tendered by personal delivery, by facsimile, or by certif ied mail.  The Written 

Response shall be deemed received (a) if personally delivered, upon date of delivery to the address of the 

person to receive such notice if delivered by 5:00p.m., or otherwise on the business day following personal 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 93 of 114 

  

delivery; (b) if by facsimile, upon electronic confirmation of receipt; or (c) if by mail, two (2) business days 

after deposit in the U.S. Mail.   

 

If the Dispute cannot be resolved by mutual agreement at the Issue Conference, either party may then request 

that the Dispute be resolved by mediation.  Each party shall bear its own attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses 

associated with the mediation.  The mediator’s fees and the administrative fees of the mediation shall be 

shared equally among the parties. The parties shall mutually agree upon the selection of a mediator to resolve 

the Dispute.  The mediator may be selected from the approved list of mediators prepared by the American 

Arbitration Association.  Unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, mediation proceedings shall  be 

administered in accordance with the commercial mediation procedures of the American Arbitration 

Association. 

 

If the mediation is not successful, then the parties agree to resolve the Dispute by pursuing other options as 

provided by the law.  

 

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 94 of 114 

  

ELEMENT FIFTEEN│ EXCLUSIVE PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYER 

 

Governing Law: A declaration whether or not the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall be 

deemed the exclusive public school employer of the employees of the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy for the purposes of the Educational Employment Relations Act (Chapter 10.7 (commencing with 

Section 3540) of Division 4 of Title 1 of the Government Code). Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(O). 

 

 

For the purposes of the education employment relations act (EERA), the Santa Ana Unified School District 

will be the exclusive public school employer of the employees of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy.  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 95 of 114 

  

ELEMENT SIXTEEN│ S C H O O L C L O S U R E  

 

Governing Law: A description of the procedures to be used if the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy closes. The procedures shall ensure a final audit of the school to determine the disposition of all 

assets and liabilities of the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, including plans for disposing of 

any net assets and for the maintenance and transfer of public records. Education Code Section 

47605(b)(5)(P). 

 

Ch a r te r  Re n e wa l  

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy must submit its renewal petition to the District’s 

Charter Schools Division no earlier than September of the year before the charter expires.  

 

R e vo ca t io n  

The District may revoke the Charter if the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy commits a 

breach of any provision set forth in a policy related to Charter Schools adopted by the District Board of 

Education and/or any provisions set forth in the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy Act of 

1992.  The District may revoke the charter of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy if the 

District finds, through a showing of substantial evidence, that the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy did any of the following:  

 The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy committed a material violation of any of the 

conditions, standards, or procedures set forth in the charter. 

 The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy failed to meet or pursue any of the pupil outcomes 

identified in the charter. 

 The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy failed to meet generally accepted accounting 

principles, or engaged in fiscal mismanagement. 

 The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy violated any provision of law. 

 Prior to revocation, and in accordance with Cal. Educ. Code section 47607(d) and State regulations, the 

SAUSD Board of Education will notify the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy in writing of the 

specific violation, and give The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy a reasonable opportunity 

to cure the violation, unless the SAUSD Board of Education determines, in writing, that the violation 

constitutes a severe and imminent threat to the health or safety of the pupils.  Revocation proceedings are not 

subject to the dispute resolution clause set forth in this Charter. 

 

Clo s u r e  Ac t io n  

The decision to close the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy, either by the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy Advisory Board or by the SAUSD Board of Education, will be documented in 

a Closure Action. The Closure Action shall be deemed to have been automatically made when any of the 

following occur:  the charter is revoked or non-renewed by the SAUSD Board of Education; the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy board votes to close the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy; or the Charter lapses.  

 

Clo s u r e  Pro c ed u r es  

The procedures for the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s closure are guided by California 

Education Code sections 47604.32, 47605, 47605.6, and 47607 as well as California Code of Regulations, 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 96 of 114 

  

Title 5 (5 CCR), sections 11962 and 11962.1. A closed charter school must designate a responsible entity to 

conduct closure activities and identify how these activities will be funded. The procedures out-lined below 

are based on ―Charter School Closure Requirements and Recommendations (Revised 08/2009)‖ as posted on 

the California Department of Education website. References to ―Charter School‖ applies to the charter 

schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s nonprofit corporation and/or governing board. 

 

 

 

1. Documentation of Closure Action 

The revocation or non-renewal of a charter school must be documented by an official action of the 

authorizing entity. Notice of a charter school’s closure for any reason must be provided by the authorizing 

entity to the California Department of Education (CDE). In addition, the charter schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy must send notice of its closure to:  

1. Parents or guardians of students. Written notification to parents/guardians/caregivers of the enrolled students 

of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will be issued by the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy within 72 hours after the determination of a Closure Action and the effective date of 

closure.  A copy of the written notifications to parents is also to be sent to SAUSD within the same time 

frames. 

2. The authorizing entity  

3. The county department of education. Written notification to the Orange County Department of Education of 

the Closure Action shall be made by the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy by registered mail 

within 72 hours of the decision to Closure Action.  Charter School shall provide a copy of this 

correspondence to the SAUSD. 

4. The special education local plan area in which the school participates. Written notification to the Special 

Education Local Planning Area (SELPA) in which the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy 

participates of the Closure Action shall be made by the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy by 

registered mail within 72 hours of the decision to Closure Action.  Charter School shall provide a copy of 

this correspondence to the SAUSD.   

5. The retirement systems in which the school’s employees participate. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced 

Learning Academy will within fourteen (14) calendar days of closure action contact the State Teachers 

Retirement System (STRS), Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), and the Orange County 

Department of Education and follow their procedures for dissolving contracts and reporting. Charter School 

shall provide a copy of this correspondence to the SAUSD. 

6. The CDE. Written notification to the California Department of Education of the Closure Action shall be 

made by the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy by registered mail within 72 hours of the 

decision to Closure Action.  Charter School shall provide a copy of this correspondence to the SAUSD. 

 

Notice must be received by the CDE within ten calendar days of any official action taken by the chartering 

authority. Notification of all the parties above must include at least the following: 

1. The effective date of the closure  

2. The name(s) of and contact information for the person(s) handling inquiries regarding the closure  

3. The students’ school districts of residence  

4. How parents or guardians may obtain copies of student records, including specific information on completed 

courses and credits that meet graduation requirements  

5. In addition to the four required items above, notification to the CDE must also include: 

6. A description of the circumstances of the closure  

7. The location of student and personnel records  

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 97 of 114 

  

In addition to the four required items above, notification to parents, guardians, and students should also 

include:  

1. Information on how to transfer the student to an appropriate school  

2. A certified packet of student information that includes closure notice, a copy of their child’s cumulative 

record which will include grade reports, discipline records, immunization records, completed coursework, 

credits that meet graduation requirements, a transcript, and State testing results 

3. Information on student completion of college entrance requirements for all high school students affected by 

the closure  

4. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy shall announce the closure to any school districts that 

may be responsible for providing education services to the former students of the charter schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy within 72 hours of the decision to Closure Action. This notice will include a 

list of returning students and their home schools. Charter school closures should occur at the end of an 

academic year if it is feasible to maintain a legally compliant program until then. If a conversion charter 

school is reverting to non-charter status, notification of this change should be made to all parties listed in this 

section.  

5. School and Student Records Retention and Transfer 

6. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will provide the District with original cumulative files 

and behavior records pursuant to District policy and applicable handbook(s) regarding cumulative records 

for secondary and elementary schools for all students both active and inactive at the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy.  Transfer of the complete and organized original student records to the 

District will occur within seven calendar days of the effective date of closure.   

7. The process for transferring student records to the receiving schools shall be in accordance with SAUSD 

procedures for students moving from one school to another.  

8. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will prepare an electronic master list of all students to 

the SAUSD.  This list will include the student’s identification number, Statewide Student Identifier  (SSID), 

birthdate, grade, full name, address, home school, enrollment date, exit code, exit date, parent/guardian 

name(s), and phone number(s).  If the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy closure occurs before 

the end of the school year, the list should also indicate the name of the school that each student is 

transferring to, if known.  This electronic master list will be delivered in the form of a CD. 

9. The original cumulative files should be organized for delivery to the District in two categories : active 

students and inactive students.  The CSD will coordinate with the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy for the delivery and/or pickup of the student records.   

10. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy must update all student records in the California 

Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System (CALPADS) prior to closing.    

11. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will provide to the CSD a copy of student attendance 

records, teacher grade books, school payroll records, and Title I records (if applicable). Submission of 

personnel records must include any employee records the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy 

has. These include, but are not limited to, records related to performance and grievance.  

12. All records are to be boxed and labeled by classification of documents and the required duration of storage.  

 

2. Financial Close-Out 

After receiving notification of closure, the CDE will notify the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy and the authorizing entity if it is aware of any liabilities the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning 

Academy owes the state. These may include over-payment of apportionments, unpaid revolving fund loans 

or grants, or other liabilities. The CDE may ask the county office of education to conduct an audit of the 

charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy if it has reason to believe that the school received state 

funding for which it was not eligible.  

 

The Charter shall ensure completion of an independent final audit within six months after the closure of the 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 98 of 114 

  

school that includes: 

1. An accounting of all financial assets. These may include cash and accounts receivable and an inventory of 

property, equipment, and other items of material value.  

2. An accounting of all liabilities. These may include accounts payable or reduction in apportionments due to 

loans, unpaid staff compensation, audit findings, or other investigations.  

3. An assessment of the disposition of any restricted funds received by or due to the charter schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy.  

4. This audit may serve as the school’s annual audit.  

5. The financial closeout audit of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will be paid for by the 

Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy.  This audit will be conducted by a neutral, independent 

licensed CPA who will employ generally accepted accounting principles. Any liability or debt incurred by 

the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will be the responsibility of the Charter Schoolthe 

Advanced Learning Academy and not SAUSD.  The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy 

understands and acknowledges that the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy will cover the 

outstanding debts or liabilities of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy. Any unused monies 

at the time of the audit will be returned to the appropriate funding source.  The Charter SchoolThe Advanced 

Learning Academy understands and acknowledges that only unrestricted funds will be used to pay creditors. 

Any unused AB 602 funds will be returned to the District SELPA or the SELPA in which the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy participates, and other categorical funds will be returned to the 

source of funds. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy shall ensure the completion and filing of any annual 

reports required. This includes: 

 Preliminary budgets  

 Interim financial reports  

 Second interim financial reports  

 Final unaudited reports  

 These reports must be submitted to the CDE and the authorizing entity in the form required. If the Charter 

Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy chooses to submit this information before the forms and software 

are available for the fiscal year, alternative forms can be used if they are approved in advance b y the CDE. 

These reports should be submitted as soon as possible after the closure action, but no later than the required 

deadline for reporting for the fiscal year. 

 For apportionment of categorical programs, the CDE will count the prior year average daily attendance 

(ADA) or enrollment data of the closed charter school with the data of the authorizing entity. This practice 

will occur in the first year after the closure and will continue until CDE data collection processes reflect 

ADA or enrollment adjustments for all affected LEAs due to the charter closure.  

 

3. Disposition of Liabilities and Assets 

The closeout audit must determine the disposition of all liabilities of the charter schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy. Charter school closure procedures must also ensure disposal of any net assets remaining 

after all liabilities of the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy have been paid or otherwise 

addressed. Such disposal includes, but is not limited to: 

 The return of any donated materials and property according to any conditions set when the donations were 

accepted.  

 The return of any grant and restricted categorical funds to their source according to the terms of the grant or 

state and federal law.  

 The submission of final expenditure reports for any entitlement grants and the filing of Final Expenditure 

Reports and Final Performance Reports, as appropriate.  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 99 of 114 

  

 Net assets of the charter schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy may be transferred to another charter 

school. If the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is operated by a nonprofit corporation, and if 

the corporation does not have any other functions than operation of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy, the corporation will be dissolved according to its bylaws.   

 The corporation’s bylaws will address how assets are to be distributed at the closure of the corporation.  

 A copy of the corporations bylaws containing the information on how assets are to be distributed at the 

closure of the corporation, are to be provided to SAUSD prior to approval of this Charter. 

 For six (6) calendar months from the Closure Action or until budget allows, whichever comes first, sufficient 

staff as deemed appropriate by the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy Board, will maintain 

employment to take care of all necessary tasks and procedures required for a smooth closing of the school 

and student transfers.  

 The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy Board shall adopt a plan for wind-up of the school 

and, if necessary, the corporation, in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Code.  

 The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy shall provide SAUSD within fourteen (14) calendar 

days of closure action prior written notice of any outstanding payments to staff and the method by which the 

school will make the payments. 

 Prior to final closure, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall do all of the following on 

behalf of the school's employees, and anything else required by applicable law: 

 File all final federal, state, and local employer payroll tax returns and issue final W-2s and Form 1099s by 

the statutory deadlines. 

 File the Federal Notice of Discontinuance with the Department of Treasury (Treasury Form 63). 

 Make final federal tax payments (employee taxes, etc.) 

 File the final withholding tax return (Treasury Form 165). 

 File the final return with the IRS (Form 990 and Schedule). 

 

This Element 16 shall survive the revocation, expiration, termination, cancellation of this charter or any other 

act or event that would end the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy’s right to operate as a 

Charter School or cause the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy to cease operation.  The 

Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy and District agree that, due to the nature of the property 

and activities that are the subject of this petition, the District and public shall suffer irreparable harm should 

Charter School breach any obligation under this Element 16.  The District, therefore, shall have the right to 

seek equitable relief to enforce any right arising under this Element 16 or any provision of this Element 16 or 

to prevent or cure any breach of any obligation undertaken, without in any way prejudicing any other legal 

remedy available to the District. Such legal relief shall include, without limitation, the seeking of a 

temporary or permanent injunction, restraining order, or order for specific performance, and may be sought 

in any appropriate court. 

 

 

  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 100 of 114 

  

ELEMENT SEVENTEEN│ P R O P O S E D  B U D G E T &  C A S H  F L O W  
 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy is established as a dependent charter and shall be 

budgeted in accordance to practices used at all other SAUSD schools.  The Charter SchoolThe Advanced 

Learning Academy’s financial reports will be contained in the SAUSD fiscal reports, as is the case with all 

other SAUSD schools. The Advisor Board, once convened, in cooperation with the School Site Council once 

elected, shall determine the school’s discretionary spending budget.  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 101 of 114 

  

 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11
pt, Font color: Auto



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 102 of 114 

  

 

 
Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11
pt, Font color: Auto



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 103 of 114 

  

 

  
Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11
pt, Font color: Auto



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 104 of 114 

  

ELEMENT EIGHTEEN│ FA C I L I T I E S  

Site Description  

The initial location for the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy shall be at the Grant School Site 

(333 East Walnut Avenue, Santa Ana). Once identified, a new campus location will be determined within the 

INDA. A vacant site located at the southwest corner of Michelson Drive and Carlson Avenue in the City of 

Irvine has been identified for acquisition and construction of the K-8 school. The Charter SchoolThe 

Advanced Learning Academy has attempted to locate a single site or facility to house its entire program, but 

no such site is available within the boundaries of the SAUSD in the Irvine/Newport development area 

(INDA) in which the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy has chosen to locate. The location of 

the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy is specifically designed to provide educational 

opportunities to students residing in the INDA of the SAUSD and surrounding communities. SAUSD and 

Irvine Unified School District are in general agreement about the location of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy and are in the process of a boundary change by which it is hoped that the identified site 

will eventually come within the boundaries of the SAUSD. 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy site is located within an area of the SAUSD that has 

experienced significant development and is planned to continue developing with residential and retail mixed-

uses (See Exhibit 4 on the following page). The site’s regional location and local vicinity may be viewed in 

Exhibit 5 and 6. The site is 15 gross acres in size; however, given the surrounding natural habitat, a nature 

buffer was incorporated into the site design, resulting in approximately 10.5 net usable acres th at will be 

developed for the K-8 school, as shown in Exhibit 7.  

The site has been vacant for at least since the 1930’s and currently contains wood chips, as shown in 

Exhibit 8, Site Photographs. The south perimeter of the site consists of natural habitat that extends from the 

San Joaquin Marsh. The surrounding land uses include residential units to the west, commercial uses to the 

north, and natural habitat to the east and south.  

 

Design 

Innovative design with flexible teaching areas and the ability to adapt to different learning models will be 

incorporated in the classroom design. Proven design models for improved student performance, such as 

natural lighting, thermal displacement ventilation, acoustical applications, interactive classroom technology, 

and spatial flexibility will be included in the design.  

The facilities will support the key program elements of project-based learning, community-based internships, 

frequent student presentations, and integrated curriculum. The design principles include: 

• Personalization – Facilities are tailored to individual and small-group learning, including project 

rooms for hands-on activities and exhibition spaces for individual work, which promotes a high 

degree of student ownership.  

• Flexibility - Holistic designs enable new ways of teaching and learning.  

• Adult World Connection – In addition to the required community internship component, the facility 

itself will have a workplace look and feel, with windowed conference and seminar rooms, small-

group project areas, high-tech laboratories, and common areas where projects can be displayed. 

Specialty labs and project rooms with allow access to technology and equipment for learning in 

specialized areas such as biotechnology, mechanical engineering, and graphic design. 

  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 105 of 114 

  

Exhibit 4:  Planned Development  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 106 of 114 

  

Exhibit 5:  Regional Map  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 107 of 114 

  

Exhibit 6: Local Map  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 7:  Net Usable Acreage  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 108 of 114 

  

Exhibit 8:  Site Photographs  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy proposes to develop the vacant site into a school 

campus that will initially house kindergarten through sixth grade, and in subsequent years, will expand to 

include seventh and eighth grade. In the Charter’s first year, 240 students will be enrolled, but in the years 

following, the student enrollment will reach a maximum of 600 students. As shown in Exhibit 9, Site Plan, 

the proposed campus would contain two (2) two-story classroom buildings with capacity for 600 students. 

The proposed classroom size will be compliant with the District’s standard for classroom loading. One 

classroom building would house the primary grade complex, and the other classroom building would house 

the upper grade/intermediate complex. The two complexes would be kept separate but share the 

administration, multipurpose room, and kitchen facilities. The administration building would be located at 

the front of the campus and would house the school’s Co-Directors, office manager, office assistants, nurse, 

psychologist, conference room, staff lounge, and kitchen.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 109 of 114 

  

Exhibit 9:  Site Plan 

 

 

1. Primary grade complex  

One classroom building would contain kindergarten through 4
th
 grade, with kindergarten through 1

st
 grade on 

the first floor, and 2
nd

 – 4
th
 grade on the second floor. The kindergarten classrooms would be 1,350 square 

feet, and the 1
st
-4

th
 grade classrooms would be 960 square feet, in compliance with the CDE’s recommended 

classroom size. The classrooms would each have appropriate-height sink and two exits, one to the interior 

hallway and one to the exterior hallway, to comply with fire code for primary grades. The building would 

also contain student and staff restrooms, a computer lab, and teacher’s workroom. Outside the classroom 

building would be a shade structure for lunch tables and a play area containing hard courts, turf play area, 

and playground equipment.  

 

2. Upper grade complex  

The upper grade building would contain grades 5
th
 – 8

th
, with 5

th
 – 6

th
 on the first floor and 7

th
 – 8

th
 on the 

second floor. The classrooms would be 960 square feet in compliance with the CDE’s recommended 

classroom size. The building would also contain student and staff restrooms, a teacher’s workroom, computer 

labs, small group workrooms, and a project workroom. Outside the building would be a shade structure for 

lunch tables and a play area containing hard courts and turf playfield. Additionally, a separate building would 

provide the setting for innovative environmental teaching opportunities, which will include science programs 

and will take advantage of the adjacent natural habitat.  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 110 of 114 

  

3. Multipurpose room  

The school campus will include a multipurpose room that will be used to house the school’s assemblies, 

indoor physical activities, annual science fair, and other school events.  

4. Recreational facilities – 

As shown in Exhibit 9, Site Plan, approximately half of the site is planned to be used for joint-recreational 

use. District staff is currently negotiating the terms of a Joint-use Agreement with the City of Irvine and 

Irvine Ranch Water District. The park will be used and operated by the City of Irvine and open to the public 

during the day. The multipurpose room and turf field will be open to the City during after-school hours when 

not utilized by the Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy programs. Strategic fencing will allow 

the park and joint-use facilities to be used by the public without jeopardizing the security of the school 

campus. 

 

Sustainability and Sensitivity to the Adjacent Natural Habitat 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy recognizes the asset and responsibility of being 

located adjacent to the existing natural habitat. As shown in the Site Plan, the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy has incorporated a ―nature buffer‖ into the design of the campus to ensure that 

construction and operation of the school does not negatively impact the natural habitat. In addition, the 

Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy and City of Irvine will not place any nighttime lighting on 

the recreational facilities that will disturb the adjacent area. The only exterior lighting will include low -level 

security lighting in the parking lot, walkways, and on the exterior of building doorways. This will also ensure 

that nighttime noise levels remain consistent with existing site levels. 

 

The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will comply with the California Environmental 

Quality Act and hire an environmental expert to analyze the impact of the Charter Schoolthe Advanced 

Learning Academy on the surrounding habitat. The Charter SchoolThe Advanced Learning Academy will 

comply with any mitigation measures required during construction and operation of the facility.  

 

The site’s connection to the existing natural habitat offers a unique opportunity to design a school campus 

that has a prominent environmental component. The buildings and grounds will include sustainable building 

elements and will afford students with a sustainable educational component. The building that will house 

innovative environmental teaching opportunities will be truly sustainable and operate off the electrical grid. 

Furthermore, it will be used for the school’s unique science curriculum, including environmental science, 

engineering, and biology. The campus’ recreational features will connect with the existing trail system that 

weaves through the habitat area. Thus, the environmental science program will have easy access to explore 

the natural habitat, truly engaging students and providing interactive and inspiring curriculum. 

  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 111 of 114 

  

 

Charter Implementation 

 

While this chart below indicates one potential timeline; however, a streamlined approach may be used 

involving the new building at the Grant School Site. The availability of that school building would allow the 

Charter Schoolthe Advanced Learning Academy to begin operations during the 2015-2016. The planning for 

the new, permanent location in the INDA would begin immediately thereafter. 

 

Exhibit 10:  Charter Implementation Timeline  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Not Bold



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 112 of 114 

  

ELEMENT NINETEEN│ R E Q U I R E D  S I G N AT U R E S  

1569



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 113 of 114 

  

 

This page was intentionally left blank. 

 

 

 

 

  



 

INDA Charter School Petition   Page 114 of 114 

  

 
 

APPENDIX A│ C O L L E C T I V E  B A R G A I N I N G  A G R E E M E N T  

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 

May 26, 2015 

 

Board Meeting 

 
TITLE: Board Policy (BP) 5125 – Student Records  

(Revised:  First Reading) 

 

ITEM:  Action 

SUBMITTED BY: Dawn Miller, Assistant Superintendent, Secondary Education 

PREPARED BY: Ed Winchester, Executive Director, Secondary Education  
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board approval of the revised first reading of Board 

Policy 5125 – Student Records. 

 

 

RATIONALE: 

 

Three new bills addressing Student Privacy and Technology were signed by the Governor: 

 

Effective January 1, 2015, Assembly Bill (AB) 1442 introduces a number of requirements and 

restrictions.  Districts may only gather data that directly relates to school or pupil safety, and 

must delete that data after a student turns 18 or leaves the district.  In addition, districts must 

provide access to any stored data to the student and his or her parents. 

 

New AB 1584 requires if a district has outsourced social media data collection to a third party, 

the contract between the district and third party must contain the same restrictions.   

 

Effective January 1, 2016, the Student Online Personal Information Protection Act Senate Bill 

1177, prohibits operators of educational websites, online services, online applications and mobile 

applications from selling or disclosing student information (e.g., name, address, phone number, 

test results, socioeconomic information, food purchases) or using it to target advertising.  

 

With these new laws in place, it is important that the District policies be aligned with all state 

mandates governing student records. 

 

 

FUNDING: 

 

Not Applicable 

 

 

 

 



 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Revised for first reading Board Policy 5125 – Student Records. 

 

 

 
 

DM:RO:sz 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Santa Ana Unified School District 
 

BP 5125  
 
Students 
 

Student Records 
 
The Governing Board recognizes the importance of keeping accurate, comprehensive student records as required by law. Information about a student 
shall be used judiciously in ways that contribute to the student’s welfare, in accordance with law. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the 
district's administrative regulation and school site procedures, for maintaining the confidentiality of student records, are consistent with state and federal 
law. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish administrative regulations for Board approval governing the identification, description retention and 
security of student records. as well as timely access for authorized persons. These regulations shall ensure parental the rights of authorized persons to 
review, inspect and photocopy student records have timely access to student records and shall protect the students and the student’s family their 
families from invasion of privacy. (cf. 3580 - District Records) (cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) (cf. 5125.2 – Withholding Grades, Diploma 
or Transcripts) (cf. 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records) 
 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology) 
(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 
(cf. 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records) 
 
Contract for Digital Storage, Management, and Retrieval of Student Records 
The Superintendent or designee may enter into a contract with a third party for the digital storage, management, and retrieval of student records and/or 
to authorize a third party provider of digital software to access, store, and use student records, provided that the contract meets the requirements of 
Education Code 49073.1 and other applicable state and federal laws. 
 
(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 
 
Legal Reference: 
 EDUCATION CODE 
   48904    Liability of parent 
     48904.3    Withholding of grades, diplomas, or transcripts of pupils causing   
     property damage or injury; transfer of pupils to new school districts; notice to rescind  

decision to withhold. 
   49060-49078   Pupil records 
 CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
     430-438    Individual pupil records 
   16020-16028   Destruction of records of school districts 
 GOVERNMENT CODE 
     6252-6260    Inspection of public records 
 FAMILY CODE 
   3025     Parental access to records 
 FEDERAL FAMILY EDUCATIONAL RIGHTS AND PRIVACY ACT OF 1974 
 20 U.S.C. 1232g 
 CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
   99.34    Conditions of disclosure 
     300.500  Definition of “personally identifiable” 
     300.501  General responsibilities of public agencies 
     300.502  Opportunity to examine records 
     300.573  Destruction of information 

17604    Contracts 
48201    Student records for transfer students who have been suspended/expelled 
48853.5    Foster youth; placement, immunizations 
48902    Notification of law enforcement of specified violations 
48904-48904.3 Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts 
48918    Rules governing expulsion procedures 
48980    Parental notifications 
48985    Notices in parent/guardian's primary language 
49060-49079  Student records 
49091.14   Parental review of curriculum 
51747    Independent study 
56041.5    Rights of students with disabilities 
56050    Surrogate parents 
56055    Foster parents 
69432.9    Cal Grant program; notification of grade point average 
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE 
22580-22582   Digital privacy 
22584-22585   Student Online Personal Information Protection Act 
CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 
1985.3    Subpoena duces tecum 
FAMILY CODE 
3025    Access to records by noncustodial parents 
6552    Caregiver's authorization affidavit 
GOVERNMENT CODE 



6252-6260   Inspection of public records 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
120440    Immunizations; disclosure of information 
PENAL CODE 
245    Assault with deadly weapon 
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 
681    Truancy petitions 
701    Juvenile court law 
16010    Health and education records of a minor 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
430-438    Individual student records 
16020-16027   Destruction of records of school districts 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1232g    Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
1232h    Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 26 
152    Definition of dependent child 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
11434a    McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act; definitions 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 16 
Part 312   Children's Online Privacy Protection Rule 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
99.1-99.67   Family Educational Rights and Privacy 
300.501    Opportunity to examine records for parents of student with disability 

 
Management Resources: 

FEDERAL REGISTER 
Final Rule and Analysis of Comments and Changes, Family Educational Rights and Privacy, December 9, 2008, Vol. 73, No. 237, pages 
74806-74855 
NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS 
Data in the Cloud: A Legal and Policy Guide for School Boards on Student Data Privacy in the Cloud Computing Era, April 2014 
U.S.  DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Joint Guidance on the Application of the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) to Student Health Records, 2008 
Balancing Student Privacy and School Safety: A Guide to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act for Elementary and Secondary 
Schools, October 2007 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
National School Boards Association: http://www.nsba.org 
U.S. Department of Education, Family Policy Compliance, http://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco 

 
 
 
 
Adopted (6/76,  4/98)   5/15   Santa Ana, CA 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 

May 26, 2015 

 

Board Meeting 

 
TITLE: Board Policy (BP) 5125.1 – Release of Directory Information  

(Revised:  First Reading) 

 

ITEM:  Action 

SUBMITTED BY: Dawn Miller, Assistant Superintendent, Secondary Education 

PREPARED BY: Ed Winchester, Executive Director, Secondary Education  
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board approval of the revised first reading of Board 

Policy 5125.1 – Release of Directory Information. 

 

 

RATIONALE: 

 

Three new bills addressing Student Privacy and Technology were signed by the Governor: 

 

Effective January 1, 2015, Assembly Bill (AB) 1442 introduces a number of requirements and 

restrictions.  Districts may only gather data that directly relates to school or pupil safety, and 

must delete that data after a student turns 18 or leaves the district.  In addition, districts must 

provide access to any stored data to the student and his or her parents. 

 

New AB 1584 requires if a district has outsourced social media data collection to a third party, 

the contract between the district and third party must contain the same restrictions.   

 

Effective January 1, 2016, the Student Online Personal Information Protection Act Senate Bill 

1177, prohibits operators of educational websites, online services, online applications and mobile 

applications from selling or disclosing student information (e.g., name, address, phone number, 

test results, socioeconomic information, food purchases) or using it to target advertising.  

 

With these new laws in place, it is important that the District policies be aligned with all state 

mandates governing the release of directory information. 

 

 

FUNDING: 

 

Not Applicable 

 

 

 

 



 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Revised for first reading Board Policy 5125.1 – Release of Directory Information. 

 

 

 
 

DM:RO:sz 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BP5125.1 

 
Students 
 

Release of Directory Information 
 

 
The Governing Board recognizes the importance of maintaining the confidentiality of directory information and therefore authorizes 
the release of such information only in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation. 
 
The Superintendent or designee may release student directory information to representatives of the news media or nonprofit 
organizations in accordance with Board policy and administrative regulation. (cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 
 
The superintendent or designee may authorize the release of student directory information to representatives of the news media, 
prospective employers, or nonprofit organizations as provided by law. Unless prohibited by the parent/guardian in accordance with 
law, directory information which school officials may disclose consists of the following: student's name, address, telephone number, 
email address, date and place of birth date, major field of study, participation in officially recognized activities and sports, weight and 
height of athletic team members, dates of attendance, degrees and awards received, and most recent previous school attended. 
 
Telephone numbers shall be released only with express parental consent. 

The Superintendent or designee may limit or deny the release of specific categories of directory information to any public or private 
nonprofit organization based on his/her determination of the best interests of district students. (Education Code 49073) 

Colleges and prospective employers, including military recruiters, shall have access to directory information. Military recruiters shall 
have access to a student's name, address, and telephone number, unless the parent/guardian has specified that the information not 
be released in accordance with law and administrative regulation. (20 USC 7908; 10 USC 503; Education Code 49603) 

Under no circumstances shall directory information be disclosed to a private profit-making entity, except for representatives of the 
news media and prospective employers, in accordance with Board policy. Private schools and colleges may be given the names 
and addresses of 12th-grade students and students who are no longer enrolled provided that they use this information only for 
purposes directly related to the institution's academic or professional goals. (Education Code 49073) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION OCDE 
49061 Definitions 
49063 Notification of parents of their rights 
49073 Release of directory information 
49073.5 Directory information: military representatives; telephone numbers 
49603 Public high schools: military recruiting  
 

Santa Ana. CA Adopted: 4-98 
 





 

 

AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 

May 26, 2015 

 

Board Meeting 
 

TITLE:  Board Policy (BP) 3312 – Contracts (Revised: Adoption) 

 

ITEM:  Action  

SUBMITTED BY: Stefanie P. Phillips, Deputy Superintendent, Operations, CBO  

PREPARED BY: Tina Douglas, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board approval of revised Board Policy (BP) 3312 – 

Contracts.  

 

  

RATIONALE: 

 

The updated policy contains revisions from the California School Board Association model 

policy.  The revisions reflect new mandates to keep policies up to date and fully compliant.  The 

last revision occurred in March 2006. 

 

 

FUNDING: 

 

Not Applicable 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   
 

Approval of revised Board Policy 3312 - Contracts. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
SP:mm 





SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 BP 3312(a) 

 

Business and Noninstructional Operations 

   

Contracts 

 

The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility to enter into contracts on 

behalf of the district for the acquisition of equipment, supplies, services, 

and other resources necessary for the achievement of district goals. In 

exercising this authority to enter into a contract, the Board shall ensure 

that the district's interest is protected and that the terms of the contract 

conform to applicable legal standards, including the bidding requirements in 

Public Contract Code 20111.  

(cf. 2121- Superintendent's Contract)\par (cf. 4312.1 - Contracts)  (cf. 9124 

- Attorney) 

 

The Board may, by a majority vote, delegate to the Superintendent or designee 

the authority to enter into contracts on behalf of the district. To be valid 

or to constitute an enforceable obligation against the district, all such 

contracts must be approved and/or ratified by the Board. (cf. 3300 - 

Expenditures and Purchases) (cf. 3314 - Payment for Goods and Services) 

  

Every contract entered into on behalf of the district shall be made available 

for public inspection, except when the law prohibits disclosure. No contract 

shall prohibit a district employee from disparaging the goods or services of 

any contracting party.  (cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 

 

 

Contracts for Non-Nutritious Foods or Beverages 

 

The district shall not enter into or renew a contract for the sale of foods 

or beverages that do not meet applicable nutritional standards specified in 

Education Code 49431-49431.7, 5 CCR 15500-15501 or 15575-15578, or 7 CFR 

210.11 or 220.12, unless the contract specifies that such sales will occur 

off campus or outside the time restriction specified in the applicable law.  

(cf. 3554 - Other Food Sales)  (cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 

 
Before the district enters into or renews a contract that grants exclusive or 

nonexclusive advertising or sale of carbonated beverages, non-nutritious 

beverages or non-nutritious foods as defined in law, the Board shall ensure 

that the district has sufficient internal controls in place to protect the 

integrity of public funds and to ensure that funds raised as a result of the 

contract benefit public education. (Education Code 35182.5) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall develop the district's internal control 

procedures to protect the integrity of public funds.  Such internal controls 

may include, but not be limited to, the following: 

 

1. Procedures that produce accurate and reliable financial statements and, 
at the same time, safeguard the assets, financial resources, and 

integrity of every employee responsible for handling money or property.  

Control systems shall be systematically evaluated and revised to keep 

pace with the changing responsibilities of management.  (cf. 3100 - 

Budget) (cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts) (cf. 3460 - 

Financial Reports and Accountability) 

 

 

 



BP 3312(b) 

 

  

2. Procedures to ensure that district personnel do not handle cash or 

product at the school site.  The contract shall specify that the vendor 

stock the machines and shall provide cash accounting, along with a 

check, for district proceeds directly to the control office. 

 

To ensure that funds raised by the contract benefit district schools and 

students: 

 

1. The Superintendent or designee may invite parents/guardians, students, 

staff, and interested community members to make recommendations 

regarding the contract, including recommendations as to how the funds 

will be spent in a manner that benefits public education.  (cf. 1220 - 

Citizen Advisory Committees) 

 

2. Prior to ratifying the contract, the Board shall designate the specific 

programs and activities that will be funded by the proceeds of the 

contract and consider how the contract reflects the district's vision 

and goals. (cf. 0000 - Vision)  (cf. 0100 - Philosophy)  (cf. 0200 - 

Goals for the School District) 

 

3. The contract shall specify that the contractor report, on a quarterly 

basis, to the Superintendent or designee the number of food items or 

beverages sold within the district and the amount of money raised by 

the sales.  The Superintendent or designee shall report these amounts 

to the Board on a regular basis. 

 

4. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the contract does not 

limit the ability of student and parent organizations to plan and 

operate fund-raising activities.  (cf. 1230 - School-Connected 

Organizations) (cf. 1321 - Solicitation of Funds from and by Students) 

 

Any contract for the sale or advertisement of non-nutritious foods or 

carbonated or non-nutritious beverages shall be entered into on a competitive 

bid basis pursuant to Public Contract Code 20111 or through the issuance of a 

Request for Proposal.  (Education Code 35182.5) (cf. 3311 - Bids) 

 

The Board shall not enter into or renew a any contract that grants exclusive 

or nonexclusive advertising or sale of carbonated beverages, non-nutritious 

beverages, or non-nutritious foods until parents/guardians, students, and  

members of the public have had an opportunity to comment on the contract at a 

public hearing held during a regularly scheduled Board meeting. The Board 

shall clearly, and in a manner recognizable to the general public, identify 

in the agenda the contract to be discussed at the meeting.  (Education Code 

35182.5.) (cf. 9322 - Agendas/Meeting Materials)  (cf. 9323 - Meeting 

Conduct) 

 

The public hearing shall include, but not be limited to, a discussion of the 

nutritional value of foods and beverages sold within the district; the 

availability of fresh fruit, vegetables, and grains in school meals and 

snacks, including locally grown and organic produce; the amount of fat, 

sugar, and additives in the food and beverages discussed; and barriers to 

student participation in school breakfast and lunch programs. (Education 

35182.5) (cf. 5030 – Student Wellness) 

 

 

 

 



BP 3312(c) 

 

 

The contract shall be accessible to the public and may not include a 

confidentiality clause that would prevent the district or a district school 

from making any part of the contract public.  (Education Code 35182.5) 

 

  

Contracts for Electronic Products or Services 

 

The Board shall not enter into a contract for electronic products or services 

that requires the dissemination of advertising to students, unless the Board:  

(Education Code 35182.5) 

 

1. Enters into the contract at a noticed, public hearing of the Board.  

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 

 

2. Makes a finding that the electronic product or service is or would be 

an integral component of the education of students.  (cf. 0440 - 

District Technology Plan) 

 

3. Makes a finding that the district cannot afford to provide the 

electronic product or service unless it contracts to permit 

dissemination of advertising to students.  (cf. 1325 - Advertising and 

Promotion) 

 

4. As part of the district's normal, ongoing communication to 

parents/guardians, provides written notice that the advertising will be 

used in the classroom or other learning center.  (cf. 5145.6 – Parental 

Notifications) 

 

5. Offers parents/guardians the opportunity to request in writing that 

their child not be exposed to the program that contains the 

advertising.  A request shall be honored for the school year in which 

it is submitted, or longer if specified, but may be withdrawn by the 

parents/guardians at any time. 

 

 

 

Legal Reference: 

 EDUCATION CODE 

 200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination on  

   the basis of sex  

 14505   Provisions required in contracts  

   for audits 

 17595-17606  Contracts 

 35182.5  Contract prohibitions 

 45103.1  Personal services contracts 

 45103.5  Contracts for management consulting 

   service related to food service 

 49073.1  Contract requirements for digital  

   storage, maintenance and retrieval 

     of student records 

 49431-49431.7 Nutritional standards 

 CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 

 685.010  Rate of interest 

 

 

 

 



BP 3312(d) 

 

 

 GOVERNMENT CODE 

 12990   Nondiscrimination and compliance  

   employment programs 

53260   Contract provision re maximum cash 

    settlement 

 53262   Ratification of contracts with  

   administrative officers 

 LABOR CODE 

 1775   Penalties for violations 

1810-1813  Working hours 

 PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE 

 4100-4114  Subletting and subcontracting fair 

    practices 

 7104   Contracts for excavations;   

   discovery of hazardous waste 

 7106   Non-collusion affidavit 

20111   Contracts over $50,000; contracts 

    for construction; award to lowest  

   responsible bidder 

 20104.50  Construction Progress Payments 

 22300   Performance retentions 

      CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

 15500   Food sales by student organizations 

 15501   Sales in high schools and junior 

     high schools 

 15575-15578  Food and beverage requirements  

   outside of the federal school meal 

     programs 

 UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

    1232g   Family Educational Rights and 

Privacy Act 

 1681-1688  Title IX, discrimination 

 

      CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 

    210.1-210.31 National School Lunch Program 

    220.1-220.21 National School Breakfast Program 

 Management Resources: CSBA Publications 

 Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource 

 Guide, rev. 2005 

 WEB SITES 

 CSBA: http://www.csba.org 

California Association of School Business Officials: http://www.casbo.org 

 

 

 

 

Adopted:  (8-98 3-06) 5/2015 Santa Ana, CA 

http://www.csba.org/
http://www.casbo.org/


SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 BP 3312(a) 

 

Business and Noninstructional Operations 

   

Contracts 

 

Whenever state law invests The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility 

with the power to enter into contracts on behalf of the district for the 

acquisition of equipment, supplies, services, and other resources necessary 

for the achievement of district goals. In exercising this authority to enter 

into a contract, the Board shall ensure that the district's interest is 

protected and that the terms of the contract conform to applicable legal 

standards, including the bidding requirements in Public Contract Code 20111.  

(cf. 2121- Superintendent's Contract)\par (cf. 4312.1 - Contracts)  (cf. 9124 

- Attorney) 

 

The Board may, by a majority vote, delegate this power to the Superintendent 

or designee the authority to enter into contracts on behalf of the district. 

To be valid or to constitute an enforceable obligation against the district, 

all such contracts must be approved and/or ratified by the Board. (Education 

Code 17604) (cf. 3300 - Expenditures/Expending Authority) (cf. 3314 - Payment 

for Goods and Services) (cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts) 

(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases) (cf. 3314 - Payment for Goods and 

Services) 

 

All contracts between the district and outside agencies shall conform to 

standards required by law and shall be prepared under the direction of the 

Superintendent or designee.  (cf. 2121- Superintendent's Contract) (cf. 

4312.1 - Contracts) (cf. 9124 - Attorney) 

 

When required by law, contracts and subcontracts made by the district for 

public works or for goods or services shall contain a nondiscrimination 

clause prohibiting discrimination by contractors or subcontractors. The 

nondiscrimination clause shall contain a provision requiring contractors and 

subcontractors to give written notice of their obligations to labor 

organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other 

agreement.  (Government Code 12990  (cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District 

Programs and Activities) 

 

The district shall not Every contract entered into a contract on behalf of 

the district shall be made available for public inspection, except when the 

law prohibits disclosure. No contract shall that prohibits a school district 

employee from disparaging the goods or services of the any contracting party.  

(Education Code 35182.5)  (cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 

 

 

Contracts for Non-Nutritious Foods or Beverages 

 

Effective July 1, 2007, The district or a district school shall not enter 

into or renew a contract for the sale of foods or beverages that do not meet 

the applicable nutritional standards specified in Education Code 49431-or 

49431.249431.7, 5 CCR 15500-15501 or 15575-15578, or 7 CFR 210.11 or 220.12, 

 

 

  

 



BP 3312(b) 

 

unless the contract specifies that such sales will occur later than one-half 

hour after the end of the school day and/or off school premises.  (Education 

Code 49431, 49431.2) (cf. 3554 - Other Food Sales) off campus or outside the 

time restriction specified in the applicable law.  (cf. 3554 - Other Food 

Sales)  (cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 

 
In accordance with the dates specified in law, the district or a district 

school shall not enter into or renew a contract for the sale of beverages 

that do not meet the nutritional standards in Education Code 49431.5 unless 

the contract specifies that such sales will occur later than one-half hour 

after the end of the school day and/or off school premises. 

 

Before the district or a district school enters into or renews a contract 

that grants exclusive or nonexclusive advertising or sale of carbonated 

beverages, non-nutritious beverages or non-nutritious foods as defined in 

law, the Board shall ensure that the district has sufficient internal 

controls in place to protect the integrity of public funds and to ensure that 

funds raised as a result of this the contract benefit public education. 

(Education Code 35182.5) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall develop the district's internal control 

procedures to protect the integrity of public funds.  Such internal controls 

may include, but not be limited to, the following: 

 

1. Control Procedures that produce accurate and reliable financial 

statements and, at the same time, safeguard the assets, financial 

resources, and integrity of every employee responsible for handling 

money or property.  Control systems shall be systematically evaluated 

and revised to keep pace with the changing responsibilities of 

management.  (cf. 3100 - Budget) (cf. 3400 - Management of District 

Assets/Accounts) (cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 

  

2. Procedures to ensure that district personnel do not handle cash or 

product at the school site.  The contract shall specify that the vendor 

stock the machines and shall provide cash accounting, along with a 

check, for district proceeds directly to the control office. 

 

In addition, the contract may specify whether contractor logos are permitted 

on district facilities, including but not limited to scoreboards and other 

equipment. If such logos are permitted, the contractor shall present the 

equipment to the Board as a gift. The gift may be accepted by the Board in 

accordance with Board policy and administrative regulation.  (cf. 3290 - 

Gifts, Grants and Bequest) 

 

To ensure that funds raised by the contract benefit district schools and 

students: 

 

1. The Superintendent or designee may form a committee consisting of 
invite parents/guardians, students, staff, and interested community 

members to make recommendations regarding the contract, including 

recommendations as to how the funds will be spent in a manner that 

benefits public education.  (cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 

 

 

 

 

 



BP 3312(c) 

 

 

2. Prior to ratifying the contract, the Board shall designate the specific 

programs and activities that will be funded by the proceeds of the 

contract and consider how the contract reflects the district's vision 

and goals. (cf. 0000 - Vision)  (cf. 0100 - Philosophy)  (cf. 0200 - 

Goals for the School District) 

 

3. The contract shall specify that the contractor report, on a quarterly 

basis, to the Superintendent or designee the number of food items or 

beverages sold within the district and the amount of money raised by 

the sales.  The Superintendent or designee shall report these amounts 

to the Board on a regular basis. 

 

4. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the contract does not 

limit the ability of student and parent organizations to plan and 

operate fund-raising activities.  (cf. 1230 - School-Connected 

Organizations) (cf. 1321 - Solicitation of Funds from and by Students) 

 

The Any contract for the sale or advertisement of non-nutritious foods or 

carbonated or non-nutritious beverages shall be entered into on a competitive 

bid basis pursuant to Public Contract Code 20111 or through the issuance of a 

Request for Proposal.  (Education Code 35182.5) (cf. 3311 - Bids) 

 

The Board shall not enter into or renew a any contract that grants exclusive 

or nonexclusive advertising or sale of carbonated beverages, non-nutritious 

beverages, or non-nutritious foods until parents/guardians, students, and  

members of the public have had an opportunity to comment on the contract at a 

public hearing held during a regularly scheduled bBoard meeting. The Board 

shall clearly, and in a manner recognizable to the general public, identify 

in the agenda the contract to be discussed at the meeting. or as otherwise 

authorized by Education Code 35182.5. The Board shall clearly, and in a 

manner recognizable to the general public, identify in the agenda the 

contract to be discussed at the meeting.  (Education Code 35182.5.) (cf. 9322 

- Agendas/Meeting Materials)  (cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct) 

 

The public hearing shall include, but not be limited to, a discussion of the 

nutritional value of foods and beverages sold within the district; the 

availability of fresh fruit, vegetables, and grains in school meals and 

snacks, including locally grown and organic produce; the amount of fat, 

sugar, and additives in the food and beverages discussed; and barriers to 

student participation in school breakfast and lunch programs. (Education 

35182.5) (cf. 5030 – Student Wellness) 

 

The contract shall be accessible to the public and may not include a 

confidentiality clause that would prevent the district or a district school 

from making any part of the contract public.  (Education Code 35182.5) 

 

  

Contracts for Electronic Products or Services 

 

The Board shall not enter into a contract for electronic products or services 

that requires the dissemination of advertising to students, unless the Board:  

(Education Code 35182.5) 

 

1. Enters into the contract at a noticed, public hearing of the Board.  
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 

 

 



BP 3312(d) 

 

 

2. Makes a finding that the electronic product or service is or would be 

an integral component of the education of students.  (cf. 0440 - 

District Technology Plan) (cf. 6162.7 - Use of Technology in 

Instruction) 

 

3. Makes a finding that the district cannot afford to provide the 

electronic product or service unless it contracts to permit 

dissemination of advertising to students.  (cf. 1325 - Advertising and 

Promotion) 

 

4. As part of the district's normal, ongoing communication to 

parents/guardians, provides written notice that the advertising will be 

used in the classroom or other learning center.  (cf. 5145.6 – Parental 

Notifications) 

 

5. Offers parents/guardians the opportunity to request in writing that 

their child not be exposed to the program that contains the 

advertising.  Any request shall be honored for the school year in which 

it is submitted, or longer if specified, but may be withdrawn by the 

parents/guardians at any time. 

 

 

 

Legal Reference: 

 EDUCATION CODE 

 200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination on  

   the basis of sex  

 14505   Provisions required in contracts  

   for audits 

 17595-17606  Contracts 

 35182.5  Contract prohibitions 

 45103.1  Personal services contracts 

 45103.5  Contracts for management consulting 

   service related to food service 

 49073.1  Contract requirements for digital  

   storage, maintenance and retrieval 

     of student records 

 49431-49431.57 Nutritional standards 

 CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 

 685.010  Rate of interest 

 GOVERNMENT CODE 

 12990   Nondiscrimination and compliance  

   employment programs 

53260   Contract provision re maximum cash 

    settlement 

 53262   Ratification of contracts with  

   administrative officers 

 LABOR CODE 

 1775   Penalties for violations 

1810-1813  Working hours 

 PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE 

 4100-4114  Subletting and subcontracting fair 

    practices 

 7104   Contracts for excavations;   

   discovery of hazardous waste 

 7106   Non-collusion affidavit 

 



BP 3312(e) 

 

 

 20111   Contracts over $50,000; contracts 

    for construction; award to lowest  

   responsible bidder 

 20104.50  Construction Progress Payments 

 22300   Performance retentions 

      CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

 15500   Food sales by student organizations 

 15501   Sales in high schools and junior 

     high schools 

 15575-15578  Food and beverage requirements  

   outside of the federal school meal 

     programs 

 UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

    1232g   Family Educational Rights and 

Privacy Act 

 1681-1688  Title IX, discrimination 

 

      CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 

    210.1-210.31 National School Lunch Program 

    220.1-220.21 National School Breakfast Program 

 Management Resources: CSBA Publications 

 Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource 

 Guide, rev. 2005 

 WEB SITES 

 CSBA: http://www.csba.org 

California Association of School Business Officials: http://www.casbo.org 

 

 

Adopted:  (8-98 3-06) 5/2015 Santa Ana, CA 

http://www.csba.org/
http://www.casbo.org/

	Agenda
	Certificated Employee of the Month for May 2015, Carmen Irene Schuell
	AIB

	Classified Employee of the Month for May 2015, Caroline Rausch
	AIB

	Philharmonic Society of Orange County
	AIB Recognition 5-26-15

	Approval of Regular Board Minutes - May 12, 2015
	Minutes Place Holder

	Orange County Department of Education Third Quarterly Report on School Accountability Report Card for Fiscal Year 2014-15 Pursuant to Williams Settlement Legislation
	AGENDA
	ATTACHMENT

	Acceptance of Gifts in Accordance with Board Policy 3290 – Gifts, Grants, and Bequests
	AGENDA
	Gift List

	Approval of Agreement between Jet Propulsion Laboratory, California Institute of Technology, and Santa Ana Unified School District for May 27, 2015 through September 1, 2015
	agenda
	agreement

	Approval of Extended Field Trip(s) in Accordance with Board Policy (BP) 6153 – School-Sponsored Trips and Administrative Regulation (AR) 6153.1 – Extended School-Sponsored Trips
	Agenda
	list
	All FTs

	Approval of Exploring Computer Science Course for High School Students
	Agenda
	outline

	Approval of Master Contracts and/or Individual Service Agreements with Nonpublic Schools and Agencies for Students with Disabilities for 2014-15 School Year
	AIBS

	Approval of Submission of Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Improvement Act of 2006 Application for Funding for 2015-16 School Year
	Agenda
	Summary

	Ratification of Purchase Order Summary and Listing of Orders $25,000 and Over for Period of April 29, 2015 through May 12, 2015
	Agenda
	PO Summary Report
	PO Listing

	Ratification of Expenditure Summary and Warrant Listing for Period of April 29, 2015 through May 12, 2015
	Agenda
	Expenditure Summary Report
	Warrant Listing

	Acknowledgement of Receipt of Orange County School of the Arts Charter School Charter Renewal Petition
	Agenda

	Adoption of Resolution No. 14/15-3059 – Authorization of Board Member’s Absence from Board Meeting
	Board Member's Absence from Board Meetings - Valerie Amezcua
	Reso for V. Amezcua 5-12-15

	Approval of Personnel Calendar Including the Transition of Specific Staff Members with such Topics as:  Hiring, Promotions, Transfers, Resignations, Retirements, and Leaves
	AIB
	Attachment

	Material Revision of INDA Charter School Charter Petition
	Agenda
	Redline Petition

	Charter Renewal Petition for Orange County School of the Arts Charter School
	Agenda
	Redline Petition

	Charter Renewal Petition for Orange County Educational Arts Academy
	Agenda
	Redline Petition

	ENCO Systems, Inc. for Closed Captioning of Board Meetings
	Agenda
	proposal
	proposal II
	info

	Adoption of Resolution No. 14/15-3060 – Establish a Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits
	Agenda
	Resolution 3060

	Authorization to Reject and Rebid Bid Package 1001.1 at Fremont Elementary School Under Emergency Repair Program
	AIB 
	Bid Tab Fremont 
	Exhibit A 

	Authorization to Reject and Rebid Bid Package 1602 at Lathrop Intermediate School Under Emergency Repair Program
	AIB 
	Bid Tab- Lathrop 
	Explanation of Reject Rebid Lathrop 

	Authorization to Award Contract for Concrete/Asphalt Project at Adams Elementary School Under Emergency Repair Program
	AIB 
	Bid Tab- Adams BP 2101

	Authorization to Award Contracts for Roofing Projects at Lincoln, Martin, Remington, and Roosevelt Elementary Schools and Lathrop, Spurgeon, and Willard Intermediate Schools Under Emergency Repair Program
	AIB 
	Bid Tab ERP 
	Attachment A 

	Authorization to Award Contract for After-School Enrichment Program Provider Services for 2015-18 School Years
	Agenda
	Agreements
	Executive Summary
	Proposals

	Authorization to Extend Contracts Awarded through Request for Proposals or Bid for 2015-16 Fiscal Year and Approval to Continue use of Previously Approved Piggyback Bids, California Multiple Award Schedule and Western States Contracting Alliance Agreements
	Agenda
	Contract Renewal

	Authorization to Renew Annual Listing of Agreements/Contracts with Santa Ana Unified School District and Various Consultants Submitted for 2015-16 Fiscal Year
	Agenda
	Annual Consultant List
	Consultant Agreements

	Authorization to Renew Subscriptions with The Ware Group for 2015-16 School Year
	Agenda
	Agreement

	Authorization to Utilize Piggyback Contract for Purchase of Classroom and Office Furniture
	Agenda

	Approval of Head Start Budget Adjustment No. 1 for 2014-15 Program Year
	Agenda
	Budget

	Approval of Agreement with Northwest Evaluation Association for 2014-15 School Year
	Agenda
	Agreement

	Approval of Data Sharing Agreement between Santa Ana Unified School District and WestEd for Period May 27, 2015 Through December 31, 2017
	Agenda
	Agreement

	Ratification of Personnel Agreement with Orange County Department of Education - Safe Schools Program for Services at Community Day School for April 27, 2015 through June 30, 2015
	AIBS
	agreement
	revised proposal

	Approval of Partnership Proposal with Discovery Education Science Techbook for 2015-21 School Years
	Agenda
	Agreement

	Approve Material Revision of INDA Charter School Charter Petition and Adopt Resolution No. 14/15-3061
	Agenda
	Resolution 3061
	Redline Petition

	Board Policy (BP) 5125 – Student Records (Revised: First Reading)
	Agenda
	policy

	Board Policy (BP) 5125.1 – Release of Directory Information (Revised: First Reading)
	Agenda
	policy

	Board Policy (BP) 3312 – Contracts (Revised: Adoption)
	AGENDA
	POLICY

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Board Meeting Agenda 2015-05-26 FINAL.pdf
	REGULAR AGENDA - ACTION ITEMS

	Blank Page



